


ENTERED

San Francisco

Law Library
436 CITY HALL

EXTRACT FROM RULES

Rule la. Books and other legal material may be borrowed from

the San Francisco Law Library for use within the City and County of San
Francisco, for the periods of time and on the conditions hereinafter pro-

vided, by the judges of all courts situated within the City and County,

by Municipal, State and Federal officers, and any member of the State

Bar ill good standing and practicing law in the City and County of San

Francisco. Each book or other item so borrowed shall be returned within

five days or such shorter period as the Librarian shall require for books

of special character, including books constantly in use, or of unusual

lalue. The Librarian may, in his discretion, grant such renewals and ex-

tensions of time for the return of books as he may deem proper under

the particular circumstances and to the best interests of the Library and

its patrons. Books shall not be borrowed or withdrawn from the Library by

the general public or by law students except in unusual cases of ex-

tenuating circumstances and within the discretion of the Librarian.

Rule 2a. No book or other item shall be removed or withdrawn from

the Librari' by anyone for any purpose without first giving written receipt

in such form as shall be prescribed and furnished for the purpose, failure of

which shall be ground for suspension or denial of the privilege of the

Library.

Rule .'Ja. No book or other material in the Librar>- shall have the

leaves folded down, or be marked, dog-eared, or otlierv\'ise soiled, de-

faced or injured, and any person violating this provision shall be liable

for a sum not exceeding treble the cost of replacement of the book or

other material so treated and may be denied the further privilege of

the Library.



Digitized by the Internet Archive

in 2010 with funding from

Public.Resource.org and Law.Gov

http://www.archive.org/details/govuscourtsca9briefs2997









f V>r
*>1^1

No. 14835

mniteb States

Court of appeals
5foc tJje Bint!) Circuit,

YOUNG AH KWAI and YOUNG AH CHOR,

Appellants,

vs.

JOHN FOSTER DULLES, Secretary of State of

the United States of America,

Appellee^

Cransicript of ^ecorb

Appeal from the United States District Court

for the District of Hawaii

/

F 1 L E D
ntrn 27 1855

Phillips & Von Ord«n Co., 870 Brannon Street, San Francisco, Calif.-12-2-55





No. 14835

Court of appeals
.Ifor tije Bintfj Circuit.

YOUNG AH KWAI and YOUNG AH CHOR,

Appellants,

vs.

JOHN FOSTER DULLES, Secretary of State of

the United States of America,

Appellee.

^rangcript of Eetorb

Appeal from the United States District Court

for the District of Hawaii

Phillips & Van Orden Co., 870 Brannan Street, San Francisco, Calif.-12-2-55





INDEX

[Clerk's Note: When deemed likely to be of an important nature,
errors or doubtful matters appearing in the original certified record
are printed literally in italic; and, likewise, cancelled matter appear-
ing in the original certified record is printed and cancelled herein
accordingly. When possible, an omission from the text is indicated by
printing in italic the two words between which the omission seems
to occur.]

PAGE

Attorne}' s, Names and Addresses of 1

Bond on Appeal 16

Certificate of Clerk 19

Complaint, Amended 3

Ex. A—Speedletter 9

B—Letter Dated October 22, 1951. ... 10

C—Letter Dated October 22, 1951. ... 11

Motion for Judgment on the Pleadings 12

Notice of 13

Notice of Appeal 16

Order and Judgment 14

Statement of Points, Appellants' 21





NAMES AND ADDRESSES OF
ATTORNEYS OF RECORD

For the Plaintiff, Young Ah Kwai:

W. Y. CHAR, ESQ.,

942 Maunakea Street,

Honolulu, T. H.

For the Defendant, John Foster Dulles, etc.

:

LOUIS B. BLISSARD,
United States Attorney;

CHARLES B. DWIGHT, III, ESQ.,

Assistant U. S. Attorney,

Federal Building,

Honolulu, T. H.





John Foster Dulles, etc. 8

In the United States District Court

for the District of Hawaii

Civil No. 1110

YOUNG AH KWAI and YOUNG AH CHOR,

Plaintiffs,

vs.

JOHN FOSTER DULLES, Secretary of State of

the United States of America,

Defendant.

COMPLAINT UNDER SECTION 503 UNITED
STATES NATIONALITY ACT (8 USCA,
SECTION 903)

Amended Complaint

I.

That the Plaintiffs are citizens of the United

States ; that they were born in Sun Mun Tung Vil-

lage, Lung Doo, Chungshan, Kwantung, China, Ah
Kwai on CR 9-8-15 (October 14, 1926) and Ah Chor

on CR 11-2-13 (November 28, 1924) ; that they re-

sided in Sun Mun Tung Village aforesaid ; and that

they claim their United States citizenship by reason

of the fact that they are the sons of Young Yick,

also known as Young Yick Chong, a citizen of the

United States who resided in the United States

prior to the birth of the Plaintiffs; and that they

claim Hawaii as their residence.

II.

That the Defendant, John Foster Dulles, is the

Secretary of the Department of State of the Gov-
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emment of the United States of America and is the

head of the United States Foreign Service, with

central offices located in Washington, D. C.

That the said Young Yick, also known as Young

Yick Chong, was born in Honolulu, City and County

of Honolulu, Territory of Hawaii, on the 11th day

of April, 1895; that he is and always has been a

citizen of the United States of America and is a

permanent resident of Honolulu aforesaid, having

resided continuously in said Honolulu since birth,

with the exception of three (3) trips to China, de-

parting and returning to Honolulu, T. H., on the

dates and vessels showTi below:

1. Departed from Honolulu in September,

1897, ontheSS'^Coptie."

Returned to Honolulu in November, 1921,

on the SS "Taiyo Maru."

2. Departed from Honolulu on October 10,

1934, on the SS "President Coolidge."

Returned to Honolulu in 1935 on the SS

"President Coolidge."

3. Departed from Honolulu in 1947 on the SS

"Marine Lynx."

Returned to Honolulu in May 19, 1948, on

a Philippine Air Line plane.

IV.

That the said Young Yick, also known as Young

Yick Chong, has in his possession as evidence of his

United States citizenship, an Order and Judgment
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issued on the 6th day of May, 1950, by the District

Court of the United States for the District of Ha-

waii, declaring said Young Yick, also known as

Young Yick Chong, to be a national of the United

States by virtue of his birth at Palama, Oahu, Ter-

ritory of Hawaii, on or about April 11, 1895; that

he has also a Certificate of Citizenship-Hawaiian

Islands, issued to him by the Immigration and Nat-

uralization Station in Honolulu, T. H.

V.

That Young Yick, also known as Young Yick

Chong, was married to Young Hoong Shee on the

28th day of the 2nd month of the 6th year of the

Chinese Republic (March 21, 1917) in Sun Mun
Tung Village, Lung Doo, Chungshan, Kwangtung,

China ; that from said marriage were born four (4)

sons, whose names, dates of birth, places of birth

and present addresses are as follows:

Young Ah Choy. CR 7-4-8 (July 30, 1919). Sun

Mun Tung Village, Lung Doo, Chungshan, Kwang-

tung, China. Last known address: Kwong Moon,

Kwangtung, China.

Young Ah Kwai, Plaintiff herein, CR 9-8-15 (Oct.

14, 1926). Sun Mun Tung Village, Lung Doo, Chung-

shan, Kwangtung, China. Honolulu, T. H.

Young Ah Chor, Plaintiff herein, CR 11-2-13

(Nov. 28, 1924). Sun Mun Tung Village, Lung Doo,

Chungshan, Kwangtung, China. Honolulu, T. H.

Young Lum Jip. 22nd day, 9th month (Chinese

Calendar) in the year 1935 (Oct. 19, 1935). Sun
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Mun Tung Village, Lung Doo, Chungshan, Kwang-
tung, China. Honolulu, T. H.

VI.

That on February 13, 1951, Plaintiffs submitted

to the American Consulate General at Hong Kong
their applications for recognition as American citi-

zens; that said applications were supported by an

affidavit executed by Plaintiffs' father, Young Yick,

also known as Young Yick Chong, identifying Plain-

tiffs as his sons and supporting their claims to citi-

zenship; that, subsequently, they submitted an affi-

davit by Lee Yau Ting identifying Young Yick,

also known as Young Yick Chong, as the rightful

owner of the Order and Judgment issued on the 6th

day of May, 1950, by the District Court of the Unit(>d

States for the District of Hawaii, declaring Young

Yick, also known as Young Yick Chong, to be a na-

tional of the United States by virtue of his birth at

Palama, Oahu, Territory of Hawaii, on or about

April 11, 1895; that said applications and support-

ing affidavits were submitted for the purpose of

documentation as American citizens to enable Plain-

tiffs to enter and reside in the United States as

American citizens ; that on July 10, 1951, Young Ah
Kwai and Young Ah Chor each executed a formal

passport application at the American Consulate

General at Hong Kong ; that Plaintiffs have complied

with all of the requirements of said American Con-

sulate General for information as to their United

States citizenship.
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That R. B. Shipley, Chief, Passport Division, De-
partment of State, Washington, D. C, informed San
Ung Loo Chan, Plaintiffs' fonner attorney, by
speedletter, dated October 16, 1951, that said Young
Ah Kwai and Young Ah Chor were refused docu-

mentation by the Consulate General at Hong Kong

;

that a copy of said speedletter is hereto attached,

marked Exhibit "A," and made a part hereof.

That H. E. Montamat, American Consul at Hong
Kong, by letters dated October 22, 1951, one ad-

dressed to Young Ah Kwai and another addressed

to Young Ah Chor, disapproved each applicant's

passport application and denied to each a travel

affidavit to enable him to travel to the United States

;

that copies of said letters are hereto annexed,

marked Exhibits "B" and "C," respectively, and

made parts hereof.

VII.

That the Defendant is the duly appointed, quali-

fied and acting Secretary of State of the United

States; that the American Consulate General at

Hong Kong is an official executive of the Defendant

herein; that the Plaintiffs, and each of them, as

United States citizens, claim all the rights or privi-

leges to which citizens of the United States are en-

titled; that Plaintiff's, and each of them, had re-

quested the American Consulate General to issue to

them United States passports or equivalent docu-

ments to enable them to enter and take up perma-

nent residence, as United States citizens, in the

United States; that Defendant, by and through his
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official executives, has refused to issue to Plaintiffs,

and each of them, a United States passport or any

other travel document upon the ground that they are

not nationals of the United States ; that the issuance

of a United States passport or equivalent document

by the Defendant is a right and/or privilege to

which each of the Plaintiffs is entitled as a United

States citizen; that Defendant's denial of Plaintiffs'

passport applications, executed on July 10, 1951, and

refusal to afford the Plaintiffs, facilities for the

execution of affidavits for the purpose of travelling

to the United States is the denial of a right and/or

privilege of citizens and/or nationals of the United

States upon the ground that the Plaintiffs are not

nationals of the United States.

VIII.

That, as a result of the American Consulate's dis-

approval of Plaintiffs' applications and refusal to

issue to Plaintiffs United States passports or equiv-

alent travel documents. Plaintiffs are unable to en-

ter and reside in the United States, and such refusal

is a denial of their rights and privileges upon the

ground that they are not nationals of the United

States.

Wherefore, Plaintiffs pray for judgment and de-

cree adjudging that they are citizens and/or nation-

als of the United States and as such are entitled to

the rights and/or privileges of citizens and/or na-

tionals of the United States, including the right to

be issued United States ]^assports and the right to

enter and reside in the United States of America.
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Dated
: Honolulu, T. H., this 12th day of Novem-

ber, 1954.

YOUNG AH KWAI, and

YOUNG AH CHOR,
Plaintiffs;

By /s/ W. Y. CHAR,
Their Attorney.

EXHIBIT A
(Copy)

Passport Division

Speedletter

This form of communication is used to expedite con-

sideration of your case. Should a reply be nec-

essary, it should be addressed as follows to in-

sure prompt receipt

:

In reply refer to F 130—Young Lum Jip.

Date: October 16, 1951.

Passport Division

Department of State

Washington 25, D. C.

Sau Ung Loo Chan,

Attorney at Law,

P. O. Box 3315,

Honolulu, T. H.

Reference citizenship cases of Young Lum Jij),

Young Ah Kwai and Young Ah Chor.
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official executives, has refused to issue to Plaintiffs,

and each of them, a United States passport or any

other travel document upon the ground that they are

not nationals of the United States ; that the issuance

of a United States passport or equivalent document

by the Defendant is a right and/or privilege to

which each of the Plaintiffs is entitled as a United

States citizen; that Defendant's denial of Plaintiffs'

passport applications, executed on July 10, 1951, and

refusal to afford the Plaintiffs, facilities for the

execution of affidavits for the purpose of travelling

to the United States is the denial of a right and/or

privilege of citizens and/or nationals of the United

States \\\)0T\ the ground that the Plaintiffs are not

nationals of the United States.

VIII.

That, as a result of the American Consulate's dis-

approval of Plaintiffs' applications and refusal to

issue to Plaintiffs United States passports or equiv-

alent travel documents. Plaintiffs are unable to en-

ter and reside in the United States, and such refusal

is a denial of their rights and privileges upon the

ground that ih^j are not nationals of the Ignited

States.

Wherefore, Plaintiffs pray for judgment and de-

cree adjudging that they are citizens and/or nation-

als of the United States and as such are entitled to

the rights and/or privileges of citizens and/or na-

tionals of the United States, including the right to

be issued United States passports and the right to

enter and reside in the United States of America.
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Dated : Honolulu, T. H., this 12th day of Novem-
ber, 1954.

YOUNG AH KWAI, and

YOUNG AH CHOR,
Plaintiffs;

By /s/ W. Y. CHAR,
Their Attorney.

EXHIBIT A
(Copy)

Passport Division

Speedletter

This form of communication is used to expedite con-

sideration of your case. Should a reply be nec-

essary, it should be addressed as follows to in-

sure prompt receipt

:

In reply refer to F 130—Young' Lum Jip.

Date: October 16, 1951.

Passport Division

Department of State

Washington 25, D. C.

Sau Ung Loo Chan,

Attorney at Law,

P. O. Box 3315,

Honolulu, T. H.

Reference citizenship cases of Young Lum Jip,

Young Ah Kwai and Young Ah Chor.
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Department informed by Consulate General at

Hong Kong that a travel affidavit was issued to

Young Lum Jip on October 11, 1951. His alleged

brothers, Young Ah Kwei and Young Ah Chor were

refused documentation.

/s/ R. B. SHIPLEY,
Chief, Passport Division.

(Copy)

EXHIBIT B

The Foreign Service of the

United States of America

[Stamped] : Consulate General of United States of

America. Nov. 7, 1951. Hong Kong.

American Consulate General,

Hong Kong, October 22, 1951.

Young Ah Kwei,

216 Nam Ping Hotel,

Des Voeux Road,

Hong Kong.

Sir:

With reference to your interview at this Consu-

late General on August 28 and October 9, 1951, you

are informed that you have failed to establish your

identity as the son of an American citizen, Young

Yick.

Tlie testimony given by you and your witnesses

disclosed wide discrepancies regarding material

L



John Foster Dulles, etc. 11

facts concerning which you and your alleged broth-

ers should have been in agreement, if your claimed

relationship had existed in fact.

In view of the foregoing, the passport application

executed by you on July 10, 1951, has been dis-

approved, and the Consulate General declines to

afford you facilities for the execution of an affida-

vit for the purpose of travelling to the United

States.

The facts of your case have been reported to the

Department of State, Washington, D. C.

Very truly yours.

For the Consul General

:

/s/ H. E. MONTAMAT,
American Consul.

EXHIBIT C

(Copy)

The Foreign Service of the

United States of America

American Consulate General,

Hong Kong, October 22, 1951.

Young Ah Chor,

216 Nam Ping Hotel,

Des Voeux Road,

Hong Kong.

Sir:

With reference to your interview at this Consu-

late General on August 28 and October 9, 1951, you
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are informed that you have failed to establish you

identity as the son of an American citizen, Youni

Yick.

The testimony given by you and your witnesse

disclosed wide discrepancies regarding materia

facts concerning which you and your alleged broth

ers should have been in agreement, if your claime(

relationship had existed in fact.

In view of the foregoing, the passport applicatioi

executed by you on July 10, 1951, has been disap

proved, and the Consulate General declines to aff^or(

you facilities for the execution of an affidavit fo:

the purpose of travelling to the United States.

Very truly yours,

For the Consul General:

/s/ H. E. MONTAMAT,
American Consul.

[Endorsed] : Filed November 13, 1954.

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

MOTION FOR JUDGMENT
ON THE PLEADINGS

Comes now John Foster Dulles, Secretary of Stat(

of the United States of America, by his attorneys

Louis B. Blissard, United States Attorney for the

District of Hawaii, and Charles B. Dwight III, As-

sistant United States Attornev for the District o1
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Hawaii, and moves this Honorable Court to enter

judgment on the pleadings in favor of the defend-

ant, as to plaintiff Young Ah Kwai, and to dismiss

this cause as to plaintiff Young Ah Kwai for the

reason that the plaintiff in his complaint has failed

to state a claim against the defendant upon which

relief can be granted.

Dated: Honolulu, T. H., this 1st day of April,

1955.

LOUIS B. BLISSARD,
United States Attorney,

District of Hawaii;

By /s/ CHARLES B. DWIGHT, III,

Asst. United States Attorney, District of Hawaii,

Attorneys for Defendant.

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

NOTICE

To: W. Y. Char, 311 Liberty Bank Building, Hono-

lulu, T. H., Attorney for Plaintiffs

:

You are hereby notified that the attached Motion

for Judgment on the Pleadings will be heard before

the Honorable J. Frank McLaughlin, Judge, United

States District Court for the District of Hawaii, in

his courtroom in the Federal Building, Honolulu,

T. H., on the 13th day of April, 1955, at the hour of
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2:00 o'clock on said date, or as soon thereafter as

counsel may be heard.

Dated: Honolulu, T. H., this 1st day of April,

1955.

LOUIS B. BLISSARD,
United States Attorney,

District of Hawaii

;

By /s/ CHARLES B. DWIGHT, III,

Asst. United States Attorney, District of Hawaii,

Attorneys for Defendant.

Receipt of copy acknowledged.

[Endorsed] : Filed April 1, 1955.

In the United States District Court

for the District of Hawaii

Civil No. 1110

YOUNG AH KWAI and YOUNG AH CHOR,
Plaintiffs,

vs.

JOHN FOSTER DULLES, Secretaiy of State of

the United States of America,

Defendant.

ORDER AND JUDGMENT

The Motion for Judgment on the Pleadings hav-

ing come on for hearing on April 27, 1955, the plain-

tiff. Young Ah Kwai, being represented by W. Y.
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Char, Esquire, and the defendant, John Foster

Dulles, being represented by Louis B. Blissard,

United States Attorney for the District of Hawaii,

and Charles B. Dwight III, Assistant United States

Attorney for the District of Hawaii, the matter hav-

ing been fully argued, the Court finds as a matter

of law that the plaintiff, Yoimg Ah Kwai, is not now
nor has he ever been a citizen or national of the,

United States

;

Now, Therefore, It Is Ordered, Adjudged and

Decreed that the Motion for Judgment on the Plead-

ings be and hereby is granted and that Judgment

for the defendant, John Foster Dulles, be entered

against the plaintiff, Young Ah Kwai.

It Is Further Ordered and Adjudged that this

Order and Judgment take effect nunc pro tunc as

of April 27, 1955.

Dated: Honolulu, T. H., this 15th day of June,

1955.

/s/ J. FRANK McLaughlin,
Judge of the Above-Entitled

Court.

[Endorsed] : Filed June 15, 1955.
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

NOTICE OF APPEAL TO THE UNITED
STATES COURT OF APPEALS FOR THE
NINTH CIRCUIT UNDER RULE 73(b)

Notice is hereby given that Young* Ah Kwai, by

W. Y. Char, Attorney for plaintiff, does hereby aj)-

peal to the L'nited States Court of Appeals for the

Ninth Circuit from the final order and Judgment

entered in this proceeding on April 27, 1955, grant-

ing defendant's motion for judgment on the plead-

ings and the nunc pro tunc order filed on June 15.

1955, granting defendant's motion for judgment on

the pleadings.

Dated : Honolulu, T. H., this 17th day of June,

1955.

YOUNG AH KWAI,
Plaintiff;

By /s/ W. Y. CHAR,
His Attorney.

[Endorsed] : Filed June 17, 1955.

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

BOND ON APPEAL

Know All Men by These Presents, that Young

Ah Kwai, as principal, and Commercial Insurance

Company, a corporation duly licensed to carry on

business in the Territory of Hawaii, as surety, are
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held and firmly bound unto the defendant above

named, John Foster Dulles, Secretary of State of

the United States of America, hereinafter called

the ''Appellee" in the sum of Two Hundred Fifty

Dollars ($250.00) for the payment of which well

and truly to be made, we bind ourselves and oui'

successors and assigns, jointly and severally, nnd

firmly by these presents.

The condition of this obligation is such that

:

Whereas the above bounden principal has filed

his Notice of Appeal from the United States Dis-

trict Court of the District of Haw^aii to the United

States Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit to

reverse the final judgment of this court made and

entered in the above-entitled cause on the 27th day

of April, 1955.

Now, Therefore, if the said principal shall prose-

cute his appeal with effect and answer all costs if

he fail to sustain said appeal, then this obligation

shall be void, otherwise it remains in full force and

effect.

Sealed with our seal, and dated this 27th day c»f

June, 1955.

/s/ YOUNG AH KWAI,
Principal.

COMMERCIAL INSURANCE
COMPANY,

[Seal] By /s/ HAU HEE,
Its Attorney in Fact.
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Territory of Hawaii,

City and County of Honolulu—ss.

On this 25th day of June, A. D. 1955, before me
appeared Young Ah Kwai, to me personally known,

who being by me duly sworn, did say that he is the

principal named in the foregoing Bond on Appeal

and that he acknowledged said instrument as his

free act and deed.

[Seal] /s/ JEANETTE Y. L. LEE,

Notary Public, First Judicial Circuit, Territory of

Hawaii.

My commission expires : 9/25/57.

Territory of Hawaii,

City and County of Honolulu—ss.

On this 27th day of June, A.D. 1955, before me

personally appeared Hau Hee, to me personally

known, who being duly sworn did say that he is the

Attorney-in-Fact of the Commercial Insurance Com-

pany, duly appointed under Power of Attorney

dated the 6th day of August, 1937, which Power of

Attorney is now in full force and effect, and that

the seal affixed to said instrument is the corporate

seal of said corporation, and that said instrument

was signed and sealed on behalf of said corporation

under the authority of its Board of Directors, and
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said Hau Hee acknowledged said instrument to be

the free act and deed of said corporation.

[Seal] /s/ JEANETTE Y. L. LEE,
Notary Public, First Judicial Circuit, Territory of

Hawaii.

My commission expires : 9/25/57.

The foregoing bond is hereby approved as to form,

amoimt and sufficiency of surety.

/s/ JON WIIG,
U. S. District Judge.

[Endorsed] : Filed July 5, 1955.

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

CERTIFICATE OF CLERK

United States of America,

District of Hawaii—ss.

I, William F. Thompson, Jr., Clerk of the United

States Distiict Court for the District of Hawaii, do

hereby certify that the foregoing record on appeal

in the above-entitled cause, numbered from Page 1

to Page 28, consists of a statement of the names and

addresses of the attorneys of record and of the

various pleadings as hereinbelow listed and indi-

cated :

Originals

Amended Complaint.

Motion for Judgment on the Pleadings.
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Memorandum of Points and Authorities, and No-

tice.

Order and Judgment.

Notice of Appeal to the United States Court of

Api^eals for the Ninth Circuit under Rule 73(b).

Bond on Appeal.

Designation of Record on Appeal.

In Witness Whereof, I have hereunto set my
hand and affij^ed the seal of said District Court, this

9th day of July, 1955.

[Seal] /s/ WM. F. THOMPSON, JR.,

Clerk, IT. S. District Court,

District of Hawaii.

[Endorsed] : No. 14,835. United States Court of

Appeals for the Ninth (Urcuit. Young Ah Kwai and

Young Ah Chor, Appellants, vs. John Foster Dulles,

Secretary of State of the United States of America,

Appellee. Transcript of Record. Appeal from the

United States District Court for the District of

Hawaii.

Filed July 16, 1955.

/s/ PAUL P. O'BRIEN,

Clerk of the United States Court of Appeals for the

Ninth Circuit.
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In the United States Court of Appeals

for the Ninth Circuit

Civil No. 1110

YOUNG AH KWAI and YOUNG AH CHOR,

Plaintiffs-Appellants,

vs.

JOHN FOSTER DULLES, Secretary of State of

the United States of America,

Defendant-Appellee.

APPELLANTS' STATEMENT OF POINTS

Plaintiff-Appellant above named, sets forth the

following point on which he intends to rely on

appeal

:

The court erred in ruling that the plaintiff-appel-

lant. Young Ah Kwai, was not a United States citi-

zen at birth, in that he did not satisfy the residence

requirement under section 1993 of the Revised

Statutes.

Dated : Honolulu, Hawaii, this 29th day of Juno,

1955.

YOUNG AH KWAI,
Plaintiff-Appellant.

By /s/ W. Y. CHAR,
His Attorney.

[Endorsed] : Filed July 16, 1955.
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Salt River Valley AVater Users' Asso-
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Appellee.

Appellants' Opening Brief
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for the District of Arizona
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Salt River ^^alley Water Users' Asso-

ciATiox, an Arizona Corporation,
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Appellants' Opening Brief

Appeal from the United States District Court

for the District of Arizona

JURISDICTIONAL MATTERS

On May 27, 1955 the United States District Court for the

District of Arizona, Honorable Dave W. Ling presiding,

made its Poindings of Fact and Conclusions of Law (T.R.

48) and entered Judgment for the defendant below. (T.R.

52). On June 24, 1955, the plaintiffs below tiled their Notice

of Appeal (T.R. 53). The lower court, on July 26, 1955,

extended the time for filing the record and docketing the

appeal to August 17, 1955. It was filed on August 1, 1955

(T.R. 838). The lower court had jurisdiction by virtue of

29 U.S.C. 5$ 216 (Fair Labor Standards Act). This court has

jurisdiction under 28 U.S.C. § 1291.
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STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This action was brought to recover unpaid wages by

thirty-five women who contend that they were employees of

the Salt River Valley Water Users' Association (hereafter

referred to as the "Company"), a private corporation. Their

husbands were joined as parties. On November 28, 1950

they filed a complaint, which was later amended (T.R. 18).

It alleges that for two years prior to the filing of the com-

plaint they were employed by the Company to do clerical

work and work pertaining to the sale, distribution and

delivery of water, the distribution of water for agricultural

and other purposes being one of the functions of the Com-

pany. They further alleged that the Company failed to pay

them anything for their services. They set up facts to the

effect that the Company was subject to compliance with the

Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938 as amended, 29 U.S.C.

§ 206,^ which reads

:

"(a) Every emplo^^er shall pay to each of his em-

ployees who is engaged in conmierce or in the pro-

duction of goods for commerce wages at the following

rates— (1) not less than 75 cents an hour; * * *" [prior

to January 25, 1950 the minimmn was 40 cents per

hour]

The C'Ompany filed an amended answer. It is not printed

in the Transcript of Record and so is added to this Brief as

Appendix A. Among other matters it alleges that any work

or service performed by the women plaintiffs was done

without its knowledge, was voluntary, and was performed

without exj^ectation of compensation; and denies that the

women plaintiffs were its employees.

1. The Act of 1938 (52 Stat. 1060) was amended by the Portal-

to-Portal Act of 1947 (61 Stat. 84) ; by the Acts of July 20, 1949,

C. 352 and Oct. 26, 1949, C. 352, 63 Stat. 446. The latter amendment
took effect as of January 25, 1950.

L
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It raised the issue as to the applicability of the Fair

Labor Standards Act but it offered no proof at the trial to

the effect that it was exempt from the operation of that Act

or that the women plaintiffs were not covered by the Act.

A companion case, Sturdivant, et al. v. Salt River Valley

Users' Association, an Arizona Corporation; was tried

immediately following this case. The records of the two

cases are consolidated. It was stipulated that the testimony

of the witness Ronald Arden Wright given in the Sturdivant

Case (T.R. 790 et secj.) would be considered as a part of this

case (T.R. 810).

The lower Court held that the women plaintiffs were not

employees of the Company and entered judgment accord-

ingly (T.R. 52). Hence, this appeal.

The facts show generally that waters are collected from

a 13,00()-square-mile water shed; are converged at (franite

Reef Dam near Phoenix, Arizona, where they are diverted

into canals. From the canals the water flows into laterals

and ditches and from them is distri})uted to the lands of

farmers and other users in the Salt River Valley. The water

supply from Granite Reef Dam is augmented by pum})

waters (T.R. 322).

The area in which the water is used was, during the times

pertinent to this action, divided into sixty-two divisions.

Each division was ordinarily in the charge of a zanjero, who

was an employee of the Company (T.R. 63, 318). It was his

responsibility to see that the water was delivered to the

user in the quantities and at the times the user ordered. He

was engaged in the production of goods for interstate com-

merce (T.R. 86 and see Reynolds v. Salt River Valley Water

Users' Ass'n., 9 Cir. 1944, 143 F2d 863).

The women appellants are all wives of zanjeros (T.R.

318). They lived with their husbands in zanjero stations on
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their respective divisions (T.R. 68). The sijecific duties

which they performed are descril)ed in detail in the argu-

ment below.

It will be seen that there is surprisingly little conflict in

the evidence. Three witnesses who were married to zanjeros

and who are not parties to this action did testify in effect

that they were not employees of the Company (T.R. 372,

386, 390). But, of course, that does not contradict the testi-

mony of the parties and other witnesses who testified to

facts establishing that these appellants did work for the

Company.

To avoid awkward appellations, in this brief the women

appellants are referred to as "the wives".

THE ISSUE INVOLVED

The sole issue in the case is whether or not the wives were

employees of the Company within the meaning of the Fair

Labor Standards Act of 1938, as amended. During the

period covered by this action the following definitions from

that Act were effective

:

Title 29 U.S.C. i^ 203. As used in this Act—
(a) "Person" means an individual, partnership,

association, corporation, business trust, legal represen-

tative, or any group of i^ersons.

(d) "Employer" includes any person acting directly

or indirectly in the interest of an employer in relation

to an employee but shall not include the United States

or any State or political subdivision of a State, or any

labor organization (other than when acting as an em-

ployer), or anyone acting in the capacity of officer or

agent of such labor organization.

(e) "Employee" includes any individual employed

l)y an em])loyer.

(g) "Emi)loy" includes to suffer or permit to work.
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All the specifications of error relate to tliis fundamental

issue and can best be argued as one. It will be shown that

the lower Courts' material findings were not supported by

any substantial evidence and that in practically every

instance, testimony by the Company's own witnesses refute

the findings.

SPECIFICATIONS OF ERROR

I.

The Court erred in making the following Conclusions of

Law (T.R. 51)

:

"I.

Defendant did not at any time material herein, suffer

or permit plaintiffs to work for it, and, therefore,

defendant did not employ plaintiffs."

"II.

In that defendant did not employ plaintiffs, the pro-

visions of the Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938, as

amended, 29 U.S.C.A., Sec. 200 [sic], et seq., are not

applicable."

These Conclusions of Law are clearly erroneous in that

the undisputed evidence shows that the wife-appellants were

suffered and permitted to work for appellee and therefore

come within the definitions of the Fair Labor Standards

Act of 1938 with respect to employees.

IL

The Court erred in making the following Finding of Fact

:

"VI.

The zanjero wife, including these women plaintiffs,

were not ]'e(iuii-ed by defendant to perform any duties
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as a condition of their husband's employment. Plain-

tiffs received no instructions from defendant; and
defendant had no policy whereby it requested tlie zan-

jero to instruct his wife with respect to duties to be

performed by her. Defendant exercised no control over

plaintiffs with respect to the manner in which they used

their time or with respect to their activities ; plaintiffs

at all times were at liberty to, and did leave the prem-

ises at any time and it was not necessary for plaintiffs

to notify defendant at any time concerning such depar-

tures ; some wives, including some plaintiffs, were em-

ployed regularly away from the divisions by persons

other than defendant with or without the knowledge of

defendant, and without objection by the defendant."

(T.R. 50)

This Finding of Fact is erroneous and not warranted in

that the evidence clearly proves that all the wives were

required by the Company to perform work as a condition

to their husbands' em]3loyment ; and that the appellee exer-

cised control over the wives with respect to the time as to

when they could leave and return to the zanjero stations.

III.

The Court erred in making the following Finding of Fact

:

"VII.

Any work performed by zanjero wives, including plain-

tiffs, for the benefit of defendant was work performed

voluntarily, unknown to the defendant, and not under

the direction and control of defendant, but at the

request of their husbands. The extent of the assistance

of the zanjero wife to the husband was controlled by

the husband; in many cases the wife did not in any

manner assist the husband in the performance of his

duties ; in other cases the husband induced the wife to

assist him in varying degrees. Assistance bv the wife
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or other members of the family was not necessary for

the efficient performance of the zanjero's duties. All

such work i3erformed by plaintiffs w^as work for which
the husband was paid by defendant pursuant to the

terms and conditions of the collective bargaining agree-

ment between the defendant and the zanjeros." (T.K.

50, 51)

This Finding of Fact is erroneous and not warranted in

that the evidence clearly proves that the work that wives

performed w^as rec(uired by the very nature of tlie job of

the zanjeros ; that the duties of the zanjeros were so planned

and devised so that the proper performance of the duties of

the zanjeros was impossible without the help of the wives.

The evidence clearly proves that the Company required the

performance of labor by the wives ; that the extent of the

w^ork of tlie wives was controlled not by the zanjeros l)ut

by the extent of the duties on the division and by the amount

of time that the zanjero spent in the field. There was no evi-

dence that the zanjero was paid for all the work done by his

wife nor any evidence of how much the Company |)aid the

zanjero for work performed by his wife.

IV.

The Court erred in entering Judgment for the Company

(T.R. 52), for the wives were "employees" under 29 U.S.C.

§ 206(a), the Company Avas an "employer" not exempt from

complying with that section, and the Company did not pay

such employees for actual hours woi'ked ])y them.

ARGUMENT IN SUPPORT OF SPECIFICATION OF ERRORS
NUMBERS I TO IV

I. The Wives Performed Services Which Were Indispensable to

the Operation of the Company's Business.

The wives did company work. This is not disputed. Tiiey

all lived at zanjero stations, "as servants and not as tenants"



(T.K. 205), where the Company had telephones, some office

equipment, and office files relating to the distribution of

water in the zanjeros' respective divisions (T.R. 85). Their

tasks consisted of the following: answering business tele-

phone calls. In the busy season there would be from twenty-

five to fifty calls a day; in the slack seasons, about ten (T.R.

195, 220)." They would also make telephone calls to farmers,

other water users, to the Company's head office (T.K. 89,

220), and to the Watermasters who were the zanjero super-

visors (T.R. 148). The wives kept various records and filled

out various reports such as Town Site reports (T.R. 87),

Zanjero Advance Service Cards (T.R. 98, 254), Name and

Address Cards ; Buy, Legal Description Cards ; Continued

Run Cards (T.R. 197), Crop Reports showing what crops

farmers were growing (T.R. 198), Subdivision Water

Schedules, copied lateral reports (T.R. 197) and made out

A.V.O.'s, which were memos to the Company concerning

matters which the zanjeros were required to communicate,

such as structures that 'needed repairing, laterals that

needed cleaning, and so forth. (T.R. 71). They did clerical

filing work (T.R. 223), and checked credit balances of water

users (T.R. 220). In some instances they worked in the field,

turning in water, making farm changes (T.R. 223), oper-

ating gates (T.R. 232), and cleaning ditches (T.R. 194).

They took orders from farmers who came to their stations

(T.R. 86). When there was trouble in a division, such as a

flood (T.R. 220), they reported it (T.R. 86).

The wives spent a minimum average of about three hours

a day on business telephone calls (T.R. 90) ; and five hours

in keeping records (T.R. 94).^

2. Generally from the first of the vear to March was slack (T.R.

195).

3. Five of the zanjero 's wives testified in regard to the tasks

they i)erformed. It was stipulated that if the other wives were
called, they would testify to substantially the same thing (T.R. 329).

\
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The work that was done by the wives was work which was
assigned to the husband-zanjero's division, and work which

lie coukl not do because (1) he did not have the time, being

engaged on other Company business and (2) because he

coukl not be in the field and at the telephone at the same

time (T.R. 194)/

li. The Zanjero CouSd No^ ProperSy Operate His Division Without
His Wife's Help.

The zanjeros were in the field working from twelve to

eighteen hours a day (T.R. 95, 168, 204). The work which

they performed was so time-consuming that they could not

do the required jobs performed by their wives. (T.R. 89).

Although a company man testified that it w^as "fifty-fifty",

(T.R. 404), a disinterested witness testified that except in

a "very few cases" the telephone calls were taken by the

wife (T.R. 246). From ninety to ninety-five per cent of the

time when a farmer went to a zanjero station, it would be

the wife who would take his instructions (T.R. 442).

Without a wife's help, the zanjero could not operate his

division (T.R. 252, 445, 460). "You will never be a free

woman after you get on that job * * * because your time is

the Water Users'" (T.R. 287). The work required two

people (T.R. 194). The wife had to help (T.R. 215).

One of the wives testified that because of the necessity of

someone being at the station at all times she had to give up

church work and had to refuse work in the Parent-Teachers

Association (T.R. 223). Another wife said that she had to

give up the idea of doing substitute teaching because "it is

4. At the time of the trial, the Company was experimenting with

a "zone system". Under it, a zanjero (called waterman) worked
eight straight hours. There were three shifts. It took thirty-three

men to do the same work as fifteen zanjeros under the old system

(T.R. 209). The watermen's cars had radio telephones and was
apparently a more efficient mode of operation (T.R. 427).
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an understood thing that the zanjero's wife stay at home

and answer the phone for their husband and help them in

whatever way they can" (T.R. 287). It is true that one Avife

was a dressmaker. However, her work was done at home

with the exception of the times that she left to take fittings.

But even then, a lady was hired to remain at the station to

take calls (T.R. 154 et seq.). That it took two to run a divi-

sion is proven by the fact that when the wife of one of the

zanjeros died, the Company put an extra zanjero on the

division to answer the telephone (T.R. 431, 455).

III. The Company Knew That fhe Wives Were Doing the Work.

The lower Court found that the Company did not know

that the wives worked (T.R. 50). This Finding is absolutely

contrary to the evidence. The wives were telephoning the

Company's office to check on farmers' credit balances,

reporting floodings (T.R. 220), getting correct addresses,

and calling about water (T.R. 89). The Company's office

would telephone the wives and pass on complaints and

orders to them (T.R. 215, 445). The reports sent into the

Company were in the handwriting of the wives as well as

their husbands (T.R. 251).

The Company attempted to refute this by the testimony

of one of its witnesses, who said (T.R. 404) : "I have never

instructed the wives. I have left instructions with the wife

to pass on to the husband * * * telling him when his water

would be there or how many inches of water to let tlirough

in the canal at a specific time." But this in itself constituted

an instruction to the wife. On receiving such a call, she

w^ould try to locate the zanjero, would call places where she

thought he might be passing (T.R. 173)^ to have him waved

5. Some of the zanjero stations were on ten-party telephone

lines with other industrial users (T.R. 93, 202). Sometimes "yoii

can try as long as an hour" to place a call (T.R. 201).
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down (T.R. 186). If the wife were notified by the Company
that water was coming to a farmer and the farmer had no i

telephone, the wife would make the water change herself

if her husband was out in the field (T.R. 225).

These activities were not isolated ones. They were not

done merely in response to a casual and occasional request

for a favor. The Company oi)erated on a twenty-four hour

day, seven days a week (T.R. 116, 180, 409, 531). The tele-

phone calls, the making of reports, the information that had

to be communicated between the wives and the water users

and the wives and the Company ol)viously went on without

ceasing during the entire year.

That the Company knew and expected the wife to work is

further established by the following answers of a super-

visor (T.R. 120)

:

"Q. Is it a rule that somebody nmst be at tlie phone

[at a zanjero station] at all times?

A. I wouldn't say it is a rule. I would say it is

customary.

Q. And by 'somebody', does that necessarily mean
the zanjero!

A. Well, it can be the zanjero, zanjero's wife or

whoever he designates as somebody competent to

receive the calls."

Another supervisor for the Company was asked (T.R.

396):

"Did you, as a Watermaster, ever advise a zanjero

that his wife Avas required to assist him in connection

with his job!

A. No; I have ahvays made it a point to instruct

the zanjero and if he wished to push any of that work

off on his wife he could instruct her how to do the work.

Q. Do some of them push the work off on their

wives f

A. I think so."
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For reasony given below, the wives were so imbued with

the idea that they had to attend to their zanjero stations

they would generally not leave them without C'Omjjany per-

mission. So, a wife testified in answer to the following

question (T.R. 92) :

uQ * * * -Q^ y^^^ recall any time during employ-

ment that you left the house for any period of time f

A. Well, yes, I had to leave one time to go to see

my mother. She had been ill so Mr. Harper [her hus-

band] called the Association and asked them if it

would be all right for me leaving and the Watermaster

asked him if there would be someone there to take care

of the telephone and he told them yes, that he w^ould

have someone to take care of the telephone while I was
gone so they told him it would be all right then for me
to go.

Another wife testified (T.R. 151) :

"* * * So I asked him [a Watermaster]—I said, 'I have

a chance to do some other work. If I have someone here

to answer the phone is it all right for me to do other

workf
"He said, 'As long as there is someone here to

answer the phone, that is all that is necessary.' I hired

IV. The Company Required the Wives to Work.

The foregoing, it is submitted, establishes that the wives

were working for the Company ; the Company knew it ; and

by implication demanded it as a condition of employment

for the zanjeros. There is other forcible evidence.

For example, a witness testified that when he applied for

a job, the assistant to the General Superintendent (T.R.

lf)l) ''asked me if T was married, if my wife worked and

told me she would have to hel]) out by taking telephone



13

calls and orders, the orders of the farmers that came to the

door" (T.R. 248). The same official told another applicant

for a zanjero job, "that it was necessary for me to be

married in order that my wife might help me with my
duties" (T.R. 82). A Watermaster told one of the wives tliat

it was her part to do everything that she could to hel]) her

husband in running the division in the way that it should be

run (T.E. 151).

The General Superintendent of the Com})any (T.R. 161)

told some of the zanjeros after a meeting

:

"There is a zanjero in Mesa, his wife won't stay at

home and answer telephone calls and if she won't stay

at home or if he can't get her to stay at home we are

going to have to do something about it. We are going

to have to let that man go."

It was a policy of the Company to employ only married

men as zanjeros (T.R. 82, 83, 214)." The Company's reason

was that they hired married men because of their greater

stability and their willingness to work the irregular hours

(T.R. 423). Considering all the testimony, however, it may
readily be deduced that the primary reason was so that the

Company could have the services of the wives. This can be

demonstrated.

The zanjero could not carry on his work without a tele-

phone. So said the Company (T.R. 328). Now, a telephone

6. The appellants' evidence overwhelmingly proved that it was
a requirement that the zanjeros be married. A few extracts from
the Transcript are: "I was told [by the assistant to the General

Superintendent] that I wouldn't be able to go to work until the

time that I married" (T.R. 82). "I missed one job because I

wasn't married. * * * Another job came up * * * [The General

^Manager] asked me how long would it take me to get married and
I told him not very long, and so we were married on June 29 and
I Avent to work on June 30, '37" (T.R. 215).
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without anyone to answer it is equivalent, of course, to no

telephone at all.

The Company had mailed cards to all its shareholders

requesting them to place their water orders between 7 :00

a.m. and 3:00 p.m. (T.R. 176). It was between these hours

that the Company believed that most of the zanjeros would

be in the field, for it contended that a good zanjero was able

to schedule his water for distribution during the day (T.R.

123). It follows that the Company exj^ected the man to be

in the field while the woman was in the office. It was unques-

tionably for that reason that the Company emjjloyed only

married zanjeros and demanded that their wives remain at

the station and work. All this is high-lighted by a good

illustration. When one of the wives had a baby, the Company

installed a telephone extension by her bedside (T.R. 197).

Y. The Evidence Proves Thai- the Wives Were Employees of fhe

Company and Entitled to Be Paid for the Actual Hours That

They Worked.

"Work" is distinguished from the physical or mental

exertion recpiired to do ''something undertaken i)rimarily

for pleasure, sport, or innnediate gratification, or as merely

incidental to other activities (as a disagreeable walk in-

volved in going to see a friend or the packing of a trunk for

a pleasure trip * * *" Tennessee Coal, Iron & R. R. Co. v.

Muscoda Local No. 123, 1944, 321 U.S. 590, 64 S. Ct. 698, 88

L.Ed. 949, footnote 11.

No one ever would contend that the zanjero duties per-

formed by the wife were for her pleasure, sport, and so

forth. There is no doubt that she ''worked". The question is

:

for whom did she work? Who was her employer? The em-

ployer necessarily would have to be either the Company or

the wife's hus])and. Admittedlv, the husband derived a bene-
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fit from t]ie wife's work. If the wife liad not taken telephone

calls, for example, it would have driven one of appellee's

witnesses "crazy" (T.R. 365). If the wife had not worked,

the husband would have lost his joh (T.R. 191). But essen-

tially, if the wife did not work, the Company would have had

to hire additional help (see the facts under II, above). It

must be concluded that the Company was the employer.

Even under the connnon law definition of master and serv-

ant, the wives were probably employees of the Com])any.

But the limitations of the connnon law are not applical^le

under the definitions of the Fair Labor Standards Act. In

National Labor Relations Board v. Hearst Publications,

Inc., 1944, 322 U.S. Ill, 64 S. Ct. 851, 88 L.Ed. 1170, it is

said:

"Congress, on the one hand was not thinking solely

of the immediate technical relation of employer and
employee. It had in mind at least some other persons

than those standing in the proximate legal relation of

employee to the particular employer involved in the

labor dispute. It cannot be taken, however, that the

purpose was to include all other persons who may per-

form service for another or was to ignore entirely legal

classifications made for other purposes. Congress had

in mind a wider field than the narroiv technical legal

relation of 'master and servant', as the common law

had ivorked this out in all its variations, and at the

same time a narrower one than the entire area of ren-

dering service to others. The question comes down
therefore to how much was included of the inter-

mediate region of between what is clearly and un-

equivocally 'employment' l)y any appropriate test, and

what is as clearly entrepreneurial enterprise and not

employment."

Although the case just cited involved the National Labor

Relations Act, 29 U.S.C. ^ 151 et seq., the same liberal inter-
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pretation required to effectuate tlie social legislation of the

Fair Labor Standards Act aijplies to the latter. McComh v.

Homeworker.s Handicraft Co-oy, 4 Cir., 1949, 176 F2d 633

;

Rutherford Food Corporatio7i v. McComh, 1947, 331 U.vS.

722, 67 S. Ct. 1473, 91 L.Ed. 1772.

In the Homeworkers Case, the Court said that connnon

law rules as to distinctions between servants and independ-

ent contractors throws little light on who are emx)loyees

within the meaning of the act.

The keywords "to suffer and permit" have been the recipi-

ents of some attention by the courts in various situations

that have arisen under the Fair Labor Standards Act. Thus

this Court has held that these words mean work done with

the knowledge of the employer-. Fox v. Summit King Mines,

9 Cir., 1944, 143 Fed. 2d 926. See, also, Mabee Oil and Gas

Co. V. Thomas, 1945, 195 Okla. 437, 158 Pac. 2d 713, 169 ALE
mS] Jackson v. Derby Oil Co., 1943, 157 Kan. 53, 139 Pac.

2d 146. A more recent District Court decision. Need v.

Braughton, D.C. Ark., 1953, 111 Fed. Supp. 775 sums it up

as follows

:

"The term 'einployee' includes to suffer or permit to

work. 29 U.S.C.A. Sec. 203 (g) Walling v. Jacksonville

Terminal Company, 5th Circuit, 148 Fed. 2d 76S. The

words 'to suffer or xiermit to work' do not mean that

permitting someone to work for a third person or

worker's own self constitutes a person an employer

bound to pay statutory wages. They mean that a person

is an employer if he permits another to work for him,

though he has not expressly hired or employed him.

Walling V. Jacksonville Terminal Company, supra,

Walling V. McKay, 70 Fed. Supp. 160, [Aff'd in 8 Cir.,

1947, 164 F2d 40] and the words 'suffer' and 'permit'

mean with the knowledge or consent of the emj)loyer.

Fox V. Summit King Mines, 143 Fed. 2d 926, 932;
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Mabee Oil & Gas Company v. Thomas, 158 P.2d 713, 169

ALR 1318."

The Company knew that the wives were working. It

admittedly never instructed them not to do the work (T.R.

416). It therefore suffered or permitted them to work wdthin

the meaning of 29 U.S.C. § 203(g).

CONCLUSION

It is respectfully submitted that the judgment of the

lower Court should be reversed with instructions to enter

judgment for the wives and for a determination of the issue

on whether or not the wives are entitled to licjuidated dam-

ages and attorneys' fees.

Herbert B. Finn
125 West Monroe Street

Phoenix, Arizona

Shute & Elsing

By W. T. Elsing
505 Title & Trust Bldg.

Phoenix, Arizona

Attorneys for Appellants

(Appendix A follows)









APPENDIX A

In the United States District Court

District of Arizona

No. CIV—1551—Phoenix

Faye M. Barras,

Plaintiff,

Salt River \^alley Water Users,

An Arizona Corporation,

Defendant.

AMENDED ANSWER
Defendant, for its amended answer to plaintiff's com-

plaint, defendant admits, denies and alleges as follows

:

I

Defendant alleges that plaintiif's complaint fails to state

a claim upon which relief can be granted, and moves the

Court for an order dismissing plaintiif's complaint and

action.

II

Answering paragraph I of plaintiff's complaint, defend-

ant denies that the i)urported action herein is one arising

under Section l()(b) of the Fair Lal^or Standards Act of

1938, as amended, and denies that plaintiff's comjjlaint

states a cause of action, and denies that this Court has juris-

diction herein under Title 28 U.S.C.A., Section 41(8), or at

all.

Ill

Answering paragraph II of plaintiif's complaint, defend-

ant admits that defendant is a corporation organized and
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existing under tlie laws of the State of Arizona and in this

connection defendant alleges that it is a non-profit water

users' association or corporation, that it has no assets, and

that its operations are without profit. In this connection

defendant alleges that it was organized for, and its prin-

cipal puri)ose is and has been to assist in carrying out the

purposes of the United States Reclamation Act (43 U.S.C.A.

371 et seq.) in relation to the Salt River Project.

Denies that during the two years next preceding the filing

of this action, or at any time, defendant was or is now^

engaged in interstate connnerce as defined by Section 3(b)

of the Fair Labor Standards Act, or at all, and denies that

defendant has been or is now continuously or otherwise

engaged as an employer of labor engaged in the production

of goods for commerce as defined in Section 3(j) of the

Fair Labor Standards Act, or at all. In this connection

defendant denies that, except as agent for Salt River Proj-

ect Agricultural Improvement and Powder District (a dis-

trict organized under the provisions of Article 7 of Chapter

75 A.C.A. 1939), and not otherwise, it has :

Maintained or operated dams
;
power plants ; lines for

distributing electricity; waterway, flumes, canals, con-

duits or ditches for the distribution of w^ater; or im-

pounded water for the purpose of producing electrical

power or for distributing water for irrigation of land

;

delivered water to power plants or produced power;

purchased power outside the State of Arizona or

brought power into the State of Arizona; sold, de-

livered or distributed electrical power to industries or

companies in Arizona; sold, distri])uted or delivered

water to industries or companies in Arizona, or other-

wise.
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In this connection, defendant alleges that under an Agree-

ment (hereinafter called "Agreement"), between defendant

and Salt River Project Agricultural Improvement and

Power District, (hereinafter called "District"), made and

entered into on the 22nd day of March, 1937, and approved

on behalf of the United States of America by the Secretary

of the Interior Department of said United States on the

18th day of May, 1937, defendant, as agent for District, and

not otherwise, maintained and operated the reservoirs,

dams, power plants, electrical distribution systems, water-

ways, canals, flumes, conduits and ditches for the distribu-

tion of water; impounded water principally for irrigation

and as an incident thereto, produced electricity, sold and

distributed water for irrigation, and sold and delivered

power principally for pumping water for irrigation; that

all revenues collected or received by defendant, were the

property of District, and all amounts not required to be

expended for maintenance and operation or retained for

necessary reserves, were paid over by defendant to District

at the end of each calendar year in accordance witli the

terms of said Agreement; that the Salt River Project was

constructed principally with funds supplied by the United

States of America under and pursuant to the Reclamation

Act (43 U.S.C.A. 371 et seq.) and said Salt River Project

is subject to the terms and provisions of said Reclamation

Act; that in excess of $20,000,000 remains unpaid on the

construction costs of said Salt River Project

;

That by Agreement between defendant and District, dated

the 12th day of September, 1949 (hereinafter called

"Amended Agreement") approved by the Secretary of

Interior under date of the 4th day of October, 1949, said

Agreement was amended effective the 1st day of November,

1949; that beginning and since the 1st day of November,
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1949, defendant, as agent for District and not otherwise,

has operated and maintained the irrigation and drainage

system of Salt River Project, as such irrigation and drain-

age system is descri})ed and defined in said Amended Agree-

ment ; that a true copy of Agreement and Amended Agree-

ment is attached hereto marked ''Exhibit A" and by refer-

ence made a part hereof ; that beginning witli and since the

1st day of November, 1949, defendant has not operated or

maintained any project of an}^ character and has not en-

gaged in any activity whatsoever, except the operation and

management of said irrigation and drainage system as Dis-

trict's Agent pursuant to the provisions of Amended Agree-

ment.

Further answering said paragraph II, defendant denies

that, for itself or as agent for said District or otherwise,

defendant generated, produced, purchased, sold, delivered,

or distributed any electrical power or energy whatsoever,

or has operated or maintained any dams, works, plants,

transmission or distribution lines, or an}^ other property or

thing related to or connected with the generation, produc-

tion, sale or distribution of electrical power or energy.

IV

Answering paragraph III of plaintiff's complaint, defend-

ant denies that at any time mentioned in plaintiff's com-

plaint defendant, except as agent for said District and not

otherwise, sold, distributed or delivered water to any land in

the Salt River Valley in Arizona.

Defendant admits, that as agent for said District, and not

otherwise, it has employed zanjeros ; denies that it recpiires

said zanjeros to be married or to live in a house furnished

by defendant; admits that as agent for said District and

not otherwise, defendant furnished telephones for said zan-



Appendix 5

jeros ; denies that the homes or houses of said zanjeros were

or are divisional offices of defendant ; denies that defendant

required, or now requires, said zanjeros to be available

twenty-four hours a day or seven days a week. Denies each

and every, all and singular, the allegations set forth in para-

graph III of plaintiff's complaint not herein specifically

admitted.

V
Answering paragraph V of plaintiff's complaint, defend-

ant admits that the plaintiff, and each complainant, is

married; denies that plaintiff, or any of the complainants,

is the wife of a person emjjloyed by the defendant; denies

that plaintiff, or any complainant, was on duty at any house

or structure of defendant at any time ; denies that plaintiff,

or any complainant, made or received telephone calls or

performed any work or service for defendant at any time

whatsoever; denies each and every, all and singular, the

allegations of said paragraph V not herein specifically

admitted. In this connection, defendant alleges that if plain-

tiff, or any complainant, has performed any work or service

for defendant, such work or service was i)erformed without

the knowledge of defendant, and was voluntary and without

expectation of comjjensation on the i)art of ])laintiff and any

of said complainants.

VI

Answering paragraphs VI, VII, VIII, IX and X of plain-

tiff's complaint, defendant denies that the complainants, or

any of them, are or were at any time mentioned in plain-

tiff's complaint, employees of defendant, and denies that

defendant is indebted to complainants, or any of them in any

amount.

In this connection defendant alleges that for many years

prior to the time specified in plaintiff's complaint, the
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method and manner of delivering water for irrigation on the

Salt River Project and the duties of the zanjeros in respect

thereto were identical with the methods of delivering such

water and the zanjeros' duties in respect thereto during the

time set forth in plaintiff's complaint ; that at no time prior

to the filing of the complaint herein has the plaintiff, or any

complainant, or the wife of any zanjero, claimed to be an

employee of defendant or of District, or claimed the right

to any compensation from defendant or District; that

defendant and District have at all times acted in good faith

and in the honest belief, and now believe, that i^laintiff, and

each of the complainants, is not an employee of defendant

or of District.

VII

Defendant denies each and every, all and singular, the

allegations of plaintiff's complaint not hereinbefore speci-

fically admitted.

Wherefore, having fully answered, defendant prays to be

dismissed with its costs herein incurred and ex})ended.

Jennings, Strouss, Salmon & Trask

By I. A. Jennings

Attorneys for Defendant

619 Title and Trust Bldg.

Phoenix, Arizona

[Filed September 15, 1951]

[Verification]
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No. 14,850

In the

United States Court of Appeals

For the Ninth Circuit

Faye M. Barras, et al.,

Appellants,

vs.

Salt River Valley Water Users' Asso-

ciation, an Arizona Corporation,

Appellee.

Appellee's Brief

Appeal ^rom the United States District Court

for the District of Arizona

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

The statement of Appellants set forth at page 2 of Appel-

lants' opening briefs is inadequate. Contrary to the assertion

contained therein ( Ap. Br. 4) there is a great conflict in the

evidence.

This case is unique in the annals of the many hundreds

of cases involving the applicability of the Fair Labor Stand-

ards Act. There is no case of record similar to it. It is con-

ceded that there was no express agreement of employment

))etween Appellee and any of the Zaujci-o wives. The usual

1. Appellants' brief Avill be abbreviated as " Ap. Br." ; the Tran-

script of Record as "T.R." The Appellants will sometimes be

referred to as the
'

' Zanjero wives.
'

'
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indicia of eiiiployiiient is entirely absent. In no instance did

a Zanjero wife apioly for employment. None were carried on

Appellee's payroll. Workmen's Comi^ensation was not car-

ried l)y Appellee on Zanjero wives, nor were they included

in reports to any State or Federal administrative officials

having to do with old age benefits, social security and un-

employment insurance.

Local 266, International Brotherhood of Electrical

Workers, A.F.L., was certified in 19-11 by the National Labor

Relations Board as the collective bargaining agent of all

employees of Appellee. Zanjero wives were not included in

any such classification so certified. With the exception of

two or three, all Zanjeros were members of the Union (T.R.

339). It was never contended by the L^nion in its negotiations

with the defendant over a period of years that the wives of

Zanjeros were employees of defendant, nor was such con-

tention ever made in ITnion meetings (T.R. 340, 341). The

husband of one of the Appellants was President of the

I^nion in 1946 (T.R. 597). The first knowledge Appellee had

that some of the Zanjero waives claimed the status of em-

ployees coincided wdth the filing of this action (T.R. 51).

The only issue involved in this case, as a matter of both

fact and law, is whether Zanjero wives were employed by

Appellee. Asserted employment of Zanjero wives is predi-

cated solely upon and by virtue of their marriage to Zan-

jeros, w4io were employed by Apj^ellee in the operation of

laterals, ditches and canals used to distribute water to the

shareholders of Appellee. These shareholders are scattered

throughout an area consisting of approximately 240,000

acres in the Salt River Valley. I'his area was l)roken down

into approximatel}'^ 62 zanjero subdivisions, each comprising

eight to ten sc^uare miles. Each Zanjero performed his duties

without direct supervision. His hours of work fluctuated

v
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week by week. Because of the seasonal nature of agriculture,

the Zanjero's work week fluctuated radically from the winter

months to the summer months. This general method of oper-

ation by Appellee and the w^orking conditions common to all

Zanjeros provide the basis for the contention of the wives

that they were employed. Appellants assert that the oper-

ational plan of Appellee w^as so designed that the Zanjero

could not properly operate his division w^ithout the help of

his wife (Ap. Br. 9), thus making her indispensable to the

operation of Appellee's business (Ap. Br. 7). In addition, it

is asserted that the Appellee knew the wives were perform-

ing work (Ap. Br. 10) and required the wives to work (Ap.

Br. 12).

The trial court made express findings of fact which are

contrary to the position asserted by Api)ellants. In sunmiary

form, the court l)elow found, inter alia, that the wives were

not re<(uii-ed to work as a condition of their liusbands' em-

ployment, that assistance by the wife was not necessary for

the efficient performance of the Zanjero duties, and tliat any

work ])erformed by the wives for the benefit of Ai)pellee

was voluntary and unknown to Appellee (T.R. 50-51).

Having made these findings the trial court concluded as a

matter of law that Appellee did not employ these Appel-

lants and that, therefore, the provisions of tlie Act were not

applicable. This appeal followed.

The arguments contained in Appellants' opening brief

are not specifically directed to the Specifications of P]rrors.

For the convenience of the Court, this brief will be

organized into two parts. The first argument will discuss

the iindings of fact of the trial court and the evidence in the

record in suppoit tliereof. The secojui argument will set

forth authorities in sui)port of the lower court's conclusions

of law.
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I.

ARGUMENT IN SUPPORT OF FBNDiNGS OF FACT OF
THE TRIAL COURT

Specifications of lilrrors II and III (Ap. Br. 5, ()) assigns

as error only paragraphs Vl and VII of the lower court's

findings of fact. (T.R. 50, 51). For the Court's convenience

they are set forth as follows

:

"VI.

The Zanjero's wife, including these tvomen Plain-

tiffs, ivere not required hy defendant to perform any

duties as a condition of their husband's employment.

PlaintitTs received no instructions from Defendant;

and Defendant had no policy whereby it requested the

zanjero to instruct his wife with respect to duties to be

performed by her. Defendant exercised no control over

Plaintiffs with respect to the manner in which they used

their time or with resj^ect to their activities ; Plaintiffs

at all times were at liberty to, and did leave the prem-

ises at any time and it was not necessary for Plaintiffs

to notify Defendant at any time concerning such depar-

tures ; some wives, including some Plaintiffs, were em-

ployed regularly away from the division by persons

other than Defendant with or without the knowledge

of Defendant, and without objection by the Defendant.

(Italics supplied.)

VII.

Any work performed hy zanjero wives, including

Plaintiffs, for the benefit of Defendant was work per-

formed voluntarily, unknown to the Defendant, and not

under the direction and control of Defendant, but at

the request of their husbands. The extent of the assist-

ance of the zanjero wife to the husband was controlled

by the husband ; in many cases the wife did not in any

manner assist the husband in the performance of his

duties; in other cases the husband induced the wife to

assist him in varying degrees. Assistance hy the wife

or other members of the family was not necessary for

\
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the efficient performance of the zanjero's duties. All

such work performed by plaintiffs was work for which
the husband was paid by Defendant pursuant to the

terms and conditions of the collective bargaining agree-

ment between the Defendant and the zanjeros." (Italics

supplied.

)

Although Ajjpellants assign as error tiiese findings in

their entirety, their various arguments are directed only at

those portions which have been italicized. Having failed to

direct the attention of the Court to competent evidence in

the record contrary to the remainder of these findings, it

nmst be presumed that they are also conceded.

Have Appellants sustained the burden imposed upon

them by showing to this Court that the disi)uted findings of

fact of the lower court are not supported by the evidence?

The first two arguments advanced ])y Appellants should

be treated as one. These arguments suggest that the serv-

ices performed by the wives were indispensable to the oper-

ation of the company's business (Ap. Br. 7) and that the

Zanjero could not properly operate his division without his

wife's help (Ap. Br. 9). Presumably, the reason why the

wife's services were indispensable was because the Zanjero

could not do the work by himself.

The first contradictor}^ part of the record with respect to

these two arguments is found in paragraph A^ of the lower

court's findings of fact (T.R. 49) which was not assigned as

error by Appellants, The lower court made two significant

findings therein. First, that while the Zanjero was usually

married, the Ap])ellee has employed and is now employing

unmarried Zanjeros (See T.R. l()0-ir)3; 431). Second, that

married Zanjeros wei'e employed })ecause tlie Zanjero lived

in a house on his division miles from populated areas with

the result that more stable employment tenure was achieved
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among married rather than unmarried Zanjeros. If the

Zanjero could not perform his work without tlie help of a

wife, why would the Appellee employ unmarried Zanjeros?

Likewise, married Zanjeros were employed, not because the

wife had to w^ork, but because they were more stal)le em-

ployees. These unchallenged findings of fact are sufficient

in themselves to negate the first two arguments of Appel-

lants. What evidence in the record do Aj)pellants rely upon

to support their contention that the challenged findings of

fact are "clearly" erroneous f

First, they assert that it is undisputed that the w^ves did

company work. (Ap. Br. 7). The record, however, contains

credible evidence to support the finding of the court below

that the alleged work performed by the wives was controlled

by the husliand and w^as work which "the husband induced

the wife to assist him in varying degrees". (Finding of

Fact VII, supra.) The wives performed work for their

husbands, not for Appellee. Thus, one witness testified as

follows (T.R. 395):

"Q. Why do you help your husband this way?
A. I do it because I want to help him. I do it to help

Inm. I am not required to by anybody.

Q. Why must you help your hsuband this way?
A. Well, I just do it because I want to. He likes for

me to do that for him because I write better than he

does. It isn't that he doesn't have time.""

Another witness testified: (T.R. 386)

"Q. Do you assist your husband in any way in his

job as Zanjero?

A. Only occasionally I do make out a few cards if

we want to do something in the evening and it leaves

him free to do so."

2. This testimony was elicited upon cross-examination by counsel
for Appellants.

X



Anotlier testified: (T.R. 396-397)

"Q. Did you, as a Watermaster, ever advise a zan-

jero that his wife was required to assist him in work in

connection with his job!

A. No; I have always made it a point to instruct

the zanjero that if he wished to push any of that work
off on his wife he could instruct her how to do the

work?

Q. Do some of them push the work off on their

wives ?

A. I think so.

Q. Others don't?

A. That is right."

Next, Appellants would have the Court believe that the

record supports the statement that Apj^ellants lived at

Zanjero stations "as servants and not as tenants" (Ap, Br.

7). Page 205 of the transcript is cited to substantiate the

implications inherent in this statement. At this page of the

transcript, Exhibit 8 is set forth. It is a memorandum agree-

ment executed between the Zanjero and Appellee concerning

the terms under which the Zanjero house was to be occupied.

Significantly, no reference is made to the wife, she is not a

party to the contract, and under no circumstances could it

be construed to classify the wife as a "servant" of Appellee.

The statement that the wives spent a minimum average

of three hours a day on telephone calls and five hours keep-

ing records is similarly misleading (A]), Br. 8). The ]K)rtion

of the transcri])t cited to support this contention pertained

to the personal testimony of one Zanjero wife who was

involved in this action. Although the trial court found that

the wives did some work at. the inducement of the husband,

the trial court also found that "in many cases the wife did

not in any manner assist the husband in the performance

of his duties" (Finding of Fact VII, .^upra). Testimony in
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the record supports this finding. One wife testified that slie

did not do anything in connection with her husband's busi-

ness (T.K. 372). And how could the wife of the claimant

Hendrix in the companion Sturdivant cases have done any

work for Appellee if she was a full time employee away

from the premises f (T.R. 420-421). How could the Appel-

lant Gaddy in this case have done such work while she was

a full time employee of the Goodyear Aircraft Company and

the Coca Cola Company? (T.R. 448-449). And a witness

called by Appellants, a Zanjero claimant in the companion

case, testified that he made out all of his own reports (T.R.

216). Who answered the phone and kept the records for the

unmarried Zanjero ?

Of a similar nature is the cited testimony of one wife

involved in this litigation that work was done by the w^ves

because the Zanjero did not have the time and because he

could not be in the field and at the phone at the same time

(Ap. Br. 194), There is ample evidence in the record to sup-

port the finding of fact of the trial court that "assistance by

the wife or other members of family was not necessary for

the efficient performance of the zanjero's duties" (Finding

of Fact VII, supra). In this connection, attention is re-

directed to the testimony of the Zanjero wife (juoted above

that ''it isn't tliat he doesn't have time" that I help my
husband.

The designated separate argument of Appellants (Ap.

Br. 9) that the Zanjero could not properly operate his divi-

sion without his wife's help contradicts the record for the

same reasons as set out above. Appellants, however, illus-

trate their case bv reference to a wife who allegedlv 'iiad

3. There are thirty-six claimants in the Sturdivant cases. There
are only thirty-five wives in this case. The wife of Zanjero Hendrix
did not allege she had been employed by Appellee for obvion.s

reasons.

\



9

to give up church work and had to refuse work in the Parent-

Teachers Association" (Ap. Br. 9; T.R. 223). Appellee

directs the attention of this Court to the testimony of

another Zanjero wife who was active in church work and

who was President of the Maricopa County Parent-Teachers

Association (T.R. 372). This same witness testified as fol-

lows, when asked what part of the day she engaged in these

activities (T.E. 373):

"Well, we always had an afternoon meeting at our

PTA meetings and then we had several dinners that we
worked on in afternoons and evenings and in my church

work, of course, I went to church on Sunday morning
and Sunday evening and Wednesday evenings."

The testimony of the Appellant wlio admitted to having

been emjjloyed as a dressmaker was offered to show that a

lady was hired to remain at the station to take calls (Ap.

I^r. 10). Cross-examination of tliis ])arty develojjcd that the

wife had a minor child and that she did none of her own

house work (T.R. 156). Was the domestic servant hired to

answer the tele})h()ne oi- was she hired to take caro of the

child and do the cooking, ironing, washing and housework?

The answer to this cpiestion was settled by the trial court

in his findings of fact.

Finally Appellants argue it is i)roven that it took two to

run a division by the fact that when the wife of one of the

Zanjeros died, the Company put an extra Zanjero on the

division to answer the telephone (Ap. Br. 10). The testi-

mony of an interested Zanjero was cited (T.R. 455). The

substance of this testimony is that "off and on" there was

either a Zanjero or a Relief Zanjero who answered the

phone. No otlier facts were offered, 'i'lie time ])erio(l in-

volved, the number of calls, the source of his knowledge or

anv other information. Is this the evidence which renders
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the findings of fact of the trial court "clearly erroneous"?

The next argument set forth in Appellant's opening brief

is that the Appellee knew that the wives were doing the

work. (Ap. Br. 10). The argument is prefaced with the

remark that the finding of "the lower court * * * that the

Company did not know that the wives worked" is "absolutely

contrary to the evidence". This, of course, is not a com-

pletely accurate statement of the trial court's finding. The

finding apparently alluded to reads (Finding of Fact VII,

supra)

:

"Any work performed by zanjero wives, including

Plaintiffs, for the benefit of Defendant was work per-

formed voluntarily, unknown to the Defendant, and not

under the direction and control of Defendant, but at

the request of their husbands." (Italics supplied.)

The words in the italics constitute the significant aspect of

this finding. Any work performed by these Appellants "for

the benefit of Appellee" was unknown to Appellee. Appellee

has discussed in a preceding portion of this brief the finding

of the lower court that in some cases the husbands induced

the wives to assist them in varying degrees, and the evi-

dence in support thereof. The work performed was for the

benefit of the husband, not Appellee. That the wives

regarded any such work in this light is borne out by the

following testimony on cross-examination (T.R. 200):

"Q. You knew that your husband was being paid

for each report made, did you not!

A. I did.

Q. And you knew that he got paid for each report

whether by you or by him f

A. That is right.

Q. And also you knew he got paid for the time spent

on the telephone, whether by you or by him, is that

correct!

A. That is right."

V
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In view of the finding of fact of the lower court in the Stiir-

divant cases that the husbands were not required to work

time in excess of the agreed time credits to perform all the

work required of them (T.R. 41) it is clear that the work

performed by the wives, if any, was work performed for

the benefit of the husbands for which the husliands were

compensated.

The evidence contained in the record and relied upon by

Ai)pellants to support their argument that the Appellee

knew that the wives were doing work also proves that any

such work was done for the benefit of the husbands and not

the Appellee. A watermaster testified,^ "I have never

instructed the wives. I have left instructions with the wife

to pass on to the husband." (T.R. 404; See Aj). Br. 10).

Anotlier watermaster testified as a witness for Appellants

that there was no "rule" that somebody be at the phone at

all times (T.K. 120; Ap. Br. 11). This same witness, under

further examination by Appellants' counsel, also testified

that the work of a Zanjero division could be done without

a telephone (T.R. 121). Finally, Api)ellants cite the testi-

mony of another watermaster as proof that the Appellee had

knowledge the wives worked. But, this witness stated that

he never advised a Zanjero that his wife was required to

assist him in connection with his job. According to the wit-

ness, "if he wished to push any of that work off on his wife

he could instruct her how to do the work" (T.R. 396; Ap.

Br. 11).

It is also strange that Appellants would cite the testimony

of the wife Avliose husband felt compelled to get i)ermission

for his wife to leave in order to care for her sick mother

4. A])pellants argue that Appellee tried to refute their testimony
by the quoted ])ortions of this witness' testimony. An examination
of the record Avill show that this testimony was elicited by counsel

for Appellants on cross-examination (T.R. 400-405).
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(T.R. 12; Ap. Br. 12). The husband himself testified that lie

received no instructions concerning such matters when lie

was emijloyed (T.R. 165). They also attempt to buttress

their argument by the testimony of the wife who was

informed by a watermaster that she could get outside em-

ployment "as long as there is someone here to answer the

phone" (T.R. 151; Ap. Br. 12). The trial court would have

been entitled to, and apparently did, disregard this testi-

mony in view of other like, but contradictory, evidence in

the record. Tlius, a Zanjero testified that at the time his

wife accepted full time employment away from the company

premises two watermasters were there; she asked them if

it would in any way jeopardize liis job if she went to work

and they told her it would not^ (T.R. 381). The Super-

intendent of Water Distribution of Appellee testified that

he knew that the wife of Zanjero Hendrix, one of the claim-

ants in the Sturdivant cases, had full-time employment else-

where (T.R. 418). Another witness called by Appellants,

the SuiJerintendent of Water Transmission, testified that

to his knowledge the Zanjeros were not re(|uired to keep

someone on the telephone (T.R. 601). Another watermaster,

a witness called by Appellants, said he knew that two wives

had outside employment, but that he never objected and

never said anything to the husbands about it (T.R. 132-133).

The evidence cited by Appellants in support of their argu-

ment (Ap. Br. 12) that the company required the wives to

work fares no better on analysis of the record. Tliis argu-

ment contravenes the finding of fact of the trial court that

"the Zanjero's wife, including these women Plaintiffs, were

5. One of these watermasters was a witiies.s called by Appellants.

He did not deny this conversation (T.R. 116-136). The other water-

master denied that he had ever instructed a Zanjero to hurry up and
move into a Zanjero house so that his wife could answer the phone
(T.R. 416-417).
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not reciiiired by defendant to perform any duties as a con-

dition of their husband's employment'' (Finding of Fact VI,

supra; T.R. 50). There is ample evidence in the record to

sustain this finding.

To begin with, the evidence discussed hereinabove has

bearing on this issue. The employment of unmarried zan-

jeros, the fact that some zanjero wives held full-time out-

side employment, and the fact tliat some wives performed

no work at all for their husbands negates the contention of

Appellants that the Appellee recpiired the wives to work.

Does the evidence cited by Appellants estalilish that the

above finding by the trial court is "clearly erroneous" ?

Appellants inadvertently cited the testimony of a Zanjero

at page 161 of the transcrii)t ( Aj). l>i-. 12). He testilied that

an official of the company and he had a "general conver-

sation" concerning his a])sence from tlie ]thone after his

wife passed away. The fact not brouglit out l)y Ai)i)ellants

was that he worked nine months after his wife died (T.R.

160) and that he voluntarily left the job (T.R. 163). The

testimony of two Zanjeros is offered witii resjjcct to a con-

versation they had in 1944 when they were hired to the effect

that their wives would have to help out ( Ap. Br. 12-13; T.R.

82; 247-248). The conversation was with a ^Mr. Simmons,

who was not living at the time of the trial (T.R. 83) and

was therefore unavailable to confirm or deny tliis alleged

conversation. Other such alleged conversations between

other Appellants or their husbands were categorically

denied by the watermaster who testified" (T.R. 39S; 406;

416-417). To further illustrate their argument, Appellants

6. There was one exception (T.R. 150-151). A wife testified that

waterma.ster Solverson told her that she was expected to help out.

Tlie time and place is not specified. Solverson did not appear at the

trial. Appellants offered no evidence that at the time of trial he wa.s

still employed by Appellee or otherwise available to testify.
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appear to directly qiiote the General Superintendent (A}).

Br. 13). In reality, the testimony is the recollection of a

Zanjero of a conversation that occurred in 194() (T.E. 190-

191).'^ The witness on cross-examination was asked whether

anything was ever done about the alleged statement that if

the Company cannot get the wife to stay at home the Com-

pany would have to let the man go. The witness answered

(T.R. 191)

:

"There weren't anything done about it any more than

Mr. White, I think, went out and talked to him."

When the evidence cited by Appellants is examined in

light of the entire record it is obviously inadequate to sup-

port the argument that the Appellee required the wives to

work. It becomes of even less value in light of the fact that

four wives and two Zanjeros testified that they received no

instructions from Appellee with respect to the work the

wives were expected to perform (T.R. 165; 196; 374; 379;

386; 395). Every watermaster or sux)ervisor who testified

stated that they never gave instructions to either the Zan-

jero or his wife concerning duties that the wife was re(|uired

to perform (T.R. 396 ; 406 ; 416-417 ; 601).

Based upon the foregoing analysis of the record it is

submitted that Appellants have not shown that even those

portions of the findings of fact of the trial court which they

have argued in their opening brief are "clearly erroneous".

In addition, Appellants do not even pretend that the evi-

dence fails to support other findings of the trial court in-

cluded in their specifications of errors. These unchallenged

findings are highly relevant to any inquiry relating to em-

ployment. In sununary form, they are (Findings of Fact

VI and VII, supra) :

7. Appellants' brief refers to page 161 of the transcript; the tes-

timony actually appears at page 191.

V
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1) Defendant exercised no control over Plaintiffs with

respect to the manner in which they used their time

or with respect to their activities.

2) Plaintiffs at all times were at liberty to, and did

leave the premises at any time and it was not neces-

sary for Plaintiffs to notify Defendant at any time

concerning such departures.

3) Some wives, including some Plaintiffs, were em-

i:)loyed regularly away from the divisions by persons

other than Defendant with or without tlie knowledge

of Defendant, and without objection by the Defend-

ant.

4) Any work performed by zanjero wives, including

Plaintiffs, * * * was work perfoi-med * * * not under

the direction and control of Defendant.

5) The extent of the assistance of the Zanjero's wife

to the husband was controlled by the husband: in

many cases the wife did not in any manner assist the

husband in the performance of liis duties ; in other

cases tlie hus])and induced the wife to assist him in

varying degrees.

G) All such work performed Ity i)hiintiffs was work

for which the husband was paid by Defendant pur-

suant to the terms and conditions of the collective

l)argaining agreement between the Defendant and

the zanjeros.

Appellee, on the other hand, has provided this Court with

reference to the evidence which supports each of the fore-

going tindings of the trial court,—findings wliich, though

assigned as error, Appellants have ignored in tlieir l)rief.

The inescapable conclusion is that they were ignored

because the record does not contradict them.
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In the Statement of the Case, Appellants say

:

"It will be seen that there is surprisingly little con-

flict in the evidence. Three witnesses who were married

to Zanjeros and who are not parties to this action did

testify in effect that they were not employees of the

Company (T.R. 372, 386, 390). But, of course, that

does not contradict the testimony of the parties and

other witnesses ivho testified to facts establishing that

these appellants did uork for the Compani/."

This thought is not pursued in the argument. The state-

ment has a deceptive quality of truth. To prove that one

"employee" did not work ordinarily would not be evidence

that another employee did not work. The situation here is

quite different. Appellants, in the lower court, undertook

to prove that they were employees. They endeavored to do

so by attempting to establish that the plan of operation of

Appellee was so designed that it was necessary for the wife

to assist the husband in the performance of his duties ; that

"This Finding of Fact is erroneous and not warranted

in that the evidence clearly proves that the work that

wives performed was required by the very nature of

the job of the zanjeros ; that the duties of the zanjeros

were so planned and devised so that the proper per-

formance of the duties of the zanjeros was impossible

without the help of the wives." (Ap. Br. 7)

and again

"This Finding of Fact is erroneous and not warranted

in that the evidence clearly proves that all the wives

were required by the Company to perform work as a

condition to their husbands' employment;" (Ap. Br. G)

Appellants' case is grounded upon these pro])ositions.

Hence, proof that othei- Zanjeros' wives did not assist the

hus])and in the pcrfoi-iiiance of his duties, that tiic liiisbaiid

V
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had ample time to do all of the work huiiself ; that she felt

at liberty to and did come and go as she pleased, attended

her church and performed civic duties as other women do,

evidence that some Zanjeros' wives held full-time jobs aAvay

from home—all is positive evidence contradicting the basis

upon which the alleged relationshij) of employer and em-

ployee is founded.

The finding of fact of the trial judge in the case tried

without a jury may not be set aside on appeal unless clearly

erroneous. Rule 52 (a), Rules of Civil Procedure, 28

U.S.C.A., following section 723 c. The findings of fact of

the trial judge are not clearly erroneous unless unsupported

by substantial evidence or clearly against the weight of evi-

dence or induced by an erroneous view of the law. Synitli v.

Porter, 142 F.2d 292 (8 Cir., 1944). And, the power of a trial

court to decide doubtful issues of fact is not limited to

deciding them correctly. Cleo Syrup Corp. v. Coca Cola Co.,

139F.2d416 (8 Cir., 1944).

How has this and other Courts ai)plied tlie law to a i)r()b-

lem of this kind under the Act?

II.

ARGUMENT IN SUPPORT OF THE CONCLUSIONS OF
LAW OF THE TRIAL COURT

The trial court made two conclusions of law. (T.R. 51).

They are

:

"I.

Defendant did not at any time material herein suffer

or permit Plaintiffs to work for it, and, therefore,

Defendant did not employ Plaintitfs,

II.

In that Defendant did not employ l^laintiffs, the pro-

visions of the Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938, as
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amended, 29 U.S.C.A., Sec. 200, et seq., are not appli-

cable."

Appellants have specified them both as error.

The cardinal principle in the employer-employee relation-

ship is the right of the employer to direct and control the

employee in the performance of assigned duties and the

obligation of the employee to perform those duties in the

directed manner. This rule was stated in Fruco Const. Co.

V. McClelland, 192 F.2d 241 (8 Cir., 1951), which involved

an interpretation of the Fair Labor Standards Act. Therein

the Court said (192 F.2d, at page 244)

:

"The essential characteristics of the master and

servant relation is the retention by the employer of the

right to direct and control the manner in which the

work shall be performed."

Although this act defines the term "emjjloy" to include

"to suffer or permit to work" (29 U.S.C.A. § 203 (g) ), it has

not been given the broad meaning which these words w^ould

otherwise imply. At an early date in the interpretation of

this Act, the Sixth Circuit Court in Walling v. Sanders, 136

F.2d 78 (1943), at page 81, used this language

:

"In so broadly defining the word 'employer' Congress

undoubtedly had a purpose to relieve complainants of

the necessity of proving a contract of employment."

The issue involved in this case was whether truck drivers

were employees of salesmen or of the defendant-employer.

The following language would seem to be pertinent to the

facts of this case (136 F.2d at page 81)

:

"The administrator desires us to construe employees

so as to include not only those who work for an accused

employer, but also those who work for anybody else.

iManifestly this would encompass all employed hu-

manitv."

V
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Tlie Act, then, was not intended to bring within its pro-

visions persons who in the ordinary and common sense

understanding of the terms are not em^^loyees. It was

designed to afford persons who are actually employees the

protection of the Act and the benefits of its wage and over-

time provisions. This j)rinciple is succinctly stated in Boiv-

man v. Pace, 119 F.2d 858 (5 Cir., 1941), at page 860:

"It is not the purpose of the Fair Labor Standards Act

to create new wage liabilities, but where a wage lia-

bility exists, to measure it by the standards fixed by

law. If one has not hired another expressly, nor

suffered or permitted him to work under circumstances

where an obligation to pay him Avill be implied, they

are not employer and employee under the Act."

To the same effect, see: Dxicjas v. Nashua Mfg. Co., G2 F.

Supp. 846, 849 (1945) ; Maddox v. Jones, 42 F. Supp. 35, 41

(1941); Wallirui v. Anterican Needlecrafts, 46 F. Supp. 16

(1942).

Nor is the Act intended to include jjersons who do some

work upon the premises of an employer without exi)ectation

of compensation, Wallinf/ v. Portland Terminal Co., 155

F.2d 215 (1 Cir., 1946), 330 U.S. 148, 57 S. Ct. 639. Nor does

it include persons who performed some service even with the

knowledge of the employer who do so under circumstances

deemed voluntary. Rogers v. Schenkel, 162 F.2d 596 (2 Cir.,

1947).

At the very outset of this brief on behalf of Appellee, the

statement was made that this case was unicpie in the annals

of the reported cases construing this Act. All of the au-

thorities cited above, and in Appellants' brief as well, in-

volved situations wliei-e the issue was the extent to which

employment was covered by the Act, not a case such as this

where the ({uestion is whether there was any employment
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at all. This is not a case where the only impediment to

Appellants was the failure to prove a written contract of

employment. This is a case where for the first time the con-

tention of emijloyment was raised in the allegations of a

complaint filed in the court below. Leaving aside the findings

of fact of the trial court which conclusively establish that

no such emi)loyment existed, this is a bold attempt to estab-

lish an employer-employee relationship w^hen, l)y their con-

duct for many years, the parties had never contemplated

that one existed.

But there are findings of fact of the court below supported

by the overwhelming weight of the evidence. Based upon

the evidence before it, the lower court refused to create a

new wage liability for Ap2)ellee where none had existed

before. In so refusing, the trial court was correct, as a

matter of law, that at any time material herein Appellee

did not suffer or permit Appellants to work for it, and,

therefore, Appellee did not employ Appellants.

III.

CONCLUSION

It is respectfully submitted that, based upon the evidence

and the record considered as a whole, the reasons and au-

thorities hereinbefore set forth, the judgment of the lower

court should be affirmed and that this appeal should be dis-

missed.

Jennings, Strouss, Salmon &
Trask

Irving A. Jennings

Richard G. Kleindienst
619 Title & Trust Building-

Phoenix, Arizona

Attorneys for Appellee
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No. 14,850

In the

United States Court of Appeals

For ike Ninth Circuit

Leo Sturdivant, et al.,

Appellants,

vs.

Salt River Valley Water Users' Asso-

ciation, an Arizona Corporation,

Appellee.

Appellants' Reply Brief

Appeal from the United States District Court

for the District of Arizona

There are several evidentiary inaccuracies contained in

the brief of Appellee which should be considered by the

Court.

I.

The brief states (pp. .3-4) that the Trial Court found the

Appellants were not employed to work 24 hours a day 7 days

a week. This is only found by inference in the Judgment of

the Court, to-wit,

u* * * ^YiQ time credits agreed upon and as set forth in

Appendix 'A' bear a substantially acurate relationship



to the actual time required by Plaintiffs to perform all

the work required of them in that Plaintiffs were not

required to work in excess of said agreed credits to per-

form all the work required." (TR 40-41)

Despite Appellants' contentions this finding is clearly er-

roneous in that there is no evidence to support it in the

transcript. The only evidence in the transcript is to the con-

trary, that is, that the time credits were artificial and bore

no relationship to the actual time worked, and this was

testified to at numerous times (See: TK 189, 201, 274, 436,

469, 569, 596).

So artificial was this thne unit system that one of the

w^itnesses for the Appellants testified that he was "docked"

11 and 9/lOths hours for working over 24 hours a day (TR

203). As a matter of fact the company's attorney phrased it

correctly

:

"Q. As a matter of fact there are only certain

operations for which you were given actual time?"

(TR 244)

Even the company witnesses nowhere state that the time

units bore a substantially accurate relationship to all the

work done or the actual work done. The closest to it was

Frank Richard Hill's testimony,

"A. All things being equal, if the water was there,

the only way you could change a head of water if the

water would be there, if the water was in the lateral

and the zanjero knew his business as a regular zanjero,

I believe that the time was adequate." (TR 340)

Later on, the same witness answered the question

:

"Q. Mr. Hill, how long did it take to make a lateral

change

I

A. Well, it all w^ould depend on how much water

you were picking up. * * * " (TR 367)

V
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The Court consistently ruled out evidence with respect to

this matter ( See TR 201, 473, 474, 200, 468).

The Court further finds

"The work performed by plaintiffs for w^hich they were
compensated as hereinabove found constituted all the

Avork performed by Plaintiffs for Defendants." (TR
41).

This is clearly erroneous in that again there is no evidence

to support this finding. TheOpeningBrief of Appellants dis-

cusses this matter in detail (TR 20-27). It is interesting that

during the long pre-trial maneuvers and during the actual

trial the Trial Court repeatedly refused to consider the

time units and to consider the contention of the Ajjpellants

that the time units were inaccurate and artificial. The

Judge's ruling on this matter apparently at the time of the

trial was that the plaintiffs are bound by a contract and that

that ends the matter.

Appellee states in its Brief (page 31) that the weight of

the evidence tends to show that as a matter of practice the

zanjero performs his work during the day-light hours most

days of the year and quotes certain witnesses. The witnesses

whose evidence was cited were witnesses for the Appellee

with two exceptions.

Thus Appellee John W. Smith was i)resent during 2 days

of the trial. However, it could be pointed out that this is not

during the period of time covered by this action (See, TR
594). In the matter of the other company witnesses, a very

small and incomplete portion of their testimony is cited;

thus James Patterson, a supervisor, called by Appellants,

testified

:

"Q. It is the policy of the company that the zanjero

do most of his field work during the daytime ?

A. No;***"(TR124)



"Q. In the summertime, let's say, in the month of

May or June, do you know how many hours about on

the average, a zanjero would have to spend out in the

field?

A. Well, each division is a little different. I have

one fellow that has been busy for 2 or 3 days during the

week. I mean by that he will j^ick up his water at mid-

night. He is in a congested area and he will run, then,

for 3 or -i days when he gets his board completed. Then
he w^ill have some free time." (TR 122)

"Q. Do you know or are you familiar with the policy

of the phone company with respect to phone calls com-

ing in at night as to whether the zanjero should or

should not answer them!

A. Well, the zanjero is subject to call 24 hours a

day and it is my supposition that naturally when it

rings he should answer it." (TR 123)

Frank Hill did admit that he did some of the many

changes noted in his field book at nights, but that contrary

to the rules of the company, he also permitted farmers to

make their own changes at night.

"Some of those changes I made at night, a lot of them
were shut off by farmers and a lot of them I was run-

ning waste water coming from the desert and they

would put down the gate, the farmer would." (TR 81G)

John Ruth's testimony was completely impeached in the

closing pages of the transcript. As a matter of fact, Mr.

Ruth was directly examined by the counsel for appellee

concerning his testimony about not working at night.

"Q. Did you ever receive any complaints from the

Water Users with respect to the manner in which you

are operating vour Division?

A. I did.

Q. You did?

A. Yes, sir." (TR 828)

v
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One of the Appellants testifying with respect to the Divi-

sion operated by Mr. Hill, and after stating that he had

operated the Division between 4 and 6 weeks, stated

:

"Q. Were you able to finish your work during the

daylight hours of that division ?

A. No, sir. We got quite a bit of our water late at

night** *" (TR444)

A careful reading of the testimony of the witnesses

reveals certain astonishing matters ; thus Ida Phillips testi-

fied in support of Appellee's position :

''Q. How many hours would your husband work on

that day, do you know ?

A. Well, he w^as busy nearly all the time on that.

Q. What do you mean by all the time—16 hours a

day!

A. Oh, no ; not that nmch ; at least 12.

Q. When would he start and when would he stop f

A. Oh, well, I was just counting the actual time he

put in on the job. He got up in the morning about 5 :30

and he sometimes didn't get to bed until about 10:00

on that Division." (TR 392-393).

Ezra L. Vines and E. L. Wilson also gave similar testi-

mony (TR 403, 410, 416). As a matter of fact Wilson admits

that the Association operated 24 hours a day, 7 days a

week and that the zanjeros were responsible for their

division 24 hours a day.

In short, the transcript shows that the Appellee's defense

was that the Appellants signed and were bound by a col-

lective bargaining contract, regardless of whether or not

the contract provided them with compensation for all hours

worked or all work done. A])pellee offered no evidence to

show that the time unit system was arrived at by any actual

time study. Appellants' efforts failed to elicit any evidence
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as to what the basis of the time unit system Avas, and there

was no evidence supplied by Appellee which shows that the

time unit system represented actual time worked in any

case.

Therefore, the only testimony in the record is that which

proved the artificiality and inaccuracy of the time unit

system.

The lower court tried this case on the theory that all evi-

dence indicating that the time unit system did not cover

actual hours worked was immaterial and such testimony as

may be in the record on the subject was brought out by

indirection.

The lower court made the finding of fact that there was

substantial relationship between the pay plan and hours

worked despite the fact that there was no evidence sujj-

porting this finding and despite the fact that it time and

again refused to permit the Appellants to introduce evi-

dence on this subject.

II.

With respect to the issue of licpiidated damages and good

faith, Appellee indulged in an astounding effort to complete

a record which is devoid of evidence of good faith. The tAvo

letters which are appended to Appellee's brief were never

introduced into evidence, never submitted to cross examina-

tion and counsel for Appellants were completely unaware of

them until the "post trial" brief was submitted by Apjjellee.

It might be pointed out that the letters themselves constitute

an admission that Appellee was subject to the Fair Labor

Standards Act until January 25, 1950. Indeed in view of the

previous decision of this Court in the matter of Reynolds

V. Salt River Valleij Water Users, Civ. 9, 1954, 143 Fed. 2d

863, it can liardlv do otherwise.

\
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And the letter of counsel for Appellee to the general

manager of Appellee, which is submitted in the Appellee's

brief, despite stating that they believe that the situation

might be possibly exempt, does state that the Act should be

complied with.

In addition to the attempt of counsel to introduce into

evidence letters which do not appear in the record, counsel

cites numerous cases where the Courts did not award

liquidated damages because of the advice of counsel.

Actually this Court upheld a trial court in such a decision

(See, General Electric Company v. Porter, 9 Cir., 1953, 208

F.2d 805). However, the Court should observe that in that

case the attorneys for the company established in the evi-

dence that a diligent, careful and prolonged research was

made of the problem. There is in the actual evidence in this

case nothing to so indicate. This case seems to be identical

with Rothman v. Pnhlicker Industries, Inc., 3 Cir., 1953, 201

Fed. 2d 618, where the Court said :

"The Appellant did not even attem})t to meet that bur-

den. Certainly in a case where an employer predicated

a change in overtime compensation rates upon so small

a change in job description as was the case here, it was
not incumbent upon the Court to seek out some excul-

patory rationalization of the employer's conduct."

Since the evidence clearly indicates that the (•om])any at

all times used a misleading title for its pay slieets involving

the Belo Plan it would seem almost impossible to construct

or infer any action of the comi)any to show good faitli (TR

509).
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It is respectfully submitted that the Judgment in the

Lower Court should be reversed as prayed for in appellant's

opening brief.

Kespectfully submitted,

Herbert B. Finn
125 West Monroe Street

Phoenix, Arizona

G. W. Shute
W. T. Elsing

505 Title & Trust Bldg.

Phoenix, Arizona

Attorneys for Appellants

,\
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vs. Sidney Bean Charles, et ah, etc. 3

In the District Court for the District of Alaska,

Division Number One, at »Juneau

Civil Action No. 7031-A

UNITED PRESS ASSOCIATIONS, a Corpora-

tion,

Plaintiff,

vs.

SIDNEY DEAN CHARLES, PAUL S.

CHARLES and PATRICIA CHARLES, and

the PIONEER PRINTING COMPANY, a

Corporation,

Defendants.

COMPLAINT

1. Plaintiff is a corporation duly organized and

existing under and by virtue of the laws of the

State of New York, with its principal place of busi-

ness located in New York Cit}^ New York, and is

engaged in the business of accumulating and dis-

seminating news reports via automatic teletype,

telegraph, telephone and other agencies, to a large

number of radio statious aud newspapers through-

out the United States.

2. Defendant Sidney Dean Charles was, on or

about Juue 30, 1945, the editor and publisher of the

Alaska Fishing News at Ketchikan, Alaska, a news-

paper owned by a partnership called the Alaska

Fishing News consisting of Sidney Dean Charles,

Paul S. Charles and Patricia Charles as partners.

Defendant Pioneer Printing Company, Inc., is an
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Alaska corporation, incorporated on or about April

12, 1948, and is the owner and publisher of the

Ketchikan Daily News of Ketchikan, Alaska, this

newspaper being the successor to the Alaska Fish-

ing News.

3. Plaintiff says that the complaint is for money

due under a contract in writing.

4. On or about June 30, 1945, plaintiff and de-

fendant Sidney Dean Charles (the latter on behalf

of the said partnership, the Alaska Fishing News)

entered into a certain agreement in writing by the

terms and conditions of which plaintiff agreed to

furnish its Regular News Report to defendants for

use in publishing defendants' newspaper for a term

of three years beginning September 1, 1945, for

which news service defendants agreed to pay plain-

tiff the sum of $38.17 per week, payable weekly in

advance. Subsequent to the date of the execution

of said agreement, certain modifications thereto

were made by mutual agreement between the parties

thereto, and pursuant to paragraph Second of said

agreement certain rate increases were made. Such

agreement, the modifications thereof and all written

documents pertaining to such modifications and

such rate increases are attached hereto, marked

Exhibit A and made a part hereof. By virtue of

the renewal provisions of paragraph Eighth of said

agreement and the said modifications contained in

Exhibit A, the term of said agreement, as so modi-

fied, was extended to continue until September 27,

\
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1962. The documents comprising Exhibit A are

hereinafter referred to as the "said agreement."

5. Plaintiff says that it has at all times duly

performed all the terms and conditions of said

agreement on its paii: to be performed and that at

all times it was ready, willing and able to complete

performance of said agreement, and to comply with

all the terms and conditions thereof, but has been

prevented from so doing by the wrongful and will-

ful failure and refusal of defendants to pay for

said news services and to carry out and perform

their part of said agreement, although requested to

do so by plaintiff.

6. Defendants accepted and ]^aid for a ])ortion

of said news service supplied to them by plaintiff

inider the terms of said agreement, ])ut on or about

Fel)ruary 14, 1954, repudiated said agreement.

7. By reason of such wrongful and willful

breach by defendants of the terms of said agree-

ment, plaintiff has been and is now prevented from

delivering and furnishing said news service to de-

fendants for the entire term of said agreement, and

plaintiff says that it would have, but for such

wrongful and willful breach by defendants, been

entitled to receive a profit of $21,489.57, represent-

ing the difference between the aggregate amomit

plaintiff would have been entitled to receive under

said agreement and the costs to plaintiff* of furnish-

ing said news service to defendants during the term

thereof.
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8. Defendant Pioneer Printing Company, Inc

has incurred joint and several liability, along wit"

the other defendants, for plaintiff's claim hereii

by reason of the former's acceptance of a portio:

of said news service supplied to it by plaintiff.

Wherefore, plaintitf demands judgment againg

the defendants Sidney Dean Charles, Paul ^

Charles, Patricia Charles and the Pioneer Printin

Company, Inc., jointly and severally, in the sum o

$21,489.57, together with interest at the rate of si:

per cent per annum on each unpaid weekly install

ment on the date that it would have become due, am

together with the costs of this suit and an attorney'

fee for plaintiff.

/s/ JOHN H. DIMOND,
Attornev for Plaintiff.

EXHIBIT A

Agreement

Made this Thirtieth day of June, 1945, at Ne^^

York, N. Y., between the United Press Associ

ations, a New York Corporation, hereinafte:

called United Press, and The Alaska Fishing

News, a copartnership hereinafter called thi

Publisher.

Witnesseth

:

That for an in consideration of the sum of Om
Dollar, each to the other in hand paid, the I'eceip
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whereof is hereby acknowledged, and of the mutual

covenants herein contained, the parties hereto have

mutually agreed as follows:

First.

United Press hereby bargains and sells to the

Publisher the right and privilege of publishing in

the The Alaska Fishing News, a newspaper printed

in the English Language at Ketchikan, Alaska, its

regular news Report, and agi-ees as far as practica-

ble to deliver to the Publisher such news Repoi-t

by radio-teletype for one hour daily on each of the

six regular pu))lication days each week.

Said News Report shall be filed to the Publisher

at Seattle, Washington, or elswherc if United Press

so elect.

Second.

The Publisher agrees to provide tyi)ewriter and

any necessary quarters for wire and operator or

printer-telegraph machines, and any necessary wire,

installation and power required for operation of

printer-telegraph machines, and agrees to receive and

accept said news Report and pay without deduction

to United Press, at its New York office, durinu- tlie

term of this agreement and any extension thereof,

the sum of $38.17 (thirty-eight dollars and seventeen

cents) per week, weekly in advance. Provided, (1)

that United Press shall not be required to furnish

such Report on Sundays or later than 12 o'clock

Noon on Christmas or Fourth of July; (2) that if

the Telegraph or Telephone Company to which tolls
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are paid on liehalf of the Publisher by Unitec

Press, raises the tolls on said news Report or in-

creases the rental rate on printer-telegraph machine

equipment supplied by them; or if the wage scale

for union employees is increased, said Publishei

shall also pa}^ the increases in such tolls, rental oi

union wages to the United Press; (3) that if saic

news Report or any wire or other facilities used ir

the transmission thereof shall be hereafter made

su])ject to any Federal or State tax of any kinej

payable either directly or indirectly by Uniteej

Press, the Publisher shall reimburse United Press

for the proportion thereof, as determined by Unitee]

Press, properly applicable to said news Report; (4)

that in case of a war or any other extraordinary

event requiring an additional or extraordinary ex-

penditure of $500.00 or more weekly by United

Press in securing and delivering the news of the same.

United Press may assess and the Publisher shall

pay United Press an additional weekly sum not tc

exceed 25% of the Pu])lisher's regular weekly pay-

ment for a period coincident with said extraordi-

nary expenditure by United Press.

Third.

The Publisher agrees not to furnish, or permit to

be furnished, by his employees or from his office

any portion of the United Press Report, or any

news tips therefrom, to any other person, corpora-

tion, publication or publisher, or make any other

use thereof than in the above-mentioned newspaper,

without the written consent of United Press, and

V
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further agrees to respect all release pledges on ad-

vance matter and to carry copyright line on all

copyrighted matter, and to carry the United Press

credit line wherever it appears in the service copy.

Fourth.

The Publisher agrees to furnish to United Press

at the office of the Publisher all the local news and

special service from tributary news territory col-

lected by the Pul)lisher, without cost to United

Press.

Fifth.

It is mutually agreed that United Press reserves

the right to make working arrangements and ex-

changes of news and wire facilities with other pres^

associations, publishers or persons and to sell said

news Report to any other party or parties.

Sixth.

It is further mutually agreed that United Press

shall in no event be liable for any loss or damage

arising to the Publisher l)y reason of the ])ublication

of any of the news received by the Publisher from

United Press.

Seventh.

This agreement is made subject to the ability of

wire companies to furnish facilities, and the contin-

uance of intermediate clients now on the circuit,

unless United Press is satisfied with the rate named

in this agreement, or same can be nnitually read-

justed.
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Eighth.

This agreement shall continue for three (3) years

from September 1, 1945, and shall thereafter renew

itself continuously for periods of five (5) years un-

less either party notify the other by registered

letter received at least six months before the begin-

ning of the first renewal period or any subsequent

renewal period, of its desire to terminate this agree-

ment, in which event this agreement shall terminate

at the begining of the next renewal period which

would have commenced thereafter; otherwise, it

shall remain in full force and effect, subject to all

the terms and conditions hereof. In the event of

the sale, transfer or consolidation of the aforesaid

newspaper property of the Publisher, the Publisher

hereby guarantees that his successor or assignee will

fulfill the terms and conditions herein contained for

the full life of this agreement.

Ninth.

It is further mutually understood and agreed that

time, both as to delivery of said news Report and as

to said weekly payments, is of the essence of this

agreement ; that a waiver of any breach shall not be

construed to effect a waiver of any future breach of

this agreement.

Tenth.

This written agreement comprises the entire un-

derstanding of the parties hereto on the subject mat-

ter herein contained ; any and all oral representations
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or agreements of any agent of either party hereto

shall be null, void and of no effect whatsof^vei.

Eleventh.

It is mutually understood that the rate named in

said agreement includes a war assessment of 15 per

cent now in general effect, but that u])on general

discontinuance of said war assessment no reduction

shall accrue to Publisher thereunder.

Twelfth.

It is mutually understood that the September 1,

1945, starting date foi' six-days-per-week is contin-

gent ui)on commencemcMit of daily publications by

the Publisher ui)on that date; and should daily pub-

lication not start upon that date, terms of this

agreement shall be held in abeyance until such daily

publication is started by the Publisher.

Thirteenth.

Executed and accepted by United Press upon un-

derstanding that attached letter dated August 9,

1945, and its provisions become part hereof.

Actually started Svce. 10/3/45.

UNITED PRESS
ASSOCIATIONS,

By EDWIN MOSS WILLIAMS,
Vice-President.

THE ALASKA FISHING
NEWS,

By SIDNEY DEAN CHARLES,
Editor and Publisher.
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Signed and Delivered in the Presence of

;

CARL B. MOLANDER,
As to U. P. A.

MURRAY M. MOLER,
As to Publisher.

August 9, 1945.

Mr. Sidney D. Charles,

Editor and Publisher,

The Alaska Fishing News,

Ketchikan, Alaska.

Dear Mr. Charles

:

In the interim between negotiation of the United

Press agreement between Mr. Moler and yourself

and its arrival in New York a development in our

relations with the Commercial Telegraphers' Union

has made it imposible for us to accept the agree-

ment in its present form.

The development is insistence by the Union that

a full-time man be provided to operate the Alaska

circuit. Since the circuit, at least at the start, will

require only an hour a day of operating and since

our rate to you was based on an operating cost of

one hour a day, we naturally could not afford to pay

an operator for eight hours work while in turn

being paid by you for the one hour actually per-

formed.

We are hopeful of getting more Alaskan business

and thus have more income to pay operating costs;

.\
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and that your paper as a daily will grow so rapidly

that you will requii'e more than an hour a day of

copy. We are willing to undergo the operating loss

involved in this situation for six months during

which time w^e will make every effort to secure ad

ditional Alaskan business and thus eliminate the

loss.

Since you desire to start teletype service as soon

as possible, we are sending herewith your executed

copy of the agreement between us, subject to the

understanding that it is modified l)y the stipulation

that at the end of six months from the date of start

of service United Press may increase the rate by

an amount sufficient to pay the actual o])erat<)r's

salary cost and that if the amount of this increase

is not satisfactory to you that you may change the

service to any amount of tolls collect DPR you

desire, not to exceed 3600 words daily.

This will also confirm the understanding that the

service mentioned in Clause One of the agreement

shall consist of one hour of teletype service daily

from Seattle ovei' facilities of the Army Signal

Corps, tolls to be paid by the publisher and the tele-

type to be furnished by United Press; that a tele-

type machine will be installed as soon as possible

and service started on the basis of one hour of serv-

ice on each of the three days per week on which the

Alaska Fishing News is published. Such service

will continue on a thrice weekly basis until the

Alaska Fishing News Begins daily publication at
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which time all terms of the agreement will become

effective. For the thrice weekly service the pub

lisher will pa.y the United Press the smn of $32.1'

weekly and also pay the Signal Corps tolls.

If this is satisfactory to you, please signify you]

acceptance by signing the enclosed carbon of this

letter and air mailing it to us ?

With all good wishes, we are,

Sincerely yours,

EDWIN MOSS WILLIAMS.
EMWrlR
Accepted: The Alaska Fishing News.

Alaska Fishing News

Ketchikan, Alaska.

Ketchikan, Alaska

September 8, 1945

Mr. Dan Bowerman,

United Press Associations

San Francisco Bureau,

814 Mission Street,

San Francisco, California

Dear Mr. Bowerman

:

Replying to your letter of September 4, regarding

teletype and wire service.

We undestand from your letter that we may take

the teletype service, at a cost of $38.17 a week foi

1
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hour, 6 days a week, and that we are to pay the

ills. We further understand that during the first

months of this service, you will pay the Seattle

elegraph operator, and that at the end of 6 months,

we decided to continue the teletype service, we

ould pay this operator's salary, at $52.50 per week.

In other words, we understand from your letter

lat at the end of 6 months, we may return to our

L-esent service on a daily basis at $20.00 a week

us tolls, or continue with the teletyjje at $38.17 a

eek, plus tolls, plus telegraph operator's salary.

On this basis, we would like to have the service

ar-ted ])y teletype at as early a date as possible.

Yours very truly,

SID D. CHARLES,
Editor.

Daily Fishing News
Ketchikan, Alaska

October 12, 1946.

^r. Dan Bowerman,

nited Press Associations,

L4 Mission St.,

an Francisco, California.

ear Mr. Bowerman:

Thank you for your letter of October 9 regarding

sletype service. We greatly appreciate your fine
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cooperation in offering to share the operator e:

pense, bringing our part of that expense down 1

125.00 per week. On that basis we will continue tl

teletype service, and hope that you will be able 1

line up new patrons in Alaska.

The service is fine in most I'espects, however,

have suggested to the Seattle office that they gi^

us more short dispatches, particularly those wit

an Alaska slant first, northwest second, and n^

tional and international news third. Of course o

any big news, we want full coverage.

We greatly fear a possible shortage of newsprii

next year, as our circulation continues to grow, an

ask that should you learn of any available supp]

of 52" roll newsprint, you advise us at once.

Thank you for your cooperation.

Yours very truly,

THE DAILY ALASKA
FISHING NEWS,

SID D. CHARLES,
Editor.

Ketchikan, Alaska, Fishing News

Effective January 6th, 1946, total basic rate ir

creased by $1.15 per week account operator's ir

crease. This to be applied against 1 hour 6 da

printer.

1
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Effective December 29tli, 1946, total basic rate

Lcreased by $3.05 per week account operator's in-

'ease. This to be applied against 1 hour 6 day ptr.

Operators Increase—January 4th, 1948—$3.09.

his applied against 1 hi. 6 day Ptr.

Operators Increase—January 9th, 1949—$2.06.
his applied against 1 hr. 6 day ptr.

Extraordinary Cost Assessment—Effective Jan. 7,

)51, $4.75 per week.

Labor Increase—May 5, 1953—$4.18. This applied

^ainst 1 hr. 6 day Ptr.

Modification of Agreement

New York, February 21, 1950.

With reference to the agreement between United

ress Associations and The Alaska Fishing News

)r United Press news service to The Alaska Fish-

ig News at Ketchikan, Alaska (now known as The

Ketchikan Daily News) it is mutually agreed that:

1. The rate mentioned in Clause II thereof is

ispended by mutual agreement starting February

), 1950, and the rate during such suspension shall

? $52.52 per week.

2. This suspension may be terminated by either

arty at any time upon thirty days' notice and the

eekly rate would then return to the present figure

r $72.52 per week.

3. The term of the agreement between the par-
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ties shall be extended by the length of thue during

which the above suspension is in effect.

UNITED PRESS
ASSOCIATIONS,

By JACK BISCO,

Vice-President.

THE ALASKA FISHING
NEW,

By SID D. CHARLES.

[Endorsed] : Filed April 23, 1954.

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

ANSWER OF DEFENDANTS

Come now the defendants above-named, and in

answer to plaintiff's complaint, admit, deny and al-

lege as follows:

1. Defendants admit the allegations contained in

paragraph 1 of the complaint.

2. Defendants admit the allegations contained in

paragraph 2

3. Referring to the allegations contained in

paragraph 3, defendants admit that plaintiff is seek-

ing a money judgment in this action.

4. Referring to the allegations contained in

paragraph 4, the defendants deny that the agree-

':>
1
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ment referred to therein was extended until Sep-

tember 27, 1962, and they admit the remaining alle-

gations contained in paragraph 4.

5. Defendants deny each and every allegation

contained in paragraph 5.

6. Defendants admit the allegations contained in

paragraph 6.

7. Referring to the allegations contained in

paragraph 7, the defendants admit that they have

discontinued the news service of the plaintiff, and

deny each and every other allegation contained in

paragraph 7.

8. Defendants deny the allegations contained in

paragraph 8.

For further and separate affirmative defenses to

plaintiff's complaint, the defendants allege as fol-

lows:

First Affirmative Defense

That the plaintiff has not qualified to do business

in the Territory of Alaska, and had not so qualified

at any of the times mentioned in the complaint and

it is not now qualified and is not entitled to bring

or maintain this action; that it has not filed its

articles of incorporation, financial statement or an-

nual reports required l)y law. It has paid no cor-

poration taxes, income, or license taxes, although it

was doing business in Alaska at all times mentioned

in the pleadings.
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Second Affirmative Defense

1. Defendants allege that on or about June 30

1945, The Alaska Fishing News, by Sidney Dear

Charles, editor and publisher, signed the contraci

and the other papers attached to plaintiff's com-

plaint marked "Exhibit A," and in return therefoi

plaintiff agreed to furnish The Alaska Fishing

News, a newspaper published at Ketchikan, Alaska

with its regular news reports and agreed, as far af

practicable, to deliA'er to the publisher such new^

reports by radio-teletype for one hour daily on eael

of six regular publication days each week, and thai

the term "regular news report" has a well-definec

meaning and it meant that plaintiff would furnisl:

to The Alaska Fishing New^s an adequate news serv-

ice covering all news of national importance regu-

larly published in Alaskan papers, and that the

price to be paid therefor was $38.17 a week.

2. That the rate set forth in the contract. Ex-

hibit A, was increased from time to time by the

plaintiff and The Alaska Fishing News was obliged

to pay and did pay in full all increases over the

contract price, in order to obtain such news sei'vicf

as the plaintiff was furnishing it from time to time,

3. That plaintiff did not furnish an adequate news

service and did not furnish the defendants with the

news service contemplated and agreed upon to be

furnished l)y the contract, Exhibit A, and because

of that fact the defendants were unable to give tc

the public the ordinary regular news from outside

the vicinity of Ketchikan, Ahiska, and they were

\
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enable to compete in this regard with other papers

(ublished in the City of Ketchikan.

4. That plaintiif repeatedly agreed to improve

ts service and to furnish such service as was con-

emplated by the contract or agreement to be fur-

ished by it, and it advanced from time to time

arious promises of improvement and promises to

omi>ly with the terms of the contract, accompanied

y excuses for not having furnished adequate serv-

3e, but it did not at any time during the hfe of the

ontract furnish the service agreed to be furnished.

Third Affi]-iuative Defense

As a thii'd affirmative defense, defendants alle^'e:

1. Defendants reallege all the allegations con-

ained in the second affirmative defense hereinabove

et forth, and further allege as follows

:

2. That on or about April 12, 1948, the above-

amed defendant Pioneer Printing Company, was

ricorporated as an Alaskan corporation and it pur-

hased the property, newspaper and all the rigbts

f The Alaska Fishing News, and it thereupon

hanged the name of the paper to the Ketchikan

)aily News.

3. That the Ketchikan Daily News, while a suc-

essor of the Alaska Fishing News, is not the same

taper and the owner thereof, namely the Pioneer

Printing Company, a corporation, is owned and

ontrolled by its stockholders, and while the defend-

nts Sidnev Dean Charles, Paul S. Charles and
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Patricia Charles are stockholders in the Pione*

Printing Company, a corporation, they are not tl

only stockholders and others own stock in that co

poration, and the Pioner Printing Company, a co

poration, has never at any time agreed to tlie tern

and conditions of the contract between The Alasl

Fishing News and the United Press Associations s

forth in plaintiif's complaint as Exhibit A, ar

while it continued to take the service of the Unite

Press, such as it was, until February 14, 1954,

never at any time agreed to be bound by the tern

of the contract and agreement set up as Exhibit

to the complaint.

4. The Pioneer Printing Company, a corpor;

tion, paid for such service as it received from tl

United Press at the rates charged by the Unite

Press until February 14, 1954, w'hen it discontinue

that service, having paid in full for all services r

ceived from plaintiff, and it was at no time hour

by any agreement to continue taking any servii

from the United Press, the plaintiff herein, and th;

the Pioneer Printing Company is not indebted i

plaintiff in any sum whatso(>ver.

COUNTERCLAIM

For a counterclaim to plaintiff's complaint, tl

defendants allege as follows:

1. That after the discontinuance of the Unite

Press service to the Pioneer Printing Company,

corporation, and between February 15, 1954, ar

March 22, 1954, certain demand drafts were sent 1
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I Miners and Merchants Bank of Ketchikan,

iska, for pajTnent by Pioneer Printing Company,

:1 these drafts amounted to $368.70 and they were

idvertently paid and charged to the account of

3neer Printing Company and plaintiff received

' proceeds thereof, and therefore pUiintiff is in-

3ted to the defendant Pioneer Printing Company
the smn of $368.70.

t\^herefore, defendants pray that plaintiff's com-

lint be dismissed and that defendants have and

!over from plaintiff their costs and disbursements

i-ein including a reasonable attorneys' fee, and

it the defendant Pioneer Printing Company re-

^er from the j^laintiff the sum of $368.70 together

th interest thereon from March 22, 1954, until

id.

FAULKNER, BANFIELD &

BOOCHEVER,

By /s/ H. L. FAULKNER,
Attorneys for Defendants.

Receipt of Copy acknowledged.

[Endorsed] : Filed May 15, 1954.

itle of District Coui't and Cause.]

PLAINTIFF'S REPLY

[n reply to the counterclaim contained in defend-

ts' answer, plaintiff admits all of the material

egations contained therein with the excei)tion of
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the allegation that ^'plaintiff is indebted to the de

fendant Pioneer Printing Company in the sum o

$368.70."

Dated: June 4, 1954.

/s/ JOHN H. DIMOND,
Plaintiff's Attorney.

Receipt of Copy attached.

[Endorsed] : Filed June 4, 1954.

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

REQUEST FOR JURY TRIAL

Comes now the defendants by their attorneys an(

move the Court to grant defendants a jury trial o

the above-entitled cause.

This motion is based upon Subdivision (a) o

Rule 38 and Subdivision (b) of Rule 39 of th^

Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.

Dated at Juneau, Alaska, August 3, 1954.

FAULKNER, BANFIELD &
BOOCHEVER,

By /s/ H. L. FAULKNER,
Attorneys for Defendants.

Receipt of Co])y acknowledged.

[Endorsed] : Filed August 5, 1954.
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Title of District Court and Cause.]

Minutes of Friday, Sept. 24, 1954

This case came on before the court for hearing on

Motion to Transfer to Ketchikan for trial and on

Motion for Jury Trial. John H. Dimond appeared

JT plaintiff and H. L. Faulkner for defendants.

Lfter hearing counsel, the motion for transfer was

ranted and the motion for a juiy trial was denied.

Title of District Coui*t and Cause.]

ORDER

Since the denial on September 24, 1954, of the

efendants' motion for a jury trial, editorials have

ppeared in the defendants' newspa]3er in defense

f the judge of this court from attacks by Warren

'aylor. I feel that in these circumstances I should

ot be the trier of the issues of fact in the foregoing

ase, and hence it is

Ordered, sua sponte, under Rule 39, F.R.C.P., that

le case be tried by a jury.

Dated at Ketchikan, Alaska, April 12, 1955.

/s/ GEORGE W. FOLTA,
District Judge.

[Endorsed] : Filed April 12, 1954.
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

COURT'S INSTRUCTIONS TO THE JURY

No. 1

Ladies and Gentlemen of the Jury

:

We have now reached the point in the trial oj

this case where it becomes the duty of the Court t(

instruct you as to the law that will govern you ir

your deliberations upon the facts of this case.

You are accepted as jurors in reliance upon youi

answers to the questions asked you concerning youi

qualifications. You are just as much bound by thos(

answers now and until you are finally dischargee

from further consideration of this case as you wer(

then. The oath taken by you obligates you to wel

and truly try this case and a true verdict rende]

according to the law and the evidence, withoul

allowing yourselves to be swayed by passions, sym-

pathy, or prejudice or like emotion.

Neither the statements of counsel engaged in th(

trial of this case, nor the allegations of the plead-

ings, except so far as they constitute admissions, arc

to be considered by you as proof of the facts tc

which they relate. You should not regard or con-

sider the relative financial condition of the parties

to the suit, nor the effect of your verdict upon th(

parties, or any of them, or attempt to arrive at i

verdict based upon your individual or collectiv(

opinions as to the abstract principles of justice

which should govern the case.
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It is not for you to say what the law is or should

)e regardless of any idea you may have in that re-

;pect. It is the exclusive province of the Court to

leclare the law in these instructions, and it is your

luty as jurors to follow them in your deliberations

md in arriving at a verdict.

On the other hand it is the exclusive province of

he jury to declare the facts in the case, and your

lecision in that respect, as embodied in your verdict,

dien arrived at in a regular and legal manner, is

inal and conclusive upon the Court. Therefore

)robably the greater ultimate responsibility in the

rial of the case rests upon you, because you are the

riers of the facts.

No. 2

This is a civil suit hi which the })laintifl:, en-

gaged in the business of gathering and disseminat-

ng news to i-adio stations and newspapers, seeks

o recover damages in the sum of $21,489.57 al-

egodly sustained as a result of an alleged breach

•f its contract with the defendants.

The complaint alleges that on or about June 30,

945, the defendant Sidney Dean Charles was the

ditor and publisher of the Alaska Fishing News, at

vetchikan, a newspaper owned by a partnership

onsisting of the individual defendants ; that the de-

endant Pioneer Publishing Co., Inc., was incor-

)orated on or about April 12, 1948, and is the owner

md publisher of the Ketchikan Daily News, suc-

!essor to the Alaska Fishing News ; that on or about
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June 30, 1945, the plaintiff and the defendant Sid-

ney Dean Charles, acting on behalf of the Alaska

Fishing News, entered into a contract under whicl

the plaintiff agreed to furnish news to the defend

ants, which was renewed and extended to Sep

tember 27, 1962; that although the plaintiff per

formed ajl the terms and conditions required of it

the defendants, on or about February 14, 1954, re

pudiated said contract and prevented the plaintif

from further performing, as a result of which the

plaintiff lost profits it would have earned amount

ing to the sum sued for.

By their answer the defendants deny that the con

tract was extended to September 27, 1962; that th(

plaintiff performed the terms and conditions requirec

of it ; that the defendants wrongfully and wilfully re-

fused to pay for the news furnished or to perforn

their part of the contract, and also deny that they re

pudiated the contract although admitting that the}

have discontinued accepting news from the plaintiff

The denial of these allegations of the complaint b}

the defendants casts upon the plaintiff the burden ol

proving them by a preponderance of the evidence.

By way of affirmative defenses the defendants al

lege that by said contract the plaintiff undertook

to furnish to the AJaska Fishing News an adequatt

news service covering all news of national impor

tance regularly published in Alaskan papers; that al-

though the rate agreed to be paid was increased fron

time to time by the plaintiff, it failed to furnish ar

adequate news service as agreed, as a consequence

of which the defendants were imable to compete

V



vs. Sidney Bean Charles, et aL, etc. 29

with other papers, and that notwithstanding the

promises of the plaintiff to improve its service, it

failed to do so. It is further alleged that the Pioneer

Printing Co., although it accepted the news which

the plaintiff continued to supply until February 14,

1954, and paid therefor in full, never agreed to the

terms and conditions of the contract. The denial of

these allegations by the plaintiff throws the burden

of proving them by a preponderance of the evi-

dence upon the defendants.

The answ^er also sets forth a counterclaim against

the plaintiff for $368.70, which is admitted by the

plaintiff.

It will thus be noted that the plaintiff contends

that the defendants, on or about February 14, 1954,

breached the contract by refusing to accept its new^s,

whereas the defendants contend that for a long time

prior thereto the plaintiff had failed to furnish the

news which it had agreed to furnish, and therel^y

breached the contract. The first question for your

decision, therefore, is whether the ])laintiff or the

defendants breached the contract.

No. 3

The burden is on the phiintitt* of i)roving its al-

legation that the defendants breached the contract

;

that it was damaged by reason of loss of profits, and

the amount thereof. Conversely, the burden of prov-

ing the defendants' allegation that the plaintiff

breached the contract is on the defendants.
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No. 4

You are instructed that one wlio has been wrong-

fully deprived of the profits that he would have

earned under a contract may recover as an equival-

ent or by way of damages the amount he would

have earned and been entitled to recover on per-

formance of his y)art of the contract less the amouni

it would have cost him to perform the contract

Therefore, if you find that the defendants wrong-

fully breached the contract, you may allow^ the plain-

tiff damages from February 15, 1954, to Septembei

27, 1957, for the amount plaintiff would have earned

during that period, less the amoimt it w^ould have

cost the plaintiff to perform its part of the con-

tract, and less $368.70, the amount of the defend-

ants' counterclaim, which is admitted by the plain-

tiff. In this connection your attention is directed t(

the fact that although the plaintiff' claims damage?

for the period ending September 27, 1962, the Couri

instructs you as a matter of law that the term of th(

contract would expire five years earlier, to wit, Sep-

tember 27, 1957. Since this diminishes the period

for which damages are claimed by the plaintiff hy

five years, the amount sued for would be diminished

accordingly. You should bear this in mind in fixing

the amount of damages, if you find that the plain-

tiff is entitled to recover damages.

In determining the amount of damages, if yon

find the plaintiff* is entitled thereto, you may con-

sider the rates in effect and the net ])rofits at tlic

time of tlie breach, the probability of change dur-

V
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g the period referred to in the rates, the cost of

)ing business, and the margin of profit as ^Yell

; the probability or improbability that the defend-

its would remain in business. On the other hand,

you find from a preponderance of the evidence that

le plaintiff failed to furnish the defendants with

le news agreed upon, then you would be warranted

L finding that the defendants were justified in

;scinding the contract and your verdict should be

)r the defendants. The defendants contend that

3WS of local importance was frequently omitted

'om that transmitted to them, which prejudiced

lem in the operation of their newspaper business

id in competing with the rival newspaper. If you

tid that such news was omitted from time to time,

id that in omitting such news the })kiintiff failed

> supply the news it had contracted to supply, you

ould be warranted in finding that the defendants

ere Justified in rescinding the contract, and that

le plaintiff was not entitled to recover damages.

1 determining whether the defendants were justi-

&d in rescinding the contract, you should consider

le evidence relating to the omission of news, con-

dered in conjunction with all the other evidence

1 the case.

No. 5

You are also instructed, as a matter of law, that

le corporate and individual defendants have, by

leir acts and conduct, adopted the contract between

le plaintiff and the Alaska Fishing News and are

ound by it just as though they had originally ex-

cuted it.



32 United Press Associations, etc.

No. 6

In a civil case, such as this is, the burden of proof

rests upon the party holding the affirmative with

respect to any issue, and under that rule he is re-

quired to prove such issue by a preponderance of

the evidence. By a preponderance of the evidence is

meant the greater weight of the credible evidence,

that evidence which in your judgment is the better

evidence and which has the greater weight and value

and the greater convincing power. This does not

necessarily depend on the number of witnesses testi-

fying with respect to any question of fact, but it

means simply the greater weight or the greater value

and convincing power and which is the most worthy

of belief ; and so, after having heard and considered

all the evidence in the case on any issue, if you are

unable to say upon which side of that issue the

evidence weighs the more heavily, or if the evidence

is evenly balanced on any particular issue in the

case, then the party upon whom the burden rests

to establish such issue must be deemed to have failed

to prove it.

No. 7

The opening statements and the arguments of

counsel are not evidence, and they are not binding

upon you. You may, however, be guided by them if

you find that they are based on the admitted evi-

dence and a])]^eal to your reason and judgment, and

arc not in conflict with the law as set forth in these

instructions.
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No. 8

You are the judges of the credibility of the wit-

lesses and of the weight to be given to the testimony

f each. You must receive and consider the testi-

Qony of each witness in the light of all the evidence,

pplying thereto the law as given to you in these

Qstructions. You have a right to determine, from

he appearance of the witnesses on the stand, from

heir manner of testifying, from their apparent

andor and fairness, from their interest or lack

if interest, if any, in the result of this case, from

heir apparent intelligence or lack of intelligence,

,nd from all the other facts and circumstances

)roved on the trial, which witnesses are the more

^'Oi-thy of belief.

No. 9

You are to consider these instructions as a whole.

;t is impossible to cover the entire case with a single

nstruction, and, therefore, you should not single out

•ne particular instruction and consider it by itself.

Your duty is to determine the facts of the case from

he evidence submitted, and to apply to these facts the

aw as given to you by the Court in these instruc-

ions. The Court does not, either in these instruc-

ions or otherwise, wish to indicate how you shall

ind the facts or what your verdict shall be, or to

nfluence you in the exercise of your right and duty

o determine for yourselves the effect of evidence

^ou have heard or the credibility of witnesses.

You must not allow sympathy or prejudice to

nfluence your verdict.
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No. 10

The law requires that all twelve jurors must

agree upon a verdict before one can be rendered.

While no juror should yield a sincere conviction,

founded upon the law and the evidence of the case,

merely to agree with other jurors, eveiy juror, in

considering the case with fellow jurors, should lay

aside all undue pride or vanity of personal judg-

ment, and should consider differences of opinion, if

any arise, in a spirit of fairness and candor, with

an honest desire to get at the truth, and with the

view of arriving at a just verdict because the law

contemplates that the verdict shall be the product

of the collective judgment of the entire jury.

Accordingly, no juror should hesitate to change

the opinion he has entertained, or expressed, if

honestly convinced that such opinion is erroneous,

even though in so doing he adopts the views and

opinions of other jurors.

No. 11

Upon retiring to your jury room you will select

one of your number foreman, who will speak for

you and sign the verdict unanimously agreed u])on.

You will take with you to the jury room these

instructions, together with the exhibits, and two

foi-ms of verdict, which are self-explanatory.

Tf you agree upon a verdict during court hours,

that is, between 9 a.m. and 5 j).m., you should have

your foreman date and sign it and then return it

immediately into open court in the presence of the

V
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itire jury, together with the exhibits and these

Lstructions, and the unused form of verdict. If

)wever, you do not agree upon a verdict during

)urt hours, the verdict, after being similarly dated

id signed, must be sealed in the envelope accom-

mying these instructions. The foreman will then

3ep it in his possession unopened and the jury

ay separate and go to their homes, but all of you

lUst be in the juiy box when the court next Con-

ines at 10 a.m., when the verdict will be received

'om you in the usual way.

Given at Ketchikan, Alaska, this 14th day of

pril, 1955.

/s/ GEORGE W. FOLTA,
District Judge.

ritle of District Court and Cause.]

VERDICT NUMBER ONE

We, the jury, duly impanelled and sworn to try

le above-entitled cause, tind for the plaintiif, and

3sess his damages in the sum of $368.70, less

368.70, the amount claimed by the defendants in

leir counter-claim.

Dated at Ketchikan, Alaska, this 14th day of

pril, 1955.

/s/ CHAS. M. MARLER,
Foreman.

[Endorsed] : Filed April 15, 1955.
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

VERDICT NUMBER TWO
We, the juiy, duly impanelled and sworn to try

the above-entitled cause, tind for the defendants and,

further, that they are entitled to recover $368.70 on

their counter-claim.

Dated at Ketchikan, Alaska, this day of

April, 1955.

Foreman.

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

MINUTES OF THURSDAY, APRIL 21, 1955

This case was called up by counsel of record for

entry of Judgment and settlement of costs; both

were present. The Court heard counsel following

which it was ruled that from the Verdict it was

apparent that the jury did not intend to award any-

thing to either party and that being the case, each

party should pay its own costs.

Thereupon court was adjourned until tomorrow

mominii" at 10 o'clock.
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In the United States District Court for the District

of Alaska, Division Number One, at Ketchikan

No. 7031-A

UNITED PRESS ASSOCIATIONS, a Corpora-

tion,

Plaintiff,

vs.

SIDNEY DEAN CHARLES, PAUL S.

CHARLES, PATRICIA CHARLES, and

PIONEER PRINTING COMPANY, a Cor-

poration,

Defendants.

JUDGMENT

This cause having come on regulai'ly for trial on

April 13, 1955, before the Court and a jury im-

panelled to tiy the cause, on the complaint of plain-

tiff and the answer and counterclaim of defendants,

and plaintiff's reply thereto, and plaintiff being

represented by its attorney, John H. Dimond, and

the defendants by their attorney, H. L. Faulkner, of

Faulkner, Banfield & Boochever, and evidence hav-

ing been adduced before the Court and jury on the

issues raised by the pleadings of both parties and

trial of the case ha\dng been concluded on April 14,

1955, and the jury having retired at 5:00 o'clock

p.m., on that date to consider of its verdict, and

having returned into court on April 15, 1955, at

10:00 o'clock a.m., with its verdict, which is in words

and figures as follows, to wit

:
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''We, the jury, duly impanelled and sworn to try

the above-entitled cause, find for the iilaintiff, and

assess his damages in the sum of $368.70, less

$368.70, the amount claimed by the defendants in

their counter-claim.

"Dated at Ketchikan, Alaska, this 14th day of

April, 1955.

"CHAS. M. MARLER,
*

' Foreman. '

'

which verdict was received in Open Court and read

by the Clerk of the Court in the presence of the

jury.

It Is Therefore Hereby Ordered and Adjudged:

1. That the plaintiff take nothing by its com-

plaint, in which it demanded the sum of $21,489.57

from the defendants, and

2. That defendants take nothing by their coun-

ter-claim in the sum of $368.70, and

Tt Is Further Ordered that neither party recover

costs or disbursements or any attorney's fee herein.

Done in Oi)en Court this 22nd day of April, 1955.

/s/ GEORGE W. FOLTA,
District Judge.

Recei])t of copy acknowledged.

[Endorsed] : Filed April 22, 1955.

\
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

MOTION

Under Rule 59, Federal Rules of Civil Procedure

—

1. Plaintiff moves the court to set aside and

open the judgment entered herein on April 22, 1955,

and pursuant to provisions of Rule 52, to make its

findings of fact and conclusions of law and direct

the entry of a new judgment.

The reasons for this motion are that the Qowvt

erred in ordering that this case be tried by a jury,

and such error can be avoided or corrected by the

action of the court in either treating the jury's ver-

dict as advisory or ignoring it entirely and making

its own independent findings of fact, conclusions of

law and judgment.

2. If the court should deny the relief sought in

paragraph 1 of this motion, then in order to avoid

a waiver of the right to demand a new trial within

the ten days prescribed by Rule 59(b), plaintiff

now moves the court for a new trial upon the fol-

lowing grounds

:

(a) The court erred in entering its order of

April 12, 1955, in which a trial by the jury was

ordered. The right to a jury trial in this action

had been waived by defendants, and Rule 39(b)

does not give the court the right or the authority,

sua sponte, to order a jury trial where there has

been such a waiver.
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(b) The court erred in giving to the jury i

Instruction No. 4.

(c) The jury's verdict, so far as the amoui

of damages awarded plaintiff is concerned, is gross

inadequate. The weight of the evidence in this cas

which was uncontradicted, shows conchisively th;

there were some substantial damages, and the ve

diet shows that the jury simply ignored the eviden*

in this case.

(d) The verdict, so far as the amount of dar

ages awarded plaintiff is concerned, is contrary

the law and the evidence.

3. Plaintiff moves the court to open and s

aside the judgment entered herein on April 22, 195

and to direct entiy of judgment for plaintiff in tl

amount of $21,489.57, together with plaintiff's cos

and attorneys' fees.

The reason for this motion is that (a) the cou

erred as a matter of law in holding that the coi

tract between plaintiff and defendant was extend(

by its terms to only September 27, 1957, whereas, i

fact and as a matter of law, the term of the coi

tract had been extended to September 27, 1962 ; ar

(b) the evidence shows clearly that there is no gem

ine factual issue as to the amount of plaintiff's r

coverable damages, which are, as plaintiff has a

leged in his complaint and has proved, $21,489.5

and therefore, the court, under Rule 56, may ord(

that judii'mcnt ho ordered for ])laiiitiff in tli;

amount.
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Dated at Juneau, Alaska, this 23rd day of April,

1955.

/s/ JOHN H. DIMOND,
Attorney for Plaintiff.

Receipt of copy acknowledged.

[Endorsed]: Filed April 25, 1955.

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

MINUTES OF THURSDAY, MAY 20, 1955

At this time the court ruled that plaintiff's Mo-

tion to vacate the judgment or grant a new trial

would be denied.

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

NOTICE OF APPEAL

Notice is given that United Press Associations,

plaintiff above-named, hereby appeals to the United

States Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit from

the final judgment entered in this action on April

22, 1955.

Dated : June 10, 1955.

/s/ JOHN H. DIMOND,
Attorney for Plaintiff.

[Endorsed] : Filed June 10, 1955.
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

COST BOND ON APPEAL

The above-named plaintiff, United Press Associ

tions, as principal, and the United States Fideli

& Guaranty Company, a Maryland corporation,

surety, jointly and severally acknowledge that th^

and their successors and assigns are jointly and se

erally bound unto the above-named defendants

the sum of $250.00.

The condition of this bond is as follows

:

Whereas, the plaintiff. United Press Associatioi

has appealed to the United States Court of Appe£

for the Ninth Circuit from the final judgment e

tered in this action on April 22, 1955;

Now, Therefore, if the said plaintiff, United Pre

Associations, shall prosecute its appeal to effect ai

pay all costs that may be adjudged against it if t

appeal is dismissed or if the judgment is affirme

then this bond shall be void; otherwise, to be ai

remain in full force and effect.

Dated at Juneau, Alaska, this 21st day of Jui

1955.

UNITED PRESS
ASSOCIATIONS,

By /s/ JOHN H. DIMOND,
Attorney for United Press

Associations.
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[Seal] UNITED STATES FIDELITY
& GUARANTY CO.,

By /s/ R. E. ROBERTSON,
Agent and Attorney in Fact.

Executed in the presence of:

/s/ EILEEN ROBERSON,

/s/ MARTHA SWEET.

[Endorsed] : Filed June 22, 1955.

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

ORDER

Upon consideration of the stipulation, dated June

16, 1955, between the attorneys for the respective

parties to this action, it is hereby Ordered

:

That the time for filinu- the record on appeal and

docketing the appeal in this action in the United

States Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit is

extended to and including September 1, 1955.

Dated at Anchorage, Alaska, this 20th day of

June, 1955.

/s/ J. L. McCARRY, JR.,

District Judge.

Receipt of copy acknowledged.

[Endorsed] : Filed and entered June 20, 1955.
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

STIPULATION RE RECORD ON APPEAL

It is hereby stipulated and agreed between Jo

Dimond, attorney for the plaintit^-appellant a

Faulkner, Banfield & Boochever, attorneys for (

fendants-appellees in the above-mentioned ease, tl

in transmitting the record on appeal to the Unit

States Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit, i

Clerk of the above-entitled court shall send

original exhibits for the reason that they are

many in number it would be impractical to ma
copies of all of them.

It is further stipulated that there be included

the record on appeal all interrogatories, requests i

admissions and answers to interrogatories and i

quests.

Dated at Juneau, Alaska, July 7, 1955.

/s/ JOHN H. DIMOND,
Attorney for Plaintiff-

Appellant.

FAULKNER, BANFIELD &
BOOCHEVER,

By /s/ H. L. FAULKNER,
Of Attorneys for Defendan

Appellees.

[Endorsed] : Filed July 8, 1955.
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

STIPULATION
It is stipulated between the undersigned as fol-

lows:

1. That the following portions of the record on

appeal in this cause may be considered in original

form by the United States Court of Appeals for the

Ninth Circuit without being printed in the printed

transcript of record:

a. Plaintiff's Exhibits Nos. 4, 6, 7 and 8.

b. Defendants' Exhibits Nos. A, B, C, D, E, F,

H, and I, and defendants' Exhibit G with the ex-

ception of that portion consisting of a letter, dated

November 14, 1953, from M. J. Flood to United

Press Associations.

2. That in printing the record to be used in the

appeal of this cause to the United States Court of

Apy^eals for the Ninth Circuit, the title of the court

and cause in full shall be omitted from all papers

except from the first page of the record, and that

there shall be inserted in place of such titles on all

papers used as part of such record the words:

"Title of District Court and Cause"; and that all

endorsements on such papers used as part of such

record may be omitted except the Clerk's filing

marks and admissions of service.

Dated: August 16, 1955.

/s/ JOHN H. DIMOND,
Attorney for Plaintiff-

Appellant.
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FAULKNER, BANFIELD &
BOOCHEVER,

By /s/ R. BOOCHEVER,
Attorneys for Defendants-

Appellees.

[rindorsed] : Filed August 16, 1955.

In the F. S. District Court for the District of

Alaska, Division Number One, at Juneau

No. 7031-A

UNITED PRESS ASSOCIATIONS, a Corpoi

tion,

Plaintiff,

vs.

SIDNEY DEAN CHARLES, PAUL
CHARLES, PATRICIA CHARLES, and t

PIONEER PRINTING COMPANY, a Cc

poration,

Defendants.

REPORTER'S TRANSCRIPT OF RECORD

Be It Remembered, that on the 24th day of Se

tember, 1954, court having convened at 9:30 o'clo

a.m., at Juneau, Alaska, the above-entitled cau

came on for hearing on a motion for a jury trial ; t'

Honorable George W. Folta, United States Distri

Judge, presiding; the plaintiff a])pearing by Jol

H. Dimond, its attorney: the defendants a])penTii
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by H. L. Faulkner, their attorney ; arguments on the

motion were made by respective counsel; and the

Court made the following statement

:

The Court : I was just going to remark that ques-

tions of this kind have arisen a great many times in

Anchorage, and Judge Dimond, for a year or so

after the Rules went into effect, was very indulgent

in exercising the discretion vested in him under

Rule 39, but he finally wrote an opinion in which

he [1*] declined thereafter, except for good reason,

to grant a jury trial where there was a failure to

demand it within ten days, and that has been the

consistent practice ever since, and T have not only

followed that practice but have made decisions of

that kind or iTiled in accordance therewith before

Judge Dimond wrote his opinion, and I feel that

uniformity of decision demands that this motion be

denied.

Thereafter, on the 12th day of April, 1955, court

having convened at 2:00 o'clock p.m., at Ketchikan,

Alaska, the above-entitled cause came on for hear-

ing ; the Honorable George W. Folta, United States

District Judge, presiding; the plaintiff appearing

by John H. Dimond, its attorney; the defendants

appearing by H. L. Faulkner, their attorney; and

the following proceedings were had

:

Mr. Dimond: If the Court please, in the case of

the United Press against Charles, No. 7031-xV, the

Court will recall in September of 1954, the defend-

ants' counsel moved for a jury trial, having waived

a jury trial by failure to file a request within ten

•Page numbering appearing at foot of page of original Reporter's
Tranoeript of Rec<H^
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days, and after argument the Court denied the ]

quest, and, presumably, although no reasons we

stated, the denial was upon the ground or for t

reason that either the case was particularly tiial

by the Court and should not be for the jury or el

that the Court simply decided that once a waiv

had been made no further relief in that way wou

be granted just on the simple request. [2]

NoAv, I have been informed since I came to Ketc

ikan, that a jury list has been called for tomorrc

for this case. It is the first notice that plaintiff h

received of this, and I want to object to the Couri

determination that this case should be tried by

jury in view of the fact that the Court in Septei

ber made a definite and particular decision th

there would be no jury.

I have prepared the case for the plaintiff in f

last few months and pai'ticularly the last few wee

on the theory that there would be no jury, and

think the Court is aware of the fact that to a ce

tain extent the manner of preparation and prese

tation is different when a jury is called and wIk

one is not. I am particularly concerned about

because T have two or three witnesses, which

thought were important in this case, whose depo?

tions I took, and I would not have taken the depoe

tions if 1 had known there would be a jury trial,

think it would have been much to the ])laintiff's a

vantage to have these peoph^ here personally. I tal

it it would make no difference as far as the Cou

is conc(M-ned, but as far as the jury in concerne

if they can size up the witness and hear him talk.
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makes a big difference, from reading the dry words

of the deposition.

I would like to refer the Court to the case of Har-

grove against American Central Insurance Com-
pany in 125 Federal Second at Pages 225 and 228.

The Tenth Circuit Court [3] of Appeals in 1942

rendered a decision on this point and held that the

Court under Rule 39 (b) does not have the right

to order a jury trial on its own initiative when

there has been a waiver by one of the parties unless

upon a motion by the party.

Now, the motion has been made. It was made last

September but was denied, unless the Court con-

siders a motion right at this moment. I think this

case is authority for the proposition that the Court

does not have the discretion in this case to order the

trial by jury. At least without the definite and

specific motion by one of the parties that a motion

be made at this late date, I certainly want to raise

an objection to it because it is a renewal of a motion

that was made a long time ago and we have been

lulled into the feeling that there would be no jury

trial and have prepared our case accordingly, and

I think this is asking too much of the plaintiff under

these conditions to have a trial by jury, and I would

like to request the Court respectfully that the Court

change its opinion on the matter that it took up yes-

terday and not have a jury trial for this case which

is starting tomorrow morning.

The Court: Do you wish to be heard?

Mr. Faulkner : No. It is a matter of indifference

to me, your Honor, but I think counsel is mistaken.
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though, about the procedure. I applied for a ju

trial last September, and the Court decided t

Court would try the case, and I made no furth

application. I made no motion to the Court for

jury [4] trial at this time. I certainly wouldn't ha

done that without giving Mr. Dimond notice, a

I assumed that there wouldn't be any jury.

But my imderstanding of the matter is, althou

the Court hasn't expressed his opinion, but my n

derstanding is that the Court is proceeding und

Rule 39 (b), which gives the Court the right to c,

a jury in its own discretion, and I assumed that \\

the procedure that your Honor Avas taking,

doesn't make any difference to us.

The Court: AVell, the Court intended to and w

enter an order reciting the reasons for proceed!

under Rule 39. I think that developments, subs

quent to the occurrence that counsel for the plaint

refers to, justify the action taken by the Court

its owm motion. Just to make the record comple

the Court will enter an order to that effect.

Mr. Faulkner: If the Court please, I would li

at this time to ask leave to interline in the Fi]

Affirmative Defense on Page 2 of the Answer a

other sentence. I think the allegation is sufficiei

but that First Affirmative Defense is: ''That t

plaintiff has not qualified to do business in the T(

ritory of Alaska, and had not so qualified at a

of the times mentioned in the complaint and it is i

now qualified and is not entitled to bring or mai

tain this action; that it has not filed its articles
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incorporation, financial statement or annual reports

required by law." Now, I thought perhaps [5] it

would make that a little more definite if we added

to that, these words: "It has paid no corporation

taxes, income, or license taxes, although it was doing

business in Alaska at all times mentioned in the

pleadings." Do you have any objection to that?

Mr. Dimond: I have no objection, your Honor.

Mr. Faulkner: It doesn't add much to it, but it

makes it more definite.

The Court : It may be amended, then.

Thereafter, on the 13th day of April, 1955, court

having convened at 10:00 o'clock a.m., at Ketchikan,

Alaska, the above-entitled cause came on for trial

before a jury; the Honorable George W. Folta,

United States District Judge, presiding; the plain-

tiff appearing by John H. Dimond, its attorney ; the

defendants appearing by H. L. Faulkner, their at-

torney; a jury was duly empanelled and sworn to

try the cause; respective counsel agreed that should

it become necessaiy to excuse any member of the

jury during the trial of this case they would proceed

with less than twelve jurors; opening statements

were made by respective counsel; the jury was duly

admonished by the Court, and thereupon court was

recessed for five minutes, reconvening as per recess

with all parties present as heretofore, and the jury

all present in the box; whereupon the following

proceedings were had

:

The Court : You may proceed. [6]
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Plaintiff's Case

DAVID F. BELNAP
called as a witness on behalf of the plaintiff, beii

first duly sworn, testified as follows

:

Direct Examination

By Mr. Dimond:

Q. Will you please state your name and address

A. I am David F. Belnap of Seattle, Washiuj

ton.

Q. By whom are you employed?

A. The United Press Associations.

Q. The plaintiff in this case? A. Yes, si

Q. And what are your duties in this emplo;

ment ?

A. I am the Northwest Manager for the ITnitf

Press.

Q. What does that encompass, Mr. Belnap?

A. T am in charge of the business of the Unitf

Press in the State of Washington, Northern Tdah

Montana and Alaska.

Q. And it is your duties to be in charge of an

responsible for contracts for news reports dealir

with Alaska publishers? A. That is correc

Q. You are the one who is responsible for thoe

reports that are sent to Alaska ; is that true ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. How long have you been employed by tl

United Press in the Seattle office? [7]

A. Since December, 1952.

Q. In the same capacity that you are now?

A. Yes, sir.

V
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Q. What previous positions, if any, have you

held with your present employer *?

A. Previous to December, 1952, I was manager

for the United Press in the Central Pacific, with

headquai^ers in Honolulu, Hawaii. Previous to that

I was manager for United Press in the State of

Montana. I was prior to that employed as the

Washington State political editor for the United

Press with headquarters at 01^^npia, Washington.

I was pre\dous to that headquartered at Spokane,

Washington, as bureau manager for United Press,

and prior to that I was employed by the United

Press at Salt Lake City.

Q. Have you had any other experience in news-

paper or news gathering business, besides with

United Press?

A. Yes, sir. For a bri(^f time I was employed <m

the Ogden, Utah. Standard Examiner as a reporter

and subsequently as a coi)y reader, and I was for

two and a half years assistant city editor on the old

Seattle Star.

Q. x\nd how many years in all have you been

engaged in newspaper or news gathering business?

A. About fourteen years.

Q. Have you ever edited news for publication in

papers ? [8] A. Yes, I have.

Q. How much experience have you had in that

respect ?

A. I, as I say, was assistant city editor of the

Seattle Star for the period of two and a half years.
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during which time I edited city news for the Seattl

Star.

Q. And then your experience with the Unite

Press has heen mostly in transmission of news?

A. That is correct; gathering and transmissio

of news.

Q. Will you explain to the jury, Mr. Belnap, ju?

what this United Press Associations is, what it doei

and briefly so they will get the picture of what th

U.P.A. means'?

A. Yes. United Press Associations is an organ:

zation of news correspondents, editors, photograph

ers, telegraj)hers. It is a world-wide organizatioi

and its business is to collect news and sell that new

to radio stations, newspapers, television stations

magazines, and other media whose legitimate fun(

tion, either in whole or in part, is to supply news t

the public. We have offices around the world. Thes

offices are all called bureaus. We have eighty-tw

offices, for instance, in the United States. Each on

of those is called a bureau. We have seventy-nin

bureaus in foreign countries. Each one of thes

bureaus serves as a central collection point for new

in its ]")articular area. This news is gathered an^

transmitted by leased mre, by radio teletype mn

chine, by [9] Morse telegraphy, by mail to our vari

ous clients, to the radio stations and the newspaper

and others who subscribe and buy our services.

Q. Mr. Belna]), are you familiar with a certaii

agreement between the United Press and the Alask

Fishing Ncavs of 7\etchikan, Alaska, which is date«

•V
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June 30, 1945 ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Attached to the plaintiff's complaint is a

copy. Exhibit A, of this contract, and you will note

in looking at this contract that it calls for United

Press to furnish to the Alaska Fishing News its

regular news report, a sixty-minute transmission

each day for six days a week; is that correct?

A. It says, "its regular news report and agrees

as far as practicable to deliver to the publisher such

news report by radio telety|)e for one hour daily on

each of the six regular publication days each week"

—yes.

Q. That is a carbon copy of the contract entered

into between these parties? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, are you familiar with what a regular

news report consists of, and, if so, would you please

explain it to the Court and jury?

A. Yes. A regular news repoii: is the news

gathered by the United Press each day. [10]

Q. What are the mechanics of choosing the par-

ticular news and sending it to the newspaper ])ub-

lisher? Just how do you go about doing that?

A. Well, we have, for instance, around the world

ten thousand corresjiondents, staff corespondents,

editors, photogra]^hers, reporters, telegraphers. The

news is gathered by the corres])ondents, staff cor-

respondents. It is filed to the nearest bureau of the

United Press. It is edited there and transmitted

by a telegrapher, or what we call a teletype operator

nowadays, since teletypes have principally replaced

the telegraph, onto our wires.



56 United Press Associations, etc.

(Testimony of David F. Belnap.)

Q. In a sixty-minute transmission, how man
words are transmitted to the newspaper publisher

A. Teletype machines have a geared speed c

approximately sixty words a minute, and in a on(

hour transmission, approximately thirty-five hui

di'ed words of copy are transmitted.

Q. That is your regular news report; is th^

true'? A. Yes, it is.

Q. What does it consist of; I mean, in the ne

ture of the news ; what kind of news does it consis

of; does it comprise—world news, local news, o

what?

A. It comprises world news, sports news, r^

gional news, featui'e news.

Q. Was it your duty as manager of the Nortl:

west Division of [11] United Press to furnish thi

regular news i-eport to the Ketchikan News?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. That has been your duty since 1952?

A. That is right.

Q. Is all the news that you send to the, that yo-

have sent in your time to the Ketchikan Daily Newj

was that all transmitted from Seattle?

A. Yes, it was.

Q. Was there any of it transmitted from Alaska

A. Not directly, no; not that I know of.

Q. Well, what do you mean by "not directly"

A. Well, news from Alaska would be transmitte(

by our coiTespondents at various Alaska ]:)oints t«

us in Seattle and be edited bv us there, since Seattl
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is the nearest bureau to Alaska, and transmitted on

regular circuit back to Alaska.

Q. It is all transmitted from Seattle to Alaska?

A. That is right.

Q. Do you have any offices in Alaska?

A. No, we don't.

Q. These correspondents, are they regular em-

ployees of United Press ? A. No, they are not.

Q. How are they compensated? [12]

A. They are called correspondents other than

staff correspondents; and, when I say staff corre-

spondents, I mean men employed on' the staff of the

United Press and paid a regular wage of salary.

In addition to men of that kind, we employ a great

mimber of what is called part-time or string cor-

respondents. These people who are—the word

'^ string" is a piece of nomenclature from the news-

paper business dating back a number of years

—

these part-time or string correspondents are people

who are, as a rule, regularly employed on a news-

paper or a radio station in the particular area in

which they live and whose duties for that newspaper

or radio station are to gather new^s for that organi-

zation. In addition to that we take them on as part-

time correspondents, and they furnish to us certain

news that they gather in the ordinary course of

their business for the person for whom they work.

This news is filed to us for our service.

Q. Now, in addition to the regular news report

that vou furnished to the Ketchikan Daily News,
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did you render any other service in the way (

news ?

A. In addition to the one-hour daily transmi

sion called for in the contract here, yes; we su]

plied the Ketchikan Daily News with a daily ai

mail drop.

Q. What is that?

A. Of feature material. Well, it was a daily ai

mail [13] package. We call it a drop in our businei

instead of air-mail package. And in it was a certai

number of feature and what is called time-cof

stories.

Q. Was there any additional charge assesse

against the News for this air-mail drop?

A. No, there wasn't.

Q. In addition to the rate in the contract?

A. No. We also supplied the News with what \\

call bulletin protection. Their file moved out c

Seattle from 11:00 a.m. to 12:00 each day, Pacif

Standard Time. When a news story of great in

portance occurred and moved on our wires after tl

file with Ketchikan News was cleared at noon, v

were—we sent a brief telegram overhead to tl

News on an irregular basis, I mean, depending c

the news breaks, for their edition.

Q. Can you state whether the news report th?

you furnished the Ketchikan Daily News under th

agreement that you have before you was furnishe

as a part of the regular and customary business a^

tivities of the United Press? A. Yes, it wa

Q. When was the first time since you have bee
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in the Seattle office that you ceased, furnishing the

news report to the Ketchikan Daily News ?

A. "We ceased furnishing: the news report to the

Ketchikan Daily News after February 18, 1954. [14]

Q. Will you state why you ceased furnishing the

news at that time ?

A. Yes, I can, because we had received a tele-

gram from Mr. Paul Charles telling us that he

would not accept any more news from us and ad-

vising us that he was taking out our teletype ma-

chine and shipping it back to Seattle.

Q. Can you state whether United Press Associa-

tions at that time and since that time was ready,

willing and able to furnish its news report to the

Ketchikan News? A. Yes, it was.

Q, Was the nature of this termination such that

you considered that you were relieved of any fur-

ther duties to perform thereunder?

A. Yes, it was. When they took our teletype

machine out, it rendered us incapable of performing.

Q. At any time prior to January, 1954, did you

receive from the Ketchikan News or Pioneer Print-

ing Company or any of the Charles family or Mrs.

Flood or any person connected with the newspaper

any notice or indication—I would like to change

that—any notice that they desired to terminate the

contract pursuant to the termination provisions con-

tained in the contract? A. No, sir.

Q. When was the tirst notice that you ever re-

ceived regarding such a wish to terminate the con-

tract? [15]



60 United Press Associatiotis, etc.

(Testimony of David F. Belnap.)

A. You mean directly from the Ketchikan News

Q. Yes.

A. I received a letter in January, dated, I thinl

around January 14th, from Mrs. Flood, busine^

manag^er of the Ketchikan News, which letter we

sent in reply to a telegram from me. I might e:5

plain, if you want me to, how I came about to sen

that wire.

Q. Yes ; I wish you would.

A. I received, early in January of 1954, a con

munication from the New York office of the Unite

Press. In that communication I was told that tli

New York office had received from Mrs. Flood

letter in which she mentioned n letter she said sli

had sent the United Press in November. This ac

vice that I had from New York told me that the

had never received any letter from Mrs. Flood i

November, that she had sent with her letter in Jam
ary, a copy of that alleged letter, and that thr

copy said that she wished to terminate the agre(

ment. I wired Mrs. Flood after receiving that, an

in my wire I said I didn't understand what sb

meant by a cancellation of the agreement since tli

agreement had just recently been renewed and thf

it was not possible to cancel it at that time. Sli

replied then to my wire with a letter dated, T thinl

the 14th—I could look it up—it was dated, I thinl

the 14th of January, and in that letter she sai

that she [16] realized she hadn't given proper nc

tice but, nevertheless, she wanted to tenninatc^ th
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agreement. And that is the first that I ever heard

that they wanted to terminate the agreement.

Q. Do you know what it costs the United Press

to hire a teletype operator in Seattle, to send the

news to the Ketchikan Daily News?
A. Well, I know what we are paying them now.

Q. What are you paying them now ?

A. We are paying them, oh, the average is about

one hundred and fifty dollars a week.

Q. You are paying one man one hundred and

fifty dollars a week?

A. Yes; that is a telegrapher, a teletype op-

erator.

Q. And if he works only one hour a day, do you

pay him just that one hour?

A. If he works only one hour a day, we have to

pay him a full week's salary.

Q. For the full week?

A. They work a thirty-seven-and-a-half-hour

week under the union labor contract we have with

them.

Q. What rate were you receiving from the

Ketchikan News at the time of the termination in

February, 1954?

A. Sixty-one dollars and forty-five cents a week.

Q. And you were paying the operator one hun-

dred and [17] forty-five dollars a week ?

A. We were paying, yes, our Seattle operators

an average of one hundred and fifty dollars a week

—one hundred and forty-five to one hundred and
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fifty dollars. That included overtime for work or

the sixth day.

Q. What other newspaper clients do you have ir

Alaska 1

A. We have the Anchorage Daily News.

Q. That is the only one? A. Yes.

Q. Do you have some radio stations ?

A. Yes; we have one radio station, now.

Q. Does that require a separate operator or th(

same operator to send the news report to the An
chorage News and the Ketchikan News *?

A. Well, a night operator is required for om
radio work because we transmit—of course, a radic

station broadcasts at night as well as in the daytime

and the transmissions have to be

Q. You have two operators in Seattle, then?

A. No. At present we have three operators ir

Seattle.

Q. To send to Alaska?

A. Two of which are required for our Alaski

business.

Q. During th(^ time that you were in the Seattle

office from 1952, up until February, 1954, did yor

receive from the Ketchikan News or from any per-

son on its behalf any [18] complaints as to the type

of s(^rvice that you were rendering?

A. I never received any complaints about th(

service until 1 talked with Bud Charles in February

of 1950.

Q. February, 1950?

A. February, 1954; excuse me.
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Q. You received no letters?

A. I received no letters; no.

Q. If there are any negotiations or correspond-

ence, particularly complaints about the type of

service, from the Alaska publisher sent to the, say.

New York or San Francisco office of the United

Press, would it be customary or common practice

of the organization that copies be sent to you if

they affect Alaska business? A. Yes.

Q. You received no complaints all the time you

were there? A. That is correct.

Q. Until February, 1954.

A. Until I talked with Bud Charles in Seattle

in February of 1954.

Q. Had you talked with Mrs. Flood prior to

that time? A. Yes, I had.

Q. When was that?

A. Mrs. Flood came to Seattle in July of 1953,

if I remember correctly, late in July. [19]

Q. Did she register any complaints with you at

that time?

A. Yes, she did ; not about the service, however

;

about the rate.

Q. Oh, about the rate, but not the service?

A. Yes.

Q. What is the total gross revenue that United

Press Associations receives, or what—can you spe-

cify a date, for example, a certain month in 1953,

where you know that the total gross revenue from

Alaska business was so much money? Do you have

any figures on that?
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A. Yes. At the height, rather, at the period of

time—the period of time that v\'e received the most

money, the most gross revenne for our services to

Ahaska was late in the year of 1953. In December,

1953, our total gross revenue for Alaska was three

hundred and six dollars and some odd cents, if I re-

call correctly.

Q. Vriiat was your t(~>tal cost of teletype oper-

ators for Alaska business at that time?

A. Three hundred and eight dollars and some

odd cents. That constituted the salary of a day and

a night operator.

Q. What were you receiving from the Ketchi-

kan News at that time?

A. Sixty-one dollars and forty-tive cents.

Q. Since the termination of the news report to

the Ketchikan News have you made any saving on

salaries of operators? [20]

A. No, we have not.

Q. You have the same operators that you had

before ? A. Yes, we do.

Q. Mr. Belnap, you will oliserve in Paragraph 2

of th(^ contract that the publisher, Alaska Fishing

News, agreed that, if the wage scale for union em-

ployees was increased, tlic^ ])ublisher would pay the

increases in union wages to the United Press. Are

you familiar with that too?

A. Yes, I am.

Q. Of this contract?

A. That is the secoud sub])arngrn])l) 2. 1 think.
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Q. Can you tell the Court and jury just liow

that works, when these assessments become neces-

sary, how they are arrived at and how they are as-

sessed against the publishers?

A. Yes; I can explain how they are assessed

against the publishers. When the United Press

negotiates a union labor agreement which calls for

an increase in the salary or salaries being paid to

its union labor employees, it has the privilege under

the contract of passing along those increases in

union wages to its clients, to the radio stations and

newspapers who buy its services. This business of

passing along the increases in union wages is done

on a percentage basis. The percentage that the in-

crease in the union wages of all of its [21] em-

ployees covered by the union labor contract, the

percentage of that increase, as applied to the total

overhead of the United Press, is passed back to its

clients in the form of a percentage increase in their

rate. In other words, if the United Press raised

its union labor salary ten per cent, that would con-

stitute a certain percentage of increase in our over-

head and that percentage of increase in our over-

head would in the ordinary course be passed back

to the clients of the United Press in the forai of

increases in their rates.

Q. For example, if you had a five per cent assess-

ment and the publisher were paying forty dollars

a week, you would increase his rate by five per cent ?

A. That is correct.

Q. And that is what this Section 2, Paragraph
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2, means? A. That is correct.

Q. Now, would this—let's call this an assess-

ment by reason of union labor wage increases

—

would this have anything directly to do with the

specific salary of the Seattle operators who were

sending these news reports?

A. You mean the union labor assessments which

were made against the Ketchikan News'?

Q. Yes.

A. In the course of our contractual life would

they have any direct relation? No; they didn't. The

same percentage [22] increase was passed along tc

the clients in New Orleans, Louisiana.

Q. Assuming that they had not been required tc

use teletype operators to send news reports to the

Ketchikan News and they could have been sent

some other way, woulel these assessments, whicl:

we have been talking about, still have been made

under its contract ? A. Yes.

Q. So the salary of that operator was some-

thing apart?

A. The salary of the operator, which we required

to send a news report to the Ketchikan News and

which was charged back against the Ketchikar

News, was apart from the assessments which yor

mentioned.

Q. How long has the Anchorage Daily News

been receiving the news report?

A. Since about the late spring of 1948.

Q. And do you know what they pay for thei]
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report *? A. I know what they pay now.

Q. What is it?

A. Eighty-three dollars and nine cents a week.

Q. How much do they get in the way of time?

A. They get ninety minutes a day.

Q. You stated that you met Mrs. Flood and she

complained about the rates. Will you tell us what

that was about?

A. Yes. Mrs. Flood came to Seattle in July,

1953, late in [28] the month, if I remember correctly,

and in the course of her visit she complained to me
al)out the union labor assessment which we had

levied in April or May of that year.

Q. What did you do about the complaint?

A. I passed her complaint along to the front of-

fice of the United Press.

Q. And was any reduction made in the rate?

A. No reduction was made on the rate.

Q. Had that assessment been made under this

contract ? A. Yes.

Mr. Dimond: That is all I have.

Cross-Examination

By Mr. Faulkner:

Q. Mr. Belnap, you gave us some figures here

that I didn't catch. You said in December, 1953, the

gross revenue from Alaska was how much—three

hundred and something?

A. Three hundred and—I have a note on that

lierc. Mav I look at it?
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Q. Yes.

A. It was three hundred and six dollars anc

twenty-four cents.

Q. And what were the expenses'?

A. The salaries for operators required for th(

Alaska business were three hundred and eight doL

lars and four cents. [24] That is two operators; ^

day and a night operator. The day operator re

ceived one hundred and forty-four dollars and forty

eight cents per w^eek during the month of Decem

her, 1953, and the night operator received one hun

dred and sixty-three dollars and fifty-six cents pei

week.

Q. That then shows that your expenses, if I un

derstand this right, were almost two dollars mor(

weekly than your revenue; is that correct?

A. That is correct.

Q. Is that for the whole month? Those figure!

are for the whole month of December?

A. No. Those are weekly figures.

Q. So that those show a difference of expense;

above revenue of almost two dollars?

A. That is what my figures would indicate.

Q. A week. Now, Mr. Belnax^, let me ask yoi

how the United Press handles the correspondents

for instance, from Alaska. On what basis are the^

paid ?

A. They are paid on tlie basis of the amount o:

useable co]iy that they turn into the Ignited Press
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and we are the judge of what copy is useable and

what isn't.

Q. And you take those reports in and then you

pick out what you think should be sent back to your

corresponding newspapers in Alaska, and that is

the news they get? A. That is collect. [25]

Q. Now, the United Press picks these correspond-

ents, I suppose, for the various jobs?

A. Yes, we do.

Q. Now, you have been in the Seattle office only

a little over two years? A. That is correct.

Q. Who was there before you?

A. In my capacity?

Q. Yes. A. Mr. Richard A. Litfin.

Q. And was Mr. Green there for a while ?

A. Yes. Mr. Green was there before Mr. Litfin.

Q. Fred Green? A. Fred J. Green.

Q. Then was a man named Carlson there after

Mr. Green?

A. No. Mr. Carlson was Seattle bureau manager.

Q. He was Seattle bureau manager?

A. Yes. He was there at the same time that

Mr. Gren was.

Q. Now, in editing these news reports that you

get from Alaska and from various other places, do

you have any rating as to the value of news to the

newspapers with whom you have contracts?

A. Yes. As much as possible we endeavor to

supply the newspaper or the radio station with

whom we have a contract with the specific type of

news that he wishes and [26] consistent with news
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value of course and with ordinary news value. News

is a highly relative thing, and the value of a story

on one day may not be the same news value as a

story on the next day, depending on what other

stories broke or were developing or had occurred.

Q. Yes, that is right; but, as a general thing,

Mr. Belnap, to a local paper in Alaska the news of

first importance would be, I suppose, the local or

regional news, wouldn't it?

A. Not necessarily; no.

Q. If there w^as something important in Alaska,

for instance, if the Town of Sitka burned down,

that would be very important news to newspapers

in Alaska, wouldn't it?

A. In my judgment it would; yes.

Q. And that would be what the newspapers

would expect to get, wouldn't it, a newspaper in

the Territory taking your service?

A. Yes; they could logically expect us to supply

a story if the Town of Sitka burned down.

Q. Yes; to give some priority to news events of

imj^ortance in the Territory, important to all the

people ? A. That is correct.

Q. And then what would rank next?

A. Well, it is pretty difficult, sir, to answer what

would rank next. [27]

Q. I mean in class of news.

A. It is even difficult to determine in class of

news because it depends on the news that is break-

ing on any given,' particular day.

Q. Well, for instance, take in the case of Alaska,
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Washington news, Washington, D. C, news would

be rather important, any Washington news affecting

the Territory, wouldn't if?

A. Yes, it would be.

Q. These hearings on important things, like the

aboriginal Indian affairs, and the pulp company

contracts, and so on, would Ije important to this

region, wouldn't they?

A. Well, I would, before being able to say how
important, have to see the story and know the

circumstances, and I wouldn't want to give an

opinion on that.

Q. Then foreign news would generally be at the

bottom of the list, wouldn't it?

A. Depending on what was happening, of course.

If the King of England were assassinated, I would

say that w^ould be the top piece of news.

Q. That is right; but as a class, I mean, ordi-

narily ?

A. Ordinarily, I would say, as a class of news,

no, foreign news ^vouldn't be at the bottom. For-

eign news in my judgment is important.

Q. Well, if Mr. Molander, one of your wit-

nesses, says that foreign news would be at the bot-

tom, he would be wrong—I [28] mean as a class?

A. Well, I just can't say that as a class of news

foreign new^s would be at the bottom; no, sir.

Q. I mean for a local i)aper in Alaska?

A. No, sir; I can't say that.

Q. In other words, wouldn't your local news,

your local or regional news, of course in the Terri-
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toiy, rate first, and your Washington news second,

national news third, and foreign news last; wouldn't

tliat be—I mean, as a class 1

A. I wouldn't say that; no.

Q. There would be important items in one

class

A. It is a relative proposition. It would depend

eacli day in my judgment on what it was.

Q. Now, you say that you did not receive com-

plaints of the service from the Ketchikan News.

You didn't receive any, you said?

A. No, I didn't receive any until I talked

with

Q. You don't mean to say that none were sent?

A. No complaints were received by me.

Q. But, as far as you know, you don't know

what Mr. Grreen received, or Mr. Carlson, or the

New^ York office, do you?

A. No, I don't; that is, I know that no—or,

rather, I assume that, if any complaints had been

made to the New York office during the time I was

in Seattle, they would have [29] let me know^

about it.

Q. Well, as a matter of fact, from examining

the records here and the papers in this case, you

know now that the.v made complaints?

A. Some number of years ago, yes, five or six

years.

Q. And acknowledgements of shortcomings were

made. Did vou ever see anv of those?
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A. Yes, I have seen the letters in the file.

Q. Now, you say that you discontinued furnish-

ing news to the Ketchikan News on February 14,

1954?

A. No. A¥e discontinued after February 18th.

We sent our last transmission on the 18th of Febru-

ary, 1954.

Q. Well, now, Mr. Behiap, I will hand you a

series of drafts—this is in connection with our

counterclaim—a series of drafts drawn by the

Ignited Press on the Miners & Merchants Bank on

the account of the Ketchikan News, and ask if

those were drawn after you discontinued the serv-

ice?

A. Yes. These were drawn, after we discon-

tinued the service, in error by our bookkeeping de-

partment in New York, which didn't know that we

had discontinued it.

Mr. Faulkner: We will offer these for identifi-

cation.

Mr. Dimond: No objection.

Mr. Faulkner: As defendants' exhibit for identi-

fication. It could be admitted, but this wasn't our

case, if you Avant to admit it that way. [30]

The Court: Since the plaintiff, as I take it, ad-

mits this, it seems to me it could be introduced as

an exhibit now, or, perhaps, it would be even su-

l^erfluous to introduce it.

Mr. Dimond: We admit it in our reply to the

counterclaim.

Mr. Faulkner: You didn't admit it was due.
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Mr. Dimond: We denied that the amount wa^

due because we figure we are entitled to judgment:

if we would win the judgment, we would have tc

pay it.

Mr. Faulkner: The drafts were drawn. I think

—now, let's see.

Mr. Dimond : What I mean—we deny that it was

due in the over-all picture.

Mr. Faulkner: There will be a little further tes-

timony about this from Mr. Charles.

The Court: Well, unless they have some other

evidentiary value, with the admission of the plaintiff

that these should not have been drawn, it seems to

me that is sufficient.

Mr. Faulkner: Well, it might be, but the ])lead-

ings don't support that, and I don't know whether

the jury will remember the testimony without the

exhibit. I would rather have the exhibit in—a series

of five drafts.

Mr. Dimond: I don't see how it is relevant. [31]

The Court: Well, I will have to instruct the

jury that the counterclaim is admitted.

Mr. Faulkner: Then you don't want to admit

them now.

Q. (By Mr. Faulkner) : Mr. Belnap, you said

that you had—you serviced the Anchorage News

and had one radio station ? A. That is correct.

Q. Where is that? A. Where is the

Q. Radio station?

A. It is in Anchorage.

Q. Have you in the past few years, I mean,
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during the life of the contract with Mr. Charles

and United Press serviced other radio stations in

Alaska ?

A. Yes, we have. For a period of five years we

serviced Radio Stations KENI and KFAR with a

half-hour transmission in the evening.

Q. Fairbanks and Anchorage?

A. Fairbanks, and Anchorage; yes, sir.

Q. And you had the Ketchikan News and the

Anchorage News? A. Tliat is correct.

Q. Have you had them all at one time %

A. Yes, we did. We had the Ketchikan News,

the Anchorage News, the Radio Stations KENI
and KFAR—that was undei* a common contract. It

was a single contract for both of them, providing

for a one-lialf hour transmission per day [32] in tlie

evening.

Q. Now, Mr. Belnap, are you familiar with the

correspondence between the plaintiff and the de-

fendant in wdiich the plaintiff said that as they

added other business in Alaska to the business that

they were doing with the Ketchikan News the cost

or expenses w^ould be reduced?

A. I am familiar with that correspondence; yes,

sir.

Q. Now, was it ever reduced ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. It was?

A. Yes. You mean the cost to the Ketchikan

Daily News?

Q. Yes. A. Yes, it was.
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Q. I mean the over-all. I know what you mean.

You had a number of increases first, didn't you?

A. There were a series of increases in the rates;

yes.

Q. And then the reduction of course came out of

a part of those increases'?

A. No. The reduction came out of the contribu-

tion that the Ketchikan News Avas making toward

the salary of the Seattle operator. The imderstand-

ing vras that we would reduce the charge being made

to the Ketchikan News, in addition to its rate, for

an operator as we added new business.

Q. Now, as you added new business, did you

prorate the expenses of transmitting news between

the Ketchikan News [33] and the others you served ?

A. We were never able to do so. The expenses

were always ahead of the additional revenue, and

we took the cuts out of our hide.

Q. Didn't the United Press state in a letter that

the Anchorage News required service at a different

time and, therefore, you couldn't operate success-

fully—at a different time of day, I mean?

A. That may have been. I would like to see a

copy of that letter again. I just don't recall it off

hand, but that very well may have been.

Q. All right. Now, do you know that after the

Ketchikan News discontinued its service that you

serviced the Ketchikan Chronicle for a brief period,

a few months? A. Yes; I am aware of that.

Q. Now, during that few months w^hen you gave



vs. Sidney Dean Charles, et al., etc. 11

(Testimony of David F. Bc4nap.)

service to the Ketchikan Chronicle yon also gave

service to the Anchorage News?
A. That is correct.

Q. And are yon familiar with the fact or do you

know if they i3ut those on the same channel and

transmitted them at the same time?

A. No, they did not.

Q. Oh, they did not?

A. No, they did not. [34]

Whereupon the trial was recessed until 2:00

o'clock p.m., April 13, 1955, reconvening as per

recess, with all parties present as heretofore, and

the jury all present in the box ; whereupon the wit-

ness David F. Belnap resumed the witness stand,

and the Cross-Examination by Mr. Faulkner was

continued as follows:

Q. Mr. Belnap, just one or two more questions.

First, this morning you stated that the contract,

which is the subject of this action, was dated in

June, 1945?

A. I think the original date on it was June, 1945.

Q. I may be mistaken. I stated to the jury that

it took effect on September 1, 1945.

A. Well, the date of the contract and the effec-

tive date were different. The contract in its first

sentence, I think, bears a date in June, as I recall,

and the eff'ective date, which is established under

Article 8 of the contract. Article 7 or 8, was a later

date.

Q. That is the date that is in there?

A. Yes.
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Q. fliist to clear that point n]). Now, you stated

this morning that after—I asked yon this morning

after the contract with the News was terminated by

the News if yon didn't then have service to the An-

chorage New^s and tlie Ketchikan Chronicle for a

while. I meant the Fairbanks Nc^ws Miner. [35]

Mr. Dimond: If the Court please, I v/onder—

I

\vould like to object to any questions regarding a

hai)pening subsequent to the termination date of this

contract. This case involves the contract between

United Press and Ketchikan News which was ter-

minat(^d on February 14th.

The Court: Well, it would all depend whether

the question might elicit or is designed to elicit

something that would b(^ of evidentiary value. In

other words, relating to a fact or something subse-

quent, if it happens to be evidentiar}^, if something

goes on before, it is not inadmissible.

Mr. Dimond: AVell, I can't see what—I think it

is just going far afield—what relation subsequent

contracts with other clients had to this particular

case.

Mr. Faulkner: The point I made this morning

was—I thought I made that clear—was that the

I^uited Press contended they could not reduce their

expenses in furnishing this service by virtue of hav-

ing other outlets because they had to furnish the

news to these other outlets at ditferent times, aud I

inadvertently mentioned there the Anchorage News

aud asked him, as an illustration of that, if they

didn't furnish service to the Anchorae-e News and the
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Ketchikan Chronicle after this particular contract

terminated, at the same time and through the same

channel, and he said, "No." Now, I want to cor-

rect my question and refer to the Fairbanks News
Miner instead of the Anchorage News. That is the

only purpose. The whole [36] thing is before the

Court, only I gave the wrong paper, and had I

given the correct paper, Mr. Belnap 's answer might

be different.

Mr. Dimond: The only thing is, your Honor, on

this question of promises to reduce rates, which de-

fendants apparently relied upon, we have not yet in

our direct case in chief gone into that subject. We
have evidence on that point, what the so-called

grounds consisted of, but I don't know whether this

is within the scope of direct examination.

The Court: Well, I am inclined to think that the

scope of direct examination is not so limited. T

think it is within tlie scope of direct examination.

01)jection overruled.

Q. (By Mr. Faulkner) : Mr. Belnap, I meant to

say the Fairbanks News Miner. Now, after you

came in charge of the Northwest office, did the

United Press furnish service at the same time to

the Ketchikan Chronicle for a while and to the

Fairbanks News Miner? A. Yes, we did.

Q. Now, did you furnish those at the same hours

and through the same channel?

A. We furnished it at the same hour, and

whether Alaska Communications Commission used

the same channel to deliver it or not I can't say, but
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it was furnished by us and tiled by us at the same

hour each day; yes.

Q. What you would furnish would be a copy

which would be [37] directed to both the Fairbanks

News JVIiner and the Ketchikan Chronicle'?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And that is the way you did it ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. I hand you this and ask you if this was a

sample of the way you did if? A. Yes.

Mr. Faulkner: We offer that in evidence as an

exhibit.

Mr. Dimond : I don 't see how it is relevant, your

Honor, to the issue.

Mr. Faulkner: It shows liow the news could be

furnished, two at the same time. There is some

argument here, some evidence—perhaps I am get-

ting a little ahead of it—but there is some evidence

or will be that they couldn't do this. T want to show

they could and did do it.

Mr. Dimond: It sounds more likt^ the defend-

ants' case.

Mr. Faulkner: Well, perhaps it is.

The Court: Well, the only bar to putting it in

the defendants' case is if it isn't incidental to a

pro])er cross-examination.

Mr. Dimond: I just didn't want to clutter up

the record. [38]

Mr. Faulkner: Well, I don't either.

The Court: The objection is overul<Ml. It may be

admitted.
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Mr. Faulkner: It may be that you will want to

cut off this top part. It doesn't have any applica-

tion.

The Clerk : Defendants ' Exhibit A.

Mr. Faulkner : I think that is all.

Redirect Examination

By Mr. Dimond:

Q. Mr. Belnap, I have just a couple of questions.

When you testified on direct examination that you

had received no complaints as to type of service, did

you not testify that you had received none, just

during your time in Seattle?

A. That is what I testified; yes, sir; in my time

in Seattle.

Q. You were not testifying to complaints that

had been sent to other persons prior to your coming

to Seattle ? A. No, I was not.

Q. How long has United Press Associations been

in existence, Mr. Belnap? A. Since 1907.

Q. About how many clients do they have now?

A. About four thousand four hundred through-

out the world.

Q. And is the contract that you testified about

this morning, [39] the printed form of contract

which is attached to the complaint, is that the same

form Tised with practically or all of your clients?

A. That is correct ; all of our newspaper clients.

Q. Did your type or class of news report or type

of news sent to the Ketchikan Daily News change
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in any great way or in any way at all, say, in Janu-

ary and February, 1954, as compared with the type

or class which was sent in previous years, at leasl

during your time'? A. No, sir.

Q. Will you explain one thing? What do tolls

consist of ?

This contract says something about pajTuent oi

tolls.

A. The tolls are the charges made by the trans-

mission company for transmitting the files.

Q. And who is the transmission company in

Alaska? A. Alaska Comnumications System,

Q. What tolls are charged or have been charged

to the Ketchikan papers'?

A. I can give you their time press tariff which

is four dollars an hour.

Q. And the publisher pays that under these con-

tracts between the United Press and their clients 1

A. Yes. It is on a tolls collect basis.

Mr. Dimond : That is all I have.

The Court: How long has the United Press

used this [40] form of contract?

A. For as long as I have been in the company,

sir, and, as far as I know, a good deal longer.

The Court: Has it ever been litigated?

A. Yes, it has been litigated.

The Court : That is all.

(Witness excused.) [41]
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DEPOSITION OF CARL B. MOLANDER
Whereupon, the de])osition of Carl B. Molander

was read as follows—questions by Mr. Dimond and

answers by Mr. Bebiap

:

Q. Will you state your name?

A. Carl B. Molander.

Q. Where do you live?

A. 3450-80th Street, Jackson Heights, Long Is-

land, N. Y.

Q. By whom are you employed?

A. United Press Associations.

Q. How long have you been employed by

U.P.A.? A. Thirty-three years.

Q. AVhat position do you hold with U.P.A.?

A. As.sistant General Sales Manager.

Q. How long have you held your present posi-

tion? A. Since October, 1952.

Q. What positions did you hold previous to your

present position?

A. Assistant Business Manager and Commercial

Manager.

Q. Are you familiar with a certain agreement

by and between IT.P.A. and the Alaska Fishing

News of Ketchikan, Alaska, which is dated June

30, 1945? A. I am.

Q. Do you have that agreement before you?

A. Yes. [49]

Q. Is that the original executed agreement be-

tween U.P.A, and the Alaska Fishing News?

A. It is.
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Q. Are you the Carl B. Molander who witness

the agreement on behalf of U.P.A. *?

A. I am.

Q. And this same agreement is executed on

half of the Alaska Fishing News by Sidney De

Charles, the Editor and Publisher? A. It

(Reading suspended.)

Mr. Dimond: This is Mr. Wiek speaking.

(Reading resumed by ])laintiff.)

Mr. Wick: I will ask that the agreement

marked for identification as Plaintiff's Exhibit 1

Q. Handing you what has been marked for id(

tification as Plaintiff's Exhibit 1, I will ask j

when service was started to the publisher under t

agreement? A. On October 3, 1945.

Q. Now, I notice that there are twelve letters

other memoranda attached to the agreement. ^

they afi&xed to the basic agreement because they

relate thereto? A. Yes.

Q. When did the original temi of Plaintiif 's I

hibit 1 start and expire according to the face of i

agreement? [50]

A. It started September 1, 1945, to expire A

gust 31, 1948.

Q. Was that original expiration date extend

in any way by a delay in daily publication of I

fendants' newspaper, and if so, to what date?

A. Yes, Tmtil October 3, 1948.

Q. A.nd that extension was ])ursuant to Pa]
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graph 12 of the agreement? A. Yes.

Q. Was the agreement automatically renewed by

its terms, and if so, for what periods and what

dates?

A. Yes, from October 3, 1948, to October 3, 1953,

and then again from Octo])er 3, 1953, to October 3,

1958.

Q. And those renew^als were pursuant to Para-

graph 8 of the agreement ? A. Yes.

Q. Now I will ask you if at any time prior to

October 3, 1953, the Defendants ever gave you any

notice, either verbal or written, that they desired

to terminate the agreement pursuant to Paragraph

8? A. No.

Q. Did the Defendants otherwise give you any

notice between April 3, 1953, and October 3, 1953,

or at any previous date that they desired termina-

tion of the agreement on October 3, 1953 ?

A. No. [51]

Q. And when do you say that the basic agree-

ment, which is Plaintiff's Exhibit 1, expires by its

terms, except as it may otherwise be modified?

A. October 3, 1958.

Q. Now referring to the attachment to th(^ basic

agreement which bears date of February 21, 1950,

and is entitled "Modification of Agreement," I will

ask you if that modification was still in force at the

time service was refused by the Defendants on or

about February 14, 1953? A. It was.

Q. Had the Defendants given you any notice
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whatsoever that they desired tei-mination of the suj

pension as provided for in said modification c

Febrnary 21. 1950? A. Xo.

Q. If either you or the Defendants had give

such a notice what if any would have been the result

so far as the weekly rate was concerned?

A. The then existing rate of $52.52 per wee

w.nild have been restored to $72.52 per week.

Q. For what period of time was this suspensio

provided for in the modification dated February 2'

1950. in effect ?

A. It was in effect from February 19. 1950. luit

service was discontinued on February 14. 1954.

Q. And what do you say was the effect of sai

modification on the term of the basic [52] agi*et

ment ?

A. The basic agreement and the terms therec

was extended by a period which was just a few day

less than four years.

Q. In other words, the basic agi*eement wa

thert^by extended from October 3, 1958. to Septen

ber 27, 1962, because the Defendants gave no notic

that they desired the suspension lifted ?

A. Yes. sir. that was under Clause 3 nf the Mod
fication.

0. Now. when was the first notice received b

I'.P.A. that the Defendants desired cancellation c

the agi-eement ?

A. That is not too clear in my mind, but I woiil

sav that thev aave some indication of their desii
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to cancel to Mr. Belnap about mid-January, 1954.

I know I received a letter from Sid Charles, dated

January 22, 1954, in which he asked for a rate re-

duction, and then later in the middle of February,

1954, I received a copy of a wire that Paul Charles

sent to Mr. Belnap, in which he requested that serv-

ice be discontinued at once.

Q. Well, did you ever receive any other notifica-

tion—and I am recalling to your mind a certain let-

ter dated January 7, 1954 ?

A. Yes, I received a letter from Mrs. Flood, of

the Daily News, dated January 7, 1954, in wliicli

she remarked that she had not received a reply to

her letter of November 14, 1953, and enclosed a copy

of that purported letter.

Q. Had you ever received the letter of Novem-

ber 14, 1953, to [53] which Mrs. Flood had referred

in her letter of January 7, 1954? A. No, sir.

Q. Did you make a diligent search of the New
York files, as well as have a search made of your

West Coast files for such a letter?

A. We have.

Q. And did you ever locate such a letter?

A. No, sir.

Q. Well, then, the letter of November 14, 1953,

was first called to your attention by reason of the

fact that Mrs. Flood had enclosed a copy thereof

with her January 7, 1954, letter?

A. That is right.

Q. zVnd you have never seen the original of this
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letter dated November 14, 1953, purporting to

signed by Mrs. Flood? A. No, sir.

Q. If there was such an original letter would

have in the ordinary course of events been ]iroug

to your attention ?

A. I am certain that it would have, yes.

Q. On what date did the Defendants actual

notif^y you to discontinue your News Report

them? A. On February 15, 1954.

Q. And did you discontinue service at that tim

A, Yes, sir. [54]

Q. Did the Alaska Communication System noti

you on or about February 18, 1954, that since t

Defendants would not accept your News Repc

after February 14, 1954, that it could not contin

to send the reports unless you guaranteed the t(

charges? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And were you willing or unwillins," to gun

antee payment of these toll charges that were pa

able by the publisher? A. We were unwillir

Q. What was the basic weekly rate for servi

to the Defendants as provided in Plaintiff's E
hibit 1? A. $38.17.

Q. Was that basic weekly rate of $38.17 i

creased at any time?

A. Yes, sir, several times.

Q. Well, what was the amount of the first week

i.n^*roase, and w^hen did it become effective?

A. $1.15, and it became effective on January

194(;.

Q. Will you state the Paragraph munber of t

4k
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contract under which said increase was made or per-

mitted? A. Paragraph Second, Subsection 2.

Q. Was there a further increase in the weekly

rate, and if so give me the date, amount and cir-

cumstance ?

A. Yes, on April 3, 1946, the rate was increased

by $52.50, because of putting on an operator at

Seattle, which cost [55] the Alaska Fishing News
agreed to bear.

Q. Well was this charge for the Seattle operator

thereafter reduced by you, and if so give the date

and amount of such reduction?

A. On October 28, 1946, after arrangements with

the Charles, we agreed to absorb part of this Seattle

operator's salary, and the weekly rate to the pub-

lisher was reduced by $27.50.

Q. A week? A. Per week.

Q. And after such reduction what was the then

going weekly rate?

A. The rate was cut to $64.32, the Charles agree-

ing to pay $25 a week toward the Seattle operator's

salary.

Q. Were there any further increases in weekly

rates, and if so I should like to have them in chrono-

logical order? A. Yes, there were.

Q. Well, then, what was the effective date and

amount of the next increase, and what was it for ?

A. On December 29, 1946, the rate was in-

creased by $3.05 a week for increased operator's

wages.

Q. Why was such increase made necessary ?
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A. After negotiations with the Telegi'aphe

Union we had to make concessions, and this \

their proportionate share of the increase in cost

us. [56]

Q. Will you state the Paragraph number of

contract under which said increase was made

permitted ?

A. Paragraph Second, Subsection 2.

Q. In other words, after you had tigured yc

additional costs due to this wage increase wh

was forced upon you by the leased wire operate

union, you arrived at a percentage by which th

additional costs bore to your total receipts from

your contract clients? A. Yes, that is rig

Q. And the same percentage was ay)plied to

weekly rate which each of your contract clients p,

to you for your service? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And by so applying that percentage to

Ketchikan Daily News you arrived at a weekly

crease for them of $3.05? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now what was the date and amoimt of

next increase, and what did it cover?

A. On January 4, 1948, the rate was increaj

$3.09 per week. This was likewise for operate

wage increase.

Q. And was this increase made for the same r

son as the previous increase, as to which you hi

just testified? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And was this calculated and apj^lied to

your contract clients in the same manner as 1

previous weekly increase [57] in weekly rate?
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A. Yes.

Q. And what was the date and amount of the

next increase, and what was it for?

A. On January 9, 1949, the rate went up $2.06

a week because of increased operator's wages.

Q. And was this increase calculated and applied

to the weekly rates of all your contract clients in the

same manner as the previous increases that you

have just testified to? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Well, after this particular increase became

effective what was the then ^oing weekly rate to

the Defendants? A. $72.52.

Q. And did this weekly i-ate remain in effect un-

til you entered into the modification of agreement

dated February 21, 1950? A. Yes.

Q. What was the effect of this modification of

agreement upon the weekly rate?

A. We reduced the weekly rate from $72.52 to

$52.52.

Q. In other words, beginning as of February 19,

1950, the weekly rate to the Defendants was reduced

to $52.52? A. Yes.

Q. What was the date and amount of the next

increase, and [58] w^hat was that for?

A. On January 7, 1951, the rate was increased

by $4.75 a week, which made the total rate $57.27 a

week. This was an extraordinary cost assessment.

Q. Now, what does this extraordinary cost as-

sessment involve?

A. It was put on because of the increased sala-

ries to our Union members the previous year, and
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also because of the unusual increase and exjDense

covering the Korean War.

Q. And under what provision or provisions

the contract did you make such additional cost s

sessment ?

A. Paragraph Second, Subsections 2 and 4.

Q. And was this extraordmary cost assessme

calculated and applied to all your clients in tJ

same manner as the several operator's increases

which you have previously testified?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Was there any other increase, and if so, wh

was the date and amount thereof and what did

cover ?

A. The last increase was made on May 3, 1953,

the amount of $4.18 per week for labor wage i

creases.

Q. And was this particular increase in t]

weekly rate calculated and applied to ,your contra

clients in the same manner as the other increas

referred to ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did the Defendants pay for all these increas

as they [59] were levied and assessed from time

time until service was terminated by them as <

February 14, 1954? A. They did.

Q. Now, just to briefly review, the weekly stai

ing rate under your basic agreement was $38.17'?

A. Yes.

Q. And there was an operator's increase <

$1.15 per week, effective January 6, 1946, which 1

creased the rate to $39.32? A. That is rigi
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Q. Then on April 3, 1946, pursuant to mutual

arrangements, a Seattle operator was engaged on

the basis of a weekly salary of $52.50 which the De-

fendants assumed to pay ? A. That is right.

Q. And that increased the weekly rate to $91.82 %

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And then on October 28, 1946, you agreed to

absorb $27.50 of the Seattle operator's weekly

salary, and the Defendants agreed to pay the bal-

ance of the Seattle operator's weekly salary amount-

ing to $25 ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And this reduction decreased the rate to

$64.32 a week? A. Right.

Q. iVjid thereafter there were weekly increases

because of increase in Union wage scale of operators

generally of [60] $3.05, $3.09, and $2.06?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And with these three weekly increases, the

then going weekly rate was $72.52?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, at that time—and that w^ould bring us

up to February 19, 1950—do I understand you to

say that the weekly rate that the Defendants were

paying was $72.52? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And it was then that you entered into the

modification of agreement dated February 21, 1950 ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And what w^as the effect of that modification

of agreement upon the weekly rate?

A. It reduced the w^eekly rate by $20, or to

$52.52 per w^eek.
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Q. And subsequent to this time there was a fu

ther assessment for extraordinary costs of operati(

on January 7, 1951, amounting to $4.75 per weel

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And there was a further lal)or increase <

May 3, 1953, of $4.18? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, what was the total aggregate week

rate for services as of this time ?

A. $61.45. [61]

Q. And did that aggregate weekly rate of $61.^

exist right down to the date of termination of ser

ice? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And that was the rate Defendants were pa

ing on or about February 14, 1954? A. Yei=

Q. Now, when you came to calculate the aggi

gate weekly rate for the purpose of computing yoi

damages, what did you do, and what elements d

yon take into consideration?

A. We took into consideration the basic rate,

mentioned in the contract, plus all of the increas

put on due to operator's increases in wages ai

extraordinary cost involved,

Q. In other words, in computing the aggrega

weekly rate, instead of restoring the $20 decrea

which was granted February 19, 1950, and addii

that to your current billings of $61.45, which won

have made a weekly rate of $81.45, you eliminat(

the $25 weekly charge which the station had be«

])r('sumably paying for the Seattle operator, ai

which otherwise would be considered a part of yoi

costs, and you came up with a weekly rate of $56.1
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or $5 less than they were being billed for at the

time the service was terminated?

A. That is correct.

Q. There was no point in considering the $25

additional [62] charge, since tliat represented costs,

and furthermore in reducing the rate by $20 that

merely reduced that particular cost item to $5?

A. Yes.

Q. And in arriving at your damages, your

weekly rate was computed on the basis of $56.45 per

week, rather than $61.45 per week %

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And according to your figures, how many
weeks did the contract have to run after the De-

fendants discontinued service?

A. Four hundred and forty-nine and four-sixths

weeks.

Q. Will you state what would have been the

total gross receipts which U.P.A. would have received

from the Ketchikan Daily News under your agree-

ment of June 30, 1945, for the period from Febru-

ary 14, 1954, through September 27, 1962, if they

had continued to perform under the agreement for

the balance of the term thereof?

A. $25,383.68.

Q. Now, will you state the total gross cost that

you would have incurred during those 449 and 4^6

weeks, which was incidental to your having to fur-

nish your News Rei^ort to the Defendants, and what

that cost would run per week?
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A. The gross cost would be $3,894.11, or $8.66

week.

Q. Will you explain in detail how this cost fi^

lire was [63] arrived at, identifying the varior

expenses which U.P.A. would have incurred durin

each week solely by reason of having to furnish i1

News Report to the Defendants during the afor(

said period of time?

A. Since the publisher paid the total on tt

transmission of the service, the only costs incurre

by the United Press were the furnishing of a teh

type machine. On the basis of norma] accountin

procedure, which is in line with the American Teh

phone and Telegraph Company's rental charges tl:

machine costs amounted to $8.54 a week, and tl:

additional cost of 12 cents to cover the usage of tl:

paper.

Q. And those are the only expense items thi

have been eliminated because the Ketchikan Dail

News was dropped from the Alaska circuit?

A. Yes, sir, that is right.

Q. And what is the diff(u-ence between the aj

gregate amounts you would have received from tl

Defendants and your costs incidental to furnish in

your News Report to them for the imex]:)ired po;

tion of your service agreement?

A. $21,489.57.

Q. And is that the amount of your damages, c

wliat you would have considered you will have lost

A. Yes, sir, it is.

Q. State whether or not the News Rc^port whic
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you furnished [64] to the Ketchikan Daily Ne\Ys

under your agreement of June 30, 1945, was fur-

nished as a part of the regular and customary busi-

ness activities of U.P.A. ? A. It was.

Q. And will you state whether or not U.P.A. was

ready, able and willing on February 14, 1954, and

thereafter, to continue furnishing its service to the

Defendants pursuant to your contract?

A. We were and still are.

Q. Why did you discontinue furnishing that

service to the Ketchikan Daily News?
A. They ordered us out. They said they were

shii)ping the teletype machine and also said they

could get a better rate elsewhere.

Q. After the Defendants ordered you out and

told you that they were shipping the teletype ma-

chine, did you accept this as a repudiation of the

contract and consider that you were relieved from

further performance thereunder ?

A. We did, yes, sir.

Q. Based upon the damage figures which you

liave heretofore given, will you state whether or not

this is the net profit which you would have made

in furnishing your News Service to the Defendants

for the balance of the term of the agreement and

the amount of that net profit?

A. Yes, it would have been net to us and it

would total [65] $21,489.57. I should say this is

tlie money which we should have got. but won't if

the Charles' have their way about it.

Q. In other words, the difference between $56.45
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per week, the amount you would have received, ai

$8.66 per WTek, the cost of maintaining your servi

to the Defendants, represents the net gain per we'

which you would have realized under your agre

ment if you had been able to continue the servic

A. That would be the minimum, yes.

Q. Is it part of your duties as Assistant Ge

eral Sales Manager to have knowledge of the cos

and expenses which U.P.A. incurs in furnishing i

News Service to various newspapers and rad

clients and in particular to the Ketchikan Dai

News? A. It is.

Q. Are you personally familiar with all t

costs and expenses which U.P.A. incurred each w^ei

in furnishing your News Service to the Ketchik;

Daily News'? A. I am.

Q. Will you state whether the information whii

you have heretofore given wdth reference to tho

costs and expenses is based upon facts and figur

which are contained in the business records

U.P.A., which you have examined? [66]

A. They are.

(Reading suspended.)

Mr. Faulkner : May it please the Court, I objc

to that question as not the best evidence. I think -^

are entitled to have some books of account or sor

computation of costs instead of this man's stateme

that he examined the books. It isn't the best e^

{len('(s so I object to that question.
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Mr. Dimond: I doubt whether the best evidence

rule applies here, your Honor.

The Court: Will you read that question again?

Mr. Dimond: "AVill you state whether the in-

formation which you have heretofore given with

reference to those costs and expenses is based upon

facts and figures which are contained in the busi-

nes records of U.P.A. which yon liav^ examined?"

The Court: Well, it seems to me the best evi-

dence rule would apply. It calls for the contents of

business records. But the question that occurs to me
is whether this objection is available now. If I re-

call the rule governing objection to depositions, if

the objection is one that could have been made at

the time of taking the deposition and could have ob-

viated the difficulty, it should have been made then

;

otherwise, it can't be made at the time of trial.

Mr. Faulkner: Well, of course it couldn't in this

case, your Honor, because this was taken in New
York and w^e [67] weren't there and we had no way

of being there and making objection to it or cross-

examining him on it.

Mr. Dimond: You had the opportunity.

Mr. Faulkner: I think they are obliged to fur-

nish the best evidence here in order to admit this.

The Court : Well, of course, if there is no objec-

tion made at the time the evidence goes in, the rule

can't be invoked later. I think that the objection

could very well be made if it weren't for that situa-

tion, that it could have been made and wasn't. Now,
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I suppose that the plaintiff does not have his r

ords here?

Mr. Dimond : I don't know.

The Court: The records to which reference

made there in that question.

Mr. Dimond: You don't have all these recorc

Mr. Belnap: No, I don't have.

The Court: Well, I think the objection will he

to be overruled on the ground that it is an objecti

that should have been made at the time of taki

the deposition and would have obviated this defe

(Reading resumed by plaintiff.)

Q. Are the facts and figures and the entries ma

in connection therewith done in the regu]

course

(Reading suspended.)

Mr. Belnap: I don't think I gave the answer

that [68] previous one, before the objection ^^

made.

Mr. Dimond: AVell, what is the answer to i

previous one?

(Reading resumed by plaintiff.)

A. They are.

Q. Are the facts and figures and the entr

made in connection therewith done in the regul

course of the day-to-day business of U.P.A.?

A. They are.

Q. Will you state whether or not it has been t
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practice for U.P.A. for many years to maintain in

the regular course of its business detailed records

setting forth the costs and expenses incurred in con-

nection with serving its clients? A. Yes.

Q. State whether or not it has been the practice

of U.P.A. for many years to have notations made
in its records so that they will fully and completely

reflect the costs and expenses incurred by it in fur-

nishing its service to any particular radio station

or newspaper client ? A. Yes.

Q. State whether or not the various books and

records of U.P.A. from which you have received tlie

information to which you have testified have been

kept pursuant to the aforesaid practices'? [69]

A. They are.

Q. And would you state whether or not you are

familiar with the books and records to which you

have just testified and to the manner in which such

l)ooks and records have been kept ? A. I am.

Q. State whether or not those books and records

are a part of the official and legular books and rec-

ords maintained by U.P.A. relating to its costs, ex-

penses, charges and payments'? A. They are.

Q. State whether or not the persons who made

the entries in such books and records were making

such records pursuant to their regular day-to-day

business duties'? A. That is right.

Q. State whether or not it was part of the regu-

lar day-to-day business duties of U.P.A. 's employees

to keep those books and records and to keep them

systematically and accurately to the best of their
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ability'? A. That is right.

Q. And from all the foregoing would j^ou si

that you were personally familiar with the boo

keeping practices which you have heretofore tes"

tied to and particularly with respect to those pra

tices as they relate to the Ketchikan Daily [7i

News? A. Yes, I am.

(Eeading concluded.)

Mr. Dimond: And that is the (^nd of the dep

sition. Attached to the deposition is the origin

contract signed by the parties to this action with,

Mr. Molander has testified to twelve documents coi

prising modifications and actually a part of th

contract. I would like to offer in evidence tli

printed contract with the documents attached. Son

of them may be dui:)lications.

The Court: Well, what are the documents th

are attached to it—the modifications ?

Mr. Dimond: They are documents that refle

the agreements ])etween the parties, the correspond

ence showing the change in rate and reductions ai

modifications.

The Court: Is it complete in tliat respect?

Mr. Dimond: Yes, it is. (Handing- proposed e:

hibit to Mr. Faulkner.)

The Court: Well, the contract with supportir

i)a])ers may be admitted in evidence.

The Clerk: That will be Exhibit 2. [71]
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Defendants' Case

PAUL S. CHARLES
called as a witness on behalf of the defendants, be-

ing first duly sworn, testified as follows:

Direct Examination

By Mr. Faulkner:

Q. Mr. Charles, please state your name.

A. Paul S. Charles.

Q. And where do you live?

A. Ketchikan, Alaska.

Q. How long have you lived here?

A. Oh, since 1926.

Q. And what have you been doing?

A. Working at the newspaper business.

Q. For how long? A. Since 1927.

Q. Since 1927? A. Yes.

Q. What was the newspaper?

A. The Chronicle.

Q. How long did you work there?

A. Seventeen years, I believe.

Q. And then you went with another paper?

A. Then I went over to the Alaska Fishing

News.

Q. And w^ho owned the Alaska Fishing News?

A. Sidney Charles, my father. [115]

Q. And how long were you there? Do you re-

member what year you went there?

A. Frankly, no; but it was, I think, about 1940.

or '39— '40, around there.
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Q. And you have been there continuously sine

A. Yes.

Q. Now, how often was the paper publishe

What paper did you publish then ?

A. The Alaska Fishing News, and at that tii

it was a tri-weekly. That was three times a week

was published.

Q. Now, where did you get your news service i

tlie Alaska Fishing News?

A. We got it from the United Press throu

what they call a pony service, and a pony service

one that they send through the telegram office in

—well, it comes in a reduced form. I mean, y
have to fill it in, and it comes by telegram; is wt

it was.

Q. Now, did you have the United Press Servi

several years prior to September, 1945 ?

A. I believe we had it three years.

Q. And was it satisfactory?

A. Yes; at that time I considered it satisfactoi

Q. And you are familiar vsith the \y\)Q of ne^

they were sending you at that time?

A. Yes. [116]

Q. And wh(^n you—then you are familiar wi

the contract which is the subject of this lawsu

which went into effect in Septeml)er, T believe, 19^

somewhere around there? A. Yes, I am.

Q. Now, that contract refers to a news repo:

AVhat did you undei'staiul was to bc^ the nature

the news report with reference to the I'eports y<

had previously received from the United Press?
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A. Well, I felt the nature of that report, from
what we had received three times a week, that natu-

rally it would be a much fuller report, much more

detail, and so forth, and, first that it would be re-

gional news or Alaska, which we always specified,

that we would probably get, concentrate on Alaska

;

next would be your Pacific Northwest; and third

would be Washington News; and then your fourth

would be world new^s.

Q. Now, your understanding was that you would

get that type of service under this contract ?

A. We felt definitely that they would concentrate

on Alaska, Pacific Northwest and Washington.

Q. And was your understanding based on your

previous experience with them?

A. I would say it was.

Q. Now, you began to take this service in 1945;

did you [117] continue the tri-weekly paper then or

did you go to a daily?

A. We went to a daily shortly after we signed

up, I believe, for the teletype man, and shortly after

that, I don't remember just how many months, we

went into a daily newspaper.

Q. I think one of the depositions here mentioned

that the contract was dated September 1, 1945, and

that you actually began the service on October 3,

1945. A. That would be about right.

Q. That would be about the time you went to

the daily? A. Yes.

Q. Then you took the service then by teletype

v;hen you inaugurated the daily ? A. Yes, sir.



106 United Press Associations, etc.

(Testimony of Paul S. Charles.)

Q. Now, who owned the Alaska Fishing News ;

the time that this contract was entered into*?

A. In 1945?

Q. Yes.

A. Well, Sid actually owned the Daily Nev

until such time as we made it into a stock corpor;

tion; he was the sole owner, I would say.

Q. He was the sole owner?

A. That is right.

Q. That is your father? [118] A. Yes.

Q. He is quite an old man, isn't he?

A. Well, he is eighty-one.

Q. And what is his condition of health?

A. Well, it isn't—he can't climb any stairs {

the present time, and he has had two or three heai

attacks, and that is one reason he is not up hei

today.

Q. Now, then you say you formed a corporatioi

Do you remember when that was?

A. The date? I don't know the exact date.

Q. Let me ask you this. Did you continue tal

ing the news from the United Press as the Alast

Fishing News until you formed the corporation?

A. We did.

Q. Now, what was the name of the corporatio

that succeeded to the Alaska Fishing News?

A. The Pioneer Printing Company.

Q. Now, I will hand you executed articles of ii

corporation dated April 2, 1948, and ask what thi

is; is that the articles?

A. That is the articles of incorporation
;
yes, si
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Q. That is the executed articles!

A. Yes, sir.

Mr. Faulkner : We would offer that. (Handing

proposed exhibit to Mr. Dimond.) [119]

The Court: It may be admitted.

Mr. Faulkner : Defendants' Exhibit C—no—B.
The Clerk: B.

Mr. Faulkner : I don 't know whether this should

go to the jury now.

The Court: You can suit yourself.

Mr. Faulkner: I will pass it around. I don't

want to read it.

The Court : I think, if you want them to read it,

we will have to suspend.

Mr. Faulkner: No, I wouldn't want them to

read it. Perhaps it would be better to file it.

The Court: Well, you can read it in argument.

Mr. Faulkner: I don't think the jury has much

to do with it anyhow. This is on the question of the

first or third affirmative defense—I have forgotten

which.

Q. (By Mr. Faulkner) : Now, Mr. Charles, at

the time that you formed the corporation, the Pio-

neer Printing Company, one of the defendants here,

did you transfer to that comi3any the property for-

merly belonging to your father and operated as the

Alaska Fishing News'? A. Yes, sir.

Q. I will hand you a bill of sale and ask you if

that was the transfer that was made at the time ?

A. Yes, sir. [120]
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Mr. Faulkner: We will offer that. (Handing

proposed exhibit to Mr. Dimond.)

Mr. Dimond : I have no objection.

Mr. Faulkner: Defendants' Exhibit C.

The Clerk : C—that is right.

Q. (By Mr. Faulkner) : Now, Mr. Charles, tha

bill of sale is signed by yourself and your fathe:

and your wife? A. That is right.

Q. Did you own an interest in the partnership a

the time you signed the bill of sale, or why was i

that your signatures were on there?

A. Well, actually, there would be no indicatioi

that I ever owned anything in the Alaska Fishini

News, although I had put money into it, and it wai

considered, I mean, that I did own a part, or sup

posedly, but actually it never showed that I owne(

any of the Alaska Fishing News.

Q. Now, when you formed the corporation, an

you familiar with the way that the stock was issued

generally familiar with it ?

A. Well, generally, yes. I think that Perry Hil

leary held $10,000.00 worth ; Robert DeArmond hek

$3,500.00 worth ; I only held one share in the corpo

ration, I believe, and other stock had never beei

issued to me; and T think Sid has one share in tlK

cory)oration.

Q. And what was the par value of the [121'

shares A. $100.00, I believe.

Q. I will hand you Minutes of First Meeting o

Stockholders, or what i3urports to be, and ask you i

that is correct? A. Yes, sir.
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Mr. Faulkner: We will offer that. (Handing

proposed exhibit to Mr. Dimond.)

Mr. Dimond: No objection.

Mr. Faulkner: Defendants' Exhibit D.

The Clerk: Exhibit D.

Q. (By Mr. Faulkner) : Now, you say that the

only certificates of stock issued to date in the corpo-

ration were to Robert DeAnnond, Perry Hilleary,

and who else?

A. Pat Charles, my wife, and T, and Sid; and

Marie Flood now has stock.

Q. Now, has any stock actually been issued to you

or your wife or your father?

A. I believe just one share.

Q. One share so far. Now, T will asl: you if

these are the, what I am handing you, are the stock

certificate stubs of the stock that has been issued ?

A. DeArmond, Hilleary, and Mrs. Flood.

Q. Now, these stock certificates begin at No. 5.

What about Nos. 1, 2, 3, and 4; have they ever been

issued? A. No.

Q. That would be your father's, yours and your

wife's ? [122] A. That is right.

Mr. Faulkner: We will offer these. (Handing

proposed exhibit to Mr. Dimond.) This will be De-

fendants' Exhibit E.

The Clerk: E.

Q. (By Mr. Faulkner) : Now, Mr. Charles, I

will ask you this question. This contract that United

Press sues upon has a provision in it that the Alaska

Fishing New^s will guarantee that the contract will
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hv carried out b}^ the successor. I will read you this

''In the event of sale, transfer"—I am reading fron

the contract, Paragraph 8—"In the event of the

sale, transfer or consolidation of the aforesaid news

paper property of the Publisher, the Publishei

hereby guarantees that his successor or assignee wi!

fulfill the terms and conditions herein contained foi

the full life of this agreement."

Now, was there any document ever signed oi

anything ever done to bring that to the knowledge

of the corporation, except what you and your fathei

knew about if? A. I don't believe there was

Q. Now, was that ever brought to the knowledge

of the chief stockholders, Perry Hilleary and Rob

ert DeArmond? A. No.

Q. Did they have anything to do with it?

A. No; no, I don't think they had anything t(

do with the press service whatsoever. [123]

Q. Was there ever anything done aliout theii

assuming this contract? A. No.

Q. Except that you and your father continuec

on there to manage the paper, of course?

A. That is correct.

Q. And you continued the news service with thf

United Press; that is right, is it?

A. That is correct.

Q. As far as the other stockholders are con-

cerned and the official re^cords of the company

there is no indication that there was ever any as-

sumption of this contract by the corporation?

A. No, sir.
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Q. Now, let's go back to the contract, to the

service furnished under it. Did you have some
trouble with United Press over this contract, over

the service they were furnishing you ?

A. Yes; we have had trouble over the servic(\

and we have made numerous complaints to them,

and constantly we sent telegrams to them, and
over stories that we were scooped on day in and

day out and that came out of Washington, D. C,
and out of the Pacitic Noi-thwest, and constantly

we had one complaint after the other, and my
father used to go down and file a telegram every

second or third night [124] to the Seattle office of

Harry Carlson asking for them to get on the ball

and quit getting scooped, and he would name the

stories and so forth, and it was such as the pulp

mill we were scooped on here, and we had in-

formed them at times to kee]) a check on that and

on the Indian Affairs and different things, and

then constantly they would make alibis. Well, the

newspaper can't exist on alibis by a press service,

and this thing has been going on, and Governor

Gruening made a complaint about the way they

handled a story about him and the Governors'

Conference. They mentioned everything in the

Governors' Conference, and we had a copy sent

to us of the letter, and they mentioned everything

in the Governors' Conference, including statehood

for Hawaii, which was a unanimous resolution by

the o'overnors for statehood for Hawaii and Alaska,
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but Alaska was left entirely out. Well, I mean,

they are furnishing an Alaska service. You would

think they would include that.

Q. Well, now, just a minute.

Mr. Faulkner: I will state to the Court that I

will connect all this up by exhibits. I am just ask-

ing him to state generally now what is the nature

of the things.

Q. (By Mr. Faulkner) Now, you have referred

here to a news item that w^as sent you by the United

Press on a Governors' Conference? [125]

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And what was done at that Governors' Con-

ference; do you remember"?

A. Well, one thing they did was they did pass

this resolution for statehood unanimously for Ha-

waii and Alaska, but the UP story came over

with a stoi'y about the western governors and even

mentioned—well, let me see if I can recollect that

story—it even mentioned fertilizer at the start,

but at the very bottom it said other developments

and thc^n it mentioned statehood for Hawaii, but

nothing for Alaska.

Q. Now, did tlie Associated Press carry the full

news on thaf? A. Yes, it did.

Q. Did the Governor of Alaska complain about

that? A. Yes, he did.

Q. And you have a copy in your files of the let-

ter he sent the United Press? A. Yes.

Mr. Faulkner: I believe the ITnited Press, your

Honor— I made a request for admission of the
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original letter, and they said that they couldn't

find it. Now, I will offer now a copy of that letter

which we have here.

Mr. Dimond: What is the date of that letter?

Mr. Faulkner: It is April 29, 1948. It is in

your demand there. [126]

Mr. Dimond: If the Court please, I would like

to interrupt just a moment and obieet to the intro-

duction in evidence, either by way of exhibit or

testimony of Mr. Charles, of any instances of pur-

ported poor ser^ace that occurred prior at least to

the modification of the agreement entered into on

February 21, 1950, or even the automatic renewal

date of the contract which went into effect on

October 3, 1953, under the terms of the contract. I

think that the law is that in a case of this kind

that, assuming that these cases that Mr. Charles

testified about were breaches by the plaintiti, Avhich

we don't think they were, that they have waived

those by continuing to accept ser^dce under the con-

tract subsequent to that time by paying the rates

and so forth, and I tliink that that can be estab-

lished, your Honor. I think that these things clutter

up the record and they are not competent evidence.

The Court : That might be true if the defendants

were counterclaiming as a result of such breaches,

if they were breaches, or unsatisfactory service,

but all that this evidence is being put in for is for

its evidentiary value. In other words, if the de-

fendants were basing a counterclaim on it, then

the question of waiver would arise, but, since this
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is merely introduced or offered for its evidentiary

value, this objection that you make is not available

to you, and, ])articularly since the relationship of

the parties leading up to the breach is relevant

and material, wliy, the objection [127] will have to

be overruled.

Mr. Faulkner: Your Honor, I might state—this

might have application to something else—but this

is a very drastic contract drawn by the plaintiff, a

printed form, and it extends for a long period of

years, and we couldn't very w^ell come in and termi-

nate it because of one breach, but I want to show

that these were these breaches of service which con-

tinued over a period of years and we kept on going

until we just had to terminate the contract, so that

is the evidence that I expect to put in, and this is

just a y:)art of it.

Q. (By Mr. Faulkner): I will ask you, Mr.

Charles, if that is a copy of the complaint that

Governor Gruening sent to the United Press

Service ? A. Yes.

Mr. Faulkner : You have this ?

Mr. Dimond: Yes.

Mr. Faulkner: We will offer this in evidence.

The Court: If there is no objection, it may be

admitted.

(Marked Pefendants' Exhibit No. F.)

Mr. Faulkner: T would like to read this veiy

brieflv to the jury at this time. This is dated:
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"Room 6412, Interior Building-, Wasliino-ton, D. C,
April 29, 1948. Mr. Hugh Baillie, President, United

Press Association, New York, New York. Deai' Mr.

Baillie: [128]

"I would like to call your attention to the dis-

parity between the AP and the UP stories out of

Sacramento on the matter of the Statehood resolu-

tion. The matter is of some importance to me and

naturally of considerable interest to Alaska. The

resolution which I introduced and which was passed

unanimously by the governors, copy enclosed, urged

action equally at this session of Congress in behalf

of Statehood for both territories. You will note that

the UP story sent to Alaska for some unaccountable

reason left Alaska out of the story and merely

mentioned Hawaii.

"You can understand my feeling, I think, that

the readers of the UP papers in Alaska were de-

prived of what to them would be the item of

greatest interest. I would appreciate knowing what

your reaction is and what the reason for the corre-

spondent's deletion of mention of Alaska in his

dispatch to Alaska. The UP clipping is from the

Ketchikan Daily News; that AP clipping is from

the Honolulu Star Bulletin. Sincerely yours, Ernest

Gruening. Governor."

Q. (By Mr. Faulkner) : Now, Mr. Charles

Mr. Faulkner: I have various new^spaper clip-

pings here which I want to introduce by another

witness, your Honor, but I want to ask Mr. Charles

generally.
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Q. (By Mr. Faulkner) : Now, you said various

complaints v/ere [129] sent to the United Press

over a period of years, was if? A. Yes.

Q. And you had letters back and forth from

them? A. That is correct.

Q. Where would this correspondence be—with

various offices?

A. Well, it would be mostly with your Seattle

bureau.

Q. Seattle bureau?

A. Seattle bvireau manager: because that is

where it comes from.

Q. Who was in charge there durin;": the periods

of this correspondence?

A. Well, Harry Carlson was probably there the

lono-est, and ther'^ were various managers; therp

were some there that I didn't know; but I did know

Harry Carlson, and he was there for a considerable

period.

Q. Did you know Mr. Green?

A. Yes, I knew Mr. Green.

Q. Now, Mr. Charles, they mention various rate

increases. This contract calls for $38.17 a week for

the news service plus, of course, your paying the

cost of the telegraph tolls and agreed to pay the

increases in the various costs that they had in

Seattle; is that right? A. That is right.

Q. And those were detailed in the deposition

here of Mr. Molander? [130]

A. That is correct.

Q. They increased from time to time so that you

>
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paid in addition to $38.17 a week the sum mentioned

by Mr. Molander? A. That is right.

Q. That too. And that was all paid in full up to

the time you cancelled the contract ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. You owTd them nothing?

A. That is right.

Q. Now, going back to the service, in the fall

of 1953, just a short time before this contract was

cancelled, did you have some special difficulty about

Alaska news, especially Juneau news ?

A. Yes, sir. I think the final thing that decided

us to quit the Ignited Press \vas at the time they

hired a correspondent in Juneau, George Sundborg,

who acted as a correspondent for the Ketchikan,

Alaska, Chronicle. He sent them news stories of

considerable im])ortance and never sent a word, ap-

parently, to the Ignited Press, because we never

received anything from the United Press on the

things that were happening in Juneau, and they

were of prime importance to the people in the

Ten4tory.

Q. Now, what the United Press did then was to

hire as their agent a correspondent in Alaska, a

man who was a [131] correspondent of another

paper to whom he gave priority; is that right?

A. That is right.

Q. That other paper happened to be your rival ?

A. That is right.

Q. And you have a good many instances of

thino-s that occurred there during that period?



118 Vuited Press Associations, etc,

(Testimony of Paul S. Charles.)

A. Yes.

Q. Which will be introduced by another witness'?

A. That is right.

Q. Now, that occurred in the late months of 1953,

after the middle of the summer *?

A. It occurred
;
yes, sir. We had to give up mak-

ing any further protest to the UP because they

paid no attention to us whatsoever; neither did

they improve their service.

Q. Now, in November, 1953, did you send a

letter to them stating that on account of these A^ari-

ous things you werp cancelling the contract?

A. I believe Mrs. Flood would be able to answer

that. I told her previously to that that I felt that

she should, when the time came for the notification,

to notify them that we wanted to cancel our con-

tract.

Q. And what did you do then—I mean, in the

way of getting news service?

A. I had contacted the AP and talked with Mr.

Hutchison and [132] with their other representa-

tive, the bureau manager—T don't recall his name

now—and arranged for service from the AP, and

then I did make a trip to San Francisco

Q. First, why did you make that arrangement

with the AP?
A. Because we weren't getting the news cover-

age through ITP. it was a poor service.

Q. And then you continued with the UP and had

to have them both?
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A. That is right; although, previously, I will

say this—two and a half years ago, to overcome

the handicap of UP, I put in a Scanagraver, which

runs us normally about $600.00 a month, to pay the

lease on this, the operator's cost and the plastics

involved and keep a photographer on that.

Q. That was done to

A. That was to offset the poor coverage so we
could stay in business. That is what it meant.

Q. That cost y')U about $600.00 a month?

A. That is right.

Q. Then you said you went to San Francisco, so

will you tell the jury about that trip to San Fran-

cisco '?

A. Yes, sir. I went down to see Mr. Green

about the contract.

Q. Who is Mr. Green ? Well I think he told you.

A. He was in the San Francisco office. And we

talked about [133] this contract. I told him that,

frankly, that I didn't believe his news service was

good. I mean, we talked about the news service. We
also talked about the price, and, while in his deposi-

tion he says that it was $125.00, that I stated a

figure, well, I think Mr. Green is mistaken on that,

because at the time I didn't state any figure.

Q. You mean—now, just a minute—wasn't it

$135.00?

A. No; I think it was $125.00 that he said. But

what I did tell him was that, due to the fact that

we had this contract with him, that F would go

ahead and take the UP on the same basis that I
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would take the AP and pay him just the same and

sign the same kind of a contract for the same

number of years, and that is what I said. I mean,

basically, if he wanted to go, I mean, he would have

to—in other words, what I said was that the news

service wasn't such, that we just weren't getting

the news through the UP; we had to take AP.

Q. You told him that you would get the same

news service through UP'?

A. That is right; I v/ould take it, and he would

have to compete on the same basis that AP would

and according to the figures.

Q. Well, now, did you tell Jiim at tliat time about

their agent in Juneau'? [134]

A. Yes, sir. I told liim about Mr. Sundborg and

I told liim that politically Sundborg was very op-

posed to us.

Q. That wouldn't have anything to do with it.

But you told him that he wasn't giving the UP
news ?

A. That is right. T shovred him instances of it.

I took newspapers down there.

(Whereupon, Court recessed for five minutes,

reconvening as per recess, with all parties pres-

ent as heretofore and the jury all present in the

box; whereupon the witness Paul S. Charles

resumed the witness stand, and the Direct Ex-

amination by Mr. Faulkner was continued ns

follows.)

Q. Mr. ^ Varies, when you went down to see Mr.
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G-reen in San Francisco in January or Februaiy,

1954, did you at that time have any signed contract

with the Associated Press"? A. No, sir.

Q. You were taking the service and you hadn't

at that time signed any contract with them ?

A. No, we hadn't.

Q. Now, what did you tell Mr. Green about his

service ?

A. I told Mr. Green that, if he wanted us to con-

tinue, he would have to give us as good ser\ace as

the Associated Press and compete with the Associ-

ated Press on tliat basis and give us a good service.

Q. And it was Mr. Green, was it, who mentioned

the $135.00 a month: he said that you [135]

wanted

A. The figure—T can't see where the figure of

one hundred and twenty-five or one hundred and

thirty-five entered into it, because at that time, as

far as I know, we talked figures, and it is true that

he said that he would—the rest of his deposition, I

remember him saying that he would reduce the rate

in so many years and so many years, and my feeling

was that we couldn't be tied to a service unless they

could give us a service over that period of years, and

it wasn 't a question of costs. Of course, he said, too,

there one thing that I think he misunderstood. He

mentioned a statement there that we had lost money.

Well, I told him the last couple of years, since we

had put in the Scanagraver and gained circulation,

we hadn't been losing money.

Mr. Faulkner: I think that is all.
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Cross-Examination

By Mr. Dimond:

Q. With relation to this corporation, Mr.

Charles, did you say that there was no written con-

tract between you, your father and your wife and

the corporation as to the assumption of the duties

under the contract ? You never had a written agree-

ment that the corporation would take over the per-

formance of the newsi^aper under the contract?

A. No, sir; not that I know of. [136]

Q. Did you check all the minutes of the corpora-

tion meetings to see if anything was ever said on

that point % A. No, I have not.

Q. You haven't checked all those? A. No.

Q. Do you know whether the corporation direc-

tors have had regular meetings?

A. Well, we have had meetings. I wouldn't say

regular meetings though.

Q. Are you an officer of the corporation ?

A. Yes, sir. I am the chairman or president.

Q. But the corporation, the Pioneer Printing

Company, has, since it succeeded to the Alaska Fish-

ing News in '48, I think, or '49, it continued to re-

ceive the United Press news report?

A. That is correct.

Q. And published it in its paper, the Ketchikan

News? A. That is right.

Q. A]id then paid for tliat service?

A. That is right.
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Q. I think you stated that your father, Sid

Charles, was the sole owner of the Alaska Fishing

News. Now, in the complaint in this action we al-

leged that it was owned by a partnership consisting

of Sid Charles and you and your wife, and the

answer to the complaint admitted those [137] alle-

gations, admitting it was a partnership.

A. Well, it may have been considered a part-

nership, but I don't remember of any papers being

drawn u]) whereby that my wife and I had aetuall}'

legally any interest in the Alaska Fishing News.

Naturally, I went over there ; I put in money in the

Alaska Fishing News; and we started—I bought

machinery and things to print the Alaska Sports-

man Magazine at that time.

Q. You cited many cases where you were scooped

by your opposition and you assert that it was be-

cause of poor coverage by United Press. Now, do

you know exactly when those dates occurred—on

the dates those occurred*?

A. No; on dates T wouldn't know generally. T

mean, it is something over a period of time, and I

believe that our news editor, who will a])pear, will

give you a better ])icture of that. Mr. Brice, who is

the city editor, he handles the news.

Q. Were you aware that there was a clause in

this i)rinted contract that provided for termina-

tion of giving notice at a certain time?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. You said that in your talk with Mr. Green, I

think in February or January, 1954, that you had
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not signed Vvitli Associated Press, and he said in his

deposition that you told him you had signed a con-

tract with them. Which is [138] correct—had you

or had you not signed a contract?

A, I had not signed a contract at that time. I

told him we were going to sign a contract unless we

got better service.

Q. You said you worked on the Chronicle for

a while? A. Yes, sir.

Q. What years were they?

A. That was from 1927 up till about—1926, when

I was going to high school, I worked there at nights

on the Chronicle and then went on days in 1927 and

continued on until such time as I moved over to the

Alaska Fishing News.

Q. What was your capacity on the Chronicle?

A. Linotype operator.

Q. What have been your positions and capacities

since you worked on the Ketchikan News ?

A. Well, I am Linotype operator, pressman, gen-

eral manager, floor sweeper, anything you can name.

Q. You sort of run the whole show?

A. Yes.

Q. When you received—you had a teletype ma-

chine^ wlien United Press was sending the news

report? A. That is correct.

Q. Was it your job, or was it somebody else's, to

edit those news reports and decide which would go

in the paper and which wouldn't? [139]

A. That is up to Mr. Brice, our city editor.

Q. You didn't do that? A. No, sir.
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Q. You spoke about the United Press story re-

lating to statehood for Alaska which Governor

Gruening complained about in his letter to the

United Press ? A. That is right.

Q. Do 3^ou by any chance have the original

transmitted copy of that story or do you have the

original transmission on that date ?

A. I believe we have.

Q. To find out whether that story could have

been transmitted and just left out of the paper? Is

that possible?

A. Well, I don't know. I couldn't state as to

that.

Q. Do you preserve youi* transmissions that you

receive, these long yellow sheets? A. Oh, no.

Q. You don't preserve them?

A. No. They go to the Linotype operator. Nor-

mally, they are edited and then they will go to the

Linotype operator and from day to day they are

thrown in the wastepaper basket.

Q. As I understand this, what happens is that

Mr. Brice tears off the story he wants and sends

it to the Linotype operator? [140]

A. That is correct.

Q. What is torn off is not saved?

A. No, sir.

Q. That is th]'own away?

A. That is right. He wi'ites the eds on them and

then sends them out and when we get through with

them we throw them away.

Q. There is no way to check back aiid see. if
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on a pai-ficular date the story appeared in your

paper, whether or not it had actually been trans-

mitted or just edited out of the newspaper?

A. That is correct.

Q. I don't understand how this, what this Scana-

graver thing has to do with the United Press serv-

ice, how it offsets it.

A. It offsets it from the standpoint of local pic-

tures. The Scanagraver is something that takes local

pictures. It is a circulation builder, and in order to

build circulation, do something, I had to put

that in.

Q. Do you still use thaf? A. Yes, sir.

Q. You now receive Associated Press service?

A. That is correct.

Q. Have you made any specific complaint your-

self in the last, oh, say, in 1951, or 1952, 1953, about

the type of [141] service?

A. Well, I think I have made various com-

plaints. Of course, Sid makes most of them. I be-

lieve that we did make a trip. Now, what years, I

couldn't say exactly. We have talked to UP rej)-

resentatives and talked to any of them that come

tlirough here, and my constant complaint was their

news service. I mean, we just weren't getting Alaska

news, and we had constant promises, one after the

other, alibis, and everything, that they were going

to improve their service, constantly in Alaska. They

were going to send us Alaska news. T specified that

we are an Alaska paper and Avant Alaska news.
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Q. Well, can you cite the instances where prom-

ises were made in specific cases ?

A. Well, no, frankly, I can't.

Mr. Faulkner: Well, I promised the Court that

the questions we asked this witness were just gen-

eral and that we would follow it up by introducing

these letters and also the replies, and we will do

that.

Mr. Dimond : That is all, Mr. Charles.

(Witness excused.) [142]

MARIE J. FLOOD
called as a witness on behalf of the defendants,

being first duly sworn, testified as follows:

Direct Examination

By Mr. Faulkner:

Q. Mrs. Flood, would you please state your

name? A. Marie J. Flood.

Q. And where do you live, Mrs. Flood?

A. Ketchikan.

Q. What is your business, or you work where?

A. I am business manager for the Ketchikan

Daily News.

Q. How long have you been with the Daily

News? A. Eight years.

Q. Do you own some stock in the Pioneer Print-

ing Comi)any which publishes the Daily News?

A. I do, sir.

Q. Mrs. Flood, are yoii familiar with some iH)V-
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respondenee between the Daibr News and the United

Press regarding the service"? A. Yes, I am.

Q. I will hand you a letter here dated November

14, 1953. Now, this is a copy of a letter, Mrs. Flood,

but are you familiar with that copy ?

A. Yes; T wrote the letter.

Q. That is not an original but

A. That is my copy of it. [143]

Q. That is taken from your files'?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. On the letterhead of the Daily News?

Mr. Faulkner: Now, your Honor, this is a letter

we queried the plaintiif about and they said they

couldn't find it. (Handing document to Mr. I)i-

mond.) I think Mr. Molander testified about it.

Mr. Diraond: Well, our client has ncA^er seen it

before.

Mr. Faulkner: Well, I think the testimony of

the ]:)laintiff is that they received a copy of this

letter of November 14th later on but did not receive

the original at that date. That is the testimony.

The Court: Well, I don't think it is any objec-

tion anyhow to the offer.

Mr. Dimond : Not if she identifies it.

Q. (By Mr. Faulkner): This letter attached

to defendants' motion for admission of documents

under Rule 36, the letter dated November 14, 1953,

there, is a copy of a letter you wrote? A. Yes.

Q. And did you mail that to the United Press?

A. I did, sir.

Q. To New York, to their headquarters?

m
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A. Yes. [144]

Q. And you mailed it on the date given in the

letter? A. On November 14th.

Mr. Faulkner: Now, if the Court please, while

this witness is on the stand—all of these other let-

ters in this bundle here are admitted and that one

is approved, so I would like to introduce—I think

that these can be introduced all together—defend-

ants' motion for admission of documents and the

reply, and the documents are attached. Now, some

of these are very vital and instead of skipping over

them I would like to read them to the jury.

The Court: Do you want to offer them first?

Mr. Faulkner: Yes; I want to offer them and

then

The Court: Well, as I understand it, every one

of them has been admitted?

Ml'. Faulkner: Yes; except that one. Isn't that

right, John?

Mr. Dimond: If the Court please, I think at

the time we answered this request for admissions

the plaintiff couldn't find the original of the letter

dated August 26, 1949, and recently, since that time,

I received a carbon copy of the letter from some of

the parties in this case saying they located the letter,

so I won't object to it, and we will now admit that

the letter is genuine and was received.

The Court: Well, the only letter then that you

haven't admitted is this one of November [145]

14th?
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Mr. Dimond: That is the only one that we have

not and vrill not admit.

The Court : I was just thinking that, since it may

become necessary to instruct the jury on that, per-

haps there should be some proof of the mailino- and

the affixing of postage and return address.

Mr. Faulkner: I asked her if she sent it, if she

mailed it the same day to the address of the United

Press in New York, which is on the letter, and that

is as far as we can go, and then

The Court : Well, my recollection is that the pre-

sumption that a letter of that kind has been received

attaches only upon a showing that there was post-

age affixed and there was a return address and it

was not returned.

Q. (By Mr. Faulkner) : Well, is that so, Mrs.

Flood?

A. Yes. It was put in a Ketchikan Daily News

envelope which holds our return address. It was not

returned.

Q. It was not returned. And it had postage on it ?

A. Yes, sir.

Mr. Faulkner: I would like now to otfer this as

Defendants' Exhibit No. G.

The Clerk : G.

Mr. Faulkner: And I would like to read those

letters.

The Court : Are you asking that they be marked

as one exhibit? [146]

Mr. Faulkner : Yes ; I think so, because
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The Court: Very well.

Mr. Faulkner: We have the admission there of

them, which I think is important. We could take

them out and just put the letters in that are at-

tached to this.

The Court : They may be admitted.

The Clerk: That group is marked Defendants'

Exhibit G.

Mr. Faulkner: Now, if the Court please. I wonld

like to read some of these to the jury. Here is a

letter to Mr. Jesse Bogiie, Chicago, and Mr. Roger

Johnson, Portland, dated Seattle, Washington,

March 2, 1948, from Harry Carlson with a copy to

Mr. Charles:

"Dear Cents:

"This is another ])eriodic but highly important

request to remind your wire tilers that stories from

Washington slugged for AR must move before our

Alaska file deadline of 11:30 a.m. (PST) and if

they come from WA after that deadline, moved as

rapidl.y as possible so that we can cable it on an

extra-time basis to our Ketchikan, Alaska, client.

"Our pioneer Alaska client, the Ketchikan Daily

News, has been beaten badly twice in the last week,

the AP-served opposition paper having bannered

WA stories of Alaska significance while the News

had not a word. Editor Sid D. Charles has the

patience of Job, but [147] sometimes is justified in

registering a vigorous complaint.

"We relayed his first complaint to Rosemary
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Mullany in Washington and her letter in answei'

certainly excuses her of most of the blame in for-

getting the News. Some of that blame must be as-

sumed by us right here in Seattle for not reminding

her of what's coming up so that she can watch it.

And I believe another fault may lie in delay of this

news on wire filer desks.

'^For instance, on March 1, a story datelined

WA"
I think that is Washington.

"qoting C. M. Granger, assistant chief of the

Agriculture Department's Forest Service, telling a

Senate Interior subcommittee that Congress shoulcl

extinguish any Indian rights to Alaska forest pre-

serves, came too late to AR for the Ketchikan file.

The first take was cleared from Portland relay at

12 :32 p.m., and the cleanup was cleared at 2 :28 p.m.

(both times PST).

"It could well be that both of these takes moved

in record time from WA, but it is just as possible

that the entire story moved from WA in plenty of

time to be relayed through HX and JO for our

Ketchikan file. I would appreciate it if you would

check into this matter and if the latter is true, re-

mind your wire filers io ])lace a ]:>riority on AR-

shigged stories of this nature even if [148] there is

littl(^ interest in the states generally. Usually, these

stories gain ])rominent play in Seattle newspapers

because of the higli interest in Alaska hereabouts.

So that should lend weight to the necessity of fast

i7i()vement.

>
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"We had queried for this store at the request of

the News, and although we tinally got it, he was
shut out again by the opposition. As far as he knew,

according to his cable, 'again query absolutely

ignored coverage Butler Senate hearing. Why op-

position today bannerlined Granger's testimony vs.

Alaska Indian reservations ? Should I query Wash-
ington UP direct? Am greatly puzzled why can't I

get action this important source Alaska News.'

''We have Rosemarie's assurance that if she is

queried in advance, she will come through for us.

Now all we need is fast transmission of her story to

Seattle so we can shoot it to Ketchikan and y)revent

any further shut-outs of our best customer in

Alaska by the opposition.

"Thanks for anything you can do. Best regards,

Harry Carlson.

"P.S.: Here's why T think some of these stories

are dying on the relay desks: Rosemarie writes that

on Feb. 18, at 1:39 p.m. (EST) a story slugged

WA108 moved on a ]mlp bid that we had queried

for in response to a [149] query from Mr. Charles

in Ketchikan. It was slugged for (AR) at the bot-

tom, she writes. But I fail to see it any place in the

day's file here. That story was spiked some ])lac(\

It hurts worse when you learn that after queries

moved from Ketchikan to Seattle to Washington

and tli(^ jol) was done to have it die en route back

to Ketchikan.''

That is Harry Carlson. And here is one dated

January 29, 1949.
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''United Press Association, News Building, New
York, New York. Attention: Carl B. Molander.

Dear Mr. Molander:

"We have received your communication of Janu-

aiy 14, and although if we continue UP, we have

no option but to pay the extra toll, we do wish to

register a complaint. It hardly seems fair to be

asked to pay more for poorer service from your

Washington, D. C, Alaska News Service than ever

before. Since UP has been expanding in Alaska, one

would think the rates w^ould go down instead of up.

"In our opposition's issue of January 27 was an

article about Governor Gruening, Joseph N. Kehoe,

U. S. District Judge, Division Two; Frank C. Bing-

ham, IT. S. District Attorney for Division Two;

Antliony J. Dimond, District Judge for Division

Three; and Harry O. Arend, U. S. Attorney for

Division Four. In the same issue of the opposition

was a not so important article from [150] Wash-

ington, D. C, about 'Alaska May Escape a Shij)

Rate Boost.'"

That is from the News. There is a P.S. on that,

too.

"Time after time we have been scooped on im-

portant Alaska news from Washington.

"We are your oldest patron and booster in

Alaska, yet when you recently took in the Anchor-

age News, we took second place in getting our news

until we made a kick. And just this week, we found
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that radio UP was shoved ahead of us. When com-

niiinication is bad, with only one circuit, this throws

us behind.

''A little better service from AYashington, D. C,
would be much appreciated. Yours very truly, Sid

D. Charles."

Now, here is one the 26th of August, 1949, from

Mr. Charles to United Press Associations in Seattle.

Attention : Mr. Fred J. Green.

"We are in receipt of your letter of August 19th

with regard to the pro})Osed rate raise.

"We have asked Captain Major, in charge of the

Signal Corps office here, for clarification. It was

the first he had heard of it. He promised to write

his headquarters and let us know.

"When we get the straight of the matter, if as

represented, we shall go to the mat in a publicity

campaign. Meantime, we would like to get from you

some [151] Senators and Representatives in Con-

gress w^ho have UP affiliations and might help in a

campaign. There is no use going to our delegate.

"In fact, there seems to be a ])ossibi]ity that ]^o-

litical pro-Gruening forces may be trying to shut

the I^P from Alaska because the papers which take

the service are anti-Gruening.

"Frankly, in case the raise is made, we cannot

aiford to pay it. While on this subject we would

like to know if our serAdce and tliat of the Anchor-

age News is on the same channel and for the same

hour. As we understand it, the AP channel all their
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Alaska papers at the same time. The Chronicle, our

rival, for instance, gets one hour sei'vice in the

morning and one hour in the afternoon, gets twice

as much coverage as we do, and it costs them just

about half what it does us.

''We have been promised when you received any

new patrons in Alaska our rates would be adjusted

and lowered accordingly, but instead they have been

raised.

''We are willing to make a fight against the ap-

parent discrimination in favor of the AP against

the UP in Alaska, but we also want cooperation on

your part. Very truly yours, Sid D. Charles."

Here is one from the Daily News, December 27,

1949, dated at Ketchikan, to United Press Associa-

tion, General [152] Offices, News Building New
York. Attention, Carl B. Molander:

''Your teletype and press service is costing us

just twice the amount the Chronicle, the opposition

pa]:>er here, pays to Associated Press. They also get

twice the wordage, one hour in the morning and

one hour in the afternoon. We get one hour daily,

from 11 :00 a.m. to 12 :00 noon.

"In a letter dated September 4, 1945, your Mr.

Dan Bowerman said: 'As we added other clients in

Alaska, of course, we would prorate the operator

cost among them, so that the cost would decrease

to you.'

"On the contrary, you have added other patrons

and our costs have kept increasing.
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"On October 9, 1946, Mr. Bowerman, said, on ad-

vice from New York

:

" 'That the United Press share the operator ex-

pense with you, on an open basis for an indefinite

period of time, while we continue our efforts to line

up added clients to share the expense. Vfe simply

would reduce your billing by $25 per week and

absorb the costs ourselves. Then if we succeeded in

adding- one more client we would bill the $25 operat-

ing expense to him. If we added more than one, the

total expense would be split three or more ways,

bringing your figure down below $25.'

''Since that letter was written you have added

the [153] Anchorage News, besides, we understand,

some radio stations. We are told that the latest

radio station, KALA, at Sitka, channeled with the

same news and at the same hours as our news, has

been given a reduced combination rate. If that is

true, why shouldn't we receive the same benefit?

"We are perfectly willing to change our hour to

get on the same channel with Anchorage News in

order to cut costs.

"Frankly, we must cut costs. It just isn't in the

cards to pay twice as much for half the news which

our opponent gets here through the Associated

Press. Unless our rates can be adjusted co-opera-

tively and in combination with other UP patrons in

Alaska, we shall have to make some other arrange-

ments. Yours very truly, Sid D. Charles."

(Whereupon Court adjourned until 10:00

o'clock a.m., April 14, 1955, reconvening as per
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adjournment, with all parties present as here-

tofore, and the jury all present in the box;

whereupon the witness Marie J. Flood resumed

the witness stand, and the Direct Examination

by Mr. Faulkner was continued as follows.)

Mr. Faulkner: Is the Court ready to proceed?

The Court: Yes.

Mr. Faulkner: I was reading the letters which

were [154] admitted by the plaintiff. I will continue

v/ith the one of January 3, 1951, which was a letter

from Mr. Jack Bisco, United Press x\ssociations,

New York, to Sidney D. Charles, The Daily News,

Ketchikan:

"Dear Mr. Charles:

"The unusual increases in expense which the

United Press has had to bear in 1950 are without

precedent in our entire history—unmatched even by

the extraordinary costs of covering World War IT.

"The rising tide of big news from Korea and

other theaters of international conflict j^lus uncom-

mon activity on the news fronts at home have caused

a heavy drain on our resources, and the^e is no sign

of abatement in this surge of big evf^nts which nuist

be reported punctually and comprehensively.

"During the year just ])ast we absorbed the cost

of the constantly widening scope of world news

coverage while, at the same time, we met increased

labor costs and, more im])ortantly, faced up to a

five-week strike to prevent those costs from going
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even higher. We fought the strike through and
achieved the settlement which we believe had health-

ful effect on the industry as a whole.

"During all this time—through the strike, the

warfare abroad and its ramifications, and while

other labor costs were rising—we delayed exercising

our contractual right to assess. We undertook to

bear all [155] these extra costs ourselves and we
continued to absorb them through 1950.

' ^Now the time has come when we must adjust our

rates in order to meet the tasks before us. In ac-

cordance with the provisions of our agreements cov-

ering extraordinary costs, we are obliged to increase

the rates for United Press service by 10%, effective

with the week beginning January 7, 1951.

"We do this with confidence in your understand-

ing and co-operation and with our appreciation for

your support. Sincerely yours, Jack Bisco.''

Here is a letter from Sid D. Charles to United

Press Associations. iVttention: Mr. Bisco. 23rd of

January, 1951.

"Dear Mr. Bisco: We have given your letter of

Jaimary 3rd considerable thought and while we un-

derstand and s^-mpathize with your problem, we are

in the 'same boat.'

"Until such time as we are able to make other

arrangements, we must go along with you, but to

com])ensate for this raise in rates, w(^ must ask that

you cut down our wordage or time to half an hour

beginning immediately. Because of competition of

another daily, we cannot advance our prices to meet
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the rising costs of production, so must take this

means in keeping expenses down.

"In going over our contract and correspondence

witli [156] you, we find ourselves being bound for

a longer and longer period of time and for a sub-

stantially higher rate than we started out with,

which was to be reduced instead of raised v/hen

more customers were brought into the Association.

We would like at this time to come to an agreement

whereby the contract between the Ketchikan Daily

News and the United Press could be terminated by

either party on 60 days' notification. Very truly

yours, Sid D. Charles, Publisher."

And here is a letter from the Daily News. Oh, I

think I read that one. This is the one from Mrs.

Flood cancelling the contract, dated November 14,

1953. I think I read that to the jury yesterday. Oh,

here is one, 2/20/51. I thought this was the same

as the one I just read, from Sid Charles to United

Press Association, Seattle. Attention: Harry Carl-

son.

"Dear Harry: We appreciate your effort in try-

ing to work out a rate for us, but we do not wish

to involve ourselves in such a long term contract.

Therefore, we will acce])t the boost in rates proposed

in Mr. Bisco's letter of January 3rd.

"We are still anxious to put our contract for

service with you on a more definite termination

basis nnd would a])preciate your looking into the

matter. We have all other agreements for seiTic(^

II
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on a 60-day cancellation [157] basis. Very truly

yours, Sid D. Charles."

Then the one of November 14th from Mrs. Flood

saying that the contract was cancelled has already

been read, I believe. Now, here is a letter to Mr.

Belnap from Mrs. Flood dated the 14th of January,

1954. I believe this is the one to which Mr. Belnap

referred yesterday.

"Dear Mr. Belknap: I realize that we should

have notified you 6 months before contract renewal

vrhich is automatic. It is unfortunate that this was

not done but it does not change the fact that we wish

to cancel our service with United Press.

"We have found that we are able to get three

files of one hour and one half hour all before 12:00

noon at a cost less than that we are paying for, from

Ignited Prc^ss. Having two pa])ers in a town of 6,000

doesn't leave us much margin of profit—in fact, we

have been operating at a loss for the past seven

years. We must make every effort to cut our costs,

keep the quality of the paper above that of our op-

position and get the Alaska News first.

"On this last point, Mr. Charles had considerable

correspondence with Harry Carlson, formerly of the

Seattle Bureau, on the ])oor coverage we have gottc^n

in the past on Alaska News. We have been con-

sistently scooped on stories that are of interest to

our area by [158] the Chronicle that can-ies Asso-

ciated Press. In the ])ast we have made our own

arrangements with Bob DeArmond who acted as
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your stringer to get coverage on the Alaska Legis-

lature.

''In regard to the rates, we have protested each

new raise, with the exception of your last one which

began in May of this year and again raised the rates

$4.18 per week. When we began our contract with

you it was with the understanding that the rates

would be lowered when you were able to get more

members into the Association. I believe you have

added more members, but instead of reductions, we

have had raises totaling about $23.00 per week.

"I hope the above clarifys our reasons for can-

celing our agreement with you and you will discon-

tinue tiling anything for us beginning week of Janu-

ary 18th. Sincerely yours, M. J. Flood."

And here is a letter from Mr. Belnap to Mrs.

Flood dated January 18, 1954:

"Mrs. M. J. Flood, Ketchikan Daily News. P.O.

Box 79, Ketchikan, Alaska. Dear Mrs. Flood. Thank

you for your letter of January 14 sent in reply to

my telegram of January 13. In my telegram, I said

I had just received word from our New York office

regarding your recent letter directed there in which

you referred to a previous [159] letter of November

14, the original of which was never received in New
York.

''I also said I was perplexed by your reference to

cancellation since the agreement between us had

renewed a short time ago and a new term is now

in effect. In addition there is an extension of the
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term by the conditions of a modification to the

principal agreement made in February, 1950.

''Clause Eighth of the agreement between us

establishes machinery for the termination of that

agreement. Neither of us has ever entered a cancel-

lation against the agreement in conformity with the

provisions established in Clause Eighth, and the

agreement thus continues in full force and effect.

We cannot, therefore, discontinue service to you.

"I have taken the liberty of turning over to

Martin Heerwald, our Washington-Alaska news

manager, your comments on Alaska news coverage.

We have a continuing program to expand and im-

prove our service in every department, and your

comments will be helpful to him. Heerwald will be

in Alaska himself later this week, and I have asked

him to get in touch with you for a more detailed

discussion of these points.

"With respect to our rates, my records here show

that the incr(^ases you mentioned have been more

than [160] off'set by reductions which have totaled

nearly $50 per week during the past seven years.

The latest reduction, amounting to $20, was made

in February, 1950, and is still in effect. It seems to

me on the basis of the information I have here that

we have been very fair in the matter of rate re-

ductions in the past, making these in the face of

constantly mounting costs to us to produce our news

repoi-t. I 'm personally prepared to discuss the mat-

ter of rates with you further if you wish.

"We have always been proud to be on your team
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at Ketchikan, and I regret very mnch that a mis-

understanding has arisen with respect to our agree-

ment. It's my earnest hope that this letter \Yill help

to clarify the matter and that everything will

shortly be straightened out to our mutual satisfac-

tion.

"With warmest regards and good wishes, I am
cordially yours, Davdd F. Belnap."

Here is a letter from Mr. Charles to United Press

Associations in New York, dated the 22nd of Janu-

ary, 1954:

"On November 14th, 1953, we wrote your office

and again on January 14th, 1954, we wrote to Mr.

Dave Belknap of your Seattle office explaining that

the continued high cost of United Press service here

at Ketchikan makes such cost prohibitive to the

Ketchikan Daily News. The Daily News realizes

that, pursuant to its written contract, [161] notice

of cancellation should have been given at least six

months before the end of the five-year period

elapsed, or by March 1, 1953. While the Daily News

was aware of the date of Sept. 1st, 1953, as being

the end of the five-year period, it was not the inten-

tion to leave the contract renew automatically.

"If the Daily New^s is to continue to operate, the

cost must be reduced. We have cut every other cost

item possible and are still losing money. In order

to be able to continue with United Press Service,

we need twice the amount of the ])resent service for

the sanu^ price we are now paying. Our competition,

The Ketchikan Chronicle, is now receiving two



vs. Sidney Demi Charles, et ah, et'\ 145

(Testimony of Marie J. Flood.)

hours of press, service at slightly less than the cost

of one-hour service we are getting from United

Press.

''We have relied heavily upon promises from
United Press that United Press users would in-

crease in number in Alaska, thereby cutting the

cost. On the contrary, the users have not increased

appreciably and the price has steadily risen. This

should be an old story by this time.

"Surely, you can see the practical consequences

of insisting upon attempting to hold the Daily News
to the contract which, at one time was reasonable

as to cost, but which has become oppressive and

prohibitive to us [162] due to rising production and

labor costs.

"Your reply by return mail will be appreciated.

Very truly yours, vSid D. Charles, Publisher."

These are just copies, I think, of letters that I

have read already; yes.

Q. (By Mr. Faulkner): Now, Mrs. Flood, I

will ask you if—how long have you been with the

Daily News? A. Eight years.

Q. And in that time or most of that time did you

take this United Press service?

A. Yes, we did, sir.

Q. Did you typewrite letters for Mr. Sid

Charles'? A. Yes, I did.

Q. To the United Press Associations?

A. Yes.

Q. What were they? I mean, were they with

refei'ence to the service?
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A. I wrote all the letters.

Q. I mean, were they letters of complaint '^

A. Letters of complaint
;
yes, sir.

Q. And in addition to the letters, some of which

were introduced here, did you write any telegrams?

A. Yes; I took telegrams. Most of them we did

not keep copies of, but most of them were queries

for material that we needed. [163]

Q. And that you didn't get?

A. That we didn't get.

Q. You had to send telegrams?

A. Well, we called them queries asking for ma-

terial that we needed.

Q. Now, do you recall that period that you said

—there Avas some correspondence in here about it,

answering it, from Mr. Carlson—do you recall the

query you sent asking them to get the news from

Washington on the hearings on the Butler Bill and

on the aboriginal rights controversy and the pulp

bid; do you recall that?

A. I knew that they were sent, but I can't recall

whether I sent them or whether they were sent by

Mr. Charles.

Q. But those telegrams were sent?

A. Were sent out of our office.

Q. And it was in answer to the telegrams that

Mr. Carlson wrote the letter

A. Wrote the letter.

Q. that T read yesterday, quoting from Miss

Mullany? A. Yes.

Mr. Faulkner: Pardon me just a second, your

Honor. T think that is all.

A n
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Cross-Examination

By Mr. Dimond:

Q. Mrs. Flood, did you type up all of these let-

ters that [164] Mr. Faulkner has read that were
signed by Sid Charles? A. Most of them.

Q. Do you know of any other letters that you

wrote for Sid on the same subject matter?

A. I don't recall any.

Q. Do you know how many telegrams you sent

on queries?

A. I can't say how many. I have sent several in

the past eight years.

Q. You don't know exactly when they were sent?

A. No; I can't say.

Q. What was this Butler Bill, this query on the

Butler Bill? Do you know what that was about?

A. T can't recall offhand.

Q. You testified that you mailed the letter of

November 14, 1953? A. I did.

Q. Do you recall specifically placing the stamp

on the envelope and placing it in the mail slot?

A. I did.

Q. You do recall doing that. This is 1955. How
many letters do you ordinarily mail in a month, we

will say?

A. Well, probably about fifty; but that was a

very important letter to us, and I certainly remem-

ber sending it.

Q. You definitely recall having put that particu-

lar letter in the mail box up here at the Post [165]

Office ? A. Well, that is hard to say.
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Q. In other words, you are just saying that in

the usual course of business you would have

mailed it?

A. I Avould haA'e mailed it: yes, sir.

Q. Were you aware of the fact, Mrs. Flood, that

under the wording of the contract a notice of can-

cellation should have been sent by registered mail?

A. At the time I sent the letter, no ; but shortly

afterwards why I read the contract thoroughly and

found that I should have sent it by registered letter.

so the one I sent on January 14th I did send by

registered letter to be sure that was gotten and that

I would know that they had gotten it.

Q. But this letter of November 14th was not

sent by registered mail?

A. Was not sent by registered mail.

Mr. Dimond: That is all.

Redirect Examination

By Mr. Faulkner:

Q. Just a minute. Mr. Dimond asked you if you

recalled what the Butler Bill was. I might ask you

if that was not a bill for the election of a governor

of Alaska? Do you recall that now?

A. I don't, Mr. Faulkner. My end of the busi-

ness is the [166] business end, and I only hear these

things from Mr. Charles or from Mr. Brice, and T

know them only generally.

Q. But you knew that there was a query sent

there about that? A. Yes, T do.

Mr. Faulkner: I think that is all. [167]
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GENE BEIGE
called as a witness on behalf of the defendants,

being first duly sworn, testified as follows:

Direct Examination

By Mr. Faulkner:

Q. Will you please state your name, Mr. Brice?

A. Gene Brice.

Q. Where do you live? A. Ketchikan.

Q. And how long have you lived here?

A. Well over forty years.

Q. What is your business ? [173]

A. Managing editor of the Daily News.

Q. How long have you been working in such

capacity? A. Three and a half years.

Q. And how long have you been in the news-

paper business? A. Nearly twenty-five years.

Q. And where were you before you came to the

Daily News? A. With the Ghronicle.

Q. Mr. Brice, I might ask you, are you Familiar

with the method of gathering news by a local |)aper.

such as the two in Ketchikan, for gettins.- news for

their readers? A. Yes.

Q. What are the two large sources of news?

A. Wire service?

Q. The associations that furnish the news ?

A. Associated Press and United Press.

Q. Now, before you came to work for the News

you said you were employed where?

A. By the Chronicle.

Q. How long were you employed there?
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A. Twenty years.

Q. Twenty years. Now, Mr. Brice, I first want

to ask you—you have seen the deposition of Mr.

Bowerman, I think it is—especially the form of

telegram. Mr. Bowerman in his deposition, which I

think you have seen, sets up a form of telegraph

news service for one day as a sample of the [174]

news service they send. Have you seen that?

A. No; I don't think I have.

Q. It was attached to the deposition. I think you

saw it the other night. A. I don't recall.

Q. I thought you did. Well, now, this is a tele-

gram that Mr. Bowerman has testified is the type

of new^s service furnished, that they would furnish

to the Ketchikan News, dated August 12th—I don't

know what year; but I will ask you if you will just

look that over; you don't need to read it in full.

Now, what I wanted to ask you is whether that

could well have come as a news service on some

particular day "? A. Yes.

Q. To the paper? A. Yes; it could have.

Q. But as a general rule did you get that type

of telegram from the United Press, that type of

news, each day?

A. Well, I would say, occasionally.

Q. Occasionally? A. Yes.

Q. So that this might well have been the day's

news that they sent. Now, I will ask you if in youi*

experience on the two papers that you had occasion

to notice the type of news sent by the United Press

and the extent of it to [175] the News?
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A. Oh, yes. When you work for one paper you

always keep your eye on the news carried by the

other paper. That is only natural. You watch the

opposition or the competition, as you might call it.

Q. Now, Mr. Brice, do you keep—does each

newspaper keep a file of the other newspaper's pub-

lications?

A. The Daily News keeps a file of the Chronicle,

but the Chronicle does not keep a file of the Daily

News.

Q. Did you notice prior to the time you went

with the New instances of news that was sent by the

Associated Press of importance which did not come

to the News? A. Oh, on numerous occasions.

Q. Did not appear in the News. Now, did you

take the file of the Chronicle and mark some of those

instances?

A, Yes. I took the file for the Chronicle and a

file for the Daily News, ])ut them out on a desk so

I had the two copies for (vach day for comparison.

I went through the Daily News and then looked at

the Chronicle of the same date to see if the Chroni-

cle had stories that the United Press did not carry.

Q. I will hand you what purports to be an issue

or a page of an issue of the Chronicle, January 13,

1954, and ask you if you have marked news items

there which were received by the Chronicle which

did not appear in the News? [176] A. Yes.

Q. Now, what are those two in that ])articu];u'

issue?
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A. One quotes Eisenhower as saying that Alaska

is not yet ready for statehood.

Q. And what is the other one?

A. The other one concerns the Geological Sur-

ve}^ Office sending men north for surveys.

Mr. Faulkner: We want to offer these. I think

that, if 3^ou have no objection, we can put them all

in an envelope. They are mostly set up in my an-

swers to their interrogatories, but not all of them,

not quite all of them; there are others.

Mr. Dimond: Are there others then in addition

to your answers'?

Mr. Faulkner: I think there are a few.

Mr. Dimond: I was wondering, your Honor, if,

as long as the witness testified that these articles

did not appear in the defendants' newspaper but

did not testify as yet that United Press did not send

similar articles in their dispatches, whether or not

they would be admissible *?

Mr. Faulkner: We will come to that.

The Court: I think there should be that testi-

mony, that the United Press didn't send it.

Q. (By Mr. Faulkner) : Well, Mr. Brice, how

many words a day did United Press send you under

its contract?

A. Approximately thirty-five hundred. [177]

Q. Was that sufficient to meet your needs if you

used the entire amount ? A. No, it was not.

Q. Was thei'e any, in your experience, was there

any item of news contained in the United Press dis-

patches that were not published in the News?
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A. During the two years or longer that I han-

dled the United Press news I believe on two daj^s

items possibly two or three inches in length were

deleted from the paper.

Q. What were they?

A. They were items which I considered of sec-

ondary nature; because of a heavy advertising day

and considerable local news these items were left

out because they were of no importance.

Q. Now, these items which you refer to in this

issue of January 13, 1954. the one quoting the

President on statehood for Alaska and the other

with reference to the Geological Survey in Juneau,

would they be considered of importance to the read-

ers of the News?

A. I believe the people are interested in state-

hood.

Q. And what about the Geological Survey?

A. That is of some interest here, particularly

where it mentions the ])ossib](' moving of their office

from the capital at Juneau to Fairl)anks.

Q. Now, one of these articles is to the Chronicle

by the [178] "Chronicle Capital Correspondent."

Do you know who that was?

A. George Sundborg.

Q. He was also agent of the United Press?

A. That is my understanding.

Q. Now, does that go for all of these articles that

are marked that way—"Capital CoiTespondent"?

A. Yes.

Q. And that was the same agent that the United
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Press furnished the News. Now, I will hand you

one of January 14, 1954, an issue of the Chronicle,

and ask you if you marked that and if that contains

an article that was not in the Daily News.

A. That is correct.

Q. What is that article?

A. This article says, "Judge Folta May Halt

Funds for Election."

Q. And that is an article of considerable length?

A. It is, yes.

Q. And importance? A. It certainly is.

Mr. Faulkner : I will offer that in evidence.

Mr. Dimond: I don't want to insist that counsel

identify each individual one. All I want the witness

to establish is that none of these articles or certain

of them [179] were not contained in a transmission

sent by United Press, not just that they didn't

appear in the rival newspaper.

Mr. Faulkner: A¥e are covering the period now

when Mr. Brice was there, and I promised to con-

nect that up with another witness to cover the pe-

riod prior to that, but I think these all come within

Mr. Brice 's knowledge.

The Court: Well, I don't think that the objec-

tion is that these clippings don't cover a particular

period but that Mr. Brice has not excluded the pos-

sibility that the United Press sent out this news.

Isn't that the objection?

Mr. Dimond: That is the objection.

Q. (By Mr. Faulkner) : I want to know if the

News got these items from the United Press ?

I>.
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A. The News did not receive that story from the

United Press.

Q. Now, I will hand you one dated January 32,

1954, about the suicide of a prominent Fairbanks

man, Jim Barrack, and ask if the News got that

one?

A. No; it did not. The Daily News did not re-

ceive that story from the United Press on this day.

Q. Now, I hand you one of Januaiy 8, 1954,

which has three items marked, four items marked,

two of them by the "Capital Correspondent" and

the other two—no; I think they are all by the—

I

will ask if you got those through United Press or

any other way,

A. No. On this portion of the sheet I have four

stories [180] marked, all concerning Alaskans or

Alaska projects.

Q. What are they?

A. One is the assignment of Territorial High-

way Policeman Jessie Edwards from Ketchikan to

Anchorage. Another involves the E.S.C. investiga-

tion contemplated by the Legislature. A third item

refers to Angoon and Seldovia listed for work re-

lief projects. The fourth item concerns the employ-

ment of an Alaskan with the Territorial Police.

Q. T will hand you an issue of January 8, 1954,

of the Chronicle and ask if you have marked some

articles in there that were not received by the Daily

News ?

A. Yes. There are four items marked on this

page.
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Q. Just what are they, briefly*?

A. One is referring to equipment added by the

Employment Security Commission. Another con-

cerns Mrs. x\l White's hopes to visit Eisenhower in

Washington. Anotlier is a recommendation for shut-

ting- down more than half of the fish traps in South-

eastern Alaska.

Q. I will hand you another one marked, in the

Chronicle, marked January 8, 1954, and ask if that

contains some articles you have marked?

A. It does. One item concerns Alaska Public

Works and road appropriations facing heavy cuts.

Another one refers to the fact that there have been

few filings for the 1954 [181] election in the Terri-

toiy.

Q. Are some of these quite extensive articles'?

A. Yes; some of them are.

Q. And did any of these articles T am showing

you come to the News through United Press ?

A. No.

Q. So that you didn't have them?

A. That is correct.

Q. I might ask you, generally, Mr. Price, does

that apply to all these articles that you have marked

yourself? A. Yes, it does.

Q. You marked them with a red pencil?

A. I marked them by comparison between tlie

Chronicle and the Daily News. Those items marked

did not appear in the Daily News on that day.

Q. Now, I will hand you a Ketchikan Chronicle

i
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of January 7, 1954, and ask if that contains some-

thing that the Daily News did not get ?

A. Yes. This concerns arguments in court re-

garding the Territorial Property Tax.

Q. And I hand you another one, two articles

from the United Press agent in Juneau sent to the

Chronicle by the Chronicle staff correspondent, and

ask you what those are?

A. One concerns a winter relief project for

Alaska as proposed in Washington, D. C. Another

one concerns Federal [182] tin stockpiling, which

would involve Alaska.

Q. I will hand you one of December 29, 1953,

and ask you if that contained any similar articles

of any importance.

A. One concerns territorial school bus costs, say-

ing that the costs are far above anticipation. An-

other concerns an Anchorage man who is held for

a slaying. Still another involves the mayor of Fair-

banks vetoing an ordinance regarding gambling.

Q. Now, I will hand you an issue of the Chroni-

cle of December 28, 1953, and ask you how many

articles of Alaska news that contains which were

not in the Ketchikan News ? A. Seven.

Q. What are they, briefly ?

A. One concerns the refusal of the Territorial

Auditor to pay the costs of Alaskans attending

F.B.L classes. Another concerns the resignation of

Tony Schwamm as Director of the Territorial De-

partment of A\dation. Another one concerns work

projects starting in Southeastern Alaska. Still an-
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other concerns a meeting of the Territorial Road

Board in Juneau. One other item here—"Congress-

man Asks Why Farley Would Ban Herring Take.''

Q. I hand j^ou an issue of the Chronicle of De-

cember 24, 1953, and ask if that contains similai

articles not sent to the News?

A. This concerns two items which were not re-

ceived by the [183] News. One of them is that the

Civil Service Commission was studying bonus pav

for employees of the Government in Alaska. An-

other one concerns the payment of $100.00 a day tc

an investigator for the Territorial Legislature.

Q. I will hand you two other clippings of De-

cember 24, 1953, from the Chronicle and ask what

those contain which the ITnited Press did not send

to the News?

A. One concerns the refusal of the Territorial

Auditor to pay for typing done by the Statehood

Committee. Another says that the balance of public

roads funds is frozen. This one concerns a gold

claim which blocks a section of an Alaskan high-

way.

Q. I will hand you an issue of December 23,

1953, and ask if that has similar articles, some from

the Associated Press, some from the special corre-

spondent, the agent of the United Press, to the

Chronicle, which did not appear in the News ?

A. The heading on one item is, "Four Alaskan

Collegians to Seek Award." Another item from the

Chronicle's Juneau correspondent is, "Only 15 Fire

Trucks Fxem])t From Tjiconses" in Alaska. An-

I
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other item from Juneau—" Canadian Claims

Yakobi's Nickel Ore Promising."

Q. Is that all? A. That is all on this.

Q. Do you know—that one regarding the nickel

claims is a headline article, is it ? [184]

A. That is correct.

Q. And that is a matter of considerable impor-

tance? A. It is.

Q. Now, I will hand you one—this is another

one of December 24th—and ask if there are some

items marked there, generally.

A. One is an application of the Territory to have

more schools constructed in Alaska. Another one

concerns completion of the last section of the

Alaska Road Commission's program in the Terri-

tory.

Q. I hand you one of December 21, 1953, an

issue of the Chronicle, and ask you if that contains

similar items whir-h were not carried l)y the Xews.

A. Yes. This Page 1 has five items.

Q. Just what are they?

A. One is that "Anchorage Voters May Buy

Utility." Another is that Don Foster, Area Direc-

tor of the Alasaka Native Service, is conferring in

Washington, D. C, regarding a permanent job.

Another item concerns vocational education in

Alaska. Still another concerns new land claims in

regard to native villages. A fifth item concerns the

Territorial Legislature Session Laws and th(^ ])en-

alty assessments of $3300.00.

Q. That was where the paper up thoie printed
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the Session Laws, didn't get them ont in time, aiic

had to pay a [185] penalty of $3300.00?

A. Yes, that is right.

Q. No\Y, I will hand yon another issue of th(

Chronicle of December 19, 1953, which has a bannei

headline—"Fish Trap Reduction Plan May Be Al

tered," and ask if that issue contains similar items

of news which were not sent to the News '?

A. This is an Associated Press story which was

carried by the Chronicle and the Daily News die

not receive. It concerns a reduction of fish traps ir

Alaska and the fact that that reduction plan mighi

be changed by the Commissioner of Fisheries.

Q. Is there any other item in that particulai

issue ?

A. Yes. There is one here that says, "Statehood

for Hawaii on Agenda." Another is a request bj

fisherman to open up Bristol Bay to trolling. I see

one more item on this page and that regards the

"All-Alaskan Chamber to Convene Soon."

Q. Now, I will give you one of December 11,

1953, and ask you if that issue of the Chronicle con-

taiiis similar items which did not appear in the

News.

A. These two items did not aj^pear in the Daily

News. One was by Associated Press. The other was

by the Chronicle's Juneau correspondent. One re-

garded the damage suit involved in the big fire at

Union Bay. The other heading [186] says, "Twenty

Days Left to File Land Titles."

Q. Now, I hand you another issue of the Chron-
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icle, dated December 10, 1953, with a banner head-

line—'' Governor, Williams Won't Oppose Dams"—
and ask you what items that issue contains which
did not appear in the News.

A. One reports progress

Q. I mean, which did not come to the News from
the Associated Press.

A. There were six news items carried in the

Chronicle on this day which did not come to the

Daily News through United Press.

Q. What are they I

A. One concerns the dental examination carried

on l)y the Territorial Board of Dental Examiners

with the prospect they be turned over to the Uni-

versity of Washington. Another concerns the Direc-

tor of the Alaska Dojjartment of Fisheries going

south to attend a conference. Still another concerns

opposition to power dams on the Copper River at

Cordova because of the potential damage to fish-

eries.

Q. Is that the one that dealt with the Aluminum

Company which is planning to build a dam there?

A. That is right; the proposed Wood Canyon

dam. There is one story here that says nearly a mil-

lion dollars in back wages to go to Alaska Road

Commission crews. We [187] did not have that

story.

Q. You didn't have that at all? A. No.

Q. Now, I will give you another issue of the

Chronicle of December 4, 1953, and ask you if simi-

lar articles were marked in there.
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A. This is another and more detailed story re-

garding the Copper River dam. It is ahnost two

columns in length. Another item concerns an ap-

pointment by the Territorial Attorney General of an

assistant. Still another concerns the Secretary of

Alaska working on a list of relief projects for

Alaskans. Another item reports the appointment of

Doctor Alexander Baird as manager of the Alaska

Development Board. A Washington, D. C, item

tells of the selection of two Seattle men, one of

them a former Alaskan, to be consultants to Secre-

tary McKay.

(Whereupon Court recessed for five minutes,

reconvening as per recess, with all parties pres-

ent as heretofore and the jury all present in the

box; whereupon the witness Gene Brice re-

sumed the witness stand, and the Direct Exami-

nation by Mr. Faulkner was continued as fol-

lows :)

Q. Mr. Brice, I just have one or two more items,

two I want to ask you about; this one in particular.

I hand you the front page of the Ketchikan Chroni-

cle of December 1, 1953, with some articles marked

in red ink, and ask you [188] if your same testimony

applies to those articles.

A. This story concerning a study of Swan Lake

as a proposed hydro(^lectric power project foi*

Ketchikan was in th(^ Chronicle from its Juneau

correspondent but was not provided to the Daily

News.

Q. Tt is an item of considerable importance?

J^^
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A. Yes, it is.

Q. And what else is in there?

A. Here is a Unuk River road study planned

soon. This item says that Claire Wilder, former

publisher of the Petersburg Press, took over as

U. S. Marshal for the First Division today. We did

not have that item.

Q. Now, I will hand you an issue of the Ketchi-

kan Chronicle of July 8, 1952, and ask if there is

something marked in red in that one.

A. Yes. This concerns General MacArthur's
keynote speech at the Republican Convention in

Chicago.

Q. Was that sent to the News by the United

Press ?

A. No, it was not. We had reference prior to the

Convention that MacArthur would make the key-

note speech, but after he did make it we had no

word on it whatsoever.

Q. Now, there is one other issue here that we

referred to, the Governors' Convention in Sacra-

mento, where Governor Gruening was present, and

he complained about the news dispatches which

were sent by the United Press to the [189] Ketchi-

kan Daily News, and, if counsel has no objection

that I read that ai'ticle. that dispatch as it was

sent—this refers to the item of the letter Governor

Gruening sent, which we introduced yesterday.

''Sacramento, Calif. (U.P.) "—United Press.

First I may say, this is in the issue of the Daily

News of April 24, 1948.
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"Governors of eleven western states and Alaska

today asked the federal government to avert a

'serious' power shortage in the west.

"The western governors' conference passed a res-

olution asking 'sufficient' funds to develop i^ower

projects and soil conservation programs. The mone}^

for power was requested for multiple purpose flood

control, projects already in operation or being

planned.

"The resolution also asked the army to allocate

at least 6,000 tons per month of anhydrous ammonia,

a vital fertilizer base, for use in western })lants.

Local communities were asked to increase plant

capacity for production of ammonia to supply a

'pressing need.'

'
' Other action by the conference included a unani-

mous resolution urging statehood for Hawaii, and

a request to Congress for a $20,000,000 deficiency

approi)riations for improvement of forest highways.

"The conference set its next meeting for Salt

Lake [190] City, in November.

"i^mong the governors attending the conference

as guests of California's Earl Warren were: Her-

bert C. Maw, Utah ; Mon C. Wallgren, Wash. ; John

Hall, Oregon; Vail Pittman, Nevada; C. A. Robins,

Idaho; Sam C. Ford, Montana; and Ernest Gruen-

ing of Alaska."

Mr. Faulkner: Now, if the Court please, I want

to ask Mr. Brice one general question.

Q. (By Mr. Faulkner) : These clippiugs here,

Mr. Brice, of the Ketchikan Chronicle, 1 will ask
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you if you marked items in red in all of those clip-

pings "? A. Yes, I did.

Q. And all of those refer to items of news which

api)eared in the Ketchikan Chronicle which were

not sent to the News by the United Press?

A. They were not sent on this day.

Mr. Faulkner: Now, Mr. Dimond has agreed

that we may introduce these altogether, your Honor,

instead of taking them up one by one.

The Court: They may be introduced.

Mr. Faulkner: That will make the entire exhibit

of those items. I have an envelope here I think will

take all these.

The Clerk: That will be Defendant's Exhibit H.

Mr. Faulkner: Exhibit H? [191]

The Clerk: H.

Mr. Faulkner: I think that is all.

Cross-Examination

By Mr. Dimond:

Q. Mr. Brice, this article in relation to Governor

Gruening, you were not with the News at that time?

A. No, I was not.

Q. You didn't testify on that particular article?

A. No.

Q. Now, is it your testimony that all of the news

articles marked in these clippings which did not

appear in the News but which appeared in the

Chronicle were not sent to the News by United

Uress?
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A. With the possible exception of two or even

three items which may have ])een left out because of

their minor importance on a heavy advertising day.

Q. But you know^ that the others were not sent

to the News, were not received by the News?

A. That is correct.

Q. Do you preserve copies of the teletype trans-

missions sent to you? A. No.

Q. Now, Avhat are the mechanics of this thing?

This thing comes over a teletype; is that [192]

right? A. That is a transmission.

Q. This is a transmission. And do you edit the

transmission that comes over the teletype?

A. Yes.

Q. And what do you do ? Do you tear off a ] )iece

that you want in the paper and send it to the

2)rinter ?

A. I clip it as it comes through the teletype.

Q. In other words, you tear this thing apart as

it comes through? A. That is correct.

Q. And you don't preserve those pieces that you

take out of this transmission? You don't save this

t]i 111,2,-? A. No.

Q. AVell, how can you testify positively then

that Ignited Press on certain designated dates did

not include in their teletype transmission one or

more of the articles that you said were not in-

cluded?

A. The situation was such that it was absolutely

necessary that I use all wire reports in order to

have a presentable newspapei-.
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Q. You mean you used every bit of this trans-

mission?

A. Yes ; with very few exceptions, or in instances

where the Associated Press had carried the story

the previous day I sometimes cut the story down to

a very small item or deleted it. [193]

Q. You testified that you worked for the Chroni-

cle prior to coming to the News? A. Yes.

Q. Do you know how many houi's or minutes the

Chronicle was receiving Associated Press dis-

patches? A. One hour and a half.

Q. One hour and a half. Aud the News was re-

ceiving one hour? A. One hour.

Q. Well, don't you think it is i)ossible that with

an additional half-hour of news that there would be

bound to he more items of news sent to the Chroni-

cle than to the News?

A. They woidd have more words; yes.

Q. And they might even have more articles?

A. Yes.

Q. With an additional thirty uiimites?

A. Yes.

Q. So that might explain some of the instances

there where the Chronicle got articles you didn't

have in the Ketchikan Daily News; isn't that true?

A. In some instances; but in tbe majority of

them the exhibits will show that the story was re-

leased or announced on the preceding day, which

would give the United Press ample time to include

it in our file.

Q. But the point I am making is that with an
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additional thirty minutes of coverage tliere is bound

to be more [194] news sent to the Chronicle than to

the News.

A. That is correct; there would be more items,

Q. Did you ever ask the United Press in youi

time with the Ketchikan News to furnish you with

an additional half-hour of news coverage^

A. Not to my knowledge.

Q. Do you recall that United Press ever offered

to give the Ketchikan News an additional half-houi

of coverage without any additional charge?

A. No, I do not recall anything like that.

Q. After you terminated the contract witli

United Press in February, 1954, immediately aftei

that you signed up with Associated Press; isn't thai

true; you started receiving Associated Press re-

ports? A. That is correct.

Q. And how much time did you get from As-

sociated Press ? Was it ninety minutes %

A. It was an hour and a half.

Q. An hour and a half a day. At that time oi

shortly after that had you made any arrangements

with one of the radio stations in Ketchikan which

was served by Associated Press to get the radio sta-

tion news copy for publication in your paper?

A. There was no x)ermanent agreement. We
asked the Associated Press if it would be all righi

to get the additional [195] wordage because at times

the radio station had items which were not on the

news wire, and the Associated Press said that would
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be all right because of the communication problem

between here and Seattle and the high cost of trans-

mission.

Q. So in some instances joii did use the radio

station's copy for publication m your paper?

A. In a few instances; yes.

Q. That might account for additional stories; I

moan, if the Chronicle had a similar situation, that

would account for additional stories there that the

News didn't have prior to February, 1954; isn't

that true; or, do you know whether the Chronicle

had an arrangement similar to that with the radio

station I

A. At times the Chronicle would pick up copy

from the radio station. It was not regular. It was

very irregular.

Q. Did the News ever have such an arrangement

when you were being served by United Press?

A. No; because neither of the radio stations

took United Press copy.

Q. I think you testified on direct examination

that only occasionally was the type of news con-

tained in the United Press August 12th report sent

to you by United Press ?

A. I said that because it contains an Alaska

item and United Press was very lax in sending

Alaska items to us. [196]

Q. But you had the same length of transmis-

sions ?

A. We had the same number of words
;
yes.

Q. And, generalh", the class of news was the
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same tbi-oiighout the time you were \Yorking for

Ketchikan News, the type of news that was sent in

liere ?

A. Well, you can't say that because news events

change throughout the world from day to day. We
received the same number of words.

Q. Which Alaska item are you referring to 1 Do
you recall?

A. I believe at the bottom of the file there is one

item involving Alaska.

Q. Now, Mr. Brice, the plaintiff in this action

before the trial suljmitted certain interrogatories to

the defendants asking when, or asking- for specific

instances where plaintiff had failed to furnish an

adequate news service, and in answer to that the

defendants said: ''Answering Interrogatory No. 1,

defendants submit the following instances where

plaintiff failed or refused to submit to the defend-

ants news of great importance to Alaska and the

readers of defendants' paper, which items were

published in rival newspapers and which consisted

of the following," and then there are sixty-nine

separate paragraphs which designate specific dates

and items of news that appeared in the Chronicle

and not in the News. I think some of those are

those which you have identified. [197] Ts that true?

A. I really couldn't tell you how many I identi-

fied. It seems to me there must be a couple of hun-

dred items.

Q. Well, here are the defendants' answers to

the interrogatories of which I spoke, and would you
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look at those, starting with No. 1, and tell me
whether or not you obtained the information which

is contained in those answers?

A. Yes; I did secure those clippings from the

file of the Chronicle.

Q. As I recall, some of those clippings are

identical with some of the specific instances alleged

in those answers. Now, did you help prepare or

prepare th(^ information which was contained in

those answers? In other words, did you make the

comparison between the Chronicle issues and the

News issues and pick out items that were not con-

tained in the News but which were contained in the

Chronicle? A. Yes, I did that.

Q. And upon which information those answers

were based. Can you recall by looking at these?

A. I see some items here that I distinctly recall

clipping.

Q. Well, let's take for examj^le Answer No. 16 on

Page 4. The defendants allege there: "An article

dated August 13, 1953, regarding the call for bids on

the construction [198] of 610 miles of pipeline

from Haines to Fairbanks, Alaska, which appeared

in most all the papers in Alaska except those served

by United Press." Do you recall, Mr. Brice, that

that pipeline article was not carried by the New^s?

A. It was not carried by the News on that day.

Q. Could it have been carried on a prior date?

A. No. It could have been carried on a follow-

iim- date.
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Q. Is it also your testimony that on—that it was

not received by the News from United Press %

A. No, I do not say that it was not received. It

is very possible that we could have had an item like

this at sometime previous to the marked clipping

or sometime afterwards. That is possible. But we

did not get what I would consider a good news story

on the project at that time, unless it were one of the

fev/ items which were deleted because of heavy ad-

vertising and a heavy local news day.

Q. I hand you this transmission of Ignited Press

report to Ketchikan News of August 12th, which

has been introduced as an exhibit, and showing you

the article near the bottom which is entitled Wash-

ington, D. C, isn't that an article about the Haines

pipeline project? A. Yes, it is.

Q. And that w^as carried on August 12th, accord-

ing to this heading on this transmission ; and yet you

testified that [199] a instance of defective service

was because the same article wasn't carried on Au-

gust 13th.

Now, I wish you would refer to Answer No. 20

on Page 4 where the defendants say: "An article

on August 25, 1953, regarding statehood activities

at Anchorage." Now, is it your testimony that this

article was not carried by United Press or not de-

livered to the Ketchikan Daily News by United

Press on August 25, 1953?

A. I don't recall this specific item. I do recall

that we had an item saying that a statehood hearing

would be held in Anchorage. I do not rc^call that
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we had a story saying that it had been held and
what transpired.

Q. Well, then turn to Answer No. 21, Mr. Brice

:

•^^in article on August 27, 1953, with reference to

hearings before the Senate Committee on Interior

and Insular Affairs on the Alaska statehood bill."

Are you familiar with that article?

A. No, I would not be too familiar with it. There

were any number of articles involving statehood.

Q. Do you know whether or not tliis article that

is referred to in Answer No. 21, that you have read,

was an article that was contained in the Chronicle

on that date but not in the Ketchikan Daily News?

A. I simply would assume that from comparing

the two papers as of that date, but whether it was

August 27th I do not [200] recall exactly. It is dif-

ficult to recall the dates of the papers from which I

made clippings. I simply prepared them. I had a

file of the Chronicle on one side and a file of the

Daily News on the other and compared the two pa-

pers.

Q. I believe you testified previously, didn't you,

how those instances of newspai)er clippings, with

the exception of two or three instances, none of

them were carried in a United Press transmission?

A. That is correct. There were a few that United

Press may have had but did not have on that date.

Q. Well, can you testify that this article of A\\-

gust 27, 1953, wdth reference to hearings before the

Senate Committee on the Alaska Statehood Bill
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was not carried by United Press to the Ketchikan

News %

A. Well, from the list of dates here I couldn't

say. 1 would have to see the actual clipping.

Q. Didn't you say you prepared the information

from which these answers were made '?

A. Yes; but I did not memorize the dates on

which these articles appeared.

Q. Is it possible then on August 27th or even a

day or two prior to that that the United Press did

carry the same story that you refer to here ?

A. Yes, it would be possible. [201]

Q. Now, turn to Answer No. 23 on Page 5. It

says: "On September 9, 1953, an article regarding a

reward offered for the discovery of the wrecked

plane of Ellis A. Hall, w^hich was last seen near

Ketchikan." Do you recall that story*? It was of

considerable importance, I presume. I think we all

remember the Ellis Hall accident. Now, Mr. Brice,

since you prepared the information upon which

these answers were based, do you not recall that on

8('])temlK'r 9, 1953, the Ketchikan Chronicle carried

an article regarding a reward for discovery of the

Ellis A. Hall plane but the News did not carry such

an article? Is that true?

A. That is true as I recall it.

Q. And is it also your testimony that you did not

receive such an article from the United Press?

A. To my knowledge and to the exclusion of

these few items which on occasion were left out.

Q. Well, then you will not testify that this par-
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ticular article on Mr. Hall's plane may not have

been sent to you by United Press either on that date

or prior to that date?

A. Xot that I recall. As I say, I worked these

two files. I had the Chronicle file and I had the

Daily News file. When you check over dozens of

items and dates of them, it is possible that I could

have made an error in the [202] date of one on the

11th and possibly the 12th.

Q. Let's turn to, let's skip over to Answer No.

47 on Page 7: ^'An article dated December 4, 1953,

by the Associated Press with reference to relief for

indigent fishermen; one by plaintiff's agent refer-

ring to power development on Copper River." As I

recall your testimony on direct examination, a clip-

ping was identified by you from the Ketchikan

Chronicle which contained an article on the power

development on the Coppcu* Rivei*, which you testi-

fied not only was not contained in the Ketchikan

News but was not received by United Press report

;

is that true ?

A. That is correct; not as I recall it.

Q. What did you say?

A. I say, not as I recall it.

Q. That is not your testimony? It is your testi-

mony then, isn't it? A. Yes, it is.

Q. I hand you what purports to be a United

Press run to the Daily News, Ketchikan, on De-

cember 3, and ask you to—excuse me; I have the

wrong one—and ask you to note this part marked

with a pencil here starting: "Juneau—^The Alaska
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Fisheries Board and the U. S. Fish and Wildlif

Service yesterday told the Federal Power Commis

sion they opposed a dam on the Copper Eiver." An(

here is a story about the Harvey Aluminum Com

pany ))uilding a dam at [20;;>] Cordova. Isn't tha

the story to which you refori-ed in youi' testimon.

on direct examination?

A. It sounds familiar—Harvey Aluminum Com
pany; yes.

Q. Then the same story was carried by th

United Press to the Ketchikan Daily News on De

cember 3, 1953, a day earlier than the date com

plained of.

Mr. Dimond: I would like to mark this fo

identification. (Handing document to Mr. Faulk

ner.) I will be through very soon, Mr. Brice.

The Clerk: Is this an exhibit?

^Ir. Dimond : I would like to mark it for identi

fication. I intend to admit it through the testimon;

of Mr. Belnap who will identify it, unless there i

objection.

The Court: You mean you don't want to offer i

as an exhibit?

Mr. Dimond: I will offer it in evidence.

The Court: Now?
Mr. Dimond: Now. But I thought there migh

be objection.

The Court: If there is no objection, it may b

admitted.

Mr. Fanlkn(M': I don't think tl)(M'(^ is any objer
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tion. I don't think it refers to exactly the same

thing that we introduced.

Mr. Dimond: Well, I don't know where this ar-

ticle [204] is, but, as I recall, he testified there was

no article in the News of the Copper River dam
project on that date. It is somewher(= in this file.

Mr. Faulkner : I think the article we introduced

on the Copper River Dam was one vrith a banner

headline that the Governor and the Attorney Gen-

eral had protested the building of this dam and

several other articles on the front page of the

Chronicle regarding the affect on the fish. Isn't

that right?

^Ii\ Dimond: There were two articles on the

Cojjper River Dam, Mr. Faulkner. The one you

refer to was on a different date than on this one,

which w^as on December 4th, as I recall it.

A. One was a banner story, and one was a two-

column head on the middle of the page.

Mr. Dimond: Well the article on December 4th

was an article "Big Copper River Dam Threatens

Red Salmon, Says ADF." I think that is the one

that the defendants referred to, one by plaintiff's

agent referring to power development on the Copper

River. That is what the answer says. And the

])U^intiff can show that on December 3rd an article

regarding the power development on the Copper

River was sent by United Press to the Ketchikan

News.

The Court: Well, are the parties agreed now
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that both of these refer to the same item of [205]

news?

Mr. Faulkner: No, I don't agree to that. But

there were several articles on the Copper Rivei*

Dam, and I think it is the way they were handled

that we referred to there in the Ketchikan Chroni-

cle. They are different articles. I think they touch

on the same thing, but what he says they sent to

the News on the day before was a little ditferent

from what the Chronicle had the day after.

Mr. Dimond: Well, of course, all we can go by,

your Honor, in answer to our interrogatories is

what they said here—an article on the Copper Eiver

Dam—and that is found in this article.

Mr. Faulkner: I don't object to the introduction.

The Court: It may be admitted. If the jury

finds that it is material or important, they may make

the comparison and draw the conclusion themselves,

if it referred to the same event or occurrence.

The Clerk: This is being marked Plaintiff's Ex-

hibit No. 6.

Q. (By Mr. Dimond) : Now, Mr. Brice, in An-

swer No. 62 on Page 9 the defendants allege that

there was not sent by United Press to defendants'

paper: "Aji Associated Press dispatch dated Janu-

ary 8, 1954, regarding reduction in Alaska appro-

I)riati()ns." Of course United Press would not send

an Associated Press dispatch. But is it your testi-

mony that you did not receive on a United Pres^

rejjort either on January 8, 1954, or a day or two
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prior [206] to that an article regarding reduction

in Alaska appropriations?

A. I do not recall it, to a comxDarison of the files.

Q. Well, I think, as I recall, on your direct ex-

amination Mr. Faulkner handed you this morning

an article from the Ketchikan Chronicle regarding

Alaska appropriations in the issue of January 8,

1954, and you testified that that report on appro-

priations was not sent to you by United Press ?

A. Does that concern Alaska Public Works and

Road Commission Funds'?

Q. It was an article dated January 8, 1954.

A. Yes. Well, that mentions Alaska Public

Works and Road Commission Funds.

Q. I hand you the original, what purports to be

the original, of the United Press run for Dailj^

News, Ketchikan, January 6th, and referring you

to an article marked with a pencil, which says:

"The Public Works program authorization expires

next year although only some $41,000,000 of the

original $70,000,000 proposed has been appropriated.

The hearing is Feb. 8. A hearing on a bill to in-

crease the limit on lease of school lands" and so on.

Isn't that a similar article to the one to which

you referred ?

A. Well, it is. In that item there are five lines

regarding Public Works appropriations, five lines

story starts out with [207] the introduction of a

bill by Bartlett, and naturally, when I gave that to

the ])rinter, my heading would carry the story of

in the middle of an entirely different story. That
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the introduction of a bill hy Bartlett. There is no

detail concerning the reduction in appropriations

for Alaska.

Q. But you testified that you didn't receive any-

thing* from United Press.

A. I didn't receive anything like that from the

United Press. You just showed me the five lines,

the five lines that we received. We did not have an

extended article such as the Associated Press car-

ried.

Q. But you did receive something from United

Press? A. You just showed me that.

Mr. Dimond: I would like to offer this in evi-

dence.

The Court: If there is no objection, it may be

admitted.

The Clerk: Plaintiff's Exhibit 7.

Q. (By Mr. Dimond) : Mr. Brice, I have just

one more item for you. You testified on direct ex-

amination that the News did not receive from

United Press a story which appeared in the Chroni-

cle under date of January 12, 1954, regarding a

suicide of a prominent Alaskan named James Bar-

rack. Now, was that your testimony*?

A. That was one of the clippings I had.

Q. Well, I hand you what pur])orts to be the

original of th(^ [208] 11:00 a.m. United Press run

for Ketchikan, January 12th, and show you an

article from Seattle regarding the suicide of James

Barrack. Isn't that the same subject that you testi-

fied on that was not received by you*?
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A. That is correct.

Mr. Dimond: I would like to offer this in evi-

dence.

The Clerk: Plaintiff's Exhihit 8.

Q. (By Mr. Dimond) : There might still have

been other instances, Mr. Brice, where there were

articles which did not appear in the Ketchikan

News, just weren't printed there, and which had

been received by them?

A. It is very possible that from time to time an

itean or two w^as omitted on a day that was heavy

with local news and heavy with advertising.

Mr. Dimond: That is all I have.

Redirect Examination

By Mr. Faulkner:

Q. Mr. Brice, most of the articles you com-

plained of there this morning—there were nearly a

hundred—wei*e articles of importance to the readers

of the News and important to the people of Alaska ?

A. Oh, definitely. They concerned taxes. They

concerned Territorial elections. They concerned the

reappointment of Territorial officials. As I recall

it, the Associated [209] Press carried a story on the

reappointment of (lovernor Gruenino- as Governor of

xllaska, and the United Press did not have that item

on that day. I think another item in that regard

—

the Associated Press carried an item on the reap-

pointment of Judge Folta as Jud.i^e for the First
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Judicial Division, and the United Press did not

carry that item.

Q. And all of these outside of Juneau which are

from the special correspondent to the Chi'onicle

which, you say, was sent by the United Press agent,

I understand none of those appeared in the United

Press service to the News?

A. There may have been one or two, but they

were very small items or they were handled in a

minor item.

Q. And some of those were items of considerable

importance to the people of the Territory?

A. Anything involving taxes, and elections, fish-

ing regulations, are of importance to the people of

Alaska.

Mr. Faulkner: I think that is all.

Recross-Examination

By Mr. Dimond:

Q. I have one more question, if counsel please.

Do you know, when you were working for the

Chronicle, was George Sundborg the stringer for

United Press then in Juneau?

A. For United Press? Not to my knowledge.

He was a [210] ]:)art-time correspondent for the

Chronicle.

Q. He was hir(Hl hy the Chronicle?

A. I would not say that he was hired by the

Chronicle; no. He submitted items from Juneau.

Q. To tlie Chronicle? A. Yes.

Q. And he got ])ai(l for those?
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A. I assume that.

Q. Since you liave been with the Ketchikan

News do you have any stringers of correspondents

throughout the Territory that submit articles to the

Ketchikan News?

A. We subscribed to the United Press when I

first went to the Daily News, and the United Press

had claimed that it had correspondents in all the

major cities of Alaska. We now take the Associated

Press, and the Associated Press claims they have

correspondents in the major cities of Alaska.

Q. You don't have any si)ecial correspondents of

your own, say, in Juneau? A. No.

Q. Do you ever get news articles and reports

from Juneau, not from Associated Press but from

newspapermen, say?

A. If something occurs in Juneau, I simply sit

down at the teletype and ask the Juneau Empire if

it has any information on that. [211]

Q. When you were with the Chronicle you know

that GeoT'ge Sundborg in Juneau submitted articles

to th(» Chronicle?

A. I do not know what articles he submitted. I

know that he discussed it with Baker, who is the

editor of the Chronicle, and Baker had mentioned

to me a couple of times that George Sundborg would

be writing for him.

Q. And at that time you w^re also receiving As-

sociated Press reports ninety minutes a day, weren't

you? A. That is correct.

Mr. Dimond: That is all.
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Redirect Examination

By Mr. Fanlkner:

Q. Mr. Brice, you talked about these correspond-

ents. How does the Associated Press handle the

news in Juneau when the Legislature is in session^

A. The x4.ssociated Press this year had a tele-

ty])e set uj) right in the legislative building, and Jim

Hutcheson, a veteran legislative correspondent, cov-

ered the session of the Legislature, and he had a

teletype which was on a circuit with twenty-two

other teletypes in Alaska.

Q. Now, he has done that for a number of years,

has he'?

A. Hutcheson has covered the Legislature for

several years.

Q. Did the United Press ever have such service

up there *?

A. Nothing in comparison with the Associated

Press. [212]

Q. Well, did they have any?

A. We made arangements at one time with Bob

DeArmond when he was in Juneau to secure infor-

mation on the Legislature through him.

Q. Yes; but that was your own arangement,

wasn't it? A. That is correct.

Q. Tliat wasn't the Ignited Press arrangement?

A. No, that was not.

Q. So you had to make your own arrangement

there? A. That is correct.

Mr. Fanlkner: That is all.
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Recross Examination

By Mr. Dimond:

Q. As long as we are on this other subject I

would like to ask one more question. Didn't you
have to pay something additional for that special

legislative report from Hutcheson? A. Yes.

Q. How much more did you pay for that news ?

A. I don't recall just what the figure was. That

was handled through the business office.

Q. Could it have been around two hundred dol-

lars a month or thereabouts?

A. No. I have a faint recollection that it was

around [213] eighty-five or eighty-six. I really don't

know. That was handled jjy the business office.

Mr. Dimond: That is all.

(Witness excused.)

The Court: I would like to inquire how the evi-

dence shows that this contract was extended to 1962.

I can't fathom that from the evidence.

Mr. Faulkner: I can't either.

Mr. Dimond: I can explain it, your Honor. The

service under the contract started on October 3,

1945, and the printed provisions of the contract

stated that, irrespective of the date appearing on

the contract, the effective date that would govern

was the starting time of the contract and that was

October 3, 1945.

Now, Paragraph 8 set the initial term of the con-
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tract as three years, so there was an extension. The

first term of the contract was October 3, 1945, to

October 3, 1948. Now, since we contend that no

notice of termination was given six months prior to

October 3, 1948, the contract was extended by the

terms for another five years, which wonld have

brought it up to October 3, 1953, and we also con-

tend that, since no notice of termination was given

sixty days prior to October 3, 1953, that

The Court: Where do you get the sixty days?

Mr. Dimond: Six months. Excuse me, your

Honor. [214] Since no notice was given of termina-

tioTi on April 3, 1953, which is six months prior to

October 3, 1953

The Court: Well, but what about the effect of

this modification agreement of February 21, 1950?

Mr. Dimond: Well, 1 am getting to that in a

minute. I am trying to make this chronological.

The contract was extended from 1953 for five years,

until 1958. Now, under the terms of the modificaticm

of the agreement entered on February 21, 1950, it

was provided that the term of the basic contract

would be extended by the length of time that that

modification was in effect and that modification

permitted either party to give notice of termination,

and, if either party

The Court: I understand all that but I just

don't see how you attach this modification contract

onto a later extension period. It seems to me that,

when you look at this modification agreement, it

]'('fe7's to the current period which would expire in

1953 and that it would extend that period and not

the period beginning in 1958.
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Mr. Dimoncl: I would assume it would extend

the period at the time the termination of the modifi-

cation was made, which was February 14, 1954. That

is the first time that modification came into effect,

that is, the extension of time.

The Court : Well, but that assumes that the cur-

rent [215] period ending

Mr. Dimond: February 14, 1954. The expira-

tion date was 1958.

The Court: Yes; provided that tliere had been a

renewal in 1953.

Mr. Dimond: Yes.

The Court : But it seems to me that the renewal

was delayed by this modification agreement.

Mr. Dimond: I couldn't see that, your Honor. I

tliought that the modification of the agreement was

that this rate was suspended during this period of

time from February 21, 1950, until notice of termi-

nation was made on February 14, 1954, and as soon

as that notice was given

The Court: But what did it extend? That is

what seems to me the question is. It couldn't have

extended a period that hadn't come into being yet.

If it extend(^d anything, it would extend the current

period.

Mr. Dimond : But the expiration time of the con-

tract in 1954 had been extended by failure to give

notice of termination.

The Court: Well, I understand your position,

l)ut I can't understand how this modification agree-

mi^nt of Februarv 21, 1950, could, so far as extend-
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ing it is concerned, extend anything except the

current period, not some future period.

Mr. Dimond: The modification says the term of

the [216] agreement between the parties shall be

extended by the length of time during which the

suspension is in effect. The term of the agreement

you get from Paragraph 8 and the facts of the con-

tract. The term of the agreement ended for 1954 in

1958, liad been extended already, and, therefore,

when this was terminated, it extended it another

four years.

The Court: I can't follow that reasoning; I

mean, I can follow it, but I certainly can't believe

that it

Mr. Faulkner: I can't follow it either, your

Honor, and I have gone on the assumption that that

could not be the result of that modification.

The Court: I can't see how it is.

Mr. Faulkner : Where is the contract ? The con-

tract is not for fifteen years or ten years or twenty

years. The contract runs for three years and then

five-year periods unless you give notice. Now, that

five-year period, the first one expired in October,

1953. Now, prior to that time, in February, 1950,

they bring in this modification and they say the

jjeriod is extended four years. Well, what period?

Why, the then period. They couldn't jump over

that and extend another period. They might as well

jump to 1970 or 1977. I can't see the language in

that that would justify that. This period, the period,

now, was to expire in October, 1953. Now, they

say they extended that four years. They extended
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that during the period this thing is in operation,

and Mr. Belnap [217] says that was four years, so,

therefore, it would be from October 3, 1953, to Oc-

tober 3, 1957. That is as far as they could go. That

is the deadline. But I don't see how^ in the world

they could ever reason that it was 1962.

The Court : AVell, it is a question that, of course,

I will have to answer before preparing the instruc-

tions. That is why I made the inquiry now.

Whereupon Court recessed until 2:00 o'clock p.m.,

A})ril 14, 1955, reconvening as per recess, with all

parties present as heretofore and the jury all pres-

ent in the box; whereupon the trial proceeded as

follows

:

The Court : I think perhaps for the guidance of

the parties I should announce that I have come to

the conclusion that, since a contract cannot be sus-

j)end(>d and also run at the same time, T have got to

limit the period for which any recovery could be had

by the plaintiff, if the plaintiff is entitled to re-

covery, to the period ending Se])tember 27, 1957.

You may call your next witness. [218]
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Plaintiff's Rebuttal

DAVID F. BELNAP
called as a witness on behalf of the plaintiff, having

]:)reviouslv been duly sworn, testified as follows:

Direct Examination

By Mr. Dimond:

Q. Mr. Belnap, I believe you testified on direcl

examination that you have about four thousand

clients, United Press does'?

A. Four thousand four hundred, approximately

Q. And the assessments made on account oi

wage labor agreement increases are the same al'

over, are they not"?

A. That is right; the percentage is the same

against the rate of the client.

Q. And this increase in assessments is differen1

from the actual salary of the Seattle operator; ij

that correct

!

A. That is correct. The salary of the Seatth

operator, which the defendant agreed to pay, was

fixed at a certain amount by mutual agreement. Th(

assessments under Sub-paragraph 2, Article Seconc

of the Agreement, were levied against this client af

well as against all the rest of the clients, and thej

applied to th(^ o]^erators' increases as a whole. ]

might explain that this way, that, when the Unitec

Press negotiates with the Commercial Telegraphers

I^nion and an increase is negotiated in their sala-

ries, all of their salaries, the salary of the [219]
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Seattle operator as well as the salaries of the opera-

tors in other cities like San Francisco, Washington,

D. C, New York, New Orleans, Chicago, Denver,

Salt Lake City. The total increase, the total increase

in overhead through that increase in salary to these

operators is passed along to our clients in the form

of a percentage assessment against their rates, and

these assessments would have been levied against

the Ketchikan News whether or not it had been nec-

essary for us to employ a specific o])erator in Seattle

to transmit the file to the Ketchikan News.

Q. Is it customary for a person in your position,

as an official with a news gathering service, such as

United Press, to be familiar with the circulation

figures and have access A. Yes, it is.

Q. to the circulation figures of newspapers

that you serve % A, That is correct.

Q. And also of your newspaper competitors'?

A. That is correct.

Q. Have you made any comj)arison from any

source of the circulation figures of the Ketchikan

Daily News as compared with those of the Chroni-

cle'?

A. Well, I have looked up the circulation figures

of the [220] two papers in the ''Editor and Pub-

lisher Year Book"; yes.

Q. What is that?

A. The "Editor and Publisher Year Book'' is a

standard directory of newspapers in the United

States, its territories and Canada, which is published

every year in January by the Editor and Publisher
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Publishing Company. That is a company which

publishes a newspaper trade publication every week.

The director}^ contains the names of all the daily

n( "V\^spapers in the United States, its territories and

Canada, together with certain information about

those papers supplied hy the paj^ers themselves, the

names of the executives of the |)apers, the names oi

th{^ publishing company in each case, the advertising

rate for the paper, the circulation for the paper,

the wire service which serves the paper, and infor-

mation of that nature, statistical information.

Q. Based upon your research in this respecl

what have you found as to the comparative circula-

tion of the Ketchikan Chronicle and the Ketchikari

Daily News during the period, say, 1949 to the end

of 1953?

A. The figures in "Editor and Publisher Yeai

Book" for those years show that the Ketchikan

Daily News had a regular, steady rise in circulation

rate, or in circulation figures, rather, in average

daily circulation, and that in about 1951, having

previously had, according to that [221] book, fewei

average daily circulation than the Ketchikan Chroni-

cle, in 1951 suri)assed the Ketchikan Chronicle and

continued to surpass the Chronicle and up until

the present day, I suppose.

Q. The Ketchikan News was being serviced by

the United Press during those years?

A. Yes, it was.

Q. During the course of handling and supervis-

in.g transmissions, which you testified you had some
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experience in for seA^eral years, did you ever have
occasion to hear from newspapers which were being

serviced by United Press as to the type of news they

wanted and the type they did not want ?

Mr. Faulkner: Now, if the Couit please, I ob-

ject to that. The type of news is what Alaskan news-

])apers want. Mr. Charles' testimony is that he

wrote and told them, and Mr. Bowerman in his dep-

osition states the pi-iority of the diiferent classes

of news.

The Court : Will the reporter read the question ?

The Reporter: "During the course of handling

and supervising transmissions, which you testified

you had some experience in for several years, did

you ever have occasion to hear from newspapers

which were being serviced by United Press as to

the type of news they wanted and the type they did

not want?" [222]

Mr. Diniond : If the Court please, the defense of

the defendants here is that an adequate news report,

as they conclude the regular news report was made

in contrast, was not furnished, and the}^ give as ex-

amples of that certain instances where articles, they

say, were not sent by United Press and not included

in defendants' paper, and I think it can be shown as

a matter of editorial judgment as to whether a par-

ticular item on a certain day was worthy of being

included in a 3,500-word transmission. Mr. Belnap

has had experience in those things. This is a prelimi-

nary question. I want to eventually ask him what

his editorial judgment would be on transmitting a
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number of items which the defendants in these news-

paper clippings in answer to our interrogatories

gave as instances of what they call news of great

importance to Alaska and the readers of defendants'

paper which were not published, and I think he is

certainly qualified—he has already testified as to his

experience—he is qualified to give his opinion as to

whether these items were of great importance or not.

The Court: There isn't any question about that,

l)ut that isn't the objection. The objection is that you

are seeking to elicit from this witness the opinion of

other newspapers, and, of course, over objection that

kind of evidence can't be

Mr. Dimond : I will restrict the question to news-

papers in Alaska. [223]

The Court : It wouldn't change the complexion of

the objection or the question either. In other words,

here is an attempt to put in, yon might say, hearsay

testimony, that is, evidence consisting of what other

newspapers are said to have reported to him, and,

while the Court would permit it and the jury could

give it such weight as it saw fit to give it if there were

no objection, over the objection I can't admit it.

Q. (By Mr. Dimond) : Well, Mr. Belnap, have

you read and considered the items mentioned in the

defendants' answers to the plaintiff's interrogatories

where they cite specific instances that they claim that

news items of great importance were not included

in the file to the Ketchikan Daily News?

A. Yes : I have read all of the answers.
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Q. You were here this morning when Mr. Brice
testified specifically as to some of those items?

A. Yes, I was.

Q. Which were introduced in evidence as de-

fendants' exhibits here? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, one of those items, in answer No. 8 of

the answers to the interrogatories, dealt with the

death of a Coast Guard enlisted man. Would you say

that in your experience that in the case of transmis-

sion of teletype service [224] to the Ketchikan Daily

News for one hour a day that an item concerning the

death of a Coast Guard enlisted man would ordi-

narily be included ?

A. Well, it would depend to a large extent on

who the Coast Guard enlisted man was. If the Coast

Guard enlisted man was Clark Gable, yes, it would

be included. If the Coast Guard enlisted man was

Joe Smith of Keokuk, Iowa, why, it would have

been a waste of ^Ir. Charles' transmission time in

transmitting that. And it would depend too largely

on the rest of the news of the day. He might be

someone other than Joe Smith of Keokuk, Iowa. He
might be a college professor who was in the Coast

Guard on a tour of duty and during that tour of

duty he was drowned. It would depend on the

s])ecific story, and there isn't enough information

just in a line saying "Death of a Coast Guard en-

listed man by drowning" to be able to tell just

exactlv whether that was a news item of great im-
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poitance or not. I would say that, if that is as well

as it can be described there, it probably wasn't.

Q. Would that be true of some of the other an-

swers too?

A. Yes; that is right. All of the answers were

quite vague, and it was certainly difficult to see just

exactly what they were referring to.

Q. What do you use as a basis for the transmis-

sion, the news that should be included in a one-hour

transmission 1 [225]

A. Well, it depends on the news that is hapj^en-

ing in the world that day. It depends on whether

president so-and-so of France has been assassinated.

That is a big story. It depends on whether you have

the Korean War going on. That is a big and im-

portant story, a story in which the readers of

Alaska are interested. If you have to choose between

the death of a Coast Guard enlisted man and the

current situation in the Korean War, no. you

wouldn't include the death of the Coast Guaid en-

listed man.

Additionally, you have to take into account cer-

tain classes of news. For instance, we were required

to file to Mr. Charles a minimum budget of sports

which required a certain period or i)ortion of tliat

oni^-hour, thirty-five-hundred-word ti ansmission

—

baseball scores, results of fights, heavyweight fights,

and the results of othei- top si.)orting events. It was

necessary to furnish to Mr. Charles in that file re-

ports on the doings of Congress in Washington.

That is important. It is necessary, to pu))lis]i a bal-
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anced newspaper, to have sports and to have reports

on Congress and to have reports on the Korean War
and to have reports on the important things that are

happening around the world, things that are affect-

ing us right here in the United States, about the

cold war and about Russia.

News, again, as I say, is relative. It is [226] dif-

ferent every day, actually. A story that today might

be quite important tom.orrow isn't, because there is

so much more news oF moie importance and of more

significance that the other previous day's top story

is paled by compaiison and, as a consequence

doesn't merit the same consideration and is a matter

on which a decision must 1)e made every day.

Q. Mr. Behiap, did \'ou observe during Mr.

Brice's testimony and from reading the defendants'

answers to plaintiff's interrogatories of October 2,

1954, relating to the items of defective news service,

that several, if not many, of the items related to

stories sent by what was called the United Press

representative in Juneau?

A. Yes, sir; I noted that.

Q. Who was George Sundborg at that time?

A. Who was at that time George Sundborg.

Q. What were his duties with respect to United

Press ?

A. George Sundborg \s duties with respect to the

United Press were to furnish us at Seattle by tele-

graph, as a rule, news items from Juneau, Alaska,

of general interest.

Q. What do you mean—''of general interest"?
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A. I mean news items which we can use on our

wires, news items that are worthy of being included

on our wires, and George Sundborg, I might say,

did supply us with news items of that nature, and

they were carried on our wires, [227] including the

wire to the Ketchikan Daily News.

Q. Was that supposed to include all the local

items that might he of local interest to a Ketchikan

newspaper ? A. No.

Q. Why not?

A. Well, for one thing, the file to the Ketchikan

Daily News wouldn't have encompassed the size of

the file that Mr. Sundborg was turning into the

Ketchikan Chronicle as a special correspondent foi

the Chronicle. It would have been out of balance.

Q. Was there any agreement ever made between

you and the United Press and the Ketchikan Daily

News to furnish a special local news service such

as Sundborg might havo been furnishing ihv

Chronicle ? A. No.

Q. Mr. Belnap, I hand you what pui'ports to

be a copy of a letter from the Ketchikan Daily

News, dated April 8, 1946, addressed to Pierre A.

Miner, United Press Associations, New York City,

and signed by Sid D. Charles. Can you identify this

letter and tell me where \'ou have seen it before, if

you have seen it?

A. Yes. This letter is from the Seattle corre-

s}>ondence files.

Q. Are you in charge of and do you have custody

of those files? A. Yes, I do. [228]
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Q. And you picked this letter out of those files I

A. I picked this letter out of our files in Seattle.

Mr. Dimond
: If the Court please, I have sev(^ral

letters here that I wish Mr. Belnap to identify, of

which some parts are not particularly relevant, but

each of them contains some expression of satisfac-

tion of the service, from the News to the United

Press Association, which I think is material in view

of the defense.

The Court: Well, what is it you wish to have

done now?

Mr. Dimond: Well, 1 would like to introduce all

of these letters. I just don't know whether to have

them identified separately or show them to counsel

first.

The Court: No, you don't need to have them

identified. You can show them to coimsel.

(Mr. Dimond handed docmnents to Mr.

Faulkner.)

Mr. Dimond : They are dated from April 8, 1946,

to April 16, 1949. I would like to offer these letters

in evidence.

The Court : They may be admitted.

The Clerk: As a group?

Mr. Dimond: Yes.

The Clerk: This will be Plaintife's Exhibit 9.

Mr. Dimond: If the Court please, ladies and

gentlemen of the jury, I don't intend to read tliese

letters in full [229] now, but each of these letters
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dated from April 8, 1946, to April 16, 1949, signed

by Sid Charles of the Ketchikan News, in one or

two paragraphs contains expressions of satisfaction

with the type of service that United Press was ren-

dering at that time, and, rather than burdening yon

witli reading them in full, I shall merely keep them

liere as an exhibit which you will have a chance to

refer to later on. That is all I have, Mr. Belnap.

Cross-Examination

By Mr. Faulkner

:

Q. Mr. Belnap, there were some instances where

there was quite important news developed in Alaska

and in the transmission was not sent by United

Press, weren't there'?

A. There may have been instances ;
yes; I mean,

Mr. Brice testified that there were; I don't admit

that there were.

Q. And Mr. Sundborg's news sent down from

Juneau that >'ou saw this morning or heard of was

quite impoi'tant, wasn't it, locally*?

A. A¥ell, I—it would be hard to say. I mean, I

am of course using, as I think about it, I am meas-

uring the item against the possible other world news

developments that day and taking into account at

the same time the limitations of the 3,500-word hie,

and so it is a relative matter. It is a consideration of

each individual item. [230] If I knew what news

there was everywhere for that day, I could ])i'obably

give yon my o|)inion on it.
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Q. But news of matters of taxation and employ-

ment security, appointment of important govern-

ment officials, and water power development, all

those things are news of fii'st importance to a

Ketchikan paper, aren't they?

A. Well, I just wouldn't be qualified to say.

Q. Now, you heard the answers that the plaintiff

United Press made to interrogatories that I pre-

sented, which I read this morning, in which they

said they had correspondents in practically every

town from Ketchikan to Kotzebue. What were those

correspondents doing, do you know?

A. You mean, liow were they employed in each

individual

Q. What were they furnishing in the way of

news ?

A. AVell, each of those correspondents—now, I

can't—do you want their names?

Q. No; we don't need their names.

A. Each of those corres])ondents had a responsi-

bility. Each of those correspondents had been in-

sti'ucted by us to furnish us with news of general

interest in their territory, and of course we had to

rely upon their judgment to a large degree whether

the news was of general interest and when to file it,

since we weren't right on the scene and couldn't

say, ''Well, this news has just happened. Please

send it to us." [231]

Q. Could you point out anywhere in these news

items, or in the service that the Associated Press
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gave to the Ketchikan News, any items coming fiom

any of those places'?

A. Oh, if I had the complete file of our transmis-

sions to the Ketchikan Chronicle, or Ketchikan

News, with me here, yes, I could point out several

items every day that were received, or a number of

items a week that were sent.

Q. Mr. Belnap, you saw, you have heard, read or

saw the item in the Ketchikan Chronicle which I

introduced this morning, the Chronicle dated July

2, 1952, referring to General MacArthur's speech at

the Republican National Convention, which the

Ketchikan News did not carry?

A. Yes; I heard that.

Q. You didn't find any record of the transmis-

sion of that item to the Ketchikan News, did you ?

A. No, sir.

Q. Now, I have here a file mentioned this morn-

ing, something about whether you carried these

things ; I have a file of the Ketchikan Daily News

from June 30th on—July 1st, July 2nd, July 3rd

—

which w^ould cover that entire period. Now, would

you like to look those over to see if there is any

mention of General MacArthur?

A. I will be delighted to take your word, sir,

that there is not any mention in there.

Mr. Faulkner: I would like to offer these [232]

in evidence to clear up that point.

Mr. Dimond : AVhat year is that ?

Mr. Faulkner: Well, it was 1952. We introduced

the Chronicle this morning to show the large item
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(Testimony of David F. Belnap.)

about General MacArthur making the kej^note

speech, and Mr. Brice said that was not sent to the

News. Now, we have the copies of the News here,

and I will offer them in evidence, if the jury wants

to took for it, as Defendants' Exhibit—whatever

it is.

The Clerk: Exhibit I.

Q. (By Mr. Faulkner) : Mr. Belnap, just one

other question. You said you have looked at the

''Editor and Publisher" for the years 1949 to 1953

and you found that the circulation of the Ketchikan

News increased from 1951 on ; is that true ?

A. The circulation of the Ketchikan News is not

reported in "Editor and Publisher" for the years

1945 through 1947. I think that the first time that

the Ketchikan News circulation was listed in th(^

"Editor and Publisher" was in the year book issue

of January, 1949, the figure^ being the average daily

figure for the year 1948, and from that date on there

is each year in the year book carried an average

daily circulation figure for the Ketchikan News.

Those figures show an increase each year from the

previous year. [233]

Q. From what year? A. From 1948.

Q. 1948?

A. Yes, sir ; in the 1949 through 1954 year books.

Q. I thought you said it increased from 1951.

A. What I said, sir, was that in the year 1951,

apparently, the Ketchikan News surpassed its

competitor the Chronicle in average daily circula-

tion.
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(Testimony of David F. Belnap.)

Q. And continued to surpass them. Now, those

figures for the circulation are set up by the News
in answer to an interrogatory. I don't think I read

it, hut it is in answer to an interrogatory.

A. That is correct ; and the figures listed in your

answers to our interrogatories both correspond to

the same figures in the "Editor and Publisher"

every year except 1948.

Q. Now, when the News began to pick up in

circulation, did you ever notice that that corre-

sponded with the coming of the pulp mill in Ketchi-

kan, the increased activity here?

A. I hadn't connected the two; no, sir.

Mr. Faulkner: That is all, Mr. Belnap.

Mr. Dimond: That is all. [234]
* * *

The Court: Perhaps I should announce that I

find against the defendants so far as their first

affirmative [239] defense is concerned and also the

third affirmative defense. You may proceed then

with the argument.

Mr. Faulkner: We will ask an exception to the

Court's ruling on that finding.

(Whereupon respective counsel made their

arguments to the jury; and thereafter respec-

tive counsel were furnished copies of the

Court's Instructions to the Jury, and the Court

read his Instructions to the Jury; and the fol-

lowing occurred:)

The Court : Are there any exceptions ?

Mr. Dimond : I have one exception, your Honor.

V
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(Whereupon respective counsel and the court

reporter approached the bench, out of the hear-

ing of the jury, and the following occurred:)

Mr. Dimond: I just want to take exception to

part of Instruction No. 4 which instructs the jury

to the effect that the term of the contract would
expire September 27, 1957, rather than September
27, 1962.

Mr. Faulkner: I would except to the failure of

the Court to instruct the jury, if any damages are

recovered, they must be limited to the difference

between $38.17 and $8.()6 a week.

(Whereupon respective counsel and the court

reporter withdrew from the bench and were

again within tlie hearing of the jury; the

bailiffs were duly sworn to tke charge of the

jury, and the jury retired to the jury room at

4:45 o'clock [240] ]).m. in charge of the liailiffs

to deliberate upon a verdict.)

(Thereafter, on the 21st day of April, 1955,

at 4:00 o'clock p.m., at Juneau, Alaska, the

above-entitled cause came on for further hear-

ing; tlie Honorable George W. Folta, United

States District Judge, presiding; the plaintiff

appearing by John H. Dimond, its attorney ; the

defendants appearing by H. L. Faulkner, their

attorney; and the following proceedings were

had:)

Mr. Faulkner: If the Court please, in this case

we each have a judgment to submit. I have one
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prepared. I didn't file it. I served a copy on Mr.

Dimond, and he served a copy of liis on me, so I

will give it to the Court.

The Clerk: Is yours in the file, sir?

Mr. Dimond: I don't know whether I wish to

submit it until I have a chance to argue this matter.

Mr. Faulkner: Do you want to argue it?

Mr. Dimond: If the Court please, I would like

to explain that I have prepared a form of judg-

ment, which I served on counsel, which is essentially

the same as his except that in mine plaintiff re-

quests that costs and attorney's fees be allowed to

the plaintiff rather than the defendants, and the

judgment recites that the action having been tried

and a general verdict for plaintiff' duly rendered

and so on.

This afternoon, giving this thing a little [241]

more thought, I thought to myself that I probably

should not present this form of judgment because

it is not the form that I think the plaintiff ought to

submit, and that leads me up to a request—I don't

intend to take counsel ])y surprise here; I just

wanted to mention this to be brought up later—

a

request that fhe Court enter its own findings of fact

and conclusions of law in this case and direct that

an appropriate judgment be entered which would

recite the fact that the jury was merely advisory,

and the Court, whatever- decision it made, would

make its own findings and conclusions.

[ base this request upon the contention of plain-

tiff' that it was error to call a jury trial over objec-
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tions and on the Court's own motion. I don't intend

to argue that at this time, but the reason I mention
it at this time is the fact that I intend to file on
behalf of plaintiff:" a motion for a new trial, in a day
or two, and I am going to incorporate in that

motion a request that the Court open and set aside

whatever judgment it enters at this time and make
its own findings and conclusions of law and direct

the entry of its own judgment, and for the reasons

that I have stated, inasmuch as that question will

probably be argued and I want to give counsel a

chance to prepare himself on the argument, I don't

intend to argue it at this time. The only reason I

mention it again is the fact that RuU' 26 of the

Local Rules requires counsel for the successful

party to present within two days [242] after the

Com-t's determination of a matter proposed findings

and conclusions, and I request that this rule be

waived in this case in view of the fact that it would

])e fruitless for me at this time to })resent findings

for the Coui't's entry until we have had a chance to

argue this question as to whether or not the Court

should make its findings. The contention I am mak-

ing, which I will be prepared to argue at the time

we argue the motion for a new trial, is that under

Rule 52 the Court is obligated to make its own find-

ings and conclusions and judgment by reason of the

fact that this jury Avas advisoiy only, and I don't

know^ how binding this rule is as far as the tw^o-day

I'ule is concerned. I would like to argue this matter

of the findings and conclusions next week sometime.

I have not j)iepared any to submit to the Court

:
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The Court : Well, I am just wondering whether

you should argue them at all. You may of course

argue any motion for a new trial, hut the reason

I think it would be futile to argue that the jury may
he treated as advisory is because, if I am not mis-

taken, the law doesn't provide for an advisory jury

except in actions of an equitable nature. There is no

authority whatever for empanelling an advisory

jury except in an equity action.

Mr. Dimond: I would have to do a little more

research on that, youi* Honor.

The Court: Well, I am sure of that, because

there [243] have ])een times when I would like to

have had an advisory jury in a law case.

Mr. Dimond : AYell, I have one case that I cited

in court in Ketchikan on this point, but I would

like to check it again to see whether it is applicable.

But on this question of costs here Rule 54(d) pro-

vides that costs shall be allowed of course to the

i)revailing party unless the Court otherwise directs.

In general I think the party in whose favor a judg-

ment is I'endered is the ])revailing party, and.

although plaintiff may not obtain all the damages

w^hich he seeks, if the verdict is in his favor, or any

damages, even though it is offs(^t hy the exact

amount in the counterclaim, I think and I submit

that he is the prevailing party and, therefore, en-

titled to costs and attorney's fees under the Rules

of the Court. There is very little to say on it except

that w(> sul)uut tlie plaintiff is the prevailing party.

The Court: Well, but is there no authority on a

situation of this kind'?
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Mr. Dimond : Well, there is authority in Moore's

Federal Practice—I don't have the exact citation;

I have it but I can't find it now—under his discus-

sion of what is a prevailing party under Rule

54(d), and I would like to refer the Court to one

case, a Circuit Court case, found in 35 F.2d at

Page 211. The name of plaintiff is Harlan Coal

Company, and I didn't get the name of the de-

fendant down. I did this [244] rather hastily. So I

submit on the basis of, just on the plain wording of

the Rule, and on what Mr. Moore says about it on

this case, that plaintiff is entitled to costs and at-

torney's fees.

Mr. Faulkner: If the Court please, first, on the

niattei- of the advisory jury, if that is before the

Court, I just want to say this. I have thought about

that myself in connection with this case. There is

no provision for an advisory jury in a lawsuit, and,

if there had been and this had been an advisory

jui'v, the trial would have taken on a different com-

plexion because the Court would have then sub-

mitted to the jury certain questions and certain

findings for them to make, and I believe it would

have been much easier for the defendant if that had

been done, but that is not the way you do in a law-

suit. The jury was empanelled and tried the issues

raised by the pleadings, and the pleadings on behalf

of the plaintiff claim damages in the sum of $21,-

000.00. The question for the jury was whether or

not the plaintiff was entitled to the damages or

whether or not the defendant was entitled to the

counterclaim.
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Now, the rule on tliat—I suppose the Court is

familiar with it—but the Rule 54(d) says that the

costs are allowed to the prevailing party unless the

Court otherwise directs. Now, for that reason, ])e-

cause of that clause in the rule, I think you will

find very few court decisions defining who is [245]

the prevailing party, because the Court tries the

case and it is naturally in the discretion of the

Court as to who shall have the costs.

Now, I do find though an authoiity here. I have

prepared a little memorandum on this which 1 will

give to the Court to save time.

In the case of B. B. Chemical Co. v. Cataract

Chemical Co., 2 F.R.D. 159, the District Court for

the Northern District of New York held that the

Court had discretion as to awarding costs on

counterclaim where the defendant prevailed in the

main action, even though the plaintiff prevailed on

a counterclaim. It is kind of a reverse situation

here.

There are numerous cases cited in 28 USCA on

Rules of Civil Procedure, under Rule 54, and in

Barron & Holtzoff.

Now, let's see what was done in this case. The

plaintiff sued for $21,000.00 The defendant came in

and claimed that there was nothing due the i)lain-

tiff and set up a counterclaim. Now, I think the

Court will remember from the evid(^nce as it was

introduced and from the ph^adings that this counter-

claim was known to the plaintiff at the time it

brought the suit. It was for money which it had
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drawn after the contract was terminated on drafts

of the defendant for the period of, I think, six

weeks. Well, if they didn't know it or had over-

looked it, we called it to their attention by setting

up the counterclaim, and even then they didn't admit

that this [246] counterclaim was due the defend-

ants. They skirted around it by saying they didn't

owe the defendants anything, so I think it is the

effect of a general denial, and, when we confronted

them with the drafts, of course, then they admitted

that the counterclaim was due, and, being due, it

should have been deducted from the amount they

sued on.

Now, what did the jury do? They went out and

they found a verdict which sounds rather puzzling,

but the way the Court submitted it to them T can

see just what happened, that they were told to find

a verdict, if they found for the plaintiff, in the sum

of blank dollars less the sum of the counterclaim,

which was $368.70, so the jury, I suppose, felt that

they couldn't very well fill in nothing in that blank

space and deduct $368.70 from nothing, so they filled

in the same amount, therein* giving the plaintiff

nothing. Now, it is true that they offset the counter-

claim some way or other. I don't know just how

they reasoned it, but I think it was the fonn of ver-

dict that perhaps misled them a little bit. I didn't

notice it, and I know the Court didn't notice it until

it came in from the jury.

Now, surely, the defendant is the prevailing party

in this case. Here the plaintiff sues for a large sum

and gets nothing. We didn't sue them for the
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counterclaim. We just set it up, the counterclaim, ir

this suit when they sued us for $21,000.00. I thinly

it would be pretty farfetched to [247] hold now thai

the plaintiff is the prevailing party. They sued us,

and the case was fairly tried and submitted to a

jury, and the jury found, while they found thai

they were entitled—there was no logic or no reason

or nothing on which they could base that verdict oi

$368.70, except to offset the counterclaim, and what

they apparently intended to do was give the plain-

tiff nothing and the defendant nothing, which waf^

satisfactory and which was the result of the case.

Now, as I say, these authorities, I think the Court

will find, wherever you look, I think, will not go

into that to any extent because of that provision in

the i-ule which makes it at all times in the discre-

tion of the Court. Now^, here is a case that I did

find, 176 F. 2d 1, Chicago Sugar Co. v. American

Sugar Refining Co., which discusses somewhat

briefly the matter of costs. It says: "As we under-

stand it, the denial of costs to the prevailing party"

—now, even if they were the prevailing party, there

would be a reason for denying costs
—"the denial of

costs to the prevailing party or the assessment of

partial costs against him is in the nature of a

penalty for some defection on his part in the course

of the litigation as, for example, by calling unneces-

sary witiH^sses, bringing in unnecessary issues oi

otherwise encumbering the record, or by delaying in

raising objection fatal to the plaintiff's case.'' He

cites a large number of cases there. "A party, al^
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though prevailing, would be denied [248] costs for

needlessly bringing or prolonging litigation."

I think that same reason would apply to this case

even if technically, because of the jury's insertion

of that small amount there, which is offset by our

counterclaim, even if technically they could say that

the plaintiff still is the prevailing party, and, while

they did not call any unnecessary witnesses or didn't

prolong the trial unnecessarily, none of those things

happened, but they did sue the defendant for a large

sum of money and brought them into court to de-

fend when we showed, I think, to the perfect satis-

faction of the jury that the contract whicli they had

had been violated on their part; so, if the Court

could possibly hold that the ])laintiff is the prevail-

ing party in this case. why. I am sure in the ex-

ercise of discretion the Court would almost have to

hold that the defendant is entitled to costs. Now,

our costs is not very nuich. They <'\re only twf^nty

dollars with the excei)tion of attoi-ney's fees, what-

ever the attorney's fees might be, and that, of course,

would be left to the discretion of the Court.

I will give you this memorandum, Judue, and T

will give Mr. Dimond a copy.

Mr. Dimond: If the Court please, briefly, I

would like to dispose of this reiteration to the

counterclaim all the time. The plaintiff admitted all

the allegations of the counterclaim, and that was

settled, and the Court instructed [249] the jury to

that effect, so that should not be brought into this

issue at all.

There aren't too man}^ cases on this subject. The
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ease tliat I cited to the Court is a case where the de

fendant recovered more on his counterclaim tha:

plaintiff recovered in the verdict for the plaintif!

and the Court held there that the defendant was th

prevailing party, and that seems reasonable; if th

defendant gets more than plaintiff, he is the prevail

ing party. But w^e have a draw here as far as th

damages are concerned. I suppose the only thing t

look at is that the scales are tipped a little bit to

ward the plaintiif 's side because he got a verdict. Ii

other words, the jury found a breach of contract o:

the part of the defendant. They didn't want t^

award any damages to the plaintiff', but they di(

find a breach of contract, and in that respect th

plaintiff did ]jrevail. It prevailed certainly mor

than the defendant did.

Now, the discretion of the Court, of course, state

an. equitable principle. The Court can do prett;

much what it pleases here. If it thinks in equit;

that the costs should be divided up or should b

awarded one way or the other, I suppose this is ;

matter of discretion and seldom can be interferet

with on review. But T would like to urge the Cour

in that regard in its discretion to consider the plain

tiff' as the prevailing pai-ty even though it cam(^ ou

of this case [250] with no damages in dollars an(

cents because it was the prevailing party in thi

sense that it won the case. It sustained its allega

tions in the complaint that therc^ had been a bread

of contract and sustained its defense to the defensi

of the defendants that it had in turn breached iti

own contract. The jury apparently found that plain
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tiffs had performed their contract satisfactorily and

that defendants had not.

The Coin-t: TTell, I don't know liow the jury

could have been confused by the forms of verdict if

they read the instructions. I don't know liow T

could have made it any different. I instructed them

that, if they found for the plaintiff, they would

have to deduct $368.70 because it was admitted that

the defendants had that coming on their counter-

claim, and I instructed them that, if they found the

converse, they would return a verdict for the de-

fendants. It is obvious that what the jury wanted

to do is not allow either party anything, and it seems

to me we have got to disregard the form of their

verdict and vie\\- it as merely a device to award

nothing to either ])arty, and, viewing it that way.

then who is the prevailing- ])arty?

Mr. Dimond: Well, if you view it that way, your

Honor, I suppose that each ]iarty would have to pay

its own costs, but I don't want to consent to that.

The Court: Well, T am inclined to think that

each party should pay its own costs. I have felt that

way from the [251] time that the verdict was re-

turned and noting that it was merely a device to

avoid awarding anything to either party, so it will

be the order of the Court that each party will ]iay

its o^^Tl costs.

(End of RerMU-d.) [252]
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ReiDorter's Certificate

United States of America,

Territory of Alaska—ss.

I, Mildred K. Maynard, Official Court Reporte

for the herinabove-entitled Court, do hereby cei

tify:

That as such Official Court Reporter I reporte

the above-entitled cause, viz., United Press Associ?

tions, a corporation, vs. Sidney Dean Charles, Pai

S. Charles, Patricia Charles, and the Pioneer Prin"

ing Company, a corporation, No. 7031-A of the fik

of said court

;

That I reported said cause in shorthand and ni}

self transcribed said shorthand notes and reduce

the same to typewriting;

That the foregoing pages, numbered 1 to 252, bot

inclusive, contained a full, true and correct trai

script of all the testimony and proceedings at th

trial of the above-entitled cause, to the best of m
ability.

Witness, my signature this 11th day of Angus

1955.

/s/ MILDRED K. MAYNARD,
Official Court Reporter.

[Endorsed] : Filed August 11, 1955. [253]
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PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT No. 1

In the District Court for the District of Alaska,

Division Number One, at Juneau

Civil Action No. 7031-A

UNITED PRESS ASSOCIATIONS,

Plaintiff,

vs.

SIDNEY DEAN CHARLES, PAUL S. CHARLES
and PATRICIA CHARLES, and the PIO-

NEER PRINTING COMPANY, a Corpora-

tion,

Defendants.

PLAINTIFF'S REQUEST FOR ADMISSIONS

August 18, 1954

Plaintiff requests defendants, within ten days

after sei'vice of this request, to make the following-

admissions for the purpose of this action only, and

subject to all pertinent objections as to admissibility

which may be interposed at the trial

:

1. That a copy of a letter dated August 9, 1945,

addressed to Sidney D. Charles, Ketchikan, Alaska,

and signed by Edwin Moss Williams, is a true and

genuine copy of the original letter bearing the same

date and that it was received by defendants, or any

of them in due course.

2. That a copy of a letter dated June 30, 1945,

addressed to Mr. Sidney D. Charles, Ketchikan,
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Alaska, signed by Murray M. Moler, and l^earin^

the signature of Sid. D. Charles under the words

"Accepted by" in the lower left-hand corner oi

said letter, is a true and genuine copy of the orig-

inal letter bearing the same date, that it was receivec

by defendants, or any of them, in due course, and

that it was "accepted by" the defendant, Sidney D
Charles.

3. That a copy of a letter dated September 4,

1945, addressed to Mr. Sid D. Charles, Ketchikan,

Alaska, and signed by Dan Bowerman, is a true and

genuine copy of the original letter bearing the

same date and that it was received by defendants,

or any of them, in due course.

4. That a copy of the letter dated September 8,

1945, addressed to ]Mr. Dan Bowerman, San Fran-

cisco, California, and signed by Sid D. Charles, ij:

a true and genuine copy of the original letter bear-

ing the same date and that it was written on liehali

of defendants, or any of them, in this cause.

5. That a copy of the letter dated March 21st

1946, addressed to Mr. Sid Charles, Ketchikan,

Alaska, and signed by P. A. Miner, is a true and

genuine copy of the original letter bearing the

same date and that it was received l)y defendants,

or any of them, in due course.

6. That a copy of the letter dated on April 8

1946, addressed to Pierre A. Miner, New York City

and signed by Sid D. Charles, is a true and genuine

copy of the original letter bearing the same date and
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that it was written on behalf of the defendants, or

any of them, in this cause.

7. That a copy of the letter dated April 11, 1946,

addressed to Mr. Sid D. Charles, Ketchikan, Alaska,

and signed by P. A. Miner, is a true and genuine

copy of the original letter bearing the same date and

that it was received by defendants, or any of them

in due course.

8. That a copy of the letter dated October 9,

1946, addressed to Mr. Sid Charles, Ketchikan,

Alaska, and signed by Dan Bowerman, is a true

and genuine copy of the original letter bearing the

same date and that it was received by defendants, or

any of them, in due course.

9. That a copy of a letter dated October 12,

1946, addressed to Mr. Dan Bowerman, San Fran-

cisco, California, and signed by Sid D. Charles, is

a true and genuine copy of the original letter bear-

ing the same date and that it was written on be-

half of the defendants, or any of them, in this

cause.

10. That a copy of the letter dated January 7,

1950, addressed to Mr. Sid D. Charles, Ketchikan,

Alaska, and signed by Fred J. Green, is a true and

genuine copy of the original letter bearing the

same date and that it was received by defendant,

or any of them, in due course.

11. That a copy of the letter dated February 6,

1950, addressed to Mr. Sid D. Charles, Ketchikan,

Alaska, and signed by Fred J. Green, is a true and
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genuine copy of the original letter bearing the sam(

date and that it was received by defendant, or an;^

of tilem in due course.

12. Tliat a copy of the document entitled "^Lodi

fication of Agreement," dated Februar}^ 21, 195C

and signed on ])eh.a]f of the Alaska Fishing Newi

by Sid D. Charles, and on behalf of United Presi

Associations by Jack Bisco, is a true and genuin(

copy of the original "Moditication of Agreement,'

and that it was executed on behalf of Alaska Fish

ing Xews by defendant Sid D. Charles.

13. That a copy of the letter dated February 13

1951, addressed to Mr. Sid D. Charles, Ketchikan

AJaska, and signed by Plarry Carlson, is a true anc

genuine copy of the original letter bearing th(

same date and that it was received by defendants

or any of them, in due course.

14. That a co])y of the letter dated January 18

1954, addressed to Mrs. M. J. Flood, Ketchikan

Alaska, and signed by David F. Belnap, is a tru(

and genuine copy of the original letter bearing th(

same date and that it was received by defendants

or any of them, in due course.

15. That a copy of the telegTam dated February

15, 1954, addressed to David Belnap, and signed bj

Paul S. Charles, is a true and genuine copy of the

original telegram bearing the same date and that il

was written and sent on behalf of the defendants, oi

anv of them, in this cause.
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Dated at Juneau, Alaska, this 17tb day of Au-

:ust, 1954.

/s/ JOHN H. DIMOND,
Attorney for Plaintilf.

Receipt of copy acloiow]edged.

Alaska Fishing News
Ketchikan, Alaska

June 30, 1945.

Mr. Sidney D. Charjes,

Editor and Publisher,

The Alaska Fishing News,

Ketchikan, Alaska.

Dear Mr. Charles:

With reference to an agreement made between

us today for United Press News Service to the

Alaska Fishing News, it is mutually understood

that as a condition to execution of such agreement,

an authorized officer of United Press will write you

confirming that the following understandings are

integral parts of said agreement:

1—That the service mentioned in Clause One

tliereof shall consist of one hour of teletype service,

daily from Seattle over facilities of the Army Signal

Corps, to.lls to be ])aid by Publisher and teletype to

l)e furnished bv United Press.
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2—That a teletype machine will be installed s

soon as possible and services started on a basis c

one honr of service on each of the three da.ys pe

week on which The Alaska Fishing News is pnl

lished. Such service will continue on a thrice-weekl

basis until The Alaska Fishing News begins dail

pTiblication, upon which time all terms of The Agref

ment will become effective. For the thrice-weekl

service, the Publisher will pay The United Pres

the sum of $32.17 weekly and also pay the Signj

Corps tolls.

Sincerely yours,

/s/ MURRAY M. MOLER,
Alaskan Representative,

United Press.

Accepted by:

/s/ SID D. CHARLES.

Airmail

September 4, 1945.

Mr. Sid D. Charles,

Ketchikan Fishing News,

Ketchikan, Alaska.

Deal- ]\Ir. Charles:

This will answer the questions in your Auguf

28 letter to Mr. Williauis concerning possibility c

teletype service to the Fishing News.
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As you know, we proposed to absorb the oper-

ator's salary ourselves for the first six months of

teletype service. At the end of the six months, if

we had not succeeded in getting additiona.1 xllaska

business to help carry the operator cost, we wanted

you to have your option of bearing the cost there-

after, or of changing over to your present type of

service.

Minimum weekly salary for an operator is $52.50.

They get wage increases based on seniority so that

the exact cost would be higher in the event an

operator with lots of seniority bid in the jol).

However, we are mlling to peg the cost to you at

$52.50 a week, absorbing any loss over that amount

ourselves. As we added other clients in Alaska, of

course, we would prorate the o])erator cost among

tliom. so that the cost would decrease to you.

The cost of your ])resent type of service, filed six

days a week instead of the present three days, plus

airmail followup would be $20 a week, tolls collect.

I had hoped to have Murray Moler call on you

again before this, but the unexpectedly—sudden

capitulation of Japan required that he cover the oc-

cupation of Northern Japan, and it's hard to say

now when he'll get back to the Alaskan mainland.

I would appreciate it if you'd drop me a letter

letting me know whether you wish to proceed with

tolls—collect press until such time as we can line

u]) other Alaskan business, or whether you wish to

go ahead with teletype, with us absorbing the oper-
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ator loss for the initial six months, and yon abso]

iw'j; it thereafter.

Sincerely yours,

DAN BOWERMAN.

March 21st, 1946

Mr. Sid Charles,

The Alaska Fishing News,

Keteliikan, Alaska.

Dear Mr. Charles:

Teletype service was started to the Alaska Fii

ing News effective October 3rd, 1945. As you '^

recall, we agreed to pay the Seattle operator duri

the first six months of this service and that i

mouth period expires on April 3rd, 1946.

In accordance with your letter of September 8

you advised our Mr. Bowerman that if at the end

six months you decided to continue the teletype se;

ice, you would assume the operator charge of $52

weekly: otherwise ycni would reduce the form

service. Even though we have not been al)]e, as y

to develop any further Alaska teletype business,

are williug to coutinue our arrangemeut, you to ;

sume the operator charge of $52.50. As a matter

fact, due to a uew contract with the Commerc

Telegrai)hers' Fuiou, the cost of the operator 1

risen so thnt it is doav costiug about $80.00 a we*
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However, we are willing to stand by our agreement

with you at the figure of $52.50.

Will you pjease air mail me your reply? We will

have to advise the operator and place the necessary

orders if you want to discontinue the teletype serv-

ice.

Sincerely yours,

P. A. MINER.
PAMJR

The Ketchikan Daily News

April 8, 1946.

Pierre A. Miner,

Assistant Commercial Manager,

United Press Association,

General Office,

News Building,

New York City.

Dear Sir:

Your letter of March 21 at hand. While express-

ing appreciation for the six months reduced service,

and also for your offer of $52.50 instead of $80 per

week extra, we are in the position of being penalized

because the United Press has no other Alaska con-

nections. Our competitor here taking AP divides

his costs with other stations.

Tlip radio station manager here prefers the UP
and we tried again to arrange with him a switch
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from AP to UP, but were told that Kraft, i

Juneau, owner of the stations here and in Juneai

wanted a i-ate lower than UP cared to fnrnis]

Naturally we have to see our rival get any advai

tage, as the competition is sharp. There is "grap*

vine talk" that Captain Austin E. Latrop is goin

to put a newspaper plant in Anchorage. We can onl

hope that with Alaska expanding, UP will he o

the job and cut in on more patrons to share tl

cost with us.

AVill state that your Seattle office is very coopers

tive. By the way, wish hereafter to secure with tli

report leading stocks, also will Avant baseball score

of major leagues later. Am enclosing a sample c

stock quotations in condensed form. Should I writ

the Seattle office or wi.ll you so instruct them?

Your very truly,

THE DAILY ALASKA
FISHING NEWS,

SID D. CHARLES.
AP37
STOCKS

AJ8 7/S

AC 6 %
ACN 95 %
APL16ys
T 191%
ANA 47 i/i

BO 29 Vs

CMS 4 y^
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CW 7 %
IH 94 1/2

JL 45 %
K56
XK23
NYC 27 7/8

NP 3] %
PKD 103/8

UAL 44%
UC 5 %
USS 85

SALES 1,560,000

INDUSTRIALS 203.12

RAILS 65.15

UTILITIES 42.28

POUND 4.03 1/2

CANADIAN EXCHANGE 90.85

W132PPS

April 11th, 1946.

Mr. Sid D. Charles,

The Daily Alaska Fishing News,

Ketchikan, Alaska.

Dear Mr. Charles

:

Thank you for your kind letter of April 8th.

In accordance with your letter, we are increasing

your weekly billings as of April 3rd.

I am airmailing a copy of your letter to our

Seattle office so that they can be guided according! }-
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regarding your stock list and the major league bas

ball scores.

Again, thank you for your cooperation.

Sincerely,

P. A. MINER.
PAM:HS

(Airmail)

October 9, 1946.

Mr. Sid Charles,

The Fishing News,

Ketchikan, Alaska.

Dear Mr. Charles:

My New York office advises they have received

request from you that we change your service
'

1,000 words of collect telegraph daily because of \\

high cost of the leased wire plus operator.

We have had Malcolm Donnelley doing some ii

tensive work in Alaska for the past several month

in a vigorous effort to line up some more clien

and thus reduce the cost of the operator throng

sharing this expense. However, to date we have ui

succeeded.

We \\411, of course, go to the basis of 1,000 wor(

by DPR if you prefer, but before doing so I wou
like to ])ut the following up to you

:
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That United Press share the operator expense

with you, on an open basis, for an indefinite j)eriod

of time while we continue our efforts to line up

added clients to share the expense. We simply

would reduce your billing by $25.00 per week and

absorb that cost ourselves. Then, if w^e succeeded in

jidding one more client, w^e Avoujd ]nll the $25.00

operating expense to him. If we added more than

one, the total expense would be split three or more

ways, bringing your figure dow'n below $25.00.

By leaving this on an indefinite basis, I mean

that you would retain your privilege of going on a

],000-word overhead basis if you later decided to

do so. Similarly, we w^ould retain the privilege of

giving you your choice of either going to the over-

head basis or resuming the entire operator cost,

should we find it advisable some time in the future

to do so.

I would appreciate it if you'd airmail me whether

you prefer to retain the present service at a reduc-

tion of $25.00 per week, or w^hether you wash to go

on the overhead basis.

Sincerely yours,

DAN BOWERMAN.
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January 1, 1950

Mr. Sid D. Charles,

The Ketchikan Daily News,

Ketchikan, Alaska.

Dear Sid: .

'1

Acknowledging your letter of Dec. 27th to C;

Molander in New York, both Carl and Dan Bow
man in San Francisco put me to work pronto to

vestigate ways and means of meeting your situati*

There are two possibilities I am now in proci

with. First we are making a complete checkup Ik

on Alaska schedules, operator costs, consolidati

of your schedule with Anchorage to determine ji

what saving can be made.

Secondly, and this one will be a honey if we c

accomplish it, we are arranging to check whetl

our San Francisco to Honolulu news files can

])icked up in Ketchikan. Tests heve been complel

at KENI in Anchorage that show they can be picls

up there with excellent results. Even a limited t(

on bringing them in on a teletyj^e receiver was ma
successfully and we are shipping up a teletype i

prolonged tests.

I talked with Bill Wagner of Alaska Broadcasti

Co. this morning, who as you know owns the stati

i\i Ketchikan. Bill assured me he would be glad

cooperate on tests. I do not know just what equi

mcnt lie has there for doing so Init we are checki

up.
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Enejosed is a schedule of our MacKay transmis-

sion to Honolulu giving times and frequencies which

you may care to discuss yourself with the engineer

at KTKN.

KENI used a simple little frequency shift keyer

to make their preliminary tests.

Here's what would be accomplished for you if

this is worked out: You would get a large and com-

2)lete tile of natioual and woi'ld uews daily that

would give you a much more complete selection than

it is possible to give you under the ])resent arrange-

ment where ACS ti-ansmission to.Us uiust be i)aid

and you would save the hirge toll cost which you

now pay. We could supi^lement this file with a short

one on news of specific interest to Alaska sent di-

rect to you by ACS and direct protcH'tive coverage

on the ones.

I'll report further to you very soon, Sid, and I

assure you that we are making sincere efforts to get

the problem worked out. Actually our additional

Alaska business has materially increased the o])er-

ating cost of this bureau instead of adding to the

net but we are appreciative of your situation and

are doing something about it.

Cordiallv,

FRED J. GREEN.

cc: Carl Mojander

Dan Bowerman

J. L. Hoppes
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Uinted Press Associations

General Offices

News Building New York City

February 6, 195C

Seattle Bureau,

100 Fourth Ave. North.

Seattle 9, Wash.

Mr. Sid D. Charles,

The Ketchikan Daily News,

Ketchikan, Alaska.

Dear Sid:

We have gone over the situation thoroughly i

tind no wa}" to make an immediate saving h(

However, we do appreciate your situation and ^

therefore offer you some immediate relief. We t

reduce your rate $20 per week starting Febru,

19t]i under the euclosed modification of agreemeni

This provides suspension of the rate clause

our agreement for an indefinite period and the ;

per week reduction in rate during such suspensi

The term of the agreement to be extended by

leugtli of time of the suspension.

I have talked this over with Perry Hilleary ^

is now in the office and he has all the facts from <

standpoint. Perry says he will return to Ketchil

ou Wednesday or Thursday of this week.

If you will sign both copies of the enclosed mr

h cation and return both to me, I will theu forwj
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them to New York for execution by an officer of

United Press and one executed copy will be re-

turned to you.

Adding Alaska clients has not reduced our cost

l^er point as we had hoped. Additional operators

have been required and a news service tailored to

Alaska needs and of the best quality have developed

with the Alaska business. We have gone over the

whole thing in detail, and have foinid no way to cut

these expenses and maintain a quality service. Ys'e

do want to meet your situation and are therefore

wijling to dig down for our share on the above rate

reduction. We are continuing the tests on picking up

the San Francisco to Honolulu news transmissions

in Alaska. Good possibilities may develop from that

and we shall keep you advised.

It has been very pleasant talking with your Perry

Hilleary who appears to be a very able young man.

Kindest personal regards.

Cordially,

FRED J. GREEN.
cc: CBM DB

MODIFICATION OF AGREEMENT

New York, February 21, 1950.

With reference to the agreement between United

Press Associations and The Alaska Fishing News

for United Press news service to The Alaska Fish-
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ing News at Ketchikan, Alaska (now known as T^

Ketchikan Daily News) it is mutually agreed that

1. The rate mentioned in CJause II thereof

suspended by mutual agreement starting Februa

19, 1950, and the rate during such suspension shj

be $52.52 per week.

2. This suspension may be terminated by eith

l)arty at any time upon thirty days notice and t

weekly rate would then return to the present figu

of $72.52 per week.

3. The term of the agreement between the parti

shall be extended by the length of time during whi

the above suspension is in effect.

UNITED PRESS ASSOCIA-
TIONS,

By JACK BISCO,

Vice-President.

THE ALASKA FISHING
NEWS,

By SID D. CHARLES.
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Blinds: FHB CBM
February 13, 1951.

Mr. Sid D. Charles,

Ketchikan Daily News,

Ketchikan, x\laska.

Dear Sid.

Your letter of January 23 asking that we cut

down our one-hour pony to 30 minutes to help you

reduce costs has been forwarded to me. Fred Green

has been transferred to Los Angeles and my superi-

ors asked me to make a study of the situation be-

cause I have had tirst-hand experience with the

Alaska service for several years.

First of al.l, if you cut your news service in half,

T feel it would be a risk to you. The world's news in

just 3,000 words would be reflected in your editions

and I'm very much afraid you soon would tind it to

be a dangerous economy. The savings in tolls would

amount to only $13.50 per week.

Secondly, the reduction would not lessen our cost

of operators and filing procedure at all, so there

would be no savings we could pass on to you. In-

creased costs have far outrun the Alaska revenue

we have added since we first started serving The

Fishing News.

Fred and I hoped last year's modification reduc-

ing your rate $20 would help see you through a

tough period. And now, as your battle goes on, I

don't want to see the News weakened by a skeleton

]iews report.
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Since my bosses referred your letter to me, I ha

some authority to make a recommendation. And tli

is my idea: how would you go for a new agre

ment altogether, with a flat rate of $50 a week f

a 10-year period? The lower rate would be a help

you and it would be offset by a longer period

service for United Press.

You helped establish United Press in Alaska ai

we all have a real desire to see our pioneer die

through to victory. You are putting up a sw(

light to give Ketchikan an independently edit<

newspaper. I've been watching that battle dov

here ever since you and Bud told me about it.

That rate is a hunidhiger, but T think UP will <

for it with the confidence I have that the Ketchikj

Daily News is going to be around for a long time

we do our part. I hope the proposal looks good

you. It is fair to both you and United Press.

I wish we could talk about this across a desk (

ill your room at the Sorrento Hotel, but I hope yc

know I'm personally anxious to see you win th,

battle up there.

Best regards,

Harrv Carlson.



vs. Sidney Dean Charles, et al., etc. 237

bcc: FHB FJG DDW LK CBM PAM

Seattle, AYash.

January 18, 1954.

M]s. M. J. Flood,

Ketchikan Daily News,

P. O. Box 79,

Ketchikan, Alaska.

Dear Mrs. Flood

:

Thank you for your letter of January 14 sent in

reply to my telegram of January 13. In my tele-

gram, I said I had just received word from our

Xew York office regarding your recent letter di-

rected there in which you referred to a previous

letter of November 14, the original of which was

never received in New York.

I also said I was perplexed by your reference to

cancellation since the agreement between us had re-

newed a short time ago and a new term is now in

effect. In addition there is an extension of the term

by the conditions of a modification to the principal

agreement made in February, 1950.

Clause Eighth of the agreement between us estab-

lishes machinery for the termination of that agree-

]]iont. Neither of us has ever entered a cancellation

against the agreement in conformity mth the pro-

visions established in Clause Eighth, and the agree-

ment tliTis continues in full force and effect. We
cannot, therefore, discontinue service to you.

T have taken the liberty of turning over to Martin

Heerwald, our Washington-Alaska news manager.
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your comments on Alaska news coverage. We ha

a continuing program to expand and improve o

service in every department, and your commei

will be helpful to him. Heerwald will be in Alas

himself later this week, and I have asked him to ^

in touch with you for a more detailed discussion

these points.

With respect to our rates, my records here sh(

that the increases you mentioned have been mc

than offset by reductions which have totaled neai

$50 per week during the past seven years. The lat(

reduction, amounting to $20, was made in Februai

1950, and is still in effect. It seems to me on t

basis of the information I have here that we ha

been very fair in the matter of rate reductions

the past, making these in the face of constani

mounting costs to us to produce our news repo

I'm personally prepared to discuss the matter

rates with you further if you wish.

We have always been proud to be on your iet

at Ketchikan, and I regret very much that a m
understanding has arisen Avith respect to our agr(

mcut. It's my earnest hope that this letter wi],l he

to clarify the matter and that everything w
shortly be straightened out to our mutual satisfy

tion.

AVith warmest regards aud good wishes, I am

Cordially yours,

DAVID F. BELNAP.
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WUS103 26 PD

Ketchikan, Alaska, Feb. 15, 1003P 1954.

David Belnap,

United Press Service Konio Bldg., Seattle, Wash.

Discontinue Press Service at Once am Shipping

Teletype Via Freight Until UP Can Meet Terms

and Service of Associated Press We Cannot Con-

tinue to Accept Service.

PAUL S. CHARLES,
Daily News.

240P

[Letters dated August 9, 1945: Se])tember 8, 1945,

and October 12, 1946, a portion Plaintiff's Exhibit

No. 1, are identical to .letters attached to the Com-

plaint. These letters are printed on pages 12 to 16

of this record.]

[Endorsed] : Filed August 21, 1954.

Received in evidence April 13, 1955.

PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT No. 2

Agreement

[This portion of Plaintiff's Exhibit No. 2 is

identical to Exhibit A of the Complaint. This ex-

hibit is printed on i)ages 6 to 11 of the record.]
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Alaska Fishing News

August 28, 1945.

Edwin Moss Williams,

United Press Associations,

News Building,

New York City, N. Y.

Dear Sir:

In reply to yours of August 9. How much won

an operator cost in case of a teletype being i

stalled? Since Ave were the hrst to petition your coi

pany for a teletype for a combination rate wi

the local radio station, and you a,llowed Associate

Press to "jump the gun" on you, it seems we a

to be penalized for our enterprise. However, that

"water over the wheel." But we would be less th;

human if we did not remind you of our efforts

the past few years to get you to hold and ex])ai

your service in Alaska.

Frankly, we question whether the extra expen

for even a six months' trial and the possible addi

cost of an operator would be justified. After spen

ing a large sum for our own building and modei

machinery, the weakest link in our ambition to ha""

the leading paper will be, it seems, competition :

press service.

Anyway, let ns Imow the expense of an operato

Also Jet us know what charge you will make f(

giving ns the ]U'osent service daily, instead of tlirc
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times a week, with a follow up by airmail as you are

doing now, from Seattle.

Thank you for your prompt reply to this inquiry.

Yours very truly,

THE ALASKA FISHING
NEWS,

/s/ SID D. CHARLES,
Editor.

Ketchikan, Alaska, Fishing News

Effective January 6th, 1946, total basic rate in-

creased by $1.15 per week account operators' in-

crease. This to be applied against One hour 6 Day
Printer service.

Eifective December 29th, 1946, total basic rate in-

creased by $3.09 per week account operators' in-

crease. This to be applied against One hour 6 Day

Printer sendee.

Effective January 9th, 1949, total basic rate in-

creased by $3.09 per week account operators' in-

crease. This to be applied against One hour 6 Day

Printer.

Effective January 9th, 1949, total basic rate in-

creased by $2.06 i)er week account operators' in-

crease. This to be applied against One hour 6 Day

Printer.
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Modification of Agreement

New York, February 21, 1950.

With reference to the agreement between Unite

Press Associations and The Alaska Fishing Ne^?

for United Press news service to The Alaska Fis]

ing News at Ketchikan, Alaska (now known -,

The Ketchikan Daily News) it is mutually agree

that:

1. The rate mentioued in Clause II thereof

suspended by mutual agreement starting Februai

19, 1950, and the rate during such suspension sha

be $52.52 per week.

2. This suspension may be terminated by eith(

party at any time upon thirty days notice and tl

weekly rate would then return to the present figui

of $72.52 per week.

3. The term of the agreement between the partii

shall be extended by the length of time during whic

the above suspension is in effect.

[Seal] UNITED PRESS ASSOCIA-
TIONS,

By /s/ JACK BISCO,
Vice President.

THE ALASKA FISHING
NEWS,

By /s/ SID D. CHARLES.

Received in evidence Ai)ril 13, 1955.
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Ketchikan, Alaska, Fishing- News

Extraordinary Cost Assessment—Effective January

7, 1951, $4.75 per week.

Effective May 5, 1953, total basic increased by

$4.18 per week account Labor Increase. This to be

applied against One hour 6 Day Printer service.

[Letters dated August 9, 1945 ; September 8, 1945,

and October 12, 1946, a portion of this PJaintiff's

Exhibit No. 2, are identical to letters attached to

the Complaint. These letters are printed on pages

12 to 15 of this reco]'d. Letters dated September

4, 1945, March 21, 1946, April 8, 1946, April 11,

1946, and October 9, 1946, a portion of this Plain-

tiff's Exhibit No. 2, are identical to letters appearing

in Plaintiff's Exhibit No. 1. These letters are

printed on pages 222 to 229 of this record.]

Received in evidence April 13, 1955.

PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT No. 3

The Ketchikan Daily News

February 10, 1950.

Mr. Fred J. Green,

L^nited Press Associations,

Seattle Bureau,

100 Fourth Ave.,

Seattle 9, AVash.

Dear Mr. Green:

We are enclosing the two signed copies of the

Modification Agreement as requested in your letter

of Februarv 6th.
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Mr. Hilleary has not returned, from Seattle ye

hence we have not heard of his visit with you, bi

we would like to take this opportunity to thank yo

for your cooperation in the matter.

We keep hoping that "tomorrow the axe will fall

on our opposition down the street but in the meai

time such reinforcements as j^ours keeps the wo"

from our door.

Sincerely yours,

/s/ SID D. CHARLES.

Received in evidence April 13, 1955.

PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT No. 5

April 15, 1936.

Mr. Sid D. Charles,

(Airmail)

Ketchikan Fishing News,

Ketchikan, Alaska.

Dear Mr. Charles

:

Pete Miner of our New York office sent me a cop

of your April 8 letter, in which you remarked thci

your competitor at Ketchikan divides his cost wit

other stations, and in which you regretted that w
had been unable to make a deal with Ed Kraft fo

the Ketchikan station.

We certainly did our darndest to work out some

thing with Kraft that would also benefit you, bu
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the fact is that he is not sharing costs with your

competitor, and the deal he wanted would not have

shared UP costs either. In view of this, we thought

it best to leave him alone.

What Kraft is using is not the full teletype that

goes to the newspaper, or any part of it. Instead, he

is taking 30 minutes of teletype a day at an hour that

is not of use to a newspa])er, and su])plementing it

by airmail drops from Seattle. He does not use any

of the newspaper teletype copy and did not want to

make any deal for using same, despite the fact it

would be of value to him.

I had not heard that Caj) Lathrop is conteiuplat-

ing a newspaper at Anchorage. For your confidential

information, another Anchorage pai-ty wanted to

start a paper there, but found himself absolutely

stymied on getting newsprint, and was forced to

check the idea unti'^1 new^sprint becomes available.

Best regards,

/s/ DAN,

DAN BOWERMAN.

cc: Harry Carlson,

United Press,

Seattle, Wash.



246 United Press Associations, etc.

February 5, 1949.

Mr. Sid D. Charles,

Publisher,

The Ketchikan Daily News,

Ketchikan, Alaska.

Dear Sid:

Carl Molander has sent me your letter of Janua:

29, with instructions to immediately rectify tl

editorial shortcomings you outlined.

Concerning the operators' assessment, I probab

wish it was possible to get the transmissions c

ordinated even more than you do. The more hm
ness we add in Alaska, the more money we seem

lose, because every client wants his copy at a diffe

ent time of day, and instead of being able to send

every one at once and reduce the teletype operatoi

cost, we have to keep hiring more teletype operatoi

And, while we probably could work out a mutual 1

agreeable filing time for the Ketchikan News ai

the Anchorage News, the ACS runs those as tv

sepai'ate circuits so that the files cannot be combine

Editorially, my impression was that we were mil

ahead of the AP as a general rule, and I'm gli

to have it pointed out that there are defects in tl

cov(^rage.

A^> are goiug to work to remed}^ these at one

and you'll be heariug direct from Harry Carlson ;

Seattle thereon.

Best ])(M'soual regards,

DAN BOWERMAN.
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The Ketchikan Daily News

December 21, 1949.

United Press Association,

General Offices,

News Bnilding, New York City.

Attention: Carl B. Molander.

Gentlemen

:

Your teletype and press service is costing us just

twice the amount the Chronicle, the opposition paper

here, pays to Associated Press. They also get twice

the wordage, one hour in the morning and one hour

in the afternoon. We get one hour daily, from 11 :00

a.m. to 12 :00 noon.

In a letter dated September 4, 1945, your Mr.

Dan Bowerman said: "As we added other clients in

Alaska, of course, we would prorate the operator

cost among them, so that the cost would decrease to

you."

On the contrary, you have added other patrous

and our costs have kept increasing.

On October 9, 1946, Mr. Bowerman said, on ad-

vice from New York

:

"That the United Press share of the operator ex-

pense with you, on an o])en basis for an indefinite

period of time, while we continue our efforts to line

up added clients to share the expense. We simply

would reduce your billing by $25 per week and

absorb the costs oui'selves. Then if we succeeded iu
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adding one more c;lient we would bill the $25 ope

ating expense to him. If we added more than on

the total expense would be split three or more waj

bringing your figure down l^elow^ $25.

Since that letter was written you have added tl

Anchorage News, besides, we understand, some rad

stations. We are told that the latest radio statio

KALA, at Sitka, channeled with the same news ai

at the same hours as our news, has been given a r

duced conbination rate. If that is true, wl

shouldn't we receive the same benefit'?

We are perfectly willing to change our hour

get on the same channel with Anchorage News

order to cut costs.

Frankly, we must cut costs. It just isn't in tl

cards to pay twice as much for half the news whi(

our opponent gets here through the Associate

Press. Unless our rates can be adjusted cooper

tively and in combination with other UP patrons

Alaska, we shalj have to make some other arrang

ment.

Yours very truly,

SID D. CHARLES.

Harry—Original sent to New York office.

/s/ SID.

Keceived iu evidence Aju'il 18, 1955.
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PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT No. 9

The Ketchikan

Daily Alaska Fishing News

October 14, 1946.

United Press Associations,

Star Building,

Seattle, Washington.

Gentlemen

:

Fellows, liere's a bear story we printed which

might be worth a re-hash. It's not many places

where one bear furnishes a meal of apple pies, steak,

and a fine robe for a cabin floor.

Some time ago I probably pulled a boner in ask-

ing you not to repeat any news from Juneau, as T

understood your correspondent there would send

me a carbon copy direct without need of clearing

through the Seattle office. We haven't received a

thing from Juneau for a long time, so perhaps we'd

better depend upon your office for whatever comes

in from any Alaskan town.

Another thing, can't 3^ou give me more shorts

instead of too many long press dispatches? Of

course, in case of really big news, I want full cov-

erage.

On the whole, your service is excellent, and I am
getting splendid co-operation from the Signal Corps,

but eveiy once in a while the opposition seems to

get the edge on a story with an Alaskan slant.
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"We have left only one box of roll paper for th

printer, so please send us a supply at your earl

convenience.

Yours very truly,

THE DAILY ALASKA
FISHING NEWS,

/s/ SID D. CHARLES,
Editor.

The Ketchikan

Daily Alaska Fishing News

November 22, 1946.

Harry Carlson,

United Press Association,

Seattle Bureau,

Seattle, Washington.

Dear Harry:

I know how difficult it is to lay down any hai'i

and fast rules for service. Even though I get peeve(

at times and "blow my top," your staff is doing

fine job, and are always co-operative. As you wi]

notice in the previous letter I sent you, copies whicl

I am enclosing, I stated there was very little interes

here for hockey, although I know there is a larg

national interest.

The main sports of interest here in season ar^

baseball, football, basketball and leading ring con
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tests. Nearly all the school kids play basketball.

There is interest in bowling and an occasional out-

standing score might be all right.

On Mondays I have been picking up basketball

scores from the Sunday P.I. when it arrives. Now,

Harry, it is a hell of a job to try and give explicit

instructions on any of these sports. I do not wish

to sacrifice live news at any time, especially news

with an Alaskan slant, for sports. At best we can

hope only in having a skeleton report of sports and

it takes some nice judgment to know which ones to

feature. Other than for some outstanding game,

about the best we can hope for, is to get score re-

sults for the major games.

Your new service with more shorts is fine.

Thanks again for your interest and pass along to

members of your staff my appreciation. When I

"blow my top," tell them the old geezer, with more

than 40 years newspaper experience in Alaska, has

''missed too many boats."

Give Bob Seal my regards if you see him.

Yours, as ever.

/s/ SID D. CHARLES.

Incl : cc Itr. May 7.

cc Itr. April 16.

SC/mid
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The Ketchikan

Daily Alaska Fishing News

17 March, 1947.

ITnited Press Association,

Seattle Bureau,

Seattle, Washinc^on.

Attention: Harry Carlson.

Dear Harry

:

We have only four rolls of teletype left. We ^^

the single rolls. Ordinarily a roll lasts about o

month. What we have on hand will carry us thr

or possibly four months, so thought we better q

in an order in time. The teletype is working fir

and the fellow from the Signal Corps takes ve

good care of it.

Want to congratulate you boys on the way t

stuff is coming in. Like very much your handling

congress, and am getting a better Alaskan covera^

Keep in mind sending as many short articles

possible, with, of course, always good coverage f

leading stories. Our circulation is continuing to pi

up without solicitation. Now that paper is promise

we intcTid to put on a drive.

Regards to all,

/s/ SID D. CHARLES,

DAILY ALASKA FISHING
NEWS.
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The Ketchikan

Daily Alaska Fishing News

21 April, 1947.

United Press Association,

Seattle Bureau,

Seattle, Washins^toTi.

Dear Harry:

Today, Saturday, received from New York sample

weekly mat service for $1.85 weekly plus 30 cents

airmail. Frankly, Harry, it does not fill our par-

ticular needs, so you can order it cancelled. We will

pay for what is sent meantime. Am givino- you an

extra copy for your New York office.

What we most need are pictures of Alaska, North-

west and Pacific Coast scenes. The reason I aui

writing you directly is because of yoTir syiiipathetic

understaudins; of our setup, and to know if you

have any suggestion. Am wondering if thor(^ is a

possibility of getting your organization there to scud

us mats of outstanding events from the Seattle Star

or other Seattle sources and making the necessary

charge. For instance, your UP dispatch told about

pictures being taken of Ed Kerr, Grand President

of the Alaska Pioneers, and those mats would have

come in fine for our purposes.

This copy also will answer the letter sent us by

Dan Bowerman from the San Francisco office, dated

April 14. Your aiimail service of UP dispatches

from Seattle and the Red Letter service are sri'entlv



254 United Press Associations, etc.

appreciated. Again I want to thank your office p;

ticularly for such fine co-operation.

Yours truly,

/s/ SID D. CHARLES,

DAILY ALASKA FISHING
NEWS.

The Ketchikan

Daily Alaska Fishing News

September 27, 1947

Hariy Carlson,

United Press,

Seattle, Wash.

Dear Harry:

That Jack Ryan's cohunn, "Seattle Calling,"

making a hit with Bud, Bob, myself and the stf

Also have received outside favorable comments. Y
know, while we won't admit it. Southeast Alas

especially, is a sort of suburb of Seattle, and, the

fore, Seattle gossip interests a large number.

Suppose you've read about th(^ $o(),000 libel s'

filed against the Opposition. The joke of it is t1

the editor will hardly dare to divulge the high soui

of where he secured his information.

Let me assur(> you that we appreciate the effo

you and the local W staff in S(>attle are doing i
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coverage. Bob Coleman, one of our linotype oper-

ators, is planning on buying from us enough of our

spare machineiy to start a paper in the co-op colony

at Haines. If deal goes through will let you know
and you might arrange with him for ser\dce. You
can write him, anyway, if you care to. De Armond
said Clark of Juneau was in and is prepaiing to

leave Juneau, but already has informed you so you

can arrange for Juneau coverage.

Yours in haste as usual,

SID D. CHARLES.

UP V Uwk 3 30 Paid Dl

Ketchikan, Alaska, Dec. 24, 1947, 9 a.m.

Harry S. Carlson,

United Press, Seattle.

No Paper Christmas Day. Merry Christmas and

Happy New Years to Yourself and Charming Wife

and Convey Same to Your Efficient Staif. Remem-

ber Latchstring Is on Outside for You All.

SID AND BUD CHARLES.
24/1702Z

Pis Ack

OK UP
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October 8, 1947

Mr. Sid D. Charles,

Daily Alaska Fishing News,

Ketchikan, Alaska.

Dear Sid:

Our New York office has asked me to find out 1

actual street address of the Fishing News in Ketc

kan. We need it for insurance purposes on the te

type machine and a post office box number will i

suffice.

Can you sujiply me your street address, sir?

We liave just moved our bureau headquarters a

I'm snowed under with readjustments and reorga:

zation, which includes the addition of several m
to the staff' and general expansion of our Seat

bureau. Will tell you about it sometime when

have more time. I hope, however, that in the g(

eral confusion of moving you have not suffered ^

our file to you.

Best regards,

HARRY CARLSON.
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The Ketchikan

Daily Alaska Fishing News

Oct. 15, 1947.

Dear Harry:

Street number of the Daily News is 501 Dock
Street.

Note what you say about moving and would be

glad to know details later. The only thing I notice

about the file is lack of receiving briefed stock

news. That is a feature I would like to keep up.

Quite a few are now depending on the stock news

we receive.

Bob and Bud both send their best regards.

Yours truly.

/s/ SID D. CHARLES.

Tell Jack Ryan we think he is doing a swell job

on "Seattle Calling." The Colman Building where

most of the Alaska Salmon cannery people have

their offices, and a lot of other firms connected with

Alaska, might be a good news source for him.

BOB DeARMOND.
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'The Ketchikan Daily News

January 26, 1948,

Harry Carlson,

United Press,

Seattle, Washington.

Dear Harry

:

I want you to pass along the enclosed to IV

Bail lie and tell him from me in all my fifty yes

of active newspaper work I have never seen su

an effort to threw up a smoke-screen or make

mountain out of a mole-hill as the Governor Grue

ing-Sondberg crowd to try and discredit a roporl

—in other words, John Ryan.

We thought in answering the Governor's coi

plaint about the way this paper, The Daily Ne^

handled the Legislature, we had given Mr. Bail

a hint of the one-sided and prejudiced manner

which the Governor's crowd operates. The prese

incident transcends all former efforts.

The "crime" of the News is that it insists

being an independent paper, and not a mere tc

or stoogie the same as our Opposition in this cil

I w^on't even admit that Mr. Ryan pulled a bone

He had good reason for believing his statement w
based on facts. The only loophole they could fi]

is that he, himself, did not attend the meeting. ^

Baillie must have been a repoi'ter at one time li

myself and I would like to ask if he, myself or a

other good re])orter always have met every ocr-asi
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without any slipup. My training Avas that only in

case of personal prejudice or malicious intent, or

refusal to correct any proven eiTors, was there

ground for criticism.

Ryan has been a thorne in the side of the Opposi-

tion ever since he started his newsy column because

of its readers' appeal in this section. The present

correspondence shows to what extent the Governor's

crowd will go to try and discredit any one who

"won't play ball" with it. Tf I were Ryan's chief

I would stand behind him until hell freezes over.

Xow, Harry, I want Mr. Baillie to know the splen-

did co-operation we are getting from your staff. We
are doing all we can to reciprocate. We talked today

to Bill Wagner of the Alaska Broadcasting Com-

pany and he was sympathetic to getting a hookup

with the UP if the UP can get a better coverage

in Alaska in the future. We are not trying to tell

Mr. Baillie how to run his business but we don't

like to see anyone discredited by a "smear cam-

paign'' under the clever guise of "keeping the press

clean."

Yours as ever,

/s/ SID D. CHARLES.
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The Ketchikan Daily News

Feb. 23, 1948.

Dear Harry:

We have on hand now just two rolls of teletyp

paper. One roll lasts about a month. It is singl

rolls. Am enclosing example.

Hariy, your staff is doing an excellent job, bu

would appreciate more "shorts" w^henever possibh

The Congress review each time is excellent an(

handled with skill. The Seattle column also is spe

cially good. In any leading story, of course, we wan

details but in the "mill of run stuff" would ap

preciate more shorts as we are trying to make ,

"newsy looking" front page and don't like to brea]

over too many stories.

We are arranging to go to eight pages in Ma ret

Bob and Bud send their best regards.

Yours truly,

/s/ SID D. CHARLES.

The Ketchikan Daily Ncavs

March 14, 1948.

Dear Hariy:

Meant to answer yours of March 2 sooner, bu

you know how it is with us newspaper guys ii

writing letters. Your letters to Jesse Hogue go

results from Roger Johnson and Rosemarie. Ir

m
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fact, I had about decided that the United Press was

indifferent to our demands, figuring we were too

"small fry" to bother about. So it was indeed re-

freshing to leani that this was not so.

For your own information we were all ready to

sign papers for taking over opposition with promise

of Baker to sign but the entire political gang he is

tied up with came here for the Democratic conven-

tion and he changed his mind, and secured enough

money to make good an lOU sum he had borrowed

from his firm. We had talked over press service and

figured on keeping for a time both UP and AS and

if later one was dropped it would be the AS. As it

\ is now we shall have to slug it out. When our ])res-

ent 6-page rolls are used up we will begin an 8-page

in April and have ordered some additional feature.

Bud and Bob both send their regards, especially to

Mrs. Carlson.

Yours,

/s/ SID D. CHARLES.

The Ketchikan Daily News

April 16, 1949.

Harry Carlson,

Seattle, Washington.

Dear Harry:

Meant to answer yours of April 7 sooner. I admit

the Washington, D. C, service has improved.



262 United Press Associations, etc.

But the breaks seem to be against us in an occe

sional big story. Take the earthquake, for instanc(

Tlie coverage was fine but for the important pai

that no deaths were listed in the first coverag(

People kept calling us on the phone and I ar

swered, fortunately from our account there wei

no deaths, when, lo, the opposition came out tli?

seven deaths were reported.

Now, here's the score: The Chronicle receives it

AP news from 7:00 to 7:30 and 8:00 to 9:00 a.m

and 1:00 to 1:30 p.m. The KTKN radio takes

separate AP report also listed the possible deaths

As ,you know our time is from 11:00 to 12:0

a.m. I noticed the UP repoi-t to the Anchorag

Times on the same day gave two deaths. A brie

added bulletin after 1 :30 p.m.. Chronicle Tim(

would have saA^ed the day for us.

I don't know the full modus operandi of th

Signal Corps. T am told that we cannot receive am
thing during the hours they are sending to the A]

or KTKN. But would it not be ]:>ossible to shoot ,

special wire in case of an emergency ? Anyway, evei

after 1 :30 p.m., latest Chronicle time, a bulletii

still would have saved us.

Now, regarding oui' deadline:

As a usual thing, we try and get the last forn

locked up at 3:00 p.m. Sometimes, under favorabl

conditions, we get going at 2:30 and sometimes

because of delavs, it is 3:30.
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In case of a tip that an Important late file was
coming, Ave could hold our forms. However, unless

it was very important, or supplementary to a story

we already had received, it w^ould be best to hold it

for next day's filing.

As you know, Hany, it is damned hard to lay

down any hard and fast rules. We are cutting into

the circulation of the Opposition. Its biggest assets

seem to be the AP and Drew Pearson's column.

,j
Bud and DeArmond and myself are fully ap-

preciative of your fine co-operation. We fully real-

ize the difficulties you are up against. T recall that

I in early days the UP made a special effort to give

'' increased or rather special coverage of surrounding

districts of its clients. But since it has become an

international organization, it goes on the same

theory as the AP, that is, sf)ecial correspondents

should be hired to get other than mill of the run

news. I am surprised that you have been able to ^^e\

as much as you have for us. Naturally we seem a

"small potato'' in the over-all coverage of the FP.
But the fact remains we initiated the UP entrance

into Alaska, and it is a field well wiu'th getting

special attention from your national headquarters.

Whenever possible, without too much sacrifice of

vital parts of lead stories, we would appreciate more

"shorts."

By the way, your follow up on the Quake story

has been excellent; also like your "human interest"

stories such as the "Weeping Statue," etc.
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Important—Be sure and order teletype roll

Have one left good for about a month. This is tl

third notice. It is single roll ; am enclosing a samp]

Bud says to remind you that the Big Fish Deri

has opened and you might come north and snag

prize salmon. Anywa3% he says send the Mrs. nor

for a vacation and "he'll take care of her." We
see that he will have plenty of competition. Anywa

give Mrs. Carlson our regards.

Yours,

/s/ SID D. CHARLES.

P.S. (Confidential) : We are looking around f<

a good reporter. Bob DeArmond is leaving us

about a month for an operation, and he expects

be gone at least nine months. Should we be able

get a good all-around newspaper man who will a

tend to business, we can reasonably assure him

permanent job.

/s/ S.D.C.

[A letter, dated April 8, 1946, is identical to tl

letter set out in full in Plaintiff's Ex. No. 1. S(

page 225 of this record.]

Received in evidence April 14, 1955.
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DEFENDANTS' EXHIBIT a

The Ketchikan Daily News
Post Office Box 79

Ketchikan, Alaska

November 14, 1953.

United Press Association,

News Building,

New York City, N. Y.

Gentlemen

:

This letter will authorize you to cancel our news

service with the United Press Association as of

January 15, 1954.

We have long contemplated a change, feeling that

we could not continue to pay higher and higher

rates for the same amount of news. When we began

service with you in 1945 the rate per week was

$38.17—it is now $61.45. I am well aware of the

rising costs, but the point is, we are not in the

position to afford it. Over the years we have had a

good deal of correspondence with you on the differ-

ent rate changes. During a visit to Seattle, I stopped

at your Seattle Bureau with the thought in mind

to make arrangements for cancellation and was in-

fonued by your Mr. Beauchamp that perhaps some-

thing could be arranged and not to be hasty in mak-

ing other arrangements. That was in July of this

year. I have not heard from either your Seattle

office or vour own office since then.
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Mr. Charles has been somewhat unhappy with thi

news coverage we get on Alaska in the past and. W(

have been scooped a good many times by our op

position.

We thank you for your past courtesies and hop(

that this cancellation will not prove troublesome fo:

either of us.

Sincerely yours,

M. J. FLOOD.

Received in evidence April 13, 1955.

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

CLERK'S CERTIFICATE

United States of America,

Territory of Alaska,

First Division—ss.

I, J. W. Leivers, Clerk of the United States Dis

trict Court for the District of Alaska, First Divisioi

thereof, do hereby certify that the hereto-attache(

pleadings are the original pleadings and Orders o

the Court filed in the above-entitled cause and ar^

the ones designated by the Appellant hereto to con

stitute the record on appeal herein.

In Witness AVhereof , I have hereunto set my han(

and caused the seal of the above-entitled court to b

affixed at Juneau, Alaska, this 23rd day of Augusi

1955.

[Seal] /s/ J. W. LEIVERS,
Clerk of District Court.
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[Endorsed] : No. 14863. United States Court of

Api^eals for the Ninth Circuit. United Press As-

sociations, a Corporation, Appellant, vs. Sidney

Dean Charles, Paul S. Charles and Patricia Charles

and the Pioneer Printing Company, a Corporation,

Appellees. Transcript of Record. Appeal from the

District Court for the District of Alaska, Division

Number One.

Filed August 25, 1955.

/s/ PAUL P. O'BRIEN,

Clerk of the United States Court of Appeals for the

Ninth Circuit.
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In the United States Court of Appeals

for the Ninth Circuit

No. 14863

UNITED PRESS ASSOCIATIONS, a Corpora

tion,

Appellant,

vs.

SIDNEY DEAN CHARLES, PAUL ^

CHARLES, PATRICIA CHARLES, and i\

PIONEER PRINTING COMPANY, a Coi

poration,

Appellees.

APPELLANT'S STATEMENT OF POINTS

In the United States Court of Appeals for tli

Ninth Circuit, appellant proposes to rely upou tli

following points as error:

1. The court eiTed in making its order of Apr

12, 1955, in which it was ordered that this case t

tried by a jury, and it erred in permitting this cap

to be tried by a Jury and not by the court.

2. With reference to Instruction No. 4 of th

court's instructions to the jury

a. The court erred in instructing the jury ths

the term of the contract, the subject of this actioi

would expire on SexDtember 27, 1957, rather thai

as ay)pellant maintained, on September 27, 1962.

b. The court erred in giving to the jury thn

])ortion of Instruction No. 4 which reads as fol

lows:
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''In determining the amount of damages, if

you find that plaintiff is entitled thereto, you

may consider * * * the probability of change

during the period referred to in the rates, the

cost of doing business, and the margin of profit

as well as the probability or improbability that

the defendants would remain in business."

3. The court erred

a. In entering its judgment of April 22, 1955,

ordering that appellant take nothing by its com-

plaint
;

b. In failing and refusing to ignore the jury's

verdict herein and to make its own independent

findings of fact and conclusions of law; and

c. In failing and refusing to enter judgment for

appellant for adequate and substantial damages, as

established by the evidence, and for a])pellant's costs

and attorneys' fees.

4. The court erred in entering its minute order

of May 20, 1955, denying appellant's motion under

Rule 59, Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, to vacate

judgment or for a new trial.

Dated: August 22, 1955.

/s/ JOHN H. DIMOND,
Attorney for Appellant.

Receipt of copy acknowledged.

[Endorsed] : Filed August 25, 1955.
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No. 14,863

IN THE

United States Court of Appeals

For the Ninth Circuit

United Press Associations,

a corporation,

Appellant,

vs.

Sidney Dean Charles, Paul S. Charles,

Patricia Charles and the Pioneer

Printing Co., a corporation.

Appellees.

Upon Appeal from the District Court for the

District of Alaska, First Division.

BRIEF FOR APPELLANT.

JURISDICTION.

This is an action, tried 'before a jury, in which ap-

pellant sued appellees for damages for breach of

contract in the amount of $21,489.57. (R. 3.) On

April 15, 1955, the jury rendered its verdict in favor

of appellant, awarding- damao-es in the amount of

$368.70. (R. 35.) Judgment was entered on April 22,

1955 (R. 37-38), and on April 25, 1955, appellant

filed its motion under Rule 59, Federal Rules of



Civil Procedure, to open and set aside the judgment

or, in the alternative, for a new trial. (R. 39-40.)

This motion was denied by the District Court

by minute order entered on May 20, 1955. (R. 41.)

An appeal was taken on Jmie 10, 1955, by filing

with the District Court a notice of appeal. (R. 41.)

The jurisdiction of the District Court rests upon the

Act of June 6, 1900, 31 Stat. 322, as amended, 48

USCA Sec. 101 ; the jurisdiction of this Court, on Sec.

1291 of the new Federal Judicial Code.

QUESTIONS PRESENTED.

1. Whether the trial Court committed reversible

error in ordering that this action be tried by a jury

—

in the presence of a waiver of jury trial by appellees

and the absence of a demand therefor by either party.

2. Whether the damages awarded appellant by the

jury were so wholly inadequate as to lead to one or

more of these conclusions

:

(a) That the jury simply ignored the un-

controverted evidence before it and arbitrarily

assessed damages in such a manner that appellant

would take nothing from the litigation—thus giv-

ing rise to an inference of prejudice on the part

of the jury.

(b) That such inadequacy of damages stems

from errors in certain of the court's instructions

to the jury.

(c) That the jury failed to follow other of

the Court's instructions.



3. Whether the damages awarded appellant were

so totally inadequate that the trial Court's refusal

to either enter judgment for appellant for the correct

amount of damages or to grant a new trial was such

an abuse of discretion as to he reviewable by this

Court.

4. Whether this Court should modify and in-

crease the judgment below so as to allow appellant

damages in the amount established by the uncontra-

dicted evidence, or whether this Court should grant

a new trial to be restricted solely to the issue of

damages.

STATEMENT.

On or about June 30, 1945, appellees, Sidney Dean

Charles, Paul S. Charles and Patricia Charles, a

partnership doing business under the name of
'

' Alaska

Fishing News", entered into a written contract with

appellant. United Press Associations, a New York

corporation engaged in the business of accumulating

and disseminating news reports to newspapers and

radio stations. Under the terms of this contract, ap-

pellant agreed to furnish its regular news report to

appellees for use in their newspaper published at

Ketchikan, Alaska, and appellees agreed to pay for

such news report a specified sum of money each

week. (R. 3-18.) Appellee, Pioneer Printing Co., an

Alaska corporation, is the successor to the Charles'

partnership, and on or about April, 1948, this corpo-

ration took over the ownership and publication of the



Charles' paper—it being then and subsequently called

the '^ Ketchikan Daily News." (R. 106.)

This contract, although originally for only a three-

year term, was automatically renewed from time to

time, and each of the parties performed its part of

the bargain under the contract until about February

14, 1954, when appellees wrongfully and wilfully

breached the contract by refusing to accept and pay

for any further service. (R. 5, 58-59, 88.) At this

time the term of the contract had been extended and

would not have expired until September 27, 1962.

(R. 4, 84-86.)

On April 23, 1954, appellant commenced this action,

demanding judgment for breach of contract in the

amount of $21,489.57—this representing appellant's

loss of profits, or the difference between the aggregate

amount that appellant would have been entitled to

receive under the contract and the costs to appellant

of furnishing its news service to appellees during the

unexpired term of the contract, i.e., from February 14,

1954, to September 27, 1962. (R. 7, 88-98.)

On May 15, 1954, appellees filed their answer to

appellant's complaint (which included a counterclaim

for certain drafts, totaling $368.70, inadvertently

cashed by appellant) (R. 18-23), and on June 4, 1954,

appellant served and filed its reply to the counter-

claim—admitting the material allegations thereof,

including the countoi-claim. (R. 23-24.) Nearly two

months later, on August 5, 1954, appellees moved for

a jury trial—basing such motion upon Rules 38 (a)

and 39 (b) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.



(R. 24.) This motion was argued by the parties, and
then denied by the District Court. (R. 25, 46-47.)

For the next five and one-half months nothing

further was done in respect to this matter, and the

case was eventually set down for trial, before the

Court and not a jury, at Ketchikan, Alaska, on

April 13, 1955. Two days prior to the trial date, i.e.,

on April 11, 1955, the Court suddenly and without

prior notice to appellant decided on its own initiative

that a jury would be summoned to try the case. The

follomng day appellant's counsel, in open Court,

voiced his objections to such action of the Court

(R. 47-50), but the objections were not .sustained

and the Court on April 12, 1955, entered an Order

as follows:

"Since the denial on September 24, 1954, of

the defendants' motion for a jury trial, editorials

have appeared in the defendants' newspaper in

defense of the judge of this court from attacks

by Warren Taylor. I feel that in these circimi-

stances I should not be the trier of the issues of

fact in the foregoing case, and hence it is

"Ordered, sua sponte, under Rule 39, F.R.C.P.,

that the case be tried by a jury." (R. 25.)

The case then proceeded to trial before a jury on

April 13, 1955, and there two principal issues were

to be determined:

(1) Whether appellees' breach of the contract was

without justifiable cause—appellees' defense in this

respect being that appellant had failed to furnish

appellees with the type of news ser^dce agreed upon,

and



(2) If appellees' breach were inexcusable, then

what was the monetary amount of appellant's dam-

ages, or loss of profits.

With respect to the first issue, even though there

was conflicting testimony, appellant introduced sub-

stantial evidence which proved that it had complied

with the contract and had furnished an adequate

news service, (R. 55-58, 62-63, 81-82, 190-200, 249-

264) ; and on the second issue, appellant's loss of

profits were shown by uncontroverted evidence to be

$21,489.57. (R. 88-98.)

On April 15, 1955, the jury returned its verdict in

favor of appellant, but for damages only in the amount

of $368.70 (R. 35)—this being the precise amount

mentioned in appellees' counterclaim, the allegations

of which appellant had admitted. (R. 22-24.) Argai-

ments were heard by the Court in Juneau on April

21, 1955, on the form of judgment to be entered

(R. 205-215), and on April 22, 1955, judgment was

entered by the Court. (R. 37-38.)

Thereafter, on April 25, 1955, appellant filed its

motion under Rule 59, Federal Rules of Civil Pro-

cedure, requesting the Court to set aside the judg-

ment of April 22 and to make its own independent

Findings of Fact and direct entry of judgment for

appellant in the amount alleged in the complaint and

as established by the evidence at the trial, or, in the

alternative, to order a new trial. (R. 39-40.) Without

opinion, the Court denied this motion by a minute

order entered on May 20, 1955. (R. 41.) This appeal

followed. (R. 41.)



SPECIFICATIONS OF ERROR.

The District Court erred:

1. In making its order of April 12, 1955, in which

it was ordered that this case he tried by a jury, and

in permitting this case to be tried by a jury and not

by the Court. (R. 25.)

2. With reference to Instruction No. 4 of the

Court's Instructions to the Jury

—

(a) In instructing the jury that the term of the

contract, the subject of this action, would expire on

September 27, 1957, rather than, as appellant main-

tains, on September 27, 1962. (R. 30.)

(b) In giving to the jury that portion of In-

struction No. 4 which reads as follows

:

'

' In determining the amount of damages, if you
find that plaintiff is entitled thereto, you may
consider . . . the probability of change during the

period referred to in the rates, the cost of doing

business, and the margin of profit as well as the

probability or improbability that the defendants

would remain in business." (R. 30-31.)

3. (a) In entering its judgment of April 22,

1955, ordering that appellant take nothing by its

complaint. (R. 37-38.)

(b) In failing and refusing to ignore the jury's

verdict herein and to make its o^ti independent Find-

ings of Fact and Conclusions of Law. (R. 39, 41.)

(c) In failing and refusing to enter judgment

for appellant for adequate and substantial damages.
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as established by the evidence, and for appellant's

costs and attorneys' fees. (R. 40, 41.)

4. In entering its minute order of May 20, 1955,

denying appellant's motion under Rule 59, Federal

Rules of Civil Procedure, to vacate the judgment or

to grant a new trial. (R. 41.)

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT.

I.

Appellees failed to demand a jury trial within the

time allowed by Rule 38(d), Federal Rules of Civil

Procedure, and then attempted to seek relief from

their waiver by motion under Rule 39(b). (R. 24.)

This motion was expressly denied by the Court

below. (R. 25, 46-47.) In spite of this, however, the

District Court, less than two days before the trial

in this action and without prior notice to appel-

lant, ordered a jury trial solely on its own motion.

(R. 25.) The Court had no right to thus act stm

sponte, and therefore this was error. Hargrove v.

American Central Insurance Company, 125 F. 2d 225,

228-229. And this error was prejudicial because of the

difference in the scope of appellate review between a

jury and a non-jury case. United States v. U. S. Gyp-

stim Company, 333 ITS 364, 394-395. Appellant on this

appeal is asserting that the damages awarded by the

jury were inadequate, and since a jury's verdict is

involved it is not sufficient merely to show that a

mistake has been made but it is necessary to establish
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that the inadequacy was "gross". Southern Pacific

Company v. Guthrie, 186 F2d 926, 932-933. (CA-9,

1951.)

II.

It was conclusively established by the evidence that

when appellees repudiated the contract for appellant's

news service on February 14, 1954 the value of the

contract, that is, what appellant was entitled to re-

ceive under the contract, was $56.45 a week; the cost

to appellant of furnishing this news service to appel-

lees was $8.66 per week, which meant that appellant's

net profits—lost by reason of the appellee's breach

—

w^as the sum of $47.79 a week; and the term of the

contract would not have expired for a period of 449

and 4/6th weeks. Hence, appellant's damages, or lost

profits, were the product of $47.79 and 449 and 4/6

or $21,489.57. Star-Chronicle Piihlishing Company v.

United Press Associatiou, 204 F. 217 (CA-8 1913)
;

United Press Association v. McComb Broadcasting

Company, 28 So. 2d 575 (Miss. 1947). But the jury

awarded appellant only the siun of $368.70, the exact

amount of appellees' counter-claim which had been

admitted by appellant. Hence, it is readily apparent

that the damages awarded were grossly inadequate.

III.

The District Court's instructions to the jury

(R. 30-31) made this clear: that the jury had to find

either that appellees had wrongfully breached the

contract or that they were justified in rescinding it,
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and if the former, that appellant wonld then have

to be awarded vsubstantial damages. The jury found

by its verdict that appellees had wrongfully breached

the contract, the correctness of which finding appel-

lant does not challenge, but it failed to assess damages

in the manner directed by the Court's instructions.

This action by the jury was so obviously capricious

and arbitrary that it was an abuse of discretion on

the part of the trial Court to refuse to grant a new

trial on the issue of damages. United Press Associa-

tions V. National Newspaper Association, 254 F. 284,

286 ( CA-8, 1918) ; Bamsdall Befiyiing Corporation v.

Cushnian-Wilson Oil Company, 97 F. 2d 481, 485

(iCA-9, 1938).

IV.

The District Court gave the jury erroneous

instructions—first, in shortening the unexpired term

of the contract by a period of approximately five

years (R. 30), and secondly, in failing to make clear

to the jury that appellant's damages, or lost profits,

were to be measured by the contract price less the

expense of furnishing appellant's news report to ap-

pellees for the balance of the unexpired term of the

contract (R. 30-31). See United Press Associations v.

McComh Broadcasting Corporation, 28 So. 2d 575

(Miss. 1947). These were errors of law which could

well have led to the absurd result here, that is, the

award to appellant of only the smn of $368.70, the pre-

cise amount of appellees' admitted counter-claim. This

alone would be sufficient reason for a reversal by this

Court, Chesapeake d Ohio By. Co. v. Gainey, 241
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U.S. 494, 496 (1915) ; Legler v. Kennington-Saenger

Theatres, Inc., 172 F. 2d 982, 984 (CA-5, 1949).

Y.

When the jury returned its verdict in favor of

appellant, it correctly decided that appellees had

wrongfully repudiated the contract ; and the evidence

which justified this finding on the part of the jury

had no connection vdWv other evidence in the case

which related to the profits which appellant lost by

reason of such breach. Consequently, the issue of dam-

ages can be re-tried alone without any injustice, and

in fact it would be an injustice and unduly burden-

some to compel appellant to re-try the issue of lia-

bility, in view of the jury's verdict in its favor on

that issue—the correctness of which appellant does

not challenge. Therefore, a new trial should be lim-

ited solely to the issue of damages. Yates v. Dann, 11

FRD. 386 (D.C. Del. 1951) ; Greater American Indent^

nity Company v. Ortiz, 193, F. 2d 43, 47 (CA-5, 1951).

VI.

Appellant received a verdict in its favor, i.e., the

jury decided that appellees were not justified in re-

scinding the contract ; and since the evidence undisput-

ably established the elements comprising appellant's

damages, or what appellant lost by reason of appellees'

breach, the amoimt that appellant ought to have been

awarded was a mere matter of mathematical computa-

tion. Thus, since the amount of damages properly to

be awarded was not factually in dispute, there is

nothing to prevent this Court from entering judgment



12

for appellant for the disputed amount. This Court

would not be substituting its own judgment for that

of the jury, but would be merely adding to the verdict

that amount of lost profits which appellant is en-

titled to as a matter of law. Stanton Electric Manu-

facturing Company v. Klaooorn Company, 125 F. 2d

820, 825, 826 (CA-3, 1942) ; Marshall v. Equitable Life

Assurance Society, 116 F. 2d 901, 903 (CA-6, 1941)
;

Moore's Federal Practice, Vol. 6, pp. 3748-3749,

Section 59.05 (3) ; id. p. 3755, Section 59.05 (4) ; id.

p. 3804, Section 59.08 (4).

ARGUMENT.

I. THE ACTION OF THE TRIAL COURT IN HAVING THE
CASE TRIED BY A JURY WAS ERROR.

At least two months after the service of the last

pleading directed to any issue in this case triable of

right by a jury, appellees—apparently realizing that

they had waived their right to a jury trial by not

making a demand therefor within the prescribed ten-

day period (Rule 38 (d) F.R.C.P.)—sought relief

from such waiver by filing a motion under the pro-

visions of Rule 39 (b), F.R.C.P. (R. 24) This motion

was argued by counsel for both parties, was considered

by the Court, and was expressly denied. (R. 46-47,

25.) Hence, from that date on no other assumption

could have been made by appellant than that the

action would be tried by the Court alone.

From the date of the Court's denial of appellees'

motion on Septeml)er 24, 19«54, and until April 11,
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1955 (which was two days before the trial of the

action), no indication was given that the action was

to be tried other than before the Court. Suddenly,

however, and without prior notice to appellant's

counsel, the Court solely on its own initiative decided

that a jury would be impanelled to try this case. (R.

25) Appellant's objections to this summary action

(R. 47-50) were unavailing—the Court ordering that

the action be tried by a jury and giving its reasons as

follows

:

''Since the denial on September 24, 1954, of the

defendants' motion for a jury trial, editorials

have appeared in the defendants' newspaper in

defense of the judge of this Court from attacks

'by Warren Taylor. I feel that in these circum-

stances I should not be the trier of the issues of

fact in the foregoing case, and hence it is

"Ordered, sua sponte, under Rule 39, F.R.C.P.,

that the case be tried by a jury." (R. 25.)

Appellant submits that this action by the District

Court was capricious and arbitrary, and was prej-

udicial error sufficient to justify this Court in

granting a reversal.

1. The District Court's Error in Ordering a Jury Trial.

Rule 38, F.R.C.P., preserves the right of trial by

jury, but conditions the exercise of such right upon

a party making a demand therefor. If such demand

is not made within a prescribed time, then the right

has been waived, and thereafter the issues in a case,

even though they be such as to be triable of right by

a jury, are to be tried by the Court. This requirement.
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however, is subject to the provisions of Rule 39 (b)

which read in part as follows

:

''
. . . but, notwithstanding the failure of a

party to demand a jury in an action in which such

a demand might have been made of right, the

Court in its discretion upon motion may order

trial by jury of any or all issues." (emphasis

added.)

Thus, in order for a party to be relieved from his

waiver of a jury trial he must make a motion under

Rule 39 (b), and the Court thereafter may grant such

motion '^in its discretion".

In this case it is submitted that there was neither

(1) a ''motion" which would justify the entry of the

Court's order of April 12, 1955, to the effect that this

action would be tried by a jury, nor (2) the exercise

of a "discretion" in the making of such an order.

(a) Appellees had waived the right to have the

issues in this case tried by a jury, and the Court on

September 24, 1954, refused to relieve them from the

effects of their waiver under the discretion vested in

it by Rule 39 (b)—apparently, choosing to adhere to

the practice of this Court sitting in Anchorage, as

established in the case of Beckstrom v. Coasttvise Line,

13 FRD 480, 483, 14 Alaska 140, 197-198. (R. 47) It

was, then, not until practically the eve of the trial of

this case that the Court, without any prior notice to

the parties, ordered a jury trial. No motion for the

same was made by appellees, nor can it be held logical-

ly that the Court was, in effect, merely changing its

decision on the motion denied in September, 1954. The
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record shows that appellees' counsel specifically stated

that he made no motion for a jury trial '^at this time",

which obviously negatives any inference that he was,

on April 12, 1955, renewing his motion made the

previous Fall. (R. 49-50) Moreover, the Court stated

expressly that the order was made ''sua sponte", that

is, on the Court's own initiative. (R. 25) Consequent-

ly, the Court's order was made not in accordance with

the authority granted by Rule 39(b), for there it is

clearly set out that in order to obtain relief from a

waiver of a jury trial, there must be a motion, and

this logically must refer only to a motion made by a

party to an action and not to a motion of the Court

itself. Rule 39(b) may be compared wdth Rule 39(c)

where in certain cases the Court is authorized to

impanel an advisory jury ''upon motion or its own

initiative/' The italicized words did not appear in

Rule 39(b) and their omission compels the conclusion

that the Court cannot act siia sponte under Rule

39(b).

That this is the proper meaning of Rule 39(b) is

clear from an opinion of the Court of Appeals for

the Tenth Circuit, decided in 1942, in the case of

Hargrove v. American Ceyitral Insurance Company,

125 F. 2d 225, 228-229. In that case, a suit on insur-

ance policies, neither party had at any time demanded

a jury trial, but at the commencement of the trial

the trial Court advised the parties that a jury would

be impanelled in an advisory capacity. This was done

and interrogatories were submitted to the jury, but

at the conclusion of the case, after the jury's verdict
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had been returned, the Court disregarded the verdict

and made its own independent findings of fact, con-

clusions of law and decree. On appeal it was asserted

that the trial Court had erred in calling a jurj^ The

Court of Appeals, in speaking on this question, made

it quite clear what Rule 39(b) meant. It said:

(a) That the issues in the case, being basically-

legal in their nature, were triable of right by a

jury.

(b) That the parties were thus entitled to a jury

as of right imder Rule 38, hut that if no demand

is made in accordance with that rule, the right

is waived.

(c) That in spite of the waiver, the Court, in its

discretion, upon motion of either party, could

order a jury trial ; but that it could not do so on

its own initiative—even by calling a jury in a

merely advisory capacity, since an advisory jury

can only be called in actions ^'not triable of right

by a jury."

From this it is clear that the Court did not have

the authority on its o'\;\m initiative to call a jury in

any capacity when a juiy has been waived, and in the

absence of a motion from a party to the action. Under

the circumstances of this case—the waiver of a jury

trial l)y appellees, tlie absence of any motion for a

jury, other than that denied in September, 1954, and

the action by the Court in calling a jury, sua sponte

—appellant was deprived of its right to have the

cause submitted and tried by the Court alone.



17

(b) Neither, it is submitted, was the Court's action

in ordering a jury done in the exercise of a '' discre-

tion" vested in it by Rule 39(b). When the motion

of appellees' under this Rule was argued in September

1954, appellant cited to the District Court authority

for the proposition that the exercise of the discretion

of the Court must be based upon some circumstance

warranting its exercise—otherwise it would constitute

nothing more than an arbitrary act; and that such

discretion should never be exercised unless there was

in the record a showing of the existence of some

plausible circumstance that would cause or justify the

mind to act. See Krussman v. Omaha Woodman Life

Insurance Society, 2 FRD 3; Steiger v. Mnllaney, 8

FRD 486 ; Arnold v. Chicago B d Q R. Co., 7 FRD
678, 680.

There simply was no '^ plausible circumstance" here

that justified the action of the trial Court—even if

there had been a motion by appellees for a jury

trial. Appellant had nothing to do with the attacks

on the Judge of this Court by Warren Taylor, nor

with the editorial comment thereon which appeared in

appellees' newspaper; and yet, merely because of these

fortuitous circumstances, appellant has been deprived

of its right to have the case tried by the Court—

a

right that appellant had relied upon from September

24, 1954, imtil the eve of the trial on April 12, 1955.

The fact that the appellees chose to write editorials

about the Judge of the District Court certainly did

not constitute a reasonable or valid basis for that

Court suddenly taking an action that could not help
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but result in prejudice to appellant and in an advan-

tage to appellees. The calling of a jury, then, at the

last moment was not the exercise of a discretion but

a mere arbitrary act. No authority for this is vested

in the Court by Rule 39.

Moreover, because of the almost complete absence

of prior notice, the calling of a jury was a matter of

surprise to appellant that could not be adequately

prepared for, and thus was prejudicial to appellant.

If appellant had had any reasonable notice, the prepa-

ration of its case would certainly have l^een different.

For example, rather than relying almost entirely upon

depositions, which are generally ineffective as far

as juries are concerned, at least one, if not two, of

the witnesses who gave their testimony by deposition

would have been present in person to testify. And
since appellant's counsel was not well acquainted in

Ketchikan, appellant was prejudiced by a lack of

opportunity to secure any reasonal^ly adequate knowl-

edge of the jurors that were to serve in the case.

For the five and one-half months prior to the date

of trial, appellant relied on the belief that there was

to be no jury. If such reliance is an important factor

in the reason for the provision in Rule 38(d) which

provides that a demand for a jury once made cannot

be withdrawn mthout the consent of the opposing

party, then in all logic it ought to be as important a

factor when a trial by jury is waived and neither

party requests it. See Moore's Federal Practice, Vol.

5, Sec. 38.45, pp. 343-344. Even assuming that the

Court had the authority to call a jury in the absence
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of a motion by appellees, appellant was entitled in

all fairness to a reasonable amount of advance notice.

See Ford v. Wilsow Co., 30 F. Siipp. 163, 166.

2. The Prejudicial Nature of the Court's Error.

It will, imdoubtedly, be asserted by appellees that

this ground cannot be claimed as error justifying a

reversal for the reason that appellant was not prej-

udiced because the issue as to liability was decided

in its favor. But this was, at the most, a mere hollow

victory when one considers that appellant recovered

no damages at all—not even the costs of suit. Hence,

appellant submits that there was prejudice in this

respect.

If this case had been tried by the Court, rather than

by a jury, the Court would have been obliged to make

specific findings of fact on the question of damages,

and the absence of findings on that question would

have been error because substantial. Pacific American

Fisheries v. Miaianey, 191 F. 2d 137, 141 (CA-9 1951)

;

Owen V. Commercial Union Fire Itis. Co., 211 F. 2d

488 (CA-4 1954).

Assuming that the District Court's instruction on

this point adequately disclosed the issues of fact that

were before the jury, it cannot be truthfully said that

upon a review of the evidence presented this appellate

Court could possibly reach the same result as the

jury did on that question. Appellant's loss of profits

to which it was entitled if appellees' breach of contract

was inexcusable was clearly established and uncontra-

dicted; no reviewing Court could say that the proof
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in this regard conceivably could give appellant as

damages only $368.70—the exact amount of the ad-

mitted counterclaim. Thus, the reviewing Court could

not waive the defect of an absence of findings on this

point.

If the District Court had made findings of fact, as

it ought to have done, then upon appeal this Court

could re\dew those findings and state whether or not

the findings of fact on appellant's loss of profits were

in accord with the evidence. This is because the

findings of a Court are subject to a complete type

of equity review—both of fact and of law. See United

States V. U. S. Gypsum Co., 333 U. S. 364, 394-395.

This is a much broader type of re^dew than is per-

mitted where a jury's ''findings" are considered on

an appeal. In the latter type of case the kind of

review is much more restricted, and where, as here,

the question is as to the inadequacy of damages, it

is not enough merely that there is proof that the

amount of damages awarded is ''substantially" less

than what was established by the e^ddence. The in-

adequacy, according to decisions of this Court, must

be shown to be "gross." See Southern Pacific Co. v.

Guthrie (C.A.-9, 1951) 186 F. 2d 926, 932-933.

In the non-jury case this reviewing Court can make

its re^dew broad in scope, and reverse if the findings

of the trial Court are not sup]K^rted by the e^ddence

or are against the weight of the evidence. In the jury

case, however, all that this reviewing Court can do

is to say whether the action of the trial Court in

denying a motion for a new trial which is based upon
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a verdict being against the weight of the evidence has

abused its discretion; and where inadequacy of dam-

ages is in question, the reviewing Court will not find

such an abuse of discretion unless the verdict is

''grossly" inadequate. Southern Pacific Co. v.

Guthrie, supra. Therefore, appellant submits that in

this respect the error of the District Court in order-

ing that this case be tried by a jury was substantial

and prejudicial to appellant.

II. THE DAMAGES AWARDED BY THE JURY
WERE GROSSLY INADEQUATE.

Assuming, for the sake of argument that this action

was properly tried by a jury, it is the position of ap-

pellant (1) that the issue of liability was correctly

determined (that appellees had breached the contract

without justification) when the jury rendered its

verdict in favor of the appellant (R. 35), and (2)

that appellant's loss of profits, or damages, in the

amount of $21,489.57, was so conclusively proved that

the action of the jury in awarding the appellant only

the sum of $368.70 was a ground obligating the Dis-

trict Court to grant appellant a new trial on this as-

pect of the case.

1. The Record Established Appellant's Damages Beyond Dispute.

It was not disputed that imder the contract the

basic rate which appellees agreed to pay appellant for

its daily news report started at $38.17 a week (R. 7,



22

88), and that throughout the term of the agreement

this rate was increased by assessments made from time

to time, as follows

:

January 6, 1946 $1.15

December 29, 1946 3.05

January 4, 1948 3.09

January 9, 1949 2.06

January 7, 1951 4.75

May 3, 1953 4.18

Total $18.28

(R. 92-95.)

These assessments were made by appellant, and ap-

pellees agreed to pay them, by virtue of the provisions

of Paragraph Second, Clause 2 of the contract (R.

7-8, 88-89) ; and they represented general overhead

expenses of appellant attributable to its entire busi-

ness which were levied pro rata among all of appel-

lant's clients based upon each client's weekly rate.

This was clearly established by the testimony of David

Belnap, the Northwest Manager for United Press

Associations (R. 65-66, 190-191), and by Carl B. Mol-

ander, the Assistant General Sales Manager for

United Press (R. 89-92), and appellees made no at-

tempt to contradict these mtnesses nor did they offer

any e\ddenco controverting these facts. Hence, on

February 14, 1954, the date upon which appellees

breached and repudiated the contract (R. 5, 59, 88,

239), the basic rate for the service rendered appellees

had been increased by assessments totaling $18.28, and

was then the total sum of $56.45 a week.
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It is true that the actual rate then being paid by

appellees on February 14, 1954, was $61.45 a week, or

$5 more than the basic rate of $56.45. This, however,

is readily explained, and there is no necessity for any

confusion on this point. In order to satisfy demands

of appellees for a more efficient type of news service,

appellant employed a teletype operator to send the

news reports from Seattle to appellees' newspaper in

Ketchikan, Alaska, and appellees agreed that in ad-

dition to the basic contract rate of $38.17, they would

pay the further sum of $52.50 a week toward the

Seattle teletype operator's salary. (R. 14-15, 89, 222-

224.) Later, at the insistence of appellees, appellant

agreed to absorb $27.50 of such operator's salary,

based upon a figure of $52.50 a week (R. 15-16, 89,

228-229), which meant that appellees' contribution to

that expense of appellant was then $25 a week. Final-

ly, on Februar}^ 21, 1950, a '^Modification of Agree-

ment" was made by the parties (R. 17-18) and here

appellant reduced the overall rate then being paid by

the further siun of $20 a week. This $20 reduction

could be considered as a further offset against appel-

lees' contribution of $25 toward the salary of the

Seattle teletype operator, and this then meant that

after February 21, 1950—and on February 14, 1954,

the date of appellees' breach of contract—appellees'

contribution to this salary expense was only $5 a week.

(R. 92-95.)

In computing this loss of profits—or damages

—

arising from appellees' breach of the contract, appel-

lant considered this $5 item as appellees' contribution
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toward the teletype operator's salary, and thus

eliminated it from anticipated profits. (R. 94-95.)

Hence, this sum was subtracted from the actual rate

being paid by appellees at the time of breach, i.e.,

$61.45, and this then left the siun of $56.45 as the

basis for computation of the loss of profits. (R. 95.)

This same figure is reached by adding to the original

basic rate of $38.17 the total of the general assessments

made, that is, the sum of $18.28.

The basic rate to be paid by appellees under the

contract at the time they repudiated the agreement

being $56.45 a week, appellant's loss of profits, or

damages, were to be computed on the basis of this

figure, less the expense of furnishing the news report

to appellees. This, as Mr. Molander has shown, was

$8.66 a week—this representing the cost of renting a

teletype machine and the cost of paper. (R. 95-96.)

There was no saving to appellant as far as the tele-

type operator's salary was concerned. This was clearly

shown by Mr. Belnap when he brought out in his

testimony these facts: that at the time appellees

breached the contract, i.e., on February 14, 1954, ap-

pellant's Alaska business required the services of two

teletype operators in Seattle, whose salaries were paid

by appellant ; that the total costs to appellant for these

two operators, which represented their total gross

wages, was $308.04 per week ; that the total gross rev-

enue received by appellant from its Alaska business

was $306.24 per week; and that after appellees' termi-

nation of the contract, and the news report was no

longer being sent to the Ketchikan Daily News, there
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was no sa^dng to appellant in respect to operators'

salaries, for the reason that the same two teletype

operators had to be kept on for the remainder of ap-

pellant's Alaska business at their full salary. (R. 62-

64.)

Consequently, the computation of appellant's loss

of profits arising by reason of appellees' breach was

a matter of simple mathematics: the basic rate

($56.45), less the cost of maintaining the news service

to appellees ($8.66), multiplied by the number of

weeks that the contract had to rim at the time of

breach (449 4/6 weeks). (R. 95-98.) Hence, appel-

lant's damages for breach of contract here were $21,-

489.57. (R. 96-97.)

2, Appellant's Damages, as a Matter of Law, Could Not Be
Disputed,

What appellant is entitled to in the way of dam-

ages is the value of the contract, for appellees can-

celled the agreement and thereby prevented appellant

from collecting the revenue to which it was entitled

thereimder. The contract is express in its terms in

that it provides for certain weekly payments over a

period of time which is likewise certain, and those

payments are neither remote nor speculative in any

degree. Appellant is therefore entitled to recover

what it would have received, diminished only by the

expense that would have been required of it to fur-

nish its news report to the appellees for the balance

of the term. That expense, which is properly deduct-

ible from the contract price, can only be that which
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appellant would have saved by reason of not being

required to complete performance for the full term

of the agreement. And it has been clearly shown that

all that appellant would have saved—the only ex-

penses that would have been incurred in furnishing

the news report- to appellees—was $8.66 per week.

(R. 95-98.)

The assessments levied from time to time pursuant

to the provisions of Paragraph SECOND, in the total

amount of $18.28 per week, are referable to the ap-

pellant's overall business, and are not referable to

this particular contract and are not deductible from

the contract price. They are part of the general over-

head expenses of appellant in maintaining and fur-

nishing its services to all of its clients and were levied

pro rata among all of such clients based upon each

client's weekly rate. These expenses continue regard-

less of whether appellant is serving appellees or not,

and thus appellant has saved nothing in this respect

by not being required to furnish the news reports to

appellees for the balance of the term.

This principle is inherent in the case of Star-

Chronicle PuhUsUng Co. v. U.P.A., 204 F. 217 (CA-

8, 1913). There, in a case involving breach of a simi-

lar type of contract, it was argued that in computing

UPA's profits there should be deducted from what

UPA was entitled to receive under the contract, not

only the expense of maintaining the St. Louis office,

but also a relative portion of the expense of the entire

business of plaintiff. The Court, in holding against

such contention, said (pp. 223-224) :
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''The evidence discloses that the only extra ex-

pense to which plaintiff was put in performing its

contracts with defendant was the local expense

incuired in maintaining the St. Louis office. All

other expense incurred by it was the same after

defendant ceased to accept the news."

Also, in another very similar case involving United

Press Associations, the same point was covered. In

UFA V. MoComh Broadcasting Corporation, 28 So.

2d 575 (Miss. 1947), the Court had this to say i(p.

576):

"* * * The association was entitled to the net

profits which it thereby lost, computed upon the

basis of the unexpired term of the contract. * * *

"Proof of anticipated profits was adduced by

the southern division business representative of

the association having supervision over the area

in which the station was located. His testimony

was uncontradicted that the gross rentals due the

association were $45.85 per week, and that the

expense of furnishing such services was $21.83

per week. Such expenses allocable to the station's

services were broken down in detail. The net

profit to accrue to the association was therefore

$24.02 per week for 71 weeks, or $1,705.42.

"That such lost profits were properly com-

puted, and should have been awarded, is sus-

tained by established authority, typical examples

of which are above cited. The attack upon the

correctness of the award is directed to the failure

to include in the expenses deductible from gross

profits an allocated portion of the general over-

head expenses of the association in maintainiyig
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and furnishing its seiuices. Such attack is met
by the requirement, born of practical considera-

tions, that the defaulting party may not hold the

promisee to more than a reasonable detail. Engle

V. Mahlen, supra. In Star Chronicle Publishing

Co. V. United Press Ass'n, supra, the trial court,

in considering this question in a case strikingly

similar to the case at bar in all its phases, had
instructed the jury to fix damages for anticipated

profits, if foimd, upon the basis of the contract

price and the cost of maintaining the office of

the appellant. * * * The testimony of the associa-

tion's representative was clear, concise, and cer-

tain. There was flat assertion that the deductions

included the entire expense incurred or required

to service the station. We therefore amend the

decree to allow recovery of such lost profits."

(emphasis added.)

See also Btird v. Ca/mpbeU Hosiery Co., 28 Atl. 2d

365, 366 (Pa. 1942) ; United States v. BeJmn, 110 U.S.

338, 344-347; Wicker v. Hoppock, 73 U.S 94, 99.

It certainly does not lie in the mouths of appellees,

who breached the contract, to claim that in computing

damages appellant has to deduct from the contract

price an allocated portion of the general overhead

expenses of appellant in respect to its entire business.

The appellees' anticipatory breach of contract estops

them from claiming that anything more is deductible

from the contract price than the appellant's actual

savings due to its being relieved from the burden of

performing the contract over the entire period thereof.

American Can Co. v. Gamett, 279 F. 723, 727 (CA-9,

1922) ; United States v. Behan, 110 U.S. 338, 345-347.
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Under these authorities it is inconcievable how it

could even be considered that the several assessments

totalling $18.28 are "costs" and therefore deductible

in computing profits. Appellant was burdened with

these same items of expense even after appellees had

ceased to receive the news service, and appellees'

breach of its contract, which expressly provided that

they bear their proportionate share of the expenses,

put it beyond the power of appellant to collect them

from appellees. Appellees should, therefore, bear the

burden of this particular expense as the result of

their breach. Appellant had lost the $18.28 a week

(along with the original basic rate of $38.17) which

it otherwise would have collected from appellees as

their just proportion of that expense. Certainly, ap-

pellant is entitled to recover any losses occasioned or

proximately caused by the appellees' breach.

The same principles also prevent appellees from

claiming that since appellant's gross revenue from

its Alaska business was $306.24, and the cost of tele-

type operators for such business, $308.04, that appel-

lant was thus losing money and therefore entitled to

no "profits." The complete answer to any such con-

tention, as in the case of the $18.28 in assessments,

is that no saving resulted to appellant in respect to

a teletype operator's salary when service to appellees

was ended. Mr. Belnap testified that the day operator

who transmitted the file to the Ketchikan Daily News

received $144.48 per week, and that after appellees

discontinued the service, this operator still had to be

retained for other Alaska business at the same salary.
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(R. 61-64.) Thus, not only was there no saving tc

appellant, but that portion of the operator's salary,

which appellees had agreed to pay in addition to the

basic rate plus assessments, was an additional expense

which appellant had to absorb after the appellees dis-

continued service.

In line with the Star-Chronicle and McComb cases,

supra, appellees can take nothing from the fact thai

appellant's Alaska business or its business as a whole

was profitable or unprofitable. All that is involved

here is this particular contract, and appellant's dam-

ages are measured by the value of the contract alone,

and not by any standard of what UPA receives fron

its other Alaska clients or by whether those receipts

were profitable or unprofitable in the overall opera-

tion. UPA has profitable contracts and unprofitable

contracts in its business, and it may very well l^e thai

its Alaska business as compared with its continental

business is generally unprofitable. But appellees, whc

breached the contract, certainly should be estopped

from raising these questions; for all that is involved

in this case is what appellant has lost by reason ol

appellees' breach of this particular contract. See

Amencan Can Co. v. Garnett, 279 F. 723, 727. Appel-

lant is entitled to any losses occasioned or proximately

caused by appellee's breach, and entirely aside fron

whether its Alaska business is operating at a profil

or not.

From these things it is apparent that the damages

awarded by the jury were so wholly inadequate thai

the trial Court's denial of appellant's motion for £
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new trial on the issue of damages could not have been

in the exercise of a reasonable discretion.

III. THE DISTRICT COURT ABUSED ITS DISCRETION IN RE-
FUSING TO GRANT A NEW TRIAL ON THE ISSUE OF
DAMAGES.

Still assuming, arguendo, that this case was prop-

erly tried by a jury, there is abimdant reason to re-

verse the judgment because of the abuse of discretion

in the Court below in refusing to grant appellant's

request for a new trial on the issue of damages. That

abuse of discretion relates to the damages awarded

by the jury—the position of appellant being that the

amount awarded was so wholly inadequate and so en-

tirely inconsistent ^vith the uncontradicted evidence

as to make it manifest that this part of the verdict

resulted from a complete disregard by the jury of

the Court's instructions, which creates an inference

of prejudice against appellant.

Instruction No. 4 of the Court's Instructions to

the Jury tells the jury that if they find that appellees

wrongfully breached the contract, they may allow ap-

pellant damages for the period February 15, 1954 to

September 27, 1957, in an amount equal to the amount

that appellant would have earned during that period,

less the amount it would have cost the appellant to

perform the contract, and less the sum of $368.70

—

the amount of appellees' counterclaim. (R. 30.) This

Instruction further informs the jury of the various

factors thev mav consider in determining the amount
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of damages. (R. 30-31.) The Instruction then contin-

ues that if the jury should find that appellant failed tc

furnish appellees with the news agreed upon, the jurj

would be warranted in finding that appellees wer(

justified in rescinding the contract and that the ver-

dict should then be for appellees. (R. 31.)

Under this Instruction the jury had one of twc

choices: (1) either to find for appellant and aware

damages, or (2) to find for appellees, in which cast

appellant would be entitled to no damages. And ii

the verdict was to be in appellant's favor, then tht

damages would of necessity be substantial; for as

pointed out in Part II of this brief (supra), the

amount that appellant would have earned during the

unexpired term of the contract and the cost that i1

would have been put to in performing the contrad

were so conclusively established by the evidence thai

as a matter of law the jury was obligated to simpl}

make the mathematical computation of multiplying

appellant's weekly net profit by the numl)er of weeks

that the contract had to run—and thus arrive at th(

figure based upon the proof adduced, proof over whicl

there was no controversy.

Consequently, although the jury found in appel-

lant's favor with respect to liability, it did not assess

appellant's damages in the manner directed by th(

Court's Instructions. It thus completely ignored sue!

Instructions and failed to perform its task of assess-

ing damages. The conclusion, then, is inescapable

that the verdict so far as damages were concerned was

not motivated by the evidence, but rather was the



33

result of capricious and arbitrary action, in total dis-

regard of the evidence, thus giving rise, on its face,

to an inference of prejudice on the part of the jury.

Under these circumstances the trial judge ought to

have granted a new trial, and his failure to do so was

an abuse of discretion—an error of law.

United Press Associations v. National Newspaper

Ass'n, (CA-8, 1918), 254 F. 284, 286; ReisUirg v.

Walters, 111 F. 2d 595, 598 (CA-6, 1940) ; Wetherhee

V. Elgin, Joliet d Easteryi By. Co., 191 F. 2d 302, 310

(CA-7, 1951), certiorari denied, 346 U.S. 867; Banis-

dall Refining Corp. v. Cushman-Wilson Oil Co., 97 F.

2d 481, 485 (CA-9, 1938).

It is submitted that the inadequacy of damages

here is in the true sense of the term ''gross," and

thus that the action of the Court below in denying

appellant's motion for a new trial must be reversed

by this Court. Estahrook v. Butte, Anaconda d Pa-

cific By. Co., 163 F. 2d 781-782 (CA-9, 1947); Cf.

Covey Gas <£• Oil Co. v. Checketts, 187 F. 2d 561, 562-

563 (CA-9, 1951) ; Cohh v. Lepisto, 6 F. 2d 128, 129

(CA-9, 1925) ; Baldivin v. Wanvick, 213 F. 2d 485,

486 (CA-9, 1954).

IV. ERRORS IN THE DISTRICT COURT'S INSTRUCTIONS TO

THE JURY WERE PREJUDICIAL AND JUSTIFY THE GRANT-

ING OF A NEW TRIAL.

It is the position of appellant that the District

Court, in Instruction No. 4, gave erroneous instruc-
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tions to the jury in these two instances: (1) in r

ducing the term of the contract by a period of fi^

years (R. 30), and (2) in permitting the jury to co:

sider certain elements in its determination of tl

amount of damages to be awarded appellant. (R. 3

31.) Both of such errors were prejudicial to appella]

and justified the granting of a new trial.

1. The Instruction on the Term of the Contract.

Over the objections of appellant, the Court- ii

structed the jury as a matter of law that the term (

the contract between appellant and appellees e;

pired on September 27, 1957, rather than, as appe

lant has always claimed, five years later, that is, c

September 27, 1962. This, appellant maintains, wj

error.

The history of the contract, as sho^vn by the ev

dence (see Exhibit A attached to appellant's con

plaint (R. 6-18) and the deposition of Carl Molander

(R. 84-86, 95) and as it relates to the ultimate expin

tion date of the contract, is this:

(a) The original agreement went into effe

on October 3, 1945, and was for a period of thr(

years, i.e., mitil October 3, 1948. (R. 10, 84.)

(b) On October 3, 1948, notice of terminatic

not having been given pursuant to Paragrap

EIGHTH, (R. 10, 84-86) the term was extende

for an additional five-year period, i.e., until O
tober 3, 1953.

(c) On February 21, 1950, the parties entere

into a "Modification of Agreement," under tl
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terms of which appellant agreed to suspend the

then existing rate and reduce it by $20.00 per

week, with the provision that either party could

terminate such suspension on thirty-days' notice.

Clause 3 of this "Modification of Agreement"

reads as follows

:

''3. The term of the agreement between the

parties shall be extended by the length of time

during which the above suspension is in effect."

(R. 17-18.)

(d) On October 3, 1953, the contract was still

in effect, no notice of termination having been

given pursuant to Paragraph EIGHTH. (R.

85-86.)

(e) On February 14, 1954, appellees breached

and terminated the contract by refusing to ac-

cept service thereunder. (R. 88, 239.) This, of

course, also constituted a termination of the

"Modification of Agreement" of February 21,

1950, and as of the date of such termination,

February 14, 1954, the rate suspension under the

Modification had been in effect for a period of

four years less five days.

In view of these facts, appellant's contention is that

on October 3, 1953, the contract was automatically re-

newed by its express terms for an additional five-

year period, i.e., until October 3, 1958; that on the

date of termination, February 14, 1954, the "terai of

the agreement," within the meaning of Clause 3 of

the Modification of Agreement, was a term which ex-

pired on Octo])er 3, 1958 ; and that since on February
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14, 1954, the rate suspension under the Modification

Agreement had been in effect for a few days less th

four years, the ''term of the agreement" which \\

to expire on October 3, 1958, w^as thus extended

virtue of the provisions of the Modification of Agn

ment for an additional period of nearly four years

that is imtil September 27, 1962.

On the other hand, the Court in instructing the jii

on this subject, (R. 30), although recognizing the i

tomatic renewal date of October 3, 1953, simply

nored Paragraph EIGHTH of the contract where

the term would thus be extended for another five-ye

period, that is until October 3, 1958, and simply add

on, commencing October 3, 1953, the period duri

which the rate suspension was in effect—thus maki

the expiration date September 27, 1957, rather th

September 27, 1962—a difference of five years.

The Court's interpretation was not logical. If i

Modification of Agreement had not existed, then i

Court would have had to admit (since it recogm2

the automatic renewal date of October 3, 1953), tl

the contract, by its express terms, would have be

extended at that time for an additional five-ye

period, and that when appellees terminated the cc

tract on February 14, 1954, that period would i

have expired until October 3, 1958. It simply is i

reasonable to thus construe the Modification of Agr

ment as shortening the minimum that appellant v

entitled to under the terms of the original agreeme

rather than extending it; and yet that is precisi

what the Court did.



37

This cannot be correct. The "term of the agree-

ment," referred to in Clause 3 of the Modification

of February 21, 1950, must have meant the '^term"

as it existed as of the date of termination of the

Modification, i.e., when appellees breached the con-

tract on February 14, 1954. "Term" means a "limited

or definite extent of time; the time for which any-

thing lasts; duration; tenure" (See Webster's Dic-

tionary), and on February 14, 1954, the time for which

the original agreement was to last—its duration

—

was until October 3, 1958, since it had been automati-

cally renewed for a five-year period on October 3,

1953. This was the "term of the agreement" which,

by virtue of the provisions of the Modification, was

extended by the length of time the rate suspension

under such Modification was in effect.

There is no ambiguity here; no room for the

strained construction adopted by the Court; no rea-

son to believe that the parties did not mean exactly

what they said. Under the Modification of Agreement

appellant gave appellees a substantial rate reduction,

and the parties must reasonably have intended that

appellant was to receive some value for this. This

value, or consideration, was that appellees would bind

themselves to the agreement for a period of time

longer than that provided for in the original contract.

But if the District Court's interpretation is followed,

appellees would have all of the advantage, and ap-

pellant none.

The agreement, thus interpreted by the lower Court,

is not only inequitable and unjust as far as appel-
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lant is concerned, bnt is also absurd for the reas

that it is contrary to common sense to believe t]

appellant would have made a substantial rate red

tion and would receive nothing in exchange. If am

guity exists and construction is necessary and ju!

fied, which appellant does not admit, then a rule

construction should be preferred which would m^

the entire agreement, that is, the original contn

plus the Modification of February 21, 1950, ratioi

and not contradictory of its general purposes. See

Am. Jur. 792, Sec. 250; LescJier d^ Sons Rope Co.

Mayflower Gold Milling and Rednctio7i Co., 173 F
855, 857. That construction of a contract which affoi

protection to both parties, rather than only to o

should be favored. See Knight v. Hamilton, 313 I

858, 233 SW 2d 969 ; Jenkins v. Anaheim Sugar C

247 Fed. 958, 960.

2. Instruction on Elements of Damages to Be Considered.

As part of its Instruction No. 4 the Court told
"

jury this:

''In determining the amount of damages, if }

find that plaintiff is entitled thereto, you n
consider . . . the probability of change during "

period referred to in the rates, the cost of doi

business, and the margin of profit ..." (R.

31.)

This portion of the Instruction was erroneous ]

only because it was too broad, but also because it ^

confusing and conducive to improper speculation

the part of the jury. It does not clearly instruct

jury that appellant's lost ''profits", or damages, \
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:he contract price, less the expense of furnishing the

lews report to appellees for the balance of the term

3f the contract. It has been pointed out in this brief

(see Part II, supra) that the contract price and the

30st of furnishing the news service to appellees for the

Dalance of the contract term were specific, definite

imounts, and established by uncontradicted evidence;

md that as a matter of law the difference between

:he two figures was the measure of appellant's lost

arofits, or damages. See UPA v. McComh Broadcast-

ing, Corp., 28 So. 2nd 575, 576 (Miss. 1947) ; Star-

Ohronide PuUishing Co. v. UPA, 204 F. 217 (CA-8,

L913). But the Instruction did not make this clear; it

bailed to point out that the ''cost" or expense that may
3e deducted from the contract price in determining

net lost profits is limited solely to those items re-

ating specifically to the performance of the contract

and could not include the expense of a Seattle teletype

operator or other general expenses of appellant in

rnaintaining its Alaska business. Because, then, of

these principles, inherent in the McComh Broadcast-

ing Corp. and Star-Chronicle cases, supra, the Court

was bound to be more specific in its Instructions, and

not to have instructed the jury to consider generally

'the probability of change . . . the cost of doing busi-

ness, and the margin of profit ..." (R. 30-31.)

Finally the Court also instructed the jury that in

determining the amount of damages it could con-

sider

—

"... The probability or improbability that the

defendants would remain in business." (R. 31.)
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This was error because it constituted an instruci

on the impossibility of performance of the cont]

by the appellees if they went out of business dui

the unexpired term of the agreement. Subjective

possibility, or inability to perform because of pove

loss of money or inability to obtain money, does

excuse nonperformance of a contract. In order to

lieve appellees from performance of their conti

because of impossibility, the impossibility must

inherent in the nature of the act to be performed,

not consist of the personal inability of appellees

carry out their bargain. The latter type of ''im]

sibility", which is purely subjective, was what

Court was presiunably instructing on, and sinc(

does not discharge a duty created by contract, it

erroneous. See 12 Am. Jur. ''Contracts", Sec. c

Restatement, Contracts, Vol. 2 Sec. 455; WilUstofi

Contracts, Rev. Ed., Vol. 6, Sec. 1932, pp. 5411-5-

The burden was on appellees to establish a defensi

excusable impossibility, if they could, and the rec

shows that they did not even suggest that such a

fense existed. See WilUston, supra. Sec. 1937, p. 5'

3. Conclusion.

The jury, in rendering its verdict in favor of ap

lant, found that appellees had wrongfully breac

the contract—were not justified in rescinding it.

that decision had ])een made, then had the jury I

instructed properly on the element of damages

could only have determined, in the light of the pi

adduced at the trial, that appellant's loss of pr<

would be the weekly contract price at the time of

breach ($56.45), less the cost of performing the <
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tract ($8.66), multiplied by the number of weeks that

the contract had yet to run (449 4/6). (R. 95-96.) As a

matter of law the District Court erred in not correctly

instructing the jury on this aspect of the case, and it is

manifest that this failure on the part of the trial judge

could well have led to the absurd result where the

damages awarded appellant were exactly equal to the

amount of the admitted counterclaim of appellees. The

gross inadequacy of the verdict, then, could well have

been the result of erroneous instructions by the Court

below, and this alone would be sufficient reason for

this reviewing Court to reverse the action of the trial

Court in denying appellant's motion for a new trial.

See Chesapeake d Ohio Ry. Co. v. Gainey, 241 U. S.

494, 496 (1915) ; Legler v. Kennmgton-Saenger Thea-

tres, Inc., 172 F. 2d 982, 984 (CA-5, 1949).

V. A NEW TRIAL SHOULD BE LIMITED TO THE
ISSUES OF DAMAGES.

Appellant's case was that appellees breached the

contract without justification, and the only defense

that was relied on by appellees at the trial was that

appellant had itself breached the contract by failing

to furnish an adequate news report. When the jury

returned a verdict for the appellant, it must have de-

termined from the evidence presented that the appel-

lant had kept its part of the bargain, and therefore,

that appellees' renunciation of the contract was not

excusable.

The facts in this case upon which such determina-

tion was l)ased could have no conceivable connection



42

with the elements of proof required, for a computat]

of appellant's damages, i.e., the amount of money tl

it lost by reason of appellees not accepting the serv

under the contract for the balance of the unexpii

term thereof. Hence, the two issues in this case—

c

of liability and the other of damages—are distinct a

separable, and not so inextricably related so thai

proper verdict on the latter cannot be reached withe

taking into account the evidence relating to the f^

mer. Evidence proving appellees' unjustified breg

cannot have the slightest bearing on the amount

profits that appellant has lost by reason of the brea

Therefore, the issue of damages can be retried alo

without any injustice. In fact, it would be an injust:

and unduly burdensome to compel appellant to rei

the issue of liability in view of the jury's verdict

its favor on that issue, the correctness of which app

lant does not challenge. Yates v. Dami, 11 FRD c

(D. C. Del. 1951) ; Greater American Indemnity Co.

Ortiz, 193 F. 2d 43, 47 (CA-5 1951) ; Wasliington G

LigJit Co. V. ConnoUy, 214 F. 2d 255, 256 (CA-I

1954). Cf. Gasoline Products Co., Inc. v. Champ
Rejining Co., 283 US 494, 498-500.

VI. RATHER THAN aRANTING A NEW TRIAL, THIS COU
SHOULD DIRECT THE ENTRY OF JUDGMENT FOR APP]

LANT IN THE UNDISPUTED AMOUNT.

The jurisdiction granted the federal A])])elh

Courts is broad, Section 2106 of the Judicial Cc

(28 USCA Sec. 2106) providing as follows:
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''The Supreme Court or any other court of ap-

pellate jurisdiction may af&rm, modify, vacate, set

aside or reverse any judgment, decree, or order

of a court lawfully brought before it for review,

and may remand the cause and direct the entry

of such appropriate judgment, decree, or order,

or require such further proceedings to be had as

may be just under the circumstances."

Hence, in dealing with a judgment of a District Court,

this Court is not limited to remanding, with directions

to award a new trial, but has the authority in a proper

case to render a correct judgment after a reversal of

the judgment of the trial Court.

It is appellant's position that this is what ought

to be done here, i.e., that the judgment below should

be reversed for the reasons heretofore stated, and that

this Court should then proceed to enter, or direct the

entry of, a judgment in favor of appellant for the

imdisputed amomit of damages to which appellant is

entitled. And, in taking this stand, appellant is not

asking the Court to employ the device of additur

which, imder substantial federal authorities, is not

favored. Bimick v. Schiedt, 293 US 474, 475 (1935) ;

Moore's Federal Practice, Vol. 6, p. 3752, Sec.

59.05(4); id. p. 3840, Sec. 59.08(6). Additur assumes

a dispute as to the amount of damages; and as has

already been pointed out in this brief the correct

amount of damages to which appellant was entitled

cannot be disputed but is a mere matter of calculation.

It has already been shown in this brief that the

contract is express in its terms in that it provides for
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certain weekly payments over a period of time tl

is likewise certain, and that those payments are n

ther remote nor speculative in any degree. The tes

mony of appellant's witness, Mr. Molander, was i

contradicted that had appellant been required to fi

nish its news report to the appellees for the balar

of the unexpired term, appellant would have receiv

the sum of $56.45 per week, less costs of furnishi

service in the amount of $8.66, or a net amount

$47.79 per week. (R. 95-96.) Likewise, it was ind

putably established that appellees breached the cc

tract on February 14, 1954, and as of that date i

unexpired term of the contract was a definite numl

of weeks. (R. 95.) The testimony on both of the

matters was clear, concise and certain, and appelh

made no attempt either by affirmative proof or

way of impeachment or contradiction to dispute th(

facts. Hence, the ascertainment of appellant's da

ages becomes merely a matter of mathematical co

putation, i.e., the sum of $47.79 multiplied by i

number of weeks that the contract still had to ri

According to appellant's construction of the Modifi(

tion of Agreement of February 21, 1950 (R. 17-1

the number of weeks remaining was 449 and 4

(R. 95) and thus appellant's damages amounted

$21,489.57.

Under the evidence, then, appellant was entitled

$21,489.57, if it was entitled to anything, and sir

the jury properly determined liability in favor

appellant, the amount awarded was simply less th

that which was undisputed. And since this amon
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was not factually in dispute, there is nothing to pre-

vent this Court from rendering judgment in favor of

appellant for the undisputed amount. This would not

violate the rule against additur, for there is no real

factual issue on the question of damages to be tried.

The Court would not be substituting its own judgment

for that of the jury but would be merely adding to the

verdict that amount of lost profits which appellant is

entitled to as a matter of law. Stanton Electric Mfg.

Co. V. Klaxon Co., 125 F. 2d 820, 825, 826 (CA-3,

1942) ; Marshall v. Equitable Life Assurance Society,

116 F. 2d 901, 903 (CA-6, 1941) ; United States v.

Illinois Surety Co., 226 F. 653, 664 (CA-7, 1915);

UFA V. McComl) Broadcasting Corp., 28 So. 2d 575,

576 (Miss. 1947) ; Moore's Federal Fractice, Vol. 6, pp.

3748-49, Sec. 59.05(3); id. p. 3755, Sec. 59.05(4); id.

p. 3804, Sec. 59.08(4). Cf. Garfield Aniline Works v.

Zendle, 43 F. 2d 537, 538 (CA-3, 1930). See also:

Wilson V. Brown, 136 Va. 634, 118 S.E. 88, 90 (1923) ;

Citizens' Nat'l Bafik v. Joseph Kesl d; So7is Co., 378

lU. 428, 38 NE 2d 734, 737 (1941); Oliver v.

Crane, 182 Or. 166, 161 P. 254, 255 (1916) ; 3Iystic

Tailoring Co. v. Jacohstein, 94 Colo. 306, 30 P. 2d 263,

264 (1934).

CONCLUSION.

For the reasons stated it is respectfully submitted

that the judgment of the District Court should be

reversed, and that this case should be remanded with

directions to enter judgment in favor of appellant in
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the sum of $21,489.57, together with appellant's cc

and attorneys' fees.

Dated, Juneau, Alaska,

January 25, 1956.

John H. Dimond,

Baker, Hostetler & Patterson,

Donald D. Wick,

Attorneys for Appellant
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STATEMENT OF THE CASE.

On or about June 30, 1945, the appellees, Sidney

Dean Charles, Paul S. Charles, and Patricia Charles,

a copartnership, doing business under the name of

"Alaska Fishing News", entered into a written con-

tract effective Oct. 3, 1945 with the appellant United

Press Associations, a corporation, engaged in the

business of accumulating and disseminating news re-

ports and furnishing them to newspapers and radio

stations throughout the coimtry (R. 6-12). This



contract was prepared by the appellant on a printec

form. The appellee Pioneer Printing Company, ai

Alaska corporation, is the successor to the Charles

partnership, and in about April, 1948, this corporatioi

took over the ownership and publication of the Alaska

Fishing News, which was thereafter called th(

"Ketchikan Daily News" (R. 106). The contract

which is the subject of the suit provided for a three

year term, which was to be automatically extendec

for a period of five years unless notice was giver

within the time prescribed therein, by either party

of an intention to terminate it. The prices to b(

paid for the service increased from time to time anc

many complaints were made of these increases anc

of the service. On February 21, 1950, a modificatior

of the agreement effective Feb. 19, 1950 was executec

by appellant and the Alaska Fishing News, althougl

the Alaska Fishing News had ceased to exist at thai

time and the business had in 1948 been taken over b}

the corporation. Pioneer Printing Company, but th(

Pioneer Printing Company continued to abide h}

the terms of this modification which contained a slighi

reduction in cost for the service to be furnished (R

17, 18). It was provided that the original agreemeni

between the parties should be extended by the lengtl

of time during which the suspension or modificatior

of February 21, 1950, should be in effect. Modifica

tion effective Feb. 19, 1950.

The second term of the original contract woulc

have expired on October 3, 1953. However, the modi

fication w^ent into effect on February 19, 1950, so thai



when the time came within which either party could

have cancelled the contract under the provisions of

Paragraph Eighth of the original contract, which

would have been on October 3, 1953, the modification

had already been in effect more than three years, so

that the expiration date or the date on which the

original contract could have been cancelled had been

extended for three years beyond October 3, 1953.

The appellees were publishing at Ketchikan, Alaska,

a daily newspaper and depending upon the appellant

for its news services, which included not only the

news from the United States and the world in general

but also Alaska news. Numerous complaints were

made by the appellees to the appellant of the quality

of the news service. These complaints were made by

letter, by telegrams and in person to the Pacific Coast

managers of the appellant. Some of the complaints

were sent to the New York headquarters of appellant.

There was a rival newspaper in Ketchikan, namely,

the Chronicle, which was pul^lishd daily and which

was receiving news through the Associated Press.

Many news items were going constantly to the Chron-

icle, news of great importance to the readers of the

appellees' paper, which were not received by the ap-

pellees through its news service. These included not

only news from the United States and the world

but also important Alaska news. In fact, one of the

appellant's correspondents in Juneau, Alaska, fre-

quently sent as many as five or six articles in one day

to the rival Chronicle, none of which were furnished

through the United Press or otherwise to the appel-



lees. The record will show that many of the com-

plaints made by appellees to the appellant, regarding

this neglect or refusal to furnish the news service

contemplated, were acknowledged by appellant and

the record shows that on several occasions the appel-

lant promised in writing to correct the defects in ite

service so as to adequately perform its part of the

contract (R. 131-246). This, however, was not done

and appellees were obliged to resort to a considerable

additional expense in order to compete with the riva"

paper because of its lack of news which should have

been furnished by appellant under the terms of the

contract (R. 118-9). Finally appellees were obligee

to make a contract with Associated Press also in ordei

to get the news service (R. 118-9).

On February 14, 1954, the appellees notified appel-

lant that because of the unsatisfactory service sluq

the high prices which they had to pay for that service

which was away beyond the original sum set fort!

in the contract, they were cancelling the contract

The record will show that this was done because ol

appellant's refusal to perform the terms of the con-

tract as agreed upon. The service was thereupor

discontinued.

On April 23, 1954, appellant began this actior

demanding judgment against the appellees for $21,-

489.57, representing appellant's claimed loss of profits

It was alleged in the complaint that the appellees

had breached the contract. The claim for damages

$21,489.57, is alleged to have covered anticipatec

profits from Febniary 14, 1954, to September 27, 1962



The appellees answered the complaint of appellant

setting- up, in addition to the admissions and denials,

three affirmative defenses and a counterclaim in the

sum of $368.70. On June 4, 1954, appellant served

and filed its reply to the counterclaim. Up until that

time no jury had been requested for the trial of the

case, but on August 5, 1954, appellees moved for a

jury trial under the provisions of Rules 38(a) and

39(b) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure (R.

24). The court denied this motion (R. 25, 46 and 47).

The court's denial was based upon a practice insti-

tuted by the judge of the Third Judicial Division,

which had been followed by Judge Folta in the First

Division.

Thereafter the case was set for trial before the

court at Ketchikan on April 13, 1955.

On April 11, 1955, Judge Folta announced that he

would summon a jury to try the case and submit

to the jury the questions of fact. Appellant objected

to the calling of a jury at that time, and the follow-

ing day, on April 12, 1955, the judge entered a

written order giving his reasons for calling the jury

(R. 25). Counsel for the appellant, while objecting

to the calling of the jury, made no motion or request

for a continuance of the trial. He stated that he

was taken by surprise and if he had known the jury

was to be called, he would not have taken certain

depositions but would have had the witnesses present

in person.

The case then proceeded to trial before the jury on

April 13, 1955. At the trial the appellant admitted



appellees' coimterclaim in the sum of $368.70. Two

forms of verdict were submitted by the court to the

jury (R. 35, 36). The jury signed verdict No. 1

giving the plaintiff damages in the sum of $368.70,

but offsetting against that the sum of $368.70, which

was the amount claimed hy the defendants in their

counterclaim and admitted. The effect of this verdict

was to give neither side anything.

The record shows that plaintiff-appellant made no

motion for an instructed verdict and took no excep-

tions to the court's instructions save one, which is

an exception to that part of Instruction 4 which in-

structs the jury to the effect that the terms of the

contract under the circumstances would have expired

on September 27, 1957, rather than September 27,

1962, as claimed (R. 205).

Thereafter appellant filed its motion under Rule 59

of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure requesting

the court to set aside the judgment which had been

entered on the jury's verdict on April 22, 1955, and

to make its own independent findings of fact and

direct entry of judgment for appellant in the amount

sued for or, in the alternative, to order a new^ trial

(R. 29, 40). The court denied this motion by a

minute order entered May 20, 1955 (R. 41). The

plaintiff-appellant thereupon took an appeal to this

court.

The appellant's statement of points to be relied

upon in this court are foimd on pages 268 and 269 of

the record. This statement of points is about identical

witli appellant's specifications of error contained in



its brief. We shall discuss these points in the order

in which they are stated by appellant (R. 268, 269).

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT.

Appellees' position is that no error was committed

by the trial court; that the jury's verdict is amply

supported by the great weight of the evidence; that

the alleged errors complained of are highly teclmical,

and if they may be considered as errors at all, they

are harmless en^ors within the meaning of Rule 61,

Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.

In our discussion of the four specifications of error,

and the four points relied on by appellant (R. 268-9)

we submit:

(1) That the trial court had the power to

try the case with a jury, and that this authority

is contained in both subdivisions (b) and (c) of Rule

39. That if the court did not summon the jury under

subdi\T^sion (b) upon a reconsideration of appellees'

motion of August 5, 1954, then it was done under

subdivision (c) and the omission of the word ''ad-

visory", and the trial judge's apparent misconcep-

tion of the circumstances permitting an advisory jury,

are immaterial.

(2) (a) That there was no error in the only portion

of Instruction No. 4 to which appellant took exception,

for the reason that while the judge limited the period

during which appellant could claim loss of profits

in the event of a breach of the contract by appellees,
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still since the jury's verdict shows that it did not

actually award appellant anything for even this

limited period, or if anything at all, only an insig-

nificant amount, no harm was done, even if the instruc-

tion had been wrongful.

(b) That the portion of Instruction No. 4 com-

plained of was correct; that the other portion of

Instruction No. 4 assigned as error is not before this

court because of the absence of any exception (R.

205).

(3) That the evidence of appellant's breach of

the contract was so overwhelming, a judgment for ap-

pellees, based on the verdict of the jury was required,

and that no judgment could have been entered for

appellant in any event and especially in the absence

of a motion for a directed verdict.

(4) That the order denying appellant's motion for

a new trial or for judgment n. o. v. is not appealable

and the appeal is taken from the judgment and there-

fore point No. 4 (R. 369) is superfluous.

(5) That it is apparent from the jury's verdict

it did not intend to give either side anything. There-

fore the jury, in order to accomplish this, could not

possibly have rendered any other form of verdict

except that submitted to it in the court's form of

''Verdict Number One" (R. 35). However, even

if it could be said that the jury actually decided

for appellant, still, the undisputed evidence gave the

jury the right and imposed on it the duty to take

into consideration, in fixing the amount to be awarded.



the additional expense which appellant's dereliction

had imposed on appellees, namely $600 a month for

2% years and the cost of the additional Associated

Press sei-vice (R. 119, 137).

(6) That if any of the alleged errors in appellant's

assignments can be considered as errors, none of them

affected the substantial rights of appellant, and they

must be considered as '' harmless" within the meaning

of Rule 61.

That when the jury was ordered on April 11-12,

1955, while appellant urged that it would be preju-

diced by not being able to have certain witnesses

present in person, instead of introducing their testi-

mony by deposition, it did not make any motion for

a continuance.

That no motion was made by appellant for a di-

rected verdict.

That no exception was taken to the second portion

of Instruction No. 4, assigned as error (R. 205).

ARGUMENT.

1. WAS IT REVERSIBLE ERROR FOR THE COURT TO IMPANEL
A JURY PURSUANT TO ITS ORDERS OF APRIL 11 AND 12?

Subdivisions (b) and (c) of Rule 39 of the Federal

Rules of Civil Procedure read as follows:

''(b) By the Court. Issues not demanded
for trial by jury as provided in Rule 38 shall

be tried by the court; but, notwithstanding the

failure of a party to demand a jury in an action

in which such a demand might have been made
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of right, the court in its discretion upon motioi

may order a trial by a jury of any or all issues

"(c) Advisor}^ Juiy and Trial by Consent

In all actions not triable of right by a jury th(

court upon motion or of its own initiative ma]

try any issue with an ad^dsory jury or, excep

in actions against the United States wiien a stat

ute of the United States provides for trial with

out a jury, the court, with the consent of botl

parties, may order a trial with a jury whos(

verdict has the same effect as if trial by jury hac

been a matter of right."

The appellees made a motion for jury trial ii

August, 1954 (R. 24). This was denied by the cour

(R. 25) because of a practice in not exercising dis

cretion to grant such motions, although Rule 38 (b^

vests that discretion in the couii:.

While the court may overrule or deny such a mo
tion, there is nothing to prevent the court from re

considering a motion of that nature and on recon

sideration, granting it. It is true that appellee;

did not renew the motion at Ketchikan, or at an^

time or place, after it was denied b}^ the court ii

1954, but the appellees had not withdrawn the motion

and as the late Judge Jennings frequently said: ''TIk

rules are made for the Court and not the Court foi

the rules." The court had a perfect right to recon

sider that motion and to base the order for the jurj

trial thereon, and his reason for doing so, if that was

in his mind, is made clear by his order of April 12

1955 (R. 25). An attack had been made upon th(
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judge by an attorney named Warren Taylor in the

Legislature, and certain newspapers had criticized

him for doing so, and included among them was the

Ketchikan News. We should think that the court

might have been commended for its action under the

circumstances.

Now, if it may not be considered that the court

did this and granted the jury trial upon a reconsider-

ation of the motion made by appellees in August, 1954,

still the court had the right of its own motion and its

own initiative under Rule 39(c) to call an advisory

jury to try any issue in the case. It is true the court

did not call this an advisory jurj^ and seemed to be

of the opinion that the advisory jury was called only

in equity cases, although the rule provides for the

trial of "any issue" with an advisory jury.

Surely, the court had the right under either sub-

di\dsions (b) or (c) of Rule 39 to submit the case to

a jury, and this is particularly so when we consider

the provisions of Rule No. 38(a) which pro^ddes that

the right of trial by jury shall be preserved inviolate.

We find the following in Barron and Holtzoff, Fed-

eral Practice and Procedure, Vol. 2, p. 598:

''There are District Court cases arguing that the

trial court has no discretion to grant a jury trial

on motion after time for demand has gone by

unless there are special circumstances excusing

the oversight or default.

"But these decisions place the emphasis in the

wrong place. Technical insistence upon imposing

a penalty for default by denying a jury trial is
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not in the spirit of the rules. If the issue is one

which normally should be tried by a jury, there

is nothing in the rules to limit the court's dis-

cretion in enlisting the aid of a jury. This is

made clear by the cases in which the courts have

exercised discretion in granting motions for jury

trials where the default has been the result of a

misunderstanding or an honest mistake or a bona

fide but ineffectual attempt to conform with the

rules or unfamiliarity with the rules, or if there

is doubt whether a pleading allegedly served by

mail was actually received so as to start the

limitation running on the time for a demand."

Surely there would be included in these reasons the

one given by the court in this case, for changing its

mind under the attendant circumstances and either

granting the motion made by appellees in August,

1954, or in calling an advisory jury on the single issue

involved in this case, which was the issue of damages

for alleged breach of contract. This was properly

a jury case and the issue was one of fact and a proper

one for a jury and a general verdict was in order and

was rendered. The court adopted this verdict and

entered judgment thereon, and there was no necessity

for findings.

In Supplies Incorporated v. Aetna Casualty and

Surety Co., 18 Fed. Rules Dec. Vol. 18, p. 226, the Dis-

trict Court for the Western District of Pennsylvania,

said in an opinion dated Oct. 26, 1955

:

''If the issue is one which normally should be

tried by a jury, there is nothing in the Rules to

limit the court's discretion in enlisting the aid of
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a jury. See 2, Barron and Holtzoff, Federal

Practice and Procedure, Sec. 892"

Appellant says it was taken by surprise by this or-

der for the jury and it was prejudiced because hav-

ing considered that the case would be tried by the

court, certain depositions had been taken of witnesses

in New York and San Francisco; that if appellant

had known the case was to be tried by a jury, it would

have had those witnesses present in person, and it was

therefore prejudiced in being obliged to read the dep-

ositions to the jury instead of being able to bring

the witnesses from New York and San Francisco so

they could have been examined orally.

There is no rule of law which makes any distinction

between oral testimony given by a witness in court,

and that given by deposition. The only difference

is that while both forms of testimony are oral, that

given by deposition is reduced to writing and read

to the jury.

''While testimony given orally in court, may, in

particular instances carry more weight, or be more

convincing than other testimony given by deposi-

tion in the same case, it may in other instances

be less convincing."

Am. Jur. Vol. 16, p. 746, sec. 112;

Belser v. American Trust Co., 125 Cal. App. 344

at 350.

The record discloses that all the depositions taken

by appellant were taken on oral interrogatories sub-

mitted in New York and San Francisco. There was
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110 repivsentntivo ov couiisol ]n'esont on In^ialf of do

fendants and ihcve was no cross-examination. Thos

depositions should have been to the advaiitagv of ap

l^ellant and not to its prejudice, for if the witnesse

liad Won present in court counsel for defendant

would have had an opportunity to cross-examine ther

fully. In a deposition where the witness has notic

as in this case, the answers to the interrog-atories cai

be ]U't^]iariHi in advance. If tlie witness is on th

stand, he is u\\w\\ move ^ulnerable. The appellees als^

had assumed that the case would be tried without i

jury; and on April 13, 1955, they were in the sam

situation in this regard as tlu^ a]')pellant.

A complete answer, however, to the claim of preju

dice on the i^art of appellant, is that a]>"[H41ant did no

ask for a postponement of the trial. The trial wa

ill April, 1955, and the next remilar term of cour

at Ketchikan would have biH>n Octolnu', 1955. It doe

not ai^pear that appellant should be able to claiii

])rejudice where it did not take any steps for a post

ponement. The case of ^atJu r v. Li)idahl, 261 Pac. 2(

682, was a case where the plaintiffs produced fou

witnesses in a personal injury case, after having de

iiied in a deposition any knowledge of any witnesse

to the accident. Defendant made no objection to th

testimony of these witnesses, cross-examined them, luu

asked for no relief from the surprise until after th

jury had )ieen instructed. After a verdict for plain

tiff, the trial court on motion of defendant grantei

a new trial. The Supreme Court of Washington re

vei*sed because defendant had not either objected to th
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testimony of the four witnesses or asked for a continu-

ance.

If the action of the trial judge in this case in order-

ing a jury trial on April 11, 1955, was based on a

reconsideration of defendants' motion of August 5,

1951, then the case is within the rule (see Roth v.

Hyer, 142 Fed. 2d 227). If plaintiff were surprised

by that ruling and prejudiced as it claimed, it cannot

complain now, for it made no request for postpone-

ment of the trial.

''The right to a jury trial, of course, is fimda-

mental and the courts should indulge every rea-

sonable presumption against waiver of such

right."

Container Co. v. Carpenter Container Corp. et

al, 9 Fed. Rules Decisions 261 (Dist. Ct. Del.)

Citing

Aetna Insurance Co. v. Kennedy, 301 U.S. 389,

393.

In the case of Consolidated Fisheries Co. v. Fair-

hanks 3Iorse d- Co., 9 F.R.D. p. 539, the District Court

for the Eastern District of Pennsylvania ordered a

jury trial of all the issues in the case, where plaintiff

was entitled as a matter of right under the rules to a

jury trial of only part of the issues.

It must be remembered that the issues in this case

were wholly issues of fact and the only matter sub-

mitted to the court and jury were questions of dam-

ages.

If the jury impaneled in this case was actually an

advisory jury within the language of the rule, and if
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no representative or counsel present on behalf of de-

fendants and there was no cross-examination. These

depositions should have been to the advantage of ap-

pellant and not to its prejudice, for if the witnesses

had been present in court counsel for defendants

would have had an opportunity to cross-examine them

fully. In a deposition where the witness has notice

as in this case, the answers to the interrogatories can

be prepared in advance. If the witness is on the

stand, he is much more vulnerable. The appellees also

had assumed that the case would be tried without a

jury; and on April 13, 1955, they were in the same

situation in this regard as the appellant.

A complete answer, however, to the claim of preju-

dice on the part of appellant, is that appellant did not

ask for a postponement of the trial. The trial was

in April, 1955, and the next regular term of court

at Ketchikan would have been October, 1955. It does

not appear that appellant should be able to claim

prejudice where it did not take any steps for a post-

ponement. The case of Sather v. Lindahl, 261 Pac. 2d

682, w^as a case where the plaintiffs produced four

witnesses in a personal injury case, after having de-

nied in a deposition any knowledge of any witnesses

to the accident. Defendant made no objection to the

testimony of these witnesses, cross-examined them, and

asked for no relief from the surprise until after the

jury had l^een instructed. After a verdict for plain-

tiff, the trial court on motion of defendant granted

a new trial. The Supreme Court of Washington re-

versed because defendant had not either objected to the
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testimony of the four witnesses or asked for a continu-

ance.

If the action of the trial judge in this case in order-

ing a jury trial on April 11, 1955, was based on a

reconsideration of defendants' motion of August 5,

1954, then the case is within the rule (see Roth v.

Eyer, 142 Fed. 2d 227). If plaintiff were surprised

by that ruling and prejudiced as it claimed, it cannot

complain now, for it made no request for postpone-

ment of the trial.

"The right to a jury trial, of course, is fimda-

mental and the courts should indulge every rea-

sonable presumption against waiver of such

right."

Container Go. v. Carpenter Container Corp. et

ah, 9 Fed. Rules Decisions 261 (Dist. Ct. Del.)

Citing

Aetna Insurance Co. v. Kennedy, 301 U.S. 389,

393.

In the case of Consolidated Fisheries Co. v. Fair-

hanks Morse & Co., 9 F.R.D. p. 539, the District Court

for the Eastern District of Pennsylvania ordered a

jury trial of all the issues in the case, where plaintiff

was entitled as a matter of right under the rules to a

jury trial of only part of the issues.

It must be remembered that the issues in this case

were wholly issues of fact and the only matter sub-

mitted to the court and jury were questions of dam-

ages.

If the jury impaneled in this case was actually an

advisory jury within the language of the rule, and if
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the question and the issue was solely one of damages

and the court accepted the verdict of the jury and

based its judgment thereon, there would be no neces-

sity for findings.

In the case of Reliance Life Insurance Co. v. Ever-

glades Discount Co., 204 Fed. 2d 937, at page 942, the

United States Court of Appeals (5th Cir.) said:

''There is no objection to the trial judge impanel-

ing an advisory jury and adoj^ting its findings

of fact, even in an equity case."

Civil Rule 39(c)
;

In re Pan American Life Ins. Co., 188 Fed. 2d

833 (5th Cir. 1951)
;

Hargrove v. American Cent. Ins. Co., 155 Fed.

2d 225 (10th Cir.)
;

Burkhard v. Burkhard, 175 Fed. 2d 593 (10th

Cir.)
;

Dickinson v. General Ace. F. & L. Ins. Co., 147

Fed. 2d 396 (9th Cir.).

In the last mentioned case, 147 Fed. 2d 396, the trial

court had treated the jury's verdict as advisory, re-

jected it and made findings contrary to the verdict.

This court reversed and held that to be error because

the issues were factual.

In Volume 5, Moore's Federal Practice, page 720, 2d

Edition, the subject of an advisory jury under Rule

39(c) is discussed and referring to the necessity of

findings imder Rule 52(a), Moore says:

"While the trial court's duty to make findings

should be strictly followed, where the record was

so clear that the Appellate Court did not need the
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aid of findings, it did not remand but affirmed

the district court's judgment that had been
entered in accordance with the advisory verdict"

(page 726, Sec. 39.10(4)).

On page 722, Sec. 39.10(1), in referring to the case

of American Liunljermen's Mutual Casualty Co. of

Illinois V. Timms & Hotvard, Inc., 108 Fed. 2d 497,

we find the following:

"We are inclined to agi-ee with Judge Clark's ap-

proach. If there is any merit for the trial court's

use of a jury in an advisory capacity for the

trial of equitable issues, or legal issues upon which

there is no right of jury trial (as in actions

against the United States under the Tucker and
Tort Claims Act) there must be similar merit in

using the advisory jury for the trial of legal

issues, where there was a constitutional or statu-

tory right but the parties have waived it. In fact

it is on the last type of issue rather than on the

equitable issue that a jury is most likely to be

helpful."

Then referring to Judge Hurrah's coimter argiunent

in the case of Harg^^ove v. Americayi Cent. Ins. Co.,

125 Fed. 2d 225, Moore goes on to say

:

"If the parties want a court trial, the court should

not be able to impose a jury trial upon them.

He is undoubtedly right that the court cannot on

its own initiative impose a common law jury trial

upon them. But the court is not doing this when
it utilizes a jury in an advisoiy capacity. In

effect the trial is a court trial, for the jury acts

merely as an aid to the judge, since he must make
his own findings of fact and conclusions of law
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and must bear the ultimate responsibility for the

judgment. This is why Judge Clark and Judge

Murrah both come out at the same result—no

reversible error in utilizing an advisory jury, al-

though they differ in principle as to situations

where the advisory jury may be used.

"Rule 39(c) is clear that it is within the district

judge's discretion as to whether or not he will use

an advisory jury, and he may act either on his

own initiative, or on motion of a party."

''If the lower court treats the verdict as advisory

and concurs therein, on appeal, if there was any

error in treating the jury's verdict as advisory

and concurring therein, such error would be harm-

less."

Pennsylvania TliresJiermen and Farmer's Mu-

tual Casualty Ins. Co. v. Crapet, 199 Fed. 2d

850 (5th Cir.).

We submit that the trial court had the power to

reconsider defendants' motion for a jury trial made

on August 5, 1954, and in September, 1954, denied.

That being so, the jury was impaneled and the case

tried just as though the jury had been requested by

either party within the time prescribed by the rule.

If, on the other hand, the court called an advisory

jury, this was clearly within the provisions of Rule

39(c), and since the jury decided the only issue there

was in the case and the court adopted the jury's

verdict and entered judgment thereon, findings would

have been superfluous.
'

' The inherent powers of a court are such as result

from the very nature of its organization and are
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essential to its existence and protection and to

due administration of justice. It is fundamental

that every court has inherent power to do all

things that are reasonably necessary for the ad-

ministration of justice within the scope of its

jurisdiction. Such power has been exercised over

the court's process to prevent abuses; to relieve

a party in default ; to grant bail, etc.
'

'

14 Am. Jur. page 370, Sec. 171.

^'It is one of the equitable powers, inherent in

every court of justice so long as it retains control

of the subject matter and of the parties, to correct

that which has been wrongfully done by virtue of

its process."

Arkadelphia Milling Co. v. St. Louis S. W. R.

Co., 239 U.S. 134, 145.

It is well established that a court, at any time in

the proceedings of a case before it, may reverse a

former ruling, especially where it does not affect jorop-

erty rights and where the result of the reversal does

not substantially affect the rights of the parties. If

appellant in this case foresaw any prejudice to its

rights, the remedy was by motion for continuance,

which was not made.

The principle of law above mentioned is greatly

strengthened by Rule 61 relating to harmless error,

which we shall discuss later in this brief. The trial

was set for Wednesday, April 13. A continuance

until Monday, April 18th would have given the wit-

nesses ample time to have come from New York and

San Francisco by airplane. But the presence of the
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witnesses would have been a distinct advantage to ap-

pellees, for we could have then cross-examined them

in court. We did not do that in the taking of the

depositions.

2. WAS THERE ANY ERROR IN THAT PORTION OF INSTRUC-

TION NO. 4 OBJECTED TO BY APPELLANT?

Appellant assigns as error the giving of two portions

of Instruction No. 4 (R. 30, 31). These two portions

are

(a) That portion which instructs the jury that the

original contract would have expired on September

27, 1957, instead of September 27, 1962, as claimed by

plaintiff; and

(b) That portion which reads as follows

:

"In determining the amount of damages, if you
find that plaintiff is entitled thereto, you may
consider . . . the probability of change during the

period referred to in the rates, the cost of doing

business, and the margin of profit, as well as the

probability or improbability that defendants

would remain in business."

Counsel for appellant at the conclusion of the in-

structions of the court took exception to the first part

of Instruction No. 4 complained of, but no exception

was taken to the other part of the instruction, desig-

nated herein as "(b)" (R. 205). The record shows

at pages 204 and 205 that counsel for appellant took

but one exception, as follows

:

"Mr. Dimond. I just want to take exception to

part of Instruction 4 which instructs the jury to
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the effect that the term of the contract would
expire September 27, 1957, rather than September

27, 1962."

Having taken no exception to the latter part of In-

struction No. 4, appellant is not in a position to raise

the question here.

With reference to (a) hereinabove, we submit that

there was no error in the trial court's interpretation

of the original contract and the modification thereof

of February 21, 1950. We must bear in mind that

both the contract and the modification were prepared

by appellant, and under such circumstances the rule

is well settled that if there is any ambiguity in such

a contract, all doubts must be resolved against the

party writing the contract. The ''Modification of

Agreement" dated at New York February 21, 1950,

reduces the rate which was then being paid by the

appellees for its news services from $72.52 per week to

$52.52 per week. Paragraph 7 of that modification

reads as follows:

"The term of the agreement between the parties

shall be extended by the length of time during

which the above suspension is in effect."

The agreement mentioned is, of course, the original

agreement between the parties. According to the terms

of that agreement which went into effect October 3,

1945 (R. 11) the next expiration date after February

19, 1950, would have been October 3, 1953, but when

October 3, 1953, arrived, there was already added to

the expiration date the period from February 19, 1950,

to October 3, 1953, or three years and eight months.
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Before the original contract was terminated, the modi

fication of February 19, 1950, had been in effect ap

proximately four years. Therefore, we would add foui

years to the date of October 3, 1953, and that woulc

make it October 3, 1957. It will be observed that th(

original agreement is rather confusing as to dates

and in paragraph 8 thereof (R. 10) it is stated tha'

it begins on September 1, 1945, and extends for three

years with automatic renewals for periods of five yearj

thereafter (R. 10). But in paragraph 12 (R. 11) ihh

date is contingent on the commencement of daily pub

lications by the appellees, and at the bottom of th(

13th paragraph (R. 11), we find the following:

''Actually started Svce. 10/3/45".

Counsel's argument is that the four years during

which the modification had been in effect between Feb-

ruary 19, 1950, and the date of the termination of th(

original contract should be added to the expiratior

date of October 3, 1953, and that five years more should

be added to that. But we think it is plain from s

reading of the modification that if appellant had lived

up to this part of the contract, the appellees instead

of being able to give notice of termination on Octobei

3, 1953, would have been compelled to wait after Oc-

tober 3, 1953, the number of years the modification

remained in effect. That would have been Octobei

3, 1957, so that under any circumstances appellees

could have terminated the contract according to its

terms and without any default or breach on the pari

of either party on October 3, 1957, by giving six

months' notice prior to that date.



23

There is another reason why the position of appel-

lant in this regard is untenable, and that is that since

the verdict and judgment resulted in nothing for the

appellant, it could not very well have been prejudiced

by this part of Instruction No. 4. If the jury had

given the appellant a verdict for its claimed loss of

profits until October 3, 1957, and had been prevented

from giving more or going beyond October 3, 1957,

by the court's instructions, there might be some merit

in the argument of appellant, but since appellant got

^nothing except a forgiveness of its admitted indebted-

ness to appellees of $368.70, the court's instruction in

this regard could be nothing more at most than harm-

less error, which will be discussed hereinafter. How-
ever, we do not think it was even harmless error or

any error for the court to so instruct the jury.

The general rule of law is found in 39 Am. Jur. 128,

Sec. 118, where it is stated

:

''Ordinarily a trial court will not grant a new
trial on account of error in giving instructions

imless it is probable that the result of the trial

was changed thereby. Accordingly an erroneous

instruction is held not to be ground for a new
trial if it is manifest that the complaining party

was not in any way prejudiced thereby, or if the

court can see from the whole record that even

under correct instructions, a different verdict

could have been rightfully rendered."

(b) Referring to the error claimed in the giving

of the second part of the court's instruction, namely,

that part which instructs the jury that they may take

into consideration "the i^robability of change during
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the period referred to in the rates, the cost of doino

business, and the margin of profit, as well as the proba-

bility or improbability that defendants would remair

in business", we think the record abundantly show^

that appellant claimed its margin of profit fluctuated

The testimony of Mr. Belnaj), a witness for the de-

fendant (R. 67, 68) shows that in December, 1953

which was less than two months before the termina-

tion of the contract, the total revenue from the appel-

lant's business in Alaska was almost $2.00 less thai-

its expenses per week. Taking the record as a whole

we find that appellants were for many years furnish-

ing the appellees with inadequate service and not liv-

ing up to the terms of the contract. We shall discuss

this more in detail hereinafter. The rival newspapei

was getting news every day and news of great impor-

tance which appellant was not furnishing to appellees

under its contract, and the court undoubtedly had thai

in mind for in another part of Instruction No. 4 (R

31) it is said:

"The defendants contend that news of local im-

portance was frequently omitted from that trans-

mitted to them which iDrejudiced them in the op-

eration of their newspaper business and in com-

peting with the rival newspaper."

Therefore, when the court gave the last part ol

Instruction No. 4 complained of, the judge un-

doubtedly had in mind the possil)ility of the appellees

being forced out of business through the failure

neglect or refusal of the appellant to live up to th(

terms of the contract and furnish the appellees witl
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sufficient news service to permit it to compete with

its rival newspaper.

It is well settled, however, that where no exception

is taken to an instruction, no error can be assigned to

the Appellate Court thereon.

Another reason why, even if this portion of the in-

struction had been erroneous, it is not grounds for a

new trial or for a reversal of the judgment, is because

the appellees had remained in business from the date

of the termination of the contract in February, 1954,

until April, 1955, a period of fourteen months, and

before any advantage could be taken of this, even if

it were error, it could hardly be claimed imless the

jury had first given the appellant a verdict for its

claimed loss of profits from February 14, 1954, imtil

April 13, 1955, at least. This, under plaintiff's claim

of a total of over $21,000.00, would have been roughly

something over $2,000.00. If the jury had given ap-

pellant that much and had been prevented by the in-

struction from assuming that appellees would remain

in business any longer than the date of the termina-

tion of the trial, there might be some merit in the

argument.

*'Error in adverse ruling without adverse effect

may subject judge to criticism but not the case

to retrial."

United States v. Parcel of Land, etc., 47 Fed.

Supp. 30.
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3. DID THE COURT ERR IN ENTERING JUDGMENT FOR A
PELLEES AND IN REFUSING TO MAKE FINDINGS Ai^

ENTER JUDGMENT FOR APPELLANT FOR A SUBSTANTIA
AMOUNT?

(a) In support of this assignment of error appe

lant in its brief alleges that appellees offered no sul

stantial evidence to controvert that of appellant wit

reference to the claimed loss of prospective profit

We do not agree, when we consider the testimony c

Mr. Belnap (R. 68) that just six weeks before tl:

termination of the contract appellant was losing on i1

Alaska business approximately $2.00 a week.

Assuming, however, for the sake of argument thi

this made no difference, no judgment could have bee

entered for appellant in this case if it breached th

contract itself, and we submit that the evidence i

overwhelming that it was the ai3pellant which breache

the contract and not the appellees.

The evidence on this point was so voluminous, cor

sisting in large part of scores of newspaper clipping

showing important news to have been available an

which should have been furnished appellees unde

its contract, but which was not furnished; that it wa

not practical to print all these exhibits in the recorc

The original records, however, are before the cour

We call the court's attention to some portions o

this evidence which we think was not controverted:

See testimony of Paul S. Charles, R. 111-120;

Testimony of Gene Brice, R. 149, 151-165;

Testimony of Marie J. Flood, R. 127-146, inclusive
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Letter from Harry Carlson, appellant's manager in

Seattle, to the Chicago and Portland offices of appel-

lant, dated March 2, 1948 (Defendants' Exhibit G, R.

131-133), apologizing for poor service; in this letter

Mr. Carlson admits that the appellant was not furnish-

ing proper service, and he refers to the editor of the

appellees' paper, Mr. Sid D. Charles, as having *'the

patience of Job", and that he is '^justified in register-

ing a vigorous complaint". Mr. Carlson then goes on

to discuss failure to send very important news to the

appellees

;

Letter dated January 29, 1949, from the api)ellee to

Mr. Molander, manager of the appellant in New York,

registering complaints about poor service and listing

many instances and stating that "Time after time we

have been scooped on important Alaska news from

Washington" (R. 133, 134) ;

Letter from Daily News to the appellant in New
York (Attention Mr. Molander), dated December 27,

1949 (R. 136). In this letter the api)ellees complain

that the cost of the news to the appellees is twice the

amount paid by the rival newspaper to the Associated

Press, and that the rival newspaper is getting twice

the wordage for half the cost

;

Letter dated January 14, 1954, from Mrs. Flood of

the appellee's staff to Mr. Belnai), in which comx)laint

is made of the ever increasing costs. That letter con-

tains the following statement:

"We have been constantly scooped on stories that

are of interest to our area by the Chronicle that
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carries Associated Press. In the past we ha

made our own arrangements with Bob De A

mond, who acted as your stringer to get covera

on the last legislature" (R. 141, 142).

Letter from the appellees to Harry Carlson dal

April 16, 1948 (Plaintiff's Exhibit 9, R. 261-26^

complaining of lack of accurate news in connecti

with the Seattle earthquake;

Letter from Mrs. Flood to the appellant in Ni

York dated November 14, 1953, with reference to c£

cellation of contract and complaining of the ne

coverage (Defendants' Exhibit G; R. 266).

Then throughout the record there are several lettc

from the appellant to the appellees promising beti

service and acknowledging the defects. Among th(

is the letter from Mr. Bowerman to Mr. Charles

the appellees' staff dated February 5, 1949 (Pla:

tiff's Exhibit 5, R. 246). Mr. Bowerman acknowled^

the complaint on the coverage and concludes his leti

by stating as follows:

"Editorially my impression was that we w(

miles ahead of A. P. as a general rule, and I {

glad to have it pointed out that there are defe^

in the coverage. We are going to work to reme

this at once and you will be hearing direct fr(

Mr. Harry Carlson at Seattle thereon."

It will be observed that in each of the letters fr<

the appellees to the appellant during the years prec(

ing the termination of the contract the complab

consisted of both objections to the constant increai

in cost along with poorer and poorer service on 1
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part of appellant. Many complaints were made by

telegram (R. Ill, 146). The letters from Mr. Sid

Charles, editor of the appellees' paper, show that he

was willing and anxious to cooperate with the appel-

lant, and he was very patient with its shortcomings.

Even Mr. Carlson acknowledged that in his letter in

which he said that Sid Charles ''had the patience of

Job".

The record and exhibits show that frequently Mr.

Charles would query the United Press and ask them

to be sure to send items regarding very important news

to the people of Alaska which was coming out of

Washington, and even after the query while the rival

paper got the news through the Associated Press, the

appellees would not receive it through the appellant

(R. 146).

An instance of the poor service furnished by appel-

lant was in connection with news originating in

Juneau and of paramount importance to all the people

of the territory, as Juneau is the capital of Alaska

and the headquarters for the federal and territorial

officials.

In Plaintiff's Exhibit 9 (R. 249) there is a letter

dated October 14, 1946, from Mr. Charles to the United

Press Association with reference to this news service

from Juneau. Mr. Charles said in that letter it had

been his understanding that the correspondent there

would send the news to him direct without need of

clearing it through the Seattle office, but that the ap-

pellees had not received a thing from Juneau for a

long time. This is only a small portion of the evidence



30

with reference to the breach of contract on the ps

of appellant, and in the portion to which we have i

ferred hereinabove it was shown that appellant h

not furnished the appellees with news of great impc

tance to all the people of the territory, and partic

larly to the people of Ketchikan, although it was ;

carried in the rival newspaper, the Chronicle. Su

things as the records of deaths in the Seattle earl

quake, a resolution passed by the Western Governoi

Conference at Sacramento urging statehood f

Alaska, news regarding the settlement of Indian a

cestral claims to a large portion of the territory, a:

news of particular importance to the people of Ketcl

kan with reference to timber sales and the comi

of a large pulp mill to the Ketchikan area, whi

proved to be by far the most important developme

ever undertaken in the territory, were not furnish

by appellant to appellees (R. 111-115 and Defendan

Exhibit H, not printed).

The Defendants' Exhibit H which is not print

contains several score of newspapers and newspap

clippings showing articles of considerable importar

emanating from Juneau sent by the United Pre

representative in Juneau, Mr. George Sundborg,

the rival paper, the Chronicle, which were not receiv

by the appellees either direct from Mr. Sundboi

United Press Correspondent in Jmieau, or from t

United Press itself under the terms of the contra

It may be pointed out that in the testimony of IV

Brice, who compared the two newspapers publish

in Ketchikan, he admitted that while he had list
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perhaps 200 items, there were probably three or four

on which some service was made by the appellant to

the appellees but in comparing the great number of

papers which Mr. Brice was called upon to compare, it

is not surprising that of about 200 he omitted

only three or four; but it is significant that the ap-

pellant before the trial had submitted to the appellees

certain interrogatories asking for specific instances

where the appellant had failed to furnish an adequate

news service. These interrogatories were answered

months before the trial and they consisted of 69

separate paragraphs giving specific dates and items

of news omitted from the service furnished by the ap-

pellant, and yet with this information before them,

appellant could find only four mistakes. When it came

to the trial, of course, Mr. Brice was able to add many

other instances to the 69 paragraphs which had been

already furnished the appellant (R. 170).

An examination of Defendants' Exhibit H shows

as many as four or five items in one day furnished the

Chronicle, the rival newspaper in Ketchikan, by the

appellant's own correspondent in Juneau, none of

which were furnished the appellees.

(b) Perhaps what we have said in subheading (a)

is superfluous, for we do not think that this matter

is before this court at all, for the reason that appellant

made no motion for an instructed verdict, and that

is a prerequisite to raising the question on appeal.

The rule as we find it in Een v. Consolidated

Freightways, 220 Fed. 2d 82 (8th Cir.), would seem

to be as follows:
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"1. On appeal from judgment on verdict,

dence must be viewed in light most favorabl

prevailing party ; . . .

"2. Whether the evidence is sufficient to sus

a jury verdict cannot be considered by the ap

late court where the a^jpellant did not reque

directed verdict in the trial court.

"3. Where the whole record of the trial al

dantly sustains a judgment, even if error has I

committed in the introduction of testimony,

error is considered harmless within the meai

of Rule 61, F.R.C.P."

"An appellant can not on motion for new t:

or on appeal, raise the question of the insufficie

of the evidence unless he has first moved fc

directed verdict at the conclusion of all of

evidence."

Boudreau v. Mississippi Shipping Co., 222 ]

2d 954 (5th Cir. 1955) ;

Moore v. Louisville & N. R. B. Co., 223 Fed

214 (5th Cir. June, 1955) ;

O'Malley v. Cover, 221 Fed. 2d 156 (8th

1955).

Appellant discusses this assignment in relatioi

the amount of damages which the appellant clain

but before any damages could be awarded to appell

it would have been necessary to first determine i

appellees had breached the contract. This quest

of course, is a part of the consideration of the d

ages, but even this question of whether or not the

pellees breached the contract caimot be raised her

the absence of a motion for instructed verdict. 1
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is the heart of the case, for if the appellants them-

selves breached the contract, there could be no dam-

ages, and the verdict of the jury was proper; but in

any event, the question cannot be raised on appeal,

because there was no motion for instructed verdict.

4. CAN THE ACTION OF THE TRIAL COURT IN DENYING AP-

PELLANT'S MOTION FOR A NEW TRIAL BE REVIEWED IN

THE APPELLATE COURT?

The appeal in this case is taken from the final judg-

ment (R. 41). It would seem, therefore, that the

fourth specification of error is superfluous. If it is

not, then we suggest that this court has many times

held that an order denying a motion for a new trial

is not appealable.

Lihhy, McNeill <£* Lihhy v. Alaska Industrial

Board, 215 Fed. 2d 781 (9th Cir. 1954), and

cases cited therein.

5. VERDICT.

The appellant insists that the verdict (R. 35) was

for the appellant, and that being so, the amount under

the evidence should have been much greater than the

amount awarded it.

This verdict at first glance may seem a little confus-

ing and illogical, but not so when we consider all the

evidence.

The jury was handed two forms of verdict by the

court and the first form was for use in case the jury
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found for the appellant in a sum greater than 1

sum of $368.70, which was the appellees' comitercla

admitted by appellant (R. 73-74). The second fo:

was a verdict for appellees. The court did not exph

these forms to the jury, but said they were ''se

explanatory" (Inst. No. 11, R. 34).

Apparently the jury considered only the form

Verdict No. 1. They were bound under this form

deduct $378.70 from any amount to be inserted

line 3 of the verdict in the blank space which v

provided (R. 35). Since they could not deduct $368

from anything less than $368.70, they filled in 1

same thing on line 3. We must remember that wh

this form of verdict was handed the jury the amov

to be filled in on line 3 (R. 35) had been left blai

The appellees' coimterclaim was for some payme]

made by the appellees after the contract was ten

nated. The jury may well have felt, for some reas(

that these payments should have been paid by the i

pellees. We are not permitted to speculate on th(

reason, but their verdict simply cancelled out all clai

of one side against the other.

The Federal Rules require, we think, that we mi

look through the form to the substance in such matte

and looking through the form and considering all 1

circumstances, it is apparent that the jury intend

by its verdict to award nothing to either side.

The trial court took this view, for we fijid the folio

ing in the court's order denying costs to either pa]

(R. 215) :



35

''It is obvious that what the jury wanted to do is

not allow either party anything, and it seems to

me we have got to disregard the form of their

verdict and view it merely as a device to award
nothing to either party, and viewing it that way,

then who is the prevailing party <? * * * Well, I am
inclined to think that each party should pay its

own costs. I have felt that way from the time

that the verdict was returned and noting that it

was merely a device to avoid awarding anything

to either party, so it will be the order of the

Court that each party will pay its own costs."

It will be, I think, technical to say that appellant

was the prevailing party. Even if the jury could have

possibly foimd for appellant, in the face of the over-

whelming evidence of the breach of the contract by

appellant, and had found that the appellees had

breached the contract, still it had the right and duty

to assess appellant's damages in whatever sum ap-

peared right to the jury; but it must be apparent,

as Judge Folta said, that the verdict meant that

neither side should recover. This is apparent, if we

consider the two forms of verdict as submitted, bear-

ing in mind that there was a blank space on line 3

of Verdict No. 1 for the insertion of the amount.

If the jury had decided that neither side should

recover, as it seems certain they did, then there was

no other form of verdict they could return; that is

to say, there was no other way in which they could

have returned one of the verdicts submitted, and they

returned the only form by which they could accom-

plish the result.
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If they had signed the first verdict without ins

ing anything in the blank space, then appellees wc

have prevailed. If they had signed the second f*

of verdict which had the figure of $368.70 inserte(

represent appellee's claim, appellee would have
]

vailed. If they had inserted more than $368.7(

Form No. 1. then appellant would have prevai

They could have done nothing other than they

in order to accomplish their purpose, which obvioi

was to find no damages for either side.

The case of Smith v. Philadelphia Transport

173 Fed. 2d 721, was before the United States C(

of Appeals, for the 3rd Circuit. In that case

interrogatories or special verdicts had been submi

to the jury and they came in with their answers

awarded the plaintiff in the case $500.00 on one cl

and $10,000 on another claim in which only $527

had been demanded. The court held that it was

parent the jury had made a mistake and it orde

the answers to the special questions to be transpc

and be set opposite the proper questions. The C(

held that the mistake in the verdict of the jury or

answers to the special questions constituted harm

error.

In this case the record abmidantly shows that if

jury had undertaken to write its o^^^l verdict, it w(

have l)rought in a verdict stating simj^ly that it fo

for neither side, Imt of course, it felt bomid to fo]

one of the forms submitted by the trial court.

Even if it could be said, as contended by appell

that in fijiding $368.70 for aiJi)eUant the jury d
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have found that the appellees had breached the con-

tract, still the jury had a wide latitude in the amount

of damages it would award the appellant.

Conceding for the sake of argimient only, that the

jury did find a breach by appellees, they must have

also found that appellant was entitled to little more

than nominal damages. They could well do this under

the evidence. Appellant had not been furnishing the

news service as agreed, although they furnished some.

Appellees had been obliged to supplement this news

service at a cost of $600 a month for 2% years (R.

119). They eventually had to take the Associated

Press service also in order to get the news (R. 118).

This cost approximately half as much as appellant's

service (R. 137). This testimony is undisputed, and

the jury may have very well considered that even if

appellees had breached the contract, the damage to

appellant was very slight.

In the case of United Press Associations v. Natl.

Netvspaper Assn., 254 Fed. 281 cited in appellant's

brief there appears to have been no such uncontro-

verted evidence of facts which could have impelled

the jury to reduce the verdict to $500.00.

6. HARMLESS ERROR.

Aside from the arguments we have made in answer

to appellant 's specifications of error and the comments

we have made on the verdict, it would appear that

since no substantial rights of the appellant were af-

fected by the verdict even if the trial court had erred
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Instruction No. 4 complained of, and in basing

judgment on the verdict, it was harmless error wit

the meaning of Rule 61, Federal Rules of Civil I

cedure, which reads:

"Rule 61. Harmless error. No error in either

admission or the exclusion of evidence and

error or defect in any ruling or order or in a

thing done or omitted by the court or by anj

the parties is ground for granting a new tria]

for setting aside a verdict or for vacatmg, mod:

ing, or otherwise disturbing a judgment or or

unless refusal to take such action appears to

court inconsistent with substantial justice. [

court at every stage of the proceeding must <

regard any error or defect in the proceeding wl

does not affect the substantial rights of

parties.
'^

Looking at the record as a whole, it is clear t

whether the case was tried by the court or whet

it should be tried again with the changes in the

structions and rulings of the court and the forms

verdict submitted to the jury, the result would

the same.

"If there is no likelihood that a retrial wo
result in a different verdict, a new trial will

refused.
'^

Bnmer v. Knickerbocker, 4 Alaska 387.

This court applied the rule regarding harmless ei

in the case of Rtvdeen v. Lilly, 199 Fed. 2d 300, at i

In the case of Daniels v. Goldberg, 173 Fed. 2d 1

the jury in the trial court had requested that the te
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mony of a certain witness, Dr. Klein, be read to them

after they had retired. They then found a verdict

for plaintiff. It was discovered afterward that the

reporter in reading the testimony had inadvertently

omitted a portion. This was one of the grounds urged

in the United States Court of Appeals for the Second

Circuit for reversal. The court disposed of the matter

in language as follows

:

''That part of Dr. Klein's testimony which by
inadvertence was not read to the jury contained

nothing of significance which would have affected

the jury's verdict."

The court had a right to reconsider appellees' mo-

tion for a jury and to grant it if he saw fit. He also

had the right to call an advisory jury, and although

he did not consider this an advisory jury, still that

would make no difference. He certainly had a right

to call a jury on one ground or the other, and the fact

that this might have been an advisory jury within

the meaning of the rule and the judge had omitted

the word "advisory" or thought it did not apply,

would seem to make no difference under Rule 61, and

it would be not only harmless error but highly tech-

nical.

In the case of World Fire & Marine Insurance

Co. V. Palmer, 182 Fed. 2d 707, at 712, the Court of

Appeals for the Fifth Circuit had been asked to

reverse a judgment of the District Court in favor

of plaintiffs. The Court of Appeals said

:

'
' Even though we do not approve of the reasoning

of the trial judge, he reached the right result and

consequently no error appears."



40

See, also:

Miller v. Mutual Life Ins. Co., 17 Fed. R
Dec. 121.

The Federal Rules are designed to eliminate tec.

calities, simplify procedure, and do away with un

essary appeals, and there are many things which v

formerly held to be grounds for a new trial which

not now.

In the case of Alaska Fishermen's Packing Cc

Chin Quong, 202 Fed. 707, at 713, this court ]

where the defendant had set up a counterclain

plaintiff's demands, it was not material that the i

court may have excluded evidence on the meas

of damages alleged by defendant, where the jury

awarded defendant nothing but had brought in a

diet for plaintiff. This court said (page 714) :

"The whole contention becomes immaterial

view of the fact that the jury found no damj

for defendant. The error, if error there was,

thereby made immaterial." (Citing Cunning]

V. Springer, 204 U.S. 647.)

These cases were decided before Rule 61

adopted, and there is much more reason for the af

cation of the doctrine of harmless error under

rule than there was before it was made applicabl

In the case of McCandless v. United States, 74 ]

2d 596 (9th Cir.), this court held that the court be

committed error in denying certain offers of pi

submitted by defendant, but that the denial was

prejudicial.
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Citing

Simpson v. U. S., 289 Fed. 188;

Armstrong v. U. S., 16 Fed. 2d 62, 65,

also decided by this court.

Again this court said in another Alaska case, Hoog-

endorn v. Daniel, 202 Fed. 431, at page 433

:

''Unless it can be shown that prejudice has re-

sulted from error of the trial court, prejudice will

not be presumed."

In the case of Smith v. United States, 63 Fed. 2d

252, the Court of Appeals for the Seventh Circuit

held:

"Appellant must show evidence at the trial was
so overwhelming in his favor that a contrary

finding should not be allowed to stand."

Rule 61 was applied by the Eighth Circuit in Walsh

V. Bekins Van Line Co., 217 Fed. 2d 388 (1954),

where the court held that

"Unless an appellant can show from the entire

record the denial of some substantial right there

will be no reversal."

In the case of Sneed v. United States, 217 Fed. 2d

912, 914, the Court of Appeals for the Fourth Circuit

concluded that certain testimony was incompetent, but

harmless, in view of all the other evidence, and that

Rule 61 applied.

See, also

:

Psiriakis v. Psiriakis, 221 Fed. 2d 418 (3rd Cir.

1955).
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CONCLUSION.

We submit that the great weight of the evidc

in this case shows that the appellees were enti

to prevail and that the appellant had breached

contract. The judgment should be affirmed for

reasons hereinabove discussed, namely, that the c(

properly submitted the case to a jury either ur

Rule 39(b) or 39(c); that the instructions were

rect; that the verdict was more than amply sustai

by the evidence; and that this verdict in ei

awarded nothing to either side.

While the order for the jury might have 1

actually more specific and the court might have ca

it "an advisory jury", and while the court might 1

made findings based on the verdict, all these mat

would have been superfluous, and if any error cai

charged in the proceedings, it was harmless e:

within the meaning of Rule 61, Federal Rules

Civil Procedure; and in this connection, we wis]

repeat and emphasize the fact that when counsel

appellant complained that he w^ould be prejud

by the calling of the jury, he should have asked

a continuance of the trial. The decision of the c<

to call a jury on April 11, 1955, found appellee

the same position as it found appellant, because

that time the appellees had also prepared for a i

before the court.

We also wish to repeat and emphasize the fact

appellant cannot now complain of the verdict, £
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made no motion at the conclusion of the trial for an

instructed verdict in its favor.

The judgment should be affirmed.

Dated, Juneau, Alaska,

February 8, 1956.

Respectfully submitted,

Faulkner, Banfield and Boochever,

By H. L. Faulkner,

Attorneys for Appellees.
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and that appellees were thus justified in rescinding it

;

and either (a) that the verdict on the issue of liability

ought to have been for appellees, rather than for ap-

pellant, or (b) that the real "intent" of the jury was

to decide this issue in appellees' favor.

2. The contentions that the ordering of a jury trial

by the district judge on the eve of the trial (R. 25)

was not error because

—

(a) It constituted a reconsideration of appellees'

motion under Rule 39, F.R.C.P., denied some six

months previously (R. 25) ;

(b) That appellant had waived its objection to any

possible error of the trial court in calling a jury by

failing to request a postponement of the trial; or

(c) That it could be considered that the jury was

merely advisory and that the trial court had simply

adopted the verdict as its own findings of fact.

3. The claim that appellant cannot now assert that

certain of the trial court's instructions were erroneous

because appellant failed to object to them at the trial

of this action.

4. The contention that appellant has no right to

assert that the jury's award of damages was inade-

quate, because appellant failed to request a directed

verdict.

5. The assertion that if there were any error on

the part of the District Court it was really only

''harmless error" (F.R.C.P., Rule 61), and thus

would not justify a reversal by this Court.



1. THE ISSUE OF LIABILITY.

Appellees devote a large portion of their brief in

trying to establish that appellant had continually fur-

nished a poor news ser\4ce, despite many complaints

by appellees, and that because of this the latter were

justified in arbitrarily renouncing the contract before

its date of expiration. But the issue of liability for

breach of the contract is not one that should be con-

sidered here. The jury had definite instructions as to

what facts w^ould justify a finding in favor of appel-

lees, for as part of its Instruction No. 4 the District

Court said

:

a* * * Q^ ^YiQ other hand if you find from a

preponderance of the evidence that the plaintiff

failed to furnish the defendants with the news

agreed upon, then you would be warranted in

finding that the defendants were justified in re-

scinding the contract and your verdict should be

for the defendants." (R. 31.)

If the jury, under these ample instructions, had

thought that appellant had breached the contract by

not furnishing the kind of news service agreed upon,

then it certainly would have said so. There were two

forms of verdict—one providing for a finding ''for

the plaintiff", and the other providing for a finding

*'for the defendants" (R. 35-36) ; and these forms

were in no way imcertain, confusing or ambiguous.

Had the jury agreed with appellees' contentions on

the issue of liability Verdict Number Two (R. 36)

would certainly have been returned.



What appellees are doing then is attacking the ver-

dict of the jury, for otherwise there would be no

point in devoting such a large part of their brief in

attempting to prove that appellant, and not they, had

breached the contract. But this cannot be done here,

because appellees made no motion under Rule 5S

FRCP to set aside the verdict as against the weight

of the evidence, and hence they cannot assert any

abuse of discretion in the trial court in refusing to

grant such a motion. See Moore's Federal Practice,

Vol. 6, Section 59.08(5), p. 3816; id., p. 3820. Fur-

thermore, even if appellees had protected their posi-

tion in this matter by filing a motion for a new trial,

or by having requested a directed verdict under Rule

50 FRCP, they did not obtain the allowance of a

cross-appeal and therefore cannot confer jurisdiction

on this Court to consider the question. See United

States V. American Railway Express Company, 265

U.S. 425, 435 ; Morley Company v. Maryland Casualty

Company, 300 U.S. 185, 191.

2. THE ORDERING OF A JURY TRIAL.

Appellant submits that in its opening brief (see

Brief for Appellant, pp. 12-21) it presented a com-

plete case for the proposition that the District Court

erred in ordering a jury trial, after a w^aiver thereof

by appellees, and that this error was prejudicial

The District Court's sudden and completely surpris-

ing change of position on the eve of the trial (R. 25)



cannot logically be construed as a '^ renewal" by ap-

pellees or a "reconsideration" by the Court of appel-

lees' motion under Rule 39—a motion which had

been denied six months previously (R. 25, 46-47).

The record shows beyond dispute that appellees'

counsel was not, on April 12, 1955, renewing his

motion for a jury trial (R. 50), and that the Court

was not acting upon any request or motion, but solely

on its own initiative (R. 25, 50).

Appellees maintain that a complete answer to ap-

pellant's claim of prejudice in this respect is that

appellant did not ask for a postponement of the

trial—until October, 1955. (Appellees' Brief, p. 14.)

But in addition to the noticeable absence of legal

authority supporting this purely gratuitous sugges-

tion, it could hardly be considered a solution for the

unenviable predicament in which appellant found it-

self on the day before the trial. Appellant's counsel

resides at Juneau, Alaska, and its witness, David

Belnap, at Seattle, Washington (R. 52), and both

had gone to the expense of traveling to Ketchikan

before any notice was given that the trial court did

not mean to adhere to its ruling of September 24,

1954 when the motion for a jury trial had been denied.

If a request for postponement had been made, and

granted, then there would simply have been a duplica-

tion of these not inconsiderable expenses—expenses

that would not have been recoverable and which

would have added further loss to the substantial

losses that appellant had already suffered through
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appellees' breach of contract. Appellant was simply

in a helpless situation that was wholly uninviting

no matter which way it turned.

Finally, it cannot be considered that the jury's

verdict was simply "advisory" and that the District

Court had therefore adopted such verdict as its own

findings. (See Appellees' Brief, pp. 16-18.) Rule 39,

F.R.C.P. makes it abundantly clear that an advisory

jury may be utilized in actions "not triable of right

by a jury" (Rule 39(c)), and not, as in this case,

where a demand for a jury trial may have been

made of right but the right had been waived. Despite

Professor Moore's "preference" in this matter

(Moore's Federal Practice, Vol. 5, pp. 720-722, Sec-

tion 39.10(1)), the decision of the Tenth Circuit in

Hargrove v. American Central Insurance Company,

125 F. 2d 225, 228-229, is decisive of this issue; for

there that Court said specifically that in circumstances

such as we have here a Court is not authorized to

call a jury, either on its own initiative or in an

advisory capacity. And this was the precise view-

point adopted by the District Court in this case, foi

after the trial was over the suggestion was made

that perhaps the verdict could be considered af^

advisory, and that the Court could then disregard

the verdict and enter its own independent findings

of fact. But the District Court said on this:

"* * * but the reason I think it would be futile

to argue that the jury may be treated as advisory

is because, if I am not mistaken, the law doesn't

provide for an advisory jury except in actions



of an equitable nature. There is no authority

whatever for empanelling an advisory jury except

in an equity action."

3. THE FAILURE TO OBJECT TO CERTAIN OF THE DISTRICT
COURT'S INSTRUCTIONS TO THE JURY.

It is true that appellant's counsel objected to only

one part of the trial court's instructions to the jury

(R. 204-205), and that through inadvertence failed

to object to other portions of the instructions, the giv-

ing of which appellant now assigns as error. (R. 268-

269; Appellant's Brief, pp. 38-41.) But appellant

submits that the alleged erroneous instructions were

on matters that were material, and that therefore

the failure of counsel to either request specific in-

structions or to take exception to those made cannot

be adequate to absolve the trial court from its failure

to properly charge the jury on the essential issues

of the case. Dowell v. Jowers, 166 F. 2d 214, 221,

cert, denied, 334 U.S. 832; cf. Hormel v. Helvering,

312 U.S. 552, 557; Moore's Federal Practice, Vol.

6, pp. 3779-3780, Section 59.08(2).

4. THE FAILURE TO REQUEST A DIRECTED VERDICT.

After appellees have devoted a large part of their

brief to the question of which party breached the

contract, they then say that appellant cannot raise

this issue because it failed to move for a directed

verdict. It is true that there was no request for a
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directed verdict, but that is of no consequence here

because appellant is not raising the issue of breacl:

of contract. Appellant's position on this appeal, as

shown by its statement of points (R. 268-269) and

from its opening brief, is that the jury correctly

decided this issue in appellant's favor, but that i1

then failed to properly assess the monetary amouni

of damages to which appellant was entitled—eithei

because the jury completely disregarded some oi

the District Court's instructions, or because of the

fact that other of such instructions were improper oi

inadequate. This question of inadequacy of damages

was first presented to the trial court by appellant's

motion under Rule 59 F.R.C.P., as it ought to have

been, and it is the trial court's refusal to correct

this miscarriage of justice that appellant now claims

is such an abuse of discretion as to justify appellate

review. See United Press Association v. Nationdi

Newspaper Association, 254 F. 284, 286 (CA-8 1918) ;

Reishurg v. Walters, 111 F. 2d 595, 598 (CA-6 1940).

Consequently, the absence of a motion for a directed

verdict is not relevant here.

5. HARMLESS ERROR?

The standard contained in Rule 61 F.R.C.P.

whereby it can be determined whether the actior

of a trial court should be reversed is whether such

action was "inconsistent with substantial justice"—

whether or not the ''substantial rights" of the parties

have been affected. Appellant submits that what i1



has asserted here as error is in no way '^harmless";

that its substantial rights have been affected and that

there has been a miscarriage of justice.

Whether the action of the jury in refusing to assess

damages after awarding a verdict in appellant's

favor was the result of arbitrary action in simply

refusing to follow the trial court's instructions, or

was caused by reason of inadequate or improper

charges by the District Court, the fact remains that

the issue of liability was decided against appellees,

the monetary amount of damages to which appellant

then became entitled was beyond dispute and was

simply a matter of mathematical computation, and

the trial court had ample opportunity to rectify the

situation either by setting aside the verdict and en-

tering judgment for appellant or by granting a new

trial. (R. 39-40.) But the court refused to do this

(R. 41), and it is this action that appellant contends

is such an abuse of discretion as to justify a reversal

by this Court. The District Court's handling of this

situation can hardly be termed "harmless", when

appellant is thereby deprived not only of the $21,-

489.57 in damages to which it is clearly entitled, but

also of the considerable costs to which it has been

put in this litigation.

CONCLUSION.

For the reasons stated in appellant's opening brief,

and in this brief, it is respectfully submitted that the

judgment of the District Court should be reversed,
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and that this case should be remanded with direction

to enter judgment in favor of appellant in the sur

of $21,489.57, together with appellant's costs an(

attorneys' fees.

Dated, Jimeau, Alaska,

February 28, 1956.

John H. Dimond,

Baker, Hostetler & Patterson,

Donald D. Wick,

Attorneys for Appellcmt.
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Petitioners on review filed Federal Income Tax Returns

for the taxable year 1943 with the collector of Internal

Revenue for the Sixth District of California at Los Angeles,

California, which is within the jurisdiction of this Court.

(R. 19) On November 28, 1949, the Commissioner of In-

ternal Revenue sent to petitioners, by registered mail, no-

tices of deficiencies, in which he determined that the peti-



tioner, Bessie Lasky, owed a deficiency in income tax for

the taxable year 1943 in the amount of $224,722.55; and

that the petitioner, Jesse L. Lasky, owed a deficiency in

income tax for the taxable year 1943 in the amount of

$224,515.14. (R. 10-14, 62)
^
Thereafter, on Januaiy 9,

1950, petitioners duly filed appeals from said determination

with the Tax Court of the United States. (R. 7-14) The
case was tried before the Tax Court on April 8, 1954. The
Tax Court promulgated its findings of fact and opinion

(R. 62-92) and entered its decision ordering and deciding

that the taxpayers owe the deficiencies in income tax for

the taxable year 1943 in the amount as determined by the

Commissioner of Internal Revenue. (R. 92-93)

Thereafter, on August 24, 1954, petitioners filed a motion

for leave to file a motion to vacate the decisions out of time

and a motion to vacate decisions entered April 8, 1954.

(R. 93-94) On December 13, 1954, the Tax Court entered

an order vacating and setting aside the decisions of April

8, 1954, and granted the petitioners a further hearing on

the merits. (R. 135) Thereafter, a re-hearing of the case

was held in Washington, D. C, on January 21 and January

26, 1955. (R. 300, 355) On June 30, 1955, the Tax Court

in the case of each petitioner entered a memorandum sur

order and decision, again ordering and deciding upon the

re-hearing and reconsideration of the case on the merits

that there are deficiencies in income tax for the taxable year

1943 as determined by the Commissioner of Internal Rev-
enue. (R. 138-145)

Jurisdiction of Court of Appeals

Petitions for review were filed on August 10, 1955, to

review the orders and decisions entered by the Tax Court

on June 30, 1955. (R. 149) Jurisdiction is conferred upon

this Court by Sections 1141 and 1142 of the Internal Rev-

enue Code of 1939 and Sections 7482 and 7483 of the In-

ternal Revenue Code of 1954.



QUESTION PRESENTED

On March 23, 1940, Jesse L. Lasky acquired from Sgt.

Al\dn C. York the exclusive motion picture, radio, television

and dramatic rights to the life story of York. Thereafter,

on May 15, 1940, Lasky conveyed all his rights, title and

interest under the contract of March 23, 1940 with York

to Warner Bros. In consideration for all his rights, title

and interest under the contract of March 23, 1940, Warner
Bros, agreed to pay Lasky $40,000 plus a certain percentage

of the gross film rentals or sales realized from the distribu-

tion of the photoplay. In addition, by a separate and dis-

tinct contract, Warner Bros, employed Lasky as a co-pro-

ducer for the purpose of producing the play based upon

the life of Sgt. York. After the picture "Sergeant York"

was released, a dispute and dissatisfaction existed between

Lasky and Warner Bros. Lasky was dissatisfied with the

way Warner Bros, was distributing the picture. He was

also dissatisfied with the receipts that were tendered him

from the distribution of the picture. After consulting his

attorney, certain checks tendered to Lasky by Warner Bros,

as his share of the film rentals were returned to Warner
Bros. At that time it was contemplated that an accounting

of the distribution by Warner Bros, would be demanded by

Lasky. However, Lasky wished to avoid a dispute with

Warner Bros, because he was then in their employ as a

producer, and he decided to sell his rights under the con-

tract of May 15, 1940, with Warner Bros. Accordingly, on

December 4, 1942, he sold his rights under the contract of

May 15, 1940, to United Artists Corporation for $805,000.

Petitioners reported the gain from the sale as gain from

the sale of a capital asset. The Commissioner of Internal

Revenue determined, and the Tax Court held, that the

gain resulting from the sale was taxable as ordinary income.

The question for decision is : Was the gain from the sale

of petitioner's contractual rights with Warner Bros, to

United Artists Corporation on December 4, 1942, taxable

as ordinary income or as capital gain from the sale of a

capital asset?



STATUTE INVOLVED

Internal Revenue Code (1939) as amended:

*'Sec. 117. Capital Gains and Losses.

"(a) Definitions.—As used in this chapter

—

*'(1) Capital assets.—The term 'capital assets' meai
property held by the taxpayer (whether or not co
nected with his trade or business), but does not inclu(

stock in trade of the taxpayer or other property of

kind wliich would properly be included in the inventoi

of the taxpayer if on hand at the close of the taxab
year, or property held by the taxpayer primarily f<

sale to customers in the ordinary course of his trac

or business, or property, used in the trade or busines
of a character which is subject to the allowance for d
preciation provided in section 23 (1), or an obligatic

of the United States or any of its possessions, or of
State or Territory, or any political subdivision thereo
or of the District of Columbia, issued on or after Mar(
1, 1941, on a discount basis and payable without inte

est at a fixed maturity date not exceeding one yei

from the date of issue, or real property used in tl

trade or business of the taxpayer.

"(2) Short-term capital gain.—The term 'short-ter

capital gain' means gain from the sale or exchange <

a capital asset held for not more than 6 months, if an

to the extent such gain is taken into account in con

puting net income

;

* * *

"(4) Long-term capital pain.—The term 'long-term ca}

ital gain' means gain from the sale or cxchauge of

capital asset held for more than 6 months, if and to tl

extent such gain is taken into account in computing n(

income;"



STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Petitioners are husband and uife. They resided in Los

Angeles, California during 1942 and 1943. Each filed sep-

arate income tax returns on the cash basis with the Collector

for the Sixth District of California. Their income in 1942 ^

and 1943 was community income. For the purposes of this

statement, Jesse L. Lasky \vi\\ be referred to hereinafter

as the petitoner.

The petitioner's occupation has been that of motion pic-

ture producer since 1913, and he has produced many pic-

tures. Prior to March 1940, petitioner as an individual had

not purchased any literaiy property, but as Vice President

in charge of Production of Paramount, many literary prop-

erties passed through his hands. In the early part of 1940,

petitioner negotated with Alvin York, a hero of World War
I, for the purchase of the exclusive motion picture, radio,

television and dramatic rights to the life story of York. On
March 23, 1940, petitioner and York entered into an agree-

ment which provided i7iter alia as follows: (Ex. 1-A, B.

25-26)

"II. York further gives, grants, bargains, sells, as-

signs and sets over unto Lasky, his heirs, executors ad-

minstrators, and assigns, the sole and exclusive right

to use the name and likeness of York in connection with

one or more story or stories, films or photoplays for

motion picture, television and/or radio presentation

and/or exhibitions based upon or using or containing

one or more incidents in, of or from the life of York,
including the right to dramatize, exhibit and/or present

any incident occurring or which did occur in the life of

York by every visual and/or audible means whether
now known or hereafter invented or discovered. Such
transmission or presentation may be through the use

or by means of living actors in the actual and immediate
presence of an audience or by any other and different

1 The year 1942 is involved because of the provisions of The Current Tax

Payment Act of 1943.



means, medium or device of whatsoever nature (

description.

The name 'Alvin C. York' or any part, thereof, wheth(
alone or in connection or in conjunction with any oth(

word or phrase may, but need not be used in the tit

or sub-title of any motion picture, play, story, nov
or serial or radio or television presentation, fictioni

or otherwise, containing any one or more incidents i:

of or from the life of York, and the advertising and/c
publicity relating to any motion picture, play, stor;

novel, serial or radio or television presentation writtei

made or produced pursuant to this agreement, whethc
fictional or otherwise, may include the statement th^

it is based upon, taken from or is the story of the lil

of Alvin C. York, or some similar statement."

In consideration for the rights received, petitioner pai

York $25,000 upon the execution of the agreement of Marc

23, 1940 and agreed to pay an additional $25,000 at tt

expiration of either 18 months from the date of the execi

tion of the agreement, or upon the date following the releas

of any motion picture made pursuant to the agreemen

whichever was earlier. Failure to pay the second $25,OC

would result in termination of the agreement. In additioi

Lasky agreed to pay York a sum equal to 4 percent of tb

gross receipts from the distribution of each motion pictur

in excess of $3,000,000; 5 percent in excess of $4,000,00C

6 percent in excess of $6,000,000; and 8 percent in exces

of $9,000,000. It was provided that if the contract shoul

be assigned to a production or distribution corporation, th

assignee would assume all of Lasky's obligations. (R. 64

Petitioner flew to Holly^vood, California, where he ai

rived on or about March 25, 1940. He shopped around t

sell the story for the production of a motion picture base

upon the life story of Sgt. York. He discussed the stor

with Sam Goldwyn and with Paramount, l)ut they were no

interested in producing the picture. At this time he wa
very much concerned about selling the picture because h



had paid $25,000 for the rights under the contract of March
23, 1940, with York, and he would owe $25,000 more within

18 months, or lose the first $25,000 which he had paid to

York. Accordingly, he v.as anxious to sell the story to a

producing company. (R. 64-65, 342-343). He then called

on Harry and Jack Warner of Warner Bros., Inc., and they

agreed to purchase Lasky's rights under the contract of

March 23, 1940, with York. In addition they agreed to em-
ploy Lasky as the supervising producer of a picture based

upon the life of Sgt. York. (R. 65)

Petitioner first went to Warner Bros, for the purpose of

selling them all of his rights, title, and interest to and
under the agreement of March 23, 1940, which he had
acquired from Sgt. York. He reached an oral understand-

ing with Warner Bros, regarding the purchase of his rights

under the agreement of March 23, 1940, with York. After

Warner Bros, had agreed to purchase his rights under the

agreement of March 23, 1940, with York, he reached an oral

agreement with Warner Bros, whereby he was employed as

a supervising producer. Thereafter, written instruments

were prepared and executed embodying the terms of the

oral agreements. One agreement is dated May 8, 1940, by

which Warner Bros, employed Lasky as the supervising

producer of a photoplay tentatively entitled "The Amazing-

Story of Sergeant York." Another agreement is dated May
15, 1940, by which Lasky sold to Warner Bros, all of his

rights to the York story and all other rights he had acquired

under the York contract of March 23, 1940. A third agree-

ment was simultaneously executed entitled "Supplemental

Agreement'' which also was dated May 15, 1940, by which

Warner Bros, agreed to pay Lasky a part of the gross re-

ceipts in varying percentages from the distribution of the

photoplay "The Amazing Story of Sergeant York." (R.

65, 161-164, 176-177, 200-201, 218, 341-343)

In general the agreement of May 8, 1940 provided that

Lasky would render services as a supervising producer of
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the York photoplay and such other photoplays as might b(

selected by mutual consent for a period of 52 weeks fron

April 1, 1940, and that La sky would receive for all of hii

services under the contract at least $60,000, payable at th(

rate of $1,500 per week (R. 66-67). Under the agreements

of May 15, 1940, Warner Bros, in general agreed to pa}

Lasky $40,000 for all of his rights, title, and interest in th(

York agreement of March 23, 1940, plus a part of the grosj

receipts from domestic and foreign distribution during no

more than five years after the date of release of the Yorl

photoplays. Warner Bros, assumed all of Lasky's obliga

tions under the York contract. (R. 67)

Under the ''Supplemental Agreement"' of May 15, 1940

which was a participation agreement, Warner Bros, agreec

to pay Lasky 20 percent of the gross film rentals realizec

from the motion picture in excess of $1,600,000 from do

mestic proceeds and a similar percentage of the foregi

proceeds in excess of $150,000 and when domestic and for

eign proceeds reached $2,500,000 Warner Bros, would paj

Lasky a sum equal to 25 percent of the excess above sucl

figure instead of 20 percent (R. 68-69).

A photoplay entitled "Sergeant York" was produced. I

was released in the United States and Canada in July 194]

(R. 69). After the picture "Sergeant York" was released

petitioner was informed that Warner Bros, was not making

a proper distribution of the picture. It was believed thai

Warner Bros, was renting the picture to theatres it ownec

and controlled at lower rentals than they rented it to inde-

pendent theatres. In addition, it was felt "Sergeant York,'

a successful picture, was being used to sell less desirabh

pictures which were wholly owned by Warner Bros. Thi.'

affected the percentage of the gross receipts due petitionei-

(R. 169-170, 241-242, 274-275, 277-279, 314-3L5, 345-347).

In November 1941, petitioner received a letter from Al

bert AVarner dated November 24, 1941, pointing out thai

the cost of producing the picture "Sergeant York" wa^



more than had been anticipated. In the letter Warner
Bros, requested petitioner to agree that he would not par-

ticipate in a percentage of the gross rentals until the gross

rentals exceeded $2,200,000 instead of $1,600,000 as pro-

vided in the supplemental contract. (R. 169-170, 255, 275,

313-314 346-348, Ex. 9 R. 444-445)

Petitioner consulted his attorney about the letter received

from Warner Bros, dated November 24, 1941. His attor-

ney advised that he was not required to change the terms

of the supplemental contract with Warner Bros, and rec-

ommended that he not accede to the request contained in

the letter of November 24, 1941. Accordingly, petitioner

wrote a letter to Albert Warner on December 4, 1941, re-

fusing to agree to the request that he not participate in the

percentage of the gross rentals until the gross rentals ex-

ceeded $2,200,000 instead of $1,600,000 as provided in the

supplemental contract. The letter contained in detail the

reasons for petitioner's refusal. (R. 169-170, 313-314, 346-

348, Ex. 10, R. 446-454)

Up until the time the petitioner refused to accede to the

request contained in the letter from Warner Bros, dated

November 24, 1941, very pleasant relationshii)s existed be-

tween petitioner and his employer, Warner Bros. After the

refusal to comply with the request contained in the letter

of November 24, 1941, the relationship between petitioner

and his employer, Warner Bros., became strained. (R.

255, 346)

Warner Bros, followed the practice of mailing statements

to Lasky which were designated "Statement to Jesse L.

Lasky covering distribution of production 'Sergeant York'

to (date)," together with a check for the amount of Lasky's

participating share as shown by the statement (R. 70).

When petitioner received his first statement which was

mailed with a letter dated December 15, 1941, the statement

showed gross income from distribution of the picture "Ser-
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geaiit York" within the United States of $1,706,084.0'^

With this statement, petitioner received a check for $21,

216.80. Petitioner was disturbed upon the receipt of thi

statement because the Neiv York Times quoted gross rental

to be $4,000,000 and trade magazines. Variety and Reporter

were also quoting substantially higher figures than wer

shown on the statement received from Warner Bros. Ac
cordingly, petitioner consulted his attorney and an account

ant about the situation. (K. 70, 76, 169-170, 279-280, 311

314, 326-327, 345-346; Ex. U, R. 417-418)

Upon the receij^t of the first statement from Warne
Bros., petitioner's attorney and accountant both advisei

him to have an audit made of the distribution of the produc

tion "Sergeant York" but to wait until there was as broai

a distribution as possible before having the audit made
Petitioner at that time agreed to have an audit. R. 271-27^

278-279, 285, 314-317, 329, 351-352)

After the receipt of the first statement from Warne
Bros., petitioner's attorney advised him not to accept th

checks which accompanied the statements covering the dis

tribution of "Sergeant York" to February 28, 1942. Th
same advice was given with respect to all subsequent state

ments. Petitioner's attorney was of the opinion tha

the legend on the vouchers would preclude petitione

from demanding an adjustment in the account if it wa
found he was entitled to additional moneys from Warne
Bros. Petitioner's attorney returned three checks receive*

from Warner Bros, in 1942 totaling $570,698.62. (R. 77-7^

241-242, 278, 315-316, 351-352)

Petitioner was requested by Warner Bros, to pay part o

the cost of an advertising compaign to promote the pictun

"Sergeant York". Under the contracts between petitione

and Warner Bros., petitioner was not required to shar(

in the advertising cost. Petitioner consulted his attorney

and was advised that he was not required and should no

agree to share in the advertising cost. Despite this advice
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petitioner, in an effort to placate Warner Bros, and to re-

gain the friendly relationship between himself and his em-

ployer, did agree to and did pay a part of the advertising

cost in the amount of $18,998.00. (R. 75, 170, 255, 316, 348;

Ex. 6, E. 55-56; Ex. P, R. 418-420)

Warner Bros, was threatened with a plagiarism suit by
the heirs of an author who had written a book based on the

life of Sergeant York. As a result of the claim made by
the Skeyhill heirs, Warner Bros, withheld $10,000 from the

amount properly due petitioner in their statement cover-

ing distribution of the production "Sergeant York" to Feb-

ruary 28, 1942. Petitioner had not agreed to the withhold-

ing of any amount upon the claim of the Skeyhill heirs and
was not required under his contracts with W^arner Bros, to

pay any part of the alleged claim. Accordingly, petitioner

consulted his attorney and accountant about Warner Bros.

withholding the $10,000 on account of the alleged claim of

the Skeyhill heirs. (R. 76, 270-271, 279-280, 349)

On about May 6, 1942, Lasky instructed Warner Bros, to

send future statements of account and participation checks,

and other matters directly to his attorney. (R. 76) The

statement of Warner Bros, covering distribution of the pro-

duction "Sergeant York" to February 28, 1942, showed for-

eign income from distribution. Petitioner discussed the

income from foreign distribution with his attorney and

accountant who raised a question about the propriety of

Warner Bros, classifying earnings in England as restricted

funds. Question w^as also raised about a deduction for

quota losses in England. Question was also raised as to

the possibility that Warner Bros, might be using the blocked

funds in England for their own expenditures. Warner
Bros, proposed to withhold $200,000 of foreign receipts due

petitioner. Mr. Wright, petitioner's attorney, discussed

the proposal with officials of Warner Bros, and pointed out

that Warner Bros, was not entitled to \^dthhold the foreign

funds from petitioner. (R. 76-77, 80, 169, 241-242, 255-256,

274, 280-281, 316-319)
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Although petitioner's attorney and accountant advis(

him to have an audit made of the distribution of the pr

duction "Sergeant York", petitioner was reluctant to do i

because he felt that an audit would show discrepancies ai

that he was entitled to additional moneys. If the aud

showed discrepancies, his position as an employee ^

Warner Bros, would become untenable. Petitioner hi

been working for different studios and wanted to contini

in the employ of Warner Bros, for the remainder of h

life. He did not want a controversy at this time wi

Warner Bros., and, therefore, he acquiesced in Warn^

Bros, retaining the $10,000 to pay the possible plagiaris

claim. (R. 256, 274, 349-350)

Warner Bros, was aware that petitioner was dissati

tied with the distribution and his receipts from the distrib

tion of the picture "Sergeant York". R. 281, 303-304, 30

359-362)

The reason petitioner sold his rights under the contra

of May 15, 1940, and the supplemental contract of May 1

1940, between petitioner and Warner Bros., to United A
tists Corporation, on December 4, 1942, was to avoid ai

additional unpleasantness or controversy and in order

be able to continue in the employ of Warner Bros, as

producer for the balance of his natural life. Petition(

felt that if he disposed of his rights under the contrac

of May 15, 1940, he would be able to continue in the enipk

of Warner Bros, without any further trouble or disput

Therefore, instead of having an audit investigation, pet

tioner decided to sell his rights under the contracts. (]

78, 169-170, 254-256, 258, 274-275, 349-350)

Petitioner did not personally handle any of the negoti;

tions leading to the sale of his rights under the contrac

of May 15, 1940, to United Artists on December 4, 194

Loyd Wright, petitioner's attorney, handled the negoti;

tions. Mr. Wright communicated with Mr. Adolph Zukc
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and United Artists Corporation in an effort to sell peti-

tioner's rights under the contracts of May 15, 1940. Mr.

Zukor, in conjunction with some other persons, offered to

purchase Mr. Lasky's rights under the contracts of May
15, 1940, for $800,000. Later, Mr. Wright was able to sell

the rights to United Artists Corporation for $805,000. Pe-

titioner was advised that this was a fair offer and agreed

to sell. (R. 80, 254-256, 281-282, 286-287, 322-323 330, 350-

351, 353)

Under the contract of December 4, 1942, petitioner sold

to United Artists all his interest in the original and supple-

mental agreements with Warner Bros, dated May 15, 1940,

and all his interest in the motion picture "Sergeant York",

including the proceeds thereof, rights of accounting thereof,

money due or to become due thereof, from Warner Bros.

Pictures, Inc. (R. 81, Ex. 7-B, R. 56)

Prior to selling the rights under the contracts of May
15, 1940, to United Artists Corporation, petitioner had no

knowledge or understanding that United Artists Corpora-

tion intended to resell the rights to Warner Bros. (R. 324,

351,360-361)

The sale of petitioner's rights under the contracts of May
15, 1940, to United Artists was negotiated between Mr.

Wright, attorney for petitioner, and Mr. Edward C. Raft-

ery, President and chief counsel of United Artists. During

the negotiations, Mr. Raftery consulted with Mr. Grad-

well Sears, the General Sales Manager of United Artists,

who had previously been employed by Warner Bros, as

General Sales Manager at the time the picture ''Sergeant

York" was released. Mr. Raftery was only interested in

buying Lasky's rights if United Artists Corporation could

make some money by acquiring the rights. Sears advised

Raftery that the picture had a great potential and to buy
petitioner's rights. He made the recommendation to buy
because he thought United Artists Corporation could make
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money out of the transaction. (R. 141-142, 284, 286-28

302-304, 357-360, 373-374)

Sears, the General Sales Manager, wanted United Artis

Corporation to hold the rights it acquired from petition<

and not resell them. Sears advised Raftery that the pi

ture was an enormous success and if it held the righ

United Artists Corporation would receive over a millic

dollars itself. However, Mr. Raftery wanted to resell tl

Lasky interest for two reasons: (1) because United Artis

Corporation did not have the right to distribute the pi

ture, and (2) in order to make a quick profit. Therefor

United Artists Corporation sold the rights to Warn(

Bros, on December 22, 1942. (R. 303-304, 324, 357-36

364-365, 371, 373-374)

Warner Bros, purchased the rights United Artists Co

poration had acquired from petitioner under contract dat(

December 22, 1942, for $820,000. It insisted that the selle

United Artists Corporation, on behalf of Jesse L. Lask

fully release Warner Bros, from any claims that La si

might have in and to the receipts from the distributic

and exhibition of the picture "Sergeant York". (R. 36

362, Ex. AA, R. 439)

Petitioners reported in their return for 1942, one-ha

of the payment of $805,000 as long term capital gain fro

the sale of a capital asset. The Commissioner of Intern

Revenue rejected this treatment of the receipt of $805,00

and taxed the entire amount as ordinary income. The U
Court sustained the Commissioner. (R. 84-85)

SPECIFICATION OF ERRORS

The Tax Court of the United States erred:

1. In holding and deciding that the proceeds from tl

sale by petitioner Jesse L. Lasky of his rights under coi

tracts of May 15, 1940, with Warner Bros., to United Artis

Corporation, for $805,000, were taxable as ordinary incon

instead of at capital gains rates.



15

2. In failing to hold that the proceeds from the sale by-

petitioner Jesse L. Lasky of his rights under contracts of

May 15, 1940, with Warner Bros., to United Artists Cor-

poration were taxable as the sale of a capital asset.

3. In failing to hold that the agreement of May 15, 1940,

and the supplemental agreement of May 15, 1940, by which

petitioner Jesse L. Lasky sold to Warner Bros, all his

rights to the "Sergeant York" story and Warner Bros.

agreed to pay petitioner a part of the gross receipts in

varying percentages from the distribution of the photoplay,

are entirely separate and distinct from the employment
contract between petitioner Jesse L. Lasky and Warner
Bros, dated May 8, 1940.

4. In holding that petitioner Jesse L. Lasky received

royalties under his contracts of May 15, 1940, with Warner
Bros.

5. In holding that petitioner's right to a share in the

proceeds of the motion picture "Sergeant York" was due

to his contribution as a producer.

6. In holding that the evidence failed to show that a bona

fide dispute existed in 1942 between petitioner Jesse L.

Lasky and Warner Bros.

7. In holding that the sale by petitioner Jesse L. Lasky,

on December 4, 1942, to United Artists Corporation was

not a bona fide sale to a third party with no understanding

that United Artists Corporation would resell to Warner
Bros.

8. In holding that United Artists Corporation was a mere
intermediary in the transaction whereby petitioner Jesse

L. Lasky sold his rights under the contracts of May 15,

1940, with Warner Bros, to United Artists Corporation.

9. In holding that there was no business purpose behind

petitioner's sale to United Artists Corporation on Decem-

ber 4, 1942.
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10. In determining that petitioner Jesse L. Lasky pr

ferred to have his share of the preceeds from the pictu;

"Sergeant York" accrue and accmnulate in the hands i

Warner Bros.

11. In holding on rehearing that: "It is concluded th;

Lasky sold his accrued earnings in the picture Sergea:

York, which amounted to $822,857.56, to United Artists .

a 'discount' of over $17,01)0, and that United Artists cc

lected from Warner Brothers, Lasky's share of the accru(

earnings to the extent of $820,000, thereby bringing abo

Warner Brothers' acquisition of the 25 per cent intere

of Lasky for no more than the accrued earnings of the i

per cent interest."

12. In holding and deciding after the rehearing and r

consideration that the proceeds from the sale by petition

Jesse L. Lasky of his rights under contracts of May 1

1940, with AYarner Bros, to United Artists Corporatio

for $805,000, were taxable as ordinary income instead

at capital gains rates.

13. In holding and deciding that petitioner Bessie Lasl

owed a deficiency in income tax for the year 1943 in t]

amount of $224,722.55.

14. In holding and deciding that petitioner Jesse '.

Lasky owed a deficiency in income tax for the year 19^

in the amount of $224,515.14.

15. In that its opinion and decisions are not support*

by the evidence.

16. In that its opinion and decisions are contrary to la^
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ARGUMENT

The gcrin from the sale of petitioner's contractual rights with

Warner Bros, to United Artists Corporation on December 4,

1942, is taxable as capital gain from the sale of a capital

asset

The question here presented for decision is whether the

gain realized by petitioner upon the sale of certin con-

tractual rights to United Artists Corporation on December

4, 1942, is taxable as ordinary income or as capital gain.

The Tax Court by disregarding uncontradicted and unim-

peached testimony of reputable witnesses and by drawing

unwarranted inferences and conclusions in the teeth of

positive evidence to the contrary decided that the trans-

action was a sham and that the gain was taxable as ordi-

nary income. In addition the Tax Court misinterpreted

and misapplied the law to the facts. To resolve the ques-

tion here involved, the Tax Court considered first the trans-

action whereby petitioner acquired certain rights by con-

tract from Sgt. York which were sold to Warner Bros, and,

secondly, the transaction of December 4, 1942, whereby the

petitioner sold to United Artists Corporation the contract-

ual rights he had with Warner Bros. The important thing

to determine is what was purchased and what was sold in

each transaction.

The contract of March 23, 1940, between petitioner and

Sgt. York conveyed to Lasky the exclusive motion picture,

radio, television, and dramatic rights to the life story of

York. This contract was a valuable property right. Peti-

tioner by contract dated May 15, 1940, conveyed all of his

rights, title, and interest under the contract of March 23,

1940, wdth York, to Warner Bros. It is important to deter-

mine exactly what Lasky sold to Warner Bros. As can

clearly be seen from the contract, petitioner sold all of his

rights, title and interest under the contract with York, to

Warner Bros. (R. 38-40) It was not merely a licensing

or rental agreement. Petitioner sold all of his "bundle of
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rights" under the contract. The contract of May 15, 194

between petitioner and Warner Bros. Pictures, Inc., speci:

ally provided: (R. 39)

"In consideration of the covenants of the Purchase

herein contained and of the payment of the sums ;

the times and in the manner hereinafter provided, tl

Seller does hereby grant and assign to the Purchas(

all the right, title and interest of the Seller in, to (

under the said agreement of March 23, 1940, (Exhib

'A'), together with any and all rights, licenses and/(

privileges acquired by him therein and thereunder."

In consideration for all of petitioner's rights, title and i]

terest under the contract of March 23, 1940, Warner Bro

agreed to pay petitioner $40,000 plus a certain percental

of the gross film rentals or sales realized from the distribi

tion of the photoplay.^

The foregoing facts clearly distinguish the transactic

in the instant case from those in Sahatini v. Commissione

(CA-2, 1938) 98 F. 2d 753, 21 A.F.T.R. 800; Goldsmith

Commissioner, (CA-2, 1944) 143 F. 2d 466, 32 A.F.T.R. 100

cert, denied 323 U.S. 774; Rohmer v. Commissioner, (CA-

1946) 153 F 2d 61, 34 A.F.T.R. 826, cert, denied 328 U.l

862; Commissioner v. Wodehouse, (1949) 337 U.S. 369, ^

L.Ed. 1419. In each of these cases, authors who held cop;

rights conveyed or licensed to others certain rights let

than all of the author's ''bundle of rights" under his cop;

right. In other words, they did not sell their entire interei

but merely licensed their work for a particular object c

period. There was no transfer of title necessary to a con

1 The mere fact tliat part of tlie payment on the sale by petitioner to Warn
Bros, was a percentage of the gross receipts does not prevent capital gai

treatment. The method of payment, whether it be a flat sum, fixed insta'

ments or payment of a percentage of the gross receipts, sales or profits, do

not change the fact that a sale occurred. Commissioner v. Celanese Cor

(USCADC, 1944) 140 F. 2d 339, 32 A.F.T.R. 42; Commissioner v. Hopkins(

(CA-2, 1942) 126 F. 2d 406, 28 A.F.T.R. 1349; ef. Eaymoml M. He^sei

^47,301 P-H T.C. Memo.
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pleted sale. Here, Lasky conveyed all of his rights under

the contract of March 23, 1940, with Sgt. York to Warner
Bros. There was a completed sale. Petitioner reported

the income under the contracts with Warner Bros, during

the year 1941 as ordinary income because at the time of

the sale to Warner Bros., he had not held the property

rights in the contract with Sgt. York for the requisite

holding period so as to be entitled to report the proceeds

of the sale as long-term capital gain. Respondent, in his

brief in the Tax Court, admitted that the sale by petitioner

of his rights under the contract of March 23, 1940, to

Warner Bros, was the sale of a capital asset, but argued

it was not a long-term capital gain because petitioner held

the rights less than one month. Had petitioner held his

rights the necessary holding period, the gain would have

been a long-term capital gain under the cases of Herwig
et al V. Vnited States, (1952) 122 Ct. CI. 493, 105 F. Supp.

384, Fred MacMurray, (1953) 21 T. C. 15, and Anatole Lit-

vaJc, (1954) 23 T. C. 441. Accordingly, it is the petitioner's

position that the moneys received by Lasky during the year

1941 under the contracts of May 15, 1940, with Warner
Bros. Avere proceeds from the sale of Lasky 's property

rights under the contract of March 23, 1940, with York,

and not royalties, as determined by the Tax Court.

After the picture "Sergeant York" was released in July

1941, a dispute and dissatisfaction existed between peti-

tioner and Warner Bros. Petitioner was dissatisfied with

the way Warner Bros, was distributing the picture. He
was also dissatisfied with the receipts that were tendered

him from the distribution of the picture. He consulted

his attorney and accountant regarding what action he

should take. They advised him to have an audit made of

the distribution of the picture by Warner Bros. His at-

torney also advised him not to accept the proceeds from

the distribution of the picture "Sergeant York" tendered

him by Warner Bros, as it might preclude him from de-

manding an adjustment in the account if it were found he

was entitled to one upon an accounting. By the very re-
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turn of the checks tendered, Warner Bros, was placed oi

notice of petitioner's dissatisfaction. Petitioner's attorney

had a conference with executives of Warner Bros, abou

criticisms which he had heard about Warner Bros.' han

dling of the York picture. (K.281) Warner Bros, wai

aware that petitioner was dissatisfied ^\^th the distributioi

and his receipts from the distribution of the picture "Ser

geant York". Officials of Warner Bros, expressed to thirc

parties that they were cognizant of the fact that petitionei

was dissatisfied.^ (R.361-362) Likewise, Warner Bros

was dissatisfied with the arrangements they had made un

der the contracts with Lasky. By letter of November 24

1941, Warner Bros, requested petitioner to increase th(

base before he would begin to participate in the percentagi

of gross rentals from $1,600,000 to $2,200,000. They re

quested him to participate in an advertising campaign al

though he was not required to do so under his contract

They withheld moneys due petitioner because of a claim o^

plagiarism although they were not justified in doing s(

under the contracts. They proposed to withhold $200,00(

of foreign receipts due petitioner although they were nol

entitled to do so under the contracts.

During all this period of time, petitioner was in the

employ of Warner Bros, as a producer. Prior to 1940

petitioner had been employed from time to time as a pro-

ducer by a number of different companies. He was in-

terested in avoiding any additional unpleasantness or con-

troversy with Warner Bros, in order that he might con-

tinue in their employ as a producer for the balance of his

natural life. For this reason, petitioner was reluctant tc

have an audit made because he felt that an audit would

show discrepancies and that he was entitled to additional

2 In the contract between United Artists Corporation anil Warner Bros,

Pictures, Inc., of December 22, 1942 (R. 439-444) Warner Bros, required

United Artists to release it from all claims that Lasky mifjht have against

Warner Bros, relating to the motion picture "Sergeant York." This showed

that Warner Bros, was familiar witli Lasky 's claims and his dissatisfaction,
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moneys. Petitioner realized that by having an audit made,

his position as an employee of Warner Bros, would be-

come untenable. Petitioner felt that if he could dispose

of his rights under the contracts of May 15, 1940, he would

be able to continue in the employ of Warner Bros, with-

out any further trouble or dispute. In other words, if he

no longer held the rights under the contracts he would

not be concerned with the distribution or the receipts from

the distribution of the picture. Likewise, Warner Bros,

would not be able to make any further demands on him

for concessions under the contracts. Accordingly, the busi-

ness purpose to Lasky behind the sale of his rights in the

contract with Warner Bros. Pictures, Inc., of May 15, 1940,

to United Artists Corporation on December 4, 1942, was
to put an end to the dispute and dissatisfaction which ex-

isted between him and his employer in order that he might

continue thereafter in the employ of Warner Bros, as a

producer. This evidence shows that the Tax Court was

clearly wrong in concluding that there was no showing

of any business purpose to Lasky in his contract with

United Artists on Deceml)er 4, 1942. (R-90).

The Tax Court was likewise in error in concluding that

United Artists was a mere intermediary in the proceedings.

The evidence shows that the sale by petitioner on Decem-

ber 4, 1942, to United Artists was a bona fide sale to a

third party without any knowledge or understanding on

petitioner's part whatsoever that United Artists Corpora-

tion would resell the rights they acquired to Warner Bros.

The evidence shows that petitioner's attorney offered to

sell petitioner's rights under the contracts with Warner
Bros, to Adolph Zukor and to United Artists Corporation.

He sold the rights to LTnited Artists Corporation because

they agreed to pay Mm the most money for the rights. The

testimony of the President of United Artists Corporation

and the General Sales Manager shows that their only pur-

pose in acquiring the rights of petitioner under the con-
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tracts of May 15, 1940, with Warner Bros., was a busines

purpose. They w^ere only interested in buying the right

if United Artists Corporation could make a profit out o

the transaction. The General Sales Manager of Unite

Artists Corporation wanted to acquire the rights and hoi

them so that United Artists would receive the proceed

from the distribution of the photoplay over a period o

time. On the other hand, the President of United Artist

was interested in making a quick profit out of the trans

action by reselling the rights. His reason for doing s

was that he wanted to make a quick profit in the year 194

and also because United Artists did not have the right t

distribute the picture.

The Tax Court, in its order and decision on rehearing

stated

:

«* * * rpj-^g Court concludes that the transaction o

United Artists with Lasky, and the transaction o

United Artists with Warner Bros, shortly thereaftei

must be considered together and that although Lask
may not have been aware of all the discussions an
considerations of his chief agent, his attorney, nevei

theless, his agent's actions must be imputed to Lask^
* * *" (R. 140-141)

This conclusion of the Tax Court completely disregard

the uncontradicted evidence before it and is made in th

teeth of the only evidence in the record. Mr. Loyd Wriglr

the attorney for Lasky, who negotiated the sale, testifie

that he did not know about the sale from United Artist

to Warner Bros, on December 22, 1942, until after it wa
an accomplished fact. This testimony appears in the rec

ord on page 288, as follows

:

"Q. (By Mr. McLane) : I show you a contract o

sale, marked Exhibit AA, Mr. Wright, and ask whethe
or not your firm represented United Artists in th

transfer of the rights under that contract to Warne
Brothers on December 22, 1942?
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"A. No. We had nothing whatever to do with it.

"Q. You mean United Artists had other legal advice
other than yourself f

''A. That is handled in the New York office. I never
had seen it. I had no knowledge of it until after it

was accomplished."

Likewise, Mr. Miller and Mr. Lasky also testified that

they had no knowledge that United Artists contemplated

or intended to resell Mr. Lasky's rights to Warner Bros.

(R. 324, 351). In addition, Mr. Eaftery, President and

Chief Counsel foi- United Artists Corporation, testified

that he never saw Mr. Lasky during the negotiations lead-

ing to the contract of December 4, 1942, and that he had
no understanding of any kind with Mr. Wright that he

would transfer or resell the rights United Artists acquired

from Mr. Lasky to Warner Bios. (R. 360-361)

Viewed in the light of this evidence, it is clear that the

transaction of December 4, 1942, whereby petitioner sold

his rights under the contract to United Artists Corpora-

tion, was a bona fide transaction surrounded by good busi-

ness reasons on behalf of all parties. It may be that the

petitioner from a financial standpoint made a poor "deal".

How^ever, it was a transaction that was entered into hon-

estly and as the result of advice from his advisors. Under
these circumstances the Court will not be concerned with

the quality of the consideration petitioner gave or received

but only with the taxability of that which he received. The
payment of the $805,000 was made by United Artists Cor-

poration to acquire all of his rights and property of every

kind w^hatsoever under his contracts of May 15, 1940, wath

Warner Bros. The contractual rights sold to United Ar-

tists Corporation were entirely different from those sold

to Warner Bros, on May 15, 1940. Warner Bros, was sold

petitioner's rights under contract with York of March 23,

1940. The property rights under the contracts of May 15,

1940, had been held by petitioner for more than six months
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and since he transferred all of his right, title and intere

under the contracts to United Artists Corporation, it wf

a completed sale and the proceeds are entitled to be treate

as capital gain.

Petitioner is unable to find any appellate court cases th;

are directly in point with the issue here presented. Ho^

ever, in the recent case of Pat O'Brien et al., 25 T, C. N
48 (decided November 30, 1955) the Tax Court passed upc

the identical issue here involved and there held that tl

sale of a percentage of the net profits of a picture was tl

sale of a capital asset. In the O'Brien case, petitioner Ph
L. Ryan on August 29, 1945, sold to RKO Pictures, Inc

his option on the story from which the motion pictui

"Fighting Father Dunn" was made. He received a 10 pe:

cent interest in the net profits of the picture and a contra(

to produce the picture at a salary of $30,000. In Jul

1947, he sold one-half of his 10 percent interest in the n(

profits to a director of the film and reported the proi

thereon as long-term capital gain. The Tax Court thei

said:

"The fifth and final issue is whether the respom
ent erred in determining that the profit realized b

Phil L. Ryan from the sale of one-half of his 10 p€

cent interest in "Fighting Father Dunn"' constitute

ordinary income rather than capital gain. We thin

the respondent's determination was erroneous,

"The attorney for RKO, who testified at the heai

ing, made it very clear that RKO purchased the stor

by giving Ryan a 10 per cent interest in the net profij

of the picture and by employing him as the produce
of the picture at a salary of $30,000. RKO paid $50
000 to the author of the story and gave him a 5 pe

cent interest in the net profits of the film.

"The respondent argued on brief that the story, o

the option thereon, could not be a capital asset i

Ryan's hands since his previous activity in purcha?

ing and selling stories indicated that he was in th

business of doing so. That argument misses the poiii

altogether. What Ryan sold in 1947 was not the stor
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but an entirely different asset, namely, one-half of

his 10 per cent interest in the net profits of the motion
picture. The record as a whole indicates that Ryan
was not in the business of buying and selling interests

in motion pictures. Hence, his 10 per cent interest

in "Fighting Father Duim" was a capital asset which
he had held for more than six months prior to the

time when he sold one-half of it. The profit on such
sale was a capital gain."

In Pacific Finance Corporation of California ^53,129 P-H
Memo T.C., the petitioner purchased for $450,000 the first

$550,000 of gross receipts of the photoplay "Rebecca" from

the producer David 0. Selznick and associates. After re-

ceiving approximately $375,000 the petitioner sold its in-

terest in the photoplay to Vanguard Films, Inc., for about

$175,000 thus realizing a gain of $100,000. Vanguard Films,

Inc., was a company owned by Selznick. The Tax Court

held that the gain of $100,000 on the sale was capital gain.

In the instant case, what Lasky sold to United Artists

on December 4, 1942, was his interest in the motion pic-

ture "Sergeant York." Petitioner had held these property

rights from May 15, 1940. Accordingly, petitioner's inter-

est in the motion picture constituted a capital asset since

it was not (a) stock in trade of the taxpayer or other in-

ventory property; (b) property held primarily for sale

to customers in the ordinary course of his trade or busi-

ness; (c) depreciable property used in trade or business;

or (d) short term government obligations. The decision

in the case at bar is out of step with the O'Brien and Pa-

cific Finance Corporation of California cases and the stat-

ute taxing the gain on the sale of a capital asset.

The opinion of the Tax Court in this case wholly dis-

regards the proven facts. It states conclusions not based

on the evidence. The opinion states: "Lasky, for reasons

which are rather vague in the record before us, elected

not to take the shares which accrued periodically and were
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tendered to him until it became clear that the credits aloi

would suffice because Lasky preferred having the accrua

of his shares accumulate in the hands of Warner Bros

(E. 88-89) There was positive evidence in the record wl

Lasky did not accept the moneys tendered to him by Wa
ner Bros. Loyd Wright, his attorney, advised him n

to accept the moneys that were tendered because in h

opinion the legend on the vouchers Avould preclude Las]

from demanding an adjustment if it were found that '.

was entitled to additional moneys. (R. 72, 241-242, 27

316, 351-352) Accordingly there was nothing vague abo

petitioner's rejection of the tender—he acted on the advi

of counsel. There is no evidence in the record that pe

tioner "preferred" having his shares accumulate in t'

hands of Warner Bros.

The opinion states: "It is difficult to know, or find as

fact, that a bona fide dispute existed in 1942 between Las]

and Warner Bros." (R. 89) This is an astonishing concl

sion in the light of all the evidence about the dissatisfactii

and controversy that existed betw^een Lasky and Warn
Bros. The details and causes of the dispute will not

reiterated here. However, the correspondence betwe^

the parties, their expressions to third parties, and the fa

that Lasky consulted his attorney and accountant abo

the controversy and the fact that the attorney took t^

matters up with Warner Bros, showed beyond questi<

that disputes and dissatisfaction existed between the pa

ties. This evidence cannot be disregarded.

The opinion states : "For example, there is no testimoi

of any executive of Warner Bros, about any dispute ^

about the receipt by Warner Bros, of allegations of Lasky

(R. 89) Lasky had a dispute with Warner Bros. Nat

rally its executives are not going to testify on his beha'

However, this does not justify the Tax Court in disregar

ing all the other testimony and other evidence in the re

ord on this point. Petitioner's attorney had a conferen
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with officers of Warner Bros, about the treatment of the

picture. (R. 281) The very fact that the checks were re-

turned placed Warner Bros, on notice of petitioner's dis-

satisfaction. Officers of Warner Bros, expressed to third

parties that they were cognizant of the fact that petitioner

was dissatisfied. (R. 303-304, 360-362) In addition, Warner
Bros, required United Artists to release it from all claims

that Lasky might have against Warner Bros, relating to

the picture "Sergeant York." (R. 439-444)

The Tax Court in substance concludes that the sale by

Lasky to United Artists w^as a sham and accomplished no

more than an ending of the Warner Bros.-Lasky agree-

ment, with United Artists as a mere intermediary. The
business reasons behind each transaction shows this con-

clusion to be wrong. The uncontradicted testimony of un-

impeached witnesses to the contrary cannot be disregarded.

CONCLUSION

A fair review of the evidence in this case leads to the

inescapable conclusion that the sale by petitioner of his

property rights to United Artists Corporation, on Decem-

ber 4, 1942, was a sale of a capital asset within the provi-

sions of Section 117 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1939.

The decisions of the Tax Court should be reversed.

Respectfully submitted,

Robert Ash
Carl F. Bauersfeld

1921 Eye Street, N. W.
Washington 6, D. C.

Attorneys for Petitioners

February 23, 1956
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In the United States Court of Appeals

for the Ninth Circuit

No. 14868

Bessie Lasky and Jesse L. Lasky, petitioners

V.

Commissioner of Internal Revenue, respondent

ON PETITIONS FOR REVIEW OF THE DECISIONS OF TEE
TAX COURT OF THE UNITED STATES

RESPONDENT'S MOTION TO DISMISS FOR LACK OF
JURISDICTION

Comes now the respondent, Commissioner of Internal

Revenue, and. moves this Court to dismiss the petitions

for review filed herein for lack of jurisdiction. As

grounds for this motion respondent states taxpayers'

petitions for review were not filed within three months

after the decisions of the Tax Court were rendered as

required by Section 1142 of the Internal Revenue Code

of 1939, and Section 7483 of the Internal Revenue Code

of 1954. Decisions in the case of each taxpayer respec-

tively were rendered by the Tax Court on April 8, 1954.

(R. 92-93.) Petitions for review by this Court were

not filed until August 10, 1955. (R. 6, 145-149.

)

The facts, which are not in dispute, stated in support

of this motion are as follows

:

On April 8, 1954, the Tax Court promulgated its

findings of fact and opinion in the above-entitled con-

(1)



solidated cases (R. 62-92) after hearing had befoi

Judge Harron on December 10 and 11, 1951, and tl

subsequent filing of briefs by both sides (R. 2-3).

The opinion concluded with the following word

(R. 92) : "Decisions will be entered for the responc

ent." On April 8, 1954, the Tax Court rendered ii

decision in the case of each of the taxpayers, decidiii

in the case of taxpayer Bessie Lasky that there is

deficiency in income tax for the year 1943 in the amoui

of $224,722.55, and in the case of taxpayer Jesse ]

Lasky that there is a deficiency in income tax due fc

the year 1943 in the amount of $224,515.14. (R. 92-93,

A copy of each of these decisions was, as appears l)elo\

served by the Clerk of the Tax Court on April 9, 195

by registered mail on Mr. Herschel B. Green, the fin

attorney of record for the taxpayers in the Tax Com
proceeding. (R. 92-93.)

No petition for review of these decisions in the Cou]

of Appeals was served within three months after Apr
8, 1954, the date the decisions were rendered.

Up to this point taxpayers had been represented i

the Tax Court by Messrs. Herschel B. Green and Loy

Wright of Wright, Wright, Green and Wright, an

Mr. Harrison Harkins. (R. 62.) However, on c

about August 24, 1954, after expiration of the thre

months' j^eriod following the rendering of the decisioi

by the Tax Court, the present attorney for taxpayei

filed with the Tax Court a motion for leave to file

motion to vacate its decisions here out of time. (R. 9^

94.) This motion was granted and taxpayers moved t

vacate the decisions entered in these cases on April I

1954, by a motion lodged on August 24, 1954. (R. 94.

On September 10, 1954, taxpayers filed four affidavif

in support of this motion to vacate the decisions o



April 8, 1954, made respectively by taxpayer Jesse L.

Lasky, his secretary, Randolph Rogers, and his attor-

neys Herschel B. Green and Harrison Harkins, each

dated September 7, 1954. (R. 95.) The facts stated

in these affidavits are in substantial agreement and
from them the following appears:

Mr. Herschel B. Green was one of the attorneys of

record for taxpayers in the Tax Court, connected with

the firm of Wright, Wright, Green and Wright with

offices at 111 West 7th Street, Los Angeles, California.

(R. 101.) Shortly after April 8, 1954, there were re-

ceived at these offices the findings of fact and opinion

of the Tax Court in these cases and shortly after the

receipt of the opinions and on April 14, 1954, there was

lield a conference at these offices attended by taxpayer

Jesse Lasky, his secretary, Mr. Rogers, and his attor-

neys, Mr. Harkins, Judge Milliken, Mr. Loyd Wright

and Mr. Green. (R. 95, 101.) At this conference the

findings of fact and opinion of the Tax Court were dis-

cussed as well as what future action should be taken,

including such matters as the possibility of appeal or

compromise. (R. 95-96, 99, 101-102, 103-104.) During

the course of this conference Mr. Lasky was told that

the decisions of the Tax Court in these cases would be

received separately from the findings and opinion and

he would have three months after the date the decisions

were entered within which to appeal. (R. 96, 99, 102,

104.) Mr. Green promised to notify Mr. Lasky im-

mediately upon receipt of the decisions. (R. 102.)

What occurred subsequently is stated in Mr. Green's

affidavit as follows (R. 102-103) :

Thereafter, Affiant talked with Mr. Lasky, or his

secretarv, on two or three occasions, when Affiant



was asked, if the Decisions had been received, an

Affiant informed him on each occasion that the

had not. During one or two telephone converse

tions with Mr. Harkins, we made mention of th

fact that the Decisions had not been received an

that Affiant was keeping a constant lookout for tl

receipt [sic] of these Decisions, having in mind tl:

ninety-day appeal period above referred to.

On or about July 26, 1954, Mr. Harkins informe

Affiant that he had received word from the desk c

the Tax Clerk that the Decisions had been entere

in the two cases on April 8, 1954, and that copif

thereof had been mailed to us. Affiant thereupo

made an immediate search of the Lasky files i

his office, and at that time and for the first time dii

covered copies of the two Decisions. They were o

letter-size paper and had been permanently place

in one of the Lasky files on the correspondence sid

of the file rather than the legal side. Affiant there

upon, on that same day, telephoned Mr. Lasky an

informed him that in going through his files Affiai

had found the two Decision [s] and they they [sic

were dated April 8, 1954.

Mr. Green also wrote Mr. Lasky under date of Angus

5, 1954, as follows (R. 98) :

Agreeable to your telephone request, there ai

enclosed the decisions of The Tax Court in Mr
Lasky 's and your tax cases.

You will note that these decisions are dated Apr

8, 1954. They did not come to my attention vmtil

discovered them in going through the file last wee!

They came in separately from the two opinions an



were apparently here in the office at the time when
we held the conferences with Judge Milliken, Mr.

Harkins and others to discuss the contents of the

Court's opinion.

I had been on the look-out for these decisions

from the inception due to our discussions relative

to an offer in compromise.

Mr. Harkins, who was also one of the attorneys of

record, stated that under date of July 20, 1954, he wrote

the Clerk of the Tax Court and inquired about the status

of the proceedings and (R. 105)

—

That on July 26, 1954, your affiant received a

letter from the Clerk of the Court, dated July 23,

1954, informing him that the decisions had been

entered and had been served April 9, 1954, upon

the first counsel of record in the proceedings,

Herschel B. Green, Esq.. Ill A¥est Seventh Street,

Los Angeles 14, California ;

That on July 26, 1954, your affiant informed Mr.

Green of the communication from the Clerk of the

Court ; and Mr. Green on the same date informed

your affiant that copies of the decisions had been

found in the files of his office

;

That on July 26, 1954, Jesse L. T.asky informed

your affiant that Mr. Green had that day told him

that copies of the decisions had been served on Mr.

Green.

Taxpayers' motion to vacate the decisions was heard

by Judge Harron on September 14 and 16, 1954 (R. 106-

133), where taxpayers were represented by their pres-

ent coimsel, who, as aforesaid, had not had any prior

association with the case (R. 115). From the state-



ment of the court and counsel the following addition

facts appear

:

The court stated (R. 114) :

Now, the records of the Tax Court show that tl

decisions in Docket Nos. 26396 and 26397 were se:

by registered mail and, as I understand from M
Ash's statement, the Petitioners here do not dei

that copies of the order of this Court, which

called a decision, were received in the office of M
Herschel B. Green in Los Angeles under register(

mail. The decisions were mailed to Mr. Green

office because he was the attorney who first enterc

his appearance.

Further it appeared without dispute that there w;

no record in the Tax Court of the receipt of any lett«

of inquiry prior to Mr. Harkins' letter to the Clei

dated July 20, 1954 (R. 114-116), and that the thr(

months had expired on or about July 8, 1954 (R. 116

Judge Harron stated that she had never received ar

letter of inquiry from counsel. (R. 116, 126-127

The court pointed out that the findings and opinic

indicated that the decision either was not to be enters

here under Tax Court Rule 50, which Avould have r

quired a computation, but was expressly stated to 1

entered for the respondent (R. 116-117) and in this co]

nection the court observed (R. 119) :

So the question must come up as to why no ii

quiry was made until July 20 about the decisif

since the legend under the findings of fact and opii

ion said, ''Decision will be entered for the R'

spondent." There was no Rule 50 com]")utatiou 1

be made. The order of decision was entered in



mediately upon the "filing" officially of that find-

ings of fact and opinion.

At the adjourned hearing on September 16, 1954,

there transpired the following colloquy between court

and counsel here pertinent. The court inquired (R.

126-128)

:

I wonder, Mr. Ash, if any explanation has been

given to you about why Mr. Harkins, for example,

waited so long to ask Mr. Mersch [Clerk of the Tax
Court] about the entry of the decisions. As you all

know, decisions to be entered for Petitioner and

Respondent, even if you had a complicated order to

write, would not take more than a half hour to have

drafted, typed, and signed. It is very easy to find

out from the Clerk whether the judge is on the job

or is sick, or is in Washington or away on a Calen-

dar, and what I cannot understand is what Mr.

Harkins, who tried this case, was thinking of.

Wliat did he think I was doing? Why did he

think it would take me three months to have pre-

pared and signed an order which takes not more

than a half hour to get done ?

I have looked in the file to see if there was a mo-

tion for reconsideration filed or if there was any

motion pending that would give Mr. Harkins or any

of the counsel ground for thinking that while a mo-

tion for reconsideration was being considered a

decision would not be entered or something. Have

you any explanation ?

Mr. Ash: The only explanation I have is—first

of all, I will preface it by saying that any of us

w^ho do tax work would certainly take the position

that Your Honor is taking, because you recognize
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that the decision would be simultaneous practicall

with the findings of fact and opinion except in som

unusual situations like you mentioned. The onl

possible explanation is that, of course, Harkiii

did repeatedly ask Mr. Green if the decisions ha

come down and was assured that they had not.

As I understand it, for some reasons the Ta

Court sent copies of the findings of fact and opii

ion to each of the counsel of record but, of cours<

following the established practice that we all knov

the decisions went only to Mr. Green.

The Court : That still does not give me an answe

to the question.

Mr. Ash : I do not know the answer.

The Court: Mr. Harkins could call Mr. Gree

20 times and Mr. Green could say "We haven

received a copy of the decision." What woul

Mr. Harkins think I was doing at this end of th

rope?

Mr. Ash : Tf I were in their position, I woul

make some inquiry after maybe a week or two t

find out if the decisions had been entered.

The Court : I must say that while we all obser^

the formalities—we must observe the judicif

position ; otherwise we are always available to com

sel to answer their questions and consider thei

problems. I cannot locate in the record motior

that might have been considered as a reason for d(

laying the entering of the decisions.

Mr. Ash: I cannot understand it and I w?

astonished as could be when T first heard of th:

thing, which was just shortly before Mr. Heubusc

of our office came down and looked through the fi]



and said there is not a thing in the file since the

entry of decisions, no motions or anything, and we
just could not believe that that could happen, but

it did.

The Court : The Calendar Section tells me that

the decisions went by registered mail April 9. I

guess they went by ordinary mail, not airmail, so

it probably reached Los Angeles a week later.

The Conunissioner, though regretting that the situa-

tion had arisen, made clear through his counsel his

objection to the granting of the motion to vacate on the

ground that the Tax Court was without jurisdiction in

the premises (R. 112-118) and filed a memorandum of

authorities in support of his position (R. 121-122).

In response to inquiry by the court, counsel for the

Commissioner stated that since the Tax Court was with-

out jurisdiction, his opposition to the motion was based

both upon the law and as a matter of policy (R. 129) :

The Court: * * *

As I understand it. Respondent does not object

to the granting of the motion made to vacate the

decisions, but takes the position that the Tax Court

is powerless to act, isn't that it? Are you taking

the lawful position ?

Mr. Ray : No, unfortunately. Your Honor, we do

object. Not only do we object on the ground that

the Tax Court has no jurisdiction, but we do ob-

ject because as a matter of policy where the Tax

Court has no jurisdiction we cannot become a party

to or have any part of granting a motion in cir-

cumstances where the Tax Court has no jurisdic-

tion.
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At these hearings of September 14 and 16, 1954, «

the motion to vacate, notwithstanding that the matt

was open for full discussion and fully discussed frc

all angles (R. 106-133), no suggestion was made '

taxpayers' behalf that a rehearing was requisite f

the purpose of offering additional evidence on t

merits. Substantially the only matters brought i

were what had in fact occurred in the instant case ai

the extent of the Tax Court's power to extend the tii

for filing a petition to review in relief of mistake ai

inadvertence.

Nevertheless, subsequently on or about October ]

1954, taxpayers moved for leave to file an amendme

to the motion to vacate the decisions out of time, whi

was granted. (R. 133-134.) This amendment to t

pending motion to vacate the decisions reads as follo^

(R. 134) :

"Come now the above-named petitioners by tlu

attorney, Robert Ash, and move the Court vacji

the decisions entered herein on April 8, 1954, /

the imrpose of f/rantiug petitioners <i rehearing

the case on its merits.

"The statement of facts and su]^porting a1

davits in support of this motion are incorporat

herein by reference." [Italics supplied.]

The statement of facts, which taxpayers filed in su

port of their amended motion on October 11, 1954 (

4), suggests that the court should exercise its disci

tion and grant the motion to vacate the decisions ai

order a rehearing for reasons which are itemized und

six headings. The first four mi\y he summarized

follows

:
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1. The findings of fact and opinion of the Tax Court

were promulgated April 8, 1954.

2. Decisions Avere entered for respondent on April

8, 1954.

3. The fact that the decisions were entered did not

come to the attention of taxpayers until more than

three months had elapsed.

4. Copies of the decisions which were mailed to their

counsel did not actually come to counsel's attention

upon their receipt as they were inadvertently misfiled.

Consequently counsel advised taxpayers and others

making inquiry on their behalf that the decisions had

not been received and this advice was given to taxpayers

by their counsel through mistake of fact.

The statement then continues (Appendix B, infra) :*

(5) Because petitioners had no knowledge that

the decisions had been entered on April 8, 1954, and

because their counsel advised them affirmatively

upon inquiry that the decisions had not l^een en-

tered, through no fault or negligence of the peti-

tioners they did not file this motion to vacate the

decisions within the time allowed by Kide 19 (e)

of the rules of this Court.

(6) In view of the foregoing, good cause exists

which justifies the Court in vacating the decisions

heretofore entered on April 8, 1954, for the pur-

pose of granting petitioner a rehearing of the case

on its merits. At a rehearing of the case the peti-

tioner would present additional evidence which

* The original of this "Statement of Facts," which, though desig-

nated as part of the record and for printing, the Tax Court Clerk

inadvertently omitted, has now been certified and transmitted and

is printed as Appendix B, infra.
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will show that the opinion and decision of t

Court is wrong on its merits. The evidence won

show:

(a) That the agreement of May 15, 1940, a]

the supplemental agreement of May 15, 19^

by which the petitioner sold to Warner Brothe

all his right to the Sergeant York Story a]

Warner Brothers agreed to pay petitioner

part of the gross receipts in varying percentag

from the distribution of the photoj^lay are e

tirely separate and distinct from the emplo

ment contract between petitioner and Warn
Brothers dated May 8, 1940.

(b) The evidence would show in detail that

bona fide dispute existed in 1942 between pe

tioner and Warner Brothers. Additional w
nesses would be produced to establish this i]

portant fact.

(c) Evidence would be produced to show th

the sale by petitioners on December 4, 1942,

United Artists Corporation was a bona fide st

to a third party with no understanding tb

United Artists Corporation would resell

Warner Brothers. This evidence would she

conclusively that United Artists Corporati(

was not a mere intermediary in the transactic

(d) The evidence would show in detail t

business purpose behind petitioner's sale

United Artists ( corporation on December 4, 19^1

(e) Upon receipt of this additional eviden

at a rehearing it is petitioner's opinion that f

Court wnll revise its opinion in accordance wi

the newly-presented facts and hold that the ss
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by the petitioners of their property rights to

United Artists Corporation on December 4, 1942,

was a bona fide sale of a capital asset within the

provisions of kSection 117 of the Internal Rev-

enue Code and that the transaction had been

properly reported in their 1942 Federal Income
Tax Return. Consequently, the decisions on the

rehearing would be that there was no deficiency

in tax due from the petitioners for the taxable

year 1943.

Thereafter, without any further proceedings, by order

dated December 13, 1954, the Tax Court granted tax-

payers' amended motion and ordered (R. 135)

—

That the decision in each proceeding which was

entered on April 8, 1954, be vacated and set aside

for the purpose of granting petitioners a further

hearing on the merits.

This order of December 13, 1954, recited that it was

based on cause shown in the amended motion, lodged

October 11, 1954, and in the statement of facts in

support thereof (summarized and quoted immediately

above).

The Acting Chief Counsel, Internal Revenue Service,

thereui)on moved to vacate this order of December 13,

1954, on the ground that the Tax Court's decision had

become final and the court was Avithout power to grant

taxpayers' motion. (R. 136-137.) This motion was

denied, as was also a motion for review by the entire

Tax Court of the order vacating the decisions. (R. 137.)

Pursuant to the order of December 13, 1954, the Tax
Court held a further hearing (January 21, 1955, con-
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tinued January 26, 1955). (R. 300-385.) This heari

was exclusively on the merits. Additional testinao

was taken of taxpayer Jesse L. Lasky and of three ad(

tional witnesses. At the conclusion of the testinao

Judge Harron outlined in detail the Tax Court's prf

tice with respect to the entering of its decisions (

375-380), proposing an improvement and at the e

stating (R. 380-381)

:

I think it is apparent to you why I can't i

this in an opinion. If I did, the opinion woi

probably have to be reviewed by the whole cou

but I think that in this case, for the purposes

an Appellate Court, this explanation might be he"

ful because it's very hard to find out what our pi

cedure is like.

The court then said (R. 382-383) :

We have had briefs in this case. I really doi

see the need for the filing of supplemental brie

You have asked the court to give the matter furtl

consideration of the question that was origina

IDresented. The court has heard some additioi

testimony. Briefs have been filed on the mati

regarding the court giving this matter further cc

sideration, and so unless counsel wish to file si

plemental briefs I am not going to ask for any,

However, counsel for taxpayers desired the opp<

tunity of filing a brief and counsel for the Comm
sioner stated (R. 383) in response to the court's :

quiry as to whether he wished to file a brief:

Mr. Transue: * * * our position has been tl

there has been no ground for a re-hearing, a
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there has been no newly discovered evidence or

any other justification for a re-hearing.

Of course, we still maintain our contention that

the court is without any jurisdiction to give any

further consideration to the matter. If Your Honor
permits Mr. Bauersfeld to file a brief I would like

to have some period thereafter to consider it and
see whether I desire to file one.

In response the court stated (R. 383-384) :

On the matter of the continuing objection of the

respondent I simply want to say that this seems

to be an extraordinary situation and one which

merited the exploring of what is involved in the

court's own procedure, and I have given you a

report on that.

To what extent do you intend to go into your

supplemental brief ?

Mr. Bauersfeld, this case as you know, was tried

before the court by Harrison and Harkins [sic]

in Los Angeles, and complete briefs have been

filed. When I granted a motion for reconsidera-

tion I didn 't intend in granting that motion to con-

sider the question de novo. Do you understand?

Mr. Bauersfeld: I understand.

The Court : And I believe you prepared the brief,

Mr. Bauersfeld, on the matter of whether we could

exercise any discretion in the matter of giving tliis

further consideration. Just exactly what do you

want to cover in the supplemental brief ?

Mr. Bauersfeld: I would like to cover in the

supplemental brief only the new evidence as it

may affect the ]~)rior decision of the court from a

factual standpoint.
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The Court: And you don't intend filing a bri

to reargue the case?

Mr. Bauersfeld: Not the entire case, no, Yoi

Honor.

The Court : I think I will have to make it cle;

that the matter of reconsideration was gone in

upon the understanding that you had some ne

evidence to present. The question now is wh
additional findings of fact should be made and

what extent the additional evidence may or shou

be considered in connection with the origii]

briefs. With that understanding you may file

brief.

By orders and decisions entered on June 30, 19

(R. 138-141, 144-145) the Tax Court stated that it h;

concluded after hearing held on taxpayers' motion

v^acate the decisions and for rehearing on the meri

(R. 138-139) :

that there existed extraordinary circumstances ai

good cause for granting extraordinary reli(

namely, (1) further hearing on the merits to e

able the petitioner to present new and addition

evidence; and (2) reconsideration ])y the Con

of the issue i)resented to determine whether t

Court made any ei'roneous conclusion of fad

law in its original findings of fact and conclusio

of law. * * * In order to reconsider the issue

this proceeding on the merits and to receive fui'tli

and additional evidence, the Court vacated its c

cision entered on April 8, 1954, received furtb

and additional evidence at a rehearing, and reco

sidered the issue on the merits.
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The orders and decisions continue that on the basis

of the entire record in the proceeding, the original

evidence and additional evidence adduced at the further

hearing, the court was not persuaded that it erred in

its original findings of fact and conclusions of law and

decided that there were deliciencies in income tax for

1943 in the amounts of $224,515.14 and $224,722.55

against the respective taxpayers Jesse Lasky and

Bessie Lasky. (R. 139-141, 144-145.) These are the

identical amounts determined in the decisions of April

8, 1954. (R. 92-93.) At the same time when it entered

these decisions the Tax Court made additional findings

of fact. (R. 141-144.) The petitions for review to

this Court are from these decisions entered June 30,

1955. (R. 147.)

Wherefore, it is respectfully requested that this

Court enter an order dismissing this appeal for lack of

jurisdiction on the ground that petitions for review

were not filed within three months after the decisions of

the Tax Court were rendered.

Charles K. Rice,

Aet infrAssistan t Attorney General.

March, 1956.
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NOTICE OF MOTION

To : Robert Ash, Esquire

Attorney for Petitioners

1921 Eye Street, N. W.
Washington, D. C.

Please take notice that the undersigned will luring t]

above motion to dismiss on for hearing before t'

United States Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circi

at the time and place designated by the Court for t"

hearing of the cause on the merits.

Charles K. Rice,

A-eting Assistant Attorney General.

Maech, 1956.



In the United States Court of Appeals

for the Ninth Circuit

No. 14868

Bessie Lasky and Jesse L. Lasky, petitioners

V.

Commissioner of Internal Revenue, respondent

ON PETITIONS FOB REVIEW OF THE DECISIONS OF THE
TAX COURT OF THE UNITED STATES

BRIEF FOR THE RESPONDENT IN SUPPORT OF MOTION
TO DISMISS FOR LACK OF JURISDICTION

QUESTION PRESENTED

Whether or not the Tax Court decisions had become

final and the limitation period had expired before tax-

payers tiled petitions for review by this Court.

ARGUMENT

Since Taxpayers Failed to File Petitions for Review \^'ilhin

Three Months After the Tax Court Rendered Its Decisions,

This Court Is Without Jurisdiction to Review the Tax Court

Decisions

A. The Tax Court decisions rendered April 8, 1954, have

at all times remained in full force and effect and

the Tax Court tvas without power after July 8,

1954, to make the purported order of December

13, 1954, vacating its decisions and granting tax-

payers a further hearing on the merits

The entire scheme of the Internal Eevenue Code of

1939 with respect to the jurisdiction of the Tax Court

(19)
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and review of its decisions is based upon the Congres

sional direction fixing a specific date upon which j

decision of the Tax Court shall become final. This wai

also the provision of preceding Revenue Acts and has

continued without change in the Internal Revenue Cod(

of 1954. Thus, Congress not only fixed a time limita

tion after which a petition for review by a court o1

appeals might not be filed (Internal Revenue Code,

Section 1142, Appendix A, iufra) but additionally ex

pressly directed (Internal Revenue Code, Section 1140

Appendix A, infra) the time when the Tax Court de

cision shall become final. As the cases cited below hold

Section 1140 denies to the Tax Court and all courts

reviewing its decisions, including the Supreme Court

the jurisdiction to vacate or grant a rehearing witl

respect to a decision of the Tax Court or its review sub

sequent to the date specified in Section 1140, when th(

Tax Court decision shall become final.

Thus Section 1142 provides that a decision of th(

Board (now the Tax Court) may be reviewed by ^

Court of Appeals "if a petition for such review is filer

by either the Commissioner or the taxpayer Avithir

three months after the decision is rendered." In addi

tion. Section 1140 so far as here pertinent reads ae

follows

:

The decision of the Board shall hecome final—
(a) Petition for Review Not Filed on Time.—

Upon the expiration of the time allowed for filinc

a petition for review, if no such petition has beer

duly filed within such time; * * *. (Italic?

supplied.)

^ References to the Internal Revenue Code are unless otherwise

indicated to the Internal Revenue Code of 1939.
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The importance of this date, when the Tax Court
decision becomes final, is apparent from the frequent

references to it in the procedure set up by Congress
for the Tax Court and the place of the Tax Court in the

determination and assessment of taxes. Thus, the

Commissioner is required in case of a deficiency to

serve a notice of deficiency upon the taxpayer and he

is prohibited from making an assessment of the de-

ficiency until the expiration of the ninety days, within

which taxpayer may commence a proceeding in the Tax
Court "nor, if a petition has been filed with the Board,

until the decision of the Board has become final." Sec-

tion 272(a)(1) (italics supplied). Moreover, if the

Tax Court upon redetermination finds a deficiency, the

deficiency shall be assessed and paid upon notice and

demand when the decision of the Board ^^has bfcome

final." Section 272(b) (Api)endix A, infra; italics

supplied). Again, Section 272(h) (Appendix A, infra),

specifically provides that "the date on which a decision

of the Board hecomes filial shall be deteraiined accord-

ing to the provisions of section 1140." (Italics su])-

plied.) Indeed, the Committee report, which recom-

mended the adoption of the predecessor of Section 1T40,

as Section 1005 of the Kevenue Act of 1926, c. 27, 44

Stat. 9, explained (S. Rep. No. 52, 69th Cong., 1st Sess.,

p. 37 (1939-1 Cum. Bull. (Part 2) 332, 360)) :

Date on whicli decision becomes final.—Section

1005 prescribes the date on which a decision of the

Board (whether or not I'eview thereof is had) is

to become final. Inasmuch as the statute of limi-

tations upon assessments and suits for collection,

l)otli of which are suspended during review of the

Commissioner's determination, commences to run
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upon the day upon which the Board's decision be

comes final, it is of utmost importance that thi

time be specified as accurately as possible. Ii

some instances in order to achieve this result th

usual rules of law applicable in court procedur

must be changed. For example, the power o

the court of review to recall its mandate is made t

expire 30 days from the date of issuance of th

mandate.

Thus, the statute additionally fixes the time for th

running of the limitations on assessment and collec

tion, but, in particular, qualifies the inherent power o

the courts to reconsider judgments, even during th

term in which they are entered.

In litigation affecting the pulilic revenue the neei

for certainty and finality is especially evident from th

taxpayers' as well as the Govermnent's viewpoint

Furthermore, Section 1140 through its limitation oi

review speeds disposal of income tax controversies. A
the Tax Court itself has recognized, it constitutes i

statute of repose for a tribunal of limited jurisdictior

Rippel & Co. V. Commissioner, 36 B.T.A. 789. At ai

early date in the history of this tribunal, speaking o

the predecesssor of Section 1140 the Supreme Cour

in Old Colony Tr. Co. v. Commissioner, 279 U.S. 716

726-727, sid.

By § 1005, the decision of the Board is to beconi'

final in respect to all the numerous instances whicl

in the course of the re^dew may naturally end fur

ther litigation. In the provisions of these section^^

the legislation prescribes minute details for th(

enforcement of the judgments that are the resul

of these petitions for review in the several courti
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vested with jurisdiction over them. The complete

purpose of Congress to provide a final adjudication

in such proceedings, binding all the parties, is

manifest * * *.

The Supreme Court has held that the authoritative

and explicit requirements of Section 1140 deprive even

that Court of its otherwise existent jurisdiction to grant

petitions for rehearing or otherwise exercise the tra-

ditional power to review and reconsider a judgment

during the term in which it was entered. Helvering

V. Northern Coal Co., 293 U.S. 191 ; B. Simpson d^ Co.

V. Commissioner, 321 U.S. 225. Hence, contrary to the

view expressed by the Tax Court below (R. 139) it is

immaterial, even if correct, that sessions of the Tax
Court are not limited by a "term," for the highest

authority holds that Section 1 140 prevents reconsidera-

tion even during the term, once the Tax Court decision

under the provisions of Section 1140 has become final.

The courts have repeatedly held that the statute de-

prives the Tax Court and the reviewing courts of juris-

diction to vacate a decision of the Tax Court or of the

reviewing courts and to grant a rehearing (even for

good cause shown otherwise warranting the granting

of a rehearing) once the period of limitation pre-

scribed by Section 1140 has elapsed and the decision of

the Tax Court has become final. This is the holding of

the Supreme Court decisions cited above and of the

decision of this Court in Swall v. Commissioner, 122

F. 2d 324, certiorari denied, 314 U.S. 697. This is also

the rule enunciated in the following cases: Commis-

sioner V. Bealty Operators, 118 F. 2d 286 (C.A. 5th)
;

Sweet V. Commissioner, 120 F. 2d 77 (C.A. 1st) ; Creivs

V. Commissioner, 120 F. 2d 749 (C.A. 10th), certiorari
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denied, 314 U.S. 664; Denholm d McKay Co. v. Com
missioncr, 132 F. 2d 243 (C.A. 1st) ; McCarthy v. Com
missioner, 139 F. 2d 20 (C.A. 7th) ; Monjar v. Comniu
sioner, 140 F. 2d 263 (C.A. 2d) ; White's Will v. Com
missioner, 142 F. 2d 746 (C.A. 3d).

This rule has, of course, been applied against th

Commissioner as well as against taxpayers. Helverin

V. Northern Coal Co., supra; Commissioner v. Bealt

Operators, supra; Denholm (& McKay Co. v. Commit
sioner, supra.

B. Ignorance throtigh inadvertence of taxpayers o

their counsel of the rendition hy the Tax Cour

of its decisions was ineffective to confer upon th

Tax Court the jurisdiction which Congress ea

plicitly had denied, to vacate its decisions afte

lapse of the three-month period, and grant a nei

hearing on the merits

Cases like the present one, where the Commissione

or the taxpayers have asserted that their failure to see"

relief within the period prescribed by Sections 1140 an^

1142 of the Internal Revenue Code has been due t

failure to receive notice of the Tax Court's decision o

because of reliance upon counsel, nevertheless have re

suited in rulings that the Tax Court was without juris

diction over its decision after it had become final unde

the statute ; similarly the courts of appeal are held fo

the same reason without jurisdiction to re^dew decision

of the Tax Court after the prescribed statutory i)orio(

has expired. Commissioner v. Realty Operators, supra

Swall v. Commissioner, supra: McCarthy v. Commis

sioner, supra; Monjar v. Commissioner, supra.

As the facts stated in support of the motion show
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supra, a copy of eacli of the decisions of April 8, 1954,

actually was served by registered mail upon the first

counsel of record for the taxpayers, although unfortu-

nately this did not actually come to the attention of the

attorneys in charge at that office or their associates until

after the expiration of the three-months period. (R.

102-103, 114.) Apparently it is the practice of the Tax
Court to serve copies of decisions and under its rules

where a party is represented by more than one counsel

ser^dce is made only upon counsel whose appearance

was first entered of record. " However, no explanation

appears for the failure of counsel or associate counsel

to recognize from the explicit direction in the opinion

that "Decisions will be entered for the respondent" (R.

92), that the decisions would be entered forthwith and

no computation under Rule 50 w^as requisite. Indeed,

since the opinion also expressly declared (R. 92) that

*'The respondent's determination is sustained/' it was

further apparent that the Conmiissioner's determina-

tion, as stated in the deficiency notice, was sustained, and

no further computation was necessary. Entry of the

decisions under this opinion on its face submittedly was

a pro forma matter.

2 Rules of Practice before the Tax Court (Rev. Nov. 1952) :

Rule 22.

—

Service

» # » «

(b) Upon first counsel of record.—Service upon any counsel

of record will be deemed service upon the party, but, where

there are more than one, service will be made only upon counsel

for petitioner whose appearance was first entered of record

—

unless the first counsel of record, by writing filed with the

Court, designates other counsel to receive service, in which

event service will be so made.

The Tax Court judge made some suggestions for improvement of

this practice (R. 378-381). but these cannot, of course, affect the

result here.
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In particular, it is significant that counsel made
inquiry of the Tax Court about the status of the p:

ceeding literally for months until July 20, 1954, a

after the expiration of the three-months period. (

102, 104-105.) The present counsel for taxpayers i

mitted at the hearing on the motion to vacate, in :

sponse to question by the Tax Court judge, that he v

unable to explain why the Clerk of the Tax Court h

not previously been asked about the entry of the de

sions. (R. 126-128.)

In any event, the statute no^Yhe^e requires service

decisions of the Tax Court upon counsel. Nor d(

it make limitation of the time for filing petition for :

view or for fixing the date of finality of the Tax Cot

decision depend at all upon service of a decision or i

tice to taxpayer or his counsel of entry of decisi(

Section 1142 confers jurisdiction to review a Tax Coi

decision by a Court of Appeals, if a petition for sn

review is filed by either the Commissioner or tax]iaA

"within three months after the decision is rendered.

(Italics supplied.) Section 1140, prescribing when T
Court decision becomes final, insofar as here pertine

provides that the decision shall become final upon '

' t

expiration of the time allowed for filing a ]ietition i

review, if no such petition has been duly filed wit!

such time * * *." Notwithstanding the apparent pn

tice of the Tax Court to serve the first counsel of reco

with a copy of a decision and the circumstance that

a matter of fact such service actually here occurred, t

limitation on time for review is in no sense condition

•"^ A decision is "held to bo rendoi'cd upon the date that an or(

specifvinp; the amount of the deficiency is entered" (Sect

1117(c), Appendix A, infra), here April 8, 1954. (R. 92-93.)
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upon such service or notice to counsel, but the statute

clearly fixes the date from the actual rendition of the

decision.

Surely it is plain that the failure by taxpayers to

realize that the time to file petitions for review was rmi-

ning was here due to no fault of the Tax Court or the

Commissioner. See McCarthy v. Commissioner, supra,

p. 21. As already noted in like regrettable situations

the limitation statute has been held binding upon the

Commissioner. Had the tables been turned and the

Commissioner sought under similar circumstances to

vacate the Tax Court decisions and for a new hearing

after the expiration of the time limited by Sections 1140

and 1142, and had the Tax Court granted such an ap-

plication and the Commissioner then sought to review

the Tax Court's decision on rehearing, to adopt the

language of the First Circuit in Commissioner v. Sweet,

supra, p. 82, "In such an eventuality the taxpayer's cry

of dismay would be loud and long, and not without rea-

son."

C. No extraordinary circumstances appear on this rec-

ord, such as ivarranted the Tax Court to vacate

its decisions of April 8, 1954, and order a rehear-

ing on the merits, assuming that tribunal possessed

jurisdiction similar to that of a court to grant a

writ of error coram nobis

The Tax Court below vacated the April 8 decisions

"for the purpose of granting petitioners a further hear-

ing on the merits" (R. 135), by its order dated Decem-

ber 13, 1954, and by the same order set the case down for

hearing. After having held the hearing in January,

1955, and heard additional testimony the Tax Court en-
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tered its orders and decisions on June 30, 1955 (R. 138

141, 144-145) in which it concluded that it had not errec

in its original decisions and also explained that it hac

earlier vacated these decisions because (R. 138-139)—

The Court concluded that there existed extraor

dinary circumstances and good cause for grant

ing extraordinary relief, namely, (1) further hear

ing on the merits to enable the petitioner to presen

new and additional evidence; and (2) reconsidera

tion by the Court of the issue presented to deter

mine whether the Court made any erroneous con

elusion of fact or law in its original findings of fac

and conclusions of law. LaFloridienne J. Buttgen

hach & Co. V. Commissioner, 63 F. 2d 630; Unitec

States V. Morgan, 346 U. S. 502; United States vs

Mayer, 235 U. S. 55; Wayne United Gas Co. vs

Owens-ininois Glass Co., 300 U. S. 131 ; Rule 60(b)

Federal Rules of Civil Procedure ; Reo Motors, Inc

vs. Commissioner, 219 F. 2d 610. In order to re

consider the issue in this proceeding on the merits

and to receive further and additional evidence, th(

Court vacated its decision entered on April 8, 1954

received further and additional evidence at a re

hearing, and reconsidered the issue on the merits

Most of the authorities cited relate to the jurisdictior

of a court to issue a writ of error eoram nobis; the>

are plainly distinguishable from the present record

since no such extraordinary circumstances are here

present which possibly could warrant the exercise ol

jurisdiction to grant a writ of error coram nobis. Thm
in Reo Motors v. Commissioner, 219 F. 2d 610 (C.A

6th) , the facts were that the Commissioner and taxpayei

had stipulated that the Commissioner's computation oi
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i,)
,

taxpayer's excess profits credit was correct and in its

ni
j

application there for extraordinary relief taxpayer al-

halil leged (p. 611) that—

because of a mutual mistake of fact, an error had
been made in the stipulation of its excess profits

credit resulting from the omission from its invested

capital of more than two million dollars paid in for

stock ; that if the correct excess profits credit had
been used there would have been no deficiency in

])etitioner's excess profits tax for 1942; that the

Commissioner had admitted this error in connec-

tion with another proceeding involving petitioner's

excess profits tax liability for 1943 ;
* * *

The Sixth Circuit held only that the Tax Court has

power in extraordinary circumstances to vacate and cor-

rect its decision, even after it has become final, similar

to the jurisdiction of a court to grant a writ of error

coram nobis; the court exi)ressed no view as to whether

the circmnstances in the cited case were so extraordi-

nary as to invite the exercise of that discretion. AVhether

or not tlie cited case was correctly decided—and we

think it was not, in view of the provisions of Section

1140 of the Internal Revenue Code and of the decisions

of the Supreme Court in the Northern Coal Co. and

Simpson (& Co. cases and of the other courts above cited

—in any event the circumstances there of mutual mis-

take of fact in entering into a stipulation, upon which

the decision of the Tax Court had allegedly been based,

were certainly entirely different from the record facts.

Indeed, in the Reo Motors case the taxpayer addi-

tionally alleged (p. 611) :

that in 1949 the petitioner had sought relief from

its excess profits tax for the year 1942 under § 722
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of the Internal Revenue Code of 1939, 26 U.S.C..

§ 122, in response to which the Conmiissioner hi

contended that no § 722 relief could be given becau

the allowance of the petitioner's proper credi

would result in no excess profits tax liability for t]

year 1942, making inapplicable the relief pro^

sions of § 722.

Moreover, in its opinion the Sixth ( Urcuit quoted fro

a letter from the Commissioner supporting this alleg

tion. (P. 611, fn. 1). Further the court there not(

(p. 612) that—

The petitioner points out that the Commission!

not only concedes this factual error, but is seekir

to take advantage of it to the detriment of the p
titioner in resisting petitioner's claim under § 72

This consideration may well have affected the court

decision there. By contrast here the Commissioner wi

not at all at fault and was in no sense a party to tl

error or inadvertence. Submittedly the Reo Moto

case constitutes no authority for the Tax Court's ord(

here.
^

United States v. Morgan, 346 U.S. 502, and Unite

States V. Mayer, 235 U.S. 55, which discuss the circun

stances under which a writ of error coram nobis :

granted, again plainly show that no such extraordinar

^ Nevertheless the Sixth Circuit's decision in Reo Motors, date

February 23, 1955, is cited instantly in the Tax Court's subsequei

order and decision of June 30, 1955. (R. 138.) However, tl

Tax Court's order here dated December 13, 1954 (R. 135), ori|

inally vacating the decisions of April 8, 1954, was cited to tl

Sixth Circuit and is the decision intended to be referred to in i

opinion (p. 612) (although the citation there given (22 T.C. Ic

is actually to the official report of the original findings and opinic

of the Tax Court (R. 62-92)).
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situation whatsoever is present in the instant record.^

By contrast all that the Tax Court here asserted as the

ground for exercise of power to grant "extraordinary

relief" (H. 138) was "to enable the petitioner to pre-

sent new and additional evidence" and to enable the

court to reconsider the issue, to determine whether it

had made any erroneous findings or legal conclusions.

These bore no resemblance to possible errors, which

went to the regularity of the proceeding itself, such as

in a criminal case the failure without competent waiver

to furnish the defendant with counsel, or that the de-

fendant being under age appeared by attorney, such as

justify the grant of coram nobis.

Furthermore, the nature of the additional evidence

proffered by taxpayers here is shown in their statement

of facts in support of the amended motion (Appendix

B, infra) and upon the basis of which the Tax Court ex-

pressly acted in granting its order of December 13, 1954.

(R. 135.) See also sunmiary of the additional testi-

mony made by the court in its order and decision of

June 30, 1955 (E. 139-141) and its memorandum sur

order and decision (R. 141-144). Submittedly the show-

ing made to the Tax Court was not such as would jus-

tify even granting a new trial on the basis of newly dis-

covered evidence—had the motion been timely—since

the evidence offered was merely cumulative and it was

^ Thus with reference to such writs in the Mayer case, the Su-

preme Court said (p. 69)

:

This jurisdiction was of limited scope; the power of the court

thus to vacate its judgments for errors of fact existed, as

already stated, in those cases where the errors were of the

most fundamental character, that is, such as rendered the

proceeding itself irregular and invalid.

See also United States v. Morgan, supra, p. 507, fn. 9.
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not such as by due diligence could not have been ad

duced at the original hearing. Surely, in any event i

presented no cause for granting extraordinary relief i:

the nature of writ of error coram nobis.

The record on appeal in the Swall case, supra, wher

this Court held in the light of the Northern Coal Cc

case, the Board should have dismissed the proceedin

for want of jurisdiction, shows that the taxpayer ther

also moved for a writ of coram nobis. Docket No. 9758

Moreover in the Swall case, p. 325, this Court cor

sidered that the Fifth Circuit's decision in LaFlori

dienne J. Buttgenhach d Co. v. Commissioner, 63 F. 2'

630, cited by the Tax Court (R. 138), has in effect bee;

overruled by the Northern Coal Co. case, and the Sn

preme Court denied certiorari in the Swall case. Th
Buttgenhach case has also been questioned or distiu

guished by the First Circuit in the Sweet case, siiprc

p. 81, the Second Circuit in the Jlonjar case, supro

p. 265, and the Third Circuit in the case of White'

Will, supra, pp. 748, 749. In any event on its facts th

Buttgenhach case is readily distinguishable from th

instant record, since the order of the Board there va

cated was not really a judgment of the Board l^ut wa

based on a stipulation and the Board itself had neve

ascertained what if any taxes were owed. Both partie

were agreeable to setting aside the stipulation, an(

the Fifth Circuit declared (p. 631) :

*^ There the grounds, upon which taxpayer rcUcd in vain as justi

fication for vacating the earlier decision, were that the taxpayer

representative before the then Board of Tax Appeals had not bee

admitted to practice and that he had fraudulently induced taxpaye

to dismiss the proceeding for his own personal gain. Lack o

jurisdiction in the Tax Court to vacate its decisions of April ^

1954, here certainly follows a fortiorari.
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We rule only that a redetermination based on a

stipulation may be vacated at the instance of the

parties to the stipulation for good cause shown.

Finally, as the Supreme Court pointed out in Wayne
Gas Co. V. Owens Co., 300 U.S. 131, 137, "Where it ap-

pears that a rehearing has been granted only for that

jturpose [to extend the time for appeal] the appeal

must be dismissed." " This statement by the Supreme
Court was quoted in the Realty Operators Co. case,

supra, p. 289, and applied by the Fifth Circuit against

the Commissioner and his petition for review was dis-

missed, when based upon a Board order which had va-

cated its previous decision. This principle plainly pos-

sesses instant application. Taxpayers' original motion

was simply to vacate the decisions entered on April 8,

]954. (R. 94.) At the full hearing, which was held on

this motion on September 14 and 16, 1954 (R. 106-133),

there was no suggestion that a further hearing on the

merits was necessary to enable taxpayers to present

new and additional evidence ; substantially all that was

discussed was the circumstances under which the time

to file petitions for review had been permitted to lapse.

Indeed, it was not until October 11, 1954, that the sug-

gestion first was made that the Tax Court vacate the

April decisions for the purpose of granting taxpayers

^ Moreover, the holding in the cited Wayne Gas Co. case that a

bankruptcy court in a reorganization proceeding has power in its

sound discretion to reopen an order dismissing the reorganization

petition, notwithstanding that the time allowed for appeal from
the order has expired, is without instant application. The reason-

ing of the court (p. 137) shows that the rule would have been dif-

ferent, if the statute there had contained a provision similar to

Internal Revenue Code Section 1140, as, indeed, its decisions in

the Northern Coal Co. and Simpson & Co. cases demonstrate.
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a rehearing on the merits and the statement of fac

above referred to was filed. (R. 133-134.) As alreac

pointed out the additional testimony was merely cmn
lative, including testimony from taxpayers' own a

countant and more testimony from taxpayer Jes

Lasky, and was not shown to be newly discovered.

If taxpayers believed that the justice of their cau

required the receipt of additional evidence on tl

merits, which was the nominal reason for vacating tl

decisions and for the rehearing, it is not explained avI

they waited for approximately six months after r

ceiving the Tax Court's findings and opinion befo:

even suggesting to the Tax Court the need for a rehea

ing; nor is it explained why in the original motion

vacate and in the course of the discussion at the hea

ing on that motion no relief by way of adducing add

tional evidence on the merits was applied for or i

necessity explained. The subject of discussion on tl

contrary was taxpayers' failure to appeal in tim

There was no requirement that taxpa.yers await tl

Tax Court's decisions before moving for rehearing,

in fact the alleged extraordinary need existed, for a^

ducing additional evidence. Indeed, the Tax Court

rules contemplate that such a motion for further hea

ing be filed within thirty days after the opinion h;

been served. (Rule 19(e).) Again, at the conferen<

held on April 14, 1954, attended by taxpayer, Jesi

Lasky, and his attorneys, who had conducted the tr'n

there was no intimation of a great and extraordinai

need to adduce additional evidence; the further actic

contemplated in the light of the Tax Court's opinic

was apparently appeal or compromise. (R. 96, 99, 10

102, 103-104.) The inference seems comx:)elling ihi



35

the October 11, 1954, amendment to the motion to va-

cate ''for the purpose of granting petitioners a rehear-

ing of the case on its merits" (R. 134) was an after-

thought for the i^urpose of extending the time for

appeal.

The Federal Rules of Civil Procedure do not apply

to Tax Court proceedings.^ In any event Rule 60(b),

cited by the Tax Court in its order and decision of

June 30, 1955 (R. 138), does no more at the most than

authorize relief by motion or otherwise similar to that

formerly granted by the abolished writ of coram nobis

and, as already discussed the present record presents

no occasion for the exercise of jurisdiction in the nature

of coram nobis.

Submittedly, the prescription of Section 1140 of the

Code made final the April 8, 1954, decisions of the Tax
Court here and no jurisdir-tion analogous to writs of

coram nobis is possesed by the Tax Court. But as-

suming arguendo that the Tax Court possesses juris-

diction analogous to that of a writ of error coram nobis,

the present record i^resented no occasion whatsoever

for the exercise of such extraordinary relief and the

direction of Section 1140 prevented the Tax Court

from vacating its April 8, 1954, decisions here.

CONCLUSION

Since these decisions of April 8, 1954, remained at

all times in effect and the order of the Tax Court pur-

porting to vacate them was erroneously granted without

jurisdiction, the petitions for review by this Court were

filed too late and the Commissioner's motion to dismiss

^Katz V. Commissioner, 188 F. 2d 957 (C.A. 2d); 7 Moore's

Federal Practice (2d ed.) 4433.
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the petitions for review for lack of jurisdietioii sboii

be granted.

Respectfully submitted,

Charles K. Rice,

'Avihrg Assistant Attorney General.

Lee a. Jackson,

I. Henry Kutz,

Attorneys,

Department of Justice,

Washington 2.~), D. C.

March, 3956.
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APPENDIX A

Internal Revenue Code of 1939

:

Sec. 272. Procedure in General.

(b)'' Collection of Deficiency Found by Board.—
If the taxpayer files a petition with the Board, the

entire amount redetermined as the deficiency by
the decision of the Board which has become final

shall be assessed and shall be paid upon notice and
demand from the collector. No part of the amount
determined as a deficiency by the Commissioner but

disallowed as such by the decision of the Board
which has become final shall be assessed or be col-

lected by distraint or by proceeding in court with

or without assessment.

(h)^" Final Decisions of Board.—For the pur-

poses of this chapter the date on which a decision

of the Board becomes final shall be determined ac-

cording to the provisions of section 1140.

(26 U.S.C. 1952 ed., Sec. 272.)

''Internal Revenue Code of 1954, Section 6215(a), is substan-

tially identical.

1^ Internal Revenue Code of 1954, Section 6214(c) reads as

follows

:

Final Decisions of Tax Court.—For purposes of this chapter

and subtitles A or B the date on which a decision of the Tax
Court becomes final shall be determined according to the

provisions of section 7481.



38

Sec. 1117/^ Reports and Decisions.

(a) Requirement.—A report upon any proce

ing instituted before the Board and a decis

thereon shall be made as quickly as practical

The decision shall be made by a member in acco

ance with the report of the Board, and such decis

so made shall, when entered, be the decision of

Board.

(b) Inclusion of Findings of Fact or Opinio

in Beport.—It shall be the duty of the Board i

of each division to include in its report upon i

proceeding its findings of fact or opinion or m(

orandum opinion, the Board shall report in writ

all its findings of fact, opinions and memorand
opinions.

(c) Date of Decision.—A decision of the Boj

(except a decision dismissing a proceeding

lack of jurisdiction) shall be held to be rende

upon the date that an order specifying the amoi

of the deficiency is entered in the records of

Board. If the Board dismisses a proceeding

reasons other than lack of jurisdiction and is una

from the record to determine the amount of

deficiency determined by the Commissioner, oi

the Board dismisses a proceeding for lack of jui

diction, an order to that effect shall be entered

the records of the Board, and the decision of

Board shall be held to be rendered upon the d

of such entry.*****
(26 U.S.C. 1952 ed., Sec. 1117.)

'Hnternal Revenue Code of 1954, Section 74r)9(a), (b) and

is substantially identical.
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Sec. 1140. Date When Boaed Decision Becomes
Final.

The decision of the Board shall become final

—

(a)^^ Petition for Review Not Filed On Time.—
Upon the expiration of the time allowed for filing

a petition for review, if no such petition has been

duly filed within such time ;
* * *

Sec. 1142. Petition for Review.

The decision of the Board rendered after Febru-

ary 26, 1926 (except as provided in subdivision (j)

of section 283 and in subdivision (h) of section 318

of the Revenue Act of 1926, 44 Stat. 65, 83, relating

to hearings before the Board prior to February

26, 1926) may be reviewed by a Circuit Court of

Appeals, or the United States Court of Appeals for

the District of Columbia, as provided in section

1141, if a petition for such review is filed by either

the Commissioner or the taxpayer within three

months after the decision is rendered, or, in the

case of a decision rendered on or before June 6,

1932, within six months after the decision is

rendered.

(26 U.S.C. 1952 ed.. Sec. 1142.)

12 Internal Revenue Code of 1954, Section 7481(1) is substan-

tially identical.
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Internal Revenue Code of 1954

:

Sec. 7483. Petition for Review.

The decision of the Tax Court may be review

by a United States Court of Appeals as provid

in section 7482 if a petition for such review is fil

by either the Secretary (or his delegate) or t

taxpayer within 3 months after the decision

rendered. * * *

(26 U.S.C. 1952 ed., Supp. II, Sec. 7483.)

Certificate of Service

Service of copy of the within papers consisting

motion, notice of motion and brief in support of moti

to dismiss for lack of jurisdiction w^as made by mail tl

day of March, 1956, on Robert Ash, Esqui

Attorney for Petitioners, addressed to his office, IS

Eye Street, N. W., Washington 6, D. C.

Charles K. Rice,

Aeimf§*Assistant Attorney General,

Department of Justice,

Washington 25, D. C,
Attorney for Respondent.
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APPENDIX B

THE TAX COURT OF THE UNITED STATES

Docket Nos. 26396 and 26397

Bessie Lasky and Jesse L. Lasky, petitioners

V.

Commissioner of Internal Revenue, respondent.

Statement of Facts in Support of Motion to Vacate
Decisions and for Rehearing

On August 24, 1954, petitioners filed a motion for

leave to file motion to vacate decisions out of time.

This motion was granted by the Court on August 26,

1954, and a hearing was held on the motion to vacate

decisions on September 14, 1954. The motion to vacate

the decisions stated that a statement of facts and sup-

porting affidavits would be filed in the near future.

The supporting affidavits were filed on September 10,

1954. This statement of facts is filed in accordance

with the motion to vacate decisions for purpose of

granting petitioners a rehearing of the case on the

merits. The Court should exercise its discretion and

grant the motion to vacate the decisions and order a

rehearing for the following reasons

:

(1) The findings of fact and opinion of the Tax
Court in the above-entitled case were promulgated

April 8, 1954.

(2) Decisions were entered for respondent on April

8, 1954.

(3) As shown by the affidavits heretofore filed, in this

case on September 10, 1954, the fact that the decisions

were entered did not come to the attention of the peti-

tioners until more than three months elapsed after they

were entered.
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(4) Copies of the decisions which were mailed

counsel for petitioners did not actually come to coi

sel's attention upon their receipt as they were inadv

tently misfiled. Consequently, on numerous occasi(

petitioners and other persons making inquiry on th

behalf, were advised by their counsel that the decisi(

had not been received. This advice was given to p(

tioners by their counsel through mistake of fact.

(5) Because petitioners had no knowledge that
'

decisions had been entered on April 8, 1954, and

cause their counsel advised them affirmatively upon
quir}^ that the decisions had not been entered, throi

no fault or negligence of the petitioners they did not

this motion to A^acate the decisions within the time

lowed by Rule 19(e) of the rules of this Court.

(6) In view of the foregoing, good cause exists wh
justifies the Court in vacating the decisions heretof<

entered on April 8, 1954, for the purpose of granti

petitioner a rehearing of the case on its merits. A
rehearing of the case the petitioner would present ad

tional evidence which will show that tbe opinion a

decision of the Court is wrong on its merits. The e

dence would show:

(a) That the agreement of May 15, 1940, a

the supplemental agreement of May 15, 1940,

which the petitioner sold to Warner Brothers

his right to the Sergeant York Story and AVari

Brothers agreed to pay petitioner a part of i

gross receipts in varying percentages from the c

tribution of the photoplay are entirely separ;

and distinct from the employment contract betwc

petitioner and Warner Brothers dated May 8, 19

(b) The evidence would show in detail thai

bona fide dis])ute existed in 1942 between petitioi

and Warner Brothers. Additional witnesses woi

be produced to establish this important fact.
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(c) Evidence ^YOllld be produced to show that

the sale by petitioners on December 4, 1942, to

United Artists Corporation was a bona fide sale

to a third party with no understanding that United

Artists Corporation would resell to Warner
Brothers. This evidence would show conclusively

that United Artists Corporation was not a mere
intermediary in the transaction.

(d) The e\idence would show in detail the busi-

ness purpose behind petitioner's sale to United

Artists Corporation on December 4, 1942.

(e) Upon receipt of this additional evidence at

a rehearing it is petitioner 's opinion that the Court

will revise its opinion in accordance with the newly-

presented facts and hold that the sale by the peti-

tioners of their property rights to United Artists

Corporation on December 4, 1942, was a bona fide

sale of a capital asset within the provisions of Sec-

tion 117 of the Internal Revenue Code and that the

transaction had been properly reported in their

1942 Federal Income Tax Return. Consequently,

the decisions on the rehearing would be that there

was no deficiency in tax due from the petitioners

for the taxable year 1943.

(S.) Robert Ash,
1921 Eye Street, N. W.,

Washington, D. C,
Attorney for Petitioners,

T.C. U.S. filed October 11, 1954.
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In the United States Court of Appeals

for the Ninth Circuit

No. 14868

Bessie Lasky and Jesse L. Lasky, petitioners

V.

Commissioner of Internal Revenue, respondent

ON PETITIONS FOR REVIEW OF THE DECISIONS OF THE
TAX COURT OF THE UNITED STATES

BRIEF FOR THE RESPONDENT

OPINIONS BELOW

The opinion of the Tax Court (R. 62-92) rendered

after the original hearing is reported at 22 T. C. 13;

the memorandum opinion of the Tax Court after re-

hearing (R. 138-144) is not reported.

JURISDICTION

The Commissioner contends that this Court is with-

out jurisdiction to decide the instant consolidated cases

inasmuch as taxpayers failed to file petitions for review

within three months after the Tax Court decisions were

rendered. The facts upon which the Commissioner's

contention is based and the reasons in support of it are

(1)



fully set forth in his motion to dismiss for lack of juris

diction and brief in support of the motion printec

under separate cover. Accordingly, only altcrnativeli

and in the event that this Court disagrees with the Com
missioner's contention with respect to jurisdiction anc

denies his motion to dismiss for lack of jurisdiction i,

consideration of the tvithin brief on tlie merits re

quested, or does it become pertinent.

The Commissioner under date of November 28, 1949

determined deficiencies in income tax for the year 194,-

in the case of Bessie Lasky in the amount of $224,

722,55 and in the case of Jesse L. Lasky in the amoun
of $224,515.14. (R. 10-14, 62, 158.) Within ninet;;

days thereafter and on January 9, 1950, each of th(

taxpayers filed a petition with the Tax Court for re

determination of the deficiency under the provision;

of Section 272 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1939

(R. 1, 14.) The final order and decision of the Ta:?

Court was rendered in each case on April 8, 1954 (R

92-93), determining deficiencies in income tax due fron

taxpayer Bessie Lasky for 1943 in the amount of $224,

722.55 and in the ease of Jessie L. Lasky for 1943 ii

the amount of $224,515.14.

Under date of August 24, 1954, taxpayers moved th(

Tax Court to vacate the decisions entered on April 8

1954 (R. 94), and on October 11, 1954, taxpayers movec

to amend the motion to vacate the decisions of Apri

8, 1954, by in substance adding "for the purpose oJ

granting petitioners a rehearing of the case on itt

merits" (R. 134). By an order dated December 13

1954, which for reasons stated in the Commissioner 'f

motion to dismiss for lack of jurisdiction, the Commis-

sioner contends was ei-roneously made, the Tax (^ourl

granted taxpayers' amended motion and ordered thai



its decision in each of the two above-entitled cases en-

tered on April 8, 1954, be vacated and set aside for the

purpose of granting taxpayers a further hearing on the

merits. (R. 135.) Under date of June 30, 1955, the

Tax Court made its order and decision in each of the

above-entitled cases (R. 138-141, 144-145) after rehear-

ing, adhering to its original opinion and decision, and
determining deficiencies in the same amounts, as de-

termined in its orignal decisions of April 8, 1954,

namely, in the case of taxpayer Jesse L. Lasky, $224,-

515.14 (R. 141) and in the case of Bessie Lasky in the

amount of $224,722.55 (R. 144-145). The Commis-
sioner contends in his said motion that the Tax Court

was without jurisdiction to render these decisions of

June 30, 1955.

Taxpayers seek to bring the case to this Court by pe-

titions for review filed on August 10, 1955 (R. 6, 145-

149), which the Commissioner contends were not duly

filed pursuant to the provisions of Section 1142 of the

Internal Revenue Code of 1939 and Section 7483 of

the Internal Revenue Code of 1954 within three months

after the Tax Court's decisions were rendered and that

therefore these petitions are insufficient to confer juris-

diction upon this Court to hear the instant case. Only

in the event that this Court overrules the Commission-

er's motion to dismiss and holds that the Tax Court

possessed jurisdiction to vacate its decisions of April

8, 1954, and to enter the purported decisions on rehear-

ing of June 30, 1955, would the petitions for revicAv be

timely under the statute.

QUESTION PRESENTED

Whether on the record facts the Tax Court was

clearly wrong in concluding that the sum of $805,000,



which taxpayer Jesse L. Lasky received in 1942, was

ordinary income and not capital gain.

STATUTE INVOLVED

Internal Revenue Code of 1939:

Sec. 22. Gkoss Income.

(a,) General Definition.—"Gross income" in-

cludes gains, profits, and income derived frorr

salaries, wages, or compensation for personal serv-

ice, of whatever kind and in whatever form paid

or from professions, vocations, trades, businesses

commerce, or sales, or dealings in property, whethei

real or personal, growing out of the ownership oi

use of or interest in such property ; also from in-

terest, rent, dividends, securities, or the transactior

of any business carried on for gain or profit, oi

gains or profits and income derived from any sourc(

whatever. * * *

» » * •

(26 U.S.C. 1952 ed.. Sec. 22.)

Sec. 117. Capital Gains and Losses.

(a) Definitions.—As used in this chapter

—

(1) [As amended by Sec. 115(b) of the Reve

nue Act of 1941, c. 412, 55 Stat. 687, and Sec

151(a) of the Revenue Act of 1942, c. 619, 5(

Stat. 798] Capital assets.—The term "capita

assets" means property held by the taxpayer

(whether or not coiniected with his trade or busi-

ness), but does not include stock in trade of tlu

taxpayer or other property of a kind which wouh



properly be included in the inventory of the tax-

payer if on hand at the close of the taxable year,

or property held by the taxpayer primarily for

sale to customers in the ordinary course of his

trade or business, or property, used in the trade

or business, of a character which is subject to the

allowance for depreciation provided in section

28(1), or an obligation of the United States or

any of its possessions, or of a State or Territory,

or any political subdivision thereof, or of the

District of Columbia, issued on or after March

1, 1941, on a discount basis and payable without

interest at a fixed maturity date not exceeding

one year from the date of issue, or real property

used in the trade or business of the taxpayer

;

(2) [As amended by Sec. 150(a) of the Reve-

nue Act of 1942, supra] Short-term capital f/ain.

—The term "short-term capital gain" means

gain from the sale or exchange of a capital asset

held for not more than 6 months, if and to the

extent such gain is taken into account in com-

puting net income;

(4) [As amended by Sec. 150 (a) of the Reve-

nue Act of 1942, supra] Long-term capital gain.

—The term "long-term capital gain" means gain

from the sale or exchange of a capital asset held

for more than 6 months, if and to the extent such

gain is taken into account in computing net in-

come:

(26 U.S.C. 1952 ed.. Sec. 117.)



STATEMENT

Taxpayers are husband and wife, whose income ir

1942 and 1943 was community income, reported on the

cash basis. (R. 62-63.) Their cases were consolidated ir

the Tax Court (R. 151) and by order of this Court (R
455-456) are consolidated here. Unless otherwise noted

taxpayer-husband, Jesse L. Lasky, will be referred tc

as taxpayer.

The Commissioner determined deficiencies in income

tax for 1943 as follows (R. 62) :

Bessie Lasky $224,722.55

Jesse L. Lasky 224,515.14

The year 1942 is involved because of the provisions oi

the Current Tax Pa>Tnent Act of 1943, c. 120, 57 Stat

126. (R. 62.)

Based on the testimony of witnesses adduced at a

hearing held on December 10-11, 1951 (R. 2, 150-299),

and rehearing held January 21 and 26, 1955 (R. 5, 300-

385), a stipulation of facts (R. 19-23), and docimientary

evidence, the Tax Court made the following fact find-

ings:

Taxpayer's occupation has been that of a motion pic-

ture producer since 1913, and he has produced many

pictures. He has been a producer for various corpora-

tions in which he was an officer such as Jesse L. Lasky

Star Players, Company, Famous Players-Lasky Com-

pany, Paramount Famous-Lasky Company, R.K.O..

Fox Film Corporation, and Pickford-Lasky Corpora-

tion. (R.63.)

Taxpayer was the ])roducer of a radio show called

*' Gateway to Hollywood" from 1938 to the early part

of 1940. For three months in the early part of 1940,



taxpayer was not associated with or engaged in any
production, and he was not associated ^\ith any corpora-

tion. (R. 63.)

Prior to March, 1940, Lasky, as an indi^ddual, had not

purchased any literary property, but as ^dee-president

in charge of production of Paramount, many literary

properties passed through his hands. When he was an
officer of Jesse L. Lasky Star Players Company, and
when he was in charge of production of Famous Play-

ers-Lasky Company he became acquainted with the pro-

cedures followed by those companies in purchasing

plays, stories, and literary properties. (R. 63.)

In the early part of 1940, in Jamestown, Tennessee,

taxpayer negotiated with Alvin York, a hero of World
War I, for the purchase of the motion pictin^e and other

rights in the life story of Alvin York. On March 23,

1940, Y^ork and Lasky entered into a written agreement

(Ex. 1-A, R. 23-38) under whose terms Y^ork sold to

Lasky, inter alia, the exclusive motion picture I'ights

in the story of Sergeant York, and, in particular, in

three published books, "Sergeant Y^ork and His Peo-

ple", "Sergeant York, Last of Long Hunters", and
'

' The War Diary of Sergeant Y^ork '

'. In consideration

for all the rights received, Lasky agreed to pay York

$25,000 upon the execution of the agreement, and $25,000

at the expiration of either 18 months from the date of

the execution of the agreement, or upon the date follow-

ing the release of any motion picture made pursuant to

the agreement, whichever date was earlier. Failure to

pay the second $25,000 would result in termination of

the agreement. In addition, Lasky agreed to pay Y^ork

a sum equal to 4% of gross receipts from the distribu-

tion of each motion picture in excess of $3,000,000; 5%,

in excess of $4,000,000 ; 6% , in excess of $6,000,000 ; and
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8%, in excess of $9,000,000. It was expressly provide

that if the contract should be assigned to a productio

or distribution corporation the assignee would assum
all of Lasky's obligations. Lasky paid York $25,00

upon the execution of the agreement. He borrowed th

funds used to make the payment. (R. 63-64.)

Taxpayer, thereafter, flew to Hollywood, California

where he arrived on about March 25, 1940. Lask;

shopped around to sell the story for production of ,

motion picture. He had an outline of a story which h

gave Sam Goldwyn to read. He called on Paramoun
also. None of the first contacts wanted the story. H
then called on Harry and Jack Warner of Warne
Brothers Pictures, Inc. Warner Brothers agreed t<

purchase the rights to the story of Sergeant York an(

to employ Lasky as the supervising producer. The un

derstanding of Warner Brothers and Lasky was reachec

a few weeks before written instruments were ready fo:

execution. The agreements executed and the datei

thereof were as follows: (1) One agreement was datec

May 8, 1940, by which Warner Brothers employed Lask^

as the supervising producer of a photoplay tentatively

entitled
'

' The Amazing Story of Sergeant York ". (Ex

D, R. 385-408.) (2) Another agreement was dated Ma}

15, 1940, b}^ which Lasky sold to Warner Brothers al

of his rights to the York story and all other rights lu

had acquired under the York contract of March 23

1940. (Ex. 2, R. 38-41.) Another agreement was simul

taneously executed, entitled "Supplemental Agree-

ment", which was dated May 15, 1940, by which Warnei

Brothers agreed to pay Lasky part of the gross receipts

in varying percentages, from the distribution of the

photoplay, "The Amazing Story of Sergeant York"

(Ex. 3, R. 41-47> (R. 64-65.)



The agreement of May 8, 1940, was for an original

term of 52 weeks beginning, retroactively, on April 1,

1940, witli options to extend the period of the agreement

for a maxmium period of seven years. The agreement

provided, inter alia, as follows (R. 65-66)

:

13. It is understood that the Company has pur-

chased from the Producer, all Producer's rights to,

in and under certain agreement dated March 23,

1940, between the Producer and Alvin C. York, the

original of which contract has been delivered to the

Company, and which rights are of value in connec-

tion with the production of the proposed photoplay,

"The Amazing Story of Sergeant York", referred

to in Paragraph 3 hereof. The Company shall be

entitled to the services of Producer in the prepara-

tion and/or writing of the script upon which said

motion picture photoplay sliall be based, but it is

not a condition or prerequisite to the production of

said photoplay that said script shall be approved

by Producer, and on the contrary Producer agrees

to render his services in the complete production

of said photoplay provided only said script meets

with the approval of the Com])any. It is further

understood that Producer shall work under the di-

rect sui:>ervision of Jack L. Warner and Hal B.

Wallis, or either of them, provided either of them

remain in the employ of the Company during the

term hereof; * * *.

14. It is further agreed that Producer shall be

accorded credit on the film of the photoplay pro-

duced hereunder and in all paid advertising and

publicity issued by and under the direct control of

the Company in approximately the following form,



10

to-wit: ''Produced by Jesse L. Lasky and Hal B.

Wallis."

In general, the agreement provided that Lasky would

render services as the supervising producer of the York

photoplay, and such other photoplay as might be selected

by mutual consent, for a period of 52 weeks from April

1, 1940 ; that Lasky, at the o^^tion of Warner Brothers,

would render additional services in connection with

the preparation or writing of the script, and editing,

supervising, and overseeing the development of the

screen play ; and that Lasky would receive for all of his

services under the contract at least $60,000 payable at

the rate of $1,500 per week. (R. 66-67.)

Under the agreements of May 15, 1940, Warner

Brothers, in general, agreed to pay Lasky $40,000 for

all of his right, title, and interest in the York agreement

of March 23, 1940, plus a part of the gross receipts from

domestic and foreign distril^ution during not more than

five years after the date of release of the York photo-

play. AVarner Brothers assumed all of Lasky 's obliga-

tions under the York contract. (R. 67.) The so-called

"Supplemental Agreement" provided, in part, as fol-

lows (R. 67-68) :

Whereas, the parties hereto have simultaneously

herewith entered into a contract whereby Warners

have purchased all the right, title and interest of

Lasky in and under a certain contract between

Lasky and Alvin C. York, dated March 23, 1940,

relating to a motion picture tentatively entitled,

"The Amazing Story of Sergeant York", as in

said contract set forth,

Now, therefore, it is further agreed that as an

additional compensation and consideration payable
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to Lasky by Warners for the rights contained in

the aforesaid contract Warners will pay to Lasky
a further sum based upon the gross returns from

the release and/or distribution and/or exhibition

of the said photoplay, as follows :
* * *

2. Warners will pay Lasky a sum equal to

twenty per cent (20%) of the gross film rentals or

sales (as hereinafter defined) realized from such

motion picture in excess of the sums hereinafter

stated. The term "gross film rentals or sales", as

used herein, shall be deemed to be the aggregate of

the domestic i)roceeds and the foreign j)roceeds

realized from the sale, rental or distribution of the

photoplay contemplated hereunder. * * * War-
ners will pay Lasky the said sum of twenty per

cent (20%) upon the said domestic proceeds in ex-

cess of One Million Six Hundred Thousand Dol-

lars ($1,600,000.00) and a similar percentage of the

foreign proceeds in excess of One Hundred and

Fifty Thousand Dollars ($150,000.00) ;
* * *

It is further understood that should the aggregate

proceeds, both domestic and foreign, reach the sum
of Two Million Five Hundred Thousand Dollars

($2,500,000.00), then thereafter Warners will pay

Lasky a sum equal to twenty-five per cent (2d%)

of the excess above such figure instead of twenty

per cent (20%) as is herein provided for proceeds

below such figure.

Warner Brothers agreed, also, to keep complete books

of account pertaining to receipts from the distribution

of the photoplay, and to make such records available

at all times to Lasky or his agents. Warner Brothers
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agreed to render periodical statements to Lasky after

the release of the picture, not less than once each quar-

ter, accounting for receipts, and to make simultaneous

payment to Lasky of his share of the gross receipts

shown by each statment. (R. 68-69.)

The so-called "Supplemental Agreement" of May
15, 1940, is the type of agreement which is known as a

participation agreement. (R. 69.)

Warner Brothers paid $40,000 to Lasky in 1940, as

provided in the agreement of May 15, 1940. Warner

Brothers reported the payment of $40,000, on Form

1099 of the Treasury Department as a payment for

"Sale of Story". (R. 69.)

Lasky went on Warner Brothers' payroll as of April

4, 1940. He was paid $58,500 during 1944 for his serv-

ices as a producer during 39 weeks. Warner Brothers

reported payment of $58,500 as "salary" on Form

1099. (R. 69.)

Lasky reported the sums of $40,000 and $58,500 as

ordinary income in his income tax return for 1940,

(R. 69.)

A photoplay entitled "Sergeant York" was pro-

duced ; it Avas released in the United States and Canada

in July, 1941. (R. 69.)

Lasky 's employment as a producer of the photoplay

extended over 581/2 weeks, from April 4, 1940, to May

17, 1941. Lasky was paid $87,750 for his services ai

the rate of $1 ,500 per week. (R. 69.)

Lasky was employed by Warners Brothers in the

production of other pictures during 1941, 1942, 1948,

and 1944. He went back on the payroll on May 19

1941, in connection with a photoplay about Mark Twain,

He worked on that project intermittently until Jan-
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nary 9, 1943, for a period of 77 weeks, receiving total

compensation of $126,175, for his services as an as-

sociate producer. From January 11, 1943, until April

24, 1944, Lasky \Yorked for Warner Brothers during

83 weeks on "various" projects receiving $150,516.67

for his services as an associate producer. (R. 69-70.)

Warner Brothers followed the practice of mailing

statements to Lasky which were designated "State-

ment to Jesse L. Lasky covering distribution of pro-

duction 'Sergeant York' to (date)," together with a

check for the amount of Lasky 's participating share as

shown by the statement. Lasky 's share was 207o, at

first, under the agreement. The first of such statements

was mailed to Lasky with a letter dated December 15,

1941. The statement was for the period ending Novem-

ber 29, 1941, and showed the following (R. 70) :

Gross income from distribution within U.S $1,706,084.02

Less—gross rentals (U.S.) in which participant

does not share 1,600,000.00

Net on which participant shares $ 106,084.02

Participant's share—20% $ 21,216.80

Lasky received a check for $21,216.80 with this state-

ment. (R. 70.)

An account was set up on the books of Warner

Brothers entitled "Income from Distribution of Pro-

duction 'Sergeant York' and Jesse L. Lasky 's Share

Thereof". This account showed gross receipts from

domestic and foreign distribution. The account was

l^eriodically credited with Lasky 's share of gross re-

ceipts pursuant to the "Supplemental Agreement" of

May 15, 1940. The account showed the total amount

of credits before a new crediting of his share, tn^
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amount of his participating share as of a particular

date, and the total "to date". It also showed certain

charges against Lasky's account. A record was kept

of the checks of Warner Brothers which were made
payable to Lasky, and the amounts thereof. (R. 70-71.)

At the end of 1941, Lasky made two separate requests

to Warner Brothers to make advances to him of his

207f share of gross receipts. His first request was for

an advance payment of $85,000, and his second request

was for an advance payment of $90,000, a total amount

of $175,000. Warner Brothers made the payments re-

quested by check, (R. 71.)

In 1941, Lasky received $196,216.80 from the gross

receipts from the distribution of the York picture which

he reported in his return for 1941 as ordinary income

($21,216.80, plus $175,000). (R. 71.)

As consideration for the two advance payments in

1941 of $175,000, Lasky agreed to modifications of the

"Supplemental Agreement" of May 15, 1940. The

amendments were made by letters of Warner Brothers

to Lasky, which he signed as "Accepted", dated De-

cemljer 30, 1941 (Ex. 4, R. 48-51), and December 31,

1941 (Ex. 5, R. 51-54). (R. 71).

As consideration for tlie advance payments of $175,-

000, Lasky agreed that he w^ould begin to share in the

earnings of "Sergeant York" after the gross film rent-

als reached $2,580,000 instead of $1,600,000, as previ-

ously agreed. If Lasky had waited to receive the 20%
first agreed upon, his share would have been $196,000.

Therefore, the receipt of the advance payments of $175,-

000 represented a discount of the first $196,000 of earn-

ings for $21,000. I^asky gave Warner Brothers a dis-

count in order to receive payments in 1941 in advance.

(R. 74-75.)
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By another "letter agreement" dated April 30, 1942

(Ex. 6, R. 55-56), Lasky agreed to pay (and he author-

ized Warner Brothers to withhold and keep from any

smns due him under the Supplemental Agreement of

May 15, 1940, as amended) the sum of $18,998 to be ex-

pended by Warner Brothers in an advertising cam-

paign of the picture "Sergeant York". This sum was

withheld by Warner Brothers prior to December 4,

1942. (R. 75-76.)

At some time prior to May 1942, a claim based ujDon

alleged plagiarism was lodged against Warner Broth-

ers and Lasky by the heirs of Skeyhill, the author of

"Sergeant York, Last of Long Hunters". Warner
Brothers tentatively debited taxpayer's account on its

books in the amount of $10,000 as a safeguard against

possible costs arising out of such claim. Of this debit,

all but $239.75 was ultimately recredited to taxpayer's

account. (R. 76.)

On about May 6, 1942, Lasky instructed Warner
Brothers to send future statements of account and par-

ticipation checks, and other matters directly to his at-

torney. (R. 76.)

Lasky consulted and retained a certified joublic ac-

countant who specialized in motion picture accounting

and in the investigation of motion picture distribution

and participation accounting. Lasky and his attorney

consulted the accountant about Lasky 's rights under

the "Supplemental Agreement" of ^lay 15, 1940, as

amended, with the purpose of securing a proper ac-

counting of proceeds from Warners under the con-

tract. (R. 76.)

Under date of May 6, 1942, Warner Brothers mailed

to Lasky 's attorney in Los Angeles, a statement pur-
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porting to show the domestic and foreign receipts fron

th^ distribution of "Sergeant York" to February 28

1942, and Lasky's share thereof, together with its check

made payable to Lasky, in the amount of $244,529.84

The statement showed, among other things, Unitec

States gross feature rentals to February 28, 1942, in th(

amount of $3,758,978.57, without detailed explanation

The statement listed foreign income to February 28

1942, as $85,613.15, against which was offset $150,000

the latter was described as "Income on which partici-

pant does not share". The statement disclosed thai

"The sum of $10,000.00 has been withheld at this time

by reason of the claim of alleged Skeyhill heirs." (R

76-77.)

There was attached to the check of Warner Brothers

for $244,529.84, a voucher which was a permanent pari

of the check form. The voucher bore the legend '

' Voic

If Detached". On the voucher was typed the numbei

of the voucher and "Your share of income from dis

tribution of production 'Sergeant York' per statements

rendered as of February 28, 1942, $244,529.84." A let-

ter which accompanied the check described the check as

"covering the amount shown by the statement to b(

due." (R. 77.)

Lasky was advised by his attorney not to accept the

check for $244,529.84. With the approval of Lasky

his attorney returned the check to Warner Brothers

Pictures, Inc., by registered mail on June 3, 1942, witl

the following statement: "I am unable to accept the

check for Mr. Lasky under the conditions as sent— .'

(R. 77.)

On July 10, 1942, Warner Brothers mailed taxpayer's

attorney another check made payable to Lasky in the
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amount of $132,692.08. On October 13, 1942, Warner
Brothers mailed taxpayer's attorney another cheek

made payable to Lasky in the amount of $193,476.70.

Each check was accompanied by a statement showing

the gross rentals of the York photoplay, domestic and

foreign, to May 10, 1942, and to August 29, 1942, re-

spectively, and Lasky 's share up to each date. A
voucher was attached to each check with the legend

"Void If Detached". (R. 77-78.)

Taxpayer's attorney returned the checks for

$132,692.08, and $193,476.70, to Warner Brothers with

letters stating in each instance: "We are unable to

accept this check under present conditions, and for that

reason I am compelled to return the same." (R. 78.)

The three checks which were received by Lasky 's

attorney in 1942 and which were returned in 1942 totaled

$570,698.62. Upon receipt of the returned checks,

Warner Brothers stamped them "Void". (R. 78.)

No investigation was ever made on Lasky 's behalf

by his accountant or agents of Warner Brothers' rec-

ords of the receipts from the distribution of the York

photoplay to determine whether or not Lasky was re-

ceiving a fair accounting of his participating share of

the receipts, or to determine any other matters. (R. 78.)

After the return to AVarner Brothers of the three

checks totaling $570,698.62, Warner Brothers did not

send any more statments or any more checks to I^asky

or to his attorney in payment of Lasky 's participation

in the York picture rentals. However, on its books,

Warner Brothers continued to make credits to Lasky 's

account as it had done ])reviously. (R. 78.) Exhilnt Z

(R. 434-438), a copy of the accounting records of

Warner Brothers of Lasky 's participation in the York
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picture receipts shows that computations of the re-

ceipts, foreign and domestic, in which Lasky had a

share, were computed as of February 28, 1942, April

4, 1942, May 2, 1942, May 30, 1942, July 4, 1942, October

3, 1942, October 31, 1942, and November 28, 1942. Also,

the cumulative balances of the gross receipts on August

29, 1942, October 3, 1942, October 31, 1942, and Novem-

ber 28, 1942, were as follows (R. 79)

:

Cumulative Total of

Credits to Lasky

August 29, 1942 $570,938.37

Oct. 3, 1942 628,978.66

Oct. 31, 1942 679,013.38

Nov. 28, 1942 822,857.56

The account on the books of Warner Brothers was

closed out on December 22, 1942, by the notation:

"Assigned to United Artists Corporation." A check

of Warner Brothers for $820,000, dated December 22,

1942, made payable to United Artists Corporation was

entered in the account and was charged to the cumulative

balance shown therein. Also, $2,857.56 was charged to

the account as a charge to "Producer" (Lasky). The

explanation written in the account for the check to

United Artists in the amount of $820,000, stated, in part,

as follows: "The $820,000 was in full payment of all

clauns of every nature arising out of the purchase of

the stories as well as any share accruing from distribu-

tion of the production [the York photoplay]." (R. 79-

80.)

The check for $820,000, payable to United Artists,

dated December 22, 1942, bore the following notation:

"Payment as per agreement dated December 22, 1942
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between AVarner Bros. Pictures, Inc., and United

Artists Corporation." (R. 80.)

The check was paid on December 24, 1942; United

Artists received payment of the check for $820,000 on

December 24, 1942. (R. 80.)

In 1942, Lasky's attorney had a conference with an

executive of Warner Brothers about foreign blocked

funds, and the executive of AVarner Brothers proposed

that Lasky's share of foreign blocked funds (presum-

ably foreign receipts from the distribution of the York
picture) should be $200,000; but Lasky's attorney did

not agree. Lasky's attorney discussed, at some undis-

closed time, with executives of Warner Brothers

criticisms which he had heard about Warner Brothers'

handling of the York picture. (R. 80.)

Lasky was advised and he decided to get out of his

agreement of May 15, 1940, with Warner Brothers.

His attorney handled all negotiations. His attorney

worked out an agreement with L^nited Artists Corpora-

tion whereby it would pay Lasky $805,000. The agree-

ment was consummated on December 4, 1942. United

Artists was represented by its attorney. On or about

December 4, 1942, Lasky received $805,000 from United

Artists. (R. 80.)

United Artists, on December 22, 1942, received a

check from Warner Brothers for $820,000. The check

was paid on December 24, 1942. (R. 80.)

Taxpayer's attorney had been secretary-treasurer of

United Artists Corporation off and on. (R. 81.)

The transaction between Lasky and United Artists

was covered by an agreement which was entitled ''Con-

tract of Sale". (Ex. 7-B, R. 56-61.) It was dated

December 4, 1942. Lender the agreement Lasky sold

and assigned to L^nited Artists all of his interest in the
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original and supplemental agreements with Warner

Brothers dated May 15, 1940, and all of his interest in

the motion picture "Sergeant York", including "the

proceeds thereof, rights of accounting thereof, money

due or to become due therefor from AVarner Bros.

Pictures, Inc., * * *." Under the agreement, Lasky,

also, inter alia, authorized United Artists, the "pur-

chaser", irrevocably and in his (Lasky's) name, or

otherwise to do the following (Ex. 7-B, R. 56-61, 81-82) :

* * * to execute any document of any kind or char-

acter * * * and to remise, release and discharge for

himself and his successors, all manner of action

and actions, cause and causes of action, suits,

duties, dues, sums of money, accounts, * * * claims

and demands whatsoever in law or in equity which

against Warner Bros. Pictures, Inc., or any other

person, firm or corporation, the said Seller [Lasky]

ever had, now has * * * or may have * * * relating

to or in connection with the motion picture "Ser-

geant York," and agrees to be bound thereby as

though such instruments were executed by him-

self, and to release and discharge Warner Bros.

Pictures, Inc., from rendering any reports and ac-

counts to him [Lasky], from paying any money to

him or in anywise be responsible for or have any

duties to him by virtue of or arising out of the

agreements of May 15th, 1940, or any supplements

or amendments thereto, and to acknowledge that

Seller neither has nor shall it have any rights or

interest of any kind whatsoever in and to the motion

picture "Sergeant York" and to entitle Warner
Bros. Pictures, Inc. to license, sell, dispose of, re-

issue, re-make and in every other way treat the
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motion picture ''Sergeant York", the negative,

positive prints, stories, scenarios and other prop-

erties thereof as its sole and exclusive property

without any accounting, payment or restriction of

any kind to the Seller.

In consideration of all of the assignment and trans-

fer of Lasky, "the Seller", United Artists agreed to

pay Lasky, upon execution and delivery of the agree-

ment, the sum of $805,000, in cash. (R. 82.)

On December 22, 1942, United Artists and Warner
Brothers Pictures, Inc., executed an agreement entitled

"Contract of Sale". (Ex. AA, R. 439-444.) Under this

agreement, United Artists sold and assigned to Warner
Brothers for $820,000 the contract of sale dated De-

cember 4, 1942, between Lasky and United Artists,

which was attached to the contract between United

Artists and Warner Brothers. United Artists, by its

contract, sold and assigned to Warner Brothers all

rights of every kind acquired by it under the terms of

the agreement of December 4, 1942 (with Lasky), in-

cluding, inter alia, its rights as follows (R. 82-84)

:

* * * in and to any contract and any right there-

under or claims thereunder it may have by virtue of

contracts or claims thereunder which Jesse L.

Lasky may have had with Warner Bros. Pictures,

Inc. or any subsidiary corporation, in and to any
* * * licenses it may have any interest in pertain-

ing to or relating to the production, distribution or

exhibition of the motion picture "Sergeant York,"
* * * any and all right, title and interest it may
have by virtue of the original contract dated May
15th, 1940 between Jesse L. Laskv and Warner
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Bros. Pictures, Inc., the agreement supplemental

thereto of similar date, and any and all other

amendments and supplements thereto including

specifically the right to all moneys that are now due

or which may become due to Jesse L. Lasky from

Warner Bros. Pictures, Inc., thereunder * * *

and any of the rights connected with production,

distribution or exhibition thereof, and an}^ and all

claims, manner of action and actions, cause and

causes of action, suits, sums of money, accounts,

damages and demands of any kind and character

Jesse L. Lasky may have against Warner Bros.

Pictures, Inc., or which arise out of or in connec-

tion with the motion picture "Sergeant York"
against Warner Bros. Pictures, Inc.

(4) Pursuant to the authority granted to Seller

in paragraph 4 in its said agreement with Jesse L.

Lasky dated December 4th, 1942, Seller does hereby

for and in the name of and on behalf of Jesse L.

Lasky and his successors and assigns, remise, re-

lease and forever discharge Warner Bros. Pictures,

Inc. and all of its subsidiarj^ and affiliated corpora-

tions of and from all manner of action and actions,

cause and causes of action, suits, duties, dues, sums

of money, accounts, reckonings, bonds, bills, spe-

cialties, covenants, contracts, controversies, agree-

ments, promises, variances, trespasses, damages,

judgments, executions, claims, and demands whatso-

ever in law or in equity which against Warner

Bros. Pictures, Inc. and its subsidiary and affiliated

corporations the said Jesse L. Lasky now has or

* * * may have in and to the receipts from the dis-

tribution and exhibition thereof or any part there-
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of and does further release and discharge the said

Warner Bros. Pictures, Inc. from rendering any

reports and accounts to him, from paying any money

to him or in anywise be responsible for or have

any duties to him by virtue of or arising out of the

agreement and supplemental agreement both dated

May 15, 1940 between him and Warner Bros.

Pictures, Inc. and all supplements or amendments

thereto, and he does hereby acknowledge that he

does not have nor shall he have any rights or inter-

est of any kind whatsoever in and to the motion

picture, "Sergeant York", and Warner Bros.

Pictures, Inc. is entitled to license, sell, dispose

of, * * * the entire receipts for the world from the

distribution and exhibition thereof as its sole and

exclusive property without any accounting, demand

or restriction of any kind.

Taxpayer reported, in his return for 1942, one-half

of the i^ayment of $805,000 as long-term capital gain

from the sale of a capital asset, as follows: "Interest

in picture Sergeant York 3-15-40—12-4-42, $402,500;

gain to be taken into account, $201,250.00.
'

' Taxpayer 's

wife reported one-half of the same long-term capital

gain in her return for 1942. (R. 84-85.)

The Commissioner rejected this treatment of the

receipt of $805,000, giving the following explanation

in the notice of deficiency (R. 85)

:

It has been determined that $805,000 represent-

ing the proceeds from a contractual interest in the

earnings and profits of the motion picture "Ser-

geant York" received from United Artists Cor-

poration on December 4, 1942, is taxable as ordinary

income received in the vear 1942.
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The Tax Court concluded upon the foregoing facts

that Lasky 's share in the gross rentals of the York mo-

tion i^icture payable to him by Warner Brothers con-

stituted ordinary income. (R. 86-88.)

The Tax Court further concluded that it was dif-

ficult to find as a fact that a ])ona fide dispute existed

in 1942 between Lasky and Warner Brothers, that at

the most the record contains only the suggestion that

Lasky and his advisers were suspicious about the pos-

sible existence of grounds for the propriety of Warner
Brothers' computation of the dollar amounts of Lasky 's

shares, their accounting practice and procedure, and

their handling of the release of the film. (R. 89.)

The Tax Court found the inference to be plain that

by the end of 1942 Lasky had reached a decision to step

out of his contract with Warner Brothers and termi-

nate it. (R. 89.) By the end of November, 1942, there

w^as credited to Lasky and unpaid on the books of War-
ner Brothers $822,857.56. (R. 88.) The Tax Court

concluded that there was no showing of any business

purpose by Lasky in his arrangement with United Art-

ists and that the record is sparse in providing any ex-

planation for the few days' advance of funds to Lasky,

which United Artists so quickly recouped out of Lasky 's

account with Warner Brothers through Warner Broth-

ers' payment of $820,000. Thus, United Artists gained

$15,000 for about twenty days use of its $805,000 which

it advanced to Lasky, and that was the only business

aspect of the arrangement as far as United Artists was

concerned. (R. 90.)

The credit balance under the Lasky-Warner Broth-

ers agreement, $822,857.56, was closed on December 22,

1942, by payment of $820,000 by Warner Brothers to
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United Artists and $2,857.56 was charged to Lasky to

take care of some undisclosed charge or adjustment.

(E. 90.) The Tax Court conchided that when the steps

taken are seen in this light there ^yas no more than an

ending of the Warner Brothers-Lasky agreement, and

Lasky received the accumulated royalties or shares due

him, receipt of which had been held up. (R. 91.)

The Tax Court held that by the end of 1942 taxpayer

had credited to him agreed shares of the gross film rent-

als. Total accrued and credited pa^^Tlents were paid in

an amount based upon an agreement which had been

carried out by the obligor to the extent of tendering

payments on account. The alleged "sale" of the right

to receive the accruals did not convert accrued income

into capital. It was in fact only i3ayment of the total

accruals to Lasky through an intermediary. (R. 91.)

Accordingly, the Tax Court sustained the Commis-

sioner's determination of deficiencies. (R. 92.)

Subsequently upon the basis of the additional evi-

dence introduced at the further hearing held January

21 and January 26, 1955 (R. 5, 300-374), the Tax Court

found the following additional facts (R. 141-144) :

Gradwell Sears was president of Vitagraph Corpor-

ation prior to October, 1941, which was a subsidiary of

Warner Brothers, which i3rovided the film distribut-

ing facilities of Warner Brothers. He had complete

charge of the distribution of the picture "Sergeant

York" in the L^nited States and its possessions. In Oc-

tober, 1941, he left Vitagraph and became executive

vice-president of United Artists in charge of world-

wide distribution. He held that office during 1942. In

1941 and 1942, Edward C. Raftery was president of

United Artists. Sears knew that Lasky had a minority
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interest in "Sergeant York," and that the picture wa^

successful. He recalled that an executive of Wariiei

Brothers lamented the fact that Warner Brothers did

not own the entire interest in "Sergeant York," and

he "knew from advance information that AVarnei

Brothers would very gladly acquire the entire rights

in this thing ["Sergeant York"] if they became avail-

able." He did not ever talk to Lasky in regard to pur-

chasing Lasky's interest in "Sergeant York." He rec-

ommended that Raftery discuss the possibility of ac-

quiring Lasky's interest with Lasky's attorney. (R

141-142.)

Before December 4, 1942, a representative of Lask}

visited Warner Brothers' office and obtained some fig-

ures which he communicated to Lasky's accountant,

James D. Miller, who carried on his accounting practice

in New York City. Miller believed, before Decemljei

4, 1942, that under Warner Brothers' accounting, more

than $805,000 was due Lasky as his share of the receipts

of "Sergeant York." In October, 1942, Miller be-

lieved that the picture "Sergeant York" "had been

pretty well exploited domestically"; that there would

still be, perhaps, some foreign exploitation; that in all

probability there would be a release of restricted iiimh

abroad ; and that there would be subsequent runs of the

picture. (R. 142-143.)

In 1942, Lasky's attorney was secretary of L^nited

Artists. (R. 143.)

Lasky did not know, on December 4, 1942, or l)efore.

that United Artists might resell Lasky's interest in

"Sergeant York" to Wai'uer Brohters. Lasky did not

advise Warner Brothers that he was going to sell hi,<

interest in "Sergeant York" to United Artists. He
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never offered his interest for sale to Warner Brothers.

Lasky knew that his attorney was negotiating for the

sale of his interest in "Sergeant York." His attorney

was his agent and he left all the details in his attorney's

hands. (R. 143.)

Lasky 's attorney approached Raftery in November,

1942, and asked him if United Artists would be inter-

ested in purchasing Lasky 's interest in "Sergeant

York." Lasky had authorized his attorney to look for

a buyer of his interest. Raftery consulted Sears about

the offer of Lasky 's attorney to sell Lasky 's interest

in "Sergeant York" and about the alternative of mak-

ing a resale of Lasky 's interest so as to make a little

profit during 1942. Raftery also, before December 4,

1942, spoke to an officer of Warner Brothers, told him
that he had an opportunity to buy Lasky 's interest in

the picture in question, and inquired whether Warner
Brothers would be interested in purchasing Lasky 's

interest if United Artists decided not to keep it. The

officer of Warner Brothers to whom Raftery spoke ex-

pressed the view that if United Artists bought Lasky 's

interest, Warner Brothers would like to negotiate with

L^nited Artists relative to purchasing Lasky 's interest

from United Artists. Raftery expressed his desire to

make a profit on a resale of Lasky 's interest. Raftery

did not deal with Lasky. He dealt only with Lasky 's

attorney. At the time Raftery entered into the contract

of December 4, 1942, to purchase Lasky 's interest he

knew that Lasky was entitled to some distributions of

earnings of the picture in question. He had some idea

of the amount of the accrued earnings due Lasky. At

the time Raftery considered purchasing Lasky 's in-

terest, he knew that the picture "Sergeant York" was
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not in full distribution; the "big cream" of tlie distr

bution bad been taken off with the "pre-release" of tl

picture. He knew that as a picture progresses in di:

tribution, diminishing returns set in and the returi

decrease each month, and that at the time United Ar
ists acquired Lasky's interest in ''Sergeant York," :

was in the phase of declining distribution. Kaftery

mind was made up from the start that United Artis'

would resell Lasky's interest in ''Sergeant York," au

before he agreed with Lasky's attorney to purcha^

Lasky's interest he found out that he could get a pu;

chaser and resell Lasky's interest. He intended makii]

a short profit on a resale of Lasky's interest. (R. 141

144.)

In its order and decision entered after the rehearir

and the taking of additional evidence the Tax Cou:

held that it was not persuaded by the additional ev

dence that it had erred in its original findings of fa<

and conclusions of law, but that the additional evidenc

further supports the conclusions it had previous]

reached. Thus, the Tax Court was of the opinion thj

the additional evidence did not establish that in 19^

any real dispute existed between Lasky and Warn(

Brothers; that this evidence established that the the

president of United Artists gave consideration to tl

possibility of making a resale of Lasky's interest in tl

picture before he concluded the contract of purclia^

with Lasky, and that before he concluded the contra^

he contacted an officer of Warner Brothers and told hi:

that he had an opportunity to pui'chase Lasky's into

est and inquired whether Warner l^rothers would I

interested in i^urchasing from United Artists the h

terest which United Artists contemplated i)ui'chasir
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from Lasky. The Tax Court concluded that the trans-

actiou of United Artists with Lasky and the transaction

of United Artists with Warner Brothers shortly there-

after must be considered together and that although

Lasky may not have been aware of all of the discussions

and considerations of his chief agent, his attorney,

nevertheless the agent's actions must be imputed to

Lasky. (R. 140-141.)

The Tax Court again concluded that Lasky sold his

accrued earnings in the picture amounting to $822,-

857.56 to United Artists at a "discount" of over $17,-

000, and that L'nited Artists collected from Warner
Brothers, Lasky 's share of the accrued earnings to

the extent of $820,000. Thus Warner Brothers acquired

Lasky 's interest for no more than the accrued earn-

ings of that interest. The Tax Court held once more

that it was unable to find in the entire transaction a

sale by Lasky of a capital asset and a capital gain to

Lasky of $805,000. (R. 141.)

Accordingly it sustained, as it had upon the original

hearing, the Commissioner's determinations of defi-

ciency. (R. 141, 144-145.)

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The record amply sustains the Tax Court in con-

cluding that the sum of $805,000 which taxpayer re-

ceived in 1942 is taxable as ordinary income and not

as capital gain. Under the record facts all pajTiients

which taxi^ayer received from Warner Brothers were

ordinary income. Indeed taxpayer reported as ordi-

nary income the sums paid to him by Warner Brothers

during the years 1940 and 1941 including $196,216

which AVarner Brothers paid him in 1941 from his

share of the gross receipts of the distribution of the
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York picture under the so-called
'

' Supplemental Agree

ment" of May 15, 1940.

If the $805,000 paid to taxpayer in 1942 had beei

paid by Warner Brothers (instead of by United Ar
tists) taxpayer would have been required to return tin

payment as ordinary income for any one of the fol

lowing three reasons: (a) Even if the transaction ii

looked upon as a completed sale Lasky had conveyec

all of his rights under the York contract to Warne;

Brothers within much less than the holding j^erioc

under Section 117 of the Internal Revenue Code o

1939. Taxpayer admits the validity of this ground ii

his brief (p. 19) and explains his return in 1941 of th(

$196,216 from his share of the gross receipts on tliii

basis, (b) The Tax Court correctly regarded all th(

agreements with Warner Brothers as making up om

transaction and Lasky 's right to share in the proceed;

of the motion picture as due to his contribution as i

producer and as constituting additional compensatioi

and thus plainly ordinary income, (c) The amoun

which Warner Brothers agreed to pay Lasky for his

rights, namely a percentage of the gross film rental;

of the motion picture, constituted royalties since al

that Lasky acquired from York was a license upoi

which he was obligated to pay royalties to York an(

the arrangement with Warner Brothers was one undei

which Warner Brothers was obligated to pay distinc

royalties to two successive assignors of rights, whicl

were only a license.

The payment to taxpayer of the $805,000 in 1942 wai

the i)ayment of an amount of ordinary income whicl

had already been earned, accrued and acnnnnulated ii

the transaction with Warner Brothers, and the cir
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cumstance that the payment was made by a third party,

United Artists, could not convert this accrued income

into capital. Taxpayer's whole case turns on the cir-

cumstance that the pa>Tnent was made to him not by

Warner Brothers but by United Artists. If such a

contention should be sustained there would be con-

ferred on every taxpayer the power at his own choice

and volition to convert earned ordinary income into

capital gain through the simple device of "selling"

the right to receive ordinary income at a discount to a

third party. Congress in granting the favor of the

capital gain rights authorized no such result. Simply

because a contract may be denoted for some purposes

as "property" does not change ordinary income, which

has accrued under it, into capital. The Tax Court held

taxpaj^er accountable for ordinary income on these past

earned and accrued amounts and on nothing more.

This holding, even assuming, arguendo, there was sepa-

rate reality to the Lasky-United Artists transaction

and that some other "property" was transferred to

United Artists in addition to the accrued and earned

income, is sustained by ample authority. An alleged

"sale" of what has accrued as ordinary income does

not convert accrued income into capital.

Additionally the Tax Court concluded on the facts

that United Artists was a mere intermediary and the

three-party transaction in reality was no more than ter-

mination of the Warner Brothers-Lasky participation

agreement. In reaching this factual conclusion, the

Tax Court on the instant record was certainly not

clearly wrong. The Tax Court based its conclusion on

the testimony of the six witnesses taken at the hearing

and the rehearing, the documentary evidence and the

record as a whole. This question was primarily for
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determination by the trier of the facts, especially sinc(

there was substantial oral testimony and the credibility

to be afforded to the witnesses is peculiarly for th(

fact finder who saw and heard them and i^ossessed the

opportunity to observe their demeanor upon the stand

ARGUMENT

The Record Amply Sustains the Tax Court in Conchiding tha

the Sum of $805,000 Which Taxpayer Received in 1942 L

Taxable as Ordinary Income and Not as Capital Gain

A. Under the record facts all payments tvhich ta.rpa//ci

received from Warner Brothers tvere ordinarj

income

Taxpayer received su])stantial paj^nents from AYar

ner Brothers under the transaction with respect to th(

York photoplay and concededly reported all of thesi

pa>Tnents as ordinary—and not capital, income. Thu!

for the year 1940 taxpayer reported as ordinary inconii

(R. 69) the $40,000 paid to him by Warner Brother;

pursuant to the agreement of May 15, 1940 (unde:

which Lasky sold to Warner Brothers all of his right:

in the York story and all other rights he had acquire(

under the contract with Y^ork of March 23, 1940 (R

65)), as well as the $58,500 paid to him by Warne:

Brothers under the agreement of May 8, 1940 (R. So)

which employed him as producer. Again, in 1941 tax

payer received $196,216.80 from his share of the grosi

receipts of the distribution of the York picture (unde:

the so-called "Supplemental Agreement" of May 15

1940 (R. 67-69)), which he reported in his return foi

1941 as ordinary income (R. 71, 88). Indeed, in hi:

brief (p. 19) taxpayer admits that he

—

reported the income under the contracts witl

Warner Bros, during the year 1941 as ordinarj
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income because at the time of the sale to Warner
Bros., he had not held the property rights in the

contract with Sgt. York for the requisite holding

period so as to be entitled to report the proceeds

of the sale as long-term capital gain.

In other words, even imder taxpayer's own reason-

ing, Lasky was required to return pa^^nents received

from AVarner Brothers in connection with the Sergeant

York transaction as ordinary income, inasmuch as even

if the transaction is looked upon as "a completed sale"

Lasky had conveyed all of his rights to Warner
Brothers within much less than the holding period.

^

(Br. 19.) The implication follows from the concession

contained in taxpayer's own brief that if the $805,000

paid to Lasky in 1942 had been paid by Warner
Brothers (instead of by L^nited Artists) taxpayer

Avould have been required to return the payment as

ordinary income, precisely as he admittedly correctly

returned as ordinary income the $196,216 percentage

of gross rentals of the photoplay received in 1941.

As a matter of fact, however, the Tax Court correctly

regarded all the agreements with Warner Brothers as

making up one transaction (R. 87) and that Lasky 's

right to share in the proceeds of the motion picture

was due to his contribution as a joroducer and con-

stituted additional compensation, thus, for this addi-

tional reason clearly ordinary income, not capital gain

1 Section 117(a) (2) and (4) of the 1939 Code, as it read in 1940,

provided for a holding period of eighteen months; in 1942 this

period had been reduced to six months. See Section 117(a) (2) and

(4), supra. Assuming without conceding that Lasky, having ob-

tained rights from Sergeant York on March 23, 1940, '"sold" them
to Warner Brothers on IMay 15, 1940, he had held them for much
less than the holding period before the purported "sale."
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(R. 88). The Tax Court was plainly warranted on th

record in looking at the transaction as a single int(

grated unit. The so-called employment agreement, a.

though dated May 8, 1940, referred to the subseciuentl

dated agreement of May 15, 1940, under which Warne
Brothers had purchased from Lasky the rights tran^

ferred to him by York. (R. 66.) Besides this emplo}

ment agreement dated May 8, 1940, was under its term

retroactive to April 1, 1940, and Lasky actually r(

ceived $1,500 a week from April 1, 1940. (R. 65-67.

Indeed, under the agreement of May 15, 1940, Lask

received only $40,000 (R. 67), namely, only $15,000 i

excess of the $25,000 he had paid York, not taking int

consideration the traveling and other expenses he ha

incurred in obtaining the contract from York. A(

cordingly, while the so-called "Supplemental Agre(

ment," under which Lasky was to be paid a percentag

of the gross receipts of the photoplay, is a separal

document from the employment agreement, dated Ma
8, 1940, and from the agreement of May 15, 1940, unde

which Lasky received the $40,000 payment (R. 67-69;

the Tax Court surely might infer that all three agree

ments in substance constituted one transaction. Indee

taxpayer's testimony at the hearing fully sustains th

Tax Court's conclusion that the transaction was singl(

(R. 187-188, 199-200.) Submittedly there is warrant i

the record for this factual conclusion and it is nr

clearly wrong.

Hence, the basic character of the transaction \\i\

correctly found by the Tax Court to be one in whic

taxi:>ayer's participation in the gross receipts of th

film rental constituted additional compensation due t

his contribution as a producer and thus i)lainly ordinav
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income. Strauss v. Commissioner, 168 F. 2d 441, 442-

443 (C.A. 2d) certiorari denied, 335 U. S. 858; Sinister

V. Helvering, 121 F. 2d 643 (C.A. 2d) ; ShumUn v. Com-
missioner, 16 T.C. 407.

Further the Tax Court also held that the amount

which Warner Brothers agreed to pay Lasky for his

rights, namely, a percentage of the gross film rentals

of the motion picture, constituted "royalties." All

Lasky had acquired from York was a license to pro-

duce a motion picture and what York was paid consti-

tuted royalties. (R. 64, 86-87.) It is immaterial that

Warner Brothers also had to pay royalties to York.

The arrangement was one under which Warner Brothers

was obligated to ])ay distinct royalties to two successive

assignors of rights, which were only a license. This

result follows from taxpayer's assignment of the York
contract. (R. 87-88.) Sahatini v. Commissioner, 98 F.

2d 753 (C.A. 2d) ; Bohmer v. Commissioner, 153 F. 2d

61 (C.A. 2d), certiorari denied, 328 U.S. 862; Commis-

sioner V. Wodehoiise, 337 U.S. 369.

Accordingly, under any one of the three grounds above

stated payments to Lasky by Warner Brothers for his

share in the gross rentals of the film constituted

ordinary income.

B. The pajiment to taxpayer of the s805,000 1942

teas the payment of an amount of ordinary income

which had already been earned, accrued and ac-

cumidated in the transaction witJi Warner Broth-

ers and the circumstance that the payment was

made hy a third party. United Artists, could not

convert this accrued income into capital.

The finding of the Tax Court is not disputed and the

record abundantly establishes that there was a balance
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of earned income credited, in taxpayer's favor on 1

books of Warner Brothers as of November 28, 19

in the amount of $822,857.56, being the cunudat

amount of taxpayer's share of the gross receipts

the York jDicture, then earned due and owing to hi

(R. 78-79, 88-89, Ex. Z, R. 434.) There was nothi

contingent, indeterminate or tentative about t

amount ; it was taxpayer 's then and there—his eari

share of participation in the gross fihn rentals.

This amxount was plainly subject to his dominion a

control. Indeed in the course of its accumulation

had actually been received by his attorney in 1942

the extent of $570,698.62 and returned. (R. 78.) I

Tax Court surely w^as warranted in inferring tl

after the end of November, 1942, taxpayer could hf

obtained the entire $822,857.56 upon demand,

the Tax Court correctly pointed out (R. 91) this

not a case where indeterminate or future pajanents w<

converted into a lump sum.

Had the $822,857.56, or the lesser $805,000, whi

Lasky actually received from United Artists ab(

December 4, 1942 (R. 80), been paid him by Wan
Brothers, there can be no doubt (see subpoint A, supr

that it would have constituted a receipt of ordina

income; indeed, as already pointed out, taxpaye

brief (p. 19) impliedly concedes as much.

Thus taxpayer's whole case turns on the circumstai

that the j^ayment was made to taxpayer not by Warr
Brothers, but by a third party, United Artists, taxpa}

under date of Deceml^er 4, 1942, having assigned

United Artists his claim against Warner Broth(

for moneys past due as well as all of his interest in 1

original and su])plemental agreements of May 15, 19
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(R. 81-82.) Surely if taxation is, as often said, a

practical matter, the mere assignment of the right to

receive this earned and accrued ordinary income did

not convert the earned income into a capital asset. If

such a contention should be sustained, there would be

conferred on every taxpayer the power at his own

choice and volition to convert earned ordinary income

into capital gain through the simple device of "selling"

the right to receive the ordinary income at a discount

to a third party. By this expedient the taxpayer would

readily save the substantial difference between the

ordinary and capital gain tax rates, the third party

would benefit through the receipt of quick discount

money; only the Government would lose.

Certainly Congress in granting the favor of the

capital gain rates authorized no such result. Indeed,

provisions granting partial tax exemption, such as

Section 117, must be strictly construed and a taxpayer

must bring himself clearly within their terms, as the

present taxpayer has not. Sloane v. Commissioner, 188

F. 2d 254, 259 (C.A. 6th).

Simply because a contact may be denoted for some

purposes as "property" does not change ordinary in-

come, which has accrued under it, into capital or turn

into capital gain an amount paid for the assignment of

ordinary income already owed and due under it. The
statute deals in economic realities, not legal abstrac-

tions.

In October, 1942, two months prior to the Lasky-

United Artists transaction, the picture "had been

pretty well exploited domestically" (R. 142, 325) in

the opinion of taxpayer's accountant, and subsequently

in early December, when United Artists entered the

scene, its president knew that the "big cream" (R. 144,
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371) had been taken off and that it was in the phase <

declining distribution. Taxpayer's representativ

knew (and plainly taxpayer himself knew or mu
be held to have known) before December 4, 1942, th.

more than $805,000 was due him as his share of tl

receipts (R. 90-91, 142, 330-331) ; and the president ^

United Artists knew of these accrued earnings al;

(R. 144,367-368,369-370).

The Tax Court held taxpayer accoinitable for ord

nary income on these past earned and accrued amoun

and on nothing more. This holding, even assumii

arguendo there was separate reality in the Lask

United Artists transaction and that some other "pro

erty" was transferred to United Artists in addition

the accrued and earned income, is sustained by amp

authority {Watson v. Commissioner, 345 U.S. 54

affirming the decision of this Court 197 F. 2d 56). A

alleged "sale" of what has accrued as ordinary incor

does not convert accrued income into capital. Indee

the recent decision of this Court in United States

Snow, 223 F. 2d 103, certiorari denied, 350 U.S. 82

directly supports this principle. There this Cou

said (p. 108) :

However, it is not decisive of the issue he

presented to find that the subject matter proper

bears the capital asset label. It is a fundament

principle of federal tax law that you must rega:

any ordinary income derived from an income-pi

ducing capital asset as ordinary income. Cons

quently, the assignment of accrued ordinary incoi

must be treated separately from the assignment

the capital asset which ]iroduced the income. TV

is not an exception to the I'ule that capital assc



39

held for more than six months shall be given capital

gains tax treatment. It is only when a capital

asset appreciates in value and is subsequently sold,

beyond the six months' period, that the gain realized

may be given capital gains tax treatment imder

Section 117 of the Internal Revenue Code.

The general rule is that a right to receive ordi-

nary income, produced by a capital asset, is not

transmuted into a capital asset by the sale or assign-

ment of the capital asset together with the right

to receive the ordinary income.

In the Snotv case (p. 109) this Court quoted from

and cited with approval the decision of the Sixth Cir-

cuit in Fisher v. Commissioner, 209 F. 2d 513, certio-

rari denied, 347 U.S. 1014, which constitutes further

clear authority for the Commissioner's position here.

See also Hale v. Helvering, 85 F. 2d 819 (C.A. D.C.)

;

Helvering v. Smith, 90 F. 2d 590, 592 (C.A. 2d) ; Rhodes'

Estate V. Commissioner, 131 F. 2d 450 (C.A. 6th);

Shuster v. Helvering, supra, Shumlin v. Commissioner,

supra.

Indeed, taxpayer's contention here would involve ap-

proval of anticipatory arrangements and contracts as

a means of avoiding the ordinary income tax rates,

analogous to devices repeatedly condemned by the Su-

preme Court. Lucas v. Earl, 281 U.S. Ill; Burnet v.

Leininger, 285 U.S. 136; Helvering v. Eubank, 311 U.S.

122. The payment here represented a right to income

and its character as accrued ordinary income is not

changed by the assignment. Harrison v. Schaffner, 312

U.S. 579. See also Hort v. Commissioner, 313 U.S. 28,

where an amount substituting for future rental pay-

ments was held ordinary income. A fortiori in the in-
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slant case the payment which substituted for past an

accrued ordinary income nnist be held taxable as ord

nary income. Indeed, the Tax Court pointed out th;

this is not a case where indeterminate and future ])i\}

ments were converted into a lump sum. (R. 91.)

O'Brien v. Commissioner, 25 T.C. No. 48, decide

November 30, 1955, relied upon by taxpayer (Br. 2-

25) is readily distinguishable. There a producer upo

completion of a film sold one-half of his ten iiercei

interest in its jirofits to the director of the i^icture for

lump sum, but contrary to the record situation, no a

signment of past-due earned and accrued ordinary ii

come was involved. Here on the other hand the a^

crued ordinary income exceeded in amount the sum pai

to and received by the transferor-taxpayer. The T.'i

Court memorandmn decision also cited l)y taxpayc

(Br. 25), Pacific Finance Corp. of Calif v. Coinmi

sioner, decided April 17, 1953 (1953 P-H T.C. ^lem

randum Decisions, par. 53,129) is similarly distinguish

able.

Besides under the facts of the cited O'Brioi case,

there had been any past earnings of the picture to whi(

the producer there was entitled, sucli earnings mig^

not have ben ordinary income in his hands even if pa

by R.K.O., since the situation there was unlike th.

here, where concededly Lasky had conveyed all h

rights to Warner Brothers within mucli less tluni tl

holding period and all his recei])ts from AVarner Brot

ers were ordinary income.



41

C. The Tax Court was not dearly wrong in holding

that United Artists was a mere intermediary and

the three-party transaction was no more than a

termination of the Warner BrotJiers-Lasky par-

ticipation agreement

As discussed in the preceding siibpoint B, even if the

transaction between taxpayer and United Artists is

considered to have independent reality separate from

the subsequent United Artists-Warner Brothers agree-

ment of a few weeks later, the $805,000 payment by

United Artists to taxpayer representing no more than

the accrued ordinary income due him from the gross

rentals did not lose its character as ordinary income

and must be taxable at ordinary income rates. How-
ever, the Tax Court concluded on the basis of the testi-

mony of six witnesses taken at the hearing and rehear-

ing of the documentary evidence and the record as a

whole, that United Artists was a mere intermediary;

that there was no showing of a business purpose to

Lasky in Lasky's arrangement with United Artists;

that the record does not provide any satisfactory ex-

planation for the few days' advance of funds to Lasky,

which United Artists so promptly recouped out of

Lasky's account with Warner Brothers, through War-

ner Brothers' payment to United Artists of $820,000.

This represented a gain to L^nited Artists of $15,000

for a])out twenty days' use of the $805,000, which it had

advanced to Lasky. (R. 90, 140-141.) The Tax Court

concluded that there was no more than an ending of

the Warner Brothers-Lasky agreement and Lasky re-

ceived the accumulated earnings due him and that as

a matter of fact and in reality there was only payment
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of the total accruals to Lasky through an intermediar

(R. 91.)

The evidence warranted the Tax Court in conclu«

ing on the record that taxpayer had failed to establis

that any real dispute existed in 1942 between him ai

Warner Brothers. At the most the record suggests

only that Lasky and his advisers were suspicious th;

possibly grounds existed for challenging Warn<

Brothers' computations and accounting practice ai

procedure in their handling of the release of the fill

(R. 89.) But Lasky did not as much as authorize i

audit of Warner Brothers' accounting records and <

his share in the receipts (R. 89, 140), even though 1

had a clear right to such an accounting, had he so d

sired (R. 68-69). The Tax Court also noted that i

testimony was adduced from an}^ executive of Warm
Brothers about any dispute with Lasky. It conclud(

that Lasky 's testimony did not establish that whatev(

suspicions he may have had crystalized during 19^

into issues constituting a real dispute. (R. 89.) Ii

deed, Lasky continued to work for Warner Brothe:

during eighty-three weeks on various projects fro:

January 11, 1943, to April 24, 1944, receiving $150,5]

as an associate producer. (R. 70.)

In any event the Tax Court was warranted in infe

ring that by the end of 1942 Lasky decided to step ot

of its contract with Warner Brothers and to termina

it. In the agreement he made with United Artists c

December 4, 1942, he authorized United Artists to r^

lease and discharge Warner Brothers from paying an

money due and owing to him and in turn LTnited Artis

in the document it executed with Warner Brothei

on December 22, 1942, did so release and dischar^
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Warner Brothers. (R. 81-84, 89.) Warner Brothers

in turn closed its account with Lasky and paid $820,-

000 in cash to United Artists, charging Lasky with the

$2,857.56 balance to take care of some undisclosed ad-

justments. (R. 79-80, 89-90; Ex. Z, R. 434.)

The Tax Court also found that before he concluded

tlie contract of purchase with Lasky, the president of

United Artists gave consideration to the possibility of

making a resale of Lasky 's interest in the picture to

Warner Brothers, that he had contacted an officer of

Warner Brothers and told him that he had an oppor-

tunity to purchase an interest of Lasky 's and inquired

whether AVarner Brothers would be interested in pur-

chasing it. (R. 140, 143-144.) The president of United

A rtists had made up his mind from the start that United

Artists would resell Lasky 's interest in "Sergeant

York" and before he agreed to purchase Lasky 's in-

terest he found out he could get a purchaser. (R. 44.)

He intended making a short profit on the resale of

Lasky's interests. (R. 143-144.)

As already noted above, in December, 1942, all the

parties knew of Lasky's accrued earnings and also

knew that the picture had been pretty well exploited at

that time and that it was in the phase of declining dis-

tribution. Certainly the Tax Court was justified in

concluding that Lasky could not through this transac-

tion, involving his taking a discount of some $17,000

in the amount of earnings of the picture then due

(R. 141), deprive the Government of taxes totaling

ahnost $450,000.

The question of what the transaction between these

three parties in reality was is a question of fact, and

thus is primarily for determination by the trier of the
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facts. Commissioner v. Court Holding Co., 324 U.

331. The Tax Court's factual findings here susta

ing the Commissioner's determinations are entitled

finality "unless clearly erroneous." Eule 52(a), F^

eral Rules of Civil Procedure ; Internal Revenue C(

of 1954, Section 7482(a) (26^U.S.C. 1952 ed., Su;

II, Sec. 7482). Rule 52(a) further provides: "*

due regard shall be given to the opportunity of

trial court to judge of the credibility of the witnesse

Here there was substantial oral testimony and "

credibility to be afforded to the witnesses, includi

interested witnesses, in view of all the circumstan

of the case, is for the fact finder, who saw and he^

them and possessed the opportunity to observe th

demeanor upon the stand. Grace Bros. v. Comn
sioner, 173 F. 2d 170, 174 (C.A. 9th) ; Joe Balestri

& Co. V. Commissioner, 177 F. 2d 867, 873-874 (C

9th) ; Earle v. Jones, 200 F. 2d 846 (C.A. 9th) ; Gre.

feld V. Commissioner, 165 F. 2d 318 (C.A. 4th) ; K
Underwear Co. v. United States, 127 F. 2d 965 (C

3d), certiorari denied, 317 U. S. 655,

As the Supreme Court said in United States v. Y

low Cab Co., 338 U. S. 338, 341

:

Findings as to the design, motive and iiiti

with which men act depend peculiarly upon

credit given to witnesses by those who see a

hear them. [Italics supplied.]

CONCLUSION

In the event that this Court denies the Commissi(

er's motion to dismiss the petitions for review here

the ground that tliis Court is without jurisdiction,

is alternatively urged that the decisions of the 1
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Court on the merits are correct and sliould be af-

firmed.
"

Respectfully submitted,

Charles K. Eice,

AHrhtrpAssistant Attorney General.

Lee a. Jacksox,

I. Henry Kutz,

Attorneys,

Department of Justice,

Wasliington, D. C.

March, 1956.

- As an alternate question on the merits the Commissioner urged

in the Tax Court that $570,698.62 ordinary income was received

by taxpayer in 1942 or was constructively received (R. 62) through

the payments which Warner Brothers made to taxpayer, but which

were returned (R. 76-78). Inasmuch as the Tax Court resolved

the chief cjuestion in favor of taxpayer, it did not pass upon the

Commissioner's alternate contention. In the event that this Court
should disagree with the Tax Court on the merits it is requested

that the case be remanded to the Tax Court for further considera-

tion and decision on the Commissioner's alternate contention.
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IN THE

United States Court ol Sppeals

For the Ninth Circuit

No. 14,868

Bessie Lasky and Jesse L. Lasky, Petitioners

V.

Commissioner of Internal Revenue, Respondent

On Petitions for Review of the Decisions of the Tax Court of

the United Siates

MEMORANDUM BRIEF ON BEHALF OF PETITION-
ERS IN OPPOSITION TO RESPONDENT'S MOTION
TO DISMISS FOR LACK OF JURISDICTION

SUMMARY OF JURISDICTIONAL FACTS

On November 28, 1949, the Commissioner of Internal

Revenue sent petitioners, by registered mail, notices of

deficiencies, in which he determined that the petitioner,

Bessie Lasky, owed a deficiency in income tax for the

taxable year 1943 in the amount of $224,722.55; and that



the petitioner, Jesse L. Lasky, owed a deficiency for thi

taxable year 1943 in the amount of $224,515.44 (R. 10

14, 62). Thereafter, on January 9, 1950, petitioners dul:

filed appeals from said determination with the Tax Cour

of the United States (R. 7-14). The case was tried befori

the Tax Court on December 10 and 11, 1951, in Los Angeles

California. On April 8, 1954, the Tax Court promulgates

its findings of fact and opinion (R. 62-92) and entered it

decision ordering and deciding that the taxpayers owe thi

deficiencies in income tax for the taxable year 1943 in th

amount as determined by the Commissioner of Interna

Revenue (R. 92-93).

Thereafter, on August 24, 1954, petitioners filed a motio]

for leave to file a motion to vacate the decisions out o

time and a motion to vacate decisions entered April ^

1954 (R. 93-94). On December 13, 1954, the Tax Cour

entered an order vacating and setting aside the decision

of April 8, 1954 and granted the petitioners a furthe

bearing on the merits (R. 135). Thereafter a rehearing

of the case was held in Washington, D. C, on January 2

and January 26, 1955 (R. 300-355). At the rehearing th

testimony of the accountant for the petitioners was takei

for the first time. Also received was the testimony o

Grradwell Sears who w^as, in 1942, the executive vice

president of United Artists, in charge of w^orld-wide dis

tribution of pictures, who had been, prior to October 1941

president of a subsidiary of AVarner Brothers which dis

tributed Warner Brothers pictures. He had been th

distributor of the picture "Sergeant York" for Warne
Brothers. The testimony of the president of United Artist

in 1942 was also taken. Additional testimony of Jesse L

Lasky was received (R. 139-140). On June 30, 1955, thi

Tax Court in the case of each petitioner entered a memo
randum sur order and decision and an order and decisioi

again ordering and deciding upon the rehearing and recon

sideration of the case on the merits that there are defi

ciencies in income tax for the taxable year 1943 ai



determined by the Commissioner of Internal Revenue
(R. 138-145).

Petitions for review were filed on August 10, 1955, to

review the orders and decisions entered by the Tax Court
li on June 30, 1955 (R. 149).

QUESTION PRESENTED

.' Did the Tax Court have discretionary power to vacate

and set aside its decisions of April 8, 1954, and grant peti-

tioners a further hearing on the merits!

ARGUMENT

It is petitioners' position that the Tax Court had dis-

cretionary power to vacate and set aside its decisions of

April 8, 1954, and the mere fact that the statutory period

during which an appeal may be taken had expired did not

deiprive the Tax Court of jurisdiction.

Petitioners are not uimiiudful that some of the cases

cited by the respondent hold that because the statutory

period during which an appeal may be taken has lapsed

deprives the Tax Court or Court of Appeals of jurisdiction.

Compare: Swall v. Commissioner, (CA-9, 1941), 122 F.

(2d) 324, 27 AFTR 845; Denholm S McKay Co. v. Com-
missioner, (CA-1, 1942), 132 F. (2d) 243, 30 AFTR 572.

However, an examination of these cases shows that there

is no controlling reason why the Tax Court, like other

Courts does not have inherent power to control, amend,
open and vacate its decisions to accomplish justice in

accordance with the modern trend. It is the position of the

petitioners that the case of Wayne United Gas Co. v.

Oivens-lllinois Glass Co., (1937) 300 U.S. 131, 81 L. Ed.

557, completely supports their position. There the peti-

tioner on November 25, 1935, filed a petition for a corporate

reorganization under Section 77(b) of the bankruptcy act

as amended. The respondent filed objections to the petition

and a motion to dismiss. On March 2, 1936, the Bankruptcy
Court dismissed the petition. On appeal, the Circuit Court
of Appeals denied the appeal, holding the petitioner should



have proceeded under Section 25(a) of the Banla'uptcy

Act instead of 24(b). Petitioner then presented a petition

to the District Court sitting in banl^ruptcy, praying vacation

of the order of March 2, 1936, and a rehearing and a

review of the matters arising in the proceeding because of

errors committed by the court in dismissing its petition.

The Court granted the petition to vacate the order and for

a rehearing and set aside the order of March 2, 1936, and

granted a rehearing and review. After the rehearing was

held the Court on May 28, 1936 again sustained the respond-

ent's objection and dismissed the petitions. Petitioner

then appealed the order of May 28, 1936, to the Circuit

Court of Appeals under Section 25(a) of the Bankruptcy

Act. The Circuit Court of Appeals on respondent's motion

dismissed the appeal. The Supreme Court held that the

ipower of the Bankruptcy Court to gTant or refuse a rehear-

ing rested in its sound discretion and since in the proper

exercise of that discretion the Court entertained the appli-

cation and reheard the case on the merits, its action again

dismissing the petition for reorganization was a fuial order

and the appeal therefrom was timely. The Supreme Court

opinion in holding that the Bankruptcy Court did not lose

power to vacate the judgment merely upon the lapse of

the statutory period during which an appeal may be taken

completely demolishes the reasoning behind the cases cited

by the respondent as to why a special rule should be appli-

cable to the Tax Court of the United States. There it was
stated: (p. 136)

"In,the alternative, the respondents argue that where,
as here, an adjudication is refused, and the case is

retired from the docket, the requirement that an appeal
shall be perfected within thirty days from the order
of dismissal deprives the court of power to reinstate
and rehear the cause after the expiration of the time
limited for appeal. They insist that the act contem-
plates the speedy disposition of causes in bankruptcy
and therefore fixes a brief period for appealing from
orders therein. To permit the court to rehear a cause
after the time for appeal lias expired, and to enter a



fresh order which is appealable, would, they urge,

tend unduly to extend the proceedings, create uncer-

tainty as to the rights of the debtor and creditors, and
ignore the intent of Congress. But we think the court

has the power, for good reason, to revise its judg-

ments upon seasonable application and before rights

have vested on the faith of its action. Courts of law

and equity have s.uch power, limited by the expiration

of the term at which the judgment or decree was
entered and not by the period allowed for appeal or

by the fact that an appeal has been perfected. There
is no controlling reason for denying a similar power
to a court of bankruptcy or for limiting its exercise

to the period allowed for appeal. The granting of a
rehearing is within the court's sound discretion, and a
refusal to entertain a motion therefor, or the refusal of

the motion, if entertained, is not the subject of appeal.

A defeated party who applies for a rehearing and
does not appeal from the judginent or decree within
the time limited for so doing, takes the risk that he
may lose his right of appeal, as the appb'cation for

rehearing, if the court refuse to entertain it, does not
extend the time for appeal. A\niere it appears that a
rehearing has been granted only for that purpose the

appeal must be dismissed. The court below evidently

thought the case fell within this class. On the con-

trary, the rule which governs the case is that the

banl^ruptcy court, in the exercise of a sound discretion,

if no intervening rights will be prejudiced by its

action, may gTant a rehearing upon application dili-

gently made and rehear the case upon the merits; and
even though it reaffirm its former action and refuse

to enter a decree different from the original one, the

order entered upon rehearing is appealable and the

time for appeal runs from its entry. * * *"

Compare : Pfister v. Northern Illinois Finance Corp., 317

U.S. 144, 87 L. Ed. 147.

In the recent case of Reo Motors, Inc. v. Commissioner,

(CA-6, Feb. 23, 1955) 219 F. (2d) 610, the Court of Appeals

held that the Tax Court had power to vacate and correct

its decisions after the time for appeal had expired. In



support of its opinion it cited with approval the action of

the Tax Court in the instant case, saying

:

''We are of the opinion that the Tax Court should

have granted petitioner leave to file its substantive

motion. Although the Tax Court is not, technically, a

federal court, there has been a consistent and growing
recognition that, as a practical matter, it is a court

exercising inherently judicial functions and having the

necessary judicial powers to carry out such functions.

See e. g. Goldf^mitJi v. United States Board of Tax
Appeals, 270 IT. S. 117 (1926) ; Stern v. Commissioner,

215 F. (2d) 701, 706 (3 Cir. 1954). It would appear
to follow that the Tax Court has power in extraor-

dinary circumstances to vacate and correct its decision

even after it has become final, similar to the jurisdic-

tion of a court to grant a writ of error coram nobis.

Of. United States v. Morgan, 346 U. S. 502 (1954) ;

United States v. Mayer, 235 U. S. 55 (1914); Rule
60(b), Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.

"This jurisdiction was recognized by the Court of

Appeals for the Fifth Circuit in La Floridienne J.

Buttgenbach S Co. v. Commissioner of Internal Reve-
nue, ^63 F. (2d) 630 (1933) ; and very' recently, by the

Tax Court itself in Bessie Lasky, Jesse L. Lasky v.

Commissioner, Tax Court Dockets Nos. 26396 and
26397 (1954). * * * "

The mere fact that Section 1140, Internal Revenue Code,

states when a decision of the Tax Court shall become final

can have no unique significance on the power of the Tax
Court over its decisions or judgments. There comes a

time when the judgment or decision of all courts becomes

final so as to preclude an appeal. For instance, a judgment

or order of a United States District Court becomes final

30 days after its entry unless motions are made subsequent

to its entry which terminate the running of the time for

appeal. See Rule 73(a) of the Federal Rules of Civil

Procedure. However, the inherent power of the District

Court to vacate its judgment after time for appeal has

lapsed cannot be doubted.



Some of the decisions cited by the respondent indicate

that there is some peculiar necessity in Tax Court cases

to know when a decision is "final" in order to inform the

Commissioner when he can make an assessment, or allow

a credit or make a refund. See Denholni S McKay Co. v.

Commissioner, (CA-1, 1942) 132 F. (2d) 243, 30 AFTR
572. This position is not realistic. There is nothing sacred

about an assessment. Assessments, credits, abatements

and refunds of taxes are being- made all the time. For
example, in the case of a jeopardy assessment, the assess-

ment is made and often the tax collected. Yet as the result

of a settlement or a Tax Court decision the Commissioner

may have to allow credits, make abatements or refunds.

No particular administrative problem would arise as the

Commissioner would have the power to make the assess-

ment until the decision was reversed or modified. Until

the decision was reversed or modified on a proper showing,

the assessment would continue in existence. The situation

would be exactly the same as exists on an appeal from the

Tax Court where the taxpayer elects to pay the deficiency

rather than give bond. If the Appellate Court reverses,

the taxpayer receives a refund if he has paid the tax.

Section 1146, Internal Revenue Code of 1939 provides

:

*'Sec. 1146. Refund, Credit, or Abatement of Amounts
Disallowed. In cases where assessment or collection

has not been stayed by the filing of a bond, then if the
amount of the deficiency determined by the Tax Court
is disallowed in whole or in part by the court, the
amount so disallowed shall be credited or refunded to

the taxpayer, without the making of claim therefor, or,

if collection has not been made, shall be abated."

There is no greater necessity for finality in Tax Court

cases than in bankruptcy cases where the rights of a debtor

and creditors are involved. In fact, in Tax Court cases

no rights of third parties will be involved. In the instant

case, no rights of others have vested on the faith of the

Court's decision of April 8, 1954. A United States Dis-
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trict Court in a tax refund suit would have the power to

vacate its judgment under the state of facts that exists in

the case at bar. Consequently, it can be seen that from an

administrative standpoint the fact that a "final" decision

might be reopened or vacated does not create burdensome

uncertainty.

At page 21 of his brief, the respondent states:

"Moreover, if the Tax Court upon redetermination

finds a deficiency, the deficiency shall be assessed and

paid upon notice and demand when the decision of the

Board 'has become finaV.^''

The respondent then cites Section 272(b) of the Internal

Revenue Code and would have this Court believe that the

Commissioner is prohibited from making an assessment

until after the three-month period within which an appeal

may be filed. This is not true. Immediately upon the entry

of a Tax Court decision the Commissioner can make an

assessment. The only way to stay assessment and collec-

tion is by filing a petition for review and giving a bond

under Section 1145, Internal Revenue Code. That section

provides

:

"Sec. 1145. Bond to Stay Assessment and Collection.

Notwithstanding any provisions of law imposing re-

strictions on the assessment and collection of defi-

ciencies, the review under section 1142 shall not operate

as a stay of assessment or collection of any portion of

ithe amount of the deficiency determined by the Tax
Court unless a petition for review in respect to such

portion is duly filed by the taxpayer, and then only

if the taxpayer (1) on or before the time his petition

for review is filed has filed with the Tax Court a bond
in a sum fixed by the Tax Court not exceeding double

the amount of the portion of the deficiency in respect

of which the petition for review is filed, and with surety

approved by the Tax Court, conditioned upon the pay-
ment of the deficiency as finally determined, together

with any interest, additional amounts, or additions to

the tax provided for by law, or (2) has filed a jeopardy



bond under the income or estate tax laws. If as a
result of a waiver of the restrictions on the assessment
and collection of a deficiency any part of the amount
determined by the Tax Court is paid after the filing

of the review bond, such bond shall, at the request of
the taxpayer, be proportionately reduced."

It should also be pointed out that the interpretation of

Section 1140 of the Internal Revenue Code does not mean
that in all situations the decision becomes "final" within

three months from the entry of decision if no petition for

review is filed. In DenhoJm S McKay Co. v. Commissioner,

(CA-1, 1942) 132 F. (2d) 243, 30 AFTR 572, it is stated

at page 576

:

"Despite statutory provisions requiring appeals to

be taken within a stated period 'after the entry of the

judgment' or 'after the judg-ment is rendered' or words
to the same effect, it has long been held that if a peti-

tion for rehearing is seasonably presented and enter-

tained by the court, the time limited for appeal does not
begin to run until the petition is disposed of. [citing

many Supreme Court cases]. The foregoing rule

has been applied to timely petitions for rehearing filed

in the Board of Tax Appeals ; in such cases the period
for filing a petition for court review does not beain
to run until the Board has disposed of the petition for

rehearing. Griififks v. Commissioner, 7 Civ. 1931, 50
F. (2d) 782 ; Bunief v. Lexinqion Ice d Coal Co., 4 Cir.

1938, 62 F. (2d) 906; Helverinfj v. Continental Oil Co.,

1933, 63 App. D. C. 5, 68 F. (2d) 750; Helvering v.

Louis, 1935, 64 App. D. C. 263, 77 F. (2d) 386, 99
A. L. R. 620. * * * "

The point is that Section 1140, Internal Revenue Code,

dealing \nth the finality of decisions is interpreted the same

as other statutes dealing mtli finality of judgments. There-

fore, the cases relied on by the respondent which base their

conclusion on the "peculiar" language of that section are

out of step with Wayne United Gas Co. v. Oivens-Illinois

Glass Co., (1937) 300 U. S. 131, 81 L. Ed. 557.
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As pointed out in Wayne United Gas Co. v. Owens-Illinois

Glass Co., the gTanting of a rehearing was discretionary

with the Tax Court. Petitioners were before the Tax

Court not as a matter of right on their motion to vacate

the decisions but by special leave of Court. The Tax Court

properly exercised its discretion in vacating the decisions

and granting petitioner a further hearing on the merits

since the additional evidence proffered showed the decisions

of the Tax Court to be wrong.

The respondent's brief cites many cases that involve

entirely ditferent factual and procedural situations. For

example, respondent cites and relies on Helvering v. North-

ern Coal Co., (1934) 293 U. S. 191, 79 L. Ed. 281, and

R. Simpson d Co. v. Commissioner, (1944) 321 U. S. 225,

88 L. Ed. 688. These cases involve the question whether

the Supreme Court could g-rant a petition for rehearing

more than 30 days after its mandate had issued or 25 days

after a petition for certiorari had been denied. Tliat is

not the issue in this case.

The respondent argues in his brief that no extraordinary

circumstances appear which warranted the Tax Court to

vacate its decisions of April 8, 1954. This is to say that

the facts did not justify the Tax Court in exercising its

discretion. The facts which justified the Tax Court in

exercising its discretion in vacating its ori^nal decisions

and granting petitioners a further hearing are clearly

set forth in the record. See Appendix B—Statement of

Facts in Support of Motion to Vacate Decisions and for

Rehearing (Eespondent's Brief in Support of Motion for

Lack of Jurisdiction). The petitioners represented to

the Tax Court that the additional evidence would show
that its original opinions and decisions were wrong on the

merits. It is still the petitioners' position that the Tax
Court's opinions and decisions are erroneous and that

the additional evidence and testimony presented at the

rehearing fully support petitioners' position. The Tax
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Court in its orders and decisions of June 30, 1955, (R.

138-145) briefly sets forth the reasons for its action in

vacating the decisions and granting the rehearing.

At page 33 et seq. of his brief, respondent quotes from
the case of Wayne United Gas Co. v, Otvens-Illinois Glass

Co., (1937) 300 U. S. 131, 81 L. Ed. 557, where it is said:

''Where it appears that a rehearing has been granted
only for that purpose [to extend the time for appeal]
tlie appeal must be dismissed."

Respondent contends this principle has instant application

and cites the case of Commissioner v. Realty Operators,

(1941) 118 F. (2d) 286, 26 AFTR 680. There the admitted

purpose of the Court in vacating the decisions was to

enter a new decision from which to appeal. No rehearing

or reconsideration was requested. This case is clearly

distinguishable from the case at bar where the bon^i fides

of the situation is shown by the additional testimony and

documentary evidence which was introduced at the rehear-

ing, the submission of additional briefs, and the Tax Court's

reconsideration of the entire case on the merits and its

subsequent entering of memorandum sur order and deci-

sions in the cases. Under these circumstances, it cannot

be said that the Tax Court merely vacated its original

decision in order to extend the time for appeal. It was
pointed out in the Wayne United Gas Co. case that a de-

feated iparty who applies for a rehearing and does not

appeal within the time limited for so doing, takes the risk

that he may lose his right of appeal, as the application for

rehearing, if the Court refuses to entertain it, does not

extend the time for appeal. From necessity, the petitioners

had to assume this risk in this case. Fortunately they had
good grounds for requesting a further hearing and recon-

sideration of their case on the merits. The Tax Court

exercised its sound discretion and vacated the original

decisions and granted a further hearing and reconsidered

the case on its merits. The mere fact that petitioners from
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necessity were compelled to follow this alternative pro-

cedure does not indicate that the Tax Court's action in

vacating the original decisions was not bona fide.

At page 28 et seq. of his brief, the respondent discusses

the case of Reo Motors v. Commissioner, (CA-6, 1955) 219

F. (2d) 610. He takes the position the case was not cor-

rectly decided by the United States Court of Appeals for

the Sixth Circuit and also attempts to point out certain

factual differences between that case and the case at bar.

Despite this, the Sixth Circuit held that the Tax Court

had power to vacate and correct its decisions after the

time for appeal had expired and cited with approval the

action of the Tax Court in the instant case. Accordingly

it must be admitted that the Reo Motors case is directly

contrary to the position the respondent is urging in this

motion to dismiss.

CONCLUSION

The respondent's motion to dismiss for lack of jurisdic-

tion should be denied since the Tax Court had power to

exercise its sound discretion and vacate its original decision

and grant petitioners a further hearing on the anerits.

Respectfully submitted,

Robert Ash
Carl F. Bauersfeld

1921 Eye Street, N. W.
Washington 6, D. C.

Attorneys for Petitioners.

April 5, 1956.
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No. 14,870

IN THE

United States Court of Appeals

For the Ninth Circuit

RiCHAED Stanley and

Marion L. Taylor,

Appellants,

vs.

United States of America,

Appellee.

BRIEF FOR APPELLEE.

JURISDICTION.

This Coui*t has jurisdiction of this case under Sec-

tion 2255 of Title 28 United States Code.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE.

Appellant Richard Stanley was convicted in Crim-

inal No. 33907 on one count of sale of 18 grains of

heroin in violation of the Harrison Narcotic Act and

one count of concealment of the heroin in violation of

the Jones-Miller Act. In Criminal No. 33903 he was

convicted on one count of sale of 37 grains of heroin



in violation of the Harrison Narcotic Act and one

count of concealment of the heroin in violation of the

Jones-Miller Act. Appellant Richard Stanley and

appellant Marion L. Taylor were both convicted in

Criminal No. 33902 with the sale of 1% grains of

cocaine in violation of the Harrison Narcotic Act.

Appellant Taylor received a 5-year sentence and a

fine of $100. Appellant Stanley received 5-year sen-

tences on all counts in the three indictments of which

he was convicted plus a $500 fine. The 5-year terms

in Criminal Nos. 33903 and 33907 are to run concur-

rently, and the 5-year sentence in Criminal No. 33902

is to run consecutive to the terms of imprisonment on

the other two indictments for a total sentence of

ten years.

Appellant Taylor first applied for relief under Sec-

tion 2255 of Title 28 United States Code on January

26, 1955. On that same date United States District

Judge George B. Harris denied the motion. Applica-

tion was made to this Court for permission to appeal

in forma pauperis from this decision. A per curiam

opinion of this Court denied permission to appeal in

forma pauperis after the court below had certified that

the appeal was not taken in good faith. Taylor v.

United States (C.A. 9, 1955), 221 F.2d 228. There-

after, appellant Taylor made a second motion to

vacate under the provisions of Section 2255 of Title

28 United States Code. This motion consisted of a

summary of petitioner's views of the evidence at the

trial. Numerous contentions of error were made. On
June 29, 1955 United States District Judge George



B. Harris denied appellant's motion to vacate. Appeal

was then made to this Court.

On September 20, 1954 appellant Richard Stanley

moved to vacate his sentence under Section 2255 of

Title 28 United States Code. On September 22, 1954

United States District Judge George B. Harris denied

appellant's motion. It does not appear that appeal

was taken from this order. Thereafter, appellant

Stanley made a second motion to vacate under Sec-

tion 2255 of Title 28 United States Code. This motion

was denied on July 6, 1955. Appeal was made to this

Court from that order.

QUESTION PRESENTED.

Is the sentencing court required to entertain a

second motion under Section 2255 of Title 28 United

States Code?

ARGUMENT.

Both appellants, prior to the orders which fonn the

subject of their appeal in this case, were denied re-

lief under motions made pursuant to Section 2255 of

Title 28 United States Code. Section 2255 provides

that

''the sentencing court shall not be required to

entertain a second or successive motion for similar

relief on behalf of the same prisoner."

This Court has held that a court is without juris-

diction to entertain a successive motion for relief



under Section 2255 of Title 28 United States Code.

Winhoven v. Swope (C.A. 9, 1952), 195 F.2d 181, 183.

This principle was recently reaffirmed in another deci-

sion involving Winhoven. Winhoven v. United States

(C.A. 9, 1955), 221 F.2d 793. In U^iited States v. Hay-

man (1952), 342 U.S. 205, the court upheld the con-

stitutionality of Section 2255. The court below was

clearly not required and was without jurisdiction to

grant the relief prayed for by appellants.

Both appellant Taylor and appellant Stanley are

attempting to relitigate their cases before this Court.

A jury passed upon appellants' contention. The court

below held that the evidence was sufficient for their

conviction. Appellants may not constitute this Court

as a new jury to retry their cases. Motions under Sec-

tion 2255 are in the nature of a collateral attack of

the judgment. No contention is made in either peti-

tion justifying collateral impeachment of the jury's

verdict. The judgment of the District Court should

be affirmed.

Dated, San Francisco, California,

November 9, 1955.

Lloyd H. Burke,
United States Attorney,

Richard H. Foster,
Assistant United States Attorney,

Attorneys for Appellee.
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No. 14880

IN THE

United States Court of Appeals
FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT

In the Matter of

The Bridgford Company, a Corporation,

Bankrupt.

Paul W. Sampsell, Trustee in Bankrupcty for the Es-

tate of The Bridgford Company, a Corporation, Bank-

rupt,

Appellant,

vs.

Hugh H. Bridgford,

Appellee.

APPELLANT'S OPENING BRIEF.

This is an appeal from an order after hearing on mo-

tion to modify an order made by Honorable Ben Harrison,

United States District Judge, on August 20, 1954, and

on which prior order the appellant seeks a review and

reversal as well as the amended order.

The appellant is the Trustee in Bankruptcy of the

Bridgford Company, a corporation, bankrupt. The ap-

pellee is Hugh H. Bridgford, who was the president and

a director and a major stockholder of the Bridgford Com-

pany, and during the bankruptcy was a court-appointed



manager of the Bridgford Company. The real question

involved here is whether Mr. Bridgford is going to be

permitted to take advantage of his fiduciary position and

obtain a substantial portion of the assets of his bankrupt

corporation as against the interest of his creditors gen-

erally.

The appeal from the original order, although taken

more than thirty days after its entry, is taken under the

authority of Wayne United Gas Co. v. Owens-Illinois

Glass Co., 300 U. S. 131, for the reason that the District

Court entertained the motion of the Trustee to reconsider

and clarify the original order, and made a new order

which w^as even more disastrous to the bankrupt estate

than the original order. Hence this appeal.

Jurisdiction.

The original jurisdiction of the Bankruptcy Court was

invoked under Section 2-a, Subdivision 1 of the National

Bankruptcy Act by the debtor filing its original voluntary

petition under Chapter XI of the National Bankruptcy

Act on April 25, 1947, and its subsequent adjudication

by the Referee. The jurisdiction of this Court is in-

voked under Section 25-a of the National Bankruptcy Act,

The Facts.

In outlining the facts in this case, we are taking as

true, the facts found by the Referee, the original trier of

fact, in connection with this controversy. The reversal

by the District Judge is based purely on his conclusion

that the Referee had erred in subordinating the claim of

Hugh H. Bridgford, president of the bankrupt corpora-

tion, to the rights of creditors whose produce had en-

riched the estate during Bridgford's management under
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the supervision of the Bankruptcy Court, and a substantial

portion of the proceeds of which went to Bridgford after

he had learned that the Referee was going to adjudicate

The Bridgford Company a bankrupt. We submit that

the Referee was right and the District Judge erred both

in overruling the Referee on the question of subordina-

tion and in according this unfaithful officer a position of

priority over claims accrued on or before February 2,

1948, and placing it in a priority over claims accruing on

or after February 3, 1948, and later by his Order dated

May 23, 1955, giving the Bridgford claim priority over

all claims and indebtedness whether incurred or occurring

either before or after February 2, 1948 (except adminis-

trative costs and expenses).

On April 25, 1947, The Bridgford Company filed a

voluntary petition in the United States District Court for

the Southern District of California, Southern Division,

seeking relief under Chapter XL The debtor was per-

mitted to remain in possession of its assets, the Court re-

taining jurisdiction until the consummation of the Plan.

[See Referee's Certificate on Review, R. p. 130.] One

of the Court-appointed managers in charge of the bank-

rupt's assets and funds was the Appellee, Hugh H. Bridg-

ford. Bridgford was president of the debtor corporation.

[See Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, etc., R. p.

113.]

During the course of administration under Chapter XI,

the Bankruptcy Court authorized the issuance of $30,-

000.00 worth of Receiver's or Debtor's certificates^ which

^In this brief these certificates may be referred to interchangeably

as "Receiver's" Certificates and "DelDtor's" Certificates. Both desig-

nations refer to the same evidence of debt.



were purchased by one R. H. Hadley. [See Referee's

Findings of Fact, etc., Finding II, R. p. 111.] These

certificates were not a Hen against the assets of the

debtor's estate but were given priority in payment as

against indebtedness existing at the time of their issue.

[See Finding III, R. p. 111.]

On or about July 8, 1949, a petition was filed by three

creditors requesting the adjudication of The Bridgford

Company as a bankrupt, or a dismissal of the proceedings

imder Chapter XI. [See Finding VI, R. p. 112.] Hear-

ings were had on this petition and concluded on Novem-

ber 4, 1949. The Court announced that it was going to

find the debtor in default under its Plan of Arrangement,

and that it would order an adjudication in bankruptcy.

This announcement was made in the presence of the Ap-

pellee and the other Court-appointed managers. [See Find-

ing VI, R. p. 112.]

After the adjournment of the hearing at which the

Referee announced his intention to adjudicate the debtor

a bankrupt, Bridgford proceeded to protect himself in con-

nection with the payment of these debtor's certificates.

Owing to the intervention of a week end it took three

days or more for the preparation of a formal written

order of adjudication, but in the meantime respondent

Bridgford was anything but idle. On November 7, 1949,

he presented a petition for an order authorizing him to

pay out the funds represented by the debtor's certificates

theretofore issued, on which there remained a balance of

$25,996.40 principal and interest. [See Finding VIII,
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R. p. 115.] He failed to disclose to the Referee that he

had acquired these debtor's certificates gratis, and the

Referee, being deceived by Bridgford's concealment of

facts, to which he owed the Court a disclosure, signed an

order authorizing their payment. [See Finding IX, R.

p. 114.] Had the Referee been informed that Bridgford,

president of the bankrupt corporation and a trusted officer

of the Court, had acquired these certificates without pay-

ing anything for them, he would never have signed the

order authorizing their payment. [See Finding IX, R.

p. 114.] The order of adjudication was entered on No-

vember 8, 1949. Paul W. Sampsell was appointed Trus-

tee, and upon ascertaining the fact that the president of

the debtor in possession had paid himself in full on

debtor's certificates acquired by him for nothing, and out

of money accumulated in the estate from the proceeds of

processed raw materials purchased from farmers and un-

paid for, sought by appropriate petition to get the money

back from Bridgford. [See Findings IX, X and XI,

R. pp. 114-116, inch] When Bridgford got through pay-

ing himself and a few others he had left, in this grossly

insolvent estate the small sum of $60.00. [See Finding

VII, R. p. 113.] Mr. Sampsell, as Trustee, inherited ex-

penses of administration, liabilities to various Oregon

farmers for produce purchased during the Chapter XI

proceedings, amounting to $100,000.00 or more, in ad-

dition to the liabilities owed prior to the filing of the

voluntary petition. [See Finding XII, R. p. 116.]

The turnover proceeding directed against Bridgford

came on for hearing commencing June 12, 1953, after



a trial before the Referee, and findings of fact and con-

clusions of law and a turnover order against Hugh Bridg-

ford were entered. The order provided that Bridgford

be allowed a general claim against the bankrupt estate in

the sum of $30,000.00 upon repayment by him to the

bankrupt estate of the sum of $25,996.40 which he had

paid himself, his claim, however, to be subordinated to

the payment of all claims and indebtedness against the

bankrupt estate, including the expenses of administration.

[See findings of fact, conclusions of law and order after

hearing on objections of trustee to claim of Hugh H.

Bridgford for $30,000.00, R. p. 110, et seq.] Bridgford,

feeling aggrieved by the Referee's order, took a review.

Originally, the review was before Judge Jacob Wein-

berger at San Diego, but because of calendar conditions,

was heard and determined by Judge Ben Harrison. The

order of the Referee requiring Bridgford to turn over

his ill-gotten gains and subordinating his claims was

modified by the District Judge, and no appeal was taken

from that order by the Trustee. The order, however,

was somewhat vague, and the Trustee, being in doubt as

to just what course he should pursue, filed a petition with

the Judge seeking clarification and modification of the

original order in question. [R. p. 145 ct seq.] The Court

entertained the Trustee's petition, heard argument thereon,

and proceeded to modify the order in a more drastic man-

ner than before. [R. p. 148.] In the modified order,

the District Court accorded priority to the claim of

Bridgford over all claims and indebtedness (including

the claims of the Oregon farmers) excepting, however,

the fees, costs and expenses of administration. The Trus-

tee took his appeal within thirty days after the entry of

the second order which superseded and modified the origi-

nal.
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ARGUMENT POINTS AND AUTHORITIES.

The first question which will naturally arise is whether

or not the appeal taken from the District Court's order

after hearing on motion to modify order on review will

encompass the original order entered by the District Court

on August 20, 1954. We submit that it does. The order

of August 20, 1954, modifying the Referee's order, left

a doubt as to the disposition or status of Bridgford's

claim. The Trustee filed a motion to clarify and correct

findings of fact, conclusions of law and order modifying

order of Referee. The District Court set the matter

for hearing and heard it on April 11, 1955. Thereafter,

he made his order after hearing on motion to modify

order on review, placing Bridgford's claim in a prior

position to all claims and indebtedness incurred after Feb-

ruary 3, 1948, including the claims of the Oregon farmers.

The Trustee took a timely appeal from this order, and we

submit that under the rule laid down by the Supreme

Court of the United States in Wayne United Gas Com-

pany V. Owens-Illinois Glass Co., 300 U. S. 131, 81 L.

Ed. 557, the appeal from the clarified order was timely,

and the Trustee's time to appeal was tolled. We quote

from the Supreme Court's decision in the Wayne United

Gas Company case (at p. 561)

:

"On the contrary, the rule which governs the case

is that the bankruptcy court, in the exercise of a

sound discretion, if no intervening rights will be

prejudiced by its action, may grant a rehearing

upon application diligently made and rehear the case

upon the merits; and even though it reaffirm its

former action and refuse to enter a decree different

from the original one, the order entered upon rehear-

ing is appealable and the time for appeal runs from

its entry. The District Court's action conformed to

MM
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these conditions. Two days after the Circuit Court

of Appeals dismissed the petition for allowance of

appeal from the original order of March 2, 1936,

petitioner notified respondents of its intention to

apply for rehearing. Prompt application was made
and the cause was promptly heard. A supplemental

petition was presented and entered upon the files by

leave of court. The original, the amended, and the

supplemental petition were considered upon the

merits, and the court made findings and announced

conclusions of law with respect thereto. There is

no indication that the petition for rehearing was not

made in good faith or that the court received it for

the purpose of extending petitioner's time for appeal.

The court found that no rights had intervened which

would render it inequitable to reconsider the merits.

There was no abuse of sound discretion in granting

the motion and reconsidering the cause.

"The judgment is reversed and the cause is re-

manded to the Circuit Court of Appeals for further

proceedings in conformity to this opinion.

"Reversed."

The Supreme Court based its ruling, that the time for

appeal ran from the entry of the subsequent order on re-

hearing, on the following authorities under footnote 13:

"Compare Aspen Min. & Smelting Co. v. Billings,

supra (150 U. S. p. 37, 37 L. ed. 988, 14 S. Ct. 4)

;

Voorhees v. John T. Noye Mfg. Co., supj^a (151

U. S. p. 137, 38 L. ed. 102, 14 S. Ct. 295) ; Citizens

Bank v. Opperman, 249 U. S. 448, 450, 63 L. ed.

701, 702, 39 S. Ct. 330; Morse v. United States,

supra (270 U. S. p. 154, 70 L. ed. 519, 46 S. Ct.

241)."
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The Appellee, Hugh H. Bridgford, Was Guilty of

Faithless Conduct Both as an Officer of the Bank-

rupt Corporation and as Debtor in Possession

Appointed by the Bankruptcy Court, and the Ref-

eree Was Correct in Requiring Him to Pay Back
the Money He Had Appropriated Unto Himself

and to Subordinate His Claim to All Claims and

Indebtedness, Including Costs and Expenses, of

Said Bankrupt Estate.

We believe that the conduct of ]\Ir. Bridgford was

reprehensible in the extreme and deserved condemnation

on the part of the District Court rather than permitting

him to have a position of priority over the Oregon farm-

ers. Bridgford was president of the bankrupt corpo-

ration. As such he was permitted by the Bankruptcy

Court to function as debtor in possession under Chapter

XI of the Bankruptcy Act, Section 342.

Under Section 1911 of 18 U. S. C. A. he was required

under sanction of criminal penalties to operate the prop-

erty in his possession in accordance with the requirements

of valid laws of the State in which the property was

situated, in the same manner that the owner or possessor

thereof would be bound to do if in possession thereof.

A portion of the property in question was located in the

State of California, and the bankrupt was and is a corpo-

ration doing business in the State of California. Bridg-

ford was therefore required under Section 1911 of 18

U. S. C. A. to manage the property under his control in

accordance with the law of California. What restrictions

were placed upon him both as an officer of the bankrupt

corporation and an officer of the Bankruptcy Court ? That

Bridgford in his capacity as manager for the debtor in

possession was an officer of the Court cannot be gainsaid.

HiflMaaiiH
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Under Section 343 of Chapter XI, he had the right

and power, subject to the control of the Court, to operate

the business and manage the property of the debtor dur-

ing such period, Hmited or indefinite, as the Court might

from time to time fix.

As far back as 1856, the Supreme Court of CaHfornia

laid down definite rules governing the conduct of persons

in a fiduciary capacity.

In Page v. Naglee, 6 Cal. 241, at 245, the Supreme

Court said:

"It is a familiar principle in law, that one who
is a trustee, or who stands in a situation of trust

and confidence, cannot purchase or deal with the

subject of the trust, neither can he purchase debts

due, to be paid out of the trust estate, nor place

himself in an attitude of antagonistic to the trust.

The purchase by the defendant of the one thousand

dollars indebtedness of Page, Bacon & Co., and the

judgment obtained in the name of S. C. Hastings, if

not a fraud in fact, was in violation of his duties as

a trustee of said firm, and it makes no difference in

this respect, whether the instrument conveying the

property to himself and Parrott was a deed of trust

or mortgage, or whether the same was void or not."

Following this comes a long line of decisions of the

Supreme Court of California, which rigidly circumscribe

the rights of a fiduciary to acquire property entrusted to

him or to purchase claims against his trust at a discount

and enforce such claims for the full amount. In the

case of Bonney v. Tilley, 109 Cal. 346, the Supreme Court

of California, quoting from Cook on Stock and Stock-

holders, Section 660, incorporated this principle into its

decision

:

"In Cook on Stock and Stockholders, section 660,

it is said: 'It is a fraud on the corporation and on
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corporate creditors for the directors to buy up at a

discount the outstanding debts of the corporation and

compel it to pay them the full face value thereof.

In such a case the directors may be compelled to turn

over to the corporation the evidences of indebtedness

upon being paid the money which they gave for the

In Wickersham v. Crittenden, 93 Cal. 17, the Supreme

Court of California said (at p. 29)

:

''The directors of a corporation hold a fiduciary

relation to the stockholders, and have been intrusted

by them with the management of the corporate prop-

erty for the common benefit and advantage of each

and every stockholder, and by their acceptance of

this office they preclude themselves from doing any

act or engaging in any transaction in which their

private interest will conflict with the duty they owe

to the stockholders, and from making any use of

their power or of the corporate property for their

own advantage. (Cook on Stocks and Stockholders

sec. 648; Morawetz on Private Corporations, sec

516; Cumberland Coal Co. v. Sherman, 30 Barb. 571

Hoyle V. Plattsburgh & M. R.R. Co., 54 N. Y. 328

13 Am. Rep. 598; Barnes v. Brown, 80 N. Y. 535

San Diego v. San Diego etc. R.R. Co., 44 Cal. 106

Wilbur V. Lynde, 49 Cal. 290, 19 Am. Rep. 645

Farmers' etc. Bank v. Downey, 53 Cal. 466, 31 Am.

Rep. 62.) For the reason that it is against public

policy to permit persons occupying fiduciary relations

to be placed in such a position that the influence of

selfish motives may be a temptation so great as to

overpower their duty and lead to a betrayal of their

trust, the rule is unyielding that a trustee shall not,

under any circumstances, be allowed to have any

dealings in the trust property with himself, or ac-
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quire any interest therein. Courts will not permit

any investigation into the fairness or unfairness of

the transaction, or allow the trustee to show that

the dealing was for the best interest of the bene-

ficiary, but will set the transaction aside, at the mere

option of the cestui que trust. (Story's Eq. Jur.,

sec. 322; Davoue v. Fanning, 2 Johns. Ch. 252;

Taussig V. Hart, 58 N. Y. 428; Elevated R.R. Case,

11 Daly 486; Michoud v. Girod, 4 How. 503; Davis

V. Rock Creek, 55 Cal. 364; 36 Am. Rep. 40.) 'So

strictly is this principle adhered to, that no question

is allowed to be raised as to the fairness or unfair-

ness of a contract so entered into. It obviously is

or may be impossible to demonstrate how far, in

any particular case, the terms of such a contract

have been the best for the interest of the cestui que

trust which it was possible to obtain. It may some-

times happen that the terms on which a trustee has

dealt, or attempted to deal, with the estate or in-

terests of those for whom he is a trustee have been

as good as could be obtained from any other person;

they may even at the time have been better, but

still, so inflexible is the rule that no inquiry on that

subject is permitted.' (Aberdeen R'y Co. v. Blaikie,

1 Macq. 461.) It is declared in the Civil Code, sec.

2229: 'A trustee may not use or deal with the trust

property for his own profit, or for any other pur-

pose unconnected with the trust in any manner.'
"

Again in Pacific Vinegar and Pickle Works v. Smith,

145 Cal. 352, the Court said:

"These authorities lay down two propositions: 1.

That an expressed contract cannot be entered into

by a director with himself relative to the trust prop-

erty; and 2. That the court will not permit any in-

quiry into the question of the honesty or fairness of

the transaction.
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"The philosophy of this rule is quite apparent, and

its inflexibility is the strongest safeguard which the

law can offer for the protection of the interests of

the beneficiary. The great purpose of the law is to

secure fidelity in the agent. When one undertakes

to deal with himself in different capacities—individual

and representative—there is a manifest hostility in

the position he occupies. His duty calls upon him

to act for the best interests of his principal; his self-

interest prompts him to make the best bargain for

himself. Humanity is so constituted that when these

conflicting interests arise, the temptation is usually

too great to be overcome, and duty is sacrificed to

interest. In order that this temptation may be

avoided, or, if indulged in, must be at the peril of

the trustee, it has been wisely provided that the

trustee shall not be permitted to make or enforce

any contract arising between himself as trustee and

individually with reference to any matter of the

trust, nor will the court enter into any examination

of the honesty of the transaction."

In the Pacific Vinegar Works case, the Supreme Court

of California based its condemnatoin of a fiduciary deal-

ing with trust property on behalf of himself on the fol-

lowing California cases:

Davis V. Rock Creek etc. Mining Co., 55 Cal. 359;

Sims V. Petahtma Gas Co., 131 Cal. 659;

Aberdeen Ry. Co. v. Blakie, 1 Macq. H. L. 461;

Miinson v. Syracuse etc. R.R. Co., 103 N. Y. 74.

Summarzing on page 366 of the Opinion, the Court

said:

"So harmonious is the law on this subject that

authorities might be cited indefinitely, but reference

is made only to those in this state where the principles

have been discussed, reiterated, and approved."
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The Court then proceeds to cite eleven more cases in sup-

port of the principle, with which we will not burden this

Court.

See also:

Estate of Howard, 284 P. 2d 966.

In the case at Bar, Bridgford acquired these debtors'

certificates for nothing. His duty as a fiduciary required

under the rule laid down in Bonney v. Tilley, 109 Cal.

346, at 352, that he turn over to the estate these evi-

dences of indebteness, instead of hastily procuring the

countersignature of the Referee on a check to him for

the full amount, without disclosing to the Referee that

he had acquired these certificates which he sought to en-

force against the estate, without any consideration what-

soever.

Nor are the Federal Courts one whit more tolerant

toward such dealings.

In the Matter of the Van Sweringen Company, 119 F.

2d 231 (C. A. 6th), in cutting down a claim asserted

by the Van Sweringen Brothers from $8,177,023.99 to

the amount of $1.00 plus interest, and another claim of

$13,787,000.00 to $887.00 plus interest, and a third claim

for $1,348,614.99 to $2.00 plus interest, the Court said:

"We think the District Court correctly held that

the 'Midamerica Corporation acquired and holds

these notes, bonds and securities as Trustee for the

respective debtors whose obligations or assets they

were,' and that 'the amounts paid for the notes and

bonds measure the extent of its claims against these

debtors.'

"From the manner and under the circumstances

in which, in association with outside enterprisors, the
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Van Sweringens, as directors of insolvent corpora-

tions, purchased these claims against their cestui que

trustent, the debtors, herein, at substantially less than

real values, equity and good conscience demand that

the claims of their corporate creature, Midamerica

(predecessor to appellant), be limited to the amounts

actually paid by it for the notes and bonds of the

insolvent corporations. See, Bonney v. Tilley, 109

Cal. 346, 42 P. 439; In re McCrory Stores Corpora-

tion, D. C, 12 F. Supp. 267; Farwell v. Pyle-

National Electric Headlight Co., 289 111. 157, 124

N. E. 449, 10 A. L. R. 363; Lingle v. National

Insurance Co., 45 No. 109; Canton Roll & Machine

Co. V. Rolling Mill Co., 4 Cir., 168 F. 465; Higgins

V. Lansingh, 154 111. 301, 40 N. E. 362; Lonsdale

V. Speyer, 1936, 249 App. Div. 133, 291 N. Y. S.

495; Lomita Land & Water Co. v. Robinson, 154

Cal. Z6, 97 P. 10, 18 L. R. A., N. S. 1106.

**As expressed by Chief Judge Cardozo in Mein-

hard v. Salmon, 249 N. Y. 458, 464, 164 N. E. 545,

546, 62 A. L. R. 1 ; 'Many forms of conduct permis-

sible in a workaday world for those acting at arm's

length, are forbidden to those bound by fiduciary

ties. A trustee is held to something stricter than

the morals of the market place. Not honesty alone,

but the punctilio of an honor the most sensitive, is

then the standard of behavior. As to this there has

developed a tradition that is unbending and inveter-

ate. Uncompromising rigidity has been the attitude

of the courts of equity when petitioned to undermine

the rule of undivided loyalty by the "distintegrating

erosion" of particular exceptions . . . Only thus

has the level of conduct for fiduciaries been kept at

a level higher than that trodden by the crowd. It

will not consciously be lowered by any judgment of

this court.' We uphold the standard of this doc-

trine. . . .
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''Where the directors of a corporation, contrary

to their fiduciary duty, have made a personal profit

in their deaHngs with the corporation, equity will

compel them to account to the corporation for such

profits made at its expense. . . .

"It is apparent here that the cupidity of persons

in a fiduciary position has caused them to serve

themselves in preference to those whom it was their

duty to serve. Such dereliction is forbidden by just

principles of law."

Also, in the case of Los Angeles Lumber Products Co.,

46 Fed. Supp. 77, Judge Jenney of this District, held

that the recovery on bonds purchased by a fiduciary of

the corporation during insolvency should be limited to

the amount actually paid therefor. (To the same efifect

see: Canton Roll & Machine Co., 168 Fed. 465; Martin

V. Chambers, 214 Fed. 769.)

On the subject of subordination of claims of officers,

directors and stockholders, and the equitable powers of

the bankruptcy court in connection therewith, the Supreme

Court of the United States, in the case of Pepper v.

Litton, 308 U. S. 295, 60 S. Ct. 238, speaking through

Justice Douglas, said:

"That equitable power also exists in passing on

claims presented by an officer, director, or stock-

holder in the bankruptcy proceedings of his corpo-

ration. The mere fact that an officer, director, or

stockholder has a claim against his bankrupt corpo-

ration or that he has reduced that claim to judgment

does not mean that the bankruptcy court must accord

its pari passu treatment with the claims of other

creditors. Its disallowance or subordination may be

necessitated by certain cardinal principles of equity

jurisprudence. A director is a fiduciary. Twin-Lick
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Oil Company v. Marbury, 91 U. S. 587, 588. So

is a dominant or controlling stockholder or group of

stockholders. Southern Pacific Company v. Bogert,

250 U. S. 483, 492. Their powers are powers in

trust. See Jackson v. Ludeling, 21 Wall. 616, 624.

Their dealings with the corporation are subjected to

rigorous scrutiny and where any of their contracts

or engagements with the corporation is challenged

the burden is on the director or stockholder not only

to prove the good faith of the transaction but also to

show its inherent fairness from the viewpoint of the

corporation and those interested therein. Geddes v.

Anaconda Copper Mining Company, 254 U. S. 590.

599. The essence of the test is whether or not under

all the circumstances the transaction carries the ear-

marks of an arm's length bargain. If it does not,

equity will set it aside. While normally that fiduci-

ary obligation is enforceable directly by the corpo-

ration, or through a stockholder's derivative action,

it is, in the event of bankruptcy of the corporation,

enforceable by the trustee. For that standard of

fiduciary obligation is designed for the protection of

the entire community of interests in the corpora-

tion—creditors as well as stockholders.

"As we have said, the bankruptcy court in passing

on allowance of claims sits as a court of equity.

Hence these rules governing the fiduciary responsi-

bilities of directors and stockholders come into play

on allowance of their claims in bankruptcy. In the

exercise of its equitable jurisdiction the bankruptcy

court has the power to sift the circumstances sur-

rounding any claim to see that injustice or unfairness

is not done in administration of the bankrupt estate.

And its duty so to do is especially clear when the

claim seeking allowance accrues to the benefit of an

officer, director, or stockholder. That is clearly the
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power and duty of the bankruptcy courts under the

reorganization sections. In Taylor v. Standard Gas

& Electric Co., 306 U. S. 307, 38 Am. B. R. (N. S.)

692, this court held that the claim of Standard against

its subsidiary (admittedly a claim due and owing)

should be allowed to participate in the reorganiza-

tion plan of the subsidiary only in subordination to

the preferred stock of the subsidiary. This was based

on the equities of the case—the history of spoliation,

mismanagement, and faithless stewardship of the

affairs of the subsidiary by Standard to the detri-

ment of the public investors. Similar results have

properly been reached in ordinary bankruptcy pro-

ceedings. Thus, salary claims of officers, directors

and stockholders in the bankruptcy of 'one-man' or

family corporations have been disallowed or subordi-

nated where the courts have been satisfied that al-

lowance of the claims would not be fair or equitable

to other creditors. And that result may be reached

even though the salary claim has been reduced to

judgment. It is reached where the claim asserted is

void or voidable because the vote of the interested

director or stockholder helped bring it into being or

where the history of the corporation shows domi-

nancy and exploitations on the part of the claimant."

Again, in the case of Sampsell v. Imperial Paper &
Color Corporation, 313 U. S. 215, 45 A. B. R. (N. S.)

454, the court said:

'The power of the bankruptcy court to subordinate

claims or to adjudicate equities arising out of the re-

lationship between the several creditors is complete."

(Citing authorities.)

The authorities on this subject are so voluminous and

the law is so well established that it seems unnecessary to
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impose on the time of the court by citing additional au-

thorities on this point.

The most recent case before this Court involving em-

ployees of the Bankruptcy Court is the case of Donovan

& Schuenke, et al. v. Sampsell, as Trvistee, et al., 226 F.

2d 804. In that case, one D. J. Miller was president of

Ridgecrest Development Co., a bankrupt. In the course

of the administration, he procured an order from the

Referee in charge of the proceeding, authorizing him, in

the interests of economy of administration, to collect rents

on certain income properties belonging to the bankrupt

estate, and remit them to the Trustee. He was to receive

a small compensation for this work. When the property

came up for sale in open Court, he asked the Referee if

there would be any objection to his making a bid or be-

coming a purchaser. The Referee, with knowledge that

Miller had done some work for the bankrupt estate, saw

no reason why Miller's money was not as good as anyone

else's, and permitted him to make a bid. Miller was the

successful high bidder and the sale was confirmed to him.

The time to review the order of confirmation expired, and

several months thereafter certain creditors of the bank-

rupt corporation and certain stockholders attacked the

sale as being void and in violation of Section 154 of

Title 18, U. S. C. A. The Referee denied the petition of

the creditors and stockholders seeking to set the sale

aside and was affirmed by the District Court. On appeal

to this Court, the orders of the District Judge and of the

Referee were reversed and the sale held to be null and

void.
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In reversing the District Court and the Referee, Judge

Fee of this Court, in quoting from Pepper v. Litton, 308

U. S. 295 at 306, said:

*'Once a corporation is adjudged a bankrupt, the

equitable powers of the court are used in accordance

with considerations of pubHc poHcy, which are

deeply grounded upon fundamental principles. There

the obligations of an officer or director of a corpo-

ration to the stockholders and creditors often require

drastic measures. As was said by Mr. Justice

Douglas in Pepper v. Litton, 308 U. S. 295, 306:

" 'A director is a fiduciary. * * * So is a

dominant or controlling stockholder or group of

stockholders. * * * Their powers are powers in

trust. * * * While normally that fiduciary obli-

gation is enforceable directly by the corporation, or

through a stockholder's derivative action, it is, in

the event of bankruptcy of the corporation, enforce-

able by the trustee. For that standard of fiduciary

obligation is designed for the protection of the en-

tire community of interests in the corporation-credi-

tors as well as stockholders.'
"

The opinion of this Court was based largely on Mosser

V. Darrow, 341 U. S. 266, 95 L. Ed. 927. In that case

Darrow, as Trustee, was surcharged by the United States

District Court for the Eastern District of Illinois in the

sum of $43,447.46. The surcharge was based on the

fact that Darrow, as Trustee, had employed Jacob Kulp

and Myrtle Johnson, who thoroughly knew the inside of

the business of the bankrupt's common law trusts. When
he employed them he had an understanding with them

that they would be permitted to speculate in the securities

of the bankrupt. In the course of the administration they

purchased numerous bonds at a substantial discount and
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retired them in the bankruptcy proceeding at profits to

themselves in excess of $40,000.00. Darrow claimed to

have discussed the matter of their activities with District

Judge Holly, but did not disclose to the District Judge

that he was employing these people on terms which per-

mitted trading in the underlying securities. The Court

of Appeals for the Seventh Circuit reversed the order

surcharging the Trustee, basing its decision on the fact

that the Trustee himself had not personally made a profit

out of the transactions of his subordinates. The United

States Supreme Court granted certiorari and reversed

the Seventh Circuit. We quote from this opinion written

by Justice Jackson, as follows

:

"This was a strict trusteeship, not one of those

quasi-trusteeships in which self-interest and repre-

sentative interests are combined. A reorganization

trustee is the representative of the court and it is

not contended and would not be arguable that if he

had engaged for his own advantage in the same

transactions that he authorized on the part of his

subordinates he should not be surcharged. Equity

tolerates in bankruptcy trustees no interest adverse

to the trust. This is not because such interests are

always corrupt but because they are always corrupt-

ing. By its exclusion of the trustee from any per-

sonal interest, it seeks to avoid such delicate in-

quiries as we have here into the conduct of its own
appointees by exacting from them forbearance of

all opportunities to advance self-interest that might

bring the disinterestedness of their administration

into question.

"These strict prohibitions would serve little pur-

pose if the trustee were free to authorize others to

do what he is forbidden. While there is no charge

of it here, it is obvious that this would open up op-
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portunities for devious dealings in the name of others

that the trustee could not conduct in his own. The

motives of man are too complex for equity to sepa-

rate in the case of its trustees the motive of acquiring

efficient help from motives of favoring help, for any

reason at all or from anticipation of counter favors

later to come. We think that which the trustee had

no right to do he had no right to authorize, and

that the transactions were as forbidden for benefit

of others as they would have been on behalf of the

trustee himself."

Further on the Court said:

*'But equity has sought to limit difficult and deli-

cate fact-finding tasks concerning its own trustee by

precluding such transactions for the reason that their

effect is often difficult to trace, and the prohibition is

not merely against injuring the estate—it is against

profiting out of the position of trust. That this has

occurred, so far as the employees are concerned, is

undenied."

In In re Frasin & Oppcnheim, 181 Fed. 307, the Court

of Appeals for the Second Circuit, in reversing an order

of the United States District Court for the Southern Dis-

trict of New York, which confirmed a sale made of bank-

rupt's assets to one of the appraisers through a third

party, said:

*Tt is a long-established principle of equity juris-

prudence that a trustee cannot become a purchaser

of the trust estate. And not only trustees, strictly

speaking, but agents, attorneys, and all persons act-

ing in behalf of other persons and obtaining con-

fidential information concerning their affairs, can-

not purchase their property, except under certain re-

straints not necessary to be considered here. Lord
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St. Leonards thus stated these elementary principles

in his treatise on Vendors and Purchasers (Sugden

on Vend, and Purch. (2d Am. Ed. from 5th London

Ed.), p. 422), and his statement has many times been

quoted with approval by judges and text-writers:

" 'It may be laid down as a general proposition

that trustees, unless they are nominally so, as trus-

tees to p^rserve contingent remainders, agents, com-

missioners of bankrupts, assignees of bankrupts, so-

licitors to the commission, auctioneers, creditors who
have been consulted as to the mode of sale, or any

persons who, by their connection with any other

person, or by being employed or concerned in his

affairs, have acquired a knowledge of his property,

are incapable of purchasing such property themselves,

except under the restrictions which will shortly be

mentioned; for, if persons having a confidential char-

acter were permitted to avail themselves of any

knowledge acquired in that capacity, they might be

induced to conceal their information, and not to ex-

ercise it for the benefit of the persons relying upon

their integrity. The characters are inconsistent.

"Emptor emit quani minimo potest, venditor vendit

quam maximo potest."

'

''The application of these principles is not depend-

ent upon the engagement of one person by another

in a confidential capacity. There need be no contract

of employment at all. There need be no formal re-

lation of trust. The disability grows out of the duty.

In our opinion the rule of equity should be so

broadly applied as to embrace all persons who have

a duty to perform with respect to the property of

others and with the proper performance of whose

duty the character of a purchaser of such property

may be in any degree inconsistent."



—24—

Bearing in mind that appellee hastily prepared a peti-

tion and order for disbursement of all funds in the debtor

in possession's hands, with the exception of approximately

$60.00, after the Referee had announced at his hearing

on November 4, 1949, that he had found the debtor in

default and would order an adjudication, and wedged

this petition and order in between November 4 and No-

vember 7, when the formal order of adjudication could

be entered, thus securing payment to himself of his

debtor's certificates, we cannot refrain from quoting some

of the pungent language used by the Court in condemning

activities of those who are on the "inside" to secure ad-

vange to themselves while in a trust or fiduciary capacity.

The staccato language used by Justice Douglas in Pepper

V. Litton, vividly describes the disabilities placed upon an

"insider" in dealing with his trust. We quote (at p. 284) :

"He who is in such a fiduciary position cannot

serve himself first and his cesfnis second. He cannot

manipulate the affairs of his corporation to their det-

riment and in disregard of the standards of common
decency and honesty. He cannot by the intervention

of a corporate entity violate the ancient precept

against serving two masters. He cannot by the use

of the corporate device avail himself of the privileges

normally permitted outsiders in a race of creditors.

He cannot utilize his inside information and his stra-

tegic position for his own preferment. He cannot

violate rules of fair play by doing indirectly through

the corporation what he could not do directly. He
cannot use his power for his personal advantage and

to the detriment of the stockholders and creditors no

matter how absolute in terms that power may be and

no matter how meticulous he is to satisfy technical

requirements. For that power is at all times sub-

ject to the equitable limitation that it may not be
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exercised for the aggrandisement, preference, or ad-

vantage of the fiduciary to the exclusion or detriment

of the cestuis. Where there is a violation of those

principles, equity will undo the wrong or intervene

to prevent its consummation."

We also quote from the language of the Second Cir-

cuit in In re Frazin & Oppenheim, 181 Fed. 307 at 310:

"The nature of the position of an appraiser is

such that he necessarily obtains confidential informa-

tion concerning many other matters affecting its

value and the price to be obtained for it. His duty

is to appraise it at a fair and reasonable value, for,

if it is sold not subject to the approval of the court,

only such an appraisal will afford protection to the

estate. But a report of the value of the property to

be sold, made by a prospective bidder for it, could

hardly be considered a reliable guide for the action

of the court. Would an appraisal be implictly relied

upon in which the appraiser reported that the prop-

erty was of the value of $16,000, but that he had

entered into an agreement to bid $40,000 for it?"

In the case at Bar, this appellee functioning on behalf

of a corporation as debtor in possession had incurred, in

the administration under Chapter XI, an indebtedness to

the Oregon farmers for produce in a sum in excess of

$100,000.00. His inside information as an officer of the

Court enabled him to know the amount of indebtedness

incurred during the administration, the intention of the

Referee to adjudicate the corporation a bankrupt, the out-

standing debtor's certificates in the possession of Hadley,

the willingness of Hadley to convey these debtor's cer-

tificates without consideration to the appellee on the eve

of his going to the hospital. [See testimony of R. H.

Hadley, R. pp. 164, 166, 167 and 169, and testimony of
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Hugh H. Bridgford, R. pp. 178 and 179.] He directed

his attorneys to prepare a petition including payment to

him of funds out of the estate at that time, and verified

the same and presented it promptly to the Referee in

order to obtain the necessary order. All of this was ac-

complished in three days time. Supposing instead of his

having been a trusted functionary of the Bankrupcty

Court there had been a Receiver in Bankruptcy, holding

office at that time, and Bridgford had desired payment to

him of these debtor's certificates. Supposing there had

been a distinterested and impartial attorney representing

the Receiver. Supposing that Bridgford had gone to the

Receiver with debtor's certificates originally issued to

Hadley and demanded payment in full with interest at

once. Naturally, a conscientious Receiver (or his at-

torney) would inquire of Bridgford, president of the

debtor corporation, how it happened that he was in pos-

session of Hadley's debtor's certificates, what considera-

tion he had paid therefor, whether or not he owed a duty

to the debtor corporation to give it the advantage of the

discount at which he had acquired these certificates, and

would no doubt have said, "Hold it for a few days until

we know just where we all stand. What's the rush? A
few days delay in payment will not make any material

difference." Facts underlying this sordid transaction

could then have been exposed to the light of day, with

the result that Bridgford would have received exactly

what he paid Hadley for these debtor's certificates—noth-

ing. Instead, we have a situation where, utilizing his

inside position, Bridgford was able to have his personal

attorney, who represented him in this proceeding, pre-

pare a petition for immediate payment, present it to the

Referee, procure an order for payment to him of these
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certificates, prepare a check for the debtor's certificates

in full, payable to himself and procure the Referee's

counter-signature thereon without disclosing to the Ref-

eree that he had obtained these certificates at a discount

of 100%. In the meantime, the unfortunate farmers in

Oregon who had furnished the raw material out of w^hich

the funds so disbursed had been realized, not being on

the inside, as was Mr. Bridgford, now find themselves

placed behind him in the distribution of the funds of this

insolvent estate. A clearer case of breach of a fiduciary-

relationship could not be imagined. It may be true that

had Hadley retained these certificates he would have

been entitled to payment in full. In the hands of Bridg-

ford, as assignee thereof, any realized profit should, under

the principles repeatedly enunciated by the Courts, have

accrued for the benefit of the bankrupt estate or the cor-

poration of which Mr. Bridgford was and is president.

(Bonney v. Tillcy, 109 Cal. 346.)

The Referee was correct in subordinating Bridgford's

claim to the claims of those creditors who had sold pro-

duce to the bankrupt corporation during the term of man-

agement under the Bankruptcy Court's supervision, and

whose produce had created the fund out of which Bridg-

ford paid himself, and the District Judge erred in placing

Bridgford's claim in a superior position to these defrauded

Oregon farmers.

During Bridgford's administration of this bankrupt

estate, it incurred liabilities in the operation of the busi-

ness to certain Oregon farmers in an amount in excess of

$100,000.00. [See Referee Finding of fact XII, R. p.

116.]

On November 4, 1949, after a hearing at which it had

been demonstrated that the Chapter XI administration
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was a failure, the Referee announced that he was going

to adjudicate the Bridgford Company a bankrupt. Bridg-

ford immediately swung into action to feather his own

individual nest. He procured the outstanding debtor's

certificates from R. H. Hadley without any consideration

whatsoever, and three days later on November 7, 1949,

before a formal order of adjudication could be prepared

and entered, he presented to the Referee a petition for

payment as a prior claim of the certificates of indebted-

ness, and without informing the Referee that he had ob-

tained these certificates gratis, issued a check payable to

himself and procured the Referee's counter-signature

thereon. [See Referee Findings VII, VIII and IX, R.

pp. 113-114.] As found in Finding VII, Bridgford's

payment to himself and a few others left the estate with

the sum of $60.00 balance on hand, and the Oregon

farmers holding the proverbial sack.

In Northtown Theatre Corporation v. Michchon, 226

F. 2d 212, the Court of Appeals for the Eighth Circuit

said:

"The legality of a claim from a purely technical

aspect does not preclude its disallowance or subordi-

nation on equitable grounds. The bankruptcy court

in passing on claims sits as a court of equity. It

has the power to disallow or subordinate claims in the

light of equitable considerations and can sift the cir-

cumstances surrounding any claim to see that in-

justice or unfairness is not done in the administra-

tion of the bankrupt estate. This power exists as a

matter of the Federal law of bankruptcy."

In United States Trust Company v. Zellc, ct al, 191 F.

2d 822 at 825, the Eighth Circuit said:

" Tt is manifest that the touchstone of each deci-

sion on allowance of interest in bankruptcy, receiver-
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ship and reorganization has been a balance of equities

between creditor and creditor or between creditors

and the debtor. * * * That the proceeding before

us has moved from equity receivership through Sec-

tion 77B to Chapter X (11 U. S. C. A., Sees. 207,

501 et seq.) in the wake of statutory change does

not make these equitable considerations here inap-

plicable. A Chapter X or Section 77B reorganiza-

tion court is just as much a court of equity as were

its statutory and chancery antecedents.' 329 U. S.

he. cit. 165, 67 S. Ct. he. eit. 241."

See also

:

Pepper v. Litton, 308 U. S. 295

;

Sampsell v. Imperial Color & Paper Corp., 313

U. S. 213;

Geddes v. Anaconda Copper Mining Co., 254 U. S.

590 at 599.

The only reimbursement that Bridgford would be en-

titled to would be the actual amount paid for these debtor's

certificates. If he had purchased them for $1.00, that

would have been the extent of his claim. Having obtained

them for nothing, he was entitled to nothing in the face

of creditors' claims.

See:

In re Los Angeles Lumber Products Co., 46 Fed.

Supp. 77.

In condemning conduct somewhat similar to the con-

duct of Bridgford in the case at Bar, United States Dis-

trict Judge Ford, in the Matter of Wesley Corporation,

18 Fed. Supp. 347 at 355, said:

*'By long-estabHshed principles of equity juris-

prudence, nothing is more clearly established than
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that a trustee may not become the purchaser of the

trust estate either directly or through agents or other

persons acting in his behalf. Both creditors and

bankrupt alike have the right to expect that the

trustee will not use his official position to speculate

for his personal profit in the property entrusted to his

care. The duty to enforce these principles rests no

greater upon any courts than upon the federal courts

of bankruptcy. The prime object of Congress in en-

acting the bankruptcy laws was to secure for creditors

as well as bankrupts the efficient and fair adminis-

tration of estates. In re Frazin & Oppenheim (C. C.

A.), 181 F. 307; /« re Allen B. Wrisley Company (C
C A.), 133 F. 388; hi re Hawley (D. C), 117 R
364; Remington on Bankruptcy, Sec. 2560. It is not

important whether the price paid at the sale was ade-

quate in a particular instance. The rule rests upon

vital considerations of public policy and is applicable

in every case. If the facts alleged in this amend-

ment be true, the duty of the court to require the

trustee to account for all proceeds derived from the

property, including any profits from its resale, is

clear and imperative."

The opinion of the late District Judge Ralph E. Jenney,

In re Los Angeles Lumber Products Co., Ltd., 46 Fed.

Supp. 77, is a far more complete brief of the law relating

to fiduciaries than the writer of this brief could ever hope

to write. The opinion is approximately 17 pages long,

but we respectfully commend it to the attention of this

Court. We quote just one paragraph which Judge Jenney

took from Brambett v. Commonivealth Land & Lumber

Co., 26 Ky. Law Rep. 1176, 83 S. W. 599-602:

" 'When he (the receiver) agreed with Smith and

Wilson to join in the purchase if Wilson should be-

come the successful bidder, he placed himself in a
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position in which his personal interests were, or

might be, antagonistic to those of his trust. Michoud

V. Girod (45 U. S. 503), 4 How. 503, 552, 11 L.

Ed. 1076. It became to his personal interest that

the purchase should be made by Wilson for the lowest

possible price. The course taken was one which a

fiduciary could not legally pursue, Magruder v.

Drury, 235 U. S. 106, 119, 120, 35 S. Ct. 17, 59

L. Ed. 151. Since he did pursue it and profits re-

sulted the law made him accountable to the trust

•estate for all the profits obtained by him and those

who were associated with him in the matter, although

the estate may not have been injured thereby. Ma-
gruder V. Drury, 235 U. S. 106, 35 S. Ct. 77, 59

L. Ed. 151. And others who knowingly join a fidu-

ciary in such an enterprise likewise become jointly

and severally liable with him for such profits. Emery

V. Parrott, 107 Mass. 95, 103; Zinc Carbonate Co.

V. First National Bank, 103 Wis. 125, 134, 79 N. W.
229, 74 Am. St. Rep. 845; Lomita Land & Water

Co. V. Robinson, 154 Cal. 36, 97 P. 10, 18 L. R. A.

(N. S.) 1106. Wilson and Smith are therefore

jointly and severally liable for all profits resulting

from the purchase; the former although he had no

other relation to the estate; the later, without regard

to the fact that he was also counsel for the receiver.'

(Pages 588, 589 of 254 U. S., page 201 of 41 S. Ct.,

65 L. Ed. 418.)

"We have no hesitancy in declaring the law to be

that a president of an insolvent and failing corpora-

tion cannot traffic in its property to his advantage

and to its disadvantage, or buy in debts against it

at heavy discount and then assert them for full

value. To the argument that it does not matter to

the corporation zvho ozvns its debts, (italics ours) so it

honestly owes them, and that it is immaterial to it
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whether its president gets them for nothing, as it does

not have to pay any more than it actually owes in any

event, the answer is, it does matter, for human na-

ture is not so constituted that the same person can

fairly represent opposing sides of the same question

—cannot be both creditor and debtor. * * * f)^Q

policy of the law is to insure fidelity of trustees to

their trusts by making it impossible for them to

profitably neglect or abuse them." (Italics ours.)

Was the Appeal of This Case Taken in Time?

In this connection we will conclude this brief by a short

discussion of this question. The law seems to be well

settled that where a petition for reconsideration or re-

hearing has been entertained by the District Court in

connection with an order made by it, even though on re-

hearing or reconsideration the District Court adhered to

its former position, the time to appeal ran from the entry

of the subsequent order instead of from the entry of the

original order. In this case the Trustee petitioned the

District Judge for a clarification of his earlier order.

After a hearing thereon, the District Judge made a new

order giving Bridgford a priority over the Oregon farm-

ers and all other creditors.

In the Matter of Brigantme Beach Hotel Corp., 197

F. 2d 296 at 300, the Court of Appeals for the Third

Circuit discussed the timeliness of a similar appeal and

the authorities on which its decision was based in the

following language:

"Though no motion for dismissal of the appeal

from the order of November 29, 1951 was filed by

appellees, the claim is made that the appeal from

that order, filed January 28, 1952, was taken too

late. There is no doubt that the district court ac-
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cepted the petition for rehearing. The good faith of

the debtor in seasonably urging reargument is not

disputed. There is no suggestion that the district

court abused its discretion in entertaining the peti-

tion or that any intervening rights were prejudiced

by that action. Under these circumstances, it is

plain that the time for the debtor to appeal from the

order of November 29, 1951 was extended, even

though the district court reaffirmed its former posi-

tion, and ran anew from the denial of the petition

for rehearing on January 28, 1952. Wayne United

Gas Co. V. Owens-Illinois Glass Co., 300 U. S. 131,

57 S. Ct. 382, 81 L, Ed. 557; Bowman v. Loperena,

311 U. S. 262, 61 S. Ct. 201, 85 L. Ed. 177; Pfister

V. Northern Illinois Finance Corp., 317 U. S. 144,

63 S. Ct. 133, 87 L. Ed. 146. Rule 59(b), 28 U. S.

C. A., which generally requires a motion for a new
trial to be served not later than ten days after the

entry of the judgment has not changed this law. See

2 Collier on Bankruptcy (14th ed.), page 909 et seq.

We think it equally settled, however, that in such a

case as this, the debtor's appeal lies only from the

original order on November 29, 1951. Here the

debtor appealed not only from that order but also

from the order of January 28, 1952. The latter

order, being merely the denial of the petition for re-

hearing which had been entertained, is itself not the

subject of appeal. Pfister v. Northern Illinois Fi-

nance Corp., supra, 317 U. S. at page 149, 63 S. Ct.

133; Klein^s Outlet, Inc. v. Lipton, 2 Cir., 181 F.

2d 713, 714, certiorari denied 340 U. S. 833, 71 S.

Ct. 59, 95 L. Ed. 612; United States v. Muschany,

8 Cir., 156 F. 2d 196, 197. Though the debtor has

taken this appeal from both orders, we confine our

review to the order of November 29, 1951."
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Conclusion.

The Bankruptcy Court is a court of equity. In the

exercise of its equitable powers and in order to do equity

and justice for all creditors, it may subordinate claims

where claims are obtained through the violation of a fidu-

ciary relationship. The facts of this case as to such viola-

tion are indeed aggravated. Mr. Bridgford had been the

President, a Director and the principal stockholder of the

debtor corporation, and at the time of the violation was

one of the Court-appointed Managers. He was in court

on November 4, 1949 at the time the Court stated that

the debtor was in default under its Plan and that he would

order an adjudication. He knew that the debtor corpo-

ration was hopelessly insolvent. With knowledge of these

facts, he secured an assignment of the Debtor's Certifi-

cates from Mr. Hadley without any consideration what-

soever and subject only to Mr. Hadley's verbal suggestion

that if any money was secured on these certificates that

it should be used for the benefit of those who had invested

money in the form of reorganizing the business. He im-

mediately caused a petition to be prepared, together with

an Order for the payment to himself of the sum of $25,-

996.40 on said certificates, and for the payment to him-

self of $4,440.00 which he claimed under the Plan of Ar-

rangement. He presented the petition and order to this

Court the following Monday, November 7, 1949, with-

out disclosing that he had secured the Debtor's Certifi-

cates for nothing, and the Court, assuming that they

were entitled to priority, was prevailed upon to sign the

Order. This was done without a hearing and without

notice or knowledge on the part of creditors or their

counsel. Mr. Bridgford, as a court-appointed Manager,

immediately drew a check in favor of himself for the
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total sum of $30,436.40. He also drew checks for the

other amounts set forth in the Order. The following day

the Order of Adjudication was entered and the Trustee

on qualifying found the munificient sum of approximately

$60.00 left in the bank account. These facts, as we

have stated, present an aggravated case of over-reaching

and abuse of a fiduciary relationship by a Court-appointed

fiduciary. Such conduct cannot be condoned. We re-

spectfully submit that since Mr. Bridgford acquired the

Certificates of Indebtedness for nothing, it would be in-

equitable to allow his claim to participate in the distribu-

tion of funds which were made available through the

processing of foodstuffs for which the farmers and other

creditors who produced the same have not been paid. It

is the opinion of counsel and the trustee in this matter

that to permit such an unjust enrichment to a fiduciary

under the facts of this case would be shocking and un-

conscionable.

We respectfully submit that both Orders of the District

Court should be reversed, and the Order of the Referee

subordinating Mr. Bridgford's claim be affirmed.

Dated this 7th day of February, 1956.

Craig, Weller & Laugharn,

By Thomas S. Tobin,

Attorneys for Appellant.

Frank C. Weller,

Hubert F. Laugharn,

C. E. H. McDonnell,

Thomas S. Tobin,

Of Counsel.
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STATEMENT OF THE CASE

To facilitate a better understanding of the issue

here involved it is necessary to supplement and correct

the Statement of Facts contained in Appellant's Brief.

The material facts in chronological order are as

follows

:

1„ On April 25, 1947, the petition under Chap-

ter XI of the Bankruptcy Act was filed herein by The

Bridgford Company^ (Transcript of Record p. 3 (here-

inafter referred to as R. ))

2. On said date of April 25, 1947, and prior

thereto Appellee was the president, a director and

principal shareholder of The Bridgford Company. (R.

p. 177) However at no time after the filing of said peti-

tion did Appellee as such president, director or princi-

pal shareholder have any connection with or control of

the business affairs of The Bridgford Company.

3. On April 25, 1947, the Court assumed con-

trol of the assets of The Bridgford Company, appointed

M, E. Wagenheim as Gteneral Manager of the Company
and, through said General Manager, thereafter con-

trolled and conducted the business and affairs of said

Company continuously until November 6 , 1947

.

(R. p„ 16)

4. On November 6, 1947, the Court appointed

R. H„ Hadley as General Manager of the Company and,

through said General Manager, thereafter controlled

and conducted the business and affairs of said Company
continuously until February 26, 1948„ (R. p. 16)

5. On February 26, 1948, the Court by its



-3

order approved the Plan of Arrangement for the Com-
pany and directed that the Company "shall take over its

business and assets and operate such busmess without

Court control". (R. p. 26) At that time Mr. Hadley

was the Chairman of the Board of Directors and prin-

cipal shareholder of the Company and he operated and

controlled the Company free of court control continu-

ously from February 26, 1948 until November 24, 1948.

(R. p. 197)

6. On November 28, 1947, and on January 23,

1948, the Court by its orders authorized the issuance

by The Bridgford Company of not to exceed 46 Certifi-

cates of Indebtedness for $5,000 each. (R. pp. 19 and

23) All of these Certificates were issued to Mr. Hadley

for cash in the face amount thereof loaned by him to the

Company. (R. pp. 169-170) At the time both of said

orders were made, Mr. Hadley was General Manager

of the Company by appointment of Court and was opera-

ting the Company's affairs under the Court's control.

(R. p. 187) These Certificates, pursuant to the terms

thereof, were given priority. (R, p. 22) All of these

Certificates were subsequently repaid by the Company
except Certificates Numbers 35 to 40, both inclusive,

which are the basis of Appellee's claim and are the

subject matter of this appeal. At this time there is

unpaid the face amount of said Certificates aggregating

$30, 000 plus interest against which Appellant has an

offset against Appellee of $10, 996. 40.

(R. p. 141)

7. During the period that Mr. Hadley was
running the Company free of Court control, to -wit

from February 26, 1948, to November 24, 1948, the

Company incurred all of the debts (including the debts

to the Oregon farmers for produce) which Appellant
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asserts should be prior to Appellee's claim on said

Certificates of Indebtedness. (R. p, 197)

8. On November 24, 1948, on petition of the

Company the Court resumed control of the Company,

its business and assets, and appointed Appellee General

Manager, later adding two Co-General Managers. (R.

177-178) The Court retained control of the Company
through said General Managers continuously thereafter,

until the adjudication in bankruptcy was made on

November 8, 1949. (R. p. 65)

9. On November 4, 1949, said Certificates

Numbers 35 to 40, both inclusive, were transferred

and assigned by Mr. Hadley to Mr. Bridgford as a

gift. (R. pp. 140 and 166)

10. On February 13, 1953, Appellee filed

herein his claim on said Certificates Numbers 35 to 40

in the amount of their face amount, i. e. , $30,000 plus

interest. (R. p. 96)

11. On November 13, 1953, the Referree

allowed said claim of Appellee but subordinated it to

the payment of all other claims. (R. p. 118)

12. By orders of Judge Ben Harrison on

August 20, 1954, and on May 23, 1955, (R. pp. 138 and

148) said order of the Referree was modified and Appel-

lee's claim was held to be prior over general credi-

tor's and subordinate to expenses of administration and

court costs.

THE ISSUE

There is only one issue involved here.



Appellee maintains that said orders of

Judge Harrison are correct and that Appellee is en-

titled to priority on his claim on said Certificates

over general creditors, subordinate, however, to ex-

penses of administration and court costs. Appellant

contends that Judge Harrison's orders are in error

and that Appellee's claim should be subordinate to all

other creditors.

IRRELEVANT AND IMMATERIAL MATTERS
RAISED BY APPELLANT

Redundantly throughout Appellant's Brief

are matters which to Appellee appear irrelevant and

immaterial such as the following:

1. The fact that Appellee at one time was

the president, a director and principal shareholder of

The Bridgford Company, has no bearing on the issue

in this case. All of the facts involved herein arose

long after he had either lost these positions or they

had become stripped of all authority.

2. The fact that Appellee, then one of the

Co-Managers of the Debtor in possession, did on Nov-

ember 7, 1949, pursuant to order of the Referee here-

in, pay a nimiber of expenses of administration includ-

ing the payment to himself on said Certificates of

Indebtedness is immaterial. (R. p. 63) He was later

ordered to repay these moneys and he is in compliance

with said order as thereafter amended. (R. p. 143)

As Judge Harrison states,

"Any possible misuse of his position by vir-

tue of the fact that he obtained payment for

these Certificates with knowledge that the
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" Debtor was about to be adjudicated a bank-

rupt, was erased by order of the Referee re-

quiring him to pay back the money so obtained".

(R. p. 137)

The Referee did not feel that the pajrment of

November 7, 1949, precluded Mr. Bridgford from

asserting a claim of priority at the proper time. The

Referee in his Order of January 16, 1953, stated in

part,

"It is further ordered that the Findings of

Fact and Conclusions of Law and Order here-

tofore made herein, dated November 17, 1952,

are and were made without prejudice to the

right of the said Hugh H. Bridgford to claim

and assert a priority status and a preference

for said claims on said Certificates of Indebt-

edness* * * *". (R. p. 95)

Therefore, the fact of the payment on November 7,

1949, is moot and closed.

3. The fact that some of the assets of this

bankrupt estate may have come from the sale of pro-

duce supolied by Oregon farmers for which payment

has not been made is immaterial. Appellee states

that there is about $100,000 due and unpaid from the

Company to these farmers. There is also upwards of

$400,000 due to the other creditors including a claim

by Mr. Hadley of approximately $119, 612. 88.

There is nothing in the bankruptcy laws that gives far-

mers as such, any preference over any other general

creditors. Furthermore it is incorrect to state, as

Appellant does, that Appellee is seeking payment for

himself out of funds realized from the sale of the
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place, a substantial part of the assets herein comes
from the liquidation of equipment, machinery, etc. (R.

pp. 266-267) and, in the second place, all of this pro-
duce was sold to the Company by these farmers during

the 1948 growing season when Hadley was running the

Company and Appellee was entirely out of the picture.

(R. p. 197) We are all sympathetic to unpaid credi-

tors whether or not they are farmers. But where, as

here, we have approximately $500,000 in general

claims, whether Appellee's claim is or is not given

priority is not going to have much practical conse-

quence to any creditor except Hadley. Also it should

be noted that all of these creditors extended credit in

1948 after Appellee's Certificates were issued and

their priority made a matter of public record by order

of court. Under these circumstances what basis do

they have to blame anyone but themselves if these Cer-
tificates are now paid ahead of their claims?

ARGUMENT POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

Appellant, in his Brief, does not dispute the

priority status of these Certificates of hidebtedness

over general creditors but argues that because of

Appellee's fiduciary position, these Certificates in his

hands should be subordinated. Appellant on page 27 of

his Brief admits that

"It may be true that had Hadley retained these

Certificates he would have been entitled to

payment in full".

We therefore deem it proper to proceed in this Brief

on the basis that Appellee's claim is admittedly entitled

to priority over all general unsecured creditors unless
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fiduciary position.

We will now examine this fiduciary position in

the light of the facts involved to see what, if any,

effect it should have on the issue of priority.

Appellee was a court appointed Co-Manager
from November 24, 1948 until November 8, 1949.

Admittedly he was, in such capacity, a fiduciary and

owed a duty not to secure an advantage by reason there-

of. It is submitted that Appellee did not.

These Certificates were issued in February

1948, under court order long before Appellee was
appointed. He had nothing to do with their issuance.

They were issued for full consideration to Kadley who,

himself was then the court's appointed Manager. They

were retained by Hadley until November 4, 1949, on

which date he made a gift of them to Appellee. On that

date Appellee was the court's appointed Manager and

Hadley was Chairman of the Board, a Director and the

principal shareholder of the Company. Hadley is not

complaining. As a matter of fact, Hadley in his testi-

mony of February 1, 1952, several times reaffirmed

the gift. (R. pp. 166-167) What right do the general

creditors have to complain over this gift? How were

they hurt? Why should this gift cause these Certifi-

cates to become subordinated thus resulting in a gift or

windfall to the general creditors. Appellee merely

stepped into Hadley' s shoes. As Judge Harrison states,

"Petitioner (Appellee) has succeeded to the

position of his assignor (Hadley) and the fact

that he himself gave no consideration for these

Certificates is not material. Petitioner
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from the position given to him by his assignor.

His duty as a court appointed officer is not

violated when he seeks to realize on rights

to which he is entitled by valid order of that

court." (R. p. 137)

Judge Harrison's conclusion of law covers

this point as follows;

"That Petitioner (Appellee) although occupy-

ing the position of a fiduciary as to the Bank-

rupt when he acquired these Certificates, did

nothing to detract from the position given to

him by H. H. Hadley, his assignor, also a

fiduciary as to the Bankrupt and, therefore,

Petitioner's (Appellee's) fiduciary position,

as aforesaid, does not in any way detract

from the rights he might have otherwise had

with reference to said Certificates if he had

not occupied said fiduciary position. "

(R. p. 141)

As further stated by Judge Harrison:

"Under these circumstances the position to

be afforded his (Appellee's) claim was to be

determined solely by the position which the

court gave to the Certificates at the time

they were issued. The position so given

these Certificates, was to be one of priority

over existing claims and the integrity of the

Certificates and thus this position is to be

maintained. " (R. p. 137)

Since both parties seem to agree as to the
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law and disagree as to its application we want to dis-

cuss some of Appellant's citations.

Two important factual differences exist in

most of Appellant's cases which make these decisions

inapplicable here. In these cited cases there was

1. A trafficking in or purchasing of the debt-

or's obligations whereas here we have a gift or

2. A dealing in the debtor's assets whereas

here we have a debt.

In the case of Bonney vs. Tilley, 109 Cal. 346,

cited by Appellant it is stated:

"It is to be observed, however, that a person

who is a creditor of an insolvent corporation

is not deprived of any of his rights as credi-

tor by the fact that he also occupies the posi-

tion of director of the company. He is merely

incapacitated as director from using any of the

powers of his position for his own benefit or

his co-directors. "

So it is clear that a fiduciary may acquire and have a

valid claim. It is only where he, in some way, uses

his power as a fiduciary, either in acquiring or en-

forcing the payment of the claim, that his fiduciary

position in any way affects the validity, the amount or

the priority of his claim. He is precluded only from
using the powers of his position to gain an advantage.

Wherein, in this proceeding, has Appellant made any

showing that Appellee used the powers of his position

to gain an advantage?
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The Van Sweringen Company case , 119 Fed. 2d

231, cited by the Appellant is clearly distinguishable

on its facts. In that case, we had fiduciaries traffick-

ing in the securities of the corporation to whom they

owed a fiduciary duty and purchasing such securities at

less than their real value. This was obviously against

and detrimental to the interests of the corporation to

whom they owed a fiduciary duty and they were using

the knowledge acquired by them in their fiduciary capa-

city of the real worth of the corporation to purchase sec-

urities of the corporation at less than their real value

from persons who had no way of knowing their real value.

The case of Meinhard vs. Salmon , 249 N. Y.

458, also cited by Appellant, involves a situation

where one partner, representing himself to be the sole

owner of a partnership asset, did thereby secretly ac-

quire a personal profit to himself to the exclusion of

his partners. Obviously, he thereby violated his fidu-

ciary duty to his partners. Obviously, also,thiscaseis

not pertinent to the issues now before this reviewing Court.

The Appellant cites the case of Los Angeles

Lumber Products Co . , 46 Fed. Supp. 77. It should

be noted that this case was cited but not followed in the

case of Re Calton Crescent , 173 Fed. 2d 944, dis-

cussed later, where the Court reached an entirely dif-

ferent conclusion. The Los Angeles Lumber Products

case, in any event, is not in pomt because it has many
distinguishable facts, such as

1. In the Los Angeles Lumber Products case,

we have a fiduciary trafficking m the debtor's

obligations, which is not involved in our case.

2. In the Los Angeles Lumber Products case,
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we have a fiduciary purchasing the debtor's

obligations from creditors who were not fidu-

iaries. In our case, the obligation was given

from one fiduciary to another fiduciary.

3. Jn the Los Angeles Lumber Products case,

we have a fiduciary purchasing obligations of

the debtor incurred by the debtor in the ordi-

nary course of business. In our case, the ob-

ligations involved were incurred pursuant to

prior authorization of this Court, not in the

ordinary course of business, and expressly

made prior in status by order of this Court.

4. ii the Los Angeles Lumber Products case,

the fiduciary in question was not only a direc-

tor but also attorney for the debtor and the

Court suggests that his activities in acquiring

his client's obligations might, even though it

did not, preclude him from being entirely

without self-interest in handling the legal

affairs of the debtor.

Appellant also cites the case of Canton Roll &
Machine Co. vs. Rolling Mill Co . , 168 Fed. 465,

where the fiduciary questioned was an officer of two

corporations and he used his position as such officer

in one to enable that corporation to gain an unfair ad-

vantage over the second corporation, which resulted in

a sale of the second corporation's collateral, which he

purchased secretly for his own use. This case is

clearly not in point.

The only other case on this issue cited by

Appellant is the case of Martin vs. Chambers , 214 Fed.

769, wherein the purchase of a corporation's obliga-
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tions by an officer was approved and his claim sus-

tained. If the facts were similar to our case, we
would cite this case in support of our contention.

The contention of Appellant that this Court

has the power to subordinate the claim of Appellee in

the event that this Court, in its discretion, determines

that the equities of this claim under all the facts and

circumstances of this case, so require, is admitted.

The existence of this power is elementary.

We would now like to cite and discuss the

more recent cases concerning the position of a fidu-

ciary and the status of claims acquired and presented

by a fiduciary. The leading recent authority on the

subject is the case of Re Calton Crescent , 173 Fed.

2d 944. The facts in that case are briefly as follows:

Claimants purchased, at less than ten cents

on the dollar face value, certain indenture

bonds of the debtor during the period that the

debtor was insolvent. These purchases were

made after a plan of reorganization of the

debtor had been effected and before the

arrangement proceedings under the Bank-

ruptcy Act had been started. These pur-

chases were from sellers who were not fidu-

ciaries and, in some instances, were made

direct and some were made from dealers in

over the counter securities. The claims on

these debentures in said arrangement pro-

ceeding are the subject matter of this case.

The claimants were found to be in the same

fiduciary capacity as a director of the debtor.

The claimants claimed the face amount of the

indentures so purchased and the Trustee
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objected that the claims should be allowed not

in their face amount but in the amount of the

purchase price actually paid by claimants.

The court held:

First , that the Federal law, not the State law,

determines the extent to which inequitable con-

duct of the claimant requires subordination of

the claim.

Second , that claimant will not be deprived of

the profits of his transactions in the debtor's

securities on the grounds of their acquisition

by use of information acquired as a Fiduciary

without adequate disclosure to the Sellers

where no complaint of over-reaching is made
by the Sellers who had as full information

concerning the debtor's financial condition as

the claimant.

Third , a director of an insolvent corporation

is not precluded from purchasing claims

against the corporation at a discount and then

collecting the full amount of the claims, at

least in the absence of over-reaching of the

sellers or other circumstances requiring the

imposition of sanctions.

The Court allowed the claims at their face value and

without regard to the actual cost thereof to claimants.

This decision was affirmed by the Supreme Court of the

United States on No. 21, 1949, 338 U. S. 304.

We would like to quote the following excerpts

from this case:

I
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"As to the first question the appellant is

right—federal law controls the distribution to

creditors m bankruptcy. The Supreme Court

has declared the rule very definitely. In

Prudence Realization Corporation v. Geist,

316 US 89, at page 95, 62 S Ct 978, at page

982, 86 L Ed 1293, the court said; \ . , The
court of bankruptcy is a court of equity to

which the judicial administration of the bank-

rupt's estate is committed. Securities and

Exchange Commission v. United States Realty

& Improvement Co. 310 US 434, 455, 457, 60

S Ct. 1044, 1053, 1054, 84 L Ed 1293, and it

is for that court—not without appropriate re-

gard for rights acquired under rules of state

law—to define and apply federal law in deter-

mining the extent to which the inequitable con-

duct of a claimant in acquiring or asserting

his claim in bankruptcy requires its subor-

dination to other claims which, in other re-

spects, are of the same class.

'

"Later cases have reiterated the rule. Ameri-

can Surety Co. vs. Sampsell, 327 US 269, 272,

66 S Ct 571, 90 L Ed 663; Heiser v. Woodruff,

327 US 726, 732, 66 S Ct 853, 90 L Ed 970;

Vanston Bondholders Protective Committee v.

Green, 329 US 156, 161-163, 67 S Ct. 237, 91

L Ed 162. For earlier cases on the general

subject, see Pepper v. Litton, 308 US 295,

303-304, 60 S Ct 238, 84 L Ed 281; American

United Mut. Life Ins. Co, v. City of Avon

Park, 311 US 138, 146, 61 S Ct. 157, 85 L Ed

91, 136 ALR 860. From these decisions we
understand the rule to be that, although the

state law determ.ines the title, validity and
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"amount of a claim, the bankruptcy law, in-

cluding what federal judges think to be equit-

able, determines what dividends shall be dis-

tributable to the claimant. In other words, in

addition to those modifications which the

Bankruptcy Act itself has imposed upon distri-

bution with respect to preferences, priorities

and the like, the courts must impose any other

modifications which they deem necessary in

the interest of justice. "

"It is, of course, axiomatic that a fiduciary

will not be permitted to profit at the expense

of his cestui from any transaction where his

fiduciary duty and his personal interest may
come into conflict. This principle, however,

does not preclude a director from purchasing

a claim at a discount and collecting its face

amount, if his company is solvent, since who
holds the debt can be of no concern to a sol-

vent company. It is not immediately apparent

why insolvency should make a difference. It

will cost the debtor no more whether the divi-

dend which it may be able to pay creditors

goes to the original holder of the debt or to a

director-assignee. Counsel for the Securities

and Exchange Commission suggests that in-

solvency creates a possible conflict between

duty and personal interest because the direc-

tors can choose the time for filing a bank-

ruptcy petition and may accelerate or postpone

it if doing so can result in a personal profit.

The argument as to the timing of bankruptcy

has no force after the petition has been filed,

yet the law is better settled with respect to
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"purchases made after the petition is filed

than those made before. After insolvency it

may be said that the directors are fiduciaries

for the group of creditors who will share in

the insolvent's estate. But the creditors who
have retained their claims will suffer nothing

whether or not the director is allowed to make
a profit from his purchases. If a wrong has

been done to any of the group of cestuis, it is

to those who sold their claims at a price less

than the dividend they would have received

had they retained them. If they were suing

for the wrong done them , they would have to

show something equivalent to a fraudulent non-

disclosure. Strong V. Repide, 213 US 419, 29

S Ct 521, 53 L ed 853. Plainly if the contest

for the director's profits was between the

wronged cestuis and the unwronged cestuis,

the former should prevail. Where it is be-

tween the unwronged cestuis and a director, if

the former are allowed to prevail it can only

be as a disciplinary measure against the dir-

ector for wronging someone who has not com-
plained of the wrong. That this is the real

basis for the rule was recognized by Judge

Kirkpatrick in the case of In re Real Estate

Mortgage Guaranty Co. DCED Pa, 55 F Supp

749, 752, where he said: '. . . The doctrine that

a receiver may not retain a personal profit

made out of his trust is a prophylactic rule.

It implements the law^s precept that a trustee

must give undivided loyalty to his trust. The

surcharge is the sanction. ... In the present

case a substantial majority of the ultimate and

onlybeneficiaries of the trust, knew of and con-

sented to the receivers earning these commissions
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"by placing the insurance through his own

agency. I think that is a controlling factor

and that it gives the court full discretion to

deny the surcharge. '

"The same judge made a similar statement in

Re Philadelphia & Western Ry. Co, , DC, 64

F Supp 738, 741: 'This limitation is not im-

posed upon the theory that such profits belong

to the corporation by reason of any property

right that it may have in them but is an ad-

ministrative sanction for the enforcement of

the rules of fiduciary conduct set by the law.

'

If the doctrine be recognized as a disciplinary

sanction within the discretion of the court to

impose or withhold, then, as Judge Kirk-

patrick also said in the Mortgage Guaranty Co.

case, 'Each case depends on its own circum-

stances'. In the case at bar, where there was

no overreaching of the sellers, we are not

convinced that the circumstances are such as

to require imposition of the sanction, even if

the proof of debt had been filed by a director

of the debtor.

"

It is interesting to note that Judge L. Hand

agreed with the majority on the proposition that the

federal law controls on the question of the extent to

which inequitable conduct of claimant requires the

subordination of the claim and not the State law. It is

also interesting to note that while Judge Hand felt that

the claimants should be allowed claims m the amount

of the purchase price paid by them since they purchased

from non -fiduciaries, that if the claims had been pur-

chased by a director from a director, he would have

agreed with the majority and allowed the
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claims at the face amount thereof rather than at the

purchase price paid by claimants. Referring to a

purchase by a director from a director, he said:

"Surely they stand on an equality".

We submit that the standing of Appellee in this

case is far superior by reason of several distinguishing-

facts to the position of the claimants in the Re Calton

Crescent case. Appellee's claim was acquired from

an equal fiduciary. Appellee did not purchase or traf-

fic in the open market. Appellee acquired by gift. The

claims in the Re Calton Crescent Case were based on

obligations incurred by the debtor in the normal course

of its business while Appellee's claim is based on an

obligation authorized and expressly made prior in

status by order of this court.

We do not deem it necessary to expand this

brief with further citations on this issue since the sub-

ject has been very completely covered, replete with

citations, in an excellent recent article in American

Law Reports, 13 ALR 2d, page 1172.

CONCLUSIONS

The priority status of this claim on the Certi-

ficates of Indebtedness is admitted—in the absence of

inequities.

So we come to the only question in this case.

Are there any equities which require the subordination

of these Certificates? We submit that there are none

because:

1. These Certificates were originally issued
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for a full cash consideration and given a prior status

at time of issuance by Order of the Referee herein.

2. These Certificates were orginally issued

to Mr. Hadley, a Fiduciary, and by him, while still a

Fiduciary, given to Appellee.

3. Mr. Hadley has re -affirmed the gift and

makes no complaint to this claim as a claim entitled

to priority.

4. There was no trafficking in these Certifi-

cates. They were acquired by gift.

5. Appellee neither sought nor gained any

advantage by reason of his Fiduciary capacity.

6. No one to whom Appellee owed a Fiduciary

duty was harmed or in any was affected by his acquisi-

tion of these Certificates. The position of all parties

involved remains unchanged except that Appellee has

stepped into Mr. Hadley's shoes as the owner of these

Certificates,

We respectfully submit that the claim of

Appellee is just and equitable and that the Orders of

the District Court should be affirmed.

Respectfully submitted,

KYLE Z. GRAmOER
OAKES & HORTON
McNULTY & SQUIER

By ROBERT A. OAKES
Attorneys for Hugh H. Bridgford
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Paul W. Sampsell, Trustee in Bankruptcy for

the Estate of The Bridgford Company, a

Corporation, Bankrupt,

Appellant,

vs.

Hugh H. Bridgford,

Appellee.

BRIEF OF OREGON FARMER CREDITORS

FOREWORD
This Court has permitted certain creditors (here-

inafter referred to as Oregon Farmers) of the Bridg-

ford Company, a bankrupt corporation, to file a brief

in this proceeding as appellants. These creditors who

were granted this privilege are farmers who reside

in the vicinity of Ontario, Oregon, and who during
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the crop season of 1948, produced, sold, and delivered

to the Court appointed managers of the Bridgford

Company, at its food processing plant at Ontario,

Oregon, agricultural products which were processed

by the Company during the season of 1948 and for

which there is an unpaid balance due these farmers

of approximately $100,000.00.

Creditors claims were timely filed by each of the

individual farmers.

OPENING STATEMENT

Agreeing with, but supplementing the opening

statement contained in the brief of appellant Sampsell,

we point out that on April 25, 1947, the bankrupt

filed a voluntary petition in the United States Dis-

trict Court for the Southern District of California,

Southern Division, seeking relief under Chapter XI

of the Bankruptcy Act.

The debtor remained in possession under the plan

of arrangement. Mr. Bridgford, the President of

the bankrupt corporation, was also one of the Court

appointed managers to operate the Company's facili-

ties for the purchase of the 1948 crop of products

which was delivered to the Ontario plant and proc-

essed during the 1948 processing season and dis-

posed of by the managers for the benefit of the bank-

rupt estate but was not fully paid for, leaving un-

satisfied claims of approximately $100,000.00. (Ref-

eree's Findings XII R-115)

During the operation of the bankrupt estate one R.
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Harold Hadley became a creditor of said estate in the

principal sum of $30,000.00 and received Certificates

of Indebtedness Nos. 35 to 40 inclusive, for that

amount.

Hadley did not file a claim with the Referee, or

present these Certificates for payment, but assigned

the above described Certificates to the appellee, Hugh
H. Bridgford, without any consideration, on or about

November 7, 1949, whereupon Bridgford filed a claim

for the face value of the Certificates (Referee's Find-

ings No. HI R-111) although he admitted he didn't

pay Hadley anything for the Certificates (R-178)

and further admitted that upon receiving the proceeds

of the check for $25,996.40 "It was commingled with

my personal funds, and has been used and spent"

(R-183) and that the money was not used to pay

"any old obligations of the Bridgford Company."

(R-183)

Appellant Sampsell's opening brief details fully the

nature of the claim filed by Bridgford and its history

leading up to this appeal (pp. 4-6 SampselFs brief)

with appropriate references to the record and these

matters will not be repeated here. Neither will we

make any further reference to the procedural steps

taken by appellant Sampsell.

ARGUMENT POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

I

Appellee, being a fiduciary, a court appointed

manager under the plan, and an officer of the Court,
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could not take advantage of his knowledge of the

affairs of the bankrupt estate to obtain a personal ;

advantage and profit.

Donovan & Schuenke vs. Sampsell, 226 F. (2)

804.

ARGUMENT

Having been the principal stockholder, director and

officer (president) of his bankrupt corporation, and a

Court appointed manager under Chapter XI, the

appellee was well aware of the financial condition of

the bankrupt estate, he was also well aware of how,

and under what circumstances, Mr. Hadley acquired

the Certificates of Indebtedness. He was in open

court on November 4, 1949, when the referee an-

nounced from the bench "that he found the debtor in

default and would order an adjudication." (Referee's

Findings VI and VII, R-113). He also knew that the

funds then under his control were the proceeds of the

sale of products bought from the Oregon Farmers

and that they had not been fully paid. (R-196)

When on November 7, 1949, he presented a petition

to Referee Lannon for authority to pay himself the

face value of the Certificates of Indebtedness, he

failed to inform Judge Lannon that he took these

Certificates without any consideration (R-212) or as

Bridgford himself put it (R-178) "the Certificates

were received with no strings attached."

We think a mere recital of the admitted facts as
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outlined in the record, would compel a reversal of the

decree appealed from. If authority be necessary such

authority is found in the cases cited in appellant

Sampsell's brief, all of which are adopted but for the

sake of brevity shall not repeat, except to call atten-

tion to parts of the opinion in Donovan & Schuenke

vs. Sampsell (226 F. (2) 804) omitted in appellant

Sampsell's brief. We read in the Donovan opinion

(226 Fed. (2) ) at 807:

"The duties of these corporate officers were to

protect the creditors of Ridgecrest."

And further from the same page of the opinion:

"Fiduciary obligations are imposed upon cor-

porate officers of a concern which is insolvent.

They cannot buy claims against it, deal in its

stock or traffic in its property. The courts re-

fused profit on or set aside such transactions even

where bankruptcy has not intervened.

The policy of the law is to insure fidelity of

trustees to their trusts by making it impossible

for them to profitably neglect or abuse them.'

Bramblet v. Commonwealth Land & Lumber Co.

83 S.W. 599, 602, 26 Ky. Law. Rep. 1176, 1179.

And the intervention of bankruptcy does not

terminate his responsibility as an officer of the

corporation. Even if the relationship had ended,

the fiduciary capacity was not lost."
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The basis of invalidity of the fiduciaries acts in the

Donovan case are pale indeed compared to the studied,
||

and deliberate acts of infidelity found in the present

record where the appellee procured the trust funds
,

to pay his individual claim without informing the 1

Referee that he had obtained the Certificates of In-
j

debtedness from Hadley without consideration of any

kind. (R-178)

When Bridgford bought the products from the
j

farmers he reflected the integrity of a Federal Court.

It is doubtful if these farmers would have sold their

products to a Company teetering on the brink of

insolvency unless they felt they had the assurance

of fair and honest supervision and accounting con-

trolled by a Federal Court.

These farmers were not selling to the Bridgford

Company, against the defaults of which they could

protect themselves by suit and attachment in a local

court, but to court appointed managers of a Company

then under the control of a United States Federal

Court and the farmers felt they had security against

the rapacity of these self-same managers who were

under the control of the court who appointed them its

agents. After all, any prospect of success that the

Bridgford Company (and its stockholders) might

hope for depended upon the money and labor of these

farmers and assuming that they would have a fair

run for their efforts and contributions, they were

willing to go along towards helping Bridgford sal-

vage his company from a self-inflicted financial crisis.

Under the situation above detailed we heartily
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agree with the pointed observation of Referee Lannon

(R-84) where he said:

"It would indeed be an anomalous and inequitable

situation to permit Mr. Bridgford to secure a

priority payment in the amount of $30,436.40 out

of funds realized from the sale of produce grown

by the Oregon farmers, and then leave the farm-

ers and other creditors holding the proverbial

'bag' to the extent of more than $100,000.00 repre-

senting unpaid claims for that produce."

APPELLEE BRIDGFORD HAD THE DUTY TO
INFORM THE REFEREE THAT HE RECEIVED
AN ASSIGNMENT OF THE CERTIFICATES OF
INDEBTEDNESS WITHOUT CONSIDERATION.

Occupying a fiduciary relationship as Bridgford

was, not only prohibited him from asserting a claim

in his own right for which he paid nothing, but he

had a duty to inform the Referee that such a claim

if presented by another party was fraudulent.

In a very recent case reported as Larson Company

vs. Wallingsford, 136 Fed. Sup. 602, after calling

attention to various sections of the Bankruptcy Act,

which specify the duties of a bankrupt to assist the

trustee the court wrote: (611)

"These clauses rarely have been construed, but

the duty of the bankrupt to inform the trustee

of all false claims coming to his knowledge per-

sists until he is discharged or until the final clos-
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ing of administration, if discharge is granted I

sooner. The bankrupt also has sufficient standing :'

to move to expunge a false claim, although where

there is a trustee the latter, as the representative

of all the creditors, should do this/
"

In Sec. 7.25, page 1014, of the same volume, the

learned author says:

"Subdivision b of Sec. 7 was added by the Act

of 1938 to clarify the question as to who must

perform the duties prescribed by Sec. 7 where

the bankrupt is a corporation. The subdivision

provides that in such situations, the bankrupt's

'officers, the members of its board of directors or

trustees or of other similar controlling bodies, its

stockholders, or members, or such of them as

may be designated by the court, shall perform

the duties imposed upon the bankrupt by this

Act.'

"

In Goldie v. Cox, 8 Cir., 130 F 2d 690, the court at

page 695 said:

"The Bankruptcy Act recognizes the necessity of

assistance from the bankrupt to the trustee and

creditors * * *
. Where the bankrupt is a cor-

poration, this same situation applies to officers

and directors thereof."

Citing Crutcher v. Logan, 5 Cir., 102 F. 2nd said:
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"The successful administration of a bankruptcy

estate, of necessity requires cooperation and as-

sistance from the bankrupt, and where, as here,

the bankrupt is a corporation the assistance must

come from the officers and persons employed by

the corporation prior to its bankruptcy. The offi-

cers should disclose all information which they

have concerning the bankrupt's affairs."

THE REFEREE, AND THE COURT, HAS
POWER TO RE-EXAMINE AND SET ASIDE AN
ALLOWED CLAIM AT ANY TIME DURING THE
PENDENCY OF THE CAUSE.

Even if the Referee allowed Bridgford's claim based

on the certificates of indebtedness in the first instance

the Referee and the Court, has the power to re-

examine for the purpose of determining the validity

of the claim and determine the order of its payment.

In 8C.J.S. (Bankruptcy) 1117 we read:

"At any rate, practically any matter or cause

which appears to render the original order erro-

neous or improper will afford a sufficient ground

for its re-examination."

In Jones vs. Clower 22 Fed. (2) 104 in a case where

a duplicate claim was allowed, and later set aside and

expunged, the 5th Circuit held: (106)
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"The Bankruptcy Act invests courts of bank-

ruptcy with jurisdiction to 'allow claims, dis-

allow claims, reconsider allowed or disallowed

claims, or allow or disallow them against bank-

rupt estates,' and provides that 'claims which

have been allowed may be reconsidered for cause

and reallowed or rejected in whole or in part,

according to the equities of the case, before but

not after the estate has been closed.' Sections 2

(2), 57k (11 USCA §§11, 93(k). The quoted pro-

visions fully empower a bankruptcy court to in-

quire into the validity of any alleged debt or ob-

ligation of the bankrupt upon which a demand

or claim against the estate is based. Lesser v.

Gray, 236 U.S. 70, 35 S. Ct. 227, 59 L. Ed. 571."

The foregoing language is amplified in Lesser v.

Gray 236 U. S. 70, 35 S. Ct. 227, 59 L. E. 471 where we
read: (474)

"Section 2 of the bankruptcy law (30 Stat, at L.

544, chap. 541, Comp. Stat. 1913, § 9585), invests

courts of bankruptcy with jurisdiction to '(2)

allow claims, disallow claims, reconsider allowed

or disallowed claims, and allow or disallow them

against bankrupt estate; ...*** (10) consider

and confirm, modify, or overrule, or return, with

instructions for further proceedings, records and

findings certified to them by referees; . . . (15)

make such orders, issue such process, and enter

such judgments in addition to those specifically
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provided for as may be necessary for the enforce-

ment of the provisions of this act.'
"

Based on the undisputed facts in this record and

the unanimous holdings of the courts the present case

should be reversed.

To hold otherwise, would be to license fiduciary

officers of a Federal Court in bankruptcy cases, to

plunder creditors that have been imposed upon be-

cause of the standing obtained from the fiduciary ca-

pacity bestowed upon them by courts of the United

States.

Respectfully submitted,

P. J. Gallagher,

Attorney for Oregon farmer creditors.
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THE FACTS

Pursuant to permission of this Court, the

Oregon Farmer Creditors have filed a Brief herein

"as appellants". This brief requires answering by

Appellee because it is predicated entirely upon a five-

times repeated material mis-statement of fact.

The Oregon Farmer Creditors on whose be-

half this brief was filed are farmers who produced,

sold and delivered crops to The Bridgford Company dur

ing the crop season of 1948 ^ Without citing any refer-

ences to the record, this brief at two places on page 2

thereof and at three places on page 6 thereof recites

that these 1948 crops were sold and delivered to the

Court appointed managers of The Bridgford Company,
This is not true. These 1948 crops were sold and de-

livered to The Bridgford Company during the period

that the Company had possession of its assets and was
operating its business completely free and clear of

Court control. There was no Court appointed manager
during the period these 1948 crops were sold by these

farmers.

On February 26, 1948, the Court, by its

order, approved the Plan of Arrangement and directed

that The Bridgford Company "shall take over its busi-

ness and assets and operate such business without

Court control". (R. p. 26) At that time Mr. Harold

H. Hadley was the Chairman of the Board of Directors

and principal shareholder of the Company and, as such,

he operated and controlled the Company continuously

from February 26, 1948 to November 24, 1948,

free and clear of any control by Appellee, the Court,

or anybody else. (R. p. 197 and 198) These facts
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cannot be controverted.

Respectfully submitted,

KYLE Z. GRAINGER
OAKES & HORTON
McNULTY & SQUIER

By Robert A. Oakes

Attorneys for Hugh H. Bridgford
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FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT

In the Matter of

THE BRIDGFORD COMPANY, a

Corporation, Bankrupt.

PAUL W. SAMPSELL, Trustee in

Bankruptcy for the Estate of The
Bridgford Company , a Corporation,

Bankrupt,

Appellant,

vs.

HUGH He BRIDGFORD,
Appellee >
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-2-

TO THE HONORABLE UNITED STATES COURT OF

APPEALS FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT, AND TO THE

JUDGES THEREOF:

Appellee in the above-entitled cause presents

this his petition for rehearing of the above-entitled

cause and in support thereof respectfully shows:

I

THE APPELLEE, HUGH H. BRIDGFORD,
DID NOT BREACH HIS TRUST.

In what respect is the Appellee in receipt of any

"ill-gotten" gains, as claimed by Appellant?

One group of authorities holds that a trustee can-

not buy a claim against his beneficiary at a discount

and secure the full value thereof from the beneficiary.

Wickersham v. Crittenden, 93 Cal. 17; Matter of the

Van Sweringen Company, 119 F. 2d 231 (C.A. 6th).

Another group of authorities holds that a trustee

is guilty of breach of trust when he deals with trust



property, that a loyal trustee must not permit the pos-

sibility of his assuming an interest adverse to that of

his trust; that he must not seek a personal profit in

dealing with the subject of his trust. Pepper v. Litton
,

308 U.S. 295; Donovan & Schuenke, et al. v. Sampsell

as Trustee, et al. , 226 F. 2d 804; Los Angeles Lum-

ber Products Co.

,

46 Fed. Supp. 77.

The language used in the Los Angeles Lumber

Products Co. case, and in many other cases, appears

to stand for the general proposition that a trustee must

not only exercise the highest fidelity toward the bene-

ficiaries, but must not permit himself to be m a posi-

tion in which such faith may be jeopardized.

There is nothing in the entire record of this

case which indicates that the Appellee was ever in a

position in any way adverse to the best interests of

the beneficiaries of his trust. He did not deal in the



subject matter of the trust. The debtor's certificates

represented a liability of the debtor in possession, not

an asset. The certificates were not a subject matter of

the trust.

Appellee did not deal in or with the obligations of

the debtor in possession. He did not use his position

to gain an advantage over the beneficiaries of the trust.

The record indicates that valid and subsisting ob-

ligations of the debtor in possession were given to Ap-

pellee. The concept of a gift is practically the antithe-

sis of the concept of dealing in a commercial trans-

action. When a gift is made, business as such is not

being transacted. It is commonplace for the executor

of a decedent's estate to also be a donee. The fact that

the executor does not take the affirmative action of dis-

claiming the gift which he receives does not taint him

with dishonesty. If Appellee had gone into the open



market and had used his business ability to buy the

certificates at a discount, he would be in violation of

his trust.

The general duty of a trustee is well defined in

the Restatement, Trusts #201 . "A breach of trust is

a violation by the trustee of any duty which as a trustee

he owes to the beneficiary. " This duty certainly does

not, however, require that the trustee surrender all of

his property rights to the cestuis que trust. All they

are entitled to is the subject matter of the trust and all

of the rights, privileges, and benefits legitimately flow-

ing therefrom. It must be kept in mind that they did

receive the benefit of the money for which the certifi-

cates were issued.

II

WHAT IS THE DUTY OF A TRUSTEE?

It does not seem reasonable to hold that a trustee



is under a duty to disclaim a gift because such gift is

an obligation of the beneficiary or of the trustor, A

debt is not a trust, (Restatement, Trusts , #12).

The rule prohibiting a trustee from acquiring an

interest adverse to a beneficiary does not apply where

the interest is not a forseen or foreseeable conse-

quence of the employment. Burns v. Clark, 133 CaL

634.

"If the trustee enters into a transaction not

connected with the administration of the trust,

he is not accountable for a profit which may

result merely because the trust property is

indirectly affected thereby. " (Restatement,

Trusts, #203 e).

Furthermore, the trustor, or beneficiary, can

only assert ownership of the interest of the trustee

where bad faith of the trustee is shown, Snedeker v.



Ayers, 146 CaL 407.

Hugh Bridgford did not acquire these certificates

because of knowledge gained through his office as mana-

ger of the debtor in possession. They were given to him.

The transfer was voluntary. The duty of the Appellee

to the debtor in possession and the creditors had nothing

to do with the transfer. His position is no different

than if he acquired them by inheritance. Would Appel-

lant be entitled to a windfall of $30,000. 00 by reason

of such a bequest?

It is well established that a trustee may also be

a beneficiary of the trust. (54 Am. Jur. 102). Indeed

it is commonplace for an individual executor to be a

beneficiary. The authorities cite no instance in which

a Court has held that an executor could not be the donee

of a legatee.

Could R. H, Hadley have given the Appellee an



automobile or any sum of money which Appellee could

have lawfully kept as against the claim of Appellant?

The duty of a trustee does not proscribe his acceptance

of a gift, unless the gift be designed to influence his

judgment against the best interests of the beneficiary.

If Hadley had cashed in the certificates and given

the proceeds, or even a portion thereof to Appellee,

could Appellant have claimed them as against Appellee?

An answer in the affirmative would seem to re-

quire a trustee to grant all of his future pecuniary gains

to the beneficiaries, irrespective of the source thereof,

so long as the trust continues.

"A trustee is entitled to reimbursement for

his proper outlays, and it has been said that the

doctrine that trustees must be deprived of all

profits made by them out of trust funds must

not be pushed too far, lest it 'should inspire
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"'dread of all trusts and drive honest men from

their acceptance. ' Although a trustee generally

is not entitled to retain a bonus or gratuity re-

ceived from a third person as a consequence of

his administration of the trust, under some cir-

cumstances a trustee has been permitted to re-

tain a bonud or gratuity received from a third

person. A trustee has also been permitted to

retain compensation received by him as a direc-

tor or officer in a corporation, where stock that

he held in the corporation belonged to the trust

estate. " (54 Am. Jur. 249, 250).

A trustee may take part in a transaction concern-

ing the trust if done in good faith and without any pur-

pose of fraud. Snedeker v. Ayers, 146 Cal. 407.
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ni

THE DONOR, R. H, HADLEY, HAD A RIGHT
TO DISPOSE OF THE CERTIFICATES AS HE
SAW FIT.

Counsel for Appellant in his argument before this

Court flatly stated that the certificates would be entitled

to the priority accorded them by the United States Dis-

trict Court, had they been presented for payment by

R. H. Hadley.

The certificates were valuable property rights be-

longing to Hadley, the assignor. The certificates were

valid and the owner thereof had a right to use them or

dispose of them as he saw fit. In disposing of them as

he did, he wished to confer a benefit upon the Appellee.

There is no indication whatsoever that he desired or

intended to benefit the debtor in possession or its cre-

ditors. A donor is entitled to select the object of his

generosity. To hold that this gift now inures to the
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benefit of the creditors of the bankrupt rather than to

the Appellee would defeat the purpose of the donor and

destroy the right under the law which he has to select

the donee of the gift. Such a holding would circum-

scribe and place a limitation upon property rights which

finds no authority under the law.

If Appellee had secured the certificates by fraud,

presumably his assignor could secure a judgment set-

ting aside the assignment, and present them for payment.

This, however, has not been attempted. In fact Hadley

reaffirmed the gift in his testimony before the Referee.

IV

THESE CERTIFICATES WERE ENTITLED TO
PRIORITY m HADLEY'S HANDS AND THIS

PRIOR STATUS WAS NOT LOST BY THE GIFT.

Appellee is unable to reconcile the statements of

this Honorable Court in its opinion with reference to the

priority status or value of these Certificates in Mr.
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Hadley's hands. In one place in the opinion, it is

stated:

"The claim which on a Friday was worthless

in the hands of the owner ****"

On the other hand, the opinion also states:

"There is no need to consider **** the

status of the Certificates had they been

retained by Hadley *** ".

The priority status of these Certificates and

their value in Mr. Hadley' s hands has never been

questioned by Appellant. Appellant, in his Briefs in

the lower Courts, admitted that these Certificates in

Hadley 's hands were entitled to full pa5niient. Counsel

for Appellant in his argument before this Court re-

affirmed this admission „ This issue, being thus ad-

mitted, was not even briefed by Appellee in his Brief

filed in this Court.
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The opinion of this Honorable Court has the re-

sult of holding that these Certificates, purchased for

full value by Hadley, a Fiduciary, and having a

priority status entitled to full payment, completely

lost this priority and value when given by Hadley to

Mr. Bridgford, solely because Mr. Bridgford was

also a Fiduciary. This, it is submitted, is not

sound law, and Appellee respectfully suggests that

this result is obtained because of the failure of this

Court to appreciate that the priority status and value

of these Certificates in Mr. Hadley's hands was ad-

mitted and was not a contested issue before this

Court.

For the reasons stated above petitioner requests

that a rehearing be granted and that on such rehearing

the judgment of this Court be reversed, and the judgment
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NO. 14881

IN THE UNITED STATES COURT OF APPEALS

FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT

JOSE ANGEL OCON,

Appellant,

vs.

ALBERT DEL GUERCIO,
Acting Officer in Charge
of the Immigration and
Naturalization Service,
Los Angeles, California,

Appellee.

APPELLANT'S OPENING BRIEF

JURISDICTION

This is an appeal from a Judgment of the District

Court in favor of defendant. (Tr. of Rec. , P. 28) Juris-

diction below arose under Section 10 of the Administrative

Procedure Act, 5 U. S. Code Sec. 1009. Jurisdiction of

this court is conferred by 28 U. S. Code Sec. 1291.





I

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Appellant is a native and citizen of Mexico who legally

itered this Country in 1919 and has remained in the United

ates continually since that tinne. On September 1, 1953, a

irrant of arrest was issued by the District Director of the

imigration and Naturalization Service charging that appellant

IS subject to deportation under the Immigration and

itionality Act of 1952 because appellant had been a member

the Communist Party after entry into the United States,

id warrant of arrest was served on October 14, 1953, and

arings on the charge were begun on October 17, 1953.

L At the deportation hearing appellant objected to being

lorn as a witness prior to the introduction of the evidence

the Immigration Service. (S. R. 6) When appellant's

unsel was asked whether or not he also advised the

>pellant not to testify in the proceedings, appellant's

torney answered "l do so, Mr. Special Inquiry Officer,

this time. I will reserve further advice until after I

ar the evidence that the Government has to introduce.

. R. 6) Appellant also objected to the deportation hearing

1 the grounds that the statute under which the hearings were

ing conducted violated the First Amendment, the Fifth,

nth and Tenth Amendments to the Constitution as well as

e prohibition against ex post facto legislation and bills of

tainder (S. R. 7, 8). Two Government witnesses testified
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at the hearing that the appellant was a member of the Com-

munist Party; each testified as to different periods of time.

Neither corroborated the testimony of the other, nor were

documents of Communist Party membership introduced to

support the testimony of either witness. Motions were made

to strike the testimony of the witnesses and to dismiss the

proceedings, but said motions were denied. (S. R. 100 &

101)

The Special Inquiry Officer, in a decision dated

December 17, 1953, found that there was reasonable,

substantial and probative evidence to support the finding

that appellant was a member of the Communist Party from

1939 to 1942 and during part of 1949 and 1950 and ordered

the deportation of appellant. The Board of Immigration

A.ppeals, in a decision dated June 16, 1954, dismissed

appellant's appeal, stating that the testimony of the two

witnesses constituted "probative, reasonable, relevant and

substantial evidence establishing the respondent's member-

ship in the Communist Party of the United States. " The

Board of Immigration Appeals further agreed with the

Special Inquiry Officer that the finding of the Special Inquiry

Officer was "buttressed by the respondent's refusal to

testify, on the grounds that where, as here, there was a

duty to speak, silence is evidence of a most persuasive

character".

On July 28, 1954, appellant filed a complaint in the





court below for an injunction preventing the Immigration

and Naturalization Service from deporting him and requesting

a declaratory judgment that the order for deportation was

void and of no effect on the grounds that the deportation

proceedings were not supported by reasonable, substantive

and probative evidence and based upon incompetent evidence,

that the order was entered without observance of due process

and that the Administrative Procedure Act was violated, and

that the Immigration and Nationality Act of 1952 was void on

its face and as applied because it was in contravention of the

First, Fifth, Ninth and Tenth amendments of the United

States Constitution and because it constituted ex post facto

legislation and a bill of attainder.

SPECIFICATION OF ERRORS

(1) Finding of Fact IX (Tr. of Rec. P. 32) is

erroneous in that the only evidence to support the order of

deportation is based upon testimony which is incompetent

and which was hearsay and which was not the best evidence

and which was coupled with the fact that an inference

wrongfully was drawn from appellant's refusal to testify at

the deportation proceedings when the burden of proof in said

proceedings was on the Immigration and Naturalization

Service. Said evidence was not reasonable, substantial,

and probative.
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(2) Finding of Fact VIII (Tr. of Rec. P. 32) is

erroneous in that the Special Inquiry Officer had no jurisdic-

ion because he was not appointed, qualified or assigned

mrsuant to Section 11 of the Adnninistrative Procedure Act.

Finding of Fact VI, Tr. of Rec. P. 32. )

(3) Finding of Fact X (Tr. of Rec. P. 32) is

erroneous in that the Immigration and Nationality Act of 1952

s void on its face and as applied because it violates the

''irst, Fifth, Ninth and Tenth Amendments of the United

Jtates Constitution and in the instant case constitutes ex post

acto legislation, and is a bill of attainder.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The testimony of the two witnesses falls short of

'.onstituting reasonable, substantial and probative evidence

IS required by statute and the finding that appellant was a

nember of the Communist Party rests in part upon an

nference wrongfully drawn from his silence at the deporta-

ion proceedings. No documentary evidence was introduced

o support the charge and when the record is viewed as a

vhole, there is insufficient evidence to support the finding

)f Communist Party membership.

Appellant was entitled to a hearing before an officer

appointed, qualified and assigned under the terms of the

Administrative Procedure Act as well as to other procedural

I





uaranties provided by that Act.

Finally, the statute involved on its face and as

pplied denied appellant procedural and substantive due

rocess of law, and is an ex post facto law and a bill of

ttainder as well as limiting appellant's rights to speech

nd association contrary to the First and Fifth Amendments.

ARGUMENT

1. THE FINDING THAT APPELLANT IS

SUBJECT TO DEPORTATION BECAUSE

HE WAS A MEMBER OF THE COMMUNIST

PARTY IS NOT SUPPORTED BY REASON-

ABLE, SUBSTANTIAL AND PROBATIVE

EVIDENCE AS REQUIRED BY THE 1952

IMMIGRATION AND NATIONALITY ACT.

(A) STANDARD OF PROOF REQUIRED.

Section 242 (b) (4) of the Immigration and Nationality

\.ct provides that ^^no decision of deportability shall be valid

mless it is based upon reasonable, substantial and probative

ividence". Although Section 10(e) of the Administrative

Procedure Act provides for a similar standard of proof,

his standard is new in deportation statutes and was incor-

)orated for the first time in the Immigration and Nationality





^ct of 1952.

The phrase "substantial evidence" has been defined

s "more than a mere scintilla". It means such relevant

vidence as a reasonable mind might accept as adequate to

upport a conclusion. Consolidated Edison Company vs .

\. L. R. B . , 305 U. S. 197, 229. The evidence "must do

lore than create a suspicion of the existence of the fact to

e established ... it must be enough to justify, if the trial

^ere to a jury, a refusal to direct a verdict when the

onclusion sought to be drawn from it is one of fact for the

ary". N. L, R. B. vs. Columbian Enameling and Stamping

:ompany , 306 U. S. 292, 300.

i When faced with similar language concerning the

landard of proof regarding cases before the National Labor

delations Board, the Supreme Court clarified the nature of

tie standard of proof required and the burden placed upon

eviewing courts.

"it is fair to say that in all this Congress expressed

. mood. And it expressed its mood not merely by oratory

ut by legislation. As legislation that mood must be

'espected, even though it can only serve as a standard for

udgment and not as a body of rigid rule assuring sameness

f application. Enforcement of such broad standards implies

ubtlety of mind and solidity of judgment. But it is not for

s to question that Congress may assume such qualities in

he federal judiciary . . . Congress has left no room for
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oubt as to the kind of scrutiny which a court of appeals

lust give the record before the Board to satisfy itself that

^e Board's order rests on adequate proof. " Universal

lamera Corporation vs. N. L. R. B . , 340 U. S. 474, 487.

(B) EVIDENCE INTRODUCED.

The finding of fact that the appellant voluntarily was

member of the Communist Party of the United States from

939 to 1942 and during part of 1949 and 1950 rests upon the

jstimony of the two Government informants who testified

s to different periods of time of the alleged membership.

The first witness, Louis Rossei", testified that he

ad been present at four meetings attended by the appellant

rom 1939 to 1942, which meetings Rosser stated were

Jonnnnunist meetings. When asked whether or not he had

ersonally called these meetings or invited persons to

ttend them, Rosser stated that he did neither of these

tiings. (S. R. 23, 66-76, 80 and 88. )

Rosser further testified that he and the appellant

worked together in the unemployed movement on demonstra-

ions, grievance committees, delegations to the relief

leadquarters of the State, of the County, we went to all

ypes of sections of the County, Belvedere, Inglewood,

>roblems and so the only thing I saw him doing was working

laily in the unemployed movement . . .
". (S. R. 28) Rosser





further stated that he knew the plaintiff as a Communist

from their day to day work in the Workers Alliance but on

cross examination (S. R. 66, 68), he testified that many

non- Communists were members and active in the Workers

Alliance. He also said that many meetings attended by

non- Communists were held at the Workers Alliance head-

quarters where Communist Party meetings which the

appellant allegedly attended, were held. And when asked

whether or not any of the people Rosser termed Communist

co-workers in the Workers Alliance ever told him that they

were mem.bers of the Communist Party his answer was "No"

(S. R. P. 68).

^ Rosser admitted that when applying for admission

to U. C. L. A. he had stated that he had formerly attended

Phoenix J. C. (S. R. 45), but he also testified that other

than attendance at U. C. L. A, and Sacramento J. C. in 1925

he had no further education since leaving high school (S. R.

44). Further contradictions concerning Rosser's educational

background are contained in the record (S. R. 34-54) as well

as an admission that while in attendance at U. C. L. A. Rosser

agreed to have others take his examinations for him.

(S. R. 95) Further, Rosser testified to a series of arrests

and convictions for various charges involving moral

turpitude (S. R. 91, 92).

I No corroborating evidence of any kind was offered to

support the testimony of Rosser nor were any documents
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indicating Communist Party membership of the appellant

introduced at the deportation hearing. Appellant moved to

strike the testimony of Rosser as to appellant's membership

in the Communist Party and attendance at Communist Party

meetings on the grounds that the testimony was not the best

evidence as to Communist Party membership and was

hearsay but said motion was denied. (S. R. 100). Appellant

further moved to strike Rosser's testimony entirely as being

incompetent and of no probative value but said motion also

was denied (S. R. 101).

The second and last witness who testified that

appellant was a member of the Communist Party was Daniel

Scarletto who stated that he had attended Communist Party

meetings with the appellant. But Scarletto 's testimony also

was replete with contradictions. He first testified that the

appellant was "present at several meetings I attended"

(S. R. 106). But later Scarletto testified that appellant was

present at "fifteen or twenty that I can remember" (S. R.

107), Further, Scarletto testified that he collected

Communist Party dues from the appellant on "four or five

occasions" (S. R. 107) but later testified when asked on

cross examination on how many different occasions did

Mr. Ocon pay dues to him, "Oh, I would say about ten

different occasions" (S. R. 127). And again, when asked

whether or not he was incorrect when he previously stated

,that he collected dues on four or five occasions, Scarletto





answered "l might have got that a little mixed up there, we

wrangled it back and forth, but it was on several occasions"

(S. R. 128).

Scarletto's testimony contains other instances

of disregard for the truth. He had testified that he

went into the Communist Party at the suggestion of an FBI

agent. He was asked whether or not he knew the agent

before 1947 and stated "No" (S. R. 114). When then asked

whether or not the agent sought him out, Scarletto's

answer was "Oh, I knew him before '47. I knew him in

'46" (S. R. 114). Scarletto also testified that he was

employed by Lockheed Aircraft Corporation during the

course of his membership in the Communist Party and

indicated on his employment application that he was not a

Communist (S. R. 112). Further, when asked whether or

not at the time of his recruitment to the Communist Party

he truthfully answered a question as to whether or not he

knew any FBI agents, Scarletto stated "Well, that would

be kind of stupid, wouldn't it?" (S. R. 117).

I At the conclusion of Scarletto's testimony, appellant

moved to dismiss the proceedings because the entire

evidence offered by the Immigration Service was incom-

petent but said motion was denied (S. R. 136).

Although both witnesses testified that appellant

had attended "Communist meetings", the first witness

admitted that he personally had no part in the calling of

I





;hese meetings or inviting persons to attend them and it is

herefore obvious that he had no personal knowledge that

hese meetings were in fact restricted solely to members

)f the Communist Party. Nor is there any testimony in the

•ecord that the second witness called any meetings or

nvited persons to attend the alleged Communist Party

neetings that he stated appellant attended. The value of

his type of testimony was considered by the court in

bridges vs. United States , 199 Fed (2d) 811, where at

lage 836 it was stated:

"it is true that a number of witnesses

described some of these meetings which

Bridges attended, and at some of which he

presided, as 'closed' Communist meetings.

The logical fallacy in concluding from this

that Bridges must therefore have been a

Party member is that it assumes the truth

of that which is sought to be proven. If,

in fact, Bridges was not a Party member,

his presence at such a meeting would mean

no more than that he attended a meeting at

which every other person present was a

Party member. "

It is apparent therefore that in the instant case, if

he testimony of the two government informants were to be

)elieved in their entirety, the most that is contained in the
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record is that the appellant attended certain meetings at

which all others present other than the appellant were

Communists. Such evidence cannot be said to be "reasonable,

substantial and probative" and is certainly no more than a

scintilla. "Such evidence, although inconclusive and insuf-

ficient in itself, is relevant to the issue of Party member-

ship. " Acosta vs. Landon , 125 Fed. Supp. 434, 438.

(Emphasis added. )

Since neither government informant testified as

to the same period of time, the testimony of one did not

corroborate the testimony of the other in any way. Nor

wa.s^ documentary evidence of any kind offered at the

bearing to substantiate the charge that appellant was a

member of the Communist Party. The only evidence

presented was the testimony of the two informants.

The record reveals that both government witnesses

were being paid for their services as witnesses. When

the amount of his pay depends upon the discoveries he is

able to make, then that man becomes a dangerous instru-

ment. " Sopwith vs. Sopwith , 4 S. W. and T. R. 243, 247,

164 Eng. Rep. 1509. It is established law that the

testimony of paid professional witnesses should be

received with great caution and reserve. District of

Columbia vs. Clawans , 300 U. S. 617; Allen vs. Allen ,

285 Fed 962, MoUer vs. Moller , 115 N. Y. 466.

As was stated in Fletcher vs. United States , 158
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?ed (2d) 321 at Page 322:

"Granting that the credibility of the

testimony of a paid informer is for the jury

to decide, it nevertheless follows that where

the entire case depends upon his testimony,

the jury should be instructed to scrutinize it

closely for the purpose of determining whether

it is colored in such a way as to place guilt

upon a defendant in furtherance of the

witnesses' own interest. Here, admittedly,

the usefulness -- and for which he received

payment from the agent -- depended wholly

upon his ability to make out a case. No other

motive other than his own advantage impelled

him in all that he did. And when to this is

added the well recognized fact that a drug

addict is inherently a purjurer where his

own interests are concerned, it is manifest

either that some corroboration of his testimony

be required, or at least that it should be

received with suspicion and acted upon with

caution. The rule in this jurisdiction for a

quarter of a century has been to require that

a jury be warned in the case of evidence given

by a detective engaged in the business of

spying for hire.
"
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Nor should the rule of law be any different because

one of the informant witnesses became a memxber of the

Communist Party at the suggestion of the FBI. "l cannot

adopt the contention that Government spies are any more

trustworthy, or less disposed to make trouble in order to

profit therefrom, than are spies in private industry. Except

in time of war, when a Nathan Hale m.ay be a spy, spies are

always necessarily drawn from the unwholesome and un-

trustworthy classes. A right minded man refuses such a

job. " Colver vs. Skeffington , 265 Fed 17, 69.

The record further reveals that Rosser had been

convicted of crimes involving moral turpitude, could not

testify in any detail whatever concerning his own personal

background, although his testimony is detailed concerning

alleged attendance at meetings of the appellant, and adm.itted

falsification of school records, as well as admitting having

had examinations at a university taken in his name by

another. The witness Scarletto, as the evidence showed,

was extremely loose with the truth, on one occasion stating

that he had collected dues from the appellant on "four or

five occasions", at another stating that he had collected

dues "about ten times", and at a third time stating that he

had collected dues "at least several times". This witness

also admitted answering falsely a questionnaire for

employmient concerning his own membership in the

Communist Party. Although reviewing courts do not





review all the facts de novo , the substantial evidence rule

applies to the evidence when reviewed from the entire

record. Universal Camera Corporation vs. N. L. R. B . , 340

U. S. 474, and the courts can review all the facts, even the

.ssue of credibility. N. L. R. B. vs. Universal Camera

::orporation , 190 Fed (2d) 429. It has also been held that it

.s the major responsibility of the courts to review the

evidence. N. L. R. B. vs. Pittsburgh Steamship Company ,

340 U. S. 498. The Special Inquiry Officer's findings are

entitled to respect but they must nevertheless be set aside

vhen the record clearly precludes the Special Inquiry

Dfficer's decision from being justified by a fair estimate of

:he worth of the testimony of witnesses. Universal Camera

Corporation vs. N. L. R. B . , 340 U. S. 474, 490.

Both government witnesses admitted the telling of

Falsehoods; one testified in great detail concerning the

appellant but could supply no similar details concerning

tiis own personal life; the other made contradictory state-

ments concerning the alleged payment of dues by appellant;

neither witness corroborated the testimony of the other in

any degree; the testimony of neither was substantiated by

documentary evidence of any kind; both testified to

appellant's attendance at alleged Communist Party

meetings but there is a "logical fallacy" in concluding that

appellant must have been a Party member from this

testimony and such testimony is "inconclusive and





^sufficient in itself". Both witnesses were paid informers

nd the testimony of such witnesses should be scrutinized

closely for the purpose of determining whether it is

olored in such a way as to place guilt upon a defendant

1 furtherance of the witnesses' own interest". It cannot

e stated that the record contains more than a mere

cintilla of evidence concerning appellant's alleged

lommunist Party membership and that such evidence

alls far short of being "reasonable, substantial and

robative" evidence.

2. THE ADMINISTRATIVE ORDER OF

DEPORTATION RESTS UPON AN

UNSOUND LEGAL PREMISE, DRAWING

AN INFERENCE OF GUILT FROM

APPELLANT'S SILENCE AT THE

DEPORTATION HEARING, AND

MUST BE REVERSED EVEN THOUGH

THE DEPORTATION ORDER COULD

HAVE RESTED ON VALID PREMISES.

The decisions of the Special Inquiry Officer, and

>f the Board of Immigration Appeals in dismissing

ippellant's appeal, relied in part on appellant's silence

It the deportation hearing. Thus it is stated on page 1

)f the Opinion of the Board of Immigration Appeals that
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the finding of prior membership in the Communist Party

"is based on the testimony of two government witnesses

and the alien's own refusal to testify in the course of the

deportation proceedings, on advice of counsel". The

Opinion continues on page 2: "He [the Special Inquiry

Officer] also found it buttressed by the respondant's

failure to testify, on the grounds that where, as here,

there was a duty to speak, silence is evidence of a most

persuasive character".

Previous court decisions have held that it is

permissible to draw inferences from silence in deportation

cases, but these same decisions considered that the scope

of judicial review was limited to a determination of whether

or not the hearing was fair. United States ex rel Bilokumsky

v s. Tod , 263 U. S. 149; United States ex rel Vajtauer vs.

Commissioner of Immigration , 273 U. S. 103. This was

because prior to the passage of the 1952 Immigration and

Nationality Act, the validity of deportation orders could be

reviewed only by proceedings in habeas corpus. Heikkila

vs. Barber , 345 U. S. 229. Therefore, the scope of review

was limited to determining whether or not the alien had

obtained a fair hearing. The language of the 1952 Immigra-

tion Act, however, requires that deportation orders be based

upon reasonable, substantial and probative evidence and

therefore the courts are no longer limited in determining

jonly whether or not the hearing accorded the non-citizen





;vas fair but must also determine whether or not the

evidence produced meets the statutory requirement. The

^Ider cases which allowed inferences to be drawn from,

silence did so from the point of view of determining merely

whether or not the hearing accorded was a fair one, but they

iid not determine whether or not the record contained

reasonable, substantial and probative evidence to support

;he deportation order.

Moreover, even when an inference from silence

vas drawn, it was drawn only when the court held that

;here was a duty upon the defendant to speak. Thus in the

:ase of United States ex rel Vajtauer vs. Commissioner of

Immigration , 273 U. S. 103, the court states as follows at

Dage 111:

"Attention is directed to the fact that

the refusal to testify was based upon the

supposed right of the witness not to be

called upon to testify until- all the evidence

in support of the warrant was presented,

and it is said that if silence is induced by

a person's 'doubts of his rights or by a

belief that his security will be best promoted

by his silence, then no inference of assent

can be drawn from that silence. ' Citing

Conn, vs. Kenny , 12 NETC 235, 237;

People vs. Pfanschmidt , 262 111 411, 499.
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I But these cases merely apply the rule that

no inference may be drawn from silence when

there is no duty to speak, a rule which is not

applicable where the witness is sworn and

under a legal duty to give testimony which

is not privileged. " (Emphasis added, )

In the Vajtauer case, the alien was sworn in the

)roceedings and the court drew an inference from his

;ilence, but recognized the principle that no inference

rom silence should be drawn when the person was not

iworn and there was no duty to speak. The appellant in

he instant case was not sworn and did not testify on the

rrounds that the burden was on the Immigration and

*Taturalization Service to prove its case by reasonable,

substantial and probative evidence without the testimony of

ippellant. (Tr. of Rec. , P. 6. ) No duty to speak was

herefore upon appellant.

In the case of United States ex rel Bilokumsky vs.

rod , 263 U. S. 149, the alien stood mute as to the issue of

ilienage and alienage was inferred from his silence. How-

ever, the court stated in that case at page 154: "Since

ilienage is not an element of the crime of sedition,

estifying concerning his status could not have had a

endency to incriminate him". The Supreme Court thereby

'ecognized a further exception to the rule that guilt can be

nferred from silence by implying that no inference could





be drawn from silence when the testimony called for could

be incriminating. There can be no question that the

testimony called for in the instant case could be

incriminating.

Further, the very phrase that "silence is evidence

when there is a duty to speak" assumes that there is a duty

upon the alien to speak in deportation proceedings when in

truth and in fact the burden of proving the grounds for

deportation rests upon the Immigration and Naturalization

Service and not upon the alien. U. S. ex rel Belfrage vs.

Shaughnessy , 113 Fed Supp. 56.

However, whatever the rule may have been con-

cerning the permissibility in certain instances of an

inference from silence in a limited review afforded by

habeas corpus proceedings, it cannot be said that in face

of the new standard of review imposed by the statute

applicable here that silence of the appellant is an item of

reasonable, substantial and probative evidence. Even

under the old standard courts did not consider a failure

to testify to be anything more that supporting evidence of

a case already made out by other evidence. In United

States vs. Reimer , 79 Fed (2d) 315, the court stated at

page 317:

"while the relator's refusal to answer as to his

belief in the overthrow of organized government may have

some evidential force . . . it is no m.ore than a scintilla





n the setting here. We have not yet reached the point

inhere proof of one's belief can rest solely upon his refusal

o answer questions concerning it. " And it is clear that

/hen the silence is occasioned by questions which could be

ncriminating, such silence is not evidence.

"But whatever the underlying motivation,

an invocation of the Fifth Amendment is no

ground at all for an inference of guilt or of

criminal proclivities. The privilege created

by the amendment 'is for the innocent as well

as the guilty' and no inference can be drawn

against the person claiming it that he fears

that he is 'engaging in doing something for-

bidden by Federal law'. Spector vs. United

States , 9 Cir. 193 Fed (2d) 1002 at Page 1006.

Wigmore on Evidence, 3rd Ed. , Vol. VIII,

Section 2251. For the history of the con-

stitutional privilege see Judge Frank's

dissenting opinion in U. S. vs. St. Pierre ,

2 Cir. , 132 Fed (2d) 837, 842, 147 A. L. R.

240. And since an invocation of the

amendment made on legally sufficient

grounds does not give rise to an inference

of substantive criminality, of course an

invocation made upon insufficient grounds

may not serve as a basis for such inference.
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At most, an improper refusal to testify,

if persisted in -- as seems not to have been

the case here -- might constitute grounds

for conviction of criminal contempt.
"

United States ex rel Belfrage vs.

Shaughnessy , 212 Fed (2d) 128, 130.

And see Blau vs. U. S. , 340 U. S. 159;

Emspak vs. U. S. , 349 U. S. 190.

' Whatever inference may have been allowed under a

.imited review in habeas corpus proceedings, under the

lew standard of review the silence of an alien at his de-

Dortation hearing should not be construed as supplying a

lap in the proof. United States vs. Holton , 222 Fed. (2d)

340.

j

The decisions of the Special Inquiry Officer and

:he Board of Immigration Appeals rest upon an unsound

Legal premise, that of drawing an inference from appellant's

silence, although the statute requires that findings be based

apon reasonable, substantial and probative evidence. Under

such a statute there was no justification in placing any

reliance upon appellant's silence. Since the order of

deportation was based upon an unsound legal premise, it

naust, for that reason alone, be remanded for further

jadministrative determination. See N. L. R. B. vs. Virginia

Electric & Power Com.pany . 314 U. S. 469; S. E. C. vs.

Chenery Corporation , 318 U.S. 80; Federal Power





Commission vs. Idaho Power Company , 344 U. S. 17, 20.

3. APPELLANT WAS DENIED A HEARING

BEFORE AN OFFICER APPOINTED,

QUALIFIED AND ASSIGNED PURSUANT

TO THE ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURE

ACT AND WAS DENIED A FAIR HEARING

PURSUANT TO THE TERMS OF SAID ACT.

The court below found that the Special Inquiry

Officer who presided at the deportation hearing was not

appointed, qualified or assigned pursuant to the provisions

of Section 1 1 of the Administrative Procedure Act (Finding

of fact VI, Tr. of Rec. , P. 32) and that the Special Inquiry

Officer was subject at all times to the supervision and

control of the Attorney General (Finding of fact VII, Tr.

of Rec. , P. 32).

Appellant contends that he was entitled to a hearing

based upon the terms of the Administrative Procedure Act

and was entitled to have presiding at that hearing a Special

Inquiry Officer appointed, qualified and assigned pursuant

to that Act. Marcello vs. Bonds , 349 U. S. 302, held

that under the terms of the 195 2 Act deportation pro-

ceedings were exempt from the hearing provisions of the

Administrative Procedure Act. But that case did not

decide nor even consider the applicability of Section 11 of





:he Administrative Procedure Act concerning the appoint-

nent, qualification and assignment of hearing officers.

'The issue here presented is whether the Congress reversed

tself in the 1952 Immigration Act and, in effect, reinstated

he Sung case by making the hearing provisions of the

Administrative Procedure Act directly applicable to

leportation proceedings. " Marcello vs. Bonds , 349 U. S.

102, 305.

The opinion of Mr. Justice Clark in the Marcello

;ase rests upon the proposition that the language appearing

n Section 242 (b) of the 1952 Immigration Act stating that

'the procedure so prescribed shall be the sole and ex-

clusive procedure for determining the deportability of an

ilien under this section" was sufficiently explicit to over-

come the wording of Section 12 of the Administrative

Procedure Act that "no subsequent legislation shall be held

o supersede or modify the provisions of this Chapter

jxcept to the extent that such legislation shall do so

expressly". But there is no unanimity to this point of

/iew. As was pointed out by Mr. Justice Black at page 316:

"Both the Procedure Act and the 1952

Immigration Act were sponsored by Senator

McCarran and Representative Walter. Their

original proposals which finally evolved into

the 1952 Act did expressly provide that the

Procedure Act should not control proceedings
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under the Immigration Act. The provision

was that 'Notwithstanding any other law,

including the Act of June 11, 1946
,

[the

Administrative Procedure Act] the pro-

ceedings so prescribed shall be the sole

and exclusive procedure for the deporta-

bility of an alien who is in the United

States' (foot note). Hearings on these

proposals brought strong protests from

some organizations, including the American

Bar Association, against the provision

making the Administrative Procedure Act

inapplicable to deportation proceedings

(foot note). Afterwards the sponsors of

the Immigration measures introduced new

bills which significantly omitted from that

provision the words 'Notwithstanding any

other law, including the Act of June 11,

1946 [the Administrative Procedure Act]'.

Consequently when the bill finally passed,

there was no language which 'expressly'

superseded or modified the binding

requirement of Section 5 (c) of the

Administrative Procedure Act.
"

And it may further be pointed out that on previous

occasions when Congress has seen fit to exempt an agency
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"rom the terms of the Administrative Procedure Act, it has

ilways done so clearly and expressly. For example,

Chapter III of the Supplemental Appropriation Act of 1951,

A.ct of September 27, 1950, 64 Stat. 1044, 1048, stated:

'Proceedings under law relating to the exclusion or ex-

:)ulsion of aliensshall hereafter be without regard to the

provisions of Sections 5, 7 and 8 of the Administrative

Procedure Act (5 U. S. C. 1004, 1006, 1007)." Similarly

vorded statutes have been passed in regard to agencies

dealing with problems other than that of Immigration. Thus,

Section 16 of the Rubber Act of 1948, 62 Stat. 108, 50

a. S. C. A. App. Section 1935 (Supp. ) 1952, states:

'Functions exercised under this Act shall be excluded

'rom the operation of the Administrative Procedure Act

except as to the requirements of Sections 3 and 10 thereof.

Section 5 of the Second Decontrol Act of 1947, 61 Stat. 323,

30 U. S. C. A. App. 1900, provided that: "The functions

exercised under Title III of the Second War Powers Act,

1942, as amended (including the amendm.ents to existing

law made by such Title), and the functions exercised

under Section VI of such Act of July 2, 1940, as amended,

shall be excluded from the operations of the Administrative

Procedure Act (60 Stat. 237) except as to the requirements

of Sections 3 and 10 thereof. " Also, Section 7 of the

Export Controls Act of 1949, 63 Stat. 9, 50 U. S. C. A. App.

2027, provided that: "The functions exercised under this
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\ct shall be excluded from the operation of the Administra-

ive Procedure Act (60 Stat. 237), except as to the require-

nents of Section III thereof.
"

An additional form of the clear and express

(xemption or exclusion from the terms of the Administra-

ive Procedure Act used by Congress was to amend Section

t(a) of the Administrative Procedure Act itself by adding

o the list of named exclusions to the Act therein contained,

rhus, the Veteran Emergency Housing Act of 1946 was

xcluded in this manner, 60 Stat. 918, 60 Stat. 993; as

/as the Sugar Control Extension Act of 1947, 61 Stat. 37;

md the Selective Service Training Act of 1940, 61 Stat. 201,

LS well as the Housing and Rent Act of 1947, 61 Stat. 201.

Therefore, in view of the fact that the exclusion

»f the hearing provisions of the Administrative Procedure

Vet is only implied by language contained in the 1952

mmigration Act, and such an implied exclusion is a

lovel departure from the express exclusion required by

he Administrative Procedure Act, the exclusion should

lot be broadened to cover provisions of the Administrative

Procedure Act pertaining to the appointment, qualification

md assignment of hearing officers, especially when said

provision of the Administrative Procedure Act was not

;ven considered by the court in the Marcello case. This

.s all the more true since the practice of comingling of

'unctions in administrative agencies remains condemned
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y the courts regardless of the decision in the Marcello

ase. Wong Yang Sung vs. McGrath , 339 U. S. 33.

4. THE 1952 IMMIGRATION AND NATIONALITY

ACT VIOLATES THE CONSTITUTION.

A. THE CONSTITUTION APPLIES

TO ALIENS AS PERSONS AND

DEPORTATION AS A POWER.

^rom the earliest date in our national history, it

/as made clear that the constitution is superior and

)aramount law to enactments of Congress. Thus, it was

stated by the Supreme Court in Marbury vs. Madison ,

L Cranch 137. 177:

j

"The constitution is either a superior

paramount law, unchangeable by ordinary

means, or it is on a level with ordinary

legislative acts, and, like other acts, is

alterable when the legislature shall please

to alter it.
"

"The authority of constitutions over

governments and of the sovereignty of the

people over constitutions are truths which

are at all times necessary to be kept in

mind; and at no time like the present.
"
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Madison's Report on the Virginia

Resolution , 4 Elliott's Debates,

Page 550.

Although cases have stated that the power of Congress

n dealing with immigration and deportation is plenary,

3alvan vs. Press , 347 U. S. 522; Harisiades vs. Shaughnessy .

142 U.S. 580; Carlson vs. Landon , 342 U. S. 524, this must

>f necessity be subordinate to the ultimate plenary power

vhich lies in the people as expressed in the Constitution.

Jnder the Constitution, only the people as a whole are

sovereign and only their authority is plenary. All laws

jnacted by Congress are subordinate and governed by the

)rovisions and confines of the Constitution.

Thus it has been held specifically that the

Constitution applies to aliens as persons. See Bridges vs.

California , 314 U.S. 252; Yick Wo vs. Hopkins , 118 U.S.

^56; Bridges vs. Wixon , 326 U. S. 135, 148; Schneiderman

^s. United States , 320 U. S. 118. Aliens are entitled to

jrotection of the Fifth and Sixth Amendments in criminal

proceedings, Wong Wing vs. U. S. , 163 U.S. 228; they may

.nvoke the writ of habeas corpus to protect their personal

Liberty, Nishimura Ekiu vs. U.S ., 142 U.S. 651; they are

entitled to economic opportunity, Yick Wo vs. Hopkins ,

118 U. S. 356; and property cannot be taken from aliens

ivithout just compensation, Russian Volunteer Fleet vs .

U. S . , 282 U. S. 481.
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It is equally clear that the Constitution also applies

;o deportation as a power. See the Japanese Immigrant

:ase (Yamataya vs. Fisher ) 189 U. S. 86; Fong Yue Ting vs .

Jnited States , 149 U.S. 698; Wong Wing vs. United States ,

163 U. S. 228. The law is undisputed that the Constitutional

Guarantee of due process applies, at least as to the pro-

:edure in deportation proceedings, and the hearing given

Dersons charged with deportable offenses must be fair and

must abide by fundamental procedural safeguards.

Kwock Jan Fat vs. White , 253 U. S. 454; Yamataya vs .

Fisher , 189 U. S. 86; Kwong Hai Chew vs. Colding , 344

Q. S. 590; Wong Yang Sung vs. McGrath , 339 U. S. 33;

Heikkila vs. Barber , 345 U. S. 229; Johnson vs.

Eisentrager , 339 U. S. 63; Bridges vs. Wixon , 326 U. S.

135; Kessler vs. Strecker , 307 U. S. 22; Shaughnessy vs .

Mezei , 345 U. S. 206; Galvan vs. Press , 347 U. S. 522;

Carlson vs. Landon , 342 U. S. 524; United States ex rel

Vajtauer vs. Commissioner , 273 U. S. 103; United States

2X rel Bilokumsky vs. Tod , 263 U. S. 149; Tang Tun vs .

Edsell , 223 U. S. 673.

The parent case of the doctrine that Congress has

"plenary" powers in the field of deportation is that of Fong

Yue Ting vs. United States , 149 U. S. 698. This case held

that the Chinese Exclusion Act of 1892 was valid and

constitutional over the objections that the provisions of the

Act violated the due process clause. The authority of that
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case has seriously been undermined in several respects.

First, the Fong case assumed the power of Congress to

jiscrim.inate in deportation on the basis of race alone

^vhereas government discrimination on the basis of race

alone has recently been held to violate the Constitution.

Shelley vs. Kramer , 334 U. S. 1; Barrows vs. Jackson ,

346 U.S. 249; Brown vs. Board of Education , 347 U. S. 483,

second opinion 349 U. S. 294; Boiling vs. Sharpe, 347 U. S.

497, second opinion 349 U. S. 294. The Fong case is

further undermined as precedent because it was decided

prior to the decision in the numerous cases listed above

holding that aliens in deportation proceedings are entitled

to procedural due process. The Fong case was antedated

by Kwock Jan Fat vs. White , 253 U. S. 454, but in that

case the alien claimed to be a United States citizen and it

was there held that he was entitled to procedural due process.

Further, the Fong case confuses the issue of

deportation with that of exclusion and also confuses and

glosses over the power of a sovereign government to

exclude or expel non-citizens with the limitations on that

power contained in the due process clause of the

Constitution. One of the sources cited by the majority

opinion in the Fong case for the proposition that the

government of a sovereign state has the power to exclude

or expel aliens makes it clear that this power may be

limited by the domestic laws of the country, "The exercise
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f this right [to deport aliens] may be subjected, doubtless,

o certain forms by the domestic laws of each country; but

he right exists, nonetheless, universally recognized and

lut in force. " 2 Ortolan Diplomatie de la Mer (4th Ed)

:hap. 14, P. 297. The "form" of domestic law which

imits the right to deport aliens in this instance is the due

irocess clause contained in the Fifth Amendment to the

Constitution.

"it is said that the power here asserted

is inherent in sovereignty. This doctrine of

powers inherent in sovereignty is one both

indefinite and dangerous. Where are the

limits to such powers to be found, and by

whom are they to be pronounced? Is it

within legislative capacity to declare the

limits? If so, then the mere assertion of

an inherent power creates it, and despotism

exists. May the courts establish the

boundaries? vVhence do they obtain the

authority for this? Shall they look to the

practice of other nations to ascertain the

limits? The governments of other nations

have elastic powers -- ours is fixed and

bounded by a written constitution. The

explulsion of a race may be within the

inherent powers of a despotism. History,
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before the adoption of this Constitution,

was not destitute of examples of the

exercise of such a power; and its framers

were familiar with history, and wisely, as

it seems to me, they gave to this government

no general power to banish. Banishment

maybe resorted to as punishment for crime;

but among the powers reserved to the people

and not delegated to the government is that

of determining whether whole classes in our

midst shall, for no crime but that of their

race and birthplace, be driven from our

territory.

''Whatever may be true as to exclusion,

and as to that see Chae Chan Ping vs. United

States , 130 U.S. 581, and Ekiu vs. United

States , 142 U. S. 651, I deny that there is any

arbitrary and unrestrained power to banish

residents even resident aliens. What, it may

be asked, is the reason for any difference?

The answer is obvious. The Constitution

has no extraterritorial effect, and those who

have not come lawfully within our territory

cannot claim any protection from its

provisions. And it may be that the national

government, having full control of all matters
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relating to other nations, has the power to

build, as it were, a Chinese wall around our

borders and absolutely forbid aliens to enter.

But the Constitution has potency everywhere

within the limits of our territory and the

powers which the national government may

exercise within such limits are those, and

only those, given to it by that instrument.

Now, the power to remove resident aliens is,

confessedly, not expressed. Even if it be

annong the powers implied, yet still it can be

exercised only in subordination to the

limitations and restrictions im.posed by the

Constitution. In the case of Monongahela Nav .

Co. vs. United States , ante, p. 463, it was

said: 'But like the other powers granted to

Congress by the Constitution, the power to

regulate commerce is subject to all the

limitations imposed by such instrument,

and among them is that of the 5th Amendment

we have heretofore quoted. Congress has

supreme control over the regulation of

commerce; but if, in exercising that

supreme control, it deems it necessary

to take private property, then it must

proceed subject to the limitations imposed
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by this 5th Amendment, and can take only

on payment of just compensation'. And if

that be true of the powers expressly granted,

it must as certainly be true of those that

are only granted by implication. " Fong Yue Ting

vs. United States, 149 U. S. 738 dissenting opinion

of Mr. Justice Brewer.

Appellant does not question "the government's

power to terminate its hospitality", Harisiades vs .

Shaughnessy , 342 U. S. 580, 587, but maintains that this

power or any other power granted to the government by

the Constitution must be exercised with fairness and must

afford due process of law. Due process limits even the

war powers, Hamilton vs. Kentucky Distilleries , 251 U. S.

146; no less does due process limit powers only impliedly

granted by the Constitution.
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B. THE IMMIGRATION AND NATION-

ALITY ACT VIOLATES DUE PROCESS

IN THAT THE STATUTE NEITHER

ESTABLISHES NOR IS PURSUANT TO

ANY REASONABLE STANDARD, NOR

IS IT RATIONAL, NOR DOES IT GIVE

ADEQUATE WARNING OR HEARING

RIGHTS.

The Immigration and Nationality Act establishes as

a basis for deportation merely the fact of prior member-

ship or association in a named organization, the Communist

Party. This basis of deportation is established without

reference to any standard of conduct or without a charge,

trial or a hearing being given the named organization and

is obviously an attempted exercise of arbitrary power

unlimited by any reasonable standard.

In the case of Yick Wo vs. Hopkins , 118 U. S. 356,

it was stated at page 369 and 370 by the Supreme Court

that:

"When we consider the nature and the

theory of our institutions of government,

the principles upon which they are supposed

to rest, and review the history of their

development, we are constrained to conclude

that they do not mean to leave room for the
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play and action of purely personal and

arbitrary power . . . But the fundamental

rights of life, liberty and the pursuit of

happiness considered as individual

possessions, are secured by those

maxims of constitutional law which are the

monuments showing the glorious progress

of the race in securing to men the blessings

of civilization under the reign of just and

equal laws, so that, in the famous language

of the Massachusetts Bill of Rights, the

government of the Commonwealth 'may be a

government of laws, and not of men'. For the

very idea that one man may be compelled to

hold his life, or the means of living, or any

material right essential to the enjoyment of

life, at the mere will of another, seems to

be intolerable in any country where freedom

prevails, as being the essence of slavery

itself.
"

It is immaterial that the arbitrary attempt to exercise

the power in the instant case is asserted by Congress.

Thomas Jefferson, in his Notes on the State of Virginia,

page 195, has stated:

"it will be no alleviation, that these

powers will be executed by a plurality of

1
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hands, and not by a single one. One Hundred

and seventy-three despots would surely be as

oppressive as one. As little will it avail us,

that they are chosen by ourselves. An

elective despotism was not the government

we fought for; but one which should not only

be founded on free principles, but in which

the power of government should be so divided

and balanced among several bodies of

magistracy, as that no one could ever

transcend their legal limits.

And as has been said by Mr. Justice Douglas, con-

curring in Joint Anti-Fascist Refugee Committee vs .

McGrath , 341 U.S. 123. 177:

"it is not enough to know that the

men applying the standard are honorable

and devoted men. This is a government

of laws not of men. "

Under our constitution nothing can be law which "is

purely arbitrary and acknowledges neither guidance nor

restraint", Yick Wo vs. Hopkins , Supra, at page 367.

Accord: Musser vs. Utah , 333 U. S. 95, 97.

Stated another way, law in our system "cannot be

arbitrary fiat" but rather "must be the result of a process

of reasoning . . . This is inherent in the meaning of

'determination'. It is implicit in a government of laws and
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lot of men. Joint Anti- Fascist Refugee Committee vs .

McGrath, 341 U.S. 123, 136.

Law without reason offends the most elementary-

concept of ordered society and a law without standard also

Dffends elementary concepts of society.

"No reason for it is shown, and a

conclusion cannot be resisted that no reason

for it exists except hostility to the race and

nationality to which the petitioners belong . . .

The imprisonment of the petitioners is

therefore illegal and they must be dis-

charged. " Yick Wo vs. Hopkins , 118 U.S.

356, 374.

A law which is "irrational" is therefore uncon-

stitutional and no law at all. Perez vs. Sharp , 32 Cal (2d)

711, 713. Under our Constitution law may not depart from

reason. Pot vs. United States , 319 U. S. 463; Morrison vs ,

California , 291 U. S. 82; Bailey vs. Alabama . 219 U. S.

219; Prentis vs. Atlantic Coast Supply & Company, 211

U.S. 210, 226; and Opp Cotton Mills vs. Administrator ,

312 U.S. 126, 145.

"Legislative fiat may not take the

place of fact in the judicial determination

of issues involving life, liberty or property.
"

Western and Atlantic Railroad vs. Henderson , 279

U. S. 639, 642.
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it is not within the province of a legis-

lature to declare an individual guilty or pre-

sumptively guilty of a crime. " McFarland vs.

American Sugar Company , 241 U. S. 79, 86.

Thus statutes have been held "void for vagueness"

iJnited Stated vs. Cohen Grocery Company , 255 U.S. 81;

Lanzetta vs. New Jersey, 396 U.S. 451; A. B. Small

Company vs. American Sugar Refining Company , 267 U. S.

233. The rule of these cases that overly vague standards

are void standards under the Constitution is not confined to

criminal prosecution only.

"The defendant attempts to distinguish

those cases because they were criminal prose-

cutions. But that is not an adequate distinction.

The ground or principle of the decisions was

not such as to be applicable only to criminal

prosecutions. It was not the criminal penalty

that was held invalid, but the exaction of

obedience to a rule or standard which was so

vague and indefinite as really to be no rule or

standard at all. Any other means of exaction,

such as declaring the transaction unlawful,

or stripping a participant of his rights under

it, was equally within the principle of those

cases. " A. B. Small Company vs. American

Sugar Refining Company, Supra,
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Page 239.

The Supreme Court has said that to penalize or

convict a man "upon a charge not made would be sure denial

of due process". Dejonge vs. Oregon , 299 U. S. 353, 362.

The statute which penalizes and convicts on a charge never

formulated in the law offends the fundamentals of due

process even more violently.

The statute at bar condemns membership in an

organization without any hearing whatever for the

organization. True, the individual is afforded a hearing

to ascertain whether or not he was a member of such

organization, but the assumption that membership in said

organization is deportable nowhere receives a hearing.

It is fundamental in the law that as to the most

humble matter of right, interest, liability or property,

any and all men are entitled of right to a hearing before

being adjudged liable and accountable under any law. Under

law every threatened or affected man "is entitled, upon the

most fundamental principles, to a day in court". Coe vs .

Armour Fertilizer Works , 237 U.S. 413, 423.

This principle also is not limited to criminal areas

but applies to civil matters as well, and particularly where

penalties, forfeitures or intrusions upon liberty are

entailed.

"Notice and opportunity to be heard

J

are fundamental to due process of law. We
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would reverse these cases out of hand if

they were suits of a civil nature to establish

a claim against petitioners. Notice and

opportunity to be heard are indispensable

to a fair trial whether the case be criminal

or civil. See Coe vs. Armour Fertilizer

Works , 237 U.S. 413, 424, 59 Law. Ed.

288, 298, 58 S.Ct. 149; Re: Oliver 333 U. S.

257, 273, 92 Law. Ed. 682, 694, 68 S. Ct.

499. " Joint Anti- Fascist Refugee Committee

vs. McGrath , 341 U. S. 123, 178, Mr. Justice

Douglas concurring.

"Are these acts of the legislature

which effect only particular persons, and

their particular privileges, laws of the land?

Let this question be answered by the text of

Blackstone, and first: It (the law) is a rule,

not a transient sudden order from a superior

to or concerning a particular person, but

something permanent, uniform and universal;

therefore, a particular act of the legislature

to confiscate the goods of Titius or to attaint

him of high treason, does not enter into the

idea of a municipal law, for the operation of

this act is spent upon Titius only, and has no

relation to the community in general ... By
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the law of the land is most clearly indicated

the general law --a law which hears before

it condemns, which proceeds upon inquiry

and renders judgment only after trial. The

meaning is that every citizen shall hold his

life, liberty, property and immunities under

the protection of the general rules which

govern society. Everything which may pass

under the form of enactment is not therefore

to be considered the law of the land. If this

was so, acts of attainder, bills of pains and

penalties, acts of confiscation, acts reversing

judgments, and acts directly transferring one

man's estate to another, would be the law of

the land. Such a strange construction would

render constitutional provisions of the

highest importance inoperative and void. It

would tend to establish the union of all powers

in the Legislature. There would be no general

permanent law for courts to administer or men

to live under. The administration of justice

would be an empty form, an idle cerennony;

judges would sit to execute legislative judgments

and decrees, not to declare the law, or to

administer the justice of the country.
"

5 Webster's Works 487, set forth in full in
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Dartmouth College vs. V/oodworth , 17 U. S.

250, 278-9, 4 Wheat 517, 580-2.

Legislation affecting particular individuals or groups

)y name was described in In Re Campbell , 64 Cal App 300,

302, as "so far afield of any reasonable conception of the

3xercise of legislative power of this country, as it is

defined, qualified, and limited by our constitutions, that

the specific ground upon which or reason for which its

invalidity is to be declared is of no material consequence".

And as was stated by the Supreme Court of

California in Communist Party vs. Peek , 20 Cal (2d) 536

at Page 549:

"For example, it is clearly within the

power of the legislature to determine as a

fact that, in the public interest, all diseased

cattle should be destroyed, but it is not within

the legislative power to determine that John

Smith's cattle are diseased.
"

And as was said by Mr. Justice Brewer in his

dissent in Fong Yue Ting vs. U. S. , 149 U. S. 698, 742:

"it is true this statute is directed

only against the obnoxious Chinese; but

if the power exists, who shall say it will

not be exercised tomorrow against other

classes and other people? If the guaranties

of these Amendments can be thus ignored,

-45-





in order to get rid of this distasteful class,

what security have others that a like disregard

of its provisions may not be resorted to?"

C. THE STATUTE AT BAR IS

UNCONSTITUTIONAL AS A

BILL OF ATTAINDER AND AN

EX POST FACTO LAW.

In nanning the Communist Party, and listing

membership in the Communist Party prior to the date of

the law's enactment, as a ground for the penalty of

deportation, the statute involved constitutes a bill of

attainder and an ex post facto law. Although it has been

said that deportation is not criminal and therefore the

bill of attainder and ex post facto provisions of the Con-

stitution do not apply, what is required to render

applicable these protective guarantees of the Constitution

is punishment, not criminality. Conceded by the cases

is the fact that imposition of some civil penalties may

be sufficiently punishing in purpose and effect as to lie

within the protected area of immunity. See Cummings vs .

Missouri , 4 Wall 277; Ex Parte Garland, 4 Wall 333;

United States vs. Lovett , 328 U. S. 303 (disqualification

from professions); Pierce vs . Carskadon , 16 Wall 234

(denial of access to the courts); Burgess vs. Sammon ,
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}7 U. S. 381 (exaction of tax); and Fletcher vs. Peck , 6

branch 87 (seizure of property).

Although deportation cases are civil in fornn,

deportation may be as severe a punishment as loss of

ivelihood. Bridges vs. Wixon , 326 U. S. 135, 154. It

nay "deprive a man of all that makes life worth living",

Nfg Fung Ho vs. White , 259 U. S. 276, 284; and "deportation

s a drastic measure and at times the equivalent of

Danishment or exile". Fong Haw Tan vs. Phelan , 333 U. S.

), 10.

Although "deportation, however severe its con-

sequences, has been consistently classified as a civil

rather than a criminal procedure", Harisiades vs .

ahaughnessy , 342 U. S. 580, 594, the courts, nevertheless,

lave held that because of the drastic consequences of de-

Dortation substantially the same due process standards

:hat apply in criminal cases should also apply in deporta-

:ion cases. Jordan vs. DeGeorge , 341 U. S. 223; Bridges

/s. Wixon , 326 U.S. 135; Fong Haw Tan vs. Phelan . 333

U.S. 6.

The test for the application of ex post facto and bill

)f attainder prohibitions established by the decisions is

vhether the statute creates an impersonal qualification of

Drivilege or imposes a penalty with an eye to compliance

vith rules of conduct.

Thus in Hawker vs. New York , 170 U. S. 189, at 198,
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le court stated:

"it was held that, as many of the

matters provided for in these oaths, had

no relation to the fitness or qualification

of the two parties, the one to follow the

profession of a minister of the gospel and

the other to act as an attorney and counselor,

the oaths should be considered, not legitimate

tests of qualifications, but in the nature of

penalties for past offenses.
"

In Dent vs. West Virginia , 129 U. S. 114, at 126,

le court said: "As many of the acts from which the

Eirties were obliged to purge themselves by the oath had

D relation to their fitness for the pursuits of the profession

esignated, the court held that the oath was not required as

means of ascertaining whether the parties were qualified

)r those pursuits and professions, but were enacted

ecause it was thought that the act deserved punishment

nd that there was no way of inflicting punishnr.ent except

y depriving the parties of their offices and trusts.
"

The statute at bar clearly involves punishment and

le concept of moral conduct and individual responsibility

nd cannot be compared to a judgment of purely impersonal

isability. Implicit in the membership in the proscribed

rganization is the judgment of supposed advocacy of or

elief in the overthrow of the government by force and





violence. Membership without such imputed individual

culpability and responsibility would, as to any organiza-

tion, be pointless in relation to a deportation order.

Hence are applicable the Constitutional guarantees

against bills of attainder and ex post facto laws.

The statute, in that it imposes penalty by name

alone, also is similar to the lettre de cachet used in the

French Monarchy prior to the French Revolution.

"The lettre de cachet was an order

of the king that one of his subjects be

forthwith innprisoned or exiled without

a trial or an opportunity to defend himself.

In the 18th Century they were often issued

in blank to local police. Louis XV is

supposed to have issued more than 159, 000

lettres de cachet during his reign. This

device was the principal m.eans ennployed

to prosecute crimes of opinion, although

it was also used by the royalty as a

convenient m.ethod of preventing the public

airing of intra-family scandals. Voltaire,

Mirabeau and Montesque, among others,

denounced the use of the lettre de cachet

and it was abolished after the French

Revolution, though later temporarily

revived by Napoleon. " In Re Oliver, 333 U. S.





257, 269, citing 13 Encyclopedia Britannica 971;

3 Encyclopedia Social Science 137.

To apply a statute adopted in 1952 to appellant, whose

alleged membership in the Communist Party occurred some

years before is to enforce an ex post facto law and bill of

attainder against the appellant. A sinnilar argument, it

is true, was rejected in Harisiades vs. Shaughnes sy, 340

U. S. 580 and this rejection was not departed from in

Galvan vs. Press , 347 U. S. 522, and Marcello vs. Bonds
,

349 U. S. 302, but ift Harisiades the retroactive basis for

deportation was voluntary membership in an organization

advocating violence, conduct long proscribed by criminal

law, while the statute at bar provides that membership in

a named organization be the basis for deportation. At the

time this statute was enacted, membership in the Com-

munist Party had not been made illegal. To the contrary,

the Supreme Court had said as recently as June 21, 1943

in Schneiderman vs. U. S. , 320 U. S. 118, 157:

"a tenable conclusion from, the

foregoing is that the Party desired to

achieve its purpose by peaceful and

democratic means, and as a theoretical

matter justified the use of force and

violence only as a method of preventing

an attempted counter-overthrow once the

Party had obtained control in a peaceful
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manner, or as a method of last resort to

enforce a majority will if at some indefinite

future time because of peculiar circumstances

constitutional or peaceful channels were no

longer open.
"

The statute here is a legislative enactment aimed

t punishment of a proscribed class. Because of its

etroactive effect, it constitutes an unconstitutional ex post

acto law as well as a bill of attainder. Were it not for the

act that "the slate is not clean", "it might fairly be said

lIso that the ex post facto Clause, even though applicable

•nly to punitive legislation, should be applied to deporta-

ion". Galvan vs. Press , 347 U. S. 522, 531. But the

ibsence of a "clean slate" has not prevented the courts

rom righting an error in the proper case, even though

)ver-ruling many years of precedent.

"in approaching this problem, we

cannot turn the clock back to 1868 when

the Amendment was adopted, or even to

1896 when Plessy vs. Ferguson was

written. We must consider public education

in the light of its full development and its

present place in American life throughout

the Nation. " Brown vs. Board of Education,

I

347 U. S. 483, 492.

"if only a question of statutory

-51-





construction were involved, we should

not be prepared to abandon a doctrine

so widely applied throughout nearly a

Century. But the unconstitutionality

of the course pursued has now been

made clear, and compels us to do so.
"

Erie R. Co. vs. Tompkins , 304 U. S.

64, 77.

Equally compelling should be the abandonment

of the unconstitutional doctrine that the implied power of

deportation transcends the express substantive provisions

of due process.

D. THE STATUTE AT BAR

VIOLATES FREEDOM OF

SPEECH AND ASSOCIATION.

Membership alone in an organization is made a

ground for deportation by the instant statute. Scienter

and individual understanding are disregarded. Not only

is the record naked of any evidence concerning individual

culpability or of organizational wrong- doing but govern-

ment witness Rosser testified that he and appellant

"worked together in the unemployed movement on

demonstrations, grievance committees, delegations to

the relief headquarters of the State, of the County, we
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went to all types of sections of the County, Belvedere,

inglewood, problems and so the only thing I saw him doing

was working daily in the unemployed movement". (S. R. 28)

"We are not called upon to review

the findings of the state court as to the

objectives of the Communist Party. Not-

withstanding those objectives, the defendant

still enjoyed his personal right of free speech

and to take part in a peaceable assembly

having a lawful purpose although called by

that Party. The defendant was nonetheless

entitled to discuss the public issues of the

day and thus in a lawful manner, without

incitement to violence or crime, to seek

redress of alleged grievances. That was

of the essence of his guaranteed personal

liberty. " DeJonge vs. Oregon , 299 U. S.

353, 365-366.

To impose a penalty and a disability upon members

of an organization without any regard to individual action

not only obviously abridges freedom of speech and

association but also punishes, by deportation in the

instant case, the exercise of the most fundamental

constitutional rights necessary if the market place of

ideas is to rem.ain open.

"The greater the importance of





safeguarding the community from incitements

to the overthrow of our institutions by force

and violence, the nnore imperative is the

need to preserve inviolate the constitutional

rights of free speech, free press and free

assembly in order to maintain the opportunity

for free political discussion, to the end that

government may be responsive to the will of

the people and that changes if desired, may

be obtained by peaceful means. Therein

lies the security of the Republic, the very

foundation of constitutional government.
"

DeJonge vs. Oregon , 299 U. S. 353, 365.

CONCLUSION

Because of the numerous constitutional prohibitions

iolated by the 1952 Immigration and Naturalization Statute

nd the fact that the charge against appellant was not

iupported by reasonable, substantial and probative

vidence, nor was appellant afforded the type of hearing

equired by law, the decision below should be reversed and

ippellee should be restrained from deporting appellant.

Respectfully submitted,

IRWIN GOSTIN

Attorney for Appellant
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June 11, 1946, commonly referred to as the Administra-

tive Procedure Act, 60 Stat. 243, 5 U. S. C. A., Section

1009 (Shaughnessy v. Pedreiro, 349 U. S. 48 (1955));

and its judgment being a final decision, jurisdiction is con-

ferred upon this Court by 28 U. S. Code, Section 1291.

Statement of the Case.

Appellant is an alien, a native and citizen of Mexico

[R. 24, S. R. Exs. 2 and 3]. He was lawfully admitted

to the United States in 1919, and has been a resident of

the United States continuously since that time [R. 24, S.

R. Ex. 2]. On September 1, 1953, a warrant of arrest

was issued by the District Director, Immigration and

Naturalization Service, Los Angeles, California, charging

that appellant was subject to deportation under the Immi-

gration and Nationality Act^ in that after entry during

May, 1919, he had been a member of the Communist

Party of the United States; and on October 14, 1953,

this warrant of arrest was served on appellant [R. 24,

S. R. Ex. 1].

A deportation hearing was held at Los Angeles, Cali-

fornia, on October 26, 1953 [S. R. 1-5], November 10,

1953 [S. R. 6-32], and November 19, 1953 [S. R. ZZ-U7].

At this hearing, two witnesses, Louis Rosser [S. R. 15]

and Daniel Scarletto [S. R. 102], testified on behalf of

the Government as to appellant's membership in the Com-

munist Party of the United States. Upon the advice of

counsel, appellant refused to be sworn [S. R. 1, 6, 9], and

refused to answer all questions [S. R. 1-3, 9-14, 135], ex-

cept two questions relating to counsel by whom he was

I

^Section 241(a)(6) of the Immigration and Nationality Act, (^
Stat. 204, 8 U. S. C. A., §1251 (a) (6).



represented [S. R. 3-4]. Appellant cross-examined the

witnesses introduced by the Government [S. R. 33-100,

109-134] ; however, he offered no evidence or witnesses in

his own behalf [S. R. 136]. At no time did appellant

claim the privilege against self-incrimination as a ground

for his refusal to answer questions.

On December 17, 1953, the Special Inquiry Officer who

presided at the aforementioned deportation hearing ren-

dered his decision, ordering that plaintiff be deported from

the United States pursuant to law on the charge con-

tained in the warrant of arrest. An administrative ap-

peal was taken by appellant from the decision of the

Special Inquiry Officer to the Board of Immigration Ap-

peals and on June 16, 1954, said Board dismissed appel-

lant's appeal.

On June 24, 1954, based upon the aforementioned order

of deportation, a Warrant of Deportation was issued by

the District Director, Immigration and Naturalization

Service, Los Angeles, California, directing that appellant

be deported from the United States.

On July 28, 1954, appellant filed a Complaint in the

Court below, seeking to enjoin enforcement of the Order

and Warrant of Deportation outstanding against him

and seeking to have said order and warrant declared in-

valid [R. 1-8]. The District Court upheld the validity

of the order and warrant of deportation and entered judg-

ment in favor of appellee. This appeal from that judg-

ment raises the following questions:

1. Is the finding that appellant is subject to deporta-

tion because he was a member of the Communist Party

supported by reasonable, substantial and probative evi-

dence ?



2. Is the order of deportation outstanding against

appellant rendered invalid because an inference was drawn

from appellant's silence at the deportation hearing?

3. Is the order of deportation outstanding against ap-

pellant rendered invalid because the Special Inquiry Of-

ficer who presided at appellant's deportation hearing was

not appointed, qualified and assigned pursuant to the

Administrative Procedure Act?

4. Do the provisions of the Immigration and Nation-

ality Act under which appellant was ordered deported,

violate the Constitution?

Statutes Involved.

Section 241(a) of the Immigration and Nationality

Act, 66 Stat. 204, 8 U. S. C A., Section 1251(a), pro-

vides in pertinent part:

"Sec. 241. (a) Any alien in the United States (in-

cluding an alien crewman) shall, upon the order of

the Attorney General, be deported who

—

(6) is or at any time has been, after entry, a

member of any of the following classes of aliens:*******
(C) Aliens who are members of or affiliated

with (i) the Communist Party of the United

States; * * *."

Section 242(b) of the Immigration and Nationality Act,

66 Stat. 209, 8 U. S. C. A. Section 1252(b), provides in

pertinent part:

''(b) A special inquiry officer shall conduct pro-

ceedings under this section to determine the deporta-
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bility of any alien, and shall administer oaths, present

and receive evidence, interrogate, examine, and cross-

examine the alien or witnesses, and, as authorized by

the Attorney General, shall make determinations,

including orders of deportation. * * * Proceed-

ings before a special inquiry officer acting under the

provisions of this section shall be in accordance with

such regulations, not inconsistent with this Act, as

the Attorney General shall prescribe. Such regula-

tions shall include requirements that

—

********
(4) no decision of deportability shall be valid un-

less it is based upon reasonable substantial, and

probative evidence."

Section 101(b)(4) of the Immigration and Nationality

Act, 66 Stat. 171, 8 U. S. C. A., Section 1101(b)(4)

provides

:

*'(4) The term 'special inquiry officer' means any

immigration officer who the Attorney General deems
specially qualified to conduct specified classes of pro-

ceedings, in whole or in part, required by this Act

to be conducted by or before a special inquiry officer

and who is designated and selected by the Attorney

General, individually or by regulation, to conduct

such proceedings. Such special inquiry officer shall

be subject to such supervision and shall perform such

duties, not inconsistent with this Act, as the Attor-

ney General shall prescribe."



ARGUMENT.

I.

Summary.

The standard embodied in the Immigration and Nation-

ality Act requiring reasonable, substantial and probative

evidence to support an order of deportation is not new

in deportation proceedings, but was applied by courts

prior to this Act in habeas corpus proceedings. In deter-

mining whether this standard has been met, a court of

review will not substitute its judgment for that of the

immigration authorities, but will invalidate an order of

deportation only if the alien would have been entitled to

a directed verdict in his favor had the issue of his de-

portability been tried before a jury.

There is reasonable, substantial and probative evidence

to support the finding that appellant was a member of the

Communist Party. The uconntradicted testimony of two

witnesses, former members of the Communist Party, iden-

tified appellant as having been a member of the Party

at the same time; as having attended numerous meetings

of the Communist Party which were restricted solely to

members, and some of which were restricted to leaders of

the Party; as having paid dues to the Communist Party;

as having frequented Communist Party headquarters; and

as having participated in picnics, mass meetings, and

picket lines sponsored by the Communist Party. Con-

fronted with this testimony, appellant remained silent.

He did not testify or offer any evidence whatever in his

own behalf.

Appellant did not impeach the testimony of these wit-

nesses. The minor discrepancies developed during cross-

examination, relating for the most part to collateral mat-
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ters, were of little significance. They were not ''paid in-

formers" as appellant seeks to label them, but witnesses.

Moreover, the credibility of witnesses is for the deter-

mination of the trier of facts, in this instance the Special

Inquiry Officer.

An inference was properly drawn from appellant's

silence at the deportation hearing. The fact that he

refused to take an oath does not preclude this inference,

since he was under a legal obligation to be a witness and

could have been compelled to take the oath. While there

is authority to the effect that an inference may be drawn

from silence even though the privilege against self-incrim-

ination is claimed, the present decision need not extend

so far, since appellant did not assert the privilege. In

the absence of a claim, the privilege may not be consid-

ered. Moreover, independent of the inference drawn

from appellant's silence, there is reasonable, substantial

and probative evidence to support the finding that he was

a member of the Communist Party.

The Special Inquiry Officer was not required to be

appointed, qualified or assigned pursuant to the Adminis-

trative Procedure Act, since the Immigration and Nation-

ality Act expressly provides for his appointment and

supervision. This would seem to have been settled by

Marcello v. Bonds, 349 U. S. 302 (1955).

Since the decision by the Supreme Court of Galvan v.

Press, 347 U. S. 522 (1954), reh. den. 348 U. S. 852, the

constitutionality of the statute under which appellant was

ordered deported is no longer an open question.



II.

The Finding That Appellant Is Subject to Deportation

Because He Was a Member of the Communist
Party Is Supported by Reasonable, Substantial,

and Probative Evidence.

A. Standard o£ Proof Required.

Appellee concedes that a decision of deportability to be

valid must be supported by ''reasonable, substantial and

probative evidence." (Sec. 242(b)(4) of the Immigra-

tion and Nationality Act, 66 Stat. 210, 8 U. S. C. A.,

Sec. 1252(b)(4); see also, Sec. 10(e) of the Administra-

tive Procedure Act, 60 Stat. 243, 5 U. S. C. A., Sec.

1009(e).) However, appellee disagrees with the posi-

tion of appellant that this standard is a novelty in depor-

tation proceedings (Br. 6, 21). While in the Administra-

tive Procedure Act and the Immigration and Nationality

Act, Congress adopted the "substantial evidence"^ rule, in

so doing it merely codified and made definite a standard

which the courts were already applying upon the review

of deportation orders in habeas corpus proceedings.

Maita V. Haff, 116 F. 2d 337, 338 (C. A. 9,

1940)

;

Kielema v. Grossman, 103 F. 2d 292, 293 (C. A.

5, 1939);

Daskaloff v. Zurbrick, 103 F. 2d 579 (C. C. A. 6,

1939)

;

^The terms "reasonable" and "probative" would seem to add noth-

ing, since these terms are included within the concept of "substantial

evidence." See, Consolidated Edison Co. v. N. L. R. B., 305 U. S.

197 (1938), at page 229, where substantial evidence is defined as

follows: "Substantial evidence is more than a mere scintilla. It

means such relevant evidence as a reasonable mind might accept as

adequate to support a conclusion. . .
." And on page 230 the

Court indicated that evidence would not be substantial if it was
without a "basis in evidence having rational probative force."
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Morrozv v. TiUinghast, 35 F. 2d 183, 184 (C. C. A.

1, 1929);

Palmer v. Ultimo, 69 F. 2d 1, 2 (C. C. A. 7,

1934)

;

United States ex rel. Schlimmgen v. Jordan, 164

F. 2d 6Z?>, 634 (C. C A. 7, 1947).

In framing- the evidentiary requirements of Section

242(b)(4), Congress did not consider that it was setting

up new standards. The bills which culminated in the 1952

Act emerged from a detailed and intensive study of our

immigration and naturalization systems made by the

Senate Judiciary Committee. In 1950 the Committee

rendered a comprehensive report (S. Rep. 1515, 81st

Cong., 2d Sess.) entitled "The Immigration and Natur-

alization Systems of the United States," embodying the

Congressional understanding of existing lazv upon which

the 1952 Act was based. On page 629 of this report

the Committee stated:

".
. . In a habeas corpus proceeding, based on a

deportation case, the Court determines whether or

not there has been a fair hearing, whether or not

the law has been interpreted correctly, and whether

or not there is substantial evidence to support the

order of deportation." (Emphasis added.)

In determining whether substantial evidence exists to

support an order of deportation, a Court will not substitute

its judgment for that of the immigration authorities

(Taranto v. Haff, 88 F. 2d 85, 87 (C. C. A. 9, 1937)).

The present order of deportation should be declared in-

valid only if appellant would have been entitled to a di-

rected verdict in his favor had the issue of his membership

in the Communist Party been tried before a jury (N. L.
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R. B. V. Columbian Enameling and Stamping Company,

306 U. S. 292, 300 (1939); Stason, '"Substantial Evi-

dence' in Administrative Law," 89 U. of Pa. L. Rev.

1026, 1035-1051).

In United States v. Fulkerson, 67 F. 2d 288 (C. C. A.

9, 1933), this Court enunciated the rule governing directed

verdicts in the following language (p. 290) :

"It is well settled that, if there is any substantial

evidence to which the jury may properly give cred-

ence and which, viewed in its most favorable aspect,

would sustain a verdict favorable to the plaintiff, then

the court is not authorized to enter an order of dis-

missal or to direct the jury to return a verdict for

defendant. * * *."

Other cases illustrating this rule are:

Gunning v. Cooley, 281 U. S. 90, 94 (1930);

Butte Copper & Zinc Co. v. American, 157 F. 2d

457 (C. C. A. 9, 1946);

United States v. Hartley, 99 F. 2d 923, 925 (C.

C A. 9, 1938).

B. Testimony of Louis Rosser—Summary.

Witness Rosser testified that he (the witness) was a

member of the Communist Party of the United States in

Southern California from 1932 up to December, 1944

[S. R. 16] ; that he was a full time functionary in the

Communist Party from about three months after he joined

until about six months before he quit the Party [S. R.

19] ; that he (the witness) held various positions of leader-

ship in the Communist Party [S. R. 17-18].

That appellant was present at a meeting, taking place

during the summer of 1939, of a fraction of the Work-

ers Alliance [S. R. 19] ; that about ten persons attended
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this meeting [S. R. 24] ; that the meeting was attended

only by top Communists within the Workers AlHance [S.

R. 25] ; that the witness and other leaders of the Com-
munist Party had planned the meeting in advance [S. R.

72, 73] ; and that the meeting was devoted to the policy

and program of the Communist Party being pushed

through the Workers Alliance [S. R. 25]

;

That appellant was present at a meeting of the Com-

munist Party during 1939; that about twelve persons were

present at this meeting; that the witness spoke at this

meeting on the Party's program of mobilizing the unem-

ployed to fight against the war effort [S. R. 21]; that

the meeting was restricted solely to members of the Com-

munist Party of the United States; and that he (the wit-

ness) knew this because he was responsible for the work

of the unit which was meeting [S. R. 21];

That appellant was present at a conference in the fall

of 1939 held at Embassy Hall, Los Angeles, California

[S. R. 25] ; that the purpose of the conference was to

give the Communist leaders the facts of why Stalin made

a pact with Hitler [S. R. 25] ; that this conference was

restricted solely to members of the office staff of the Coun-

ty Committee of the Communist Party, Section Organiz-

ers, and to delegates assigned by the units of the Com-

munist Party; that the head of each group checked the

member's name off at the door [S. R. 26] ; that the wit-

ness' name was checked off at the door [S. R. 76] ;

That appellant was present at a meeting in the summer

of 1940 of the Communist Party unit to which appellant

belonged; that this meeting took place in a private home;

that about 8 persons were present; that only members of

the Communist Party were present at this meeting; that
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during this period every unit organizer had been informed

to tighten the reins of the security of the party; and that

only members of the Party were notified to attend meet-

ings [S. R. 26-27]

;

That the witness attended picnics, mass meetings, and

picket hnes sponsored by the Communist Party, at which

appellant was present [S. R. 27] ; that appellant and the

witness worked daily in the unemployed movement [S. R.

28] ; that appellant was on one of the commissions of the

Communist Party [S. R. 28] ; and that he saw appellant

at Communist Party headquarters at various times during

the years 1939, 1940, 1941 and 1942 [S. R. 29] ;

That the last time he saw appellant within the Com-

munist Party was at a conference in the fall of 1942;

that this conference was restricted solely to members of

the Communist Party, and that it was further restricted

to the county committee of the Communist Party, and to

those delegates sent by branches, units or fractions; that

each person responsible for the group from his delegation

was at the door and checked off the people for which he

was responsible as they came in [S. R. 29-30]

;

That to his knowledge, appellant was a member of the

Communist Party of the United States from the period

1937 to 1942 [S. R. 30].

C. Testimony o£ Daniel Scarletto—Summary.

Witness Scarletto testified that he (the witness) was a

member of the Communist Party from 1947 to 1952 in

the Los Angeles area; that he became a member of the

Communist Party at the suggestion of the Federal Bureau

of Investigation to secure information for the United

States Government; that he was press director when he

was in the El Sereno Club of the Communist Party; that
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he was organization secretary when he was in the Mexi-

can Concentration Club of the Communist Party; and that

as organization secretary he handled the dues and finances

and political guidance for the club [S. R. 103-104]

;

That after he was in the Mexican Concentration Club,

he (the witness) was given a list with appellant's name

on it; that he first met appellant at a meeting at the home

of Gertrude Stoughton in El Sereno; that about 7 or 8

people were present at this meeting; that this meeting was

restricted to members of the Communist Party, and that

in order to assure that only Communist Party members

were in attendance, automobiles were parked several blocks

away from the house where the meeting was to be held;

and that "we never knew where the meeting was going

to be sometimes until about an hour or so before it hap-

pened and all the members didn't know at all times where

the meeting would be. They were picked up and taken

to the meeting" [S. R. 105]

;

That he was present at probably 15 or 20 other meet-

ings of the Communist Party at which appellant was

present [S. R. 107] ; that in his position as organization

secretary he collected Communist Party dues from appel-

lant on about 10 occasions at the rate of 10 cents per

month; and that he turned over the money that he col-

lected for dues to the Section Organizer of the Communist

Party [S. R. 107-108, 127-129]; that to his knowledge

appellant was a member of the Communist Party of the

United States during the period 1949 through 1950 [S.

R. 109].
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D. Probative Value of the Evidence.

The uncontradicted testimony of two witnesses, former

members of the Communist Party, identified appellant as

having been a member of the Communist Party of the

United States; as having attended numerous meetings of

the Communist Party which were restricted solely to

members of the Party and some of which were restricted

to leaders of the Party; as having paid dues to the Com-

munist Party, as having frequented Communist Party

Headquarters, and as having participated in picnics, mass

meetings, and picket lines sponsored by the Communist

Party. This, in itself, constitutes reasonable substantial

and probative evidence of appellant's membership in the

Communist Party. Confronted with this testimony, ap-

pellant remained silent. He did not testify or offer any

evidence whatever in his own behalf. As will be more

fully discussed in Part HI of Argument, an inference

may be drawn from this silence, that appellant was in fact

a member of the Communist Party.

Appellant complains that witnesses Rosser and Scarletto

did not personally call the meetings described by them or

invite persons to attend, concluding that they had no

personal knowledge that the meetings were in fact re-

stricted solely to members of the Communist Party. This

argument assumes that a fact can only be proved by direct

evidence. Circumstantial evidence, however, is not an

inferior species, and may serve to prove a fact as con-

vincingly as direct evidence (Rocona v. Guy F. Atkinson

Co., 173 F. 2d 661, 665 (C. A. 9, 1949) ; 32 C. J. S., Evi-

dence, Sec. 1039). In the case at bar the witnesses de-

scribed in detail the security measures employed to insure

that only members of the Communist Party attended the
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meetings. Witness Rosser, particularly, was a leader in the

Communist Party and was undoubtedly well acquainted

with the methods employed to prevent the intrusion of

outsiders. Under such circumstances, a weighty inference

arises that appellant was a member of the Communist

Party of the United States ; not only because the meetings

which he attended were restricted to members of the

Communist Party, but also because of the unlikelihood

that one not a member would be present at numerous

meetings of the Communist Party at which stringent secu-

rity measures were taken to insure that only members at-

tended. It is hardly conceivable that appellant's attendance

at these meetings was fortuitous.

The language of Bridges v. United States, 199 F. 2d

811, 836 (C. A. 9, 1952), reversed on other grounds, 346

U. S. 209, concerning the evidentiary value of attendance

at "closed" meetings of the Communist Party cannot be

lifted out of context and applied to the case at bar. In

the Bridges decision, a criminal case, Bridges himself, a

labor union leader, admitted attendance at Communist

Party meetings and admitted that his union was offered

and accepted aid from the Communist Party and its paper

"The Daily Worker" (199 F. 2d 836-837). Such evi-

dence of cooperation between Bridges' union and the Com-

munist Party might well explain Bridges' presence at

meetings of the Communist Party, ordinarily closed, con-

sistent with non-membership. In the case at bar, however,

there is nothing to explain why appellant found himself

at numerous meetings of the Communist Party, all of

them closed, and some of them restricted to top leaders

of the Community Party.

Moreover, evidence apart from appellant's attendance at

"closed" meetings established his membership in the Com-
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munist Party. Appellant paid dues as a member of the

Communist Party [S. R. 107-108, 127-129], frequented

Party Headquarters [S. R. 29], and participated in carry-

ing out the Communist Party program [S. R. 27, 28].

This is reasonable, substantial, and probative evidence of

his membership in the Communist Party. Clearly, appel-

lant would not have been entitled to a directed verdict in

his favor had the issue of his membership been tried be-

fore a jury.

E. Credibility of the Witnesses.

Appellant cross-examined witnesses Rosser and Scar-

letto exhaustively concerning age (a matter necessarily

based upon information obtained from others), schooling,

places of employment, and other collateral matters. The

minor discrepancies developed during the course of this

cross-examination were of little significance (Mar Gong

V. Brownell, 209 F. 2d 448, 451-452 (C. A. 9, 1954)).

The cross-examination of witness Rosser concerning

his activities while attending school, when tested by

judicial standards, did not tend to impeach. Particular

acts of misconduct, not resulting in conviction, may not

be used for impeachment purposes {Ingram v. United

States, 106 F. 2d 683, 684 (C. C. A. 9, 1939), and

authorities cited therein). Similarly, the few misdemean-

ors of which Rosser admitted conviction did not afford a

basis for impeachment {Fay v. United States, 22 F. 2d

740 (C. C. A. 9, 1927) ; 8 Cyc. of Fed. Proc, Sec. 26.107:

Cal. Code Civ. Proc, Sec. 2051.)
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Appellant seeks to attack the credibility of witness

Scarletto because he stated falsely in an application for

employment that he was not a member of the Communist

Party when in fact he was (Br. 11). As previously

mentioned, witness Scarletto joined the Communist Party

at the suggestion of the Federal Bureau of Investigation.

Having so joined, he would naturally be expected to con-

ceal his membership in the Party from all except other

members and the Federal Bureau of Investigation.

Appellant characterizes witnesses Rosser and Scarletto

as "paid professional witnesses" (Br. 13) and "paid in-

formers" (Br. 17). The record will not support this

characterization. At the time of the deportation hearings,

neither Rosser nor Scarletto were in the employ of the

government but were witnesses who received for their

services the fee customarily paid ex-Communists who tes-

tify in proceedings before the Immigration and Naturali-

zation Service (See U. S. News and World Report, Feb-

ruary 18, 1955, page 83, for a discussion of the distinction

between witnesses and informers, as well as the range of

fees in each class). At the deportation hearings relating

to appellant, the fee for each witness was $25.00 per day

[S. R. 89, 131]. Witness Rosser testified for two days

and witness Scarletto for one day; and they should have

received $50.00 and $25.00 respectively. Certainly, these

nominal sums, little more than enough to reimburse the

witnesses for their absence from employment, can create

no inference of bias.
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Moreover, the credibility of witnesses, even where the

evidence is conflicting, is to be determined by the trier of

fact, in this instance the Special Inquiry Oflicer.

Bridges v. United States, 199 F. 2d 811, 839 (C.

A. 9, 1952), reversed on other grounds, 346 U.

S. 209;

Morikichi Smva v. Carr, 88 F. 2d 119, 121 (C. C.

A. 9, 1937)

;

Taranto v. Haff, 88 F. 2d 85 (C. C. A. 9, 1937)

;

Acosta V. Landon, 125 Fed. Supp. 434, 438 (S. D.

Calif., 1954).

Bridges v. United States, supra, although it involved an

appeal from a criminal conviction by a jury, affords an

excellent analogy to a court review of an administrative

decision. This Court there declared (p. 839)

:

'The question whether these events did or did not

occur was typically one for the jury. In general this

case presents no circumstances different from those

which constantly appear where the testimony of wit-

nesses is sharply in conflict. The special function of

the jury, in our system, is to deal with such matters.

No appellate judge is ever in a position to recon-

struct for himself, from a printea record, the midti-

tude of things which bring conviction to a juror's

mind—the demeanor of the witness, his apparent can-

dor or evasiveness, his assurance or hesitation, and

even his facial expressions or the sound of his voice."

(Emphasis added.)

The rule quoted above should apply with even greater

force where, as in the instant case, there was no conflict

in the testimony, but where the uncontradicted testimony

of witnesses for the government established appellant's

membership in the Communist Party of the United States.
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III.

The Order of Deportation Was Not Rendered Invalid

Because an Inference Was Drawn From Appel-

lant's Silence at the Deportation Hearing.

At the deportation hearing appellant, upon the advice

of counsel, refused to be sworn [S. R. 1, 6, 9] and refused

to answer all questions [S. R. 1-3, 9-14, 135], except

two [S. R. 3-4]. After witnesses had testified concerning

appellant's membership in the Communist Party, he of-

fered no evidence or witnesses on his own behalf [S. R.

136]. Appellant now complains that the Special In-

quiry Officer and the Board of Immigration Appeals relied

in part on appellant's silence. It is well settled, how-

ever, that an inference may be drawn from the refusal of

an alien to testify on his own behalf in deportation pro-

ceedings.

United States ex rel. Vajtaner v. Commissioner

of Immigration, 273 U. S. 103, 111-113 (1927);

Bilokumsky v. Tod, 263 U. S. 149 (1923) ;

Hyun V. Landon, 219 F. 2d 404, 409 (C. A. 9,

1955), cert, granted, 24 L. W. 3093;

Kunimori Ohara v. Berkshire, 76 F. 2d 204, 207

(C. C A. 9, 1935);

Saksagansky v. Weedin, 53 F. 2d 13, 16 (C. C. A.

9, 1935).

See also:

Local 167 V. United States, 291 U. S. 293, 298

(1934);

Kirhy V. Tallmadge, 160 U. S. 379, 382 (1896);

Wigmore on Evidence, 3d Ed., Vol. II, Sees. 285-

289.
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Appellant seeks to distinguish the Vajtauer and Bilo-

kumsky decisions because they were proceedings in habeas

corpus, decided prior to the Immigration and Nationality

Act of 1952. However, as previously adverted to in Part

II A of Argument, the courts required substantial evi-

dence to support an order of deportation, even though the

order was reviewed by way of habeas corpus.^ Moreover,

if an inference may arise from silence in deportation pro-

ceedings, it is difficult to perceive how the type of review

afforded can detract from its evidentiary value.

During the deportation hearing appellant refused to

be sworn [S. R. 1, 6, 9]. He now urges that since he

refused to take the oath he was under no duty to speak,

and that as a consequence no inference can be drawn

from his silence (Br. 20). This argument fails to con-

sider that appellant was under a legal duty to be sworn

as a witness and could have been compelled to take the

oath. An alien in a deportation proceeding against him

may be compelled to be a witness, since these proceedings

are civil and not criminal in nature (Bilokumsky v. Tod,

263 U. S. 149, 155 (1923); and a witness has no right

to refuse to be sworn, even though he may have a right,

^The fact that, instead of using the phrase "substantial evidence",

the court referred to "some evidence" in Vajtauer (p. 106) and to

"evidence" in Bilokumsky (p. 153) is not controlling. See, Con-

solidated Edison Co. V. N. L. R. B., 305 U. S. 197, 229 (1938),

where the Supreme Court found that the Court of Appeals in say-

ing that the record vi^as not "wholly barren of evidence" meant

substantial evidence.
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when questioned, to refuse to answer on constitutional

grounds.

MiiUonev v. United States, 79 F. 2d 566, 578-579

(C C. A. 1, 1935);

O'Connell v. United States, 40 F. 2d 201, 205 (C.

C A. 2, 1902), cert, dismissed 296 U. S. 667]

Wigmore on Evidence, 3d Ed., Vol. VIII, Sec.

2268.

Appellant should not be permitted to avoid the inference

which would ordinarily arise from his silence merely be-

cause he refused to take an oath which he was under

a legal obligation to take.

Appellant also urges that no inference may be drawn

from his silence because the testimony called for ''could

be incriminating" (Br. 21). This Court in Hyun v.

Landon, supra, ruled that an inference might be drawn

from the refusal of an alien to testify in deportation pro-

ceedings, even though such refusal was accompanied by

a claim of the privilege against self-incrimination. The

decision in the case at bar, however, need not extend so

far, since at no time during the deportation hearing did

appellant assert the privilege against self-incrimination.

In the absence of a claim, the privilege may not be con-

sidered.

Rogers v. United States, 340 U. S. 367 (1951);

United States ex rel. Vajtauer v. Commissioner of

Immigration, 273 U. S. 103, 112-113 (1937);

Wigmore on Evidence, 3d Ed., Vol. VIII, Sec.

2268.



—22—

Even if it be assumed that an inference from appel-

lant's silence was improperly drawn, the present order of

deportation would not thereby be invalidated; since the

testimony of witnesses Rosser and Scarletto alone is suf-

ficient to support the order. The mere fact that incom-

petent evidence is received and considered in a deportation

hearing- does not operate to render the proceedings invalid.

Navarrette-Navarrette v. Landon, 223 F. 2d 234,

237 (C. A. 9, 1955);

Hyun V. Landon, 219 F. 2d 404, 408 (C. A. 9,

1955), cert, granted 24 L. W. 3093.

IV.

The Order of Deportation Was Not Rendered Invalid

Because the Special Inquiry Officer Who Presided

at Appellant's Deportation Hearing Was Not Ap-
pointed, Qualified, or Assigned Pursuant to the

Administrative Procedure Act.

Appellant contends "that he was entitled to a hearing

based upon the terms of the Administrative Procedure Act

and was entitled to have presiding at that hearing a Spe-

cial Inquiry Officer appointed, qualified and assigned pur-

suant to that Act" (Br. 24). This contention loses all

force since the decision by the Supreme Court of Mar-

cello V. Bonds, 349 U. S. 302 (1955). In Marcello, the

Court made it clear that the Administrative Procedure Act

had no application to deportation hearings; and that in

enacting the Immigration and Nationality Act "Congress

was setting up a specialized administrative procedure ap-

plicable to deportation hearings" (348 U. S. at p. 308).

Appellant urges that the Supreme Court in Marcello

"did not decide or even consider the applicability of Sec-

tion 11 of the Administrative Procedure Act concerning

the appointment, qualification and assignment of hearing
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officers" (Br. 24-25). Appellee disagrees. While in

Marcello, it was conceded that the appointment provisions

of the Administrative Procedure Act were inapplicable to

deportation proceedings, the Supreme Court was careful

to place its stamp of approval on this concession in the

following language (p. 305) :

"Petitioner concedes that §242 (b) of the Immigra-

tion Act, authorizing the appointment of a 'special

inquiry officer' to preside at the deportation proceed-

ings, does not conflict with the Administrative Proce-

dure Act, since %7(a) of that Act excepts from its

terms officers specially provided for or designated pur-

suant to other statutes^ . . ," (Emphasis added.)

The appointment of special inquiry officers is specifically

provided for in the Immigration and Nationality Act, and

they are expressly placed under the supervision of the At-

torney General. (Sec. 101(b)(4) of the Immigration

and Nationality Act, 66 Stat. 171, 8 U. S. C. A., Sec.

1101(b)(4); Sec. 242(b) of the Immigration and Na-

tionality Act, 66 Stat. 209, 8 U. S. C. A. 1252(b)). The

Supreme Court was of the view that the appointment,

qualification and assignment of special inquiry officers

were excepted from the provisions of Section 11 of the

Administrative Procedure Act.

To the same efifect:

Couto V. Shaiighnessy, 123 Fed. Supp. 926, 930-

931 (S. D. N. Y., 1954), affirmed 218 F. 2d 758,

cert. den. 349 U. S. 952.

^In a footnote to this quotation the Supreme Court observed:

"Section 7(a) of the Administrative Procedure Act directs that,

in general, administrative hearings shall be held before hearing

officers appointed pursuant to §11 of the Act."
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V.

The Provisions of the Immigration and Nationality

Act Under Which Appellant Was Ordered De-

ported Do Not Violate the Constitution.

Appellant was ordered deported from the United States

under the provisions of Section 241(a) of the Immigra-

tion and Nationality Act, as an alien who after entry had

been a member of the Communist Party of the United

States. He now challenges the constitutionality of this

statute on the ground that it violates due process, con-

stitutes a Bill of Attainder and an Ex Post Facto law, and

violates freedom of speech and association. These conten-

tions, however, have already been rejected.

Galvan v. Press, 347 U. S. 522 (1954), reh. den.

348 U. S. 852;

Harisiades v. Shaughnessy, 342 U. S. 580 (1952),

and cases cited therein;

Hyun V. Landon, 219 F. 2d 404, 409 (C. A. 9,

1955).

In Galvan, the Supreme Court upheld the validity of

Section 22 of the Internal Security Act of 1950, 64 Stat.

1006, 1008, which made present or former membership

in the Communist Party a ground for deportation. No
reason is apparent why the validity of the present statute

should not also be upheld. The two statutes, in all es-

sential respects, are identical. The arguments as to un-

constitutionality advanced by appellant are no more con-

vincing than those presented to the Supreme Court in

the cases cited above. Further contention as to the con-

stitutionality of the statute under which appellant was

ordered deported would seem to be foreclosed.
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Appellant may feel that since ' his deportation was

ordered pursuant to the Immigration and Nationality Act

of 1952, an opportunity is thereby afforded to reopen

the constitutional issues raised in Galvan. The language

of that case, however, precludes any such attitude. Jus-

tice Frankfurter, after noting that the constitutional argu-

ments advanced by Galvan were contrary to a long and

unbroken line of decisions, concluded (p. 531-532) :

"We are not prepared to deem ourselves wiser

or more sensitive to human rights than our prede-

cessors, especially those zvho have been most zealous

in protecting civil liberties under the Constitution,

and must therefore under our constitutional system

recognize congressional power in dealing with aliens,

on the basis of which we are unable to find the Act

of 1950 unconstitutional. * * *." (Emphasis

added,

)

Conclusion.

Wherefore, for the reasons set forth above, it is re-

spectfully submitted that the judgment of the District

Court in favor of appellee, denying the relief prayed for

in appellant's Complaint, should be affirmed.

Respectfully submitted,

Laughlin E. Waters,

United States Attorney,

Max F. Deutz,

Assistant U. S. Attorney,

Chief of Civil Division,

James R. Dooley,

Assistant U. S. Attorney,

Attorneys for Appellee.
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: IN THE UNITED STATES COURT OF APPEALS

FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT

3SE ANGEL OCON,

Appellant,

vs.

LBERT DEL GUERCIO, ACTING OFFICER
T CHARGE OF THE IMMIGRATION AND
ATURALIZATION SERVICE, LOS ANGELES,
ALIFORNIA,

Appellee.

PETITION FOR REHEARING

TO THE HONORABLE CIRCUIT JUDGES STEPHENS,

EE AND CHAMBERS:

Petitioner respectfully requests that the Honorable

udges of this Court rehear and review the decision handed

own by this Court on September 26, 1956, wherein the

idgment for the United States District Court for the Southern

)istrict of California, Central Division, in the above entitled

ase was affirmed.

1.



I



I.

STATEMENT OF GROUNDS

This petition for rehearing and review is based upon

18 following grounds: That the interest of justice will best

e served by granting a rehearing in this case because the

onstitutional questions raised herein and adversely ruled

pen by this Court are presently before the United States

upreme Court in a pending case, and the decision in that

ase must control the Court's ruling here.

II.

ARGUMENTI

.1

iThis Court held that the contention that the 1952

nmigration and Nationality Act violates the Constitution is

ithout merit because challenges to the constitutionality of

he statute in question on the grounds that it violates due

irocess, constitutes a Bill of Attainder and an ex post facto

aw, and violates freedom of speech and association have

ilready been rejected in Galvan v. Press , 9 Cir. , 1953, 201

.^ed. 2d 302, Affirmed 1954, 347 U.S. 522, rehearing denied

548 U. S. 852, and numerous cases following the Galvan

lecision. As this Court itself pointed out, however, the

decision in the Galvan case involved the Internal Security Act

2.





0:1950, 64 Stat. 987, Title 50 U. S. C. §781etseq. , although

C ain V. Boyd, 14633, 9 Cir. , decided August 4, 1956,

Fed. 2d ^ , held that the reasoning of the Galvan

cse was equally applicable to the 1952 Immigration and

htionality Act. The case of Rowaldt v. Perfetto , 8 Cir. , 195

J

28 Fed. 2d 109, was a case raising the unconstitutionality of

te 1952 Immigration and Nationality Act on the same grounds
I

; raised in the instant case. In the Rowaldt case, the petition

Ir a writ of certiorari raised two questions, the first being

Mother or not Rowaldt' s membership in the Communist Party

I ^as sufficient to support a finding that he was deportable on

lat ground or that he had only been a nominal member and

lerefore not subject to deportation, and secondly, whether the

952 Immigration and Nationality Act's provisions for deporta-

on of aliens for past Communist Party membership was

nconstitutional on its face or as applied to facts in the instant

ase. See 25 L. W. 3004. The second point raised in the

towaldt petition for certiorari covers the constitutional points

aised in the instant case. Certiorari was granted by the

Jnited States Supreme Court on March 26, 1956. 350 U. S. 993

This was an unconditional grant of certiorari covering both

Doints.

The Rowaldt case was not cited to the Court here in

Driefs or in oral argument. By its unconditional grant of

3.





crtiorari, the United States Supreme Court indicates that it ma^

a( be ready to apply the reasoning in the Galvan case to the 195'

Irmigration and Nationality Statute. The case of Rowaldt v.

Frfetto is presently scheduled for argument before the United

Siites Supreme Court during the week of October 15, 1956.

2 L. W. 3108. It is respectfully submitted that the decision of

tb District Court in the instant case should be reheard and

rviewed by this Court, and that this Court, in the interests of

jistice, should await the outcome of the United States Supreme

jurt's ruling in the Rowaldt case and render its decision on the

institutional points raised herein in conformity with that decisic

Respectfully submitted,

IR¥/IN COSTIN
Attorney for Appellant.

IRWIN COSTIN hereby certifies that he is the attorney of

scord for the appellant herein, that in his judgment and opinion

le within Petition for Rehearing is well founded, and that said

etition for Rehearing is not interposed for any purpose of delay

it is submitted solely in the interests of justice.

IRWIN GOSTIN

4.
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No. 14,882

IN THE

United States Court of Appeals

For the Ninth Circuit

James A. Williams,
Appellant,

vs.

United States of America,

Appellee.

Upon Appeal from the District Court for the

District of Alaska, Third Division.

BRIEF FOR APPELLEE.

JURISDICTIONAL STATEMENT.

The petitioner herein is a prisoner incarcerated

at McNeil Island Penitentiary, where he is serving

sentences imposed by the District Courts for the

Territory of Alaska for the Third Division at An-

chorage and for the Fourth Division of Alaska at

Fairbanks.

The petitioner has invoked the jurisdiction of the

Court under the provisions of 28 U.S.C. 347, 837, and

1915. The jurisdictional grounds relied upon by the

petitioner are not valid.

The relief which petitioner demands from this Court

is a writ of certiorari to the District Court for the



Third Division, Territory of Alaska. It appears that

the petitioner may be proceeding for the writ under

28 U.S.C. 1651.

STATEMENT OF FACTS.

An indictment was filed by the grand jury of the

District Court, Third Division, Territory of Alaska

at Anchorage, Alaska, on April 9, 1954, charging

James A. Williams of five counts of larceny by check.

The District Court promptly set the time for arraign-

ment of the defendant on the indictment for April

16, 1954.

On April 15, 1954, the defendant's chosen counsel,

George Grigsby, withdrew. The defendant executed

his affidavit of pauperism and John Dunn, an An-

chorage attorney, was appointed by the District Judge

to represent the defendant.

The defendant was arraigned on the indictment

April 16, 1954 and time for entry of plea was set for

April 22, 1954. The defendant entered a plea of not

guilty on April 21, 1954. Two days later, however,

April 23, 1954, the defendant appeared in Court

with his counsel, John Dunn, withdrew his plea of

not guilty and entered a plea of guilty to the Ave

counts as charged in the indictment. The defendant

waived further time for the imposition of sentence

and received the following sentence from the District

Coui*t: On Count I, one year and one day to serve;

on Count II, one year and one day to serve ; on Count

III, one year and one day to serve ; on Count IV, one



year and one day to serve ; and on Count Y, one year

and one day to serve. The sentences were to run con-

secutively to each other, and the whole were to run

concurrently with the previous sentence imposed on

the same defendant by the District Court for the

Fourth Division, Territory of Alaska, at Fairbanks,

Alaska.

On October 14, 1954, Williams moved to set aside

the judgment of conviction and sentence and sought

to invoke the jurisdiction of the District Court under

the provisions of 28 U.S.C. 2255. The petition was

denied by the District Judge October 29, 1954 and

the District Court filed a minute order directing that

the United States Attorney prepare Findings of Fact

and Conclusions of Law. The District Court entered

an order December 9, 1954, denying the petitioner's

application to vacate judgment of conviction and

sentence under 28 U.S.C. 2255.

The file of the District Court reveals that on Feb-

ruary 17, 1955 there was received a copy of a notice

of appeal filed with the United States Court of Ap-

peals for the Ninth Circuit, from the denial of the

District Judge to vacate the sentence of the defend-

ant. This notice of appeal was evidently supported

by an ''Amendment to a motion filed September 29,

1954," in the above cause and by briefs. Apparently

the briefs referred to the petition filed October 14,

1954, for vacation of judgment under 28 U.S.C. 2255.

James Williams petitioned a second time to vacate

and set aside the sentence and judgment in the Dis-

trict Court. His second petition for vacation of judg-

ment and sentence was filed with the District Court



April 21, 1955. This petition was denied by the Dis-

trict Court by an order dated April 29, 1955.

On June 22, the petitioner filed with the District

Court a '^Motion to Run Sentences Concurrently."

This motion was denied August 5, 1955. On August

5, 1955, the petitioner moved for a "Court Order" to

require the United States Attorney to proceed by way

of a criminal information against one Robert Jones.

This '* Motion for Court Order" was denied by the

District Court August 17, 1955. The petitioner then

filed a notice of appeal from the ruling of the Court

denying his petition for the ''Court Order" requiring

the United States Attorney to proceed in a prosecu-

tion of one Robert Jones.

On August 15, Williams filed his third motion to set

aside judgment and sentence under Title 28 U.S.C.

2255. On August 17, 1955, the District Court entered

an order denying the motion to vacate and set aside

the sentence and judgment and set forth that a sim-

ilar motion had been entertained and denied on pre-

vious occasions.

August 29, 1955, the petitioner filed a handwritten

notice of appeal with the District Court and on

September 16, 1955 followed this with a typed notice

of appeal from the ruling of the District Court deny-

ing the petitioner's third petition for a motion to

vacate the judgment of conviction and sentence.

On October 11, 1955, the petitioner filed a petition

for a "Court Order Directed to Mr. William Hilton,

Clerk," and on November 10, 1955, this motion for

a "Court Order" was denied by District Judge J. L.



McCarrey. On December 12, 1955, a notice of appeal

was filed from the denial of petitioner's motion for

"Court Order" to Mr. William Hilton.

The files of the District Court contain voluminous

correspondence in connection with the petitioner's

case. Included in this correspondence are letters from

Mr. Williams containing accusations of misconduct

on the part of the District Courts, the United States

Marshal, United States Attorneys, reporters of the

Court and the Clerk of the Courts.

ARGUMENT.
THE COURT OF APPEALS WILL GEANT THE WRIT OF CER-
TIORARI ONLY IN AID OF ITS APPELLATE JURISDICTION.

Petitioner has filed a petition for writ of certiorari

from this Court to the District Court for the Third

Division, Territory of Alaska. A reading of the peti-

tion does not clearly reveal on what grounds petitioner

demands relief. It is clear, however, that a writ of

certiorari from the Court of Appeals to the District

Court will only issue imder extraordinary circum-

stances. Jurisdiction in the Court of Appeals to grant

the writ of certiorari is found under 28 U.S.C. 1651.

It has been held consistently that the ^^Tit will only

issue in aid of the Court's appellate jurisdiction.

Travis County v. King Iron Bridge d Manu-
facturing Company, (CA 5) 92 F. 690;

United States ex rel. Montana Ore Purchasing

Co. et al. V. Circuit Court, Ninth Circuit,

District of Montana, et al, (CA 9) 126 F.

169;



Turner v. United States, (CA 8) 14 F. 2d 360;

Minnesota d Ontario Paper Co. et al. v. Moly-

neaux, District Judge, (CA 8) 70 F. 2d

545;

Lavinthal v. I. T. S. Company, (CA 3) 55 F.

2d 232;

Pickwick-Greyhound Lines, Inc. v. Shattuck,

(CA 10) 61 F. 2d 485.

Petitioner has appealed from the order of Decem-

ber 9, 1954 denying his motion to vacate the judgment

and set aside the sentence under 28 U.S.C.A. 2255.

This Court on April 7, 1955 dismissed his appeal

in the case of James A. Williams v. United States

of America, Miscellaneous No. 428.

Petitioner has signed a notice of appeal from the

ruling of the District Court on August 5, 1955 for a

*' Court Order" requiring the United States Attorney

to bring criminal proceedings against one Robert

Jones. It is clear the United States Attorney has dis-

cretion to refuse to bring criminal proceedings and

should properly do so under the circumstances here.

Petitioner has filed a notice of appeal from the

ruling of the District Court of August 17, 1955 deny-

ing his third motion to vacate and set aside the sen-

tence imder the provisions of 28 U.S.C.A. 2255. It

has been held repeatedly that the courts are not re-

quired to entertain successive motions brought under

28 U.S.C.A. 2255.

Petitioner has filed a notice of appeal from the

ruling of the District Court of November 10, 1955



for a ''Court Order" to the Clerk of the Court re-

quiring Mr. Hilton, the clerk, to furnish the petitioner

with the names and addresses of each member of the

Grand Jury attending the District Court for the 1955

term. The records and files disclose that the Clerk

of the Court, Mr. William Hilton, furnished to peti-

tioner the name of the foreman of the Grand Jury

for the 1955 term and the address of the foreman in

a letter under the date of October 24, 1955. It is sub-

mitted that on the allegations made by this petitioner

that this application for a Writ of Certiorari should

be denied.

CONCLUSION.

The examination of the files and the records of the

District Court should determine that the petitioner

here is not entitled to prevail in his application for

Writ of Certiorari, and that he is entitled to no other

writ or any other form of relief from this Court. His

application should be denied.

Dated, Anchorage, Alaska,

March 3, 1956.

Respectfully submitted,

William T. Plummer,
United States Attorney,

James M. Fitzgerald,
Assistant United States Attorney,

Attorneys for Appellee.
















